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7-8 George V Alphabetical Index to Sessional Papers A. lOi;

ALPHABETICAL INDEX

SESSIONAL PAPERS

PARLIAMENT OF CANADA

SEVENTH SESSION, TWELFTH PARLIAMENT. 1917.

A
Acadia Coa! Co., documents re Concilii-

ation Board to employees of 1916.. ... 16*

Adertising of Canadian Products by

sample goods in France 205a

" Agricultural Instruction Act "—Report

on loc

Agriculture, Report of Minister of year

191'6 l.'i

Agriculture, Dept. of, numbers of em-

ployees in from 1911 to 1917, etc.. .. ISSjy

Agriculture, total expenditure in, by Gov-

ernment in each of years from 1904-5,

1916-17, etc 222

Aliens, number of interned, nationality of

each on Public Works since 1914.. .. 141

Americans, number in Canadian Regi-

ments since 1914 143a

Ammunition, Order in Council re rules re-

specting employees near wharves.. .. 436

Arbitration Boards, .ipplications made to

Labour Dept. for. by workmen of N.S. 14S

Armstrong, S. A., aiJipointment of, as

Director of Military Hospitals Com-

mission 115

Auditor Generals Report, Vols. I, II, III

and IV, 1916 1

B
Battalion, 210th. respecting the locating

of, at Regina and Moosejaw 270

Baugh, Edward Levi, re release of, from

Penitentiary.. . . 219

Beam Trawlers of U. S., re privileges

granted to respecting ports in U. S. . . 266

27360—1

Beaver Harbour Wharf, Halifax Co., re

repairs, etc., to in last four years.. ..

'[Boards of Concilliation, Industrial Dis-

putes Act, etc., 1916

Bonds and Securities, detailed statement

of. 191&

Breakwater, re repairs on at Souris,

P.E.L, years 1915 and 1916

Breakwater at Breen's Point, Co. of Anti-

gonish, X.S., since 1911

Breakwater at Souris, P.E.I. , correspond-

ence re ISlS-lfi

British Isles, natives of, number of en-

rolled in Canadian Regiments since

1914

British Columbia, correspondence with

Government of, with Dept. of Marine
and Fisheries in B.C

British Columbia, between Imperial Gov-
ernment and re validation of certain

Acts of

British Columbia, Hydromottte Gur\ey
1915

British Columbia, correspondence with

Imperial Government, re validation

Acts of Legislature of

Buildings and offlcec, number of rented

by Government, in Ottawa years, 1914-

15-16-17, etc..

Bulls, thoroughbred sent to Co. of Dor-

chester, etc., Quebec

By-elections, year, 1916

119

3ea

63

127

12S

200

143a

209

214

265

18
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Canadian Array Medical Service, report

on. Gen. Baptie ?fi'

Canadian Army Medical Service, report

on. Col. Bruce 90

Canadian Railways, correspondence re

Commission respecting condition of,

names of Commissioners 7S

Canadian War Records Office, London,

England, report of, to 1917 fil

Canadian Manufacturers Association, cor-

respondence with, re supplies for the

front 159

Canadian Northern Railway, Order in

Council, re 4-5 George V. chap. 20, S-15 1S5

Canadian War Records Office, report re

from date of foundation to January
1917

Canadian ships, re requisitioning of, by
Government

Canadian Northern Railway S.vstera, copy

financial statements re

Canadian Northern Railway System, copy

statements re advances made to by

Government, etc

Canadian Northern Railway System, copy

of Mortgage Deed of Trust to Domin-
ion Government

Canadian Expeditionary Force, number
of officers and men classed as unfit for

service, etc

Canadian Biology 1915-1916

Canadian Government Railways ;

—

Return re lands sold by, from October

1915, to September 30, 1916

Canals Statistics, 1916

Census Statistics of male population,

ages of 20 and 45

Census Statistics re strength of Canadian

Units in England, also in France, St.

Lucia, etc

Censors, Decoders, etc., names, addresses,

etc.. of • • • •

Censors, Decoders, etc., names, addresses,

at Hazel Hill and Canso. N.S., 1916,

amount expended, 1916

Civil Service :

—

Number of permanent employees in

Department of Finance, 1911

Number of permanent emfployees in

Department of Finance, up to 1917..

Number of permanent and temporary

employees In Department of Indian

AITairs 13''.

List of Canada, year. 1916 30

Number of permanent employees in, in

1911—No. of added since I.f.Si

Number of permanent employees in

Department of Marine and Fisheries,

No. added since I3RI.

61

237

237!)

237

261

3Sa

68

20a

194

143c

93

136

13.S<

13Sc

Number of permanent employees in

Department of Naval Affairs, No.

added since 13So

Civil Service Insurance Act, 1916, state-

ment respecting 57

'ivil Service, statement re superannu-

ation and retiring allowances, 1916.. 5S

Civil Service, number of employees per-

manently in the Department of Militia

and Defence in 1911 and 1917, etc.. 138

Civil Service, re pay to members of, in

military service of Canada 188

'ivil Service Commission, report of 1916. 31

Civil Service, number of. etc.. Department

of Justice 138d

.'oal cargoes, report of Commission to

inquire into conditions re delivery of . . 142

Coal operations. Order in Council appoint-

ing Director of, for B.C 212

Coal re District No. 18 of Alberta, docu-

ments, etc., B.C. coal operators associ-

ation 212o

Cold Storage Companies in Canada, re

price and amount of commodities sold

by 210

Commission of Conservation, report of. . 73.

Commissions concerning soldiers re pen-

sions, hospitals, etc., created since war. 236

Commissioner of Live Stock, province of

Saskatchewan, names of persons em-
ployed with 252

Commissions, date and ob]er:t of all ap-

pointed since 1911. to date 161

Conductors, brakemen. drivers and flre-

men. number of. on Canadian Govern-

ment Railways, between Moncton and

v'amphellton 156

Conser\'ation, Commission of. Report of.

for year 1917 264

Cost of living. Report of W. F. O'Connor.

Commissioner relating to 210a

Customs duties, refund of. etc., statement

re 75

I'ljsioms. report of dep.artment of year

1916 11

Documents re Conciliation Board relat-

ing to employees at Pictou. N.S.. 104

List of all employees in 1916, In round
house at Pirate Harbour, N.S 101

Number of persons appointed to, from
January 1916. to March 31, 1917.. 175

Criminal Statistics for the year 1915.. .. 17

i:iiiy and cold storage commissioner, re-

port of. year 1916

David.ion. Sir Charles

—

Reportot, as Commissioner, evidence

taken before, re war expenditures;

also report of, re small arms ammu-
nition : purchase of submarines and

15a
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D
military cloth (Auburn Woolen Mills

Co.) 60

Davies, William Company, Ltd., and Mat-
thews-Blackwell, Ltd., Ord«r in Council,

re investig^ation 2106

Defence of Canada, order 1917 197
" Destructive Insect and Pest Act," re^u-

ations under 58

Dismissals :

—

Mr. H. D. McKenzie ot Stellarton, N.S. . 79

Frank Dunlop, of Sydney Mines 95

Mr. Spenny, trackmaster on short line,

Canadian Government Railway, etc. 153

L€on Roy, as Interpreter to Department
of Interior 154

D. MoDermid, superintendent ot Fish

Hatchery, N.S 165

Moses H. Nickerson, Inspector of Life

Saving stations, N.S 167

Augustin D. Lauteigne, postmaster of

Island River, Gloucester Co., N.B. . 178

John R. Mcintosh, postmaster, Cum-
ming's Mountain, etc., N.S 180

John McDonald, janitor of Public build-

ing, Inverness, N.S 198

Hector Urquhart, Cape Breton Co., N.S.,

appointment of successor 201

Divorces, number of, granted in Canada
by Parliament since 1S67 98

Dominion Lands, Orders in Council re

management of, in 40 mile railway-belt,

B.C 67

Dominion Lands, Orders in Council re

"Railway Water Belt Act," 1916.. .. 66

Dominion Lands, Orders in Council, re

"Forest Reserves and Park Act," 1916. 65

Dominion Lands, Orders in Council re

"Dominion Lands Act," 1916 69

Dominion Lands, Orders in Council re

"Dominion Lands Survey Act," 1916.. 64

Dominion Police Force, account of, etc.,

1916 59

Doukhobours, re exemption from Military

service of 224

Dredging :

—

Relating to work done at Ste. An,ne de

Bellevue, Pointe Fortune, Ottawa

river, etc 123

Dredging at wharf at Isle Perrot, north

and south, Dorion Bay channel, Vau-

dreuil, etc 123n

Dredging at Margaree Harbour, N.S,.

during 1913, 1914, 1915 and 1916.. .. 134

Dredging at Ste. Anne de Bellevue, Pointe

Fortune, Ottawa Rivers, etc 241

Duchemin, H. P., Commissioner, re

amount paid to 181

Duties, re payment of, on account of

claims against certain provinces, by
Minister of Justice 229

27360—IJ ;

E
Employees, number of, in Departments of

Labour, Interior, Public Works, etc. .. 217

Employees, names, salaries, etc., of, volun-
teering from Department of Interior

and Indian Affairs 220

Enlistment of men for overseas service.

number of, etc 143o
Estimates, year ending March 31, 1918.. 3

Estimates, supplementary, year ending
March 31, 1917 4

Estimates, supplementary, year ending
March 31, 1918 5

Exchequer Court, Copy of New Rule re

practice and procedure in 100
Exchequer Court, Proceedings of re

Indians on Sydney, N.S. Reserve. . . . 157

Exchequer Court, Proceedings re Quebec
and Saguenay Railway, Quebec and
Montmorency Railway, and Lotbini^re

Megantic 48a

Exchequer Court, Copy of Rule 200 of.

re procedure lOOo
Exhibition Train, correspondence re or-

ganization of, in France 205

Experimental Farms, Report of Director

and Officers of, 1916 16

Exports in different commodities, amount
of, for first nine months of present
fiscal year iS6

Express Statistics of Canada, year 1916 208
Extension of Parliamentary term, etc.,

correspondence re 74

Extension of Parliamentary term, etc.,

further correspondence, re 74a
External Affairs, Report of Secretary ot

State for 1917 33

F
First Contingent, No. ot Battalions ot
leaving Canada, etc 213

Fishing in the tidal waters of province
ot Quebec, relating to 251

Fish, dried, wine, etc., trade in between
Portugal and Canada 97

Fish, scrap, names and P. O. addresses ot
purchasers of, from works at Canso,
191G 116

Fisher, Ward, Inspector of Fisheries,

Western N.S., re disbursements ot,

1912-1913 208
Food Controller for Canada, Order In

Council, re appointment of I92a
Fuel Controller for Canada, Order in

Council, relating to 192
Furloughs granted to men after enlist-

ment for harvesting purposes 107

G
Geographic Board, Report ot, for year

1916 •

25(1
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G
iJerman nationality, number of persons

of, employed in Departments of Service,

etc 176
Giard, ex-M.P.P. for Compton, re employ-
ment of, by Government 223

Governor General's Warrants, on account
of years 1916-1917 49

Governor General's Warrants, issued

since adjournment of Parliament,

February 1917 49a
Grain Commission, re report from, to

Department of Trade and Commerce. 1S4

Grain Supervisors, Board of. Order in

Council, respecting 193

Grand Trunk Pacific Railway, quantity

of freight carried over, between L4vis
and Moncton 80

Gravel, Mr. Alfred, re appoiivtm«nt of,

etc., as Harbour Commissiioner of Que-
bec 71

GrazinE Leases, documents relating to. . 112

"Grilse," H.M.C.S. re inquiry into

damages sustained by 164

H
Halifax and Eastern Railway, naming of

Stations on 15<l

Halifax Herald, E\'©ning Mail, and Royal
Print and Lithographing Co., Halifax. 257

Hansard Translation Staff, correspond-
ence with Chief of, 1917 215

Harbour improvements at Tracadie, Co.

of Antigonish, N.S., 1916 126

Harrigan Cove Wharf, Halifax Co., re-

pairs, etc., to, in 1914-1915 120

Harvesting furloughs granted to men after

enlistment, etc 107

High Commissioner's Office, names of

staff, etc 96

Horses for war purposes bought in

Canada 92

Hydrometric Survey of British Colum-
bia 1915 25e

Hydrometric Survey of Manitoba 1915.. 25/

Hydrometric Surveys (Stream Measure-

ments). Report of 1915 25c

I

Immigration Sen'lcc in city of Montreal,

No. of persons, etc., employed in.. .. S3

Immigration Service and Land settlement,

correspondence between Federal Gov-
ernment and provinces, re 82

Immigration of Supt. of. re advertising in

United States newspapers for farm
hands 113

Imperial War Conference, papers, re,

1917 42a

Imperial War Conference, extracts from
Minutes °of 42n

I

Indian Affairs, Report of Department of,

year ended March 31, 1916 27

Inland Revenues, Reports. Returns and
Statistics of, year ended March 31,

1916 12, 13, 14

Insurance, Report of Superintendent of,

year 1916 S

Insurance Coys. Abstract statement of,

year 1916 9

Interior Department, number of clerks,

etc., belonging to inside service, paiJ
from outside service SI

Interior Department, Annual Report of,

year ending March 31, 1916 25

Inverness Harbour, X.S., re opening of. . 24S

J

Jones, C. G., Surgeon-General, Interim

Report of, on Army Medical Service. . 906

Judges, Province of Quebec, travelling

expenses of, etc 174

K
Kelly, Thos., re treatment of, in Stony
Mountain Prison 145

King's Regulations and Orders for the

Army 195

King and Wallace Shipyards, Ltd., re

contract for delivery of wooden auxi-

liary ship 267

Kitsilano Indian Reserve Report on.. .. S5

I.

Labour report of, for year ending March
31, 1916 36

Lambert, Hyppolite, re cancellation of

mail contract to 1S2

Laniond and Harrison, re contract for

construction of one wooden auxiliary

ship 267

Lebel, Poiydore, re suspension of, as engi-

neer on Intercolonial Railway, In 1916. 152 •

Le Blanc, Maurice, Department of Public

Works. Co. of Bonaventure, re travel-

ling expenses of . . .. 240

Librarians of Parliament, Report of Joint

do 4

Liquor, Return re amount of, brought

into Canadian Territories, 19H 147

List of shipping of Dominion of Canada
to 1915 22

List of shareholders in Chartered Banks
on December 31, 1915 6

Local Tribunals, Copy of "Gazette," 12th

September, containing list of 276

LuceviUe Station, I.C.Ry., re changing of

name of Saint Luce, to 118

Lyall & Sons, re contract of, between
Government and, for rebuilding Parlia-

ment Buildings 105
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M
Mails :

—

Contract to J. C. Shields and others for

carrying mails from Ashcroft to Fort

George, B.C 139

Documents re contract from Tatama-
g-ouche to New Annan, N.S 99

Documents re contract between Grand
River and Fourchu, N.S 231

Rural routes established in Qu'Appelle

since January 1916, also date of . . . . 272

Mail route, change in Margaree-Inver-

ness, to other points 273

Male persons, regulations re departure of,

from Canada, Order in Council re.. .. 1C2

Manitoba Hydrometric Survey, 1915.. .. 25)

Manitoba Legislature Act passed by,

amending the "Jury Act" 140

Manual of Military Law, 1914 196

Margaree Harbour, pier at 246

Margaree Harbour, breakwater at 246o

Marine and Fisheries, Report of, years

1915-1916 21

Marine Agency at Pictou, N.S., re closing

of. etc., in 1916- T'l

Marine and Fisheries, supplement to Re-

port of, (Steamboat In.spection) . . .. I'M

Members of Parliament, names of, belong-

ing to overseas forces, etc Idf'

Members of Parliament, names of, belong-

ing to overseas forces, supplementary. 109i

Members of Parliament, names and num-
ber of, serving with forces 1091

Members of Parliament, names, supple-

mentary 109<

Members of House of Commons, names of,

serving or have served with Canadian

army 109

Members of House of Commons, names of

serving or have served with Canadian

army 109<

Members of House of Commons, names of,

numiber of. date of appointment, etc.. 1091

Members of House of Commons, serving

or have served in Canadian army.. .. 109i

Merchandise, re quantity of, exported into

foreign countries since August 1, 1914,

etc 207

Military Hospital at Halifax, Report of

Commission respecting 170

Military Hospitals Commission, Report of

work of, to date 1917 l^S

Militia Council, Report of, year ending

March, 31, 1916 3^

Militia General Orders promulgated to,

1915 to 1917 S4

Militia and I>efence, ex-Minister of, cor-

respondence between Premier and.. .. 160

Militia, Department of, re amount sjient

advertising for recruits in Canada.. .. 171

M
Military Staff, North Vancouver, names,

duties, salaries, etc 235

Military Division No. 6, Halifax, names,
occupation, salaries, etc 2Z',a

Military Service Council, Order in Council,

appointing to assist administration of

Military Service Act 269

Mines Branch, Department of Mines, Re-
port of 1915 26a

Mines Department, Geological Survey,
Report 26

Miscellaneou.s Unfore.seen Elxpenees, state-

ment re, from 1916 to 1917 51

Mc

McCuaig, Clarence J., correspondence be-
tween Department Militia, and first

purchasing committee 263

McFarlane, Dan, re claim of, against De-
partment of Railways, 1917 lol

MeKee, A. J., and T. J. Drummond, The,
vessels 149

McLeod, Sir Ezekiel, Hon. Louis Tellier,

Report of re Hon. Robert Rogers.. .. 230

N
.National Battlefields Commission, State-

ments re Receipts and E^^penditures. . 55
.National Service Board of Canada, Orders

in Council, re establishment of 46

Xaturalization, certificates of, to Alien

enemies, Order in Council, recommend-
ing

Naval Service :

—

Amendments to regulations, re pay,

allowances, and pensions to invalided

men from Naval Service

Canadian Biology, 1915-1916

Copies of Orders in Council re super-

annuation of Blair Kent in Naval Ser-

vice Department, also command
money ; Hardlying money ; establish-

ing rates of pensions : regulations

for enrollment of men in volunteer

Naval Reserve, and order made
under War Measures Act re persons

of enemy landing in Canada.. .. 43

Copy Order in Council, re payment and
Specialist allowances to overseas

division 43d
EJxtract from Order in Council, re

Regulations respecting Separation

Allowance payment 43ei

Extract Order in Council, No. 1783,

tg pay^ allowances and pensions. . 43e

Extract Order in Council, No. 1871,

re pay, allowances and pensions. . 439

Radiotelegraph regulations, copy of

amendment to 506

273

i3g
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N
Regrulations re rank of Chief Skripper

in 43c

Regulations re persons on stores,

wharves, etc., on which am'munition

is handled. Order in Council re-

specting 436

Regulations re pay and allowances

to men after discharge. Order in

Council respecting 43i

Report of Department of, for year end-

ing 1916 3S

Report of Fisheries Branch of Naval
Service, 1913-1916 39

Report of Department of year 1916.. 3S

Travelling allowances. Officers and
men of, also allowances re lodging.

etc 43/

Defence of Canada, order, Order in

Council re ' 45/i

News print paper, Order in Council, re

exportation, price, sale, transport, and

control of 114

Newspapers, " Le Canada," " La Presse,"

"La Patrie," " Le Pays," "La Vigie,"

and " La Soleil," amounts 216

O'Connor, Commissioner, re cost of_ living,

Reports of, re sugar 189

O'Connor, Commissioner, re cost of living.

Reports of, re Anthracite coal 190

O'Connor, Commissioner, re cost ot living,

cold storage conditions in Canada.. 210(i

Okanagan Telephone Coy 219

Oliver equipment lOS

Overseas Forces, re number of appli-

cants rejected on account of physical

'

unfitness, etc 143

Overseas Forces, number of men enlisted

for, number since discharged, and where. H-'iii

Orders in Council, Copies of:

—

Re appointment of Parliamentary

Under Secretary of State for Exter-

nal Affairs -ll

He appointment of Parliamentary Secre-

tary, Department Militia and De-

fence ^^

Re appointment Minister of Overseas

Military Forces from Canada in

United Kingdom ^l

Respecting, wheat flour, and Semolina

Imported into Canada free of duty.. 106

Ottawa Improvement Commission, Re-

ceipts and Expenditures, 1916 53

P
Parliament Buildings, re claims of losses

by fire at, 1916 -''^

Parliamentary National Service Commis-

sion, correspondence re SS

Parliamentary term. War extension ot. . 74

Patriotic Fund, amounts subscribed and
voted, amounts by provinces, counties,

etc

amounts paid into, pro-

of, to

Patriotic Fund,

mised. etc

Patenaude, Hon. E. L., Letter

Prime Minister re resignation

Pearson's post office, Nipissing, change
of lo<iation of

Penitentiaries, Report of Minister of Jus-

tice, year 1916

Pension Regulations, copies of Order in

Council respecting

Pensions of officers or dependents, re ex-

change of, between Imperial and Can-
adian Governments

Pensions and separation allowances, offi-

cers, warrant officers, etc

Pier at Margaree Harbour, N.S
Postmaster General, Report of year ended

March 31, 1916

Post Office, Canard and Splitlog. petitions,

etc., re

Post Office, Pearson's re removal of, etc.

Post Office, Department, number in paid

from outside service, names, salary,

etc

Printing of Parliament, Reports of re

economy in printing public documents.
Proprietary or Patent Medicine Act, re

petitions for repeal of, from Phj'sicians,

etc

Public Accounts of Canada, year ended
March 31, 1916

Public Works, Report of Minister of

year ended March 31, 1916

Public Works, expenditures made by,

since 1916 in different provinces of

Canada, etc

Public Printing and Stationery, 1916..

Q
Quebec and Saguenay Ry. Co.. Quebec

Hallway, Light and I'ower Co., Lot-
bini^re and Megantic Railway Co., and
Quebec Railway, Light, Heat and Power
Co., copy of agreement between Gov-
ernment and

Quebec and Saguenay Railway Co., etc..

Exchequer Court proceedings, re.. .,

Quebec and Saguenay Railway Co., Judg-
ment by court fixing price paid for, etc.

Quebec City Board of Trade, corrcsi)on-

dence between, and Premier re Report
of Commission on Railways

R
Hadiotelegraph Regulations, Amend-
ments to, since 1914

iadiolclegr.iph Regulations, Amendments
lo re ship stations within Canadian har-

bours

llOu

110

200

179

34

168

168a

238

246

24

S9

179

227

183

259

2

19

130

3'

48

48a

486

239

50

50a
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R
Railway Commissioners, Report of Board

of year 1916

Railway Transport Commission, Report of

1917

Railway Subsidies, amounts expended in

Canada years, 1912, 1913, 1914, and
1915

Railway Employees' Magazine, re estab-
lishment of, etc

Railways and Canals, Report of Depart-
ment of year 1916

Railway Statistics 1916

Rails taken up on G.T.P. Railway.. ..

Rails, sent to France for use of. in war.
Recruiting Officers, chief, or special, names
and rank of, since begrinning of war. .

Recruiting in P. E. Island, names, ad-
dresses, etc., of parties engaged therein.

Recruiting Officers, names and number of

appointed in Province of Quebec, etc.

Recruiting of soldiers for over.seas ser-

vice, statistics re

Refund of Customs duties, etc., state-

ment re

Refund of Tolls or duties from Depart-

ment of Marine and Fisheries 1916..

Registrars for purposes of Military Ser-

vice Act, Order in Council, appointing

to Provinces of Canada
Returned Soldiers, correspondence re be-

tween Federal and Provincial Govern-

ments
Returned Soldiers, Order in Council re

preference in appointments to Civil

Service

Returned soldiers, number of, receiving

employment from the Government.. ..

Rogers, Hon. Robert, McLeod-Tellier, Re-

port, re

Rogers evidence, exhibits, connected with
McLeod-Tellier, Report concerning,. ..

Rogers, Hon. Robt., correspondence be-

tween, and the Premier of Canada, re

resignation

Roseberg, P. O, correspondence, re change
of location of

Ross Rifle, Papers re withdrawal of, from
service

Ross Rifle. Order In Council, re taking

over of, by Government of Canada. .

Ross. Sir Charles, Copy of contracts, etc.

Ross Rifle, liate. and number of last

ordered, recommendation for, etc.. ..

Roy, L6on, appointment of. as interpreter

Department of Interior, and also dis-

missal

Royal Canadian Navy, re allowance to

accountant officers in receiving ships. .

121

20

201

14 6o

146

233

226o

226

1431

75

277

S6

163

218

230

23n-

260

Royal North West Mounted Police, cancel-

20a lation of agreements between Govern-
ments of Manitoba, Saskatchewan and

20g Alberta, re services in those provinces.
P.oyal Xorth West Mounted Police, re ter-

minations of agreements between Gov-
ernment of Canada and Provincial
Governments

Royal North West Mounted Police, Report
of year 1916

Royal Society of Canada, statements of
receipts and expenditures, 1916.. ..

S

Salmon Nets, correspondence re removal
of, from parts of coast of Inverness
Co

Salt, correspondence re supply of, for
fisheries of Maritime Provinces

Sealers of B.C., documents re claims of,

under last treaty with United States..
Secretary of State, Report of year 1916.
ieed Commissioner, Order in Council,
appointing, and authorizing purchase of
seed wheat, etc

Seizure of certain fishing boats, tackle,
etc.. Straits of Northumberland, 1916

Sevigny. Hon. Albert, correspondence
between, and Sergeant-at-Arms. . ..

Seventy-eighth Highlanders of N.S.,
name and rank of officers in 1914..

Shields, J, C, Inland Express Co.. con-
tract for carrying mails from Ashcroft
to Fort George, B.C

ihip Harbour Lake, N.S., re sale of tim-
ber from, to Mr. Andrew Webber..

cockeye Salmon, papers re prohibition of
export of, from B.C

ioldiers, alleged maltreating
Quebec, evidence collected re.

Southern Slav Committee, memo, pre-
sented by, re aspirations, claims, etc., of
Slavs

State and Mines. Departments, number of
employees in from 1911 to 1917, inclu-
sive

Statute passed by Manitoba, intituled:
" An Act to amend the Jury Act,"
Papers, re

Stenographic reporting for different com-
missions, amount paid for

itenographic reporting for different com-
missions, amount paid for

stoning of Troop trains, Report of Com-
mission of inquiry

Storm Signals, re appointment of a man
in charge of. at Grand E^ng and Mar-
garee Harbour

Sydney Daily Post, newspaper, re amount*
paid to by Government since 1911..

70

70a

(4

169

211

268

29

111

137

Ml

7?

of.

144

253

187

262

139

84

72

173

228

138ft

140

203

203a

172

271

25S
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Tait, Sir Thomas, correspondence re

appointment, etc., to National SerA'ice

Board S7

Tait, Sir Tliomas, correspondence addi-

tional re appointment, etc., to National

Service Board STu

Target practice rod, correspondence re

between Department Militia, War Pur-

chasing Commission, and British War
Office 254

Telagraph Statistics of Canada, 1916.. .. 20/

Telephone Statistics of Canada, year 1916. 20d

Temporary Loans, Statement of, from

1916 to 1917 52

Territorial defence of Province of Que-

bec, correspondence with Armand La-

vergne re 191

Thetford Mines, P.Q., correspondence re

labour trouble at 102

_ Tidal waters of Province Quebec, rights

of fishing in 251

Topographical Surveys Branch, Report of

1915-1916 25!

Trade and Commerce :

—

Report of Department of. Part I, 191*. 10

Report of Department of. Part II, 1916 10<

Report of Department of. Part III,

1916 li'l

Report of Department of, Part IV,

1916 I"'

Report of Department of. Part V,

1916 10.

Report of Department of. Part I,

1916 Ifi.

Report of Department of. Part VIl,

1916 _.. 10.

Trade Unions. Annual Return, re.. ..'.. 62

Trade Commission to Great Britain.

France and Italy. 1916, Report of . . 221

Transcontinental Railway, Report of

Commission of, 1916 3"

Transcontinental Railway, List of points

where rails removed 146i

Transcontinental Railway, List of points

where rails removed 14 6<

Tribunals, Local, Copy of Gazette con-

taining list of -'C

U
Unclaimed Balances in chartered banks

of Canada, December 31, 1915.. .. 7

V
Vale Railway, Copy of agreement con-

cerning lease of 47

Vancouver. Documents re purchase of

land In, for purpose of an Armoury

since 1913 232

Veterinary Director General, Report of

year 1916 15)

Victoria Bridge, Montreal, Copy of Order

in Council, increasing toll rates on.. 117

War Purchasing Commission, Report of

1915 to 1916, inclusive 45

War Conference, Papers relating to. in

1917 42

War Measures Act. re British ships in

Canada, etc., requisition of, for war
purposes.. 135

War Badges, Rules and Regulations re

for members of Canadian Expeditionary

Foo-ce 274

Ward Fisher, Inspector of Fisheries,

Western Nova Scotia, disbursements

of 1912-1913 208

Wet Canteen system overseas, corres-

pondence re abolishment of 204

Wharves :

—

" at Upper Prospect. N.S., 1915.. .. 124
" at Shad Bay, repairs to, in 1913.. 125
" at Mushaboom Harbour, N.S.. in

1913 129
" at Port Dufterin West, Halifax Co.,

N.S.. in 1913-14 131

at Port Dufferin East, Halifax Co.,

N.S., in 1916 132
•' at Ecum Secum West, Halifax Co.,

N.S., construction of, at 133
' at McKay's Point, extension of and

repairs to 199
" at Craignish, N.S 202

" at Harrigan Cove, Halifax Co., N.S..

repairs to, in 1914-1915 120

" at Isle Perrot, Vaudreuil. Pointe

Cavagnal. Hudson, etc 1226
" at Finlay Point, N.S 242
" Breakwaters, etc.. Co. of Anti-

gonish. N.S 243
" of the Government at Crose Point.

New Carlisle, etc., Quebec 244

" at Marble Mountain, N.S 245
" al Port Hood, N.S 247

Correspondence re wharves at. Isle

Perrot Sud, Vaudreuil, Pointe

Cavagnal, etc 122
" Correspondence re wharves at Isle

Perrot North, South, Vaudreuil,

Pointe Cavagnal, Hudson, etc.. .. 122o

vVliarves. Breakwaters and other public

works, Co. of Guysboro, N.S 250
Wheat, wheat flour, semolina, Orler in

Council re lOG
Whitehead, X.S., life saving station at.

Order in Council referring to 27S
Willis Kelzer, application of re Fishing

weir at Square Cove, N'.S 16C
Wooden Auxiliary Sailing Ships, Con-

tracts for.

—

Y
Yukon Territory, Ordinances of 76
fukon Territory, Orders in Council re
Government of 76a

Yukon Territory, Orders in Council re

Government of 1917 766

8



7-8 George V Alphabetical ludex to Sessional Papers A. 1'J17

LIST OF SESSIONAL PAPERS

Arranged in Numerical Order, with their titles at fall length; the dates when Ordircd

and when Presented to the Houses of Parliainient; the Names of the Senator or

Member who moved for each Sessional Paper, and whether it is ordered to be

Printed or not Printed.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME 1.

(This volume is bound in three parts.)

1. Report of the Auditor General for the year ended 31st March, 1916, Volume 1, Parts a b and

A to K ; Volume II, Parts L to U ; Volume in, Parts V to Z ; Volume IV. Part ZZ'.

Presented by Sir George Foster April 19, 1917.

Printed for distribution and scssiotutl paprr9.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME 2.

2. The Public Accounts of Canada, for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1916. Presented by
Sir Thomas White. February 1, lSi~. . .Printed for distrihution and sessional papers.

3. Estimates of sums required for the service of the Dominion for the year ending on the

31st March, 1918, and in accordance with the provisions of "The British North
America Act, 1867," the Governor Gener.\l recommends these Estimates to the House
of Commons. Presented by Sir Thomas White, January 31, 1917.

Printed for distribution and sessional papers,

4. Supplementary Estimates of sums required for the service of the Dominion for the year

ending on the 31st March, 1917, and, in accordance with the provisions of "The British

North America Act, 1867," the Governor General recommends these Estimates to the

House of Commons. Presented by Sir Thomas White. February 5, 1917.

Printed for distribution and sessional papers.

5. Supplementary Estimates of sums required for the service of the Dominion for the year
ending on the 31st March, 1918. Presented by Sir Thomas White, August 17, 1917.

Printed for distribution and sessional papers.

6. List of Shareholders in the Chartered Banks of the Dominion of Canada as on December
31, 1915. Presented by Sir Thomas White, January 25, 1917 .Vot printed.

7. Report on certified cheques, drafts or bills of exchange, dividends remaining unpaid and
unclaimed balances in Chartered Banks of the Dominion of Canada, for five years and
upwards prior to December 31, 1915. Presented by .Sir Thomas Whits, January 2.5,

1917 Vof print) d.

^
CONTENTS OF VOLUME 3.

(This volume is bound in two parts.)

8. Report of the Superintendent of Insurance for the year 1916. Presented by Sir Thomas
White, July 27, 1917 Printed for distribiUion and sessional papers.

9. Ab.stract of Statements of Insurance Companies in Canada for the year ended December
31, 1916. Presented by Sir Thomas White, May 2. 1917.

Prlntenl for distribution and stssional papers
9



-8 George V Alphabetical Index to Sessional Papers A. 191T

CONTENTS OF VOLUME 4.

10. Report of the Department of Trade and Commerce for the fiscal year ended 31st March,

191G: Part I.—Canadian Trade (Imports in and EJxports from Canada). Presented

by Sir George Foster. April 19. 1917.. ..Printed for distribiition and sessional paper*.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME 5.

lOo. Report of the Department of Trade and Commerce for the fiscal year ended March 31,

1916:—Part II.—Canadian Trade with France, Germany, the United Kingdom and the

United States. Presented by Sir George Foster, January 25, 1917.

Printed for distribution and sessional papers.

lOb, Report of the Department of Trade and Commerce for the fiscal year ended March 31,

1916 —Part III.—Canadian Trade with British and Foreign Countries (except France,

Germany, United Kingdom and United States). Presented by Sir George Foster,

April 19, 1917 Printed for distribution and sessional papers.

lOf. Report of the Department of Trade and Commerce for the fiscal year ended March 31,

1916 (Part IV, Miscellaneous information). Presented by Sir George Foster, June 4,

1917 Printed for distribution and sessional papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME 6.

lOd, Report of the Dep.^rtment of Trade and Commerce. Part V—Grain Statistics, compiled by
the Inspection Branch of the Department, Ottawa, for the fiscal year ended March 31,

1916. the cr6D year ended August 31. 1916, and the season of navigation ended

DecemlJer 14. 1916; and Report of the Board of Grain Commissioners Presented by

Sir 'ieorge Foster. June S, 1917.. .. Printed for distribution and sessional papers.

lOe. Report of the Department of Trade and Commerce, for the fiscal year ending March 31,

1916 (Part \T.—Subsidized Steamship Services, with Statistics showing Steamship
Trafflo- to December 31. 1916, and Estimates for fiscal year 1917-191S). Presented by

Sir George Pofeter. May 3, 1917 Printed for distribution and sessional papers.

lOf. Report of the Department of Trade and Commerce for the fiscal year ended March 31,

1916: Part VII—Trade of Foreign CountrlP-s, Treaties and Conventlon.s Presented

by Sir George Foster. 1917 Printed for distribution and sessional papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME 7,

11. Report of the Department of Customs tor the year ended March 31. 1916. Presented by
Hon. Mr. Reld. January 29. 1917.. ..Printed for distribution and sessional papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME 8.

12. 13, 14. Reports. Returns and Statistics of the Inland Revenues ot the Dominion of

Canada, tor the fiscal year ended March 31. 1916. Part I.—:^':xcise. Part II.—Weights

and Measures. Gas and Electricity. Part [II.— Adulteration ot Food. Presented by

Sir lames Loughced. January 26. 1317.. .Printed for distrihullAn and sessional onpers.

15. Report of the Minister of Agriculture tor the Dominion of Canada, for the year ended
March 31, 191fi. Presented bv Hon. Mr Burrell, January 26, 1917.

Printed for distribution and sessional pavers.

15«. Report of the Dairy and Cold Storage Commls.'iloner for the Hsc.tI year ending March 31.

1916. (Dairying. Fruit. Extension of Markets and Cold Storage.) Presented by Hon.

Mr. Burrell. 1917 Not printed.

10



7-8 George V Alpliabctii-nl Index to Sp>sioiiiil Papers A. 1017

CONTEyiS OF VOLUME 8—Concluded.

15^, Report of the Veterinary Director General for ilie year ending' March 31, 1916. Presented

by Hon. Mr. Burrell, 1917 Printed for distribntion and sessional papers.

15c. Report on "The Agricultural Instruction Act," 1915-16, pursuant to Section S, Chapter

5 of 3-4 George V. Presented by Hon. Mr. Patenaude, January 31, 1917.

Printed for distribution and sessional papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME 9.

(This volume is bound in two parts.)

16. Report ot the Director and Officers of the Experimental Farms for the year ending Slst

March, 1916.—Volumes I, II and III. Presented by Sir George Poster, August 13. 1917.

Printed for distribution and sessional papers.

17. Criminal Statistics for the year ended September, 1915. (Appendix to the Report ot the

Minister of Trade and Commerce for the year 1915.) Presented by Sir George Foster,

1!>17 Printed for distribution and sessional papers

18. Return of By-elections for the House o€ Commons of Canada held during the year 1916.

Presented by Hon. Mr. 'Speaker. 1917 N'ot printed.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME 10.

19. Report ot the Minister of Public Works on the TPorks under his control tor the fiscal

year ended March 31, 1916. Presented by Hon. Mr. Rogers, January 26, 1917.

Printed for distribution and sessional papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME 11.

20. Annual Report of the Department of Railways and Canals, for the fiscal year from April

1, 1913, to March 31, 1916. Presented by Hon. Mr. Cochrane, April 19, 1917.

Printed for distribution and ses.':ional papers.

20". Canal Statistics for the season of Navigation, 1916. Presented by Hon. Mr. Reid, May 7,

1917 Printed for distribution and sessional papers.

206. Railway Statistics of the Dominion of Canada, for the year ended 30th June. 1916. Pre-

sented by Hon. Mr. Cochrane, April 24, 1917.

Printed for distribution and sessi-onal papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME 12.

20c. Eleventh Report of the Board of Railway Commissioners for Canada, for the year ending
31st March, 1916. Presented by Hon. Mr. Cochrane, January 23, 1917.

Printed for distribution and sessional papers.

20<'. Tele^lione Statistics ot the Dominion of Canada, for the year ended June 30, 1916. Pre-
sented by Hon. Mr. Cochrane, April 19. 1917.

Printed for distribution and sessional papers.

20''. Express Statistics of the Dominion of Canada, for the year ended June 30. 1916. Pre-

sented by Hon Mr. Cochrane. April 25, 1917.

Printed for distribution and sessional papers.

20/. Telegraph Statistics ot the Dominion of Canada, tor the year ended June 30, 1916. Pre-

sented by Hon. Mr. Cochrane, April 19, 1917.

Printed for distributio7i and sessioiial papers.

20g. Report of the Royal Commission appointed to consider the general problem of transporta-

tion in Canada, comprising:—Report of Sir H. F. Drayton and Mr. W. M. Acworth ;

Report of Mr. A. H. Smith ; and, Appendices A and B, being Report of Appraisal of

Canadian Northern Railway System and Grand Trunk Pacific Railway, by Mr. Geo.

F. Swain, C.E. Presented by Sir Thomas White. May 2. 1917.

Printed for distribution and sessional papers.

11
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CONTENTS OF VOLUME 13.

21. Forty-ninth Annual Report of the Department of Marine and Fisheries, for the year
1915-16—Marine. Presented by Hon. Mr. Hazen, January 23, 1917.

Printed f&r tiistribution and sessional papers.

22. List of Shipping issued by the Department of Marine and Fisheries, being a list of vessels

on the Registry Books of the Dominion of Canada, on the 31st day of December, 1916.

Presented by Hon. Mr. Hazen, September 4, 1917.

Printed for distribution and sessional papers.

23. Supplement to the Forty-ninth Annual Report of the Department of Marine and Fisheries

for the fiscal year 1915-16. (Marine)—Steamboat Inspection Report. Presented by

Hon. Mr. Hazen, April 19, 1917 Printed lor distribution and sessional papers-

CONTENTS OF VOLUME 14.

24. Report of the Postmaster General for the year ended 31st March, 1916. Presented by

Hon. Mr. Blondin, February 1, ^Ull.. .Printed for distribution and sessional papers.

25. Annual Report of the Department of the Interior, for the fisoal year eliding March 31,

1916. Presented by Hon. Mr. Roche, January 22, 1917.

Printed for distribtition and sessional papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME 15.

25*. Annual Report of the Topographical Surveys Branch of the Department of Interior,

1915-1'6. Presented by Hon. Mr. Roche, June 19, 1917.

Printed for distribution and sessional papers.

25c. Report of Hydrometric Surveys (Stream Measurements), for the calendar year isfis.

Presented by Hon. Mr. Roche, April 19, 1917.

Printed for distribution and sessional papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME 16.

25d. PMfteenth Report of the Geographic Board of Canada for year ended March 31, 191 G.

Presented, 1917 Not printed.

25e. Kepori of the British Columbia Hydrometric Survey for the calendar year 1915 (Water
Resources Paper No. IS of the Dominion Water Power Branch, Department of the

Interior). Presented by Hon. Mr. Roche, July 5, 1917.

Printed for distribution and sessi^al papers.

25/. Progress Report of the Manitoba Hydrometric Survey for the calendar year 1915 (Water

Resources Paper uV'o. 19 of the Dominion Water Power Branch, Department of the

Interior). Presented by Hon. Mr. Roche, July 7, 1917.

Printed for distribution and tetsional papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME 17.

26. Summary Report of the operations of the Geological Sur\'ey, Department of Mines, lor

the calendar year, 1916. Presented by Hon. Mr. Meighen, August 28, 1917.

Printed for distribution and sessional papers.

26°. .Summary Report of the Mines Branch of the Department of Mines, for the calendar year

ending 3lBt Decem^ber, 191D. Presented by Hon. Mr. Patenaude, April 19, 1917.

Printed for distribution and sissionul papers.

12
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CONTENTS OF VOLUME 18.

27. Report of the Department of Indian Affairs for the year ended March 31, 1516. Pre-

sented by Hon. Mr. Roche, January 22, 1917.

Printed for distribution and srssionol papers.

28. Report of the Royal Northwest Mounted Police, 1916. Presented by Sir Robert Borden.

April 19, 1917 Printed for distribution and sessional paiyers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME 19.

29. Report of the Secretary of State of Carmda for the year ende<l March 31, 1516. Presented

by Hon Mr. Roche, August 18, 1917 Printed for distribution and sessional papers.

30. The Civil Service List of Canada for the year 1916. Presented 1517.

Printed for distribution and sessional papers.

31. Eighth Annual Report of the Civil Service Commission of Canada for the year ended

August 31, 1916. Presented by Hon. Mr. Patenaude, April 19, 1917.

Printed for distribution and sissional papers.

32. Annual Report of the Department of Public Printing and Stationery for the fl9cal year

ended March 31, 1916. Presented by Sir Robert Borden, July 31, 1917.

Printed for distributio7i and sessional papers.

33. Report of the Secretary of State for External Affairs for the year ended March 31, 1917.

Presented 1917 Printed for distribution and sessional papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME 20.

34. Report of the Minister of Justice as to the Penitentiaries of Canada for the fiscal year

ending March 31, 1916. Presented 1917.. .Pn?i(ed for distribution and sessional papers.

35. Report of the Militia Council for the Dominion of Canada, for the fiscal year ending

March 31, 1916. Presented by Sir A. E. Kemp. February 3, 1917.

Printed for tlistribution and sessional papers.

36. Report of the Department of Labour for the fiscal year ending March 31, 1916. Pre-

sented by Hon. Mr. Crothers, January 22, 1917.

Printed for distribution and sessional papers.

36a, Ninth Report of the Registrar of Boards of Conciliation and Investigation of the pro-

ceedings under "The Industrial Disputes Investigation Act, 1907," for the fiscal year

ending March 31, 1916. Presented by Hon. Mr. Crothers, January 22, 1917.

Printed for distribution and sessional papers.

37. Twelfth Annual Report of the Commissioners of the Transcontinental Railway, for the

year ended March 31, 1916. Presented by Hon, Mr. Cochrane, April 19, 1917.

Printed for difitribxition and sessional papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME 21.

38. Report of the Department of the Naval Service, for the fiscal year ending March 31, 1916.

Presented by Hon. Mr. Hazen, January 22, 1917.

Printed for distribution oiid sessional papers.

38". Supplement to the Sixth Annual Report of the Department of Naval Service, Fisheries

Branch,—Contributions to Canadian Biology, being studies from the biological stations

of Canada, 1915-1916. Presented by Hon. Mr. Hazen, Jtine 4, 1917.

Printed for distribution and sessional papers.

38c. Lobster Conservation in Canada, by A. P. Knight, MA.
Printed for distribution and sessional papers.

39. Forty-ninth Annual Report of the Fisheries Branch of ,the Department of tiie Naval

Servii;e, 1915-16. Presented by Hon. Mr. Hazen, January 22, 1917.

Printed for distribution anil sessional papers.

13
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CONTENTS OF VOLUME 2l~Continued.

40. The Report of the Joint Librarians of Parliament. Presented by Hon. Mr. Speaker,

January 19, 1917 Not printed.

41. Copies of Orders in Council, as follows:

—

P.C. 1917, dated the loth day of July, 1916, respecting the appointment of a

Parliamentary Under Secretary of State for External Affairs during the continuance

of the war.

P.C. 2576, dated the 21st day of October, 1916, respecting the appointment of Hugh
Clark, Member of the House of Commons for the Electoral District of North Bruce,

to the position of Parliamentary Under Secretary for Exernal Affairs, during the con-

tinuance of the present war.

P.C. 1720, dated the 13th day of July, 1916, respecting the appointment of a Par-

liamentary Secretary of the Department of Militia and Defence, during the continu-

ance of the present war.

P.C. 1730, dated the 19th day of July, 1916, respecting the appointment of Fleming

Blanchard McCurdy, Member of the House of Commons tor the Sectoral District of

Shelburne and Queens, to the position of Parliamentary Secretary of the Department

of Militia and Defence, during the continuance of the present war.

P.C. 2651, dated the 28th day of October, 1916, respecting the establishment of a

ministry in London charged with the administration of the overseas forces of Canada,

and the direction and control of the expenditures abroad in connection therewith.

P.C. 2656. dated the 31st day of October, 1918, respecting the appointment of

Honourable Sir George Halsey Perley, to the position of Minister of Overseas Military

Forces from Canada in the United Kingdom. Presented by Sir Robert Borden, January

jg 1917 Printed for sessional papers only.

42. Papers relating to the Imperial War Conference, 1917. Presented by Sir Robert Borden,

January 22, 1917 Printed tor sessional papers only.

42a. Copy of a Parliamentary Paper (Cd. 8'56'6), containing extracts from the Minutes of the

Proceedings of the Imperial War Conference, 1917, and Papers laid before the Con-

ference. Presented by Sir Robert Borden, June 15, 19l"^.

Printed for distribution and sessional paper's.

43. Copies of Orders in Council, as follows :

—

P.C. 64-15-25, dated the 29th June, 1916, authorizing the superannuation of Mr.

Silas Blair Kent, a clerk in Sub-division " B " of the First Division, employed as

chief Ashing bounty officer of the Naval Sen-ice Department

P.C. 3192, dated 30th December, 1916, Regulations governing the payment of

Separation Allowance in the Royal Canadian Navy and Royal Naval Canadian Volun-

teer Reserve.

P.C. 3108, dated 19th September, 1916, Regulations governing payment of "Com-

mand Money " to officers on " Special Service," etc., in the Royal Canadian Navy.

P.C. 2942, dated 29th November, 1916, Regulations governing payment of "Hard-

lying Money" in the Royal Canadian Navy.

P.C. 2442, dated 11th October, 1916, Amendment to Order In Council P.C. 1334,

dated 3rd June, 1916, establishing Rates of Pensions for the Military and Naval Forces

of Canada.

P.C. 2130, dated 9th September, 1916. Regulations for enrolment of men in the

Royal Canadian Volunteer Reserve for service in the Royal Navy.

P.C. 1939, dated 18th August, 191«. Order made under War Measures Act, 1914,

to reduce risk of persons of enemy nationality landing in Canada uredor guis« of

neutrals. Presented by Hon. Mr. Hazen, January 22. 1917 Not printed.

43a. Copy of extract from Order in Council No. P.C. 942, dated 5th April. 1917, with reference

to Regulations governing the Payment of Separation Allowance in the Royal Canadian

Navy. Presented by Hon. Mr. Hazen. June II. 1917 Not printed.

43l>. Copy of extract from Order in Council No. PC. 1397. dated 21st May. 1917 : Rules and

Regulations to apply to persons who are employed in or who are In or In the vicinity

of any store. v/harC, etc., in or upon which any ammunition, etc., is handled. Pre-

sented by Hon. Mr. Hazen, June 14, 1917 Not printed.

14
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CONTENTS OF VOLUME 21—Continued.

43c. Copy of ESctract from Order in Council No. P.O. 15*6, dated 11th June, 1917: Regulations

instifuting the rank of Chief Skipper and Skipper in the Royal Canadian Navy. Pre-

sented by Hon. Mr. Hazen. June 20. 1317 Not printed.

43rf. Copy of Order in Council, PC. 69/1774, dated 2Sth June. 1917, containing Regulations

for the Payment of Specialist Allowance to R.N C V.R and RN.C.V.R Overseas

Division. Presented by Hon, Mr. Hazen. July 9. 1917 Not printed

43?. Copy Extract from Order in Council, P.C No 1783. dated 29th June, 1917:—Rules and

Regulation? governing the issue of Pay. Allowance? and Pensions. Department of the

Naval Service—Copy Extract from Order in Council, PC No. 1871. dated 6th July, 1917 ;

—Amendment to the Regulations for the pa>Tnent of Separation Allowance to the

dependents of those on Active Service under the Naval Service Department. Presented

by Sir James Lougheed. July 12. 1917 (Senate) Not printed.

43/. Extract from Order in Council. PC 1993 of the 17th July. 1917; Scale of Subsistence

Allowances to Officers and men of the Naval Service when travelling on duty.—And
also.—Extract from Order in Council, PC 1994 of the 17th July. 1917: Scale of

Allowances in lieu of lodging, provisions, fuel and light, for Officers and men of the

Naval Service. Presented by Hon. Mr. Hazen. August 6. 1917 Not printed.

433. Extract from Order in Council. PC 2105. dated 9th August. 1917: Amendments to regu-

lations for the issue of pay. allowances and pensions to officers, warrant officers and
men invalided, etc., from the Naval Service Presented by Hon. Mr Hazen, August

27. 1917 Not printed.

43't. Extract from Order in Coimcil ("Defence of Canada Order"), P.C. No. 2277, dated the

17th August. 1917:—Amendments resjiecting iNaval Service The Senate.. A'of printed.

43*. Extract from Order in Council, No PC 2433, dated Ist September, 1917:—Regulations
re Pay and Allowances to Officers and Men after discharge from the Canadian Naval
Service. The Senate., .r Not printed.

44. Correspondence relating to the withdrawal of the Ross Rifle from the Canadian Army
Corps Presented by Sir Robert Borden. January 22, 1917.

Printed for sessional papers only.

45. Report oj the War Purchasing Commission, covering period from its appointment on May
8. 1915. to December 31. 1916. Presented by Hon. Mr. Kemp. January 23, 1917.

Not printed.

46. Copies of Orders in Council respecting the establishment of a National Service Board of

Canada, and appointments thereto, under the provisions of the War Measures Act,

1914. Presented by Sir Robert Borden, January 23, 1917.
• Printed for sessional papers only.

47. Copy of Agreement between His Majesty the King and The Acadia Coal Company, Ltd.,

conceriiing the lease of the Vale Railway Presented by Hon. Mr. Cochrane, January
23.1917 Not printed.

48. Copy of Agreement between His Majesty the King and The Quebec and Saguenay Rail-

way Co., The Quebec Railway Light, and Power Co The LotbiniSre and Megantie
Railway Co., and The Quebec Railway Light Heat and Power Co., respecting the

acquisition by the (Government of the said railways Presented by Hon. Mr. Cochrane,

January 23. 1917 Xot printed.

48a. Return to an Order of the House, of the 23rd .\pril, 1917, for a copy of all proceedings
in the Exchequer Court of Canada, and judgment of Mr. Justice Cassels concerning the

reference of the Quebec and Saguenay Railway, the Quebec and Montmorency Railway
and the Lotbini^re and Megantie Railway. Presented June 21, 1917. Mr. Lemieux.

Not printed.
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CONTENTS OF VOLUME 21—Contitiued.

486. Return to an Order of the House, of the 14th May, 1917, for a copy of the juagment

delivered by Mr. Justice Cassels on the 24th day of January, 1917, in the matte-r of

fixing the price to be paid by the Government for the Quebec, Montmorency and
' Charlevoix Railway, the Quebec and Saguenay Railway, and the LotbiniJre and

Megantic Railway, under the statute of last session. Chapter 22, 6-7 George V. Pre-

sented June 27, 1917. Mr. Graham Not printed.

49. Statement of Governor General's Warrants issued since the last Session of Parliament

on account of 1916-17. Presented by Sir Thomas White, January 23, 1917.

Not printed.

49a. Statement of Governor General's Warrants Issued since the adjournment of Parliament

on February 7. 1917. Presented by Sir Thomas White, April 24, 1917..Wot Printed.

50. Copy of Amendments to the Radiotelegraph Regulations since the 1st August, 1914.

Presented by Hon. Mr. Hazen, January 25, 1917 Not printed.

50n. Copy of Amendment to subsection (d) of section 104 of the Radiotelegraph Regulations;

Operation of ship stations within a Canadian harbour. Presented by Hon. Mr. Hazen.

January 29, 1917 Xot printed.

506. Copy of Amendment to Radiotelegraph Regulations issued by the Minister of the Naval

Service, under Section 11, Chapter 43, of the Radiotelegraph Act, 3-4 George V. Pre-

sented by Hon. Mr. Hazen, April 19, 1917 Not printed.

51. Statement of Expenditure on account of "Miscellaneous Unforeseen Expenses," from the

IsJ April, 1916, to the ISth Januarj-, 1917, in accordance with the Appropriation Act of

1916. Presented by Sir Thomas White, January 25, 1917 Not printed.

52. Statement of Temporary Loans issued since April 1, 1916, to 18th January, 1917. Pre-

sented by Sir Thomas White, January 25, 1917 Not printed.

53. Report and Statement of Receipts and Expenditures of the Ottawa Improvement Com-

mission to March 31, 1916. Presented by Sir Thomas White, January 25, 1917.

Not printed.

54. Statement of the Receipts and Expenditures of the Royal Society of Canada, for the year

ended April 30, 1916. Presented by Sir Thomas White, January 25, 1917... A'of printrd.

55. Statement of Receipts and Expenditures of the National Battlefields Commission to 3l.et

March, 1916. ih'esented by Sir Thomas White, January 25, 1917.. ..Not printed.

56. Statement of Superannuation and Retiring Allowances in the Civil Service during the

year ending 31st December, 1916, showing name, rank, salary, servica allowance and

cause of retirement of eaoh person superannuated or retired, also whether vacancy

has been filled by promotion, or by appointment, and the salary of any new appointee.

Presented by Sir Thomas White, January 25, 1917 Not printfd.

57. Statement in pursuance of Section 17 of the Civil Service Insurance Act, for the year

ending March 31, 1916. Presented by Sir Thomas White, January 25, 1917.

• Not printed.

58. Regulations under "The Destructive Insect and Pest Act," pursuant to St-ction 9,

Chapter 31 of 9-10 Edward VII. Presented by Hon. Mr. Burrell, January 26, 1917.

Not printed.

59. Account of the average number of men employed on the Dominion Police Force duiiiig

each month of the year 1916, and of their pay and travelling expenses, pursuant to

Chapter 92, Section 6, Subsection 2, of the Revised Statutes of Canada. Presented by

Hon. Mr. Doherty, January 26, 1917 Not prinlid.

60. Copy of the evidence taken before the Hon. Sir Charles Davidson. Kt.. Commasaioner

appointed to inquire into tbe purchase by and on behalf of Die Government of the

Dominion of Canada, of ArnriB, Munitions, Implements, Materials, Horses, Supi)lles, and

other things for the purpose of the present war, and as to the expenditures and pay-

ments made or agreed to be made therefor; together with the Report of the said Com
missioner concerning the sale of Small Arms Ammunition ; purchase of Submtirines, and

Military Cloth (Auburn Woollen Mills Co.). Presented by Hon. Mr. Meiphcn. J^invi-

ary 30, 1917 ^'"' P'"'-'*''
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61. Report submitted by the officer in charge of the Canadian Records Office, London, Eng . to

The Right Honourable Sir Robert Borden, G.C.M.G., M.P., Prime Minister of Canada,

on the work of the Canadian War Records Office since the date of its foundation to

the llth January, 1617. Presented by Sir Robert Borden, January 31, It'lT.

Kot prinled.

62. Annual Return respecting Trade Unions under Chapter 125, R.S.C., 1906. Presented by

Hon. Mr. Patenaude, January 31, 1917 .\'o< printed.

63. A detailed statement of all bonds or securities registered in the Department of the

Secretary of State of Canada, since last return (22nd January, 1516) submitted to the

Parliament of Canada under Section 32 of Chapter 19, of the Revised Statutes of

Canada, 1906. Presented by Hon. Mr. Blondin, January 31, 1917 Not printed.

64. Return of Orders in Council which have been published in the Canada Gazette, between

the 1st January, 1916, and the 31st December, 1916, in accordance with the provisions

of Section 5 of " The Dominion Lands Survey Act," Chapter 21, 7-8 Edward VII. Pre-

sented by Hon. Mr. Roche, February 1, 1917 .Vo( printed.

65. Return of Orders in Council which have been published in the Canada Gazette, between
1st January, 1616, and the 31st December, 1916, in accordance with the provisions of

"The Forest Reserves and Parlt Act," Section 19, of Chapter 10, 1-2 George V. Pre-

sented by Hon. Mr. Roche, February 1, 1917 Not printed.

66. Return of Orders in Council which have been published in the Canada Gazette, between
the 1st January, 1916, and the 3lEt December, 1916, in accordance with the provisions

of Chapter 47, 2 George V, entitled "The Railway Belt Water Act." Presented by
Hon. Mr. Roche, February 1, 1917 Not printed-

67. Return of Orders in Council which have been published in the Canada Ga:ette and in the

British Columbia Gazette, between 1st January, 1916, and the 31st December, 1916,

in accordance with provisions of Subsection (d) of Section 3S of the regulations for

the survej-, administration, disposal and management of Dominion Lands within the

40-mile Railway Belt in the Province of British Columbia. Presented by Hon. Mr.
Roche, Februarj- 1, 1917 ; Not printed.

68. Return showing all lands sold by the Canadian Pacific Railway Company during the year,

from the 1st October, 1915, to 30th September, 1916, together with the names of the

purchasers, in accordance with the Statutes of Canada, 1SS6, Chapter 9, Section S.

Presented by Hon. Mr. Roche, February 1, 1917 Kot printed.

69. Return of Orders in Council which have been published in the Canada Gazette, bemeen
1st January, 1916, and the 31st December, 1916, in accordance with the provisions of

Section 77 of "The Dominion Lands Act," Chapter 20, 7-S Edward VII. Presented by
Hon. Mr. Roche, February 1, 1917 Not prinled.

70. Certified copies of Reports of the Committee of the Privy Council, approved by His
Excellency the Governor General on the 29th Xovember, 1916, giving authority for the
cancellation on and frona the 1st January, 1917. of the agreements between the Govern-
ment of Canada and the Governments of Manitoba. Saskatchewan and Alberta, resijec-

tively, respecting the services of the Royal North West Mounted Police in those
provinces. Presented by Sir Robert Borden, February 1, 1917.

Printed for sessional papers only

70a. Return to an Address to His Excellency the Governor General, of the 31st January. 1917,
for a copy of all documents, letters, messages, correspondence, etc., respecting the
termination of the agreements between the Government of Canada and the Govern-
ments of the Provinces of Saskatchewan and Alberta in reference to the Royal North
West Mounted Police. Presented June 1, 1917. Mr. McCraney Xot prinled.

71. Return to an Order of the House, of the 20th March. 1916, for a copy of all telegrams,
letters and correspondence concerning the appointment of Mr. Alfred Gravel. Harbour
Commissioner of Quebec, and concerning all other candidates for the position of
Commissioner on the Harbour Board of Quebec, to represent the South Shore. Pre-
sented February 2, 1917. Mr. Bourassa Not printed.
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72. Return to an Address to His Royal Highness the Governor General, of the 2nd February,

1914, for a copy of all Orders in Council, correspondence, petitions, telegrams and other

papers or documents bearing date between the years 1SS5 and 1914 In any way relating

to the prohibition of the export of Sockeye Salmon from the Province of British

Columbia. Presented February 2, 1917.

—

Mr. Sinclair Not printed.

73. Seventh Annual Report of the Commission of Conservation for the fiscal year ending

March 31, 1916. Presented by Hon. Mr. Hazen, February 5, 1917 Not printed.

74. Copy of correspondence between Sir Robert Borden and Sir Wilfrid Laurier respecting

proposals for the extension of the term of Parliament, November 3, 1915, to January

3, 1917. Presented by Sir Robert Borden, May 23, 1917.

Printed for sessional papers only.

75. Detailed Statement of Customs Duties and the Refund thereof, under Section 92, Consoli-

dated Revenue Act, for the year ended March 31, 1916. (Senate) Not printed.

7Sa. Detailed Statement of all Remissions and Refunds of the Tolls or duties for the fiscal year

ending March 31, 1916.—Also,—Supplementary statement of the Remissions and
Refunds of Tolls and Duties from the Department of Marine and Fisheries. Pre-

sented by Hon. Mr. Patenaude, April 19, 1917 Not printed.

76. Ordinances of the Yukon Territory, passed by the Yukon Council in 1916. (Senate).

Not printed.

76a, Return of Orders in Council passed under the provisions of Section IS, of Chapter 63,

Revised Statutes of Canada, " An Act to provide for the Government of the Yukon
Territory." Presented by Hon. Mr. Patenaude, April 19, 1917 Not printed.

766 Return of Orders in Council passed In the year 1917. under the provisions of Section

IS, of Chapter 63, Revised Statutes of Canada, "An Act to provide tor the Govern-

ment of the Yukon Territory." Presented by Hon. Mr. Sevigny, July 5, 1917.

Not printed-

77. Copy of extract from Order in Council No. P.G. 43/263, dated 27th January, 1917,

authorizing Regulations governing the payment of Allowance for the Accountant

Offlcers in the Royal Canadian Navy of Receiving Ships and Depot Ships, in accordance

with the provisions of Secton 47, Caiapter 43, 9-10 Edward VII. Presented by Hon.

Mr. Hazen, February 6, 1917 Not printed.

78. Return to an Order of the House of th« 31st January, 1917, for a copy of all corre-

spondence respecting the appointment of a Commission to investigate the financial and

economic condition of Canadian railways, showing the names of the Commissioners,

the rate of their remuneration, along with the names of the secretaries and engineers

appointed by them, or by the Commi.s«ion, and the rate of their remuneration. Pre-

sented February 6, 1917.

—

Sir Wilfrid Laurier Not printed.

79. Return to an Order of the House of the 31st January, 1917, for a copy of all paipers,

letters, telegrams and other documents relative to the removal of Mr. H. D. McKenzia

as mechanical foreman at Stellarton on the Canadian Government Railways, and the

appointment of his successor. Presented February 6, 1917.

—

Mr. Macdonald.

Not printed.

80. Return to an Order of the House of the 31st January, 1917, for a return showing- the

quantity of freight carried over the Grand Trunk Pacific Railway between Li^vis and

Moncton since that portion of said railway has been operated by the Canadian Govern-

ment Railways System. Presented February 6, 1917.

—

Mr. Copp Not printed.

81. Return to an Order of the House of the 12th April, 1916, for a Return showing:— 1. How
many clerks there are in the Interior Department who belong to and arc paid from the

outside service vote and who work In the inside service? i. The names of said clerks?

3. Salary paid to each? 4. How long each has been in the service of the Department?

5. If all or any of these clerks have passed any examination. If so, what ex imination

and on what date or dates? Presented February 6, 1917.

—

Mr. Turriff.. ..N<l printed-
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82. Return to an Order of the House of the 13th March, 1916, for a copy of aM correspondence
between the Government and the Provinces, regarding Increased co-operation In the

promotion of immig-ration and land settlement, commencing- with a letter of the

Minister of the Interior to the Provincial Prime Ministers, in November, 1911. Pre-

sented February 6, 1917.

—

Sir Wilfrid LauHer Not printed.

83. Return to an Order of the House of the 27th March, 1916, for a Return showing:—1. The
names and salaries of the persons employed in the Immigration Service in the City
of Montreal

;
their respective salaries when appointed and what they receive at the

present time? 2. Which of such employees are given travelling or other expenses, and
how much has been beeTi paid to each on that account since their respective appoint-
ments. Presented February 6, 1917.

—

Mr. Lachance Not printed.

84. Return to an Order of the House of the 31st January, 1917, for a return showing the

quantities of timber cut, and the sum paid therefor, to date, under the lease or sale
of timber made by the Indian Department to Mr. Arthur Webber from lands situated
near Ship Harbour Lake, Halifax County, together with the name or names of all

surveyors of the timber cut from the said Indian lands under the above-mentioned sale

or lease, and copies of all reports made in connection therewith by said surveyors.

Presented February 6, 1917.

—

ilr. McLean (Balifax) Not printed.

83. A copy of the Special Report made by the Royal Commission on Indian Affairs on the
Kitsilano Indian Reserve, together with the Order in Council passed on the 28th
March, 1916, and all other papers and correspondence relating to the Report. (Senate).

Not printed.

86. Return to an Address to His Excellency the Governor General, of the 31st January, 1917.
for a copy of all correspondence exchanged between the Dominion Government and
the Provincial Governments inviting them to a conference on the subject of making
provisions for returned soldiers, including a copy of the proceedings of the conference
which took place on the 10th of January at Ottawa on the same subject. Presented
February 7, 1917.

—

Sir MHlfrid Laurier Pj-inted for sessional papers only.

87. Return to an Order of the House, of the 31st January, 1917, for a copy of all correspon-
dence between any Member of the Government and Sir Thomas Tait referring to hia
appointment to, and resignation from, the National Service Board. Presented February
7, 1917.

—

Mr. Graham Printed for sessional papers only.

87a. Return to an Order of the House of the 31st January, 1917, for a copy of all corre-
spondence between Mr. Murray, Secretary of the Manufacturers' Association, and any
Member of the Government, or Sir Thomas Tait, as head of the National Service
Board, concerning his suggested appointmert as Secretary of the National Service
Board. Presented June 1, 1917.

—

Mr. Graha- Not printed.

88. Correspondence between the Prime Minister and the Leader of the Opposition concerning
the formation of a Parliamentary National Service Commission. Presented by Sir
Robert Borden. February 7, 1917 Printed for sessional papers only.

89. Return to an Order of the House, of the 3th Fe iruary, 1917, for a copy of all petitions.
letters, telegrams, reports and other documenis relative to the closing of the Canard
and SpUtlog Post Office and the opening of Loiselleville Post Office, in the County of
Essex, together with a copy of all petitions and documents relative to the establish-
ment of rural mail routes from the Loiselleville Post Office. Presented February 7,

1917.—Jl/r. Wilcox.-: Not printed.

90. Report on the Canadian Army Medical Service, by Colonel Herbert A. Bruce, Special
Inspector General, Medical Services, Canadian Expeditionary Force, dated at London.
England, 20th September, 1916. Presented by Sir Robert Borden, February 7, 1917.

Not printed.

90a. Report on the Canadian Army Medical Service, by a Board of Officers, presided over by
Surgeon-General Sir William Babtie, K.C.M.G., C.B.. V.C, dated at London, England
December 22, 1916. Presented by Sir Robert Borden, February 7, im..Not printed
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906. Copy of Interim Keport of the Surgeon-General G. C. Jcnes, Director Medical Services.

Canadians, in reply to the Report on the Canadian Army Medical Service by Colonel

Herbert A. Bruce, Special Inspector-General, Medical Services, Canadian Expedition-

ary Force, dated London, September 2S, 1916. Presented by Sir Bdiward Kemp, May 31,

1917 Not printed.

91. Return to an Order of the House, of the 7lh February, 1917. for a copy of all letters,

telegrams, papers and other documents rel.^tive to the closing of the Marine Agency at

Piotou last autumn, and as to the re-opening of said agency. Presented April 19, 1917.

—Ifr. Macdonald Not printed-

92. Return to an Order of the House of the 5th Februarj-, 1917, for a Return showing:—1. The

number of horses that have been, bought in Canada for war purposes in each of the

years 1914, 1915 and 1916, resepctively, (a) for the Canadian Army; (6) for Britain;

and (c) for France and our other Allies. 2. The amount paid for the horses in each

of the years for the different countries mentioned. Presented April 19, 1917.

—

Mr.

Edwards Not printed.

93. Return to an Order of the House of the 31st January, 1917, for a Return showing:—1. The

names, home addresses and former occupations of all censors, decoders or other

employees of the Government in the different cable stations in Nova Scotia during the

calendar year 1916. 2. The name of ihe person who recommended each of tlie said

censors, decoders or employees. 3. What salary was paid to each of said persons

for the calendar year 1916. Presented April 19, 1917.

—

Mr. Sinclair.. ..Not printed

94. Copies of General Orders promulgated to the Militia for the period between December

30, 1915, and February 8, 1917. Presented by Sir Edward Kemp, April 19, 1917.

Not printed.

95. Return to an Order of the House of the 11th March, 1915, for a copy of all charges,

correspondence, letters, telegrams and other documents relative to the dismissal of

Frank Dunlop, of Graves Point, at Sydney Mines, in the riding of North Cape Breton

and Victoria, N.S., and the expenses of such investigation in detail. Presented April

19, 1917.—afr. JfcBTfjijie ^^ot printed.

96. Return to an Order of the House of the 3rd April, 1916, for a Return showing:— 1. The

names of the staff in the office of the High Commissioner for Canada in London? 2.

Whether any of these officials are natives of Canada. If so which ones? 3. Whether

it is true, as alleged, that Canada is the only British Dominion which employs none of

its natives in its High Commissioner's Office. Presented April 19, 1917.—JIfr. Proiilx.

Not printed.

97. Return to an Address to His Royal Highness the Governor General, of the 22nd February,

1915. for a copy of all Orders in Council, memoranda, correspondence or other docu-

ments In the possession of the Government, or any Department thereof, relating to the

trade in dried fish and wines between Portugal and Canada. Presented April 19, 1917.

—

Mr. Sinclair ^<>* Printed.

98. Return to an Order of the House of the 31st January. 1917, for a tabulated statement

showing the number of divorces granted by the Parliament of Canada since 1867. Pre-

sented April 19, 1917.—J/r. Lcmicux.. .

.' Not prin'cd.

99. Return to an Order of the House of the 3ra February, 1916, for a copy of all letters,

telegrams and other documents, including tenders, relating to the mail contract from

Tatamagouche to New Annan and Tatajnagouche Mountain, in the County of Colchester.

Presented April 19, 1917.

—

Mr. Macdonald Not printed.

100. Copy of naw iRule in substitution of Rule 236 of the General Rules and Orders now in

force regulating the practice and proced'ure in the Exchequer Court of Canada, m.-ide

on tlie 16th day of February, 1917. Presented by Hon. Mr. Patenaudo, April 19, 1917.

Not printed.
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lOOo. Copy of Rule 20'0 of the General Rules and Orders now in force regulating the practice

and procedure in the Exchequer Court of Canada ; also, Copy of General Order

respecting fees and costs in the Exchequer Court in the exercise of its jurisdicton as a

Court of Admiralty. Presented by Hon. Mr. Patenaude, May 3, 1917 Not printed.

101. Return to an Order of the House of the 5th February, 1917, for a return showing a list

of all persons employed during the year 1916 in the round-house of the Canadian Gov-

ernment Railways at Pirate Harbour, N.S., as brakemen, telegraphers, cleaners and

labourers, showing the dates of their appointments and length of time employed respect-

ively, and also the monthly rate of wages paid to each of said employees. Presented

April 19, 1917.

—

Mr. Sinclair Not printed.

102. Return to an Order of the House of the 31st January, 1917, for a copy of all letters,

papers, telegrams and other documents relative to the application for, and the granting

of, a Conciliation Board to the employees of the Acadia Coal Company in the spring of

1916, the proceedings of said Board, and all other papers in relation to the same.

Presented April 19, 1917.

—

Mr. MacdonaU Not printed.

103. Return to an Order of the House of the Slst January, 191 T, for a copy of all correspon-

dence, telegrams and documents of all kinds exchanged between any person or persons

and the Department of Labour or any other Department of the Government relating to

the labour trouble at Thetford Mines, P.Q., and also copies of all correspondence

exchanged between the different Departments of the Government respecting the same
question. Presented A,pril 19, 1917.

—

Mr. Verville Not printed.

104. Return to an Order of the House of the 31st January, 1917, for a copy of all letters,

papers, telegrams and other documents relative to the application for, and the refusal

to grant a Conciliation Board as petitioned for under the Industrial Disputes Investiga-

tion Act by the employees of the Canadian Government Raiiway at Pictou, who were
members of the Longshoremen's Union at Pictou during the year 1916. Presented April

19,1917.

—

Mr. Macdonald Not printed.

105. Return to an Order of the House of the 7th February, 1917, for a copy of the contract

between the Government and the P. Lyall & Sons Construction Company for the recon-

struction of the Parliament Building. Presented April 20, 1917.

—

Mr. Murphy.

Printed for Sessional Papers only,

106. Copy of Order in Council P.C. 1062, dated 16th April, 1917, ordering that wheat, wheat
flour and semolina be transferred to the list of goods which may be imported into Can-
ada free of duty of customs. Presented by Sir Thomas White, April 20, 1917.

Printed for Sessional Papers only.

107. Return to an Order of the House of the 19th April, 1917, for a return showing:—1.

Whether the Government is aware as to^'hether there are cases in the Military Service

in which men after enlistment have been given leave on harvesting furlough, and during

such leave have been injured by accident, and who have in consequence of such accident

incurred hospital bills, and who having been treated in hospital have returned to military

duty and been discharged on account of injuries so received. 2. If so, whether claims

have been made for hospital care and treatment. 3. If such claims have been recognized

by the Government. 4. If not, wliy not. 5. If so, what action has been taken in con-

nection therewith. 6. Whether in such cases the enlisted person is not entitled to pay

up to time of discharge, and also the payment of his hospital account. Presented April

20,1917.—Mr. MacNutt Not printed.

108. Copy of a communication from the Deputy Minister of Miiitia and Defence, relative to the

total value of the Oliver equipment, so-called, supplied the Canadian soldiers who have

crossed to England since the commencement of the present war. Presented by Sir

Edward Kemp, April 20, 1917 Not printed.

109. Return to an Order of the House of the 19th April, 1917, for a return showing:—1. The
names of the Members of Parliament who now belong, or who did belong to the Overseas
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Forces or the Militia Forces of Canada since the present war was declared. 2. Whether
these Jlembers or any of them were, or are in receipt of pay from the Miiitia Depart-

ment and In receipt of their indemnity as Members at the same time. 3. Whether the

wives of these Members, or any of them were, or are in receipt of separation allowance.

Presented April 20, 1917.

—

Mr. Hughes (Kings, P.E.I.) Not printed.

109o- Supplementary return to an Order of the House of the 19th April, 1917, for a return show-

ing :— 1. The names of the Members of Parliament who now belong, or who did belong

to the Overseas Forces or the Militia Forces of Canada since the present war was
declared. 2. Whether these Members, or any of them were, or are in receipt of pay from
the Militia Department and in receipt of their indemnity as Members at the same time.

3. Whether the wives of these Members, or any of them were, or are in receipt of separa-

tion allowance. Presented April 24, 1917.

—

3Ir. Hughes (.Kings, P.E.I.} . . . .Not printed,

1096- Return to an Order of the House of the 23th April, 1917, for a return showing:— 1. How
many Members of the House of Commons are serving or have served in the Canadian
Army. 2. The names of each of said Members, the date of appointment, and rank. 3.

The names of those Members who have resigned or have withdrawn from military

service and the date of withdrawal or resignation. 4. How much has been paid to each
for military salary, expenses and separation allowance to wife or relatives, respectively.

Presented May 31, 1917.

—

Mr. Turriff Xot printed.

109C- Corrected copy of a return to an Order of the House of the 25th April, 1917, for a return

showing:—-1. How many Members of the House of Commons are serving or have served

in the Canadian Army. 2. The names of each of said Members, the date of appointment,

and rank. 3. The names of those Members who have resigned or have withdrawn from
military service and the date of withdrawal or resignation. 4. How much has been paid

to each for military service, expenses and separation allowance to wife or relatives,

respectively. Presented June 14, 1917.

—

i^Ir. Turriff Not printed.

110. Return to an Order of the House of the 19th .^pril, 1917, for a return showing:— 1. What
amounts have been given to the Canadian Patriotic Fund to December 31, 1916, and
what amounts have been promised for 1917, by the different counties, towns and cities

in each of the different provinces. 2. The names of the different counties, towns and
cities, and the respective amounts subscribed and promised by each. 3. What counties,

cities and towns in each province, if any, have not contributed any amount to the said

fund up to the present time. Presented April 24, 1917.

—

Mr. Edwm-ds. . ..Not printed.

IIO". Return to an Order of the House of the 19th April, 1917, for a return showing:— 1. How
much money has been subscribed and voted to the Canadian Patriotic Fund by each of

the different provinces to December 31, 1916. 2. How much money has been paid to the

Canadian Patriotic Fund by each of the different provinces during the same time. 3.

How much money has been promised by county^ township, city or other grants by each
province for the year 1917. 4. How many persons in each province have received assist-

ance from the Canadian Patriotic Fund to December 31, 1916. 5. The total amount so

expended in each province. Presented April 24. 1917.

—

Mr. Edwards.. ..Not printed.

Ill- Copy of Order In Council P.C. 802, dated 23rd March, 1917, In respect to taking over of the
Ross Rifle Factory by the Government of Canada. Presented by Sir Edward Kemp,
April 24, 1917 Xol printed.

112. Return to an Order of the House of the 31st January, 1917, for a copy of all docunients,
letters, telegrams and other correspondence in the Dep:irtment of the Interior, relating
to grazing leases numbers 2785, 2803, 2843, 3701, 3998, 4603, 5566. 6220 and 6221. Pre-
sented April 25, 1917.

—

Mr. Steele Not printed.

113. MemoianOum from the Superintendent of Immigration respecting the advertising by the
Canadian Government In United States newspapers for farm hands to work in Canada ;

together with a copy of the advertisements and Instructions concerning the same. Pre-
sented by Hon. Mr. Roche, April 25, 1917 Not printed.
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114. Copies of Orders in Council:

—

P.O. 341, dated the 7th day of February, 1D17, respecting the exportation of news-
print paper in sheets or rolls by license only under regulations by the Minister of

Customs.

P.C. 4-15, dated the 17th day of February, 1917, containing orders and regulations

respecting the price, sale, control, distribution, transport, etc., of newsprint paper in

sheets or rolls.

P.C. 1059, dated the 16th day of April, 1917, empowering the Minister of Customs
to fix the quantity and price of newspjint paper furnished or to be furnished to the pub-
lishers in Canada by the manufacturers ; and controlling the distribution and delivery

of the same.

P.C. 1060, dated the 16th day of April, appointing R. A. Pringle a commissioner
to conduct an inquiry into and concerning the manufacture, sale, price and supply of

newsprint paper within the Dominion of Canada. Presented by Sir Thomas White, April

26,1917 Not printed.

115. P.C. 3412, dated the 19th day of December, 1917, concerning the appointment of Mr. S. A.

Armstrong as Director of the Military Hospitals Commission. Presented by Sir Thomas
White, April 25, 1917 Not printed.

116. Return to an Order of the House of the 3rd February, 1917, for a return showing the

names and post oflice addresses of all purchasers of fish scrap from the reduction works
at Canso In 1916, .showing the price paid by each of said purchasers. Presented April

26,-1917.

—

Mr. Sinclair Not printed.

117. Return to an address to His Excellency the Governor General of the 23rd April, 1917, for

a copy of the Order in Council increasing the toll rates on Victoria bridge. Montreal, and
also a copy of all petitions, telegrams, letters and other documents referring to said

increase, Presented April 30, 1917.—.Vr. Lemieux Not printed.

118. Return to an Order of the House of the 23rd April, 1917, for a copy of all letters, tele-

grams, petitions and all other papers concerning the substitution of the name of Luce-
ville given to the Intercolonial Railway Station of Ste. Luce, County of Rimouski,
Quebec. Presented April 30, 1917.

—

Mr. Lemieux Not printed.

119. Return to an Order of the House of the 31st January, 1917, for a copy of all vouchers,

correspondence, etc., in connection with the repairs to Beaver Harbour Wharf, Halifax
County, within the last four years. Presented April 30, 1917.

—

Mr. McLean (Halifax).

Not printed.

120. Return to an Order of the House of the 31st January, 1917, for a copy of all correspon-

dence, vouchers, etc., in connection with the repairs to Harrigan Cove Wharf. Halifax
County, in 1914-15, under the foremanship of James McDonald. Presented April 30,

1917.

—

Mr. McLean (Halifax) Not printed.

121. Supplementary return to an Order of the House of the 16th February, 1916, for a return

showing:— 1. The amounts expended in Railway Subsidies in Canada during the years

1912, 1913, 1914 and 1915. 2. The amounts by provinces, and the names of the lines to

which granted. 3. Amounts expended on the construction of Government-owned rail-

ways in Canada during the above years. 4. The amount expended In each province, and
the name of the line of railway on which such expenditure was made. 5. Amounts ex-

pended on harbour and river improvements in Canada during the above years. 6. The
amounts by provinces and the particular places where expended. 7. Amounts expended
on the building of public wharves, public breakwaters, and public dredging in North
Cape Breton and Victoria during the years 1905 to I9U, inclusive. Including the expend-
iture on Government railways. 8. Amounts expended for like purposes in the said

county, during the years 1912, 1913, 1914 and 1915. Presented April 30, 1917.

—

.Mr.

McKenzie Not printed.

122. Return to an Order of the House of the 19tli April, 1916, for a copy of all letters, petitions.

correspondence and telegrams exchanged between the Government, Its district engineer.
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and all other persons, concerning either the construction or repairing or purchase ot the

wharves at the following places: He Perrot Sud, the Church in the Village of He Perrot,

the Village of Vaudreuil, Pointe Cavagnal. Hudson. Rigaud, Graham, Pointe Fortune,

and He Perrot Nord. Also, a copy of all specifications and reports already brought down

at my request in relation to the documents prior to and since 1904. and a statement of

the amounts that have been paid for such construction or repairs, and to whom they

were paid. Presented April 30, 1917.

—

Mr. Boyer Not primed.

122a Peturn to an Order of the House of the 16th February, 19K, for a copy of all letters,

petitions, correspondence, telegrams and reports, exchanged between the Government,

the engirfeers residing in the district, and all other persons, concerning the construction

and repairing done to the wharves mentioned below, since 1S04, and ot all data anil

reports already produced at my request and relating to documents prior to 1904 ; also

the amounts of money paid for such construction and repairing, and to whom paid :

—

The wharf at He Perrot North, South, and at the Church ; of the Village of Vaudreuil

;

of Pointe Cavagnal ; of Hudson ; of Graham ; of Rigaud, and of Pointe Fortune. Pre-

sented April 30, 1917.

—

Mr. Boycr Not priiilcil.

122*- Return to an Order of the House of the 30th April, 1917, for a copy of all letters, petition?,

correspondence, telegrams and reports exchanged between the Government, the resident

engineer and all other persons, concerning the construction and repairing done to the

wharves at He Perrot North, South and at the Church ; Village of Vaudreuil, Pointe

Cavagnal, Hudson, Graham, Rigaud and Point Fortune since 1904. Also, a copy of all

data and reports regarding above already produced at my request relating to documents

prior to 1904, showing the amounts ot money paid for such construction and repairing,

and to whom paid. And also, return to an Order of the House of the 30th April, 1917,

for a copy of all letters, petitions, correspondence and telegrams exchanged between the

Government, the district engineer, and any other persons concerning either the con-

struction, repairing or purchase of the wharves at He Perrot South, the Church in the

Village of He Perrot, Village of Vaudreuil, Pointe Cavagnal, Hudson, Rigaud, Graham,

Pointe Fortune and He Perrot North, since 1904. Also a copy of all specifications and

reports already brought down at my request in relation to above prior to, and since 1904,

giving a statement of the amounts that have been paid for such construction or repairs,

showing to whom they were paid. Presented August 13, 1917.

—

Mr. Boycr.

Not print f(}.

123. Return to an Order of the House of the 19th April, 1916, for a copy of all letters, petitions,

correspondence and telegrams exchanged between the Government, its resident engineer,

and all other prsons, concerning the dredging work done at the following places ;—Ste.

Anne de Bellevue, Pointe Fortune, Ottawa River Channel between He au Foin and He i\

Paquin, Graham channel, Rigaud channel, Hudson Heights channel, Hudson, Como,

Pointe Cavagnal, channel at Vaudreuil Village, Dorion Bay channel. He Perrot Church,

He Perrot Sud Wharf, and He Perrot Nord Wharf. Also, a statement ot the amounts

paid to different persons, companies, etc., for such work, the dates, etc., and a copy ot

the estimates already brought down at my request, the whole since 1904. Presented

April 30, 1917.

—

Mr. Boyer Not prinlrd.

123"- Return to an Order of the House ot the 16th February, 1916, for a copy of all letters,

petitions, correspondence, telegrams and reports exchanged between the Government, the

resident engineer of the district, and all other persons, conceining the dredging wirk

done at the places below named, and the amount of money paid to divers, persons com-

panies, etc., for such work, as well as the statements already presented at any request,

the whole since 1904 :—At the wharf of He Perrot, North, South and at the Church ; in

Dorion Bay channel ; at Vaudreuil Village channel ; at Pointe Cavagnal ; at Como ; at

Hudson ; at Hudson Heights channel ; at Graham channel ; in th<niigaud River chan-

nel ; In the Ottawa river ; He aux Poires channel ; at Pointe Fortune, and at Ste-Anne

de Bellevue channel. Presented April 30, 1917.

—

Mr. Boyer Not printed.

1U4. Return to an Order of the House of the 3rd May, 1916. for a copy of all letters, telegrams,

bills, vouchers and memoranda in connection with the repaiis to the wharf at Upper

Prisnect. Halifax County, N.S., in 191.'i. Presented April 30, 1917.

—

Mr. McLean
{liatifai) Not printed.
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125. Return to stn Order of the House of the 3ra May, 1916, for a copy of all letters, telegrams,

bills, vouchers and memoranda in connection with the repairs to the wharf at

Shad Bay, Halifax County, X.S., In 1915. Presented April 30. 1917.—Jlfr. afcl-con

(Halifax) Xot printed.

126. Return to an Order of the House of the 1st February, 1517, for a copy of all correspond-

ence in the possession of the Department of Public Works bearing date after September,

1911, relating to the e.xpenditure of money voted last ses-sion for harbour improvements

at Tracadie, in the County of Antigonish, including copies of all letters relating to the

same written by Mr. G. A. R. Rollings to the said Minister of Public Works or to any

other member of the Government. Presented April 30, 1917.

—

3Ir. Sinclair. .Not prinUil.

127. Return to an Order of the House of the 3rd February, 1917, for a copy of all letters,

telegrams, reports and other documents received by the Government during the years

1915 and 1916, relative to the repairs required on the breakwater at Souris, P.E.T.

Pi esented April 30, 1917.

—

Mr. Bughes (Kings, P.E.I.) Xot printed.

128. Return to an Order of the House of the 1st February, 1917, for a copy of all correspond-

ence in the possession of the Department of Public Works bearing date after September,

1911, relating to the extension of a breakwater at Breens Point, in the County of Anti-

gonish. Presented April 30, 1917.

—

Mr. Sinclair Sot printed.

129. Return to an Order of the House of the 31st January. 1917, for a copy of all corre-

spondence, vouchers, etc., in connection with the construction of the Mushaboom Har-
bour Wharf, Halifax County, in 1913. Presented April 30, 1917.

—

Mr. McLean
(Halifax') Kot printed.

130. Return to an Order of the House of the 31st January, 1917,- for a return showing all ex-.

penditures made since March 31, 1916, by the Public Works Department in the several

provinces of Canada, specifying the name of the work, the amount already spent thereon,

and the estimated total expenditure in each case. Presented April 30, 1917.

—

Mr.

McLean (Halifax) Xot printed.

131. Return to an Order of the House of the 31st January, 1917, for a copy of all correspond-

ence, vouchers, etc., in connection with the construction of the Port DutCerin West
Wharf, Halifax County, in 1913-14. Presented April 30, 1917. —Mr. McLean (Halifax).

Xot printed

132. Return to an Order of the House of the 31st January, 1917, for a copy of all corre-

spondence, vouchers, etc., in connection with the repairs to the Port Dufferin East

MTiarf, Halifax County, in 1915. Presented April 30, 1917.

—

Mr. McLean (Halifa:i).

Xot printed.

133. Return to an Order of the House of the 31st JanuaryJ917, for a copy of all correspond-

ence, vouchers, etc., in connection with the construction of a wharf at Ecum Secum West,

Halifax County. Presented April 30, 1917.— .1/'". McLean (Halifax) Xot printed.'

134. Return to an Order of the House of the 27th March, 1916, for a copy of all correspondence,

letters, telegrams, etc., in any way referring to the dredging at Margaree Harbour, In-

verness County, N.S., during 1913, 1914, 1915 and 1916. Presented April 30, 1917.

—

Mr.

Chisholm Xot primed.

135. Copy of Order in Council, PC. 1142, dated the 24th day of April, 1917, under the provi-

sions of the War Measures Act, 1914, containing regulations under which British ships

registered in Canada, or under construction for neutral owners, may until further order

be requisitioned by His Majesty for the carriage of foodstuffs, etc., or for any purpose
whatsoever; and cancelling Orders in Council, P.O. 2923, dated the 24th day of

November 1916, and P.C. 1915, dated the 31st day of March, 1917, in respect thereto.

Also certified copy of a report of the Committee of the Privy Council, approved by His
Excellency the Governor General on the 30th day of January, 1917, respecting the

exercise of the requisitioning power by His Majesty's ^jovemment in the case of Can-
adian vessels. Presented by Hon. Mr. Reid, April 30, 1917 Xot prinled.
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136. Return to an Order of the House of the 23rd April, 1917, for a return show-
ins:—1- The names, former post office addresses, occupations and salaries paid to the

censors and decoders in the employ of the Government at Hazel Hill and Canso during
the year 1916. 2. How much has been expended in connection with this service at Canso
and Hazel Hill since tlie first of August, 1914, up to the present date. 3. How much has
been expended in connection with the said service in embracing all the stations in the

province of Nova Scotia from August 1, 1914, up to the present date. Presented May 2,

1917.

—

Mr. Sinclair Not printed.

137. Return to an Order of the House of the 23rd April, 1917, for a copy of all contracts and
agreements between Sir Charles Ross, his successors or assigns, and His Majesty the

King, represented by the Minister of Militia and Defence, since and including the agree-

ment between them dated the 27th day of March, A.D., 1902. Presented May 2, 1917.

Mr. Northrup Printed for Sessional Papers only.

138. Return to an Order of the House of the 23rd April, 1917, for a return showing:— 1. How
many permanent civil servants or officials were in the employ of the Department of

Militia and Defence on the 10th day of October, 1911, and how many on the 31st of March,

1917. 2. How many temporary civil servants and employees of all kinds were in the

employ of the said Department on the 10th day of October, 1911, and how many on the

31st of March, 1917. 3. How many permanent civil servants or officials were appointed

by said Department since the 1st of August, 1914. 4. How many temporary civil servants

and employees were employed by said Department since August 1, 1914. 5. What was
the gross amount paid by said Department for salaries and expenses to both permanent

and temporary civil servants and employees for the fiscal year ending March 31, 1914.

6. What was the gross amount paid by said Department for salaries and expenses of all

permanent and temporary civil servants and employees for the fiscal year ending March
31, 1917. 7. How many civil servants were appointed by said Department since October

10, 1911, under the provisions of Section 21 of the Civil Service Act. Presented May
2, 1917.

—

Mr. Macdonald Not printed.

138«- F;eturn to an Order of the House of the 2nd May, 1917, for a return showing:— 1.

How many permanent civil servants or officials were in the employ of the Department

of Naval Affairs on the 10th day of October, 1911, and how many on the 31st of March,

1917. 2. How many temporary civil servants and employees of all kinds were in the

employ of the said Department on the 10th day of October, 1911, and how many on the

31st of March, 1917. 3. How many permanent civil servants or officials were appointed

by said Department since the 1st of August, 1914. 4. How many temporary civil servants

and employees were employed by said Department since August 1, 1914. 5. What was the

gross amount paid by said Department for salaries and expenses to both permanent and

temiwrary civil servants and employees for the fiscal year ending March 31, 1911. 6.

What was the gross amount paid b.v said Department for salaries and expenses of :ill

permanent and temporary civil servants and employees for the fiscal year ending March
31, 1917. 7. How many civil ser\ants were appointed by said Department since October

10, 1911, under the provisions of Section 21 of the Civil Service Act. Presented .May

16, 1917.

—

yir. Chisholm Not printed.

138b. Return to an Order of the House of the 2nd May, 1917, for a return showing:—1. How many
permanent civil servants or officials were in the employ of the Department of Marine

and Fisheries on the 10th day of October, 1911, and how many on the 31st day of March,

1917. 2. How many temporary civil servants and employees of all kinds were in the

employ of the said Department on the 10th day of October. 1911, and how many on the

31st of March, 1917. 3. How many permanent civil servants or officials were appointed

by said Department since the 1st of August, 1914. 4. How many temporary civil servants

.and employees were employed by said Department since August 1, 1914, 5. What was the

gros;5 amount paid by said Department for salaries and expenses to both permanent and

temporar)- civil servants and employees for the fiscal year ending M.aroh 31, 1911. 6.

What was the gross amount paid by said Department for salaries and expenses of all
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permanent and temporary civil servants and employees for the fiscal year ending March
31. 1917. 7. How many civil servants were appointed by said Department since October

10. 19H, under the provisions of Section 21 of the Civil Service Act. Presented May
31. 1917.

—

Mr. Sinclair Not~pri7ited.

13Sc. Return to an Order of the House of the 9th May. 1917, tor a return showing:—1. How
many permanent civil servants or ofTicials were in the employ of the Department of Ex-

ternal Affairs on the 10th day of October. 1911, and how many on the 31st of March,

1917. 2. How many temporarj- civil servants and employees of all kinds were in the

' employ of the said Department on the 18th day of October, 1911, and how many on the

31st of March, 1917. 3. How many permanent civil servants or officials were appointed

by said Department since the 1st of August. 1914. 4. How many temporar>' civil servants

and employees were employed by said Department since August 1, 1914, 5. What was the

gross amount paid by said Department for salaries and expenses to both permanent and
temporary civil servants and employees for the fiscal year ending March 31, 1911. 6.

What was the gross amount paid by said Department for salaries and expenses of all

permanent and temporary civil servants and employees for the fiscal year ending March
31, 1917. 7. How many civil servants were appointed by said Department since October

10, 1911, under the provisions of Section 21 of the Civil Service Act. Presented June
1,1917.

—

ZIr. Sinclair Not printed.

I38<I. Return to an Order of the House of the 9th May, 1917, for a return showing:—1. How
many permanent civil servants or officials were in the employ of the Dep.irtment

of Justice on the 10th day of October. 1911, and how many on the 31st of March,
1917. 2. How many temporary civil servants and employees of all kinds were in the

employ of the said Department on the 10th day of October, 1911, and how many on the

31st of March. 1917. 3. How many permanent civil servants or officials were appointed

by said Department since the 1st of August, 1914. 4. How many temporary civil servants
and employees were employed by said Department since August 1, 1914, 5. What was the

gross amount paid by said Department for salaries and expenses to both permanent and
temporary civil servants and employees for the fiscal year ending March 31, 1911. 6.

What was the gross amount paid by said Department for salaries and expenses of all

permanent and temporary civil servants and employees for the fiscal year ending March
31, 1917. 7. How many civil servants were appointed by said Department since October

10, 1911, under the provisions of Section 21 of the Civil Service Act. Presented June
21, 1917.

—

Mr. Siticlair Xot 2)rinted.

138e- Return to an Order of the House of the 14th May, 1917, for a return showing:—1. How
many permanent civil servants or officials were in the employ of the Department
of Finance on the 10th day of October, 1911, and how many on the 31st of March,
1917. 2. How many temporary civil servants and employees of all kinds were in the
employ of the said Department on the 10th day of October, 1911, and how many on the
31st of March, 1917. 3. How many permanent civil servants or officials were appointed
by said Department since the 1st of August, 1914. 4. How many temporary civil servants
and employees were employed by said Department since August 1, 1914, 5. WTiat was the

gross amount paid by said Department for salaries and expenses to both permanent and
temporary civil servants and employees for the fiscal year ending March 31, 1911. 6.

What was the gross amount paid by said Department for salaries and expenses of all

permanent and temporary civil servants and employees for the fiscal year ending March
31. 1917. 7. How many civil servants were appointed by said Department since October

10, 1911, under the provisions of Section 21 of the Civil Service Act. Presented June
29, 1912.

—

M. Maclean {Halifax) Not printed.

138/. Return to an Order of the House of the 2nd May 1917. for a return showing:—1. How
many permanent civil servants and officials were in the employ of the Department of

Indian Affairs on the 10th day of October, 1911, and how many on the 31st of March,
1917. 2. How many temporary civil servants and employees of all kinds were in the
employ of the said Department on the 10th day of October, 1911, and how many on the
Slat of March, 1917. 3. How many permanent civil servants or officials were appointed
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by said Department since Ist cf August, 1914. 4. How mar.y temporary civil servants
and employees were employed by said Department since Augtist 1, 1914, 5. What was the

gross amount paid by said Department for salaries and expenses to both permanent and
temporary civil servants and employees for the fiscal year ending March 31, 1914. 6.

What was the gross amount paid by said Department for salaries and expenses of all

permanent and temporary civil servants and employees for the fiscal year ending March
31, 1917. 7. How many civil servants were appointed by said Department since October

10, 1911, under the provisions of Section 21 of the Civil Service Act. Presented by Hon.
Mr. Roche, July 10, 1917.

—

Mr. Kyle Not printed.

138S- Return to an Order of the House of the 23rd April, 1917, for a return showing:—1.

How many permanent civil servants or officials were in the employ of the Department
of Agriculture on the 10th day of October, 1911, and how many on the 31st day of March,
1917. 2. How many temporary civil servants and employees of all kinds were in the

employ of the said Department on the 10th day of October, 1911, and how many on the

31st of March, 1S17. 3. How many permanent civil servants or officials were appointed
by said Department since the 1st of August, 1914. 4. How many temporary civil eer\'ants

and employees were employed bj' said Department since August 1, 1914, 5. What was the

gross amount paid by said Department for salaries and expenses to both permanent and
temporary civil servants and employees for the fiscal year ending March 31, 1914. 6.

What was the gross amount paid by said Department for salaries and expenses of all

permanent and temporary civil servants and employees for the fiscal year ending March
31, 1917. 7. How many civil servants were appointed by said Department since October

10, 1911, under the provisions of Section 21 of the Civil Service Act. Presented August
15, 1917.

—

Mr. Hughes (P.E.I.) Not printed.

138''< Return to an Order of the House of the 2nd May, 1917, for a return showing:— 1. How
many permanent civil servants or officials were In the employ of the Department of State

and Mines on the 10th day of October, 1911, and how many on the 31st of March,

1917. 2. How many temporary civil servants and employees of all kinds were in the

employ of the said Department on the lOlh day of October, 1911, and how many on the

31st of March, 1917. 3. How many permanent civil servants or officials were appointed

by said Department since the 1st of August, 1914. 4. How many temporary civil servants

and employees were employed by said Department since August 1, 1914, 6. What was the

gross amount paid by said Department for salaries and expenses to both permanent and
temporary civil servants and employees for the fiscal year ending March 31, 1911. 6.

What was the gross amount paid by said Department for salaries and expenses of all

permanent and temporary civil servants and employees for the fiscal year ending March
31, 1917. 7. How many civil servants were appointed by said Department since October

10, 1911, under the provisions of Section 21 of the Civil Service Act. Presented August

21, 1917.

—

Mr. McKenxie '. Not printed.

139. Return to an address to His Excellency the Governor General of the 23rd April, 1917,

for a copy of the Order in Council and all other papers in connection with the awarding

of the contract to J. C. Shields and others, or to the Inland Express Company for

carrying the mails from Ashcrott to Fort George, B.C. Presented May 2, 1917.

—

Mr.

Turriff A'of printed.

140. Return to an Address to His Excellency the Governor General of the 31st January, 1917.

for a copy of all correspondence exchanged with the Governement of the Province of

Manitoba concerning a statute passed by the Legislature of Manitoba at Its last session,

entitled. " An Act to amend the Jury Act " ; together with copies of all Orders in

Council respecting same. Presented May 3, 1917.—Sir Wilfrid Lauricr. . Sot printed

141. Return to an Order of the House of the Yth February, 1917, for a return showing:— 1.

The number of interned aliens, and nationality of each, employed on public works since

the 4th August, 1914. 2. The number employed in industrial work lr> the provinces ot

Canada, and the nationality of each, since the 1st of August, 1914. 3. The number so

employed at the present time. Presented May 3, 1917.

—

Mr. Kyte Not printed.
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142. Return to an Order of the House of the 2nd May, 1917, for a copy of the report of the

Royal Commission appointed by Order in Council, 20th September, 191G, to inquire Into

and report upon the conditions in regard to the delivery of cargoes of coal to coasting

vessels in the Maritime Provinces. Presented May 7, 1917.

—

Mr. Hughes (Kings,

P.E.I.) .A-of printed.

143. Return to an Order of the House of the 31st January, 1917, for a return showing:—1.

How many applicants for enlistment in the Canadian Overseas Forces have been
rejected on account of being physically unfit. 2. How many have been discharged after

enlistment for the same reason. Presented May 7, 1917.

—

Mr. Steele.. . .Xot printed.

143a. Return to an Order of the House of the 30th April, 1917, for a return showing:—1. How
many Americans have enrolled in Canadian Regiments since the commencement of the

war. 2. How many natives of the British Isles are so enrolled in Canada since the 1st

of August, 1914. Presented July 31. 1917.

—

Mr. Boxday Not printed.

143!> Return to an Order of the House of the 31st January, 1917, for a return showing:—1.

How many men have enlisted in Canada for overseas service. 2. How many of these

have been subsequently discharged as unfit. 3. How many of these were discharged in

Canada, and how many overseas. Presented May 7, 1917.

—

Mr. Graham. .Xot printed.

143e. Return to an Order of the House of the 14th May, 1917, for a return showing:—1.

Whether the Minister of Militia or any of the authorities of the Militia Department has
official statistics as to the recruiting of soldiers in Canada for overseas service. 2. If

so, what the correct figures are of enlistments in the different overseas regiments raised

since August, 1914, to date (a) Canadian spealiing the French language; (b)Canadians
- speaking the English language and born in Canada; (c) British subjects by birth born

outside of Canada; (d) British subjects by naturalization; (c) British subjects by
birth born outside of Canada; (d) British subjects by naturalization; (e) French Can-
adian soldiers in regiments commanded by officers speaking the English language raised

in the province of Quebec; and (/) French Canadian soldiers in battalions raised in the

other provinces of Canada. Presented June 14, 1917.

—

Mr. Lanctot Xot printed.

143d. Copy of Census Statistics showing Summary of Strength of all Units of the Canadian

Expeditionary Forces in England, period 14th May, 1917, together with statement show-

ing number of Canadian troops in France, England, in the Near East, St. Lucia and in

Canada, June, 1917. Presented by Sir Edward Kemp, June 15, 1917.. ..Xot printed:.

144. P.C. 2314, dated 7th October, 1916, appointing a Special Seed Commissioner and three

assistants, with authority to purchase seed wheat to fill requisitions for seed from

municipal governing bodies in districts that have suffered crop failure due to the pre-

valence of rust and frost. Also, P.C. 3073. dated 14th December, 1916. authorizing the

Special Seed Commission to purchase seed oats and seed barley to fill requisitions for

seed from municipal governing bodies and farmers' organizations in districts where

there is no supply. Presented by Hon. Mr. Burrell, May S, 1917 Xot printed.

145. Return to an Order of the House of the 1st February, 1917. for a copy of all communica-

tions, reports and documents concerning the alleged treatment of Thos. Kelly, a pri-

soner in the Stony Mountain Penitentiary. Presented May 9. 1917.

—

Mr. Buchanan.
Xot printed.

146. Copy of Order in Council. P.C. 1183, dated 28th April, 1917. authorizing the granting, at

the request of His Majesty's Government In England, of a further 300 miles of rails for

use in France in connection with the war. Presented by Hon. Mr. Meighen. May 10.

1917 Not printed.

146°' Return to an Order of the House of the 13th June. 1917, for a return showing:— 1. Be-

tween what points on the Canadian Northern Railway Line west of Edmonton the rails

are to be taJcen up to be placed on the Grand Trunin Pacific Line. 2. Between what

points on the Grand Trunk Pacific Line west of Edmonton the rails of the Grand Trunk

are to be replaced by rails of the Canadian Northern Railway. Presented June 14,

1917.

—

Mr. Oliver .• Not printed.
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Ii6b- Tabulated statement showing list of points on the Eastern Division of the. National

Transcontinental Railway from which rails were lifted for shipment overseas to France,

mileage lifted at each point and replaced with rails from Intercolonial Railway (to-

gether with a map accompanying same). Presented by Hon. Mr. Cochrane, June 21,

jg^Y Not printed.

147. Return called for by Section SS, of Chapter 62, Revised Statutes of Canada, requiring

that the Minister of the Interior shall lay before Parliament, each year, a return of

liquor brought from any place out of Canada into the Territories by special permission

in writing of the Commissioner of the Northwest Territories, for the year ending 3l3t

December, 1916. Presented by Hon. Mr. Roche, May 11, 1917 Not printed.

148. Return to an Address to His Excellency the Governor General of the 30th April, 191",

for a copy of the application for Arbitration Boards majde to the Labour Department

by the Provincial Worliman's Association or its officers and the United Mines Workmen
of Nova Scotia or its officers. Also a copy of all letters, copies of letters and other

documents relating to this matter, along with all letters, papers, other documents and

Orders in Council relative to the appointment of a Commission to investigiate labour

and other conditions in the County of Cape Breton. Presentepd May 11, 1917.

—

Mr.

Kyte NM printed.

149. Return to an Order of the House of the 2nd May, 1917, tor a copy of all letters, copies

of letters, telegrams, reports and all other documents relative to the purchase of the

two vessels, A. J. McKee and T. J. Drumnionds, by the Railway Department under the

Order in Council dated April 17, 1917. Presented May 14, 1917.

—

Mr. Macdonald.

Not liriiitcd.

150. Return to an Order of the House of the 31st January, 1917, for a copy of all correspond-

ence, 'telegrams, memoranda, etc., by and with the Department of Railways in con-

nection with the naming of stations on the Halifax and Eastern Railway. Presented

May 14, 1917.

—

Mr. Maclean (Halifax) Not printed.

151. Return to an Order of the House of the 23rd April, 1917, for a copy of all statements,

reports, evidence, letters and other papers and documents in the possession of the

Department of Railways and Canals relating to a claim for a horse belonging to one
Dan McFarlane, injured at Brinley Brook, N.S., by the Canadian Govermnent Railway.

Presented May 15, 1917.

—

Mr. Sinclair Not printed.

152. Return to an Order of the House of the 2.")th April, 1917, for a copy of all documents,

papers, correspondence and reports concerning the suspension of Polydore Lebel,

engineer on the Intercolonial Railway at RIviSre du Loup, as a result of a wreck in the

year 1916. Presented May 15, 1917.

—

Mr. Lapointe (Kamouraska) Not printed.

153. Return to an Order of the House, of the 31st January, 1917, (or a copy of all letters,

telegrams and other documents relative to the removal of Mr. Spenny as Trackmaster on
the Short Line, so-called, of the Canadian Government Railway, and to the appoint-

ment of Henry Gray as his successor. Presented May 15, 1917.

—

Mr. Macdonald.

Not printed.

154. Return to an Address to His Royal Highness the Governor General, of the 7th February.

1916, for a copy of all papers in connection with the appointment of Lfon Roy as Inter-

preter in the Department of the Interior; and also a copy of the Order In Council,

documents and correspondence relating to his dismissal. Presented May 16, 1917.

—

Sir Wilfrid Laurier Not printed.

155. Return to an Order of the House, of the 30th April, 1917, for a copy of all letters, papers,

telegrams and other documents relative to the establishment of the Canadian Govern-

ment Railway Employees Magazine, showing the circulation thereof, the cost of pro-

duction, receipts, and the persons employed in connection therewith, giving a state-

ment of the amount received by said persons from the Railway in any capacity. Pre-

sented May 21, 1917.

—

Mr. Macdonald Not printed.
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156. Return to an Order of the House, of the 22nd March, 1916, for a Return showing:— 1.

The number of cond'uctors, brakemen, drivers and firemen, respectively, who were on

duty on the Canadian Government Railways between Moncton and Campbellton during

the month of February, 1916. 2. The number of hours each of the above mentioned

trainmen and enginemen were on duty each trip between said points during said month
of February, 1916. Presented May 21, 1917.

—

Mr. Copp Not printed.

157. Report of Exchequer Court proceedings under Section 49A of the Indian Aot, in respect

to the removal of the Indians from Sydney Reseri'e, Nova Scotia. Presented by Hon.
Mr. Roche, May 22, 1917 Not printed.

158. Report of the work of the Military Hospitals Commission from its inccpiion to the

present date. Presented by Sir Robert Borden, May 23, 191T .Vet printed.

159. Copy of corre.9pondence between Members of the Government and th« Canadian Manu-
facturers Association respecting the purchase of supplies for the Canadian EJxpedi-

tionary Forces in England and at the Front. Presented by Sir Robert Borden, May
23,1917 tfot printed).

160. Return to an Order of the House, of the Hth Hay, 1917, for u copy of the correspondence

between the Prime Minister and the ex-Minister of Militia and Defence, which led to

the latter's resignation or dismissal from the Governiment. Presenited by Sir Robert

Borden, May 23, 1917.

—

Mr. Hughes (King's, P.E.I.) Not printed.

161. Return to an humble Address of the Senate to His Excellency the Governor General,

dated the 26th day of January, 1917, for a statement slKrwing the dote and object of

all commissions instituted by the Government of the day, since its accession to power
in 1911, up to the present date; the number of days during which each of these

commissions sat, giving the names of the individuals who formed part of such com-
missions, and what was the cost of each to the country. (Senate.) Not printed.

161a. Part Return to an humble Address of the Senate, dated the 7th day of February, 1917,

to His E}xoelIency the Governor General, for:—A statement showing the date, the

object and the personnel of all commissions instituted by the late Government from
its accession to power in 1896, up to the accession to power of the present Government
in 1911, the number of days during which each of these commissions set, and what

waa the cost of eaoh to the country. (Senate.) Not printed.

162. Order in Council P.C. 1433. dated 24th May, 1917, containing regulations concerning the

departure out of Canada of male persons who are liable to or capable of national

service of a military or other character. Presented by Hon. Mr. Roche, May 29, 1917.

Not printed.

163. Return to an Address to His Excellency the Governor General, of the 23rd May, 1917. for

a copy of the Order in Council, if any, providing that preference in appointments to the

Civil Service should be given to returned soldiers. Presented May 29, 1917.

—

Mr.

Boulay Not printed.

164. Return to an Order of the House, of the .3rd February, 1917, for a copy of all reports

findings, evidence, memoranda, etc., in connection with the inquiry Into the damages
sustained by H.M.C.S. Grilse en route from Halifax to Bermuda. Presented May 3fl,

1917.

—

Mr. Maclean (Halifax.) ,. ..Not printed.

165. Return to an Order of the House, of the 14th May, 1917, for a copy of all tetters, peti-

tions, correspondence, telegrams and reports in any way referring to the dismissal

or retirement of D. McDermid, Superintendent of Fish Hatchery at 33ast Margaree,

and the appointment of his successor. Presented May 30, 1917.

—

Mr. Chisholm.

Not printed.

166. Return to an Order of the House, of the 25th April, 1917, for a copy of all letters, tele-

grams, reports and other papers and documents relative to the application of Willis

Keizer of Hall's Harbour, King's County, N.S., for a license to operate a fishing weir

al Square Cove, King's County, N.S. Presented May 30, 1917.

—

Mr. Maclean (Halifax )

Not printed.
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167. Return to an Address to His Excellency the Governor General, ot the 23rd April, IflT,

for a copy of all correspomlence, memoranda. Orders in Council, etc., in reference to

the dismissal of Moses H. Nickerson. as Inspector of Life-saving Stations in Nova

Scotia Presented May 30. 1917.

—

Mr. MocJean (Halifax) Not printed.

168. Copies of Pension Regulations with amendments and as amended to February 2f. 19; 7,

with copies of Orders in Council relating thereto. Presented by Sir Thomas White,

May 30, 1917 Printed for sessional papers only.

168a, Copy of Order in Council, P.C. 277, dated 30th Janiiary. 1917. regtirding pensions of

officers or their dependants in respect of the exchange of officers between the Govern-

ment of Canada and the Imperial Government. Presented by Sir Edward Kemp.

August 20, 1917 -^"t'' printed.

169. Return to an Order of the House, ot the 14th May, 1917, for a copy of all letters, corres-

pondence, petitions, telegrams and reports between the Minister of Marine and

Fisheries and any person or persons in any way referring to the removal of the salmon

nets on that portion of the coast of Inverness extending east and west from the mouth

of the MarKa.ree River. Presented May 31, 1917.—ilfr. Chisholm Not printed.

170. Return to an Order of the House, of the 2nd May, 1917, for a copy of the report of the

Commission appointed to investigate the condition of the Military Hospital at Halfax,

with a copy of the evidence taken by said Commission at Halifax and all other docu-

ments in the possession of the Department of Militia and Defence in connection with

such investigation. Presented May 31, 1917.

—

ifr. Sinclair Xot printed.

171. Return to an Order of 'the Hovise, of the 7th May, 1917, for a return showing the

amount paid or spent by the Department of Militia in advertising for recruits in

Canada, showing the persons, firms and corporations to whom the payments were made,

up to April 1, 1917. Presented May 31, 1917.

—

Mr. Macdonald Not printed.

172. Finding of the Court of Inquiry appointed by the Adjutant-General by Orders dated

the 1st May, 1917, for the purpose of collecting and recording evidence in connection

with the allegations contained in several newspapers that Troop Trains had been

stoned passing through RiviSre-du-LiOup, Quebec, and other places, and for the purpose

of collecting and recording any other evidence which, in the opinion of the Members

of the Court, in any way relates to or has a bearing on this matter. Presented by Sir

Edward Kemp, May 31, 1917 Not printed.

173. Finding of the Court of Inquiry appointed by the Adjustant-General by Orders dated

the 1st May, 1917, for the purpose of collecting and recording evidence in connection

with the allegations contained in several newspapers accusing the citizens of Quebec

of maltreating or allowing to be maltreated, soldiers returning from the War and

passing through or sojourning in Quebec, and for the purpose of collecting and recording

any other evidence which, in the opinion of the Members of tlie Court, in any way

relates to or has a bearing on the nratter. Presented by Sir Edward Kemp, May 31.

1917 Not printed.

174. Return to an Order of the House, of the 7th May, 1917, for a copy of all accounts,

letters, claims, correspondence and other documents relating to the following amounts

mentioned In the Report of the Auditor General 191C, Vol. 11, page L,— 11 :—Mr.

Justice L. P. Pellelier. travelling expenses, $S77 ; Mr. Justice I. N. Belleau, travelling

expenses, $1,984.44; Mr. Jtistice T. H. Chauvin, travelling expenses, Jl,421.25 : Mr.

Justice B. LeTellier, travelling expenses. ?1, 923.80. Presented May 31, 1917.

—

Mr.

Lanetot Not printed.

175. Return to an Order of the House, of the 30th May, 1917, for a Return showing:— 1. The

number of persons appointed to permanent position on the Canadian Government Rail-

ways from January 1, 1916. to March 31, 1917, who were not previously employed on

the said Railways. 2. Their najncs, salaries and the positions to which they were

appointed. Presented May 31, 1917.

—

Mr. Copp Not printed.
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176. Kfcturn to an Order of the House, of the 12th Februarj-, 1915, for a Ketum showing how
many persons of German nationality are employed in the several Departments of the

Federal Government, in what capacity and the salaries received respectively. Pre-

sented Jun-e 1, 1917.

—

Mr. Delislc Not printed. •

177. Return to an Order of the House, of the 1st Maj-, 1916, for a copy of all correspondence

and papers relating to the change in the location of the post office at Roseberg, Alberta.

Presented June 1, 1917.

—

Mr. Buchanan Not printed.

178. Return to an Order of the House, of the Sth May, 1916, for a copy of all correspondence,

letters and telegrams relating to the dismissal of Augustin D. Lauteigne as Postmaster

of Island River, Gloucester County, N.B. Presented June 1, 1917.

—

Mr. Turgeon.

Not printed.

179. Return to an Order of the House, of the 31st January, 1917, for a copy of all letters

and telegrams in the Post Office Department in reference to the removal of Pearson's

Post Office, Township of Casey, in the Constituency of Xipissing, from wbere it was
located to its present location. Presented June 1, 1917.

—

Mr. Turriff.. ..Not printed.

180. Return to an Order of the House, of the 5th February, 1917, for a copy of all letters,

reports, papers and other documents relative to the dismissal of John R. Mcintosh as

Postmaster of Cummings Mountain, Pictou County, and the appointment of James

Cummings as his successor. Presented June 1, 1917.

—

Mr. Macdonald. . . .Not printed.

181. Return to an Order of the House, of the 2nd May, 1917, for a Return showing:—The

gross amount p%id by the Government since October, 1911, to H. P. Duchemin, of

Sydney, N.B., for services and disbursements under the Public Inquiries Act. or other-

wise. Presented June 1, 1917.

—

Mr. Sinclair Not printed.

182. Return to an Order of the House, of the 3rd February, 1917, for a copy of all corres-

pondence, letters, telegi-ams and other documents concerning the cancelling by the

Post Office Department of the rural mail contract granted to Hyppolite Lambert of St.

Antoine, in the County of LotbiniSre, Que. Presented June 1, 1917.

—

Mr. Fortier.

Not printed.

183. Reports, pursuant to a Resolution of the House adopted on the ISth May, 1916, based

on a recommendation of the Joint Committee of both Houses on Printing of Parliament,

requesting information from the several Departments of Government with the view to

effecting all possible economy in the matter of public printing and the distribution of

public documents, and the extent, if any, to which such recommendations have been

carried into effect. Presented by Hon. Mr. Patenaude, June 1, 1917.. ..Not printed.

184. Return to an Order of the House, of 21st May, 1917, for a copy of all correspondence,

reports and recommendations, if any, from the Grain Commission to the Department of

Trade and Commerce or any other Department of the Government at Ottawa, follow-

ing a meeting of the Grain Commission«rs held in Lethbridge this year. Presented June

1, 1917.

—

Mr. Buchanan Not printed.

185. Order in Council passed in conformity with provisions of 4-5 George V., Chapter 20. S-15

(C. N. Railway.)

—

(The Senate) Not printed.

186. Return to an Order of the House, of the 3rd February, 1917, for a return shoT^'ing the

quantity and value of exports in following commodities for the first nine months of

present fiscal year:—Horses; brass and manufacturers of same; wheat, breadstuffs;

oats and grain other than wheat ; automobiles, bicycles, motorcycles and parts of same,

including engines and tires; railway cars and parts; chemicals; copper and manufac-

tures of same; cotton manufactures; explosives; iron and steel and manufactures of

same; firearms and munitions; leather and manufactures of same; meat and dairy

products; alcohol; vegetables, dried and canned; lead; wearing apparel of all liinds;

zinc and manufactures of same; paper and manufactures of same. Presented June 4,

1917.— ilfr. Maclean (Ilalifax) Printed lor sessional papers only.
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187. Return to an Order of the House, of the 30th April, 1917, for a copy of all documents.

correspondence, letters, tele^ams. memoranda and reports exchanged between the Ser-

geant-at-Arms of the House of Commons and the Honourable Albert S^vigTiy : the

Sergeant-at-Arms and the Justice Department, and between the Department of Justice

and the Honourable Albert S^vigny, concerning certain effects, furniiture and orna-

ments connected with the Speaker's Apartments. Also, copy of all accounts, receipts,

bills of lading and transportation accounts concerning the said effects, furniture and

ornaments. Presented June 5. 1917.

—

Mr. Lanctot J^ot printed.

188. Copy of Order in Council P.C. 1457. dated the 29th May, 1917. respecting pay to mem-
bers of the Civil Service who Join the Military forces of Canada either by voluntary

enlistment or otherwise from and after the date hereof. Presented by Sir Thomas
White, June 6, 1917 Not printed.

189. Copy of General Reports of W. F. O'Connor. K.C.. Acting Commissioner re Cost of Living.

concerning the production, cost, selling prices, and distribution sj-stem of refined sugar.

Presented by Hon. Mr. Crothers, June 6, 1917

Printed for distribution and sessional papers.

190. Copy of Reports of W. F. 0''Connor, on the subject of the Anthracite Coal business in

Canada. Presented by Hon. Mr. Crothers, June G, 1917.

Printed for distribution and sessional papers.

191. Return to an humble Address of the Senate to His Excellency the Governor General,

dated the 22nd of May last, showing a copy of:—All correspondence exchanged between

the Government or its Ministers, the Minister of Militia, the Militia Council, Major-

General F. L. Dessard, C.B., Inspector-General, or any other person, and Lieutenant-

Colonel Armand Lavergne. O.C, the &lst Regiment or any other person, on the subject

of the territorial defence of the Province of Quebec, as well as copy of all Orders in

Council or documents relating to this subject.— (Senate) Not printed.

192. Copy of Order in Council, P.C. 1579, dated 8th June, 1917, appointing a Fuel Controller

for Canada. Presented by Sir George Foster, May 12, 1917.

Printed for sessional papers only.

192a. Copy of Order in Council, P.C. 1460, dated 16th June, 1917, re the appointment of

an Omcer to be known aa Food Controller for Canada, and specifying his powers and

duties. Presented by Sir Robert Borden. June 19. 1917.

Printed for sessional papers only.

193. Copy of Order in Council, P.C. 1604, dated 11th June, re the establishment of "The
Board of Grain Supervisors of Canada." And also. Copy of Order In Council, P.C.

1605, dated 11th June, 1917, appointing certain persons as members of "The Board of

Grain Supervisors of Canada." Presented by Sir George Foster, May 12, 1917.

Printed for sessional papers only.

194. Copies of Census Statistics of male population of Canada, Census of 1911, between the

ages of 20 and 45, both years inclusive, according to conjugal condition and nativity.

Presented by Sir EMward Kemp, June 13, 1917.

Printed for sessional papers only.

195. Copies of The King's Regulations and Orders for the Army, 1912, re-prlntcd with

amendments published in Army Orders up to 1st August, 1914. Presented by Sir

Edward Kemp, June 13, 1917 Not printed.

196. Copies of Manual of Military Law, War Offlce, 1914. Presented Sir Edward Kemp.
June 13. 1917 Not printed.

197. Copy of Order in Council. P.C. »87, dated 10th April. 1917. as amended by Order in

Council No. 1451, dated 25th May, 1917; Regulations, being as Consolidation of and
ad<litions to various Orders In Council made In consequence of the War, the whole to

be known as the "Defence of Canada Order, 1917." Presented iby Hon. Mr. Hazen,

June 13, 1917 Not printed.
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198. Return to an Order of the House, of the llth May, 1917, for a copy of all lertters.

petitions, correspondence, telegrams and reports in any way referring to dismissal,

retirement or resignation of John McDonald, as Janitor of public building at Tn^ver-

ness, and the appointment of liis successor. Presented June 15, 1917.

—

Mr. Chisholm.

Not printed.

199. Return to an Order of the House, of the 14th May, 1917, for a copy of all letters,

petitions, correspondence, telegrams and reports received by the Government since

September, 1911, to the present day, in any way referring to the extension and
repairs to McKay's Point Wharf, Inverness County. Presented June 15, 1917.— JIfr.

Chisholm Not printed.

200. Return to an Order of the House, of the 7th May, 1917, for a copy of the replies

which the Government or the Department of Public Works sent to the Resident

Engineer or other parties in answer to letters, telegrams, or reports in connection with
the breakwater at Souris, P.E.I., during the j'ears 1915 and 1916. Presented June
15, 1917.

—

Mr. Hughes (King's, P.E.I.) Not printed.

201. Return to an Order of the House, of the 23rd May, 1917, for a copy of all corres-

pondence, telegrams, recommendations and other communications relating to the

dismissal of Hector Urquhart, as lineman on the Dominion Government telegraph line

between Grand River and Enon, Cape Breton County, Nova Scotia, and relating to

the appointment of Dan. A. McLennan to said position. Presented June 15, 1917.

—

Mr. Kyte Not printed.

202. Return to an Order of the House, of the 14th May, 1917, for a copy of all letters,

petitions, correspondence, telegrams and reports received by the Government since

September, 1911, to the present day, in any way referring to the extension and
repairs to Craignish Wharf. Presented June 15, 1917.

—

Mr. Chisholm. .Not printed.

203. Return to an Order of the House, of the 3rd May, 1917, for a Return showing:— 1. The
amount which has been paid for stenographic reporting for the different Commissions
or inquiries which have been held by the Government since November, 1911, to the

present time. 2. The names of the persons to whom these amounts have been paid

for stenography and the respective amounts paid to each of them. Presented June
15, 1917.

—

Mr. VerviUe Not printed.

203a. Return to an Order of the House, of the 3rd May, 1917, for a Return showing:— 1. The
amount which has been paid for stenographic reporting for the different Commissions
or inquiries which have been held by the Government since November, 1911, to the

present time. 2. The names of the persons to whom these amounts have been paid

for stenography and the respective amounts paid to each of them. Presented June
28, 1917.

—

Mr. Verville Not printed.

204. Return to an Address to His Excellency the Governor General, of the 9th May, 1917,

for a copy of all papers, petitions, telegrams and all other documents sent to the
Government urging upon them the necessity of abolishing the wet canteen system
in the camps overseas. Presented June 15, 1917.

—

Mr. Lemieux Not printed.

205. Copies of all correspondence, memoranda or other documents received by or sent by
the Right Honourable the Prime Minister and the Honourable the Minister of Trade
and Commerce, concerning a project to advertise Canadian products by the organiza-
tion of an exhibition train of sample goods in France. (Senate) Not printed.

205a. Supplementary Return to an Order of the Senate, dated the 7th June last, for a
Return showing:—Copies of all correspondence, memoranda or other documemts
received by or sent by the Right Honourable the Prime Minister and the Honourable
the Minister of Trade and Commerce, concerning a project to advertise Canadian
products by the organization of an exhibition train of sample goods in France.
The Senate Uot printed.
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206. Letter of the Honourable E. U Patenaude, MP., to the Right Honourable the Prime

Minister, resigning his position ae Secretarj- of State for Canada, and the letter of

the Prime Minister in acknowledgment thereof. Presented by Sir Robert Borden,

June 18, 1917 Not printed.

207. Return to an Order of the House, of the 3rd May, 1917, for a Return showing:—1. How
much merchandise has been exported from Canada into Foreign Countries since the

first of August, 1914, to the present time? 2. How much of theso goods have gone

through the Port of Hamburg? 3. What countries have imported this merchandise

from Canada, and the respective amounts for each of theim? Presented Juiie IS,

1917.

—

Mr. VerviUe Not printed.

208. Return to an Order of the House, of the 3rd February-. 1916, for a return showing the

itemized disbursements of Ward Fisher, Inspector of Fisheries for Western Nova
Scotia, lor the year 1912, amounting to $388.40', and the year 1913, amounting to

$1,0'09.84. Presented June IS. 1917.

—

Mr. Laiv Not printed.

209. Return to an Order of the House, of the 23rd April, 1917, for a copy of all papers,

documents, petitions, memoranda, correspondence, etc , with the Government of British

Columbia or any member thereof with the Fishery Offlcers of the Marine and Fisheries

Department resident in said Province, and with any Company, person or persons

relating to prohibition of tlie export of British Columbia salmon since January 20,

1913. Presented June IS, 1917.

—

Mr. McKcnsie Not printed.

210. Statement of Amount and Price of Commodities purchased and sold (including export

and home consumption) by Cold Storage Companies in Canada from January 1 to

December 1, 1916. Presented by Hon. Mr. Crothcrs, June 18, 1917 Not printed.

210a, Report of W. F. O'Connor, K.C., Acting Commissioner re Cost of Living, concerning

Cold Storage Conditions in Canada. Presented by Hon. Mr. Crothers, July 13, 1917.

Printed }or distribution and sessional papers.

210!>. Copy of Order in Council, P.C. 2021, dated 23rd July, 1917, recommending the further

investigation into the premises, books, papers and records of the William Davies
Company, Limited, and Matthews-Blackwell, Ltd., as disclosed by the report of W.
F. O'Connor, Acting Commissioner on the Cost of Living, on the subject of cold

storage conditions in Canada, and appointing G. F. Henderson, A. B. Brodie and
Geoffrey Clarkson with all the powers of Examiners under Part I of the Inquiries

Act to inquire into the books, papers, etc., of the said companies : also to recommend
In writing to the Minister of Labour a standardized system of costs accounting api\li-

oable to the cold storage business by which the net profits of cold storage companies
in Canada may from time to time be readily ascertained. Presented by Hon. Mr.

Crothers, July 25, 1917 Not printed

211. Return to an Order of the House, of the 11th June, 1917, for a copy of all correspon-
dence, telegrams, requests, petitions and other papers in the possession of the
Department of Trade and Commerce relating to providing a supply of salt for the
fisheries of the Maritime Provinces. Presented by Sir George Foster, June 22, 1917.

Not printed.

212. Copy of Order in Council, P.C. Xo. 1725, dated the 25th June, 1917, creating the

position of Director of Coal Operations for the southeastern coal fields of the Province

of British Columbia and the suthwestern coal fields of the Province of Alberta, known
as District 18. And also,—Copy of Order in Council. P.C. No. 1726, dated the 25th

June, 1917, appointing W. H. Armstrong, of the City of Vancouver, Director of Coal
Operations under the provisions of the above Order in Council, P.C. No. 1725, dated

25th June, 1917. Presented by Sir Robert Borden, June 25, 1917 Not printed.

212". Return to an Order of the House, of the 14th May, 1917, for a copy of all letters,

reports, conrvmunioations and documents passing between the Minister of Labour and
the Department of Labour and the otlicials of District (No. IS, United Mine Workers
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of Alberta, and the officials of the Alberta and Eastern British Columbia Coal Oper-

ators' Association, concerning the requests made by the Miners for an increase in

wages due to the increase in the cost of living, between Septeimber 1, ISl'B, and the

present time. Presented July 12, 1917.

—

Mr. Buchanan Not printed.

213. Return to an Order of the House, of the 13th June, 1917, for a Return showing:—1.

How many battalions of infantry left Canada with the First Contingent? 2. The
number, and the designations of the different units of artillery which left with the

First Contingent? 3. The number and the designation of the different medical corps

which left Canada with the First Contingent? 4. The number and the designation

of all the other units which left with the First Contingent? 5. The najnes, rank and

duties of the supernumerary officers who left with the First Contingent. Presented

June 26, 1917.

—

Mr. Lachance.. Not printed.

214. Return to an Address to His Excellency the Governor General, of the 30th May, 191T,

for a copy of all correspondence, letters, cables and other documents exchanged

between the Imperial Government or any of its members or officials with the

Canadian Government or any of its members or officials, relative to the question of

the proposed legislation by the Imperial Parliament to validate certain Acts and

proceedings of the Legislature of British Columbia. Presented June 27, 1917.

—

Mr.

Macdonald Not printed.

215. Return to an Order of the House, of the 4th June, 1917, for a copy of all correspondence

between the Chief of the Hansard Translation Staff of the House, the Clerk of the

House and the Speaker, since April 19, 1917, to date. Presented June 28, 1917.—

Mr. Lcmieux Not printed.

216. Return to an Order of the House, of the 27th March, 1916, for a return showing the

amounts paid by the Federal Government from the 1st July, ii9'6, to the 1st

October, 1911, to the following newspapers: Le Canada, La Presse, La Patrie, Le
Pays, of Montreal, La Tigie and Le Soleil, of Quebec, Presented June 28, 1917.

—

Mr. Boulay Not printed.

217. Return to an Order of the House, of the 3rd May, 1917, for a Return showing the

number of employees of the following Departments after 1896, and after 1911,

respectively, viz. :—Inland Revenue, Interior, Public Works, Marine and Fisheries,

Militia and Defence, Labour and Department of Trade and Com'meree. Presented

June 28. 1917.

—

Mr. Boulay Not printed.

218. Return to an Order of the House, of the 7th May, 1917, for a Return showing the

number of returned soldiers who have been given employment in the various depart-

ments of the Government. Presented June 28, 1917.

—

Mr. Lemieux . . ..Not printed.

219. Return to an Order of the House, of the 25th June, 1917, for a copy of the reports made
by the Penitentiary Surgeons in connection with the release from Penitentiary of

Edward Levi Baugh. Presented July 4, 1917.

—

Mr. Murphy Not printed.

220. Return to an Order of the House, of the 21st May, 1917. for a return giving the names
and salaries of employees of the Interior and Indian Departments, (a) Inside Service
and (6) Outside Service, who volunteered for overseas service, and who were paid
their full civil salary in addition to their military pay and allowances.

Those who volunteered for overseas service and who were paid a sufficient portion
of their civil salary in addition to their military pay and allowances to bring their

pay up to the amount of their civil salary.

Those who volunteered for overseas service and who received consideration

(stating consideration) on account of their civU employment in addition to their

military pay and allow-ances.

Those who volunteered for overseas service and who do not receive any con-

sideration on account of their civil employment in addition to their military pay and
allowances. Presented July 5, 1917.

—

Mr. Oliver Not printed.
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221. Report of Special Trade Commission to Great Britain, France and Italy, May-
September, 1916. Presented by Sir George Foster, July 5, 1917 Not printed.

222. Return to an Order of the 'House, of the 13th June. 1917, for a Return showing :^—1. The
total expenditure connected with Agriculture by the Federal Government in each of

the fiscal years from 1904-05 to 1916-17, inclusive. 2. How much money was set

apart by the Agricultural Aid Act of 1912 to assist the Provincial Departments of

Agriculture to improve and extend their work? 3. How much of above amount was
given to each Province, and what was accomplished in each Province as a result of

such assistance? 4. How much money was set apart by the Federal Government under

the Agricultural Instructions Act of 1913, and under the provisions of the said Act

what amounts were respectively allotted each year to the several Provinces? 5.

What the general purpose of said Act is, and to what extent that purpose has been

made effective in each Province. Presented July 5, 1917.

—

Mr. Edu-ards.

Printed for sessional papers only.

233. Return to an Order of the House, of the 11th June. 1917. for a Return showing:—1.

Whether Mr. Giard, ex-M.P.P. for Compton, is an employee of the Government? 2. If

so, since when? 3. The number of employees under his orders and their respective

names? 4. What salary does said Giard receive? 5. The salary of each employes

under his charge? 6. Whether he has bought, for the Government, any animals for

breeding purposes? 7. If so, how many, and the price paid for each? 8. Where these

animals were bought? 9. How many of them have been rejected or returned to the

Government or to Mr. Giard? 10. If any have been refused or returned, why? 11.

Where the said breeding animals are at present? 12. What the Government or the

Department of Agriculture intends to do with the animals so refused and returned to

Mr. Giard? Presented July 5, 1917.

—

Mr. Ganvreau A'ot printed.

224. Return to an Address to His Excellency the Governor General, of the 31st January.

1917. for a copy of all documents, letters, messages, correspondence, reports and

paxticularly an Order in Council dated 6th December, 1898, respecting the exe.niption

from military service of the Doulihobors. Presented by Hon. Mr. Roche, July 9, 1917.

—Mr. McCraney Not printed.

225. Return to an Address to His Excellency the Governor General, of the 31st January,

1917, for a copy of all Orders in Council and other documents on file in the Depart-

ment of Marine and Fisheries relating to the requisitioning of Canadian ships by the

Canadian Government. Presented July 11, 1917.

—

Mr. Sinclair. Not printed.

226. Return to an Order of the House of the 7th June, 1917, for a return showing the number

of recruiting officers which have been appointed in the province of Quebec, with the

names, addresses, nature of functions and salaries of the same. Presented July 11,

1917.—il/7-. Coruell Not printed.

226a. Return to an Order of the House of the ISth June, 1917, for" a return showing:—1. The
names and addresses of the parties on Prince Edward Island who have been engaged
or who are now engaged in recruiting foi* the army and navy or doing other work of a
like militar>' character, since August. 1914. 2. The remuneration or pay each of the

said parties receives and the allowance given for travelling or other expenses. 3. The
total amount each person has received up to the 1st of June. 1917. Presented July 31.

1917.

—

Mr. Hughes (P.E.I.) Not printed.

227. Return to an Order of the House of the 12th April, 191G, for a return showing:— 1. How
many clerks there are In the Post Office Department who belong to and are paid from
the outside service vote, and who work In the inside service. 2. The names of said
clerks. 3. Salary paid to each. 4. How long each has been in the service of tlie

Department. 5. If all or any of the clerks have passed any examination. If so, what
examination, and on what date or dates. Presented July 14.

—

Mr. Turriff . .Not printed.

228. Copy of a memorandum presented by the Southern Slav Committee to the representatives

of the Brltl.sh Dominions, setting forth the alms and aspirations of the Jugo-slavs
(Serbs, Croats and Slovens) subject to Austro-Hungarian rule. Presented by Sir

Robert Borden. July 20. 1917 \'o« printed.
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229* Claims made by Minister of Justice relating to payment of duties by certain provinces.

(Senate.)
'

Xot printed.

230. Copy of Report of Honourable Sir Ezekiel McLeod. Cliief Justice of the Province of New
Brunswicli, and the Honourable Louis Tellier, retired Judge of the Superior Court of

the Province of Quebec, Commissioners appointed under the Inquiries Act of Canada,
being Revised Statutes of Canada, 1906, Chapter 104 and Amending Acts, by virtue

of an Order in Council passed on the 6th June, 1917, whereby the said Commissioners
were empowered and directed to conduct an inquiry and investigation for the purpose
of reviewing and considering the evidence tal<en by Mr. Justice Gait, a Commissioner
appointed by the Lieutenant-Governor of Manitoba on the 15th day of July, 1916, to

investigate and report upon certain matters of concern to the Local Government of the

said province, in the execution of such Commission, and to review and consider his

reports and findings on such evidence ; and to report whether such evidence sustains

or supports the flniiings of the said Commissioner, as set forth in such reports, in so

far as they reflect upon or prejudioiaHy affect the honour or integrity of the Hon.
Robert Rogers or the honesty of his dealings or transactions. Presented by Hon.
Mr. Doherty, July 27, 1917.. ..Printed for distribution—Members and Senators only.

230"' Copy of evidence, e-xhibits, etc., in respect to the Report of Honourable Sir Ezekiel Mc-
Leod, Chief Justice of the Province of New Brunswick, and the Honourable Louis
Tellier, retired Judge of the Superior Court of the Province of Quebec, Commissioners
appointed under the Inquiries Act of Canada, being Revised Statutes of Canada, 1906,

Chapter 104 and Amending Acts, by virtue of an Order in Council passed on the 6th

June, 1917, whereby the said Commissioners were empowered and directed to conduct
an inquiry and investigation for the purpose of reviewing and considering the evidence

taken by Mr. Justice Gait, a Commissioner appointed by the Lieutenant-Governor of

Manitoba on the 15th day of July, 1916, to investigate and report upon certain matters
of concern to the Local Government of the said province, in the execution of such Com-
mission, and to review and consider his reports and findings on such evidence ; and to

report whether such evidence sustains or supports the findings of the said Commissioner
as set forth in such reports, in so far as they reflect upon or prejudicially affect the

honour or integrity of the Hon. Robert Rogers, or the honesty of his dealings or
transactions. Presented by Hon. Mr. Doherty, August 9, 1917 Xot printed.

231. Return to an Order of the House of the 13th June, 1917, for a copy of all correspond-
ence, letters, telegrams and other papers relating to a contract for carrying nrails

between Grand River and Fourchu, in the County of Richmond, Nova Scotia, in the
years 1916 and 1917. Presented July 28, 1917.

—

Mr. Kyte Xot printed.

232. Return to an Order of the House of the 30th April, 1917, for a copy of all papers, letters,

telegrams and documents relative to the purchase of land in Vancouver. B.C., for the
purpose of an armoury, since January 1, 1913. Presented July 3D, 1917.

—

Mr. Mac-
donaJd Xot printed.

233. Return to an Order of the House of the 1st February, 1917, for a return showing:— 1.

The names and present rank of all appointees as Chief Recruiting Ofllcers or as District

or Special Recruiting Officers, not local or regimental, made since the beginning of the
war. 2. The dates of their respective appointments. 3. The ages and vocations of

respective appointees. 4. The name of military organization, if any, in which appointees
had previously served. 5. The rank of appointees while serving in any military orga-
nization. 6. Whether the services of any of these appointees have been dispensed with.

7. If so, their names, and dates on which they were retired. Presented July 31, 1917.

Mr. Turriff Xot printed.

234. Return to an Order of the House of the 31st J.inuary, 1917, for a return showing:— 1.

The date of the last order given by the Government to the Ross Rifle Company. 2. The
number of rifles ordered. 3. Whether a recommendation of the British Army Council
for the utilization of existing Canadian facilities in manufacturing the new and Im-
proved Lee-Enfield was received by the Government. 4. The date of the recommenda-
tion, and when it was received. 5. Whether the recommendation has been acted upon.
Prjsented July 31, 1917.

—

Mr. Turriff Not printed
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235. Return to an Order of the House of the 20th June, 1917. for a return showing:— 1. The
names of the members of the military staff at North Vancouver. 2. Their respective

duties or occupations. 3. The rank and rate of pay of each. 4. The amount that has

been paid to each. 5. Upon what date or dates the members of the said staff enlisted,

and how long they have been attaclied to the staff. Presented July 31. 1917.

—

M>'-

Murphy Kot ttrintcil.

2351. Return to an Order of the House of the 21st June, 1917, for a return showing the names,

ranli, pay, and nature and place of employment of all officers attached to headquarters

at Halifax and the various departments of the military service or connected in any way
with Military Division No. 6. Presented August 2, Xill.—'Mr. Tobin.. ..Wot printed.

236. Return to an Order of the House of the ISth July, 1917, for a return giving a list of the

different Commissions created since the beginning of the war, concerning the soldiers,

their pensions, hospitals, etc., showing the names of the various Commissioners who have

comprised said Commissions. Presented July 31, 1917.

—

Mr. Boulay Wot printed.

237' Copy of Financial Statements in respect to the Canadian Northern Railway System : 1.

Balance Sheet, 30th June, 191G. 2. Statement of Securities Issued and Fixed Charges.

30th June, 1917. 3. Statement of Liabilities, loth June, 1917. 3a. Statement of Etiuiii-

ment Account. 4. List of Securities for Loans. 5. Gross and Net Earnings, 30th June,

1917. 6. Comparison of Earnings, 1915, 1916 and 1917. 7. Statement re Capital E.\-

penditure and Betterments, year ending 30th June, 1917. S. Mileage. And also,—

•

Statements showing bonds, etc., authorized, issued and outstanding, and net procee<ls

therefrom ; interest payable during the period July 1. 1917, to June 30, 191S ; and
estimated cash requirements for period July 1, 1917. to June 30, 191S, in respect to the

Grand Trunk Railway and Grand Trunk Pacific Branch Lines. Presented by Sir

Robert Borden, July 20, 1917 Not printed.

237<'- Copy of Mortgage Deed of Trust securing an issue of $43,000,000 of Canadian Northern

Railway securities, guaranteed by the Dominion Government, issued under the legisla-

tion of 1914. Also,—Copy of Mortgage Deed dated 26th June, 1916—The Canadian
Northern Ontario Railway Company to His Majesty the King—securing certain

advances from a loan of $15,000,000 made by His Majesty to the Canadian Northern

Railway Company. And also,—Copy of Audit of Revenue and Expenditure Accounts

of the Canadian Northern Railway System for the months of May. June. July. August,

September, October, November and December. 1916, and for January and February.

1917. Presented by Sir Thomas White, August 8, 1917 Kot printed.

237I'- Statement of amounts advanced by the Government of Canada to the Canadian Nortliein

Railway Company on interest account to date. And also,—Financial .Statements of the

Canadian Northern Railway, as follows:— 1. Interim Condensed Balance Sheet as at

April 30, 1917. 2. Statement of estimate of cost to complete lines and terminals under

construction and financial provision for same. 3. Statement of Contractors' and other

Construction accounts outstanding, 30th June, 1917. 4. Memorandum re unsold land.s.

5. Estimate of amount required for betterments and rolling stock for three years. I're-

sented by Sir Thomas White, August 13, 1917 Not printed.

238. Copy of Order In Council, P.C. 18S1. dated 19th August. 1916, recommending that in llic

case of oflTicers, warrant officers and non-commissioned officers reverting to lower rank

in order to proceed to the front, no reduction in separation allowance or pension shall

be made. And also.—Copy of Order in Council, P.C. 2008. dated 20th July. 1917. can-

celling Order in Council. P.C. 1615. dated 13th June. 1917, and amending Order in

Council, P.C. 18S1, dated 19th August, 1916, In respect to separation allowances and

pensions to those reverting to lower rank. In order to proceed to the front. Presemcil

by Sir Edward Kemp. August 2. 1917 Not prinltd.

239. Return to an Order of the House of the 30th July, 1917, for a copy of all correspondence

exchanged between the Board of Trade of the City of Quebec and the Prime Mini.>iter

on the subject of the Report of the .Special Commission on Railways. Presented

August 2. 1917.—Sir Wilfrid Laurier Not printed.
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240. Return to an Order of the House of the 13th June, 1917, for a statement showing the

travelling expenses of Maurice LeBlanc, general foreman of the Department of Publig

Works, Bonaventure County, since his appointment to date. Presented August 8, 1917.

—Mr. MarcU (Bonaventure) Xot printed.

241. Return to an Order of the House of the 30th April, 1917, for a copy of all letters, peU-

tions, correspondence and telegrams exchanged between the Government, the resident

engineer and all other persons concerning the dredging work done at Sle. Anne de

Bellevue, Pointe Fortune, Ottawa River channel between He au Foin and He Paquin,

Graham channel, Rigaud channel, Hudson Heights channel, He Perrot Church, He

Perrot South wharf and He Perrot North wharf, since 1904. Also a statement show-

ing the amounts paid to different persons or companies for such work, giving the dates

of payment, along with a copy of the estimates already brought down at my request

regarding the above, previous to 1904. Return to an Order of the House of the 30th

April, 1917, for a copy of all letters, petitions, correspondence, telegrams and report*

exchanged between the Government, the resident engineer of the district, and all other

persons, concerning the dredging work done since 1904 at the wharf of He Perrot

North, South and the Church, Dorion Bay channel, Vaudreuil Village channel, Pointe

Cavagnal, Como, Hudson Heights channel, Graham channel, Rigaud River channel,

Ottawa River, lies aux Poires channel, Pointe Fortune and Ste. Anne de Bellevue chan-

nel. Also a statement showing the amount of money paid to divers persons, com-

panies, etc., for suoh w-orks, along with copy of statements already presented at mv

request in connection with the same work, previous to 1904. Presented August 8, 1917.

—Mr. Bover ^°f printed.

242. Return to an Order of the House of the 14th May, 1917, for a copy of all letters, peti-

tions, correspondence, telegrams and reports received by the Government since Sept-

ember, 1911, to the present day, in any way referring to the extension and repairs to

Finlay Point wharf. Presented August 8, im.—Mr. Chisholm Not printed.

243. Return to an Order of the House of the 30th April, 1917, for a copy of all correspondence

in the possession of the Department of Public Works bearing date after September 1,

1915, relating to wharves, breakwaters and other public works situate in the County of

Antigonish. Nova Scotia. Presented August 8, 1917.—-Vr. Sinclair Kot printed.

244. Return to an Order of the House of the 7th May, 1917, for a copy of all documents.

correspondence, reports, accounts, pay-lists, etc., in connection with the work done on

the Government wharves at Cross Point, Miguasha, St. Omer and New Carlisle, Quebec,

since 1912. Presented August 8, ml.—Mr. Marcil (Bonaventure) Xot printed.

245. Return to an Order of the House of the 14th May. 1917, for a copy of all letters, peti-

tions, correspondence, telegrams and reports received by the Government since Sep-

tember, 1911, to the present day. in any way referring to the wharf at Marble Moun-

tain. Presented August 13,. 1917.—.1/r. Chisholm -Vo( prinlcd.

246.

246<i.

247.

Return to an Order of the House of the 14th May. 1917. for a copy of all letters, peti-

tions, correspondence, telegrams and leports received by the Government since Sep-

tember, 1911, to the present day, in any way referring to the extension of the pier at

Margaree Harbour. Presented August 13, 1917.—1/'-. Chisholm Xot printed.

Return to an Order of the House of the 14th May, 1917, for a copy of all letters, peti-

tions, correspondence, telegrams and reports received by the Government since Sep-

tember, 1911, to the present day, in any way referring to the breakwater at Margaree

Harboiir. Presented August 13, 1917.—JUr. Cftisftolm Not prinlrd.

Return to an Order of the House of the 14th May. 1917, for a copy of all letters, peti-

tions, correspondence, telegrams and reports received by the Government since Sep-

tember, 1911, to the present day, in any way referring to the Port Hood wharf.

Presented August 13, 1917.—Mr. Chisholm Not printed.
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248. Return to an Order of the House of the Hlh May, 1917, for a copy of all letters, peti-

tions, correspondence, telegrams and reports received by the Government since Sep-

tember, 1911, to the present time, in any way referring to the opening of Inverness

Harbour. Presented August 13, 1917.—.Ur. C/iishoIm .Vot printed.

249. Return to an Order of the House of the 23rd April, 1917, for a copy of all papers, docu-

ments, petitions, memoranda, correspondence, etc., with reference to the Government

of the Dominion of Canada building competing telephone lines in British Columbia

paralleling lines already in operation of the Okanagan Telephone Company, iLlraited.

Presented August 13, 1917.

—

Mr. Carvell. .
Not printed.

250. Return to an Order of the House of the 30th April, 1917. for a copy of all correspondence

in the Department of Public "Worlis bearing date after September 1, 1915, relating to

wharves, breakwaters and other public works in the County of Guysborough, Nova

Scotia. Presented August 13, 1917.

—

Mr. Sinclair Not printed.

' 251. Return to an Order of the House of the 30th April, 1917, for a copy of all papers, records

and other documents concerning the reference by the Dominion Government to the

question relating to the exclusive right of fishing in the tidal waters of the province

of Quebec. Presented August 15, 1917.

—

Mr. Lemieux Not printed.

252. Return to an Order of the House of the 9th July, 1917, for a return showing the names

of all persons employed in connection with the Office of the Commissioner of Live Stock

in the Province of Saskatchewan, showing the salaries and expenses paid them ; and

also showing the number of stallions and bulls placed in Saskatchewan when the said

office was established. Presented August 15, 1917.

—

Mr. Thomson IQu'Appelle).

Not printed.

253. Return to an Order of the House of the 14th May, 1917, for a copy of all letters, tele-

grams and reports between the Department of the Naval Service of the Department of

Marine and Fisheries, and any and all persons in connection with the seizure of certain

fishery boats, fishing tackle and equipment being used in the illegal fishing of lobsters

in the Straits of Northumberland in the fall of 1916, together with a copy of the

evidence taken before one M. G. Teed, Esquire, acting as a commissioner to inquire into

this matter, and his report and finding tliereon. Presented August 16, 1917.

—

Mr. Copp.

Not printed.

254. Return to an Order of the House of the 30th .July, 1917, for a copy of all correspondence

between the Department of Militia and Defence of Canada, the War Purchasing Com-
mission of Canada, and the British War Office, concerning a target practice rod or the

use of same by the Canadian Expeditionary Force. Presented August 20. 1917.

—

Mr.

Maclean (Ilalifax) Not printed.

255. Return to an Order of the House of the 7th June, 1917, for a return showing:— 1.

Whether the Department of Agriculture supply thoroughbred bulls for improvement of

stock to applicants for the same. 2. If so, it any such bulls have been sent Into the

County of Dorchester, Quebec, and when. 3. At whose request these bulls were sent,

and if they belonged to the Department of Agriculture. 4. If so. on what condition

they were supplied. 5. From whom the department purchased the animals referred to.

6. The price paid. 7. If any official of the Department of Agriculture has made an

investigation as to where these bulls are at the present time. 8. If so, the substance

of their report. 9. Whether the said bulls are being used for the purpose for which

they were intended. Presented August 21, 1917.

—

Mr. LanctuI Not printnl.

2.56. Return to an Order of the House of the 1st August, 1917, for a return showing the

amount which has been paid to the Sydney Daily Post, newspaper, by all the depart-

ments of the Government for printing and advertising, since the 1st of November, 1911.

Presented August 21. 1917.

—

Mr. Kyle Not printed.

257. Return to an Order of the House of the 1st August, 1917, for a return showing the gross

amount paid to the Halifax Herald, the Evening Mail, Halifax, and the Royal Print

and Lithographing Company, Halifax, by all the departments of the Government for

printing, advertising and all other services since November 1, 1911. Presented August

21, 1917.

—

Mr. Sinclair Not printed.
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258. Return to an Order ot the House of the ISth June, 1917, for a copy of all accounts.

papers, claims and correspondence regarding demands put forward by all persons who
have claimed to have sustained loss or damage by the fire in the Parliament Buildings

in February, 1915. Presented August 21, 1917.

—

Mr. Lanclot Not printed.

259. Return to an Order ot the House of the 14th May, 1917, for a copy of all communications,

letters, reports, petitions and other documents on behalf "of the Physicians and Medical

Associations of this country, asking for the repeal of The Proprietary or Patent Medi-

cine Act and the presentation of a new Act on the matter in order to render more

efficient the control of these medicine preparations, and to add on the prohibition list

such drugs or medicines as are generally dangerous to health and conducive to certain

criminal practices. Presented August 21, 1917.

—

Mr. Lapointe (Kamouraska).

Not printed.

260. Copy of correspondence between the Honourable Robert Rogers and the Right Honour-

able Sir Robert Borden, Prime Minister, with reference to the resignation of the former

as Minister of Public Works ot Canada.— (The Senate.) Not printed.

261. Return to an Order ot the Senate dated the 11th day ot July, 1917, for a Statement

showing the number of officers and men ot the Canadian Expeditionary Force who have

been classed as unfit for military service; whether the military authorities have given

consideration to the possibility of utilizing the services of those men in a secondary

capacity ; whether those who have been classed as unfit continue to draw military pay ;

the number who have deserted from the various units between 1st October, 1914, and

1st June, 1917; and the number discharged from the various units since 1st October.

1914.— (The Senate.) Not printed.

262. Return to an Order of the Senate, dated 7th June last, for a return showing:—1. The
name and rank of each person who at the outbreak of the war in August, 1914, was an

officer, commissioned or provisional, of the 7Sth Regiment (Highlanders), of Pictou

County, Nova Scotia. 2. The length of time each ot such persons was attached to said

regiment. 3. (a) The name ot each of said officers who joined the Canadian Overseas

Forces. (6) The unit to which he was attached, (c) The rank with which he was
attached, (d) The date at which he was attached. 4. The name ot each person who
since the outbreak ot war became attached as provisional officers to said 78th Regiment

and the date at which such person became attached and his rank. 5. (a) The name of

each ot the officers referred to in paragraph 4 who joined the Canadian overseas forces.

(6) The unit to which he was attached, (c) The rank with which he was attached,

(d) The date at which he was attached. 6. The name of each ot the officers referred

to in each of the foregoing paragraphs who were in active service at the fighting front,

the units with which they served, and the length ot time they served. 7. Particulars

as to each of the said officers showing where each one was on May 1, 1917, to what unit

he was attached, and what his rank was at that time. S. It any ot these ofiicers have

gone to the fighting front since May 1, state name, unit, rank and date.— (The Senate.)

Not pi-i7ited.

263. Part return to an humble Addre.ss ot the Senate to His Excellency the Governor General.

dated the Sth instant, showing all the correspondence between the Department of

Militia and Defence and Clarence J. McCuaig ; also, between the same and the first

Purchasing Committee appointed by Sir Robert Borden, of %vhich the Honourable

Robert Rogers was Chairman, and between the said Clarence J. McCuaig and the Com-
mittee of which the Honourable Sir Edward Kemp is or was Chairman, or with any of

the members of the said committee.— (The Senate.) . ..Not printed.

264. Eighth Annual Report ot the Commission of Conservation for the fiscal year ending 31st

March, 1917. Presented by Hon. Mr. Burrell, September 1, 1917 Not printed.

265. Return to an Order of the House of the 30th August, 1917, tor a return showing:—1. The
number of additional buildings and offices that have been rented by the various depart-

ments of the Government in the City ot Ottawa during the calendar years, 1914, 1915,

1916 and 1917. 2. The names of the lessors, the length ol the lease and the respective

rentals of said buildings. 3. What department in each case is occupying said premises.

Presented September 3, 1917.

—

Mr. Sinclair Not printed.

43



7-8 George V Alphabetical Index to Sessional Papers A. 1917

CONTENTS OF VOLUME 21—Coniinued.

266. Return to an Order of the House of the 11th July, 1917, fo a copy of all correspondence

and other documents relating to the granting to beam trawlers registered in the United

States the privilege of using ports in the Province of Nova Scotia for the purchasing

of supplies, the shipping of men. etc., without license therefor as required under the

modus videndi. Presented September 3, 1917.— -Ifr. Kiite \ot printed.

267. Copy of contract dated Sth March, 1917, between His Majesty the King and Wallace

Shipyards, Limited, for the construction and delivery of one wooden auxiliary sailing

ship. Also,—Copy of contract dated 1st June, 1917. between His Majesty the King and

Laraond and Harrison for the construction and delivery of one wooden auxiliary sailing

ship. Presented by Hon. Mr. Cochrane, September 3, 1917 .Vot printed.

268. Return to an Order of the Senate, dated the 15th day of June last, for a return made to

an Order of the House of Commons, of the 7th February. 1916, for a copy of all corre-

spondence and reports on the claims of Sealers of British Columbia under the last

treaty with the American Republic, and all papers connected therewith.— ^The Senate.)

Xot printed.

269. Copy of Order in Council, P.C. 224:., dated 3rd September, 1917, appointing the Deputy

Minister of Justice, Oliver Mowat Biggar, of the City of Edmonton, John H. Moss, of

the City of Toronto. Ix>uis Loranger, of the City of Montreal, and Lt.-Co!. H. A. C.

Machin. of the Town of Kenora, Ont.. a council to advise and assist in the administra-

tion and enforcement of the Military Service Act. 1917, to be known as the Military

Service Council. Presented by Sir Robert Borden. September 4, 1917.. . ..Vof printed.

270. Return to an Order of the House of the 21st May. 1917. for a copy of all reports, letters,

telegrams, correspondence and any other papers in connection with the question of

locating the 210th Battalion at Regina and Moosejaw respectively during the winter

of 1916-17. Presented September 6, 1917.

—

Mr. Knowles Not printed.

271. Return to an Order of the House of the 14th May, 1917, for a copy of all letters, corres-

pondence, telegrams and reports received by the Government since September, 1911,

to the present day, in any way referring to the appointment of a man in charge of the

storm signals at Grand Etang and Margaree Harbour. Presented September 6, 1917.

—

Mr. Chisholm Xot printed.

272. Return to an Order of the House of the 7th May, 1917, for a return showing the different

rural mail routes established in the constituency of Qu'Appelle since the 1st day of

January, 1916, showing their location and date of establishment. Also, a list of all

rural mail routes now being established or under consideration at the present time in

the same constituency. Presented September 7, 1917.—.Ur. Thomson {Qu'.-ipiielle).

Not printed.

273. Return to an Order of the House of the 6th March, 1916, for a copy of all telegrams,

letters, petitions and documents of all kinds in any way referring to the change in the

Inverness-Margaree mail route from the west to the east of the Margaree river, from a

point at Margaree Forks to Chapel Bridge. Presented September 7, 1917.—-Ur. C/ii.v-

holm Not printed.

274. Copy of Order in Council, P.C. 2199, dated 10th August, 1917: Rules and Regulations

enacted in lieu of the Classification, Rules and Regulations contained in Order In Coun-
cil, P.C. 1296, of the 15th May, 1917, in respect to War badges for members of the

Canadian Expeditionary Force. Presented by Sir Edward Kemp, September 13. 1917.

Not printed.

275. Copy of Order In Council. PC. 2552. dated 13th September. 1917, recommending that

Certificates of Naturalization may be issued und%r the Naturalization Act, 1914, to

alien enemies who have resided for many years in Canada, on its being shown that

they are clearly in sympathy with the United Kingdom and its allies In the present war,

and that they have no pro-German or other alien enemy afTllIations or connections.

Prestnted by Sir Robert Borden, September 14, 1917 Not printed.

44



7-8 GeoTge V Alphabetical Index to Sessional Papers A. I'Jll

CONTENTS OF VOLUME 21—Concluded.

276. Copy of Canada Gasette dated 12th September, 1917, containing a list and location of

Local Tribunals established to hear and decide applications for certificates of exemption

from Militarj' Service. Presented by Hon. Mr. Doherty, September 14, 1917.

Kot printed.

277. Copies of Orders in Council, dated 15th September and 17th September. 1917, respectively,

appointing Registrars for the Provinces of Briti.sh Columbia, New Brunswick, Quebec,

SaEl<atchewan, Manitoba, Ontario, Alberta and Prince Edward Island, under the provi-

sions and for the purposes of the Military Service Act, 1917. Presented by Sir Robert

Borden, September 17, 1917 Xot printed.

278. Return to an Address to His Excellency the Governor General of the 2nd May, 1917, for

a copy of all Orders in Council, letters, telegrams, etc.. to or from any employee of the

Government in reference to the improvement and equipment of the life-saving station

at Whitehead, Guysborough County, N.S. Presented September 17, 1917.

—

Mr. Maclean
(Halifax) Not printed.

279. Return to an Order of the House of the 14th May, 1917, for a copy of all letters, peti-

tions, correspondence, telegrams and reports received by the Government since Sep-

tember, 1911, to the present day, in any way referring to the dredging and building of

piers at Mabou Harbour. Presented September 19, 1917.

—

Mr. Maclean (Halifax).

Not printed.

280. Return to an Order of the House of the 13th August, 1917, for a return showing:— 1. The
different amounts paid for commissions and expenses in connection with the flotation

of the different loans made by Canada since 1914. 2. The respective amounts paid in

connection with each loan. Presented September 19, 1917

—

Mr. Macdonald.

Not printed.

281. Return to an Order of the House of the 5th September, 1917,' for a copy of all corre-

spondence, letters, telegrams, petitions, etc., in any way referring to an application

for a public wharf at Chimney Corners, Inverness County, N.S. Presented September

19, 1917.

—

Mr. Chisholm Not printed.

282. Return to an Order of the House of the 2&th August, 1917, for a return showing copies

of all accounts, memoranda, vouchers, telegrams, letters, etc,, in reference to payments
to George H. Boyce, of Windsor, N.S., District Foreman of Public Works Department,
since his appointment to office. Presented September 19, 1917.

—

Mr. Maclean (Halifax).

Not printed.

283. Return to an Order of the Senate dated the 1st day of March, 1916, showing a copy of

all correspondence between the Government and the British Columbia Boards of Trade,

and also between the Government and the Canadian Manufacturers' Association, in

reference to the request made by the British Columbia Boards of Trade for the appoint-

ment of a Dominion Customs Officer at the Port of New York.— (Senate.).

Not printed.

284. Part return to an humble Address of the Senate, dated the 14th of August, 1917, to His

Excellency the Governor General, for a return showing the name of everj' judge of the

Supreme, District and County Courts in all the provinces of Canada, for the year 191G,

together with a statement of the moneys paid to each of such judges tor that year for

(a) salaries; (6) travelling expenses; (c) allowances of all kinds; (rf) for services

as Commissioners; (e) and any other payments; and also, showing the names of

judges who have performed services as Commissioners, or in any other public capacity
without compensation.— (Senate.) NoUprinled.

285. Return to an humble Address of the Senate, dated the 9th August, 1917, to His Excel-

lency the Governor General, showing all the documents relating to the purchase by the

Militia Department of " Bonnie Bel Air " from W. T. Rodden, Esq., a part of number
nine (9) on the official plan and book of reference of the Parish of Lachine and
specially the report of the lawyers who examined the titles.— (Senate.) . . . .Not printed.
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To Field Marshal, His Royal Highness Prince Arthur Willi<im Pafriclc Albert, Duke,

of Connaught and of Straihearn, K.G., E.T.. K.P., etc, etc., etc., Gorernor

General and Commander in Chief of the Dominion of Canada.

I have the honour to lay before Your Royal Highness the Report of the Depart-

unMit cif Public Works of Canada, for the fiscal year ended ilarch 31, 1916.

I have the honour to be, sir,

Tour Royal Highness's most obedient servant,

ROBERT ROGERS,
Minister of Public WorLi.

Ottawa, November 17, 1916.
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ALPHABETICAL INDEX TO REPORT

Names of Places, etc.

AbercromMe Point, N.S
Accountant's report.

Acton, Ont., t'Ost ortice ....:..
Acton Vale, P.Q., public building .

Acts of Parliament
Advocare, N.S
A^'sssiz. B.C., experimental farm
Amsworth, B.C
Albert, N.B
Alberton, P.E.I
Alexandria, Ont., public building .

.

Almonte. Ont.. public building
Amaguadees Pond (Castle Bay) N'S.

.

Arnherstburg, Ont., public building.

.

Amherst, P.Q
Amherst, N.S

II public buildings
11 Point, N.S

Anderson's, Man
Ccve, N.S
Hollow, N.B

Angers, Que
Aniiandale, P. K.I
Annapolis, N.S ..

II public buildings. . .

.

Anse i Beaufils, P.Q
II Fougere P.Q
II Giles, P.Q
II la Cave, P.Q
., I'Islet, P. Q
II la Louise, P.Q

Anse au Griffon, P. Q
11 St. Jean, P.Q

Anticosti, P.Q., telegrajjhs

Antigonish, N.S., public building. . .

.

Appleby, N.B
Arichat, N.S., public building
Arisaig, N.S
Armitage Landing Ont
Arnprior, Ont

" " public building
Arrowhead, BC
Arthabaska, P.Q., public building...
Art Gallery
Asbestos, P.Q.. jHjst office

Aslicroft, B.C., i)ost office.

Ashcroft-Dawson, telegraphs
Ashuapmouchiian River, P.Q
Atliabaska River, Alta., , . . . ,

Athabaska Landing, Alta., public building
Atlicns, Ont., post office

Atlin, B.C., post office

Aurora, Ont., post office

Aylnier, P.Q.
,
post office ....

II wharf
Alynier, Ont., post office

113-698
(J73

23-IW4
fi77

7<lli

11 1-698
694

318-712
167-702
155-201
23-684
23-684
114-698
24-684

204
114-674
3 698

115
306-712
167-098
157 702

704
155

115-698
3-674

201-704
704

202-704
202-704
202-704

704
202-704
202-704
542-626

3-674
703
674

115-698
2.56-708

256-708
684

31S-712
15 677

769
677
694

604-641
203
712
692
6.i4

694
24-684

203 677
203-704
24-684

Nami-'S of I'laces, etc.

B
Baddeck, N.S., public building

II wharf
Baiedu Vln, N.B
Bale St. Paul, P.Q
Baker's Point (East Jeddore). N.S
BamHeld, B.C
Banff, Alta., bridge
Karachois de Malbaie, P.Q
Bare Point, Ont
Barrie, Ont., public buildings
Barry's Bay, Ont
Bassano, Alta., postoffice
Bass Kiver, N.S
Bath Bay, Ont
Bathurst, N.B., harbour

II public building
Batiscan. P.Q
Battleford, Sask., public building
Battery Point, N.S
Bay d« Vin, N. B
Bay rif Fundy telegraphs
Bayfield, Ont ^

Beacon Bar, N.B
Bear Cove, N.S
Bear River. N.S., post office

Beaton, B.C
Beauharnois, P.Q., post office

Beaumaris, Ont
BeaujMirt, P.Q
Beaver Harbour, N. B
Beaverton, Ont
Beebe Jvnction, P. Q., immigration bldg.
Belfa.n, P.E.I
Belle River, P.E.I
Bellcvilie, Ont., post office

II 11 wharf
Belceil, P.Q '

Bensford, Ont
Berlin, (Kitchener) Ont., public building
Bersimis, P. Q
Berthier, P.Q
Berthierville, P.Q

public building
Bic, P.Q
Big Bay, Ont
Biggar, Sask., immigration building . .

Big Harbour, N.S
Big Pond (Bape Baeton) N.S
Big Stone, Alta
Black Lake, P.Q., post office

Black Point, N.S
Black River, Ont

N.B
Black's Harbour, N.B
Blanche River, Ont

N.S
Blenheim. Ont., jiost office

Blind River, Ont
Blubbe. Bay, B.C

Page.

115-674
698
702

205-704
115-698
318-712

715
704

288-708
24-684

708
61-692
115-698
256-708
167-702
10-675

203 704
691
698
169

556-624
256-708
192-703

698
674
712
677

207-708
204-704
169-702
'257-709

677
1.56-701

156-701
24-684

257-709
204-704
257-709
25-685

204-704
205-704
205-704
1.5-677

704
709
691

116-698
116-698
304-712

677
117-698

715
169-702
169-702
258-709

698
684

258-709
319-712
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Boissevain, Man.
,
post oftice

Bongarde, Ont
Bonshaw Wharf, P.E.I
Boucherville, PQ...^
Boularderie Centre, N.S
Bowmanville, Ont., public building.. .

Ont
Bow River, bridge
Bracebridge, Ont.. post office

Biampton, Ont., public building
Brandon, Man., public buildings

Brantford, Ont., public buildings
Brecbe a Manon. P.Q
Bridgeburg, Ont., public building
Bridgetown, P.E.I
BridgHwater, N..S., public building
Bridges and roads
Brighton, Ont
Eritisli Columbia, dredging

M II harbours and rivers.

II II telegraphs
Broad Cove, N.S
Brockville, Ont., public building

Bruce Mines, Ont
Brudenell, P.E.I
Brussels, Ont., post office

Bryants Landing, P.Q
Bryson, VA^., bridge
Buckingham, P.(j., public building..

.

Buctouche Beach, N.B
Buctouche Harbour, N.B
Buctouche. N.B ,;

Buildings leaded

Burforfl, Ont., post office

Burks Falls, Ont, post office

Burlington, N.S . .

Ort
II channel, Ont
II beach, Ont

Burnt Church, N.B
Burrard Inlet, B.C
Burton City, B.C
Burton Courthouse, N.B

Cabbage Gut (La Have Islands), N.S.
Cable ship Titrian

Cache Bay, Ont
Cacouna, P.Q
Calgary, Alta., public buildings
Campllellton, N.B., public building..

II II wharf
Campbell River, B.C
Camjioljello, N.B
f.'anada Creek, N.S
Canning, N.S., post office

II wharf
Canso, N.S

public building
Canton Fabre, P.Q
•vapilans, B.C
Cap a 1'A.igle, P.Q

6S0
•259-709

157-701
05-705
U7-C98
20-K84
259-709

516
25-6S4
25-1,84

54-«89
25- (184

Too
25-684
151-701
3-674

509-715
259-709

444
318

G14 641
117-698

(«4
799

250-709
157-701

684
705
205

15-677
170-702
171-702

170
69

25-684
684

118-698
269-709
261-709

709
171-702

694
319-712
186-702

118-098
645

261-709
206-679
yi-6'12

10-695
172-701
319 712
201-704
118-698

674
218-698
118-698
4-674

213-705
319

200-705

Names of Places, etc.

Cape Bald, N.B
Cape Breton, N.S., telegraphs
Cap Chat, P.Q
Cap de la Madeleine, P.Q
Cap d'rispoir, P.Q
Cape Cove, P.Q
Cape Negro, N.S
Cap Rosiers, PQ
Cap Rouge, P.Q.. e.xperimental farm
Cap St. Ignace, P.Q
Cape Traverse, P.E.I
Caraquet, N.B
Carberry, Man., post oftice

Carcross, B.C., post office

Cardigan River, P.E.I
Caribou Harbour, N.S )

Carleton, P.Q
Carleton Place, Ont., public building
Carmiin. Man., public building
Carrs Brook, N.S
Castor, Alta., immigration building
Caughnawaga, P.Q
Cayug.a, Out., public building
Cedar Creek, B.C
Cedars, P.Q
Cement laboratory
Centrevijle. N.S
Chanibi'ihiiu Landing, N.B
Chamberlain's, N.B
Cham|ilain, VSl
Chapeau. Que., bridge
Chapel.P.E.I
Charlottetown, P.E.I., harbour

II public buildings.

Chase, B.C., publi; buildings
Chateauguay, P.Q
Chatham, N.B., public buildings

.1 Ont., public buildings
Chaudiere bridge
Chebovue, N.S
Chemainus, B.C
Chesley, Ont., public building. .

Chester, N S ... ,

Cheticamp Point, N)S
Chezzetcook. N.S . . .

.

Chicoutimi, P.Q, harbour
M public building

Chief Accountant, report

Chief Architect .

Chief Engineer h

Chief officers of De|)artment
Chilliwack, B.C

II II post office

Chipman, N)B
Chocolate Cove, N.B
Chockfish, N.B
Clair, N . B., bripge .

II immigration office

Clwyocot, B.C
Clinton, Ont., public building

Coaticook, P.Q., public buildings

Cobalt, Ont ..

Cobourg, Ont., public building

II harbour, public building.

.

Page

173-702
550-621

705
206-765

705
705

119-698
705
677

206-765
1,57-701

173-702
689
694

157-701
119-698
207-705

6S4
54-689
119-698

693
207-705

6S4
326-712
207-705

516
698
702
198
705
513

158-701
158-701
8-675
694
208

10-675
684
715

120 698
694
6«4

674
120-698

69S
209-715
1 5-677

669
3

111

777
320-713

694
173702

174
174-702

715
675

320-712
684

15-677
684
684

261-709
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Cobourg, Ont., center pier
11 east pier

Cocagne, N.B
Bar, N.B

Collector of revenue
Collection of slide and boom dues
ColUnswood, Ont

II graving docks
II post office ,

.

Colpoy's Bay' Ont
Columbia River, B.C
Comeau Cove, N.S

M Hill, N.S
Commission, Georgian Bay Ship Canal.

.

Corao, P.Q
Como.x, B.C., post ofiice

Compton, P.Q., post office

Coritract dredging
Contracts let

Cookshire, P.Q., public building
Cojiper Cliff, Ont., public building
Cornwall, Ont., pnlilic building
Coteau du Lac, P.Q
Courtenay, li C, post office

II Bay, N.B
II river, B.C

Cow Bay, N.S
Craigie Lea, Ont
Cranbrook, B.C., public building
Craven dam, Sask
Crawford Bay, B C
Caescent Island, Man
Cross Island, N.S
C\nnberland, B.C., public building
Cumbtrland L.'ike, Sask

D

Dalhousie, N.B
M public building , .

Darnley, P.E.I
D.artmouth, N.S., pul:)lic buildings. ..

.

„ ^ dredging
Dauphin, Man., jiublic buildings
D'Autray, P.Q
Deep waterways Commission
Deer Park, B.C
Deloiaini', Man., immigration building.
I);iJartnieiitaI building^', Ottawa
Depot Haioour, Ont
l.>escents lies F^ mmes, P.Q . .

Deseronto, Ont., public buildiiig . .. .

D'Esoousse, N.S
Desjardin.H, P.Q
Des .loachinis bridge. . . . .

.

Digby, N.S
II public b'jilding

Dignan's Bay, P..C
Di|iper H.irbour, N.B
D'I.Mr.aeli, P.Q
Doe Lake, Ont
Doucets Landing, P.Q
Douglas Harbour. N.B
Douglastown, N.B

174

262
32 •

120-

120-

209

IG

210

3-'l

121
202

315

62

211

27
121-

211-

121
4

.•?22

175
211
263
212

176

7on
7on
-702

175
GJ7
647
709
709
684
70!)

-712

-CDS

-69>S

717
-700

(iii4

077
46ii

719
-677

684
684
705
(;94

703
-713
-(•.98

-709

694
-712

712
-712

698
694
314

702
675
701
674
698
689
705
717
712
689
682
709
705
685
69S
705
513
698
674
713
702
705
709
705
176
702

Names of Places, etc.

D

Dorchester Harbour, N.B
Dredging and plant
Dredging, British Columbia

II under contract
II Manitoba
II New Brunswick .

II Nova Scotia
II Ontario
II ojierations

II plant, names, etc

P. !•:. Island. .
•

II Quebec
Dresden, Ont., post office

Drumniondville, P.Q., public building.
Dry docks
Dunc-^n Station, B.C., post office

Dundas. Ont., public building
Dundee, P.Q-, custom house
Durham, Ont., post office

N.B
Dyers Bay, Ont
Dykemans Shoals, N.B

Karie's, NB
East .\ngus, P.Q. public building
Kast Chezzetcook, N.S
East End, N.S
East Ferry, N.S
East river, N.S
East Kobson, B. C . .

East Templeton, P.Q .

Ehurne, B.C .

Echaffaud aux Basques, P.Q
Ecuni .Secum, N.S
Edgiwoocl, 1!.C
Kdgewond-Naku5p, telegraphs
Edmonton, Alta., public buildings

It II wharf . . .

,

II II bridge
Edmundston, N. B., immigration building

II II wharf
Edson. Alta, immigration building
Eg.anville, Ont., ))ost office

Elk Lakn, Ont
Elmira. Out., post office

Elmwood, Man., publio building
Elora, Ont. , post office

Emerson, Man., juiblic buildings
Entwistle, Alta., immigrant budding
Esct>umains, P.Q , .

Ksquimalt, B.C. graving dock
Essex, Ont

,
public building. .

Estevan, Sask.
,
post office

Evandale, N. B
Everett, N)B
Expenditure

Fabre. P.Q
Fairville, N. B., post office.

Fairhaven, N.B

Page

176-702
715
444
466
423
348
354
400
346
476
3ilO

382
27-685
16 677

501-6.")3

63-694
27 685

677
685

177-702
263-709
177-702

186-703
16-677

698
121-698
122-698
122-698

713
212-705
322-713
212-705

698
712
716

62-693
712
516
676

183- 703
693

27-685
263-709
28-685

689
28-685
54-689

693
212-705
653-713
28-685
57-691
186-702

703
718

213-705
n-676

177-702
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Farnham, P.Q., public building
Fassett, P.Q
Father Point, P.Q
Felt;ien South, N.S
Fergus, Out ,

public buildinfr

Feriiie, B.C., public buildings
Fir-st South. N..S

Fit/.roy Harbour, Ont
Forest Ont., jmst otBce
Fort Frances, Ont., public buildings .

,

Fort Frances, Ont
Fort William, P.Q

Ont
ti Ont., post office, etc. .

.

Fo.x IsLand, N.S
Franklin Point, P.E.I
¥raser River, B.C

Fraserville, P.Q
,
public buildings . . .

.

„ M wharf
Freddy Channel, Ont. (Georgian Bay).

Fredericton, N.B., public buildings..,

.< M wharf
Freeport, X S.

French Lake, N.B ,'

French River, Ont
N.S...

Fruid's Point, N.S

Gabarus, N.S
Gagetown, N.B
Gait, Ont ....

It public buildings ,

Gambler Inland, B.C
Gananoque, Ont., public buildings...

„ •* wharf
Ganges Harbour, B.C
GasiK^. P.Q
Gaspe Ha.sin, P.Q
Gatineau River, P.Q
Georgetown, P.E.I., public building.

I, Ont., post office

Georgeville, N.S
Georgeville, P.Q
Georgian Bay Canal
Georgian Bay Ship Canal, Royal Commis-

sion
Gimli, Man
Glace Bay, N.S., public building
Glencoe, Ont., public building
Gleneden, B.C
Glen Valley, B.C
Goat Island, Ont
Godench, Ont

.. public building
Gon7.aIe» Hill, B.C., observatory
Goose Bay, B.C. . . ._

Gooseljerry Cove, N.B
Gore Bay, Ont
Gowcr P'oint, B.C
Grab-all, Tobirjue Kiver, N.B
Graham, P.Q

16-077
705

213-705
IXH-KitS

2,S-G85

G04
123-69?
283 709

6.S5

685
709

213-705
264-709
2.S-GS5

123-69S
159-701
322-.'(3S

713
6-677

705
26''-709

11-676
702

123-698
177-702

70J
124-69S
126-698

124-698
703

28-685
324-713
29-685
270 709

713
213
705
213

9-675
159-701

085
124-098
214-705

717

717
307-712

4-(>74

29-685
713

.324-713

270-709
272-709
29-685

63
325-713

702
HHri

325-713
188-703

705

Names of Places, etc.

Graham's Landing, B.C . .

Granby, P.Q., public building
Grand Anse. N. B.
Grand Bend, Ont
Grandes Bergeronnes, P.Q
Grand Entree, P.Q
Grand Etang, N.S
Grand I'alls, N. B., post office

Grand Forks, B.C., public building.
Grandigue. N.B
Granol Lake, N.B
Grand Marsh, P.Q
Grand-Mechins, P.Q
Grand'Mere. P. (J., post office.. ..

Grand Prairie, Sask., public building..
Grand River, P.E.I
Grand River, N.B
Gr.ande Riviere, P.Q
Grand Ruisseau, P.Q
Granville, N.S i ...

(xratuities, paid
GravellMurg, Sa.sk., public buildings..
Gravenhurst, Ont., post office

Graving docks
Great Salmon River, N.B
(ireat Village, N.S
Green River, N.B
(iroenwood, B.C., post office .. . ...

.

Grenville, P.Q
Gretnjv, Man., post office

(Jriniross Canal, NB
Grimsby, Ont., post office

Grindstone, P.Q
Grondines, P.Q
Grosselsle, P.Q . ... .i. .........

.

I, quarantine station.. .

.

f. dredging
M telegraphs

Grouard, -\lta., lands office, etc

•I dredging
Guelpli, Ont., public building

Guysboro, N.S., public building.

Hailcyburv, Ont
Halcyon, B.C
Halifax, N.S., public buildings. ..

M dry dock
Hamilton, Ont

II piiblic liuildings

Hampton, N.B., puiilic building .

Hanover, Ont., po-*t office

HantsjKirt, N.S., wharf
HaJbonrville, N..S
Hardy Bay. B.C
Harrigan Cove. N.S
Harrington. P.Q
Harriston, Ont., public building. . .

.

llartland, N.B., post office

Hatfield's Point, N.B
Havre aux Maisons, P.Q. ..........

Hawkesbury, Ont., piiblic building.

Page

.325-713

17-677
178-702
272-769

705
705

125-698
11-676

694
702

178-702
705

214-705
677
693
701

188-703
215-705

214
125-698

717
57-691

685
501-653
179-702
125-698
188-703

694
215-705

689
179-702
29-685

223-705
705

223-705
215-677

215
568 -6i9

693
.317-712

29 6S5
4-674

273-709
325-712

4-674
098
273

29-6,i5

U
29-685

69^
125-698
.325-713

125-098
216-705
30-0«5
11-676
187-703

705
G85
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H
Hawkesqiiry, Ont., dredging
Head of Ch.'Zzetcuok, N.S. . .

Herring Cove, N.S.
Hespeler, Ont., (lost office

Higli F;dls, VXl
High River South, Alta., post office.

Higgins Shore, P. E. I
Hillsborough, N. B., post office

Hilton. Ont
Hnausa, Man
Hochelaga, P.Q., post office

Holland River, Ont
Honey Harbour, Ont
Hospital Bay, P.Q ..

Howardville, Man
Hudson, P.Q
Hull, P.Q., wharf......

It public l)uilding

Humboldt, Sask., public building...
Huntsville, Ont ;

Iberville, P.Q., public building
Icelandic r ver, Man
lie Perrot, P.Q
lie ;iux Coudres, P.Q ,

He auK praises, P.Q
He aux ]\l(^rpions, P.(J
He Verte. P.Q
Indian Head, Sask., public buildings
Ingersoll, Ont., public buildings
International Commission, Ri\er St. John
Inverniere, B.C., experimental farm
Inverness, N.S

II public building
Investigation under Inquiries Act
Iroquois River, N.B

Jainesville, N.S
Jersey Cove, P.Q
.Teune Lorette (Loretteville), P.Q

, iK)st

office

Joggins Mines, N'S
Joliette, P.Q , public buildings
.Tonquieres, P.Q., post office

Judiqus, N.S
Juniper Island, Ont

K
Kagawong, Ont .'

Kaniinistiquia River, One
Kamloops, B.C., public buildings..

II II wharf
Kaniouraska, P.Q
Kawartha Park, Ont
Kelly's Cove, N.S .. .....

Kelowna, B.C., public building...

Kemp Head. N.S
Kemptville, Ont., jjost office

Kenora, Ont., public building
II II whaif

Kensington, <Jnt

Kentviiie, N.S., jiublic Imildingt.

.

Page

275-514-

70!)

12r,

12U-(;!IS

685
210
093

lfiO-701

12-070

27.V70!!

.TO7-712

17
)-70i)

"^75-709

705
307-712
216-70.5

216-705
677

57-691
70!)

677
307-712
17-706
217-706

706
706

217-706
57-601
30 685

717
694
699

5-674
717

180-703

126--699

706

677
-6!t9

-(i77

(;77

6! 19

-709

70-009
709
695

326-713
218-706

709
125-699
326-713
127-099
30 685
30-685

709
277-709
5-674

Names of Places, etc.

Kerobert, Alta., immigration building.
Kier' Shore, P.E.I
Kildonan, Man
Kincardine, Ont T.

II M public building
Kincolith, B.C
Kingsport, N.S
Kingston, Ont

II II public buildings
Kingsville, Ont

•I !• .yost office

Kitchener, (Berlin) Out., pvblic buildings
Knowlton, P.Q., public building
Knowlton Landing. P.Q
Kootenay Bay, B.C . .

.

Lake, B.C
Kraut Point, N.S

Lachiue, P. (2., public building
Lachute. h h

Locolle, P.Q., immigration office. . . .

Lacombe, Alta., experimental farm .

.

L,adysmith, B.C., public building.. ..

Lakefield, Ont
II I. post office

Lake Timiskaming
Lamberts Pier, P.E.I

_.

Lands leased '

Lanoraie, P. (.^

Langley, B. C
Lansdowne, Ont., post office.

Ijaprairie, P.Q
II ' public building

L'Ardoise, N.S
L'Arduise Beach, N.S
La Salette, P.Q
L'Assomption, P.Q., jjiiblic building
Last Mountain Lake, Sa.sk

Lauzon, P.Q., dry dock

Lavaltrie, P.Q
Leamington, Ont., wharf

II II public building
Leases
Leith, Ont
Lennoxville, P.Q., experimental farm..

Leonard's Cove, N.S
Leonardville, N.B
Le Pas, Man., ixjst office

II wharf
Les Eboulements, P.Q
Lethbridse, .Alta., public buildings. . .

.

Levis, P.Q, harbour. ...

II graving dock

II public buildings. ..

.

Lindsay, Ont., public building. .

L'Islet, P.Q.
Listowel, Ont., public buildings.
Litchfield, N.S
Little .-VnJe, N.S

M Bass River, N.S
II Black River, N.B
I Bonaventure, P.Q

Page

691
160-701

308
277-709
30-685
326 753

127
. 277-502-

C53-709
30-6S5

278 709
685
685
677

218-706
713
127
699

677
677
677
693
695

279-709
31-686

706
161
760

21S-706
320-713

686
218-706

677
127-699

127
219

17-677
712

219-.T01-

706
706

279-709
31-686
09-757

279-709
678

128-699
179-702

689
712

219-706
62-693

220-706
501-653-

706
17-678
31-586

219-706
31-68fi
128-699
128-699
128-699
179-702
220-706
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Little Bras d'Or, X.S
Deti.it, Ont

" Dipper Harbour, N.B
.1 Grassy, Ont
.. Harbour. N.S
,. River, X.S
„ Sands, P.E.I

Liverpjol, X.S., public building
Livingston Cove, X.S. . .

Lloydroinster, Sask., public buildings...
Lockepott, X.S ,

.

Locks and Dams
London, Ont., public buildings
Long Point. X. B
Longueuil, P.<.2., jciblic building

•• 11 wharf
L'Orignal, Ont

. 11 1. |x>st office

Lords Cove, X.B
Lorraine, Ont
Lotbiniere, P.Q
liOuiseville, P.Q., p.ist office

Lower Burlington, X'.S
Lower Caraquet, X'.B
Lower St. Louis, X. H
Lunenburg, X.S., public building

" 11 harbour improvements

mc

Mc.\dams, B.C
JlcClure's Bay, X.B
McDonald's Landing, B.C
lIcKncherns.P.E.I
McKa5''s Poiut (Judique), X.S

" " (Lower WashabucI:), X'.S
McKellar River, Ont
McXairs Cove, X.S
McPherson's Cove, P.E.I

in

MaViau HarlK>ur, X.S ,

Macleod, .\lta., public building.
Madawjv-ka River, Ont ...

Magdalen Islands, P.Q., telegra))hs
• II " breakwaters.

Magnetawan, Ont . .

,

M.-igog,P.Q
M M public building

Mahoney's Beach, X*.S
MalKiic, P.B
M^ilifc'ant Cave, N.S
.Malyeque, P.p. I

Manche a Epee, P.Q
Manitoba, dredging

,

harlxjurs
.- jiulilic buildings

iiridges

Maple Creek, Sask., public buildings
Maples, B.C-..

Page

699
279-709
180-702
289-709
12S-699

ti99

161-701
5-(;74

129-699
58-esi
129 090

502
32-fiSO

187-703
18 ma

220-706
281-710

686
180-702
281-7111

222-701!

18
222-706

69it

lsO-702
180

6-674
130 699

32C-713
181 702
326-713

161
fi99

131
161

132-H9S
161-701

132-699
693
710

.543-625

223
2.'<2-7in

22.1-700

18 07.S

132-699
223-706

699
701
706
442
306
54

516
.58-691

386-713

X'ames of Places, etc.

m
Maquapit Lake, X'. B
M.argaree, X.S. .

.

Margaretsville, X.S
Maria, P.Q
Marieville. P.Q., public building
Maritime Provinces, telegraphs
Markham, Ont., post office ....

Martins Head, X.B
MarysviUe, X.B., public building
Massett, B.C
Matane, P.Q

11 11 post office

Matapedia roatl

Matsqui, B.C
Meaford, Ont
Medicine Hat, Alta., public building,
Meg.intic, P.Q., po>t office

11 wharf
Melfort. Sask., post office

ilelitti. Man., post office

Merrickville, Ont
Meteghan, X'.S ......

Michipicoten Harlwur, Ont
Middle Co\inty, X.S
Middleton, X.S., building
Midland, Ont

11 M post office

Mildmav, Ont. , post office

Mill Creek, X.S
Millidgeville, X.B
Milltown, X\B. public building
Milton, Ont., jxjst office

Milverton, Ont., post office

Miminigash, P.E.I
Minaki, Ont ;

.*

Mink Cove, N.B
Minnedosa, Man., public quilding. . . .

.

Miuudie, X.S
Miscou, X'. B ....

Mission City, B.C., public buildings.

.

Mission River. Ont
Mi.-tii.ssmi, P.Q
Mitchell, Ont., puMic building
Moncton, X.B., public building

P.E.I.. wh.arf

Montague, P.E.I., public building . .

.

Montebello, P.Q
Mont .loli, P'lJ., post office

Montmagny, P.Q., public buildings.
1. II wfiarf 1. . .

.

Montreal River, Ont .

Montreal, P.Q., public buildings
II dry dock

Monuments
Moo^e Bay, P.Q
Moosejaw, Sa.sk., public buildings ...

Moreen, Man. ,
post office

Morrisburg, Ont., post office

Moshers Bay, N..S

Mount Forest, Ont., public building .

Murray Bay, P.Q
II 11 II |)ost office

Murray Harbour, P. E. I

Mushaboon, X.S

Page

181-702
i.'^s-oog

1.S3-699

224-706
678

550-621
681=

703
12-676

326-713
706

18-678
515

327-713
710

62-693
224-678

706
58-t<ni

689
686

133-699
L82-710
133-699

674
283-710
32-6Ji6

32 C8C
133-699
187-703

12
32-686
32-686
162-701
283-710

189
5.5-(kS9

133 699
703
695

264-709
224-706
.32 686
12-676

703
675
701

225-706
678
678
706

283-502-
710
18-678

706
717

234-70.)

,58-691

r.5-689
6.''

6

131-699
,33-686

.325-706

20-679
162-701
134-699
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N

Naas River, B.C
Names of Chief, Officers

Nanaimo, B.C
II M public buildingj

Nlippan, N.S., experimental farm.
Napanee, Ont., ]jublic buildings
Natashquan. P.Q
National Art Gallery -. .

.

Necum Teuch, N.S
Neepawa, Man.

, jx>st office

Negro Poir.t, N. B
Neguuc, N.B
Nelson, B.C., public buildings. . .

.

New Brunswick, dredging
.1 public buildings.
II telegrapfis 556-

II harbours
Newcastle, Ont
Newcastle, N.B., public building
New Carlisle. P.Q
New Glasgow, N.S.

,
public buildii'g. .. .

New Harbour, N.S
New Hazelton, B.C., post office

New Li-skeard, Ont
Newmarket, Ont., post office.,

Newport, P.Q
B.G
P.K.I

New Westminster, B.C
M public buildings. ..

.

Niagara Falls, Ont., public buildmgs
Nicolet, F.q

ti dredging
II public building

Nicomen, B.C
Nominingue, P.Q., immigration building.

.

II 11 wharf
North Arm, B.C
North Battleford, Sask., public building. .

.

North Bay, Ont
It public building

North Belleville, N.S
North Cameron, P. E. I

North Cardigan, P.K.I
North Lake, "

North Portal, Sask , immigration building.
North River, P.E.I. , bridge
North Shore. St. Lawrence, telegraphs .

.

North Sydney, N.S
II I* public buildings

North Tnniskaming, P.Q., bridge
North Vancouver, B.C., public buildings.

.

drill hall

Northwest Cove. N.S
North west Territories, telegraphs 572-
Norway Bay, P.Q
Norwich, Ont., post office

Nyanza, N.S

Oak Lake, Man., post office.

Oak Point, N.B
Oakville, Ont "

Officers of the Department.

.

Oka, P.Q

Page

327-71."?

777
.327-71.3

03-6H5
(174

33-r.«6

7(16

709
135-699
5.5-089

703
182-703

(95
301)

10
024-024

167
284-710
12 070

225-706
6-875

135-699
095

284-710
33-686
225-706
3:^8-713

162
.328-713

095
33-680
706-225

226
679

329-713
079

226-700
713

59-091
284-710
33-686
135-699

162
701
701
091

162 701
500-027
135-099
6-975

514
095
095
699

631-036
220-700
33-686
136-699

689
182-703
285-710

7S7

226

Names of Places, etc.

O

Okanagan River, B.C
Ontario, bridges

M dredging
IT harlxjurs

II public buildings
II telegraphs

Or.angeville, Ont., public building
Orillia, Ont., public building
Oromocto, N.B

Sl.oals, N.B
Osbornes, N.S
Oshawa, Ont., post office

Ossekeag. N. B., post office. . .

0..itree Lake, N.S
Ottawa, Ont., art gallery

If buildings and grounds. .

I. exijerimeutal farm . .

.

II government house
II parliament building fire

II public buildings
II pust office

M River
M II bridges
I. roads and bridges
II slides and booms
II • streets, repairs

Owen Sound, Ont
II public building

Palmerston, Ont., post office

Panmure Island, P.K.I
Paijineauville, P.Q
P.^ri.<, Ont., public building
Parkhill, Ont., public budding
Parrsboro, N.S., public building
Parry Sound, Ont
Partridge Island, N.B
Passe Pierrn, P.Q
Peace River Crossing, Alta., lands office

Peggys Cove, N.S
Pelee Island, Ont., docks

M II telegraphs
Pembroke, Ont., public buildings
Fenetanguishene, Ont
PeutictoD, B.C

M post office

Perce, P.Q
Peribonka, P.Q., inmiigratlon building .

Perkins Landing, P.Q
Pekin Landmg, P.Q . ...

Perth, Ont., p ist office

Peterborough, Ont., docks
II II p. .b'.ic buildings. . . .

Petewawa, Ont
Petite Riviere, N.S
Petit Riviere, Kast, P.Q
Petit Rocher, N.B
Petii Tourelle, P.Q
Petrolea, Ont., public building
Piche Point, P.Q
Picnic Island, Ont
Picton, Ont., public building

Page

320-713
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Pictou, N.S .••..••. '

M public buildings
Pictou Landing, N.L
Pierreville, P.t^., public building
Pierrnville, P.Q.. wharf
Pigeon Lake, Alta
Pincher Creek, Alta., forestry office

Pine Creek, Man
Pinette, P.E.I
Piopolis, P.tJ
Pitt Lake, H.C
PIa,=ter Mines, N.S
Pleasant Point, Ont
Ples.sisville, P.C^., post ofBce
Pointe ^ Brousseau, P.C2

Points a Cote. P.Q
Pointe a Elie, P.Q
Pointe .\ Pizeau, P.Q
Pointe a Trudel, P.Q
Pointe aux Esquimaux, P.Q ... . .

.

Pointe aux Tremble.s, P.Q
Pointe Cavaguole, P.Q ;

Pointe Claire,P.Q
Point Edward, Ont
Point Jaune, P.Q
Pointe Piche, P.Q
]'oint Prim. P.E.I
Pointe St. Pierre. P.Q
Pointe Valois, P.Q
Pond Cieek bridge
Portage dii Foit, bridge ;•••.
Portage la Prairie, Man., public building.

Portage River, N.B . .

.

Port Alberni, B.C
I. .. post office

Port Arthur, Ont
•• II public buildings

Port aux Saumons, P.Q
Port Bruce, Ont
Port Burwell, Ont
Port CleiEians, B.C
Port Colborne, Ont, public building
Port Credit, Ont
Port Outferin, N.S

West, N.S
Port Elgin, Ont
Port Es-iington, B.C.
Porters Lake. N.S
Port Felix, N.S
Poi t George, N..S
Port Ha,stings, N.S
I'ort Hawkesbury, N.S
Port Hood, N.S
Port Hope, Out., harbour

M II public building
Portland, Ont
Port Maitiand, Ont
Port Mnlgrave, N.S
Port Perry, Ont

II .1 post office

Port Rowi-n, Ont
Port Selkirk, P.E.I
Port .Stanley. Ont
Pouixire, P.Q
Powell River, B.C., post office

Pownal, P.E.I...

.

Page

138-efl9

6-675
137

20-07!)

2-28-700

712
('>94

308-712
163-701
228-700
330-713

09!)

82-710
20-K79
229 70*1

228
223-716
22:1-700

7ci;

22!)-700

230-700
230-700
230 700
288-710

700
700
701

230-700
700
513
513

55-080
184-703
330-713
fi3-0ii5

288-710
48-0S7
231-700
290-710
290 710
331 713
48-087

710
138 0!l!l

138
291-710

713
139 6! »9

139-0!l!l

t;!l9

13:t-01W

140-700
140-700
291-710
4X-087
291-710
2i)2-710

700
292-710

0.S7

2!!.' 710
103 701

292-710
231
0!'.5

331 714
103-701

Names of Places, etc.

Prescott, Ont., public buildings
Pres^.on, Out., ix)st office

Prince Albert, Sask., public buildings. .

It II protection works .

.

Prince Edward Island, dredging
11 11 harbours
II II public buildings..

Prince Rupert, B.C
II II public buildings

Prniting and stationery
Proctor Narrows, B.C
Properties purchased and sold .

.

Providence Bay, Ont
Public buildings. Alberta

II British Columbia . . .

.

II Manitoba
11 New Brunswick
11 Nova Scotia
II Prince Edward Island
II Ontario
II (Quebec
II Saskatchewan
.1 Leased

Pugwash, N.S
Pumpkin Point, Ont..

Quaco, N.B
Quatsino. B.C
Quebec, dredging

II liri<lges

II harbours
II public buildings

11 telegraphs

Quebec city, harbour
II ]>ublic buildings.

Queen Charlotte City, B.C. .

.

t^uinze dam
Quisibus River. N\ B
(-iuoddy. N.S
Quyou, P.Q

Rang St. Ignace, P.Q
Rainy Cove, N.S
Rainy River, Ont
Reeapitulation
K>-d Deer, Alt.a., public building.

Red Head, P.(i
RedPo.nt, P.K.I
Red Kaiiids, N.B
Red River, Man
Red Store, N.B
Refuge l'.ay, B.C
Regina, Sask., jniblic building....

Renata Bay, B.C
Renfortli, N.B
Renfrew, Ont., public building .

.

Rents
Repentigny, P.Q. .

Restigouclie River, N.B
R^ston, Man., post office

Revelstoke, B.C
II II |x>3t office

Revenue

Page

687
48-087
59-691

316-712
360
155

8
714
695
697

331-714
749

293-710
61
67
54
10
3
8

23
15
57
69

140- 700
710

184-703
332-714

332
.MO
201
15

560-627
706

20-079
332
518

189 703
UO 700
231 700

140

164
189-

.308

184

332
69

187

209
00

710
718
694
700
701
703
712
7(»3

714
091

713
703
087
0.-)3

706
185
089
320
693
11
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Rexton, N.B . .

Richards Landing, Ont
Kichibucto, N.B

M 1. jiublic building
Cape. 'i.B........

Richmond ,B.*-i'., public buildings. .

.

Ridgetown, Ont., i^oat ortict; -

Rigaud, P.Q., public building
Rigaua, P.Q., wharf
Riniou.ski, P.Q . -

.1 public building
Riverside. B.C
Riviere aux Renards, P.Q
Riviere Batiscan, P. Q
Riviere Bhanche, P.Q
Rivie.e Bois Blanc, P.Q .. .

Riviere Chateauguay, P.Q
Riviere du Lievre, P.Q.,

li II ti lock
Riviere du Loup, P.Q. (Fraserville).

i> M !. (Loui.seville).

Riviere Gatineau, P.Q .

.

Riviere Girard. P.Q
Riviere Jesu, P.Q
River .John, N.S
Riviere la Pipe, P.Q
Hivlere Nicolet, P.Q
Riviere Quelle, P.Q
Riviere Petite Bergeronne, P.Q . . ,

Riviere Richelieu, I'.Q
Riviere Saguenay, P.Q., slides

Riviere St. Charles, P.Q
River Ste Croix, N.B
River St. .John and tributaries

Riviere St. Louis, P.Q
N.B

Riviere St. Maurice, P.Q., dredging.
t. <i M slides

River Thames, Ont
Riviire Tikouabe, P)Oi
Riviere Verte, P.Q
Roads and bridges
Rol)bins Landing, Ont
Roberval, P.Q . ,....,

II II puV)!ic buildings
Robinson's Island, P.E.I
Roblin, Man., forestry office

Roche's Pol lit. (_)nt

Rick Bay, B.C
Rock Island, B.C.. .

Rock Island, I'.Q., post office

Rockland, N.S
Rocky Mountain Park, Alta
Rocky Point, J'. K.I
tiondeau. Out
Ross Ferry, N.S
Rossland, B.C., public building .. .

Rosthern. Sask., expt'l. farm
Round Hill, N.S
Royston, B.C
Ruby Lake, Sask., forest office

Rustico, P.E.I

St.

St. Adelaide de Pabos, P.Q
St. Agathe des Monts, P.Q., post office.

Page

lS5-70.'i

294-710
185-70.S

12 G7H
18»"-702

GSO
(i87

22 (580

2.T2-70(;

2;G-70o
{i80

332-713
232^70(i

70(i

233-700
233-7y()

71 If)

233-700
502

234-700
233-700

700
234-700
'34-700

141-700
232-700

700
234-700

235
700

23.5

702
180-703
237-"00

703
700

294- 710
700

2.'58-700

509-713
710

238 700
22-080
104-701

C8U
205-710

714
713
080

141-700
094

104-701
295-710
141-700

095
091

142-700
714
091

105-701

239-700
22-080

Names of Places, etc.

St. Alphonse, P.Q ..

de Bagotville, P.Q
St. Andre, P.Q
.St. Andrt de Kaniouraska, P.Q
St. Andrew's N.B

P.Q
St. Andrews rapids, Man
Ste. Anne de Beaupre, P.Q
St. Anne de Bellevue, P.Q., post office . .

.

II r II wharf
St. Anne de Chicoutimi, P.Q

II II Pocatiere, P. Q., expt'l farm.

.

Ste. Anne des Monts, P.Q
Ste. .-^nne du Saguenay, P.Q
St. Antoine de Richelieu, P.Q
St. B.irthelenii, P.Q ....

.St. Boniface, Man., public building
St. Catharine's, Ont , fx)st office

St. Charks, P.Q
St Charles de Richelieu, P.Q
St. Charles rl ver. N. B
Ste. Clothilde, P.Q
Ste. Croix, P.Q

.1 River, N.B
St. Damien, P.Q
St. Denis, P.Q
.St. Elol, P.Q
St. Kniilie, P.(i
St. Eustaclie, P.Q., post office

Ste. Famine, P.Q
Jt. Feliclen, P.Q
St. Filicite, P.Q
St. Felix de Valois. P.Q., post office

;"^t. Francis river. N.B
St. Francois d'l L:«-, P.(}

St. Kran(^ois, Isle de Orleaun, P.(^

St. Francois, North, P.Q
St. Fulge'nce, P.Q
St. Galiriel de Brandon, P.Q., post office

St. Gedeou. P.Q
Ste. Genevieve, P.Q
St. George de M.albaie, P.Q
St. George de Beauce, P.Q
St. George, N.B., public building
St. :;oJefioye, P.Q
St. Gregoire de Montmorency, P.Q
St. Henri, P.Q ,

post office

St. Hyacinthe, P.Q., jiublic building
St. Ignace de Lfiyola, P.Q
St. Irenee, P.Q
St. .lean des Chaillons, P.Q
St. Je.in <le Matha, P.Q., ix)st office. . .

St. Jean d'Orle.ans. P.Q
Ste. .Jean de llle Perrot, P.Q
St. Jean Port Joli, P.Q
St. Jerdme, P.C^

II II [niblic building
St. .John, N.B, harbour

II N.B., river

II N.B., public buildings
St. John Creek, Ont

West, N.B ......

II II public Inilldings. ...

St .Johns, N.B., public building
PQ

St. Joseph de Sore], P Q
St. Joseph's, N.S

Page

700
239
239
700

190-7O3
239-700
310-712
239-600

080
240-700

241
680

241-706
706

241-706
241-706
55-690
49-687

241

706
190-703

700
706
191

242-706
242-706
242-706
242-706

680
706
707

243-707
680

189-703
2(3
708
708

24.3-708

22-680
243-708
243-708

708
680-780

076
243-708
243-708

22
22-080
244-708
244-708
245-708

680
245-708

216
246-708
247-708

680
192 703

703
12-676

296-710
704
14

6S0
708

247-708
142-700
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Names of Places, etc.

St.

St.

St.

St.

St.

St.

St.

St.

St.

St.

St.

St.

St.

St.

St.

Ste
St.

St.

Ste,

St.

St.

St.

St

Lambert. P .Q
. , post office

Laurent, P.Q
Louib River, P.Q
Majorique, P.Q
Marc, P.Q ..

MaryV, N . .S

AJary's, Ont., public building...
Mary's Bay, P.E.I

n river, N.S
Maurice Kiver, P.Q

., M slides

Michel, de Bellechasse, P.Q
M des Saints, P.Q

Nicholas, P.Q
Omer, P.Q.
Ours, P.Q

. ,
post office

Paul, P.Q. (Isle aux Noix)
Roch des Aulnaies, P.Q
. Rose, P.Q., post office

Simeon, P.Q
Stephen, N. B., public building .

. Therese, P.Q., pub ic building.
Thomas, Ont., public building..
Ulric, P.Q
Valier, P.Q

Saanich Mountain, B.C., Dominion Obser
vatory

Saanichton, B.C., e.vperimental farm
I, II wharf. ...

Saguenay river, slides

Salaries of clerks of works . .

Salmon Arm, B.C
Sand Point, N.B
.San*^) Point, Ont . . . - . .

Sandwich, Ont., public building

Sandy Cove, N.S
Samia, Ont

II pviblic building. .. ....

Saskatoon, Sask., public building
Saskatchewan river

Saugeen river, Ont
Sault au Mouton, P.Q
.Shu It Montmorency, P.Q
Sault Ste. -Marie, Ont., public building

.

.Scott, Sask., e.xperimental farm.
Seaforth, N.S
Seaforth, Ont., public building .

,

Seal Cove, X. P.

Seaside Park, B C
Selkirk, Man., public building ..

Selma, N.S ...

.Senncville, P.Q
Severn River, Ont.. (at Washago Dam)..

.

Seymour Arm, B.C
Shad Bay. N.S
Shag Harbour, N.S
Shanty Bay, Ont
Shawinigan, P.Q., post office

G80
708

237-7011

247-70S
247-708

700
•19-li87

105-701
1-12

248
508-651
249 708
249-708

708
249-708

fiSU

708
250-708

()80

250 708
14-076

080
49-087

708
200-708

(>3

095
333-714
509-6.53

697
095

.333-714

2S6-710
687
700

U2-':96
710

49-687
60-691

315-712
296

2.50-70S

708
48-6,S9

299-710
692

142-700
49-687
196-704
333-714

6' 10

310 6.53

712
143-700

708
710

33.3-714

143-700
14.3-700

302-710
680

Names of Places, etc.

S

ShawvUle, P.Q., post office

Shediac, N.B
Shediac Island, N.B
Shelburne, N.S.........

II pul)lic building. ....

.

Shelhorne, Ont., public building
Shigawake, P.Q
Shippigan Gully. N.B
Shoal Lake, Man,, post office .

Short Beach, N.S ...

Shubenac.adie, N.S., public building.
Shushartie, B.C
.Shusw.-vp, B.C ,

Sicamous, B. C

Sidney, B.C., experiniental farm.
)>ublie building . .

Siegas River, N.B
Sight Point, N.S
Silver Centre, Ont . -

Simcoe, Ont., public building....
Skeena River, B.C
Skidegate, B.C
Slides and booms

Smiths Falls, Ont., public building.

.

Smiths Cove, N.S
Snake Island, Man
.Somas River, B.C
Sorel, P.Q., public buildings

.1 wharf
Souris, P.E. I., harbour

.1 1. public building
Souris. Man., post office

South Bar, N.S
South Gut, N S . . . .

.

South Ingonish, N.S
South Lake, N.S
.Southampton, Ont
S uth .Miramichi, N.B
Spiller River, B.C
.Springhill, N.S., jiublic building. . .

.

.Spruce Island, M.an
Spry Bay, N..S

Squaniish, B.C., wharf
Squateck, P.Q .

Steelttm, Ont., post office

Steveston. B.C
Stewart, B.(J
Stikine River, B.C
Stoneha'.en, N.B
Stonehurst, N.S
Stonewall, Man., post office

Stratford, ( Int., public building
Stratford Centre, P.Q
Strathroy, Ont
Strathroy, Ont., post office.

Stuart River, B.C
Sturgeon Bay, Man
Sturgeon Falls, Ont

II jHist office

M River, Out.,
It Alta

Sudbury, Ont.. post office

Summerland, B.C
M experimental farm

2.!-680

196-704
197

680-700
675

49- 687
251-708
197-704

690
143-700

• 75
.334-714

334-714
334-713-

714
695

334-714
189-703
143-700
.302-710

49-6 .S7

334-714
334-714
503 649-

715
49-687
144-700
311-712
334 714

680
708

165-701
9-675

55-690
14rj-70O

145-700
145-700
146-700

710
197

335-714
7-675

311-712
700

335 7i4
2.51-708

50-687
336-713

714
7H

198 7114

146-700
56-690

6-7
251-708

.50

687
713
311

oOS-711
687
711

.368-712

687
337-714

695



lyoEX xvn

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

Names of Places, etc.

Summersidfi, P.E.I., public buildings . . .

.

Suiuuiervillp, X. B . ...

M and Bavswati-r, X.)'. . .

.

N.S '

Summerside, P.E.I
Surretfes Island, N.S
Surveys and inspections
Su.s.sex, X. i>., public building,
Sutherland, Sask., fore.st iiur?ery st,'\tion .

Swan Kiver, Man., immigration bniltling.

Swims Point, X.S
Swift Current, Sask.^ public building.

.

Sydehaui. Ont
Sydney, X.S., harbour

II public buildings
Sydney Mines, X.S., public building. . .

.

Syringa Creek, B.C . . .

Talmsintac, X^.B .

Tachi river, B.C
Tamlx>line Slough, B.C
Tancook Island, X'.S
Tatamagouche
Telephone.s
Telegraph lines, generally

II reports
II revenue
II staff .

.

Terrebonne, P.Q., public building
The Forks, Man
The Haulover, X.S
The Range, X.B..
Thessalon, Ont
Thetford Mines, P.Q., public building .

TheSquam, X.S
The Thrum, X.S..

,

The Wharves, X.S
Thomas Creek, X'.B
Thompson River, B.C
Thoriibury, Ont
Three Fathom Harbour, X'.S

Thr^e Rivers, P.Q., public buildings. . .

.

II II harbour. . -.

P-QTicouche River,
Tidnish, N.S.
Tignish. P. K.I., public building.

.

Tignish, P.E.I
Tilbuiy, Ont., post office

Tilsonburg, Ont., post office

Tobermory, Ont
Tobique Narrows, N.B
Toronto, Ont., harbour

II public buildings ..

Tourville, P.Q
Total exiienditure of department.
Tracadie.N.B

II N.B., lazaretto. .:

Transcona, Man
Tiaverse a Ricard, P.Q
Trent and Newcastle slides..

Trent Bridge, Ont
Trenton, Ont ...

II I. jjublic building
M N.S

(i70

60
G'M
700

60-()y2

30»-711
147-700

7-67.T

7-075
713

701
713

337 71.S

70IJ

147-700
540

525-716
525
539
527
G80

312-712
148-700

199
:«)3-711

GSO
148-700
149-700
149-700
199-704
a37-335
304-711
149-709
23-(;>0

2.52-708

251
700

9-B75
100-701
51-687
51-H87

711
189 703
304-711
51-088

7(:8

718
199-704
15-677

690
70.'<

509-6.52

304-711
305-711
51-689

70O

Trois Lacs, P.C^

Trois Pistoles, P.Q.
,
post office

Trois Rivieres, P.Q
Trout Cove, N.S
Trout River, N.B
Truro, N..S., pulilic buildings
Turners l*itak\vater, N.B
Tu-sket, N.S
Two Beacon Bar, B.C
Tijri'iii S.S. cable ship

CJ

Union Bay, B.C
II II I. post office

Unity, Sask., inmiigration building.

Upper Caraquet, N.B
, II Jemsez, N. B

.1 Maugerville, N.B

.1 Ottawa storage dams
II Port, N.S
II II Latour. N.S
.1 Prospect, N. S
II Salmon River, N.B
,1 St John River, X.S

Uxbridge, Ont , post office

Vails Point, Ont
Valdez Island, B.C
Valleyfield, P.Q., public building

Vancouver, B.C., public buildings
II .1 harbour

Varennes, P.Q
Vaudreuil, P.Q
Vercheres, P.Q
Verdun, P.Q

P.(^, post offi"e

Vermilion, Alta, immigration building
Vernon, B.C., public building
Vernon River, P.E.I. •

Victoria, B.C., public buildings. .

Harbour, B.C. .... . ... .

Victoriaville, P.Q., public building.. .

.

\^iking. Alta,, immigration building .

.

Ville M.-vrie, P.Q
Virden, Man., post office

Voglers Cove, X.S

•w

Wadena, S'tek., buildings.
Waiiiwright, Sask., inunigration building
Walkerton, Ont., public building
Walkerville, Ont., iiublic building
W allace, N.S
W^allaceinirg, Ont., post office

Washabuek Centie, N.S
W'aterloo, Ont., public building
Waterville, P. Q., post office ."

W^aterways Commission '

Wedgeport, X'.S
Weir, ^.B

252-708
681
252

1.50-700

189-703
7-675

190-703
700

338-714
645

338-714
64-695

692
704
200
188
518
150

150-700
1.50-700

20O-7U4
188

53-689

711
339-714

686
700

01-695
339-714

708
708
708
708
681
694
096

166-701
66-69B
341-714
23-681

694
255-708
50 690
151-700

692
694

.53-689

53-089
700
689

152-700
689

700
703

19—

B



DEPARTMEXT OF PUnUC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. I9l7

Names of Places, etc.

w
Welchixml. X.B
Wcldford, N.B
Welland, Ont., public building
Wellington, Ont
Wendover, Ont
West Aiichat, N.S
West Berlin, X.S
West Hraneh, N.B .

.

West Chezzetcook, N.S
We-tham, B.C
West Head, N.S
West Point. P.E.I
Wt St Pubni«>. X.S
West River, I'.K.I

.. St. .Tohn, X.B ...

Westville, N.S., ]iublic buildinig

Wetaskawin, .\lta., puWic Imilding.

Weyburn, Sask., pijst office.

Whitby, Ont, haibour
t. public building

White Rock, B.C
Whites Bluff, X.B
Whonnock, B.C
Whycocomagh, X.S
Wilcox Landing. B.C
Wilkie, Sask., public building
Williams Heai, B.<^., quarantine station 6i

Wilson's Beach, N. B
Windsor, Ont., public buildings

II ti dock
•I N.S., pub'ic building

Page

704
200-704
.^3-fiSi)

3(1.5- 7U
SO-j-711

704
701
201

344-713
701

167-702
152-701

702
186

7-675
604

Gl-1.92

675
711

."):!-68l)

344-714
703

345-713
153-706
34»-714

602
HJW 714
201-104
53-4>89

306-711
7-675

Names of Places, etc.

Windsor, X.S., harbour
Wine Harbour, N.S
Wingham, Ont., public building
Winnipeg, Man., public buildings

" II harbour
Winnipeg Beach, Man

II North, II armoury building.

.

Winnipegosis, Man
Wolfville, X.S., public building

It wharf . .

.

Woodstock, X.B., public bull. ling

Out., I. ., ...

Woodwards Cove, X'.B
Woolhampter, N.B
Wreck, N.S

I. Oove, N.S..

Yamachiche, P.Q
Yamaska River, P.Q., lock and dam
Yarmouth, N.S

II public building
Bar, N.S

Yorkton, Sask., public buildings .

.

York bridge, Ont
Yukon, public buildings
Yukon river, B.C

II telegraphs

Pago

153-701
701

53-689
56-690
312-712

313
57

3T3-712
8-675

701
677

54-689
^01-704
1906703

701
153

708
r)03-7ftS

154-7til

8-675
154

61-692
514
697
714

604-641
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REPORT

DEPUTY MINISTER OF PUBLIC WORKS

FISCAL, YKAIl ENDED MARCH 31, 19 JO.

Departwext of Public Works, Canada,

Ottawa, October 31, 1916.

Honourable Robert EogerSj

Minister of Public Works,

Ottawa, Out.

Sir,—I have the honour to submit the report of the operations of the various

branches of the Department of Public Works, for the fiscal year ended March 31,

1916.

EXPENDITURE.

The departmental outlay during the year 1915-16 for construction, maintenance

and operation, amounted to the sum of $19,539,298.04, which may be detailed as

follows :

—

Harbour and river works $ 7.401,895 89
Dredging plant, etc 3,875.713 31
Slides and booms 115. 41S 37
Roads and bridges 44.742 15
Public buildings 6.857,205 40
Telegi-ams 742,692 04
Miscellaneous .' 501,630 8S

$19,539,298 04

As intimated in last year's report, tlierc has been a most substantial reduction in

the expenditure. This has been accomplished by strict adherence to the policy laid

down shortly after the outbreak of the war, namel,y, to limit departmental operations

to the carrying out of works already under contract and in process of construction.

It will be noted after comi)iirisou is made of the above figures, with those for the

fiscal year 1914-15, that there has been a consistent reduction in every branch of the

department. The total e.xpt'nditure last year was $29,28.j,.j10..S2. A sum of nearly

ten milliou dollars was,' therefore, made available for other pressing present require-

ments.

xxi
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REVENUE.

Tlio revenue for the year amounted to the sum of $508,906.32, and is made up as

follows :—

-

Slides and booms $108,227 41
Graving docks 64.216 24
Rents 90,129 39
Telegraphs 181,227 04
Casual revenue 65,106 24

$508,906 32

These figures show an increase of $22,470.38 over last year's income. While there

lias been a falling off in revenue from rents and telegrajihs, the decrease under these

two headings has been more than compensated by the gain in slides and booms and

in graving docks. The increase in slides and booin dues was principally from the

St. Maurice district, due to the fact that a considerable number of logs, left behind

the previous year for want of water, were brought down and these, in addition to

greatly increased cuts required to supply the new paper and pulp mills at Three Eivers,

actually increased the number of logs from 5,745,291, in 1914-15, to 9,506,300.

The graving docks at both Esqumialt, B.C., and Levis, Que., show a considerably

increased business; the former having docked thirty-one vessels, as compared witli

twenty-six vessels in the previous year. His Majesty's and Canadiaii Government

vessels occupied this dock one hundred and fifty-seven days, as against sixty-one days

in 1914-15. This was to be expected under existing war conditions.

HARBOUR AND RIVKR WORKS.

The aggregate expenditure in this branch of the department amounted to the

sum of $7,501,895.89, a decrease of over three million dollars from last year's

outlay. Work was continued steadily on the larger undertakings which were under

contract in the principal Canadian harbours; and a detailed account of the progress

made in each case will be found in the report of the Chief Engineer.

The following is a list of the works which have been completed during the year:—

•

Nova Scotia.—Wharves at Cape Negi-o, North P.ellevillc and Sluid Bay. and

breakwaters at Smitlis Cove and Voglers Cove.

Prince Edward Island.—A wharf at Rocky Point and a nrw wharf at liruihiicll.

New Brunswiclc.—Wharves at Earles, Long Point. ^rillcdgoviUc. Kcnforth, West

Branch and Summerville, and wliarves at 1-airliaven and lud Stnrc were transferred

to our control by the Provincial Government.

Quehec.—Wharves at Bersiniis and Nominiiiue and a lii'eiikwater at .Malbaie.

Ontario.—Wharves at Minak', Portlain), Trent Bridge and W'ellingtoji, and revet-

ment walls at Burlington and Hamilton.

Saskatchewan.—A wharf at Prince Albert.

British Columbia.—Wharves at Cla.yoquot, Kburne,^ .Mel)iinalcls, Port Alberni,

pier and wharf, N'ancouver, and a wharf at White Rock, also jiew wliarves to ri'placc

old at (iuoCTi T'liarlotte Cit.y, Refuge 15ay, Skidogatc and Spiller Kiver; a float was

constructed at Seaside Park, and the breakwater was completed at Victoria.
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DREDGING.

The expenditure under this heading amounted to $3,875,713.31, a decrease of

nearly one and one-^juartcr million dollars from that of the preceding year. Following

out the policy laid down during the war, only works under contract and most urgent

harbour improvements have been proceeded with, which has resulted in the outlay

on account of contract dredging being decreased by over one million dollars; the

ron'ainder of the saving being due to the fact that not all of the departmental plant

was ] ut in commission.

Dr?dging operations were carried on at the following places where an expendi-

ture of $10,000. or over, was made:

—

Nova Scotia.—-Victov, Lockeport, Lunenburg, ]\[abou, Smiths Cove, Trenton and

Yarmouth.

Prince Edward Island.—Charlottetown, Grand River and Eocky Point.

New Brunswick.—Campbellton, Bathurst, Buctouche, !N[aquapit Lake, Oak Point

and St. Jol.n 1 arbour.

Quebec.—Grande Entree, Longueuil, Port au Saumon, River Batiscan, River du

Litvre, River St. Louis, Ste. Anne de Bellevue and Verdun.

Ontario.—Belleville, Cache Bay, Fort William, Goat Island, Hamilton, Hawkes-

buiy, Michipicoten (Quebec harbour). Picnic Island, Port Arthur, Port Stanley,

Sault Ste. Marie and Toronto.

Ma'':itnha.—Lake Winnipeg and Red River.

SashaicJi.ewan.—Big Stone River at Cumberland Lake.

British Columlia.—Courtenay River, Eburne, Eraser River, Xanaimo, Xew West-

minster, Nicomen, Proctor Narrows, Skeena River, Vancouver (False Creek), Vic-

toria, and First Narrows at Vancouver,

Reference was made in last year's report to the satisfactory performance of

dredge No. 123. This dredge was continued in the construction of the new channel

approach below the lock at Ste. Anne de Bellevue. The material is exceedingly hard

and difficult to remove, consisting of rock, in situ, clay, boulders and hard pan. During

the season, 19,360 cubic yards of clay, boulders and hardpan, were removed and 4,960

cubic yards of rock. The total cost amounted to $17,850.23, or a unit price per cubic

yard of seventy-three (73c.) cents, place measurement. All this material was removed

without drilling or blasting, which shows a considerable saving over the ordinary

method which would have cost from $3.50 to $4 per cubic yard for rock.

Dredging improvements at the First Narrows, Vancouver Harbour, B.C., have

been continued during the past season by departmental dredge No. 306 {Mastodon),

and the conditions at that place are very much improved. I'be channel was

nriginall.v 400 feet in width between 30 feet contour depth lines and it will probably

1 li completed this year to a width of 1,200 feet and to a depth of 35 feet.

The deep water area in St. Tohn Harbour, N.B., known as the Beacon Bar area

has been completed during the past season to a grade depth of •'52 feet below extreme

low water spring tides. This work was commenced- in 1909 and tlie final estimate

shows the removal of 8,043,513 cubic yards, at a cost of $3,112,130. This work affords

the necessary depth for terminal improvements in West St. John.
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The channel of the St. Mary's river, opposite Sault Ste. Marie, Out., has been

considerably improved by the removal of some 127,000 cubic yards, place measure-

ment, of rock, in situ. This work, which was contlnuGd during the years 1912, 1913,

1914 and 1915, has now been completed.

Continued success is being obtained from the use of the Lobnitz rockbreaker in

the ilaritime Provinces. This roclvbreaker has been employed at Buctouche, N.B.,

in breaking up sandstone rock ; at Canso, N.S., in breaking up granite of a very

hard nature; and at Lunenburg, JST.S., in breaking up rock of a shale formation. The

cost of this work is very much less than if the work were done by contract.

It has been tliought advisable to put out of commission several dredges that hnvo

gone beyond repair and were of an obselete type and, accordingly, dredges Xos. 105,

IDS and 113 were dismantled. This plant operated in the provinces of Ontario and

Quebec.

Dredge No. SQ6, operating in Last Mountain Lake, Sask., was also dismantled

and the machinery installed in dredge No. 210, operating on Lake Winnipegosis.

PUBLIC BUILDINGS.

There was expended, under the direction of the Chief Architect, the sum of

$6,857,205.40, which was over four and one4ialf million dolUirs less than last year.

Of this amount, the sum of $3,778,665.67 was for repairs and maintenance of pulilic

buildings throughout the Dominion.

The following buildings were completed din-ing tlie fiscal year :

—

Nova Scotia.—Dartmouth public building.

New Brunswicl:—Milltown public building and St. John new post office.

Quebec.—Coaticook, East Angus, Jonquicres, Matane, Murray Bay, Ste. Agathe

des Monts, public buildings; Montreal, new examining warehouse.

Ontario.—Aurora, Brantford (new), Burford, Elmira, IFanover, Milton, Mil'

ton, Newmarket, Norwich, Preston, Sudbury, and Walkerville, jjublic bnildir

Barrie, Gait, Listowel, Napanee and Pembroke, drill halls; Toronto postal stf.i

" G," and Fort William and Port Arthur examining warehouses.

Manitoha.—^Winnipeg North, armoury.

Alberta.—'Bassano public building, Calgary examining warehouse, and Edmonton

drill hall.

British Columbia.—Vancouver postal station " C,"' and Vancouver detention

building.

PARLIAMENT BUILDINGS FITiE.

On the night of February 3, 1916, the Parliament Buildings of Canada were

destroyed by fire. The conflagration started about 8.55 p.m., in what was known as

the reading room, the contents of which were of a highly inflannnablc nature, consist-

ing of files of newspapers from all parts of the Dominion. Tiicse were placed on six

double reading desks with shelves underneath. A wooden screen al.s<i ran around the

room upon wh\ch newspaper files were liung. This screen, as well as the fittings referred

to, were of white pine, oiled and varnished, an ideal fuel for the flames. The fire

originated in a file of papers on the shelf of one of the reading desks, near the TTouse

of Commons side, and with incredible rapidity the flames spread to the corridors of
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the House of Coinmous, and the Chamber itself began to till with smoke. The House

was sitting at the time and the warning was so short that many of the members

succeeded in barely escaping with their lives.

The May-Oatway automatic fire alarm system, which was installed throughout

the buildings, promptly sounded the alarm, ^d within two minutes one of the city

motor engines was on the Hill. Many streams of water were soon playing upon the

fire which, by that time, had broken through the roof of the reading room. Despite

e\ery effort of the firemen, the flames spread with tremendous rapidity and before

long the central portion of the buildings was a veritable furnace, while dense clouds

of smoke rolled along the corridors and permeated the various offices and members'

rooms.

Quite a number were rescued by means of ladders from various parts of the

buildings, but unfortunately death claimed some victims. Mr. B. B. Law, M.P., for

Yarmouth, N.'S., was one of those trapped in the buildings, and his remains were

never found. Two ladies, Madame Bray and Madame Morin, guests of the Speaker

of the House of Commons and Madame Sevigny, although taken from the buildings

one-half hour after the fire started, expired almost immediately through suffocation

and shock. Mr. J. B. R. Laplante, Assistant Clerk of the House of Commons, was

evidently overcome in his office, as his remains were found in a badly burned con-

dition the following day. Three men were killed by the collapse of one of the venti-

lating towers, while nobly engaged in endeavouring to stay the progress of the flames.

They were Dominion Police Constable Alphonse Desjardins, Alphohse Desjardins, an

employee of the Department of Public Works, and Walter Panning, employed in the

Post Office Department. They were directing a stream from one of the standpipes

in the buildings, in the corridor near the quarters of the Speaker of the House of

Commons, and were buried under tons of debris when the tower fell.

The fire raged fiercely for hours. The main tower was not touched until about

,,1 p.m., and one of the most pathetic incidents of the night, which moved the spectators,

,jyps the striking of the midnight hour by the old tower clock. There seemed almost

a human touch as its familiar tones boomed out from the mass of flames. It was not

imtil two o'clock in the morning of the 4th of February, that the file was got under

jntrol, and even then the Library was subsequently threatened and was saved only

by strenuous efforts. If it had not been for the fire-door which closed off the corridor

leading to it from the reading room, it would also undoubtedly have fallen a prey

to the flames.

A Royal Commission was issued on the 7th February, 1916, appointing Mr. R.

A. Pringle, K.C., and His Honour D. B. MacTavish, county judge, as commissioners

to conduct a thorough inquiry into the origin of the fire. A number of special sittings

were held in the Ottawa city hall, at which many witnesses were examined. The
commissioners foimd during the course of their investigation that every precaution

had been taken to guard against fire and that the buildings had been adequately sup-

plied with fire-fighting appliances, such as reels, hose, chemical fire extinguishers, an

efficient automatic fire alarm system and ample hydrants to cover the fire area. They

also found that there were the usual number of Dominion police on duty and that

guards were stationed at all corridors, the Speaker's door, the visitors' gallery and the

ladies' gallery.

19—0
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In spite of the most searcMng inquiry, the origin of the fire still remains a

mystery. The commissioners finding after carefully reviewing the evidence was as

follows :—

-

"Your commissioners are of the opinion that there are many circum-

stances connected with this fire Aat lead to a strong suspicion of incendiarism,

especially in view of the fact that the evidence is clear that no one was smoking

in the reading room for some time previous to the outbreak of the fire ; and

also to the fact that the fire could not have occurred from defective electric

wiring. But while yoiir commissioners are of such opinion, there is nothing in

the evidence to justify your Commissioners in finding that the fire was

maliciously set."

Upon the Department of Public Works fell the duty of temporarily housing the

Parliament of Canada, and it acquitted itself magnificently of the task. While the

fire was still raging at its height, the Minister and Deputy Minister of Public Works,

after considering the various buildings in Ottawa—including the unfinished Customs

building, the theatres, public halls, etc., visited the Victoria Memorial Museum build-

ing shortly after 11 p.m., with a view to deciding as to the suitability of that build-

ing for the temporary home of Parliament. Its layout made it probably the most

adaptable building in the city for the purpose; and subsequent announcement was

made by the Prime Minister, about midnight, that the House of Commons (the Senate

being adjourned), would meet in the auditorixma of the Museum building at the usual

hour of 3 o'clock, Thursday afternoon. Temiwrary arrangements were made the

following morning for the afternoon meeting; the Throne chair from the Senate

Chamber and the Senate Mace, which had fortunately been salvaged the night before,

being utilized to carry on. There was only a short session; the House adjourning at

3.40 p.m., whereupon the Department of Public Works undertook, with its own stafF, to

remove the Geological Survey from the building, store their specimens and, in addi-

tion, the paintings of the National Art gallery, and to get the building in shape for

use as the Parliament buildings by Monday afternoon at 3 o'clock.

The ground and first floors of the building were filled with large cases containing

exhibits; the second and top floors being used as ofiices and by the National gallery.

The task to be undertaken was to take down and remove all these cases, pack and

store the exhibits together with the pictures of the National gallery, secure other

accommodation and remove the Geological Survey staff from their ofiices in the

Museum building to the new quarters; partition off the large areas on the ground

and first floors into as many ofiices as possible for the accommodation of the members

and officials of Parliament. It was decided to fit up the auditorium of the Museum

building as the Commons Chamber and the southwest wing for the Senate. The

latter Chamber had to be entirely created, and was reproduced in the familiar Senate

red with striking effect.

A contract plan of the original building was secured and the layout of offices

prepared thereon. Beaver-board and fibre-board, on two-by-four studding, were

chosen as the most expeditious method of partitioning the offices. The moving out

of the exhibits and the partitioning of the offices proceeded at one and the same time

;

a staff of carpenters, electricians, wiremen and labourers being employed in eight-
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hour shifts during Saturday and Sunday. The post office fittings in the old Parlia-

ment buildings, which had been salvaged with slight damage, were brought down and

installed in the entrance lobby where also provision was made for the two telegraph

companies. By Sunday afternoon, it was discernable that the back of the under-

taking had been broken and that the accommodation would be ready by mid-day

Monday. The furniture in the offices of the old buildings had been, for the most part,

destroyed. However, there were sufficient chairs salvaged from the restaurant and

from different parts of the buildings, to seat the Commons and Senate Chambers.

The furniture for the new offices was ordered the day following the fire by telegram

and came by express from the manufacturers and ofE the floors of warehouses in the

large distributinjr centres; most of it arriving on Sunday.

When the House of Commons assembled Monday afternoon in the Royal Victoria

Memorial Museum building, there had certainly been a lightning transformation

;

almost every vestige of its previous use having disappeared. !Mew Beaver-board offices

had been erected throughout the ground and first floors ; all the offices had been

equipped with rugs, desks, chairs, filing cabinets and even to a metal wardrobe for

each member of Parliament in the various cloak rooms; tliere was a telephone in each

room in working order ; call bells and division bells had been installed, the latter so

like in sound that when they rang at three o'clock Monday afternoon the effect was

almost an exact reproduction of the division bells of the old buildings, the debris of

which was still smouldei'ing on the hill.

At noon on Monday, His Royal Highness the Dul^e of Counaught, Governor

General, having heard of the extraordinary efforts which were being put forth, visited

the building, and, after a thorough inspection, expressed himself as amazed with the

work which had been done and heartily complimented the Minister and Deputy Minis-

ter of Public Works on the feat which had been accomplished.

The next consideration was the reconstruction of the burned buildings. The

Government decided to place the direction of this great undertaking in the hands

of a joint committee of Members and Senators to be nominated by the Right Honour-

able the Prime Minister and the Right Honourable the Leader of the Opposition.

As a result, the following were chosen :

—

IIoaourabL? Robert Rogers, Chairman, Honourable William Pugsley,

" J. D. Hazen, •' Kodolphe Lemieux,

J. D. Reid, "
Charles Murphy and

'
P. E. Blondin, " Robert Watson.

Sir James Lougheed,

Honourable Mr. Lernieux and Honourable Mr. Murphy have since resigned. Mr.

John A. Pearson, of Messrs. Darling and Pearson, architects, Toronto, Ont., and Mr.

J. 0. Marchand, of Montreal, Que., were appointed architects, and sketch plans pre-

pared by these gentlemen were explained to Members of the House of Commons and
of the Senate, submitted to the joint committee, and met with their approval. Tlie

committee also had before it sketch plans prepared by Mr. David Ewart, Dominion
Consulting Architect, and by Mr. E. L. Horwood, Chief Architect of the Department
of Public Works, both suggesting alternative schemes for rebuilding. After careful

consideration, the joint committee decided to proceed with the reconstruction of the
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buildings on the force account basis, and the P. Lyall & Sous Construction Company,
Limited, was engaged to carry out the work.

GEORCIAX BAY CANAL COMMISSION.

Attention is directed to the interim report of the Georgian Bay Canal Com-
mLssion, which was placed before Parliament at its last session and subsequently

published as Sessional Paper Xo. 19B. As the work of the commission, as a whole,

was necessarily interrupted by the war, one of its members, Col. Frank S. Meighen

proceeding overseas on active military service, it was arranged that the Chairman,

Mr. W. Sanford Evans, should make a statistical survey of the principal facts and

cOuditions connected with the transportation problems to be investigated by the

commission with a view to determining the commercial feasibility of a deep water-

way frorn the Georgian bay to the harbour of Montreal, via the French and Ottawa

rivers. The task involved excessive research, as conditions bearing on a problem of

this nature had not previously been studied in Canada aud were not contained in any

of the existing publications. Many of the tables of statistics given in the appendices

of the report have therefore been Compiled direct from original matter. The inclusion

of many splendidly prepared illustrative diagrams has added materially to the value

of the report as they enable the casual reader to grasp much more readily and clearly

the import of the statements made. ilr. Evans has presented an admirable analysis

of the general conditions attaching to the traffic which passes east and west through

the St. Lawrence and Great Lakes water route. !Xo attempt is made to draw con-

clusions at this stage of the investigation, but merely to submit a general statement

of the facts so far examined for the information of the public and as a basis for dis-

cussion and constructive criticism. The report is a most valuable contribution to

the study of the general traffic problem of Canada and will well repay perusal.

TELEGKAPHS.

The Government Telegraph Service now comprises a total mileage of 11,T921,

with a total of 1,002 offices, 370 of which are telegraph offices, 589 telephone offices, and

48 joint telegraph and telephone offices. The increase in land-line mileage during

the past year was 314 miles a^nd consisted of extensions to lie La Crosse, Sask., Hud-

son's Hope, B.C., and some short lines in southern British Columbia. A total of

365,081 messages were sent, a decrease of 12.TCS from the preceding year. The fall-

ing off was mainly in connection wath the Yukon line. Since the Grand Trunk Pacific

Railway telegraph reached Prince Rupert, it has diverted a good deal of the traffic

in that district. A war news service has been inaugurated and free bulletins are now

sent to all offices in Saskatchewan, Alberta, southern British Columbia and the North

Shore and Chicoutimi district. The press rate for the Yukon has also been reduced

ftom one cent to one-half cent per word during the period of the war.

I desire, in conclusion, to express my appreciation of the valuable services ren-

dered by the staff during the year, aud to specially commend those whose nobility of

spirit moved them to respond promptly to their country's call and who are now over-

seas manfully doing their " bit " in the cause of liberty and the preservation of civil-

ized standards throughout the world.

I have the honour to be, sir.

Your obedient servant,

J. B. HUNTER,
Deputy Minister.



7 GEORGL V SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19 'A. 1917

REPORT

ON

PUBLIC BUILDINGS THROUGHOUT THE DOMINION

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 1016

13Y THE

CHIEF ARCHITECT

19—1





7 GEORGE V SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19 ' ' ' A. 1917

" ' Public Works, Canada,

Chief Architect's Office,

Ottawa, July 30, 1916.

R. C. Desrochers, Secretary,

Department of Public Works. '

Sir,—I am sending you herewith annual report of works executed under this-

branch during the fiscal year ended March 31, 1916.

E. L. HORWOOD, ,

Chief Architect.

PROVINCE OF NOVA SCOTIA.

AlIHERST.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The stonework was pointed up to the ground floor base course.

Removed old tubular boiler and installed new one, bricked in complete.

Repaired and painted entrance doors to post ofiice. New birch sills and risers

were supplied, also iron thresholds to front door of post office.

Repaired electric bells; installed new dry batteries. Repaired the electric circuit,

and installed one switch in bath-room and pantry.

Installed additional lights over stamp wicket.

The first floor (Customs office) and the Janitor's apartments were thoroughly

cleaned and painted.

ANNAPOLIS.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Repaired stone entrance steps at front doors.

Installed four iron standard lamp posts on street with lights and globes complete

at each front of building.

ANTIGONISH.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Painted fences enclosing yard at roar of building, and repaired heating furnaces

and plumbing work.

BRIDGEWATER.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Two standard five clustej lamp posts, with globes and lights complete, were

erected in front of this building,, and pointed granite facing of basement walls and

steps.

19—li
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OANSO.

PUBLIC BUTLDUCG.

Opened and cleaned drain under basement floor.

Graded the space between sidewalk and building with earth and gravel.

Installed combination closet; repaired plumbing, water tank, outside pipes,

furnaces and pump in basement.

Placed outside porch to mail entrance door and attended to minor repairs.

DAETilOUTH.

NEW PUBLIC BUILDIXG.

The construction of this building described in the report of 1915, is completed.

A contract was awarded 14th August, 1915, for the making, erecting and finish-

ing of interior post oifice tittings.

Contractor.—The Office Specialty Manufacturing Co., Limited, Newmarket, Out.

Post office boxes, drawers, brass plates, grilles and receivers were supplied.

A new tower clock movement and bell with all necessary atachments was installed

in tower, clock dials put in, weight box and machinery stand, walls lined with spruce

sheathing; built case over clock weights and painted same complete.

DIGBY.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Erected on sidewalk in front of building, two five-cluster iron standard lamp

posts with globes and lights. *

Kepaired broken glass; new hinges were supplied on skylight. The large vault

doors received attention, easing bolts and cams.

The letter box front in post office received attention, and other smaller repairs

were made from time to time.

GLACE BAT.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The heating apparatus was overhauled, grate bars, smoke pipes and leaks in boilers

repaired and lock shield air valves put on public lobby radiators.

Tha ceiling over boilers was made fireproof.

GUTSBORO.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

New plank floor was placed in wood cellar.

Laid concrete pavement in front of post office and custom office, and re-gravelled

the ground from concrete to line of street.

Opened drain from rear wall of building to the seashore, and cleaned out and

recovered same.

Put new latch lock on main entrance door.

Eepairs to interior plumbing and other smaller works attejided to from time to

time through building.

HALIFAX.

CUSTOM HOUSE.

Replaced broken glass in windows; repaired electric bell, door checks and locks,

and provided record case, as per plan.
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Provided furnace room with firing tools for cleaning out fumaees. Removed
parts of smoke and vent pipes in chimney and replaced same with new ones.

Laid new tar and gravel roof over customs long room.

Raked out joints of stone coping on parapet walls and grouted and pointed same,

also cut out joints of stonework on the east and south fronts off from granite plinth to

top of walls, and painted flagpole.

Removed old plaster from the ceiling of the Harbour Master's office, also from
three walls in the caretaker's apartments, replastered same and repaired plaster in

other offices. All the ceilings throughout the building were cleaned and whitened, and
all the walls were painted two coats to top floor, inclusive.

Provided new case for Landing Officer's office, as per sketch.

All other small repairs were attended to from time to time as required.

Four No. 34-C Sirdar round hot water furnaces were connected to headers and
valved between boilers and headers, and a new main was provided to the northeast

rooms.

POST OFFICE BUILDrSG.

Repaired defective chimney flue by making good the brick work to prevent smoke
coming through; put railing in Post Office Inspector's main working room to prevent

the public from going into room; erected new hard pine flag pole; repaired plumbing
throughout building; installed new folding iron door to freight elevator in basement;
repaired woodwork of cupola and painted same two coats; took up and cleaned out

drains in basement ; cemented stone walls at approach to freight elevator, and other

smaller repairs were attended to as required.

DETEXTIOS OR TRACOX[.\ HOSPITAL.

Fitting up porch adjustable with floor and roof; repaired electric bell9; repaired

hot water boilers.

The cement plaster has all been removed from the freize or the hanging projection

at the roof of the verandahs and replaced with wood, painted and sanded. The cement
mouldings at the floors have also been repaired.

nilVERNESS.

PUBLIC BUILDrSG.

Repaired outlet of sewer; repaired and stopped leaks in roof; painted the wood-
work, whitened the ceilings, and kalsomined walls, and painted all the exterior

woodwork.

Repaired plumbing throughout building, and all smaller matters were attended to.

KENTVTLLE.

PUBLIC BUILDCCG.

Took up old hardwood, patched and renailed bottom floor and laid in lobby and
vestibules of post office a pyrofugont floor; repaired doors, new thresholds; repaired

letter boxes, and smaller repairs were attended to.

LIVERPOOL.

PUBLIC BUILDrSG.

Put handrail on outside stone entrance steps; repaired outside doors; supplied

new door checks, and attended to inside plumbing.

Three five-cluster iron lamp posts were erected at the two fronts of the building.

Painted and grained outside doors.
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LUNENBURG.
PUBLIC BUILDING.

Installed two hot water Daisy boilers.

Provided irou thresholds, and repaired hardwood floor in vestibule; new gal-

\'anized iron gutters to clock tower, and refilled panels of fence with 12 gauge gal-

vanized wire.

Erected a new hard pine flagpole on the roof; made good .all plumbing; repaired

door and window sashes; put down new panels of concrete in sidewalk, and drains

were put down to connect with the town's new sewer.

Two five-cluster iron lamp posts were erected on the street front of this building.

The pipe coil at ceiling, in the shipping master's office in the basement, was
lowered and main supplying same altered to increase the efficiency of the coil.

NEW GLASGOW.
PUBLIC BUILDING.

Took up old hardwood, patched and renailed bottom floor, and laid down a pyro-

fugont floor in the post office lobby and vestibule; put down new plank platform in

rear of customs examining warehouse ; put new letter box on inside of post office door

;

covered roof of small out-building for storage; pointed stone work; painted metal roof

covering, and all other outside metal and woodwork ; repaired sashes and put in glass

;

installed new section of boxes in letter screen ; put new door in partition between

vestibule and post office lobby ; also new steps in vestibule. Attended to all other •

repairs as required.

NORTH SYDNEY.
PUBLIC BUILDING.

Repaired door frames
;
provided grate bars and firing tools for the furnaces

;

repaired and painted fence; repaired roof to stop leaks; put up new sections of copper

gutter; repaired conductors, and put new sections of iron at the bottom of them.

Removed old, and renailed under floor, laid a pyrofugont floor in post office lobby.

Put treads on entrance steps leading to post office, iron bands and stays were furnished

to flagpole, and repaired electric lighting.

Additional radiators provided in first floor offices connected to a new two-inch

main valved on flow and return at boiler.

The radiator in registered mail office has been readjusted.

PARRSBORO.
PUBLIC BUILDING.

Built new stand under tower clock; sodded plot in front of building and encased

same with a wire fence; built plank wallis to protect roof; placed wooden base to set

storm signal on; erected a shed on roof to store storm drum and cone; a galvanized

iron storm signalling tower was erected on the roof of this building and wired tower

by connecting with wiring in clock tower to light signal lamps.

PICTOU.

CUSTOM HOUSE.

Repaired doors and locks; rearranged plumbing to cut off the large water tank in

attic and take water direct from the town pressure. Gravelled and renewed walks, and

trimmed the ornamental trees of this property.

Two new No. 6 Daisy round hot-water heating furnaces connected to existing

mains wero installed.
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POST OFFICE.

Repaired broken plaster ; erected new fence in rear of building and painted same

;

painted woodwork of first and second floors ; whitened ceilings and kalsomined walls

;

repaired outlet of sewer; an addition has been added to the letter box screen in this

office and letter boxes were repaired.

SPRINGHILL.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Painted customs offices ; whitened ceilings
; put on new latch locks ; painted

caretaker's quarters, and whitened ceilings. Patched hardwood floor in post office

lobby, and attended to other smaller repairs as required.

SYDNEY.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Repaired doors and door frames; provided 200 stoppers for letter boxes in screen

in post office; removed the tile flooring from post office lobby and laid down a pyro-

fugont floor; installed switch to electric lights in post office lobby and attended to all

other necessary repairs.

Alterations made to hot water heating apparatus, consisting of changing of base-

ment mains, the installation of two Gurney square boilers (935 series) ; five radiators

were connected on ground floor and changed the size and position of radiators in

caretaker's quarters on second floor.

POINT EDWARD HOSPITAL.

Removed old wooden posts and sills from two of the buildings and built concrete

foimdations ; removed some of the joist and portions of the floors ; replaced same with

new wood ; also graded the grounds about these buildings.

TRURO.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Provided and erected in front of this building two five-cluster iron lamp posts

with shades and lights complete.

WESTVILLE.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Repaired electric lights; put new door to side entrance, and repaired aU outside

doors ; repaired door checks ; replaced broken glass ; repaired inside plumbing ; installed

switch to electric lights in post office lobby, and painted all exterior woodwork.

WINDSOR.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Repaired leaks in roof; replaced broken glass in letter screen in post office;

re-dressed granite entrance steps; new copper gutters were installed, and conductors

repaired; plate glass panels put in outside doors; put new flashings in roof of customs;

brass hand rails were placed over steps to letter receiver; new planking to bridges or

culverts over street gutters, and other smaller repairs attended to.
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WOLFVILLE.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Check was placed on front door to post office; put crock on chimney; picture

moulding on wall in postmaster's office, and other small repairs were attended to as

required.

YARMOUTH.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Sections of hot water boiler repacked; repaired ceiling in basement over furnaces;

put in plate glass windows and sills in examining warehouse; repaired floor, drawers,

covmter, etc., in customs long room; repaired ceiling of post office lobby, and attended

to other smaller requirements.

(Unless otlierivise stated in the report^ all worl-s of repair and improvement on

puhlic htiildings in the Province of Nova Scotia ivere executed under the supervision

of Mr. W. Bishop, Inspector of Dominion Buildings for Nova Scotia.)

PROVINCE OF PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND.

CHAELOTTETOWK
OLD BANK BUILDING.

The joists of the appraiser's office in the examining warehouse were reinforced

and floor repaired.

In the spring, .the awnings were put on the building and removed in the fall.

Repairs made to the interior brick walls of basement, and two fireplaces were

relined with mortar and fire-brick.

Supplied sheet lead to repair the hip roll on roof. Three meters removed, one 20-

ampere meter and three cut-outs were installed; two electric lights in the engineer's

offices changed and rewired, and repaired electric wiring in appraiser's office.

Position of one radiator in the engineer^ office altered, a set of fire irons and a

coal scoop supplied for furnace; sundry repairs made to the heating and plumbing,

and a new expansion tank was placed in position and connected up.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The concrete sidewalk at the north entrance was raised up and coal ashes placed

at each side of same.

One wind shield furnished for the office of the post office inspector; new halyard

for flag pole supplied; shelving re-arranged; windows repaired, and book shelf ])rovided.

All work painted or varnished in the gas testing office.

In the east end of the public lobby of post office, a new stamp vendor's office was

constructed.

The gas heater was moved and set up complete; the registered letter office in the

post office wa.s remodelled, enlarged and a ceiling placed over same ; a new ash counter

was furnished and other minor work done in connection with above alterations. AH
the above was painted, varnished, etc., and left complete.

The walls of the gas insjjcctor's office were tinted with alabastinc, the ceilings

whitened, the woodwork painted and varnished and floor painted. The metal work was

treated with aluminum and gold bronze.
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All street letter boxes and parcel receptacles were painted.

Moved the gas prover; the gas testing apparatus was remodelled and sundry-

repairs made to plumbing work in gas inspector's office.

In the post office lavatory, a new urinal was supplied and installed.

Tested the heating boilers, supplied rubber for two mud doors, furnished bar iron,

grate bars and arch plates, cleaned back connection and smoke stack, repaired grates,

fire hose and dressing slice bar.

The fire-brick lining in both boilers was rebuilt, and two new arch plates were

placed in position.

On post at main entrance, a 250 e.p. lamp was supplied.

After the stamp vendor's and registered letter offices were remodelled, it was

necessary to re-wiro for electric light, and minor changes made to the electric wiring

in the gas inspector's office.

Two extra electric lights installed in the post office; sundry electric wiring and

the electric door bell system throughout the whole building was repaired, and the

combination in the vault door of the post office was repaired and changed.

GEORGETOWN.
PUBLIC BUILDING.

The sewer connection became clogged, several sections of the porcelain pipe and

the cast iron soil pipe were removed and the obstruction cleared out of the pipes; the

pipes were replaced with new material and a new cleanout placed on same.

A new plank box was built and fixed at the outlet of the sewer.

Minor repairs made to the heating.

SOUEIS.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Supplied one pine door in the rear entrance of post office; closed up the opening

between the examining warehouse and the rural mail men's sorting office.

Constructed a new ash box of studs and boards; furnished two extra heavy door

checks and placed them in position.

Minor repairs made to door locks and out-buildings; repaired the brickwork of

gas producing hou^e on the grounds, and minor repairs were made to pump and to

the gas lights.

SUMMERSIDE.
PUBLIC BUILDING.

Two new glazed sashes were placed in the storm porches to the main entrance

and the porches painted.

Temporary staging to tower was erected and machinery of clock hoisted; four

louvre windows were placed in position ; waterproof floor constructed below the dial

room; a beam was placed in position to support the bell and all minor carpentr.y work

in connection with installing the clock was done; clock dials placed in position and

glazed, and the dial room was prepared in conduit and wired for electric light.

A turret clock of English manufacture supplied and placed in position complete,

and is in good working order.

. Minor repairs and a new smoke pipe put up on the furnace.

All street letter boxes were painted.

TIGNTSH.
PUBLIC BUILDING.

Two new storm porches having windows and doors, were constructed, glazed and

painted complete. Minor repairs to doors, door checks or springs supplied and placed

in position; panes of glass supplied and glazing done.
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A small radiator in the customs office removed and one large radiator 24 by 26 by

90 feet, with all necessary pipes, valves, etc., complete, placed in its stead.

One golden oak sanitary W.C. seat with nickle-plated post hinges, etc., supplied

and a new closet tank placed in position.

Sundry repairs were made to the pump power head, and to the gasoline engine in

basement. Materials supplied for the recharging of the storrage battery, and minor

repairs in connection therewith and left same in good working order.

The electric wiring in basement changed and two new lights installed, and repairs

were made to magneto.

Unless otherwise stated in the report, all worls of repair and improvement on

public buildings in the Province of Prince Edward Island were executed under the

supervision of Mr. J. J. McDuff, Superintendent of Public Buildings, Prince Edward
Island.— Gharlottetown., P.E.I.)

PROVINCE OF NEW BRUNSWICK.

BATHURST.
PUBUC BUILDIMJ.

The building had attention during the year as usual, in way of sundry small

repairs to front doors, windows and roof; kalsomining, painting and varnishing was

done to the interior ; the plaster ceiling of upper hall was renewed ; repairs made to

heating system and furnaces; some plumbing repairs, glazing and lobby tloors dressed;

window blinds supplied; glass for clock dials cut and fitted. Alterations to post office

screen were made and additional fittings installed.

CAMPBELLTON.
PUBLIC BUILDING.

During the fiscal year, the bulling had general supervision. An iron stair hand

rail fire-escape was placed on it; sundry repairs made to tower clock, new escapement

wheel put in, wire, blocks, etc., supplied; the clock tower was wired for lighting and

illumination of clock; post office sorting table was repaired; kalsomining and paint-

ing done to some halls and rooms. An inner partition was removed to give customs

w.irehouse access into post office delivery and a warehouse for the customs was con-

structed in the basement with outer stairs and porch to the same.

CHATHAM.
PUBLIC BUILDING.

This building has not had much done to it lately on account of anticipated exten-

sion, and repairs are needed. In front of lot lately acquired (adjoining the building),

a concrete retaining wall was constructed and a concrete sidewalk laid connecting

with the old sidewalk.

DALHOUSIE.
PUBLIC BUILDING^

During this fiscal year, the building has had supervision. Kalsomining and paint-

ing done to the interior walls and ceilings of vestibules and hallway from street door

to top floor, outside woodwork, doors and sashes, lobby screen and heating coils, etc.,

painted; hardwood work cleaned and varnished; fences renewed and painted, and

chimney was repaired and an iron band was put around it.

The vestibule floor was also repaired.
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FAIRVILLE.

PUBLIC BL'ILDISG.

The building had supervision, and is in good condition. Interior upper floor,

papering, kalsomining and painting was done and an oak mantel installed. On post

office floor, painting and kalsomining was done; tower clock had attention; new lock

put on post office screen door, and repairs made to electric lights.

FREDERICTOK
OLD PUBLIC BUILDING.

The old public building has been vacated by the Post Office Department and

alterations are no'5\' under way on the ground floor to accommodate the Customs

Department. Improvements are also under way on first floor to accommodate a branch

of the Department of Agriculture. The Dominion Immigration office had been moved

into the first floor, and shortly after it was removed to the new public building. The

Customs Department will vacate the first floor office for the ground floor as soon as the

alterations and fittings, that are now underway, are complete. The old post office

boxes were removed and stored in basement of building. A few minor repairs were

made.

NEW PUBLIC BUILDING.

Broad concrete walks were laid in front and a concrete walk on each side ; a small

concrete retaining wall was built between the lot and the militia property adjoining;

the glazed sashes were removed from the windows in clock tower bell room and replaced

with louvres. The letter receiver was improved, the opening in the stone enlarged;

improvements made to post office fittings, and extension ladder provided for hatchway.

Some electric switches replaced with Diamond H lock switches, and electric bells

installed for post office use. A circular counter removed from the old building and

set up in office of Immigration Agent, on the first floor.

GRAND FALLS.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The building was well kept. A hinged grating was placed on one of the basement

windows, and sanitary matters had attention.

HAMPTON.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The building had general supervision during the year. Water pipes were laid from

Canadian Government Railway water system to supply the building, all connections

complete. An acetylene gas plant was installed with fixtures in building, brick gas

house, street lamp and globes. The post office delivery tile floor had to be relaid and

a large portion in lobby. The street letter receiver was completed. Concrete walks

were laid and coping and culvert constructed at building and along lot on street lines

;

grading, terracing, fencing and sodding of lot completed. New bag rack installed.

The location of the flagpole was changed and flagpole reset in cement; catch basin

lowered, and tower clock had attention and batteries supplied for same.

HARTLAND.
PUBLIC BUILDING.

Small repairs were made to plumbing and one closet bowl renewed; a spring lock

was put on the post office screen door, andvsome minor repairs made.
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HILLSBOEOUGH.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Papering and painting were done in the interior and repairs made to hot air

pumping engine; later a new engine was installed.

MAEYSVILLE.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The building had supervision during the year and is in good condition. This year

little was required ; some kalsomining, painting and papering was done. Sinall repairs

to glazing, woodwork, locks, letter boxes and office clock, etc., small repairs to electric

lighting; the surface of the yard was improved, levelled and smoothed.

MILLTOWN.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

This building, describc'd in last year's report, is completed.

The post office fittings were installed. Concrete sidewalks laid around the building

on front and side streets and to the rear entrance, and a concrete retaining wall con-

structed at side and rear of lot. Small improvements were made to doors and glazing;

a safe was received and placed in post office, and tower clock was installed and chase

for weights constructed.

MONCTON.
PUBLIC BUILDING.

The building had general supervision during the year. An iron stair and rail

fire escape was erected on building. Plaster was repaired and kalsomining done.

Alterations and additions were made to post office fittings and improvements in the

post office electric lighting. An additional steam radiator was installed and a portion

of the flooring was renewed. Improvements were made to toilet room on first floor

and an additional door and closet supplied.

NEWCASTLE.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The building had general supervision during the year and some repairs made.
Kalsomining, painting and varnishing in the interior of ground floor and upper floors.

New flooring laid in lobby and vestibule, with thresholds, etc., and main stair treads

renewed.

KICHIBUCTO.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The building had general supervision during the year. Five Laddin lamps were
supplied; new front doors painted, glazed and hung in place; kalsomining, painting
and glazing done in interior; fence and fire escape painted; repairs made to furnace,

grates installed, and boiler and hot air pump repaired.

ST. JOHN.

CUSTOM HOUSE.

The building had general supervision during the year. It was found that the

water pipes over the building had become corroded to a great extent and there was
necessity for renewing them, this was do^e, making a satisfactory improvement in
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the water supply and use. New wash basin was put iu Marine and Fisheries office

.and sundry small plumbing repairs made. Window shades supplied office of steamboat

inspector. The heating furnaces of the building were relined and boilers repaired;

jiew casting and the heating apparatus put in thorough order; the hot water boiler

in Signal Officer's apartments repaired; some plastering and painting done in Gas
Inspector's office; Marine-and Fisheries wall repaired and painted and north wing from

basement to top cleaned, kalsomined and painted. A steel flag mast with ajipurten-

ances complete was installed on Custom House dome in place of wooden one wrecked

in storm. Sundry glazing, some large plates being renewed in different parts of build-

ing. Repairs were made to hydraulic hoist; the electric elevator supplied with requis-

ites and kept in good order; sundry repairs made to woodwork; locks and keys had
attention. For some time complaints had been made of the poor lighting of the

building and this year plans and specification for electric wiring of the entire build-

ing were prepared and contract entered into and the work carried out, and portable

electric lamps have since been supplied sundry offices.

OLD POST OFFICE.

During the year, the building had usual supervision. Repairs to glazing, wood-
work, plumbing, W.C.'s, etc; sundry repairs to furniture and revolving door; tower

cluck, lobby clock and others had attention ; repairs made to plaster ceiling on main
floor; steam boiler repaired, also gauge glasses, latch locks and washers supplied;

electric lamps were furnished and sundry small repairs to lights and appurtenances.

The enclosures of basement windows at sidewalks were improved and water pipe from
eaves extended under sidewalk to gutter. Repairs made to letter box and locks, speak-

ing tubes, lights and stamping machine; small woodwork repairs about building and
in elevator easing. A number of R.M.S. trucks were repaired, painted and varnished.

This building has now been vacated as a post office, the post office removing to

the new building. The old one being put iu condition to receive officials of other

departments who have been iu outside rented offices. The staff, furniture, etc., of

District Engineer of this department at Fredericton, N.B., have already been removed
to and installed in this building.

NEW POST OFFICE.

A large and modern building of granite and freestone front, brick and stone sides

and rear walls, four stories and basement, has just been completed.

The staff's of the Post Office Inspector for N.B., and Supt. of Railway Mail Ser-

vice here, were transferred from the old building to the new and are now carrying on
the work of their respective branches. At the end of the fiscal year, everything was in

readiness awaiting the transfer of the post office staff, furniture, ai^pliances, etc., from
the old post office, for which arrangements were in hand.

There were of necessity a number of small matters to be adjusted, which are

receiving prompt and careful attention. The coal had been stored in the building;

the hinged cover of the ash hoist was improved and small improvements made to

freight elevator. The bunks in the Customs postal parcels room were rearranged as

instructed. Suijplies bought for the caretaker, engineers and elevator men, including

thirty-five feet of hose and fittings, ash barrels, tools, oils, packing and sundry articles

and necessaries. Vault fittings were installed, bag racks and cases received and set

up . A desk ,and chair supplied Supt. of R.M.S. ; shelving and coat hooks for post

office Inspector and Supt. of R.M.S.. electric wiring and appurtences for letter stamp-
ing machine; the inspection galleries improved; repairs made to the furniture removed
from old office. Blinds supplied and fitted to the windows. A number of other small

matters now in hand.

A partition and a wall radiator was placed in the office of the Railway Mail Ser-

vice to form an office for the stenographer.
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SAVrN'GS BAXK.

The water closet was installed in basement; painting was done in offices and win-

dow sashes around the building, and repairs were made to coal chutes and gate.

PARTRIDGE ISLAND QUARAN'TES'E STATION.

Portions of roofs of three buildings were repaired with new shingles ; improve-

ments were made to heating apparatus and location of one radiator changed in asst.

doctor's house; heating boiler in hospital repaired and new header installed. A small

fire occurred in the small-pox hospital and damaged the walls and roof, this was

repaired at small expense.

ST. JOHX—WEST.
POST OFFICE.

Kalsomining, painting and varnishing was done in interior of building and fence

of lot was coated with fireproof paint. Tower clock had attention during the year;

some small repairs made to plumbing and flagpole was repaired and painted.

IlIMIGRATIOX BUILDING.

The old building is a two story wooden structure, and No. 4 shed, a two story

wooden building of which the upper story only is in possession of the department for

government purposes. These buildings have been occupied to a great extent by soldiers,

imd the ililitia Department ha? had more or less charge of them.

Repairs were made to plaster of walls; three new door sills were put in place and

floors repaired; water table and sills, front doors, locks and bolts and sheathing on

ceiling repaired; floor raised and levelled in furnace room; partitions upstairs repaired

and truss rod and new door sill put in coal room.

Kalsomining and painting done upstairs and down. The interior of No. 4 shed

painted and reglazed; repairs were made to plumbing and main steam pipe in con-

nection with shed; repairs made to boilers and new set of grate bars put in furnace;

smoke stack and heating apparatus repaired; smoke stack top of chimney had iron

band put around it and guys renewed; coal platform was built in boiler room; fire

tools supplied firemen also sundry plumbing requisites; electric wiring repaired and

lamps supplied, and woodwork, doors and locks were repaired and renewed.

ST. STEPHEN.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The floors of lobby and vestibule were relaid and concrete basement floor repaired

;

chimney and roof repaired, and pent house was built over roof hatchway.

SUSSEX. -

PUBLIC BUILDLNfl.

The building is in good condition, and during the year had general supervision.

A bath tub was installed in caretaker's flat. Hall and rooms alabastined and portions

painted; lamp posts painted; repairs made to water pipes; post ofiice sorting table

recovered. Concrete platform and driveways laid in front of building and two lamp

posts with clusters of electric lamps erected in front. Caretaker's apartments wired

for electric lighting; window blinds supplied; additional partitions made in pigeon-holo

cases; new flag mast erected; siU tap and hose installed; additional drawer provided in

counter, and tower clock had attention, batteries were supplied, etc.
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TRACADIE.

LAZARETTO.

There is a resident physician's house across the road, and, during the year, a barn

and stable was built near the house; the water piping was laid from the house to the

barn, artesian well deepened and some grading done; hose and harness hooks and

sundry small appurtenances supplied; iron slabs placed over drains in floor of barn;

grain and feed chutes improved and posts put up to hold doors when open. Renewal

of plumbing of Lazaretto was in hand at end of fiscal year.

(Unless otherwise stated in the report, all worlcs of repair and improvement on

puhlic huiMings in the Province of New Brunswick were executed under the super-

vision of Mr. D. n. Waterlury, Superintendent of Puhlic Buildings, New Brtinsivick

—St. John, N.B.)

PROVINCE OF QUEBEC.

ARTHABASEA.
PUBLIC BUILDING.

Electric light installation was placed in the four clock dials in the tower^ of this

building. A lettered tablet stone was fixed in the front wall. Concrete approaches to

the main entrance and to the drop letter boxes were built and all areas on the front

side of the building were levelled and sodded.

BERTHIERVILLE.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The porch to the private entrance of this building and the galleries and steps to

the post ofiice part were modified to suit the requirements.

BUCKINGHAM.
PUBLIC BUILDING.

Repaired north and west sides of concrete along side of building to prevent water

from going into the basement.

Put a roof on temporary woodshed, and a hardwood floor was laid in caretaker's

dining room.

CHICOUTIMI.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

A concrete retaining and protection wall has been built on the north side of the

Government property. In connection therewith an embankment of 140 feet in length

had to be made, sewer had to be removed and replaced. The land in front of the

building, which had been damaged during the town improvements, was repaired and
new sodding placed.

The roof of the public building, which consisted of paper and gravel, has been
replaced by a metallic covering.

COATICOOK.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The plumbing on the first floor was improved. The caretaker's quarters were

cleaned, repapered, painted and varnished as the case required. Repairs were also

made to the several roofs.
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COATICOOK.

DRILL HALL.

The construction of this building, described in last year's report, is completed,

iletal saddle racks have been supplied for the interior equipment.

COOKSHIEE.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

An iron balcony fire escape and ladder was installed on the rear of this building.

The whole of the exterior openings, fences, etc., were painted. The interior was either

kalsomined, painted or revarnished as required. The electric light installation was
repaired.

_ DEUMMOISTDVILLE.

PUBLIC BUlUJING.

The position of the box screen in the post office part of the building was altered

so that the space reserved for the public was enlarged. A long room for customs

purposes was provided on the first floor.

A contract was entered into 20th December, 1915, for the supply and installation

of customs fittings. Contractors: J. T. Schell Co., Alexandria, Out.

EAST AXGUS.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The construction of this building described in last year's report is completed.

A contract was entered into on 37th July, 1915, for the supply and installation

of interior post office fittings. Contractors: Berlin Interior Hardwood Co., Berlin,

Out.

Brass grilles and post office box front equipment supplied.

The grounds were filled, graded and seeded down and the driveway gravelled.

Concrete sidewalks and steps, including foundation for steel flag pole, was constructed,

steel flag pole was supplied to be erected on the lawn at side of building.

Farm tilo drain pipe was laid under basement floor. A Gillett & Johnston, Eng-

lish make, four dial tower clock with bell and wiring in conduit for dials and machin-

ery rooms, was installed in the tower.

Additional electric wiring and fixtures were provided.

FARNHAM.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

It was necessary to renew all roof gutters and rain conductor^; the roof was

repaired; the shed to the rear of the building was covered with galvanized iron; the

exterior woodwork repainted, and the interior of the post office and fittings were

altered so as to accommodate the rural mail delivery service.

E.XPEUIMENTAL F.\RM.

The pair of semi-detached cottages described in last year's report are completed.

FRASERVILLE.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The caretaker's quarters were improved and minor alterations were carried out to

the interior post office fittings.
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GRANBT.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The plaster ceilings and walls were generally repaired. The caretaker's quarters

were cleaned, repapered and revarnished, as the case applied. The drainage of the

heating system was improved, and the electric light installation repaired.

HOCHELAGA.

POST OFFICE (BKAXCH).

Two tubs were disconnected and reconnected on cement floor, fence repaired, one
set of grate bars supplied and fitted up. A filter and 30 gallon boiler were supplied.

JOLIETTE.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The addition of this building was described in last year's report.

Additional steel girders were installed to carry upper part of clock tower. A
door was cut through basement wall between old and new building, another one was

cut from caretaker's quarters to roof and a landing was built outside. The position

of a few radiators was changed to suit convenience.

Alterations were made to the original part of the building to bring it up to the

standard of the work in the new addition. A four dial tower clock with bell was

installed and illuminated, under agreement, and at the end of the fiscal year the build-

ing was practically completed and arrangements were made to move all Government
offices from temporary quarters in rented buildings into the new premises.

A contract was entered into 21st September, 1915, for the supply and installation

of interior post office, customs and inland revenue fittings.

Contractors: The J. T. Schell Company, Alexandria, Ont.

JONQUIEEES.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The construction of this building, described in last year's report, is now completed.

A contract was entered into 9th November, 1915, for the making, erection and
finishing of interior post office fittings.

Contractor : R. A. Sproule.

Brass grilles and box front equipment were supplied.

L'ASSOMPTION.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The tar and gravel roofing of this building was renewed and the upper part of

the brick and stone chimney was rebuilt. Many other repairs were also attended to.

LEVIS.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Roof, gutters, down pipes, and flashings were repaired.

Painted exterior and interior wood and ironwork; kalsomined walls and ceilings

throughout halls, offices and public lobbies; varnished all hardwood work and floors;

papered the caretaker's living room and dining room, and bronzed all coils and
radiators.

19—2
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LONGUEUIL.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The whole of the exterior woodwork and other painted works, fences, etc., were

repainted and minor repairs were done to the plumbing and electric light i-ystems.

LOmSEVILLE.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

One dozen maple trees planted at suitable points on the grounds around the

building. The lot was filled, graded and sodded and the driveways graveMed. Concrete

curbs were built to the edges of the driveways to keep vehicles ofE the lawns, and two

iron hitching posts set in concrete finish on street in front of building. Laid concrete

sidewalk and pavement to frontage of property, and built a steel fire escape gallery and

staircase at rear of building.

A dressed and painted board fence was erected on three boundaries of the lot; the

clock dials and machinery rooms for electric light were wired in conduits, and installed

a four dial (W. F. Evans & Sons, England) tower clock and bell, with all attachments,

including weight boxes and enclosures to protect machinery.

MAGOG.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The tar and gravel roofing was renewed and several other repairs were attended

to. An iron balcony fire escape and ladder were installed on the rear of this building,

serving the first and attic floors.

MATAJSTE.

PUBUC BUILDING.

A description of this building appeared in the report of 1914; work is completed.

On the front and the west side, concrete protection was built before placing loose

stones; laid concrete sidewalk and pavement; built concrete retaining wall with iron

railing; levelled and sodded lot and gravelled roadway; built iron fire escape; erected a

painted board fence around the property, with single and driveway gates.

Wired the tower and clock dials for electric light, aud installed a John Smith &

Son's, English, tower clock and bell, with all necessary accessories.

A hand lift and force pump system was installed in connection with the water

service, and one new section and water post supplied to hot water heating furnace and

covered with asbestos.

MONTREAL.

NEW CUSTOMS AND EXAMINING WAREHOUSE.

This building, which was fully described in the report of 1913, is completed.

A contract was awarded 5th February, 1916, for the supply and installation of

interior customs fittings.

Contractors : Berlin Interior Hardwood Co., Berlin, Ont.

Window blinds were furnished and placed in position.

OLD EXAMINING WAREHOUSE.

Iron roof was repaired, one flushometer supplied, six arc lamps repaired, magneto

coil renewed, complete starter rewound, ventilating fan, motor commutator and settle

brushes were repaired; old boiler tubes changed for new, boilers rebricked, one belt

shifter stop bracket fitted on elevator and taps, W.C. injectors and tanks were repaired.
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OLD CUSTOM HOUSE.

One hvmdred and fifty-two gallon boiler was supplied, leak on steam coil, bath

taps and basins were repaired ; waste in toilet room cleared, leak in water main located

and new service main was supplied.

INLAND REVENUE BUILDING.

Centre bar for hot water boiler was supplied and fitted up, and boiler grates were

repaired.

GENEIUL POST OFFICE.

Starting box was rebuilt, fan repaired, guard put on oil cup and compensator

started, trucks and rubber wheels repaired, new rubber wheels supplied, elevators

repaired, elevator doors taken down, frames repaired and fitted with iron wire net, and

doors set back into position, sliding door repaired and springs provided; galvanized

iron pan made for washing machine, galvanized iron tank supplied, gauges changed

and hot water tank repaired, gauges put on and letter chute repaired, and automatic

pump drinking water sterilizer was repaired.

One iron pipe guard installed on roof; split radiator, W.C. and urinals repaired;

one lavatory installed in chief P. O. superintendent's ofiice; one blow-oS tank supplied

and installed with all connections; telephone wires covered with 3-inch moulding;

marble work repaired; wire guards and window grilles supplied and installed; street

letter boxes and parcel receptacles painted; large iron gate and gate frame erected;

arc lamps changed for nitrogen lamps in inspector's and dead letters departments;

electric system changed in customs postal branch; alterations made to accountant's

ofiice and telephone room, and windows and plates were put up in elevators.

POSTAL STATION "a" (ST. JAMES STREET).

Wash basin was repaired; radiators disconnected, water connection made for

street service, and concrete work of building repaired.

Temporary offices prepared for clerk of works, heating inspector, inspector of elec-

tric plant, storekeeper ;• also storeroom, and shop for painters, carpenters, electricians,

etc., and a machine shop was installed.

POSTAL STATION " B.''

W.C. tank and gas leak were repaired; radiator installed; galvanized smoke pipes

put up on heaters ; radiators changed ; pipes covered with asbestos ; W.C. seat renewed

;

75 feet of hose supplied and alterations were made to post office fittings.

POSTAL STATION "c" (eASTF.Rn).

Coil, boiler and skylight repaired and 75 feet of hose supplied.

POSTAL STATION " D.''

W.C. tank and bowls, centre bar for hot water boiler, taps and furnace repaired,

and two fire extinguishers and seven window shades were supplied.

POSTAL STATION " E."

Check valve put up on water line and safety valve on boiler, new grate bars were

put in furnace; urinals repaired, and two fire extinguiiAers and 12 shades were sup-

plied.

POSTAL STATION "g" (st. LAWRENCE DIVISION, PBCJCE ARTHUR AND ELGIN STREETS).

The site intended for future postal station " G." The old buildings were

demolished and a fence erected. Wall built up, adjoining next property.

19—2i
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POSTAL STATION " H."

Cellar drainer and cheek valve were installed, new rod supplied for cellar drainer,

vent section repaired, new ones supplied, water meter, gauges and radiator were fitted

up.

POSTAL STATION "l" (WESTMOUNt).

Swing check valve put on pipes; bibbs repaired, sidewalks paved; tank, coil in

boiler, W.C. flush pipe and valve were repaired.

postal station " M.''

Five wire window screens and one fire extinguisher were supplied.

PUBLIC WORKS AND POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT. (OLD HERALD BUILDING RENTED).

Partitions erected in this building for inspector of electric plant, storekeeper's

offices, also for storerooms, machine shop, carpenters' shop; shelves and drawers made
for storeroomg, and urinals and W.C.'s were installed.

GARAGE—ALTERATIONS AND ADDITIONS. (FORESTS PRODUCTS LABORATORY.)

The alterations and additions to the above building, described in last year's report,

are completed.

POSTAL ST.\TI0N " 0." (ST. LAURENT WARD).

W.C. and electric lighting system were repaired.

MUEEAY BAY.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

This building, described in the report of last year, is completed.

A contract was entered into on February 5, 1916, for the supply and installation

of interior post office fittings.

Contractors: The Berlin Interior Hardwood Co., Berlin, Ont.

A four-dial tower clock (Gillett & Johnson, makers, England) and bell, with all

the auxiliary work, has been installed.

PIERREVILLE.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The galleries and steps in the front and side of the building were fully repaired.

The whole of the exterior was repainted and the whole of the interior was cleaned,

kalsomined, painted and varnished as the case applied.

PLESSISVILLE.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The whole of the woodwork of the exterior openings, etc., of this building were

repainte3. The stone steps refitted and placed, and the concrete walk on one side was

entirely rebuilt. In the interior, the post office screen was altered so as to enlarge the

work part of the office.

QUEBEC.

EXAMINING WAREHOUSE.

A concrete driveway was put down at north and east sides of building, and cement

sidewalk between this building and custom house.

A new hardwood floor was laid in the express office; the electric lighting system

reconstructed throughout the building, and alterations made to a partition. Two birch

desks were installed in the lobby of express office.
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- CUSTOM HOUSE.

A contract was entered into on 28th June, 1915, for the waterproofing of the

basement.

A trench around the entire building was made for the proper construction of new

waterproofing curb wall and the trench refilled after completion of the wall.

Over the entire basement floor a new concrete floor was laid on top of present

concrete floor, with waterproofing between old and new floors; this waterproofing was

also carried up on walls to the height of about three feet.

The building is lighted by electricity. ,

Plans and specifications were prepared by this department.

Contractors : The Standard Paint Co. of Canada, Limited.

On account of damage caused by high tide, the elevator machinery has beeir

removed from basement to overhead by the Otis-Fensom Elevator Co.

Walls and ceilings of some offices and passages were kalsomined and main door

was revarnished.

Sanitary matters had attention during the year, as usual.

The erection of a time ball, ordered in January, is now in process of construction.

IMMIGRATION HOSPITAL.

Removed 336 beds from detention hospital to the civil detention quarters in new
immigration building.

Painting and enamelling of the interior woodwork; painting double windows;

enamelling of the operating table and chairs; kalsomining of walls and ceilings; con-

struction of a glazed partition ; broken glass replaced in skylights and throughout the

building ; providing of new burlap for the dados around walls of the large dining room
in basement; renewal of enamelled tin sheeting on the operating room; repairing

damaged ceilings, chimney, window screens, side steps and walling; repairing roofing;

concrete raised and paper, tar and gravel relaid ; replacing a broken pipe by a new one,

in the main water pipes, and terrazzo floors were laid down in different halls, rooms
and lobbies.

ST. ROCH POST OFFICE.

Roofing was repaired ; an electric motor was installed in basement for the purpose

of pumping water. A wooden sidewalk was put dowji from the yard gate to the post

office door.

ST. SAUVEUR POST OFFICE.

A wooden and iron partition was erected to divide the letter carriers' quarters

from the main post office, addition made to electric lighting system; the sidewalk

repaired and fencing repainted, and a small window complete was provided in the

caretaker's toilet room.

DRILL HALL. ADDITIONS AND ALTERATIONS.

This building, which was described in the report of 1914, is completed.

LOUISE EMBANKMENT—IMMIGRATION BUILDING.

This building, which was described in the report of 1912, is completed.

The mason work, trenching and fitting in of three steam boilers was executed.

GOVERNOR general's QUARTERS " CITADEL."

Repairs were made to the terrace platform opening out of the ball room.
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EIGAUD.

PIBLIC BUILDING.

The heating furnace underwent considerable repair and renewal. Many other
minor repairs were attended to.

EOBERVAI..

PUBLIC BUILDING.

A wrought iron hand railing was erected at the front and side doors, and 5 elec-

tric lights were installed.

STE. AGATHE DES MONTS.
PUBLIC BUILDLNG.

A contract was entered into on 15th September, 1915, for the supply and instal-

lation of interior post office fittings.

Contractor: Berlin Interior Hardwood Co., Berlin, Ont.

The post office lock box equipment and brass grilles were supplied.

Window blinds were furnished for all openings.

A small frame earth closet out-house was built at rear of lot until the municipal

system of sewerage is completed.

A wooden shelter over the area entrance steps to basement was constructed and
painted. Temporary plank steps were built to the main and side entrances.

Installed two outside one-light standard, set up in place, wired, etc., ready for

electricity and placed electric lights on interior post office fittings, and two hall fixtures

were supplied on the first floor.

ST. GABRIEL DE BRANDON.
PUBLIC BUILDLNG.

Concrete sidewalks, five feet wide, with curbs next gutters and culverts for drive-

ways and crossings, were constructed; erection of frame outside privies, at roar of

lot; taking down and reconnecting of the two hot water heating furnaces; supply and
installation of electrical fixtures throughout; steel fire escape platform and stair were

erected on the side of the building.

A hooded protection was made over the area steps and basement entrance door.

Pumping and filling cesspool and shutting off the drain, and emptying of cellar

previous to waterproofing.

Waterproofing of the foundation walls inside and outside and treating the floor of

the basement in a similar manner. Waterproofing was turned up 12 inches on walls

and over the present cement floor, and a new 2J-inch slab of concrete was laid over the

entire basement.

All doors in basement were shortened so as to swing over new floor.

Installed a four dial clock and bell (J. B. Joyce & Co., England) with all attach-

ments complete.

ST. HENRI.

POST OFFICE.

Sewer made, cesspool installed, concrete work and urinals repaired, and new
urinals, W.C. bowls and taps were supplied and installed.

ST. HYACINTHE.
PUBLIO BUILDING.

The outdoor mail receiver was altered and improved, and a section of the box

screen was rearranged for a larger receiving wicket.
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SHAWVILLE.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

This building, described in last year's report, is still in course of construction.

A contract was entered into on 5th February, 1916, for the supply, erection and
finishing of the interior post office fittings.

Contractors : The Berlin Interior Hardwood Co., Berlin, Ont.

The post office lock box equipment and brass grilles were supplied.

Additional electric lights and wall switches were supplied on the ground and first

floors, also four one-light iron brackets outside the building at entrances and over the

mail receiver and at the rear entrances.

THREE EIVERS.

PUBLIC BUILDING (temporary).

The whole of the exterior and interior of this temporary building was repainted,

and the electric light installation was improved.

NEW PUBLIC BUILDING.

This building, described in the report of 1914, is still in course of construction.

VICTORIAVDLLE.

PUBLIC BUILDING. *

The whole of the exterior openings, galleries, porches, etc., of this building were

repainted and many other minor repairs were carried out.

PKOVINCE OF ONTARIO.

ACTON.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

A tower clock, manufactured by Evans & Co., England, was installed complete, the

tower lighted by electricity and a staircase built to the clock room.

A record room was constructed in the basement of this building.

ALEXANDEIA.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Lock placed on outside south door leading to St. Catherine street.

Minor repairs to plaster work in post office working space.

ALMONTE.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The work of building an addition, described in last year's report, is completed.

A four-dial clock was supplied by W. F. Evans & Sons, England, and installed in

tower, including electric light wiring to dials and machinery rooms.

The old galvanized iron roof was painted; hardwood floors laid on st-air landings

iind hall, and alterations were made to soil pipe.
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AMHERSTBURG.
PUBLIC BUILDING.

This building was decorated throughout. A new window shade was supplied and

the door cheeks put in good working order.

AURORA.
* PUBLIC BUILDING.

This building, which has been described in last year's report, is now completed

and occupied by the Post Office and Customs departments.

A contract was awarded for the supply and installation of post office and customs

interior fittings Mth May, 1915.

Contractor : The Canadian Office and School Furniture Co., Limited, Preston, Ont.

A tower clock, manufactured by J. B. Joyce & Co., England, has been installed

complete. Post office boxes and drawers have been installed and brass fittings set up

in the lobby.

The grounds were graded and a fence erected around the property.

A concrete sidewalk was laid in front of this building and up to the side entrance

door.

AYLMER.

PUBLIC BUILDING.
•

The grounds have been graded and seeded down and the cement sidewalk extended.

The tower clock, supplied by John Smith & Sons, England, has been installed

complete.

Check springs have been supplied for the outside doors and screens for the

windows. Some minor changes were made in the heating; gas burner supplied, and

an electric light installed over the stairs.

BARRIE.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The grounds have been graded, cement sidewalk and curbs put down and iron

lighting poles set up around the property.

The broken glass clock dials were replaced, the tower wired and tungsten lamps

furnished.

The gas inspection office was moved from the basement to the first floor and

connections made for gas and water supply. Various small repairs and changes were

made to the plumbing and heating apparatus and a gas burner was supplied.

DRILL HALL.

This building, described in last year's report, is completed.

BELLEVILLE.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The stone steps were redressed, pointed and patent treads put down. The wooden
winter steps were repaired and painted. The roof, which had been leaking in several

places, was put in good repair.

Additional electric lights were installed in the post office. The plumbing in the

caretaker's quarters was changed and the radiation increased.

The offices of the Inland Revenue department were moved; plumbing fixtures

installed, screens and counters placed in position.
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BEELESr.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The interior of the post office was painted and electric lights installed over new
sorting cases, and various small repairs were made.

The work of wiring and installing electric fixtures was executed in this building

by contractor, A. Lockhart, Berlin, Ont.

BOWMAKTILLE.
PUBUC BUILDING.

A broken radiator was repaired and a wash basin was installed.

BRACEBRIDGE.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Cement walks were constructed around the building and the grounds graded.

Post office boxes formerly used in the old ix)st office were purchased from the

postmaster, for use in the new building.

A contract was entered into, 29th July, 1915, for supply and installation of interior

fittings for the Customs department with The Berlin Office and Fixture Co., Limited,

Berlin, Ont.

The old desks and chairs were repaired for use in the new offices.

BRAMPTON.
PUBLIC BUILDING.

The position of the screen in the post office was changed, which necessitated addi-
tional boxes and drawers being installed, also some extra electric lights and radiators
changed. Ten new window shades were supplied in the post office.

At the addition to this building, a new platform was erected and painted.

BRAXTFORD.
NEW PUBLIC BUILDING.

The construction of the new public building is now completed and the interior

fittings all installed.

A tower clock, supplied from W. F. Evans & Sons, England, has been installed

with the necessary platforms, etc. Glass broken in transit was replaced.

The gas inspection department was installed in their new quarters. A wash basin
with connection made for sprinkling ashes, was placed in the basement.

BRIDGEBURG.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The firepot section of the heating furnace gave out during the winter and was
replaced by a new one.

A new pulley and rope were put on the flag pole and- some changes made as to the
plumbing work.

BURFORD.
PUBLIC BUILDLNG.

The construction of this building, described in last year's report, is completed.
A contract was entered into 4th September, 1915, for the supply and installation

of the post office fittings.
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Contractor—The Canadian Office and School Furniture Co., Preston, Out.

A tower clock and bell was supplied from the manufacturer, John Smith & Sons,

England.

Brass grilles, P.O. boxes, key locks, etc., furnished.

CAELETON PLACE.

Pl'BUC BUILDING.

The various works described in last year's report have been completed.

Solid bronze lock provided for front door and lock for back entrance to building.

Replacing of lights and switches on the post office fittings.

CAYUGA.
PUBLIC BUILDING.

The fence on the rear boundary of the lot was repaired. A bath and sink were

installed in the living quarters of the caretaker, and a cupboard built.

CHATHAM.
PUBLIC BUILDING.

The winter porch was put up, the eavetroughs repaired and the electric door

bell to the caretaker's quarters put in proper order.

Three special electric light fixtures were installed in the lobby of the post office

and tungsten lamps supplied for the same. An electric fan was also furnished.

A new wash bowl was supplied and installed in the post office, and various small

repairs to plumbing service were executed.

CHESLEY.
PUBLIC BUILDING.

The department paid a portion of the cost of the erection of a cement wall at the

rear of the building to form a dividing line. Connection was made to enable the use

of hose for watering the lawn, and the tower clock cables which had worn out were

renewed.

CLINTON.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The tower clock which had been furnished last year was installed complete and the

tower lighted by electricity.

COBOUEG.

PUBLIC BUILDIKO.

The flag pole was broken in a severe storm and a new one was erected on the roof.

The heating apparatus was given a general overhauling and a new section put in

the boiler. A gas plate to heat water was furnished to the caretaker. New sash cord

was put in several windows and two window screens were furnished.

COLLINGWOOD.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Brass fittings for the post office were supplied and installed. The entire building

was furnished with window blinds.

Some new furniture was supplied for the Customs department; the old furniture

in the marine inspector's office was repaired, cleaned and varnished.
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A contract was entered into 13th August, 1915, for the performance of interior

changes by the removal of several partitions on the first floor and the erection of new
plaster and glazed partitions to give accommodation for collector of customs and long

room, and changes were made in position of doors in offices to give an independent

access from corridor for inspector of hulls. Contractors: Bryan Manufacturing Co.,

Limited, Collingwood, and Michael Healy, of Toronto, Ont.

A contract was awarded 27th August, 1915, for the supply and installation of

interior post office and customs fittings. Contractors : The Berlin Interior Hardwood
Company, Limited, Berlin, Ont.

DESERONTO.

PUBLIC BUILDIKG.

The office of the Indian agent was not properly heated and changes were made to

provide additional radiation, and the office was kalsomined and painted.

DRESDEN.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

A new fence was erected around this building and painted, and twenty-five loads

of gravel furnished to make a good roadway.

The pumping apparatus had not been giving satisfactory service for some time,

so it was overhauled and the various worn out parts were replaced, and tungsten lamps

were fiirnished.

DUNDAS.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The outside electric light standards were painted and the main doors repaired

and fitted with check springs.

EGANVILLE.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The construction of this building, described in the reports of 1914 and 1915, is

completed.

A concrete sidewalk, with curb, was built on the public street in front of the

property.

The position of the catch basin was changed to the west end of the lot, so that it

would be at the lowest point for surface drainage.

Repairs made to leaking roof at the bolts holding the flag pole stays and around
the hopper pipe.

A tower clock, made by W. F. Evans & Sons, England, was supplied and installed.

A beU hood was erected on roof, weight box and tables built, circular windows prepared
to receive dials, and electric wiring and lights provided for tower and dials.

Picture moulding placed in six rooms and hall on the whole of the first floor.

ELMIRA.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

This building is nearing completion. The interior fittings have been installed and
also a bag rack.

A contract was awarded on the- 28th April, 1915, for the supply and installation

of post office and customs fittings.

Contractors—The Office Specialty Mfg. Co., Limited.
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ELORA.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The pitch and gravel roof was gone over carefully and repaired where necessary.

Various small repairs were executed in connection with the water service and

plumbing of this building, and the interior of the building was decorated.

ESSEX.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Complaints were being made in regard to the heating of the customs offices ; the

hot water pipes were covered, new gas burners installed, brass weather strips put on
and the windows gone over and reputtied.

FEEGTJS.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The roof, which had been leaking, was gone over and repitched and gravelled.

Small repairs in connection with water service were executed, and the interior of the

building was decorated during the summer.

FOET WILLIAM.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Three burnt out grate bars were renewed ; a partition in the addition was beginning

to sag, jack screws were applied and new supports put in, and the vault door was sent

to the makers to be repaired.

CUSTOMS EXAMINING WAREHOUSE.

The construction of this building, described in the report of 1914, is completed.

A contract was awarded 27th May, 191.5, for the supply and installation of an

electric passenger elevator.

Contractor—The Turnbull Elevator Mfg. Co., Limited.

A contract was entered into 12th November, 1915, for the making, erection and

finishing of interior customs' fittings.

Contractors—The Berlin Interior Hardwood Co., Berlin, Ont.

GALT.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The old galvanized iron eavetroughs, wooden cornice and brackets were badly

decayed.

A builder's scaffold was erected from the ground to remove the old cornice material,

and execute the new work.

A new cornice, brackets and eavetroughs were built and painted, making prac-

tically a new cornice all around the building.

The electric wiring was altered to suit new cases and tungsten lamps were

furnished, and the post office interior and all the exterior of the building, including

the roof and new cornice were painted.

DRILL HALL.

This building, described in last year's report, is completed.



REPORT OF TBE CHIEF ARCHITECT 29

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

GANANOQUE.
PIBLIC BTILDING.

A movable protective covering v?as made for outside steps. Some plumbing
repaired, and the tar and gravel roof was repaired.

GLENCOE.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

A new sidewalk was laid, and old sidewalk raised and the septic tank cleaned out.

Several new glasses were supplied for the post office boxes.

GODERICH.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

An outside lamp was put in position and new concrete steps built.

The screen in the post office was altered and an oak wardrobe supplied for the

Inland Revenue office.

A rural mail sheJter at the rear of the building is in process of construction.

GRIMSBY.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

A sealed service box had to be installed to comply with the rules of the Hydro-
electric Commission. Tungsten lamps were furnished.

A safe was shipped from Toronto to Grimsby and placed in the building. Fifty

feet of hose, five window screens and two coil springs for door checks were supplied.

GUELPH.
PUBLIC BUILDING.

The junction between the post oifice property and Douglas street was paved.

Alterations were made in the Inland Revenue offices, which required the changing

-of the radiators and the electric lights. Collector's office, electric' call bells were

installed. A store room was built in the basement for this department.

Itfew rubbers were furnished and put on the revolving doors; the lighting service,

plumbing and heating were kept in good order; the down pipes and flashing repaired;

the toilet room in the caretaker's apartments painted; a drinking tap fitted up in

the post office, and a gas plate and tungsten lamps were furnished.

HAMILTON.
PUBLIC BUILDING.

The roof on the addition to this building was repaired and made water-tight.

The flag pole and the office of the inspector of inland revenue were painted.

A new partition was put up and arrangements made for artificial ventilation in

the basement.

The clock tower was wired for electricity, and fire hose was furnished.

HANOVER.
PUBLIC BUILDING.

The construction is now completed, interior fittings installed and the building

is occupied.

A retaining wall on side and rear boundaries, and cement walks were built and
the grounds left in a finished condition. A fire escape was erected and weather strip-

ping was put on all exposed windows.



30 DEPARTMKS'T OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

A tower clock was furnished from Jolin Smith & Sons, England, and installed with
all necessary platforms, etc., and the tower was wired to be lighted by electricity.

Post ofSee boxes and drawers were set up in the post office, also brass fittings and
a wire basket to receive letters were furnished, and office furniture was supplied to

the postmaster and collector of customs.

The Canadian Office and School Furniture Co., Ltd., were the contractors for the
supply and installation of post office and customs fittings.

HAEEISTON.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The roof around the flag pole v,"is mada water tight. The interior of this build-

ing was painted and decorated.

INGEESOLL.

PUBLIC BUILDIXC—ADDITION'S A^iD ALTERATIONS.

New post office boxes were installed. The old post office furniture was repaired

and a light installed in the money order office. The parcel post wicket has been takei»

out and the space filled with letter boxes.

Several window shades and tungsten lamps were supplied for the post office.

The new office of the gas inspection branch was fitted up with gas and water and, .

owing to changes, a drain was extended.

EIIMPTVILLE.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Additional keys were furnished for the post office boxes.

Repairing the edge of concrete sidewalk steps and platform to side entrance,

where exposed after the removal of wall, destroyed by fire, of the adjoining owner.

Solid brass tube hand railing provided for mail receiver steps and in centre of the

stone steps leading to main entrance door.

A tower clock, made by W. F. Evans & Sons, England, with all the appliances, was
installed complete.

KENOEA.

PUBLIC BUILDING.
|

An outside porch was closed in by windows and a door. A cable, block and weight

were supplied for the clock, and general repairs were made as required.

KINCAEDINE.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The grounds around the building were levelled and a tree and plants set out.

The plaster repaired and the interior of the building was decorated.

KINGSTON.

^
CUSTOM HOUSE.

The kitchen, bath-room and pantry in the collector's apartment were papered and
painted.

Work supervised by Power & Son, architects, Kingston, Ont.
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CUSTOM HOUSE—HERCH.MER BUILDING (rENTED).

The gas apparatus rearranged and increased to meet the requirements of the

inspector of inland revenue. The examining warehouse and appraiser's office were

cleaned and redecorated.

POST OFFICE.

Rubber floor covering was laid to the public entrance and outer vestibule, and

board covering on the stone steps of the building.

ROYAL MILITARY COLLEGE DORMITORY.

The additional works, in last year's report, have been completed, also the following

:

Concrete surface gutters have been constructed around the building, having cast iron

gratings at outlets and heavy copper tapered buckets with handles as catchalls, upper

half being perforated. All drains are run in four and six-inch tile pipe connected to

main drains at two man-holes. A built up macadam road and cement walk have been

constructed from the main drive to the building, with oval turn at same and cement

walks continue to gymnasium on the other side of the square.

LAKEFIELD.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

This is a new building; the installation of the interior fittings in the post office

was completed in December and the building occupied.

The tower clock, which was furnished from J. B. Joyce & Co., England, has been
installed complete and the tower wired to light the dials. Post office boxes and bag
rack were installed in the post office.

The water service was put in good working order, and picture moulding was put
up in apartments.

LEAMINGTON.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The plumbing service was repaired. The interior of this building was painted.

LINDSAY.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The post office screen was moved to enlarge the lobby; additional tile flooring

and section of new wooden flooring was laid, and cork carpet was put down at the

wickets behind the screen and in the postmaster's office.

Sliding snow broke the glass in the skylight and this was replaced.

Additional heating was installed in the post office, also several extra electric lights.

The post office and weights and measures offices were painted.

Door cheeks and window shades furnished. A tower clock was supplied from
J. B. Joyce & Co., England; part of the dial frames were broken and cracked in places,

and these were made good.
• The work of raising the clock tower one story higher was awarded to R. Sheehy.

As soon as this is completed the clock will be installed in the tower.

LISTOWEL.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

A drain connection was installed from the septic tank to the town sewer.

DRILL HALL.

This building, which was described in the report of 1915, is completed.
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LONDON.

CUSTOM HOUSE.

Eepairing boilers, brickwork around boilers and radiators ; repairs made to plumb-
ing and plaster.

One large room was decorated; the entire building was wired in conduit for

electric light and fitted with the necessary fixtures.

POST OFFICE AND CAHUNO BLOCK AXXEX.

The roof of both post office and addition were repaired and painted. A new
hatchway to the roof was put in and a new rope and pulley put on the flag pole; out-

side hose connections 'were made for washing windows; the boiler was repaired; a

bag rack was furnished; a truck repaired and general small repairs made as required.

The caretaker was furnished with up-to-date cleaning equipment.
The post office building and Carling block annex were wired in conduit for elec-

tric light and fixtures installed; the building is now lighted by hydro-electric iwwer,
and owing to the change of current a new motor had to be furnished for the post
office cancelling machine.

MIDLAND.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Twelve awnings were furnished and attached to this building.

MILDMAY.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

A short cement walk laid to connect the street sidewalk with the building.

MILTON.

Pl'BLIC BUILDING.

This building, which was described in the report of last year, is now finished and
occupied. The interior fittings and lock letter boxes have been installed. A safe was
installed in the post office and adjusted.

A retaining wall, concrete sidewalks and fences were built around this property.

A tower clock, supplied from Messrs. Gillett and Johnston, England, was installed,

the bell hoisted, all necessary stands erected and the tower wired for electric light.

Window shades were supplied for this building.

MILVERTON.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

This building, described in report of 1914, is now completed, the interior fittings

have been installed.

A tower clock, manufactured by John Smith & Sons, England, has been installed

complete.

MITCHELL.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

A hot water front was put in the stove and connection made with the hot water
boiler, and tungsten lamps were supplied.
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MOUNT FOKEST.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Five loads of gravel wore furnished for the driveway, part of the boiler was broken

and had to be repaired. Owing to heavy rains, the cellar became flooded and had to be

pumped dry.

The interior of this building was decorated; several additional electric lights were
installed, and a drop letter bo.x furnished for the interior of the post office.

NAPANEE.
PRILL HALL.

This building, described in the report of 1915, is completed.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The roof including conductor pipes were repaire(J and all painted; connection

was made for additional water supply; the drain flushed, and the fence around the

property was painted.

NEWMAEKET.
PUBLIC BUILDING.

This building, which was fully described in my last year's report, is now completed.

The interior fittings have been set up.

Retaining wall, concrete pavement and sidewalks were constructed and the

gi-ounds graded.

Messrs. Gillett & Johnston, England, furnished a tower clock, with bell, which was
installed, with all necessary accessories, and the tower is lighted by electricity. Window
shades and tungsten lamps were furnished.

NIAGARA FALLS.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The roof was repaired and given a coat of roof paint. The brick and stone work,

also outside woodwork, were repaired and the whole exterior painted.

A new fence was erected in the rear and painted; the storm sash was repainted;
iron guard bars were put on several windows, and one door and the customs oflice were
painted.

The safe door was repaired and new keys furnished, one large awning furnished
and an electric light installed on the stairs.

NORTH BAY.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Shelving and counter placed in the railway mail service department, and six fly

screens supplied.

The post office screen was altered and a new section of boxes installed, and the

customs long room was decorated.

NORWICH.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The erection of this building has been completed and the interior fittings installed.

A fence, concrete sidewalk, additional steps and plank bridge over gutter have
been built.

19—3
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A J. B. Joyce & Co., England, tower clock was furnished and the same has been

set up and left in good running order.

Brass fittings have been supplied for the post office. A safe was hoisted and placed

in the customs department.

A contract was entered into 26th May, 1915, for the supply and installation of

post office and customs fittings. Contractors : The Walker Bin and Store Fixture Co.,

Limited, Berlin, Ont.

OEANGEVILLE.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The safe door got out of order and was sent to Toronto to be repaired. Door

checks and hinges were provided for front doors.

OEILLIA.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The old letter boxes were cleaned and relaequered to match new ones : new brass

grilles supplied and old brass ones refinished; additional electric lights installed and

tungsten lamps supplied.

The J. B. Joyce & Co. tower clock machinery received last year was installed.

The customs department was moved from temporary quarters to offices in the new
building. The vault lock was repaired, new key furnished, and window shades sup-

plied for offices.

OSHAWA.

PUBLIC BUILDING ADDITION.

Broken parts in the heating system were renewed; window shades, door checks

and tungsten lamps furnished.

OTTAWA.

PARLUMENT BUILDING FIRE.

On the evening of February 3, 1916, while Parliament was in session, fire, origin-

ating in the newspaper reading room situated in rear of the main tower entrance and
between the Chambers of the House of Commons and the Senate, swept practically

through the entire building, leaving only the library of Parliament and the now
western wing undamaged. The House of Commons and the Senate Chambers were

completely destroyed, together with all the offices immediately adjoiiiint; them, making
it impossible to continue the session in the damaged building, so the Victori.i

Memorial Museum was fitted up with temporary subdivisions, and the Commons and
Seaiate were housed with practically no interruption to their sittings.

The building, which has been completely demolished since the fire, with the excep-

tion of the Library, was designed by Mr. Thomas Fuller, and was erected under con-

tract, work starting on the 20th of December, 1859, and was virtually completed in

October, 1865, the Legislature of Canada holding a session therein on the Sth of June,
1866.

The style of architecture was Gothic, and from its sotting and environments and
historical associations was a building which not only admirably served the-i^urposes for

which it was designed and used but was also an object of admiration and pride to the
Canadian people. The exterior facing stone was Nepean sandstone, mostly rock-faoed,

trimmed around windows, doors and cornices with Ohio grey sandstone, with relieving

arches of Pot.-idam red sandstone.

The interior walls were of brick, laid in mortar composed of sand and lime.
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The construction of the floors generally was wrought-iron beams, filled in between

with a concrete composed of waterlime and sand.

The roofs throughout were of heavy wood beams, and covered witlr slate, copper,

and iron.

The main central tower was of the same construction as the walls but was backed

up with limestone blocks. The interior work in tower was mostly of wood, and the

roof was composed of heavy wood beams covered with iron.

The interiors of both Commons and Senate Chambers were constructed with gal-

leries on all sides, and a series of polished granite arches, supported on polished granite

columns, ran around the Chambers. The ceiling was flat and divided into panels of
prism glass, through which the Chambers were lighted, the electric lamps being-

placed above the prisms.

A considerable quantity of furnishings were saved, including a number of the

oil portraits which hung on the walls of the Senate and corridors.

Parliament appointed Messrs. John Pearson and J. O. Marchand, architects, to

make a report on the damage done by the fire, and prepare plans for the reconstruc-

tion of the building. A commission also was appointed composed of Mr. E. A. Pringle,

K.C., and Judge MacTavish to inquire into and report on the origin of the fire.

Parliament Building. '

The attic of the Parliament Building was given attention as a precaution against
fire; brick walls were carried up to the under side of roof boarding with the fire com-
municating doors and the wood beams covered with asbestos over metallic lath. This
work was all completed with the exception of 1,880 yards. In connection with and
made necessary by the rewiring of parliament buildings, some sixty-five rooms were
re-decorated, also hallways and stairways. The Speaker's quarters in the House of

Commons were also re-decorated to meet the requirements of the Hon. Mr. Sevigny.
A hot water radiator was installed in the stationery vault. The room occupied by
Dr. Flint, Clerk of the House, was also re-decorated and a new hardwood floor laid.

In the Senate reading room, there were installed three Monarch hot water radi-

ators and a new floor was laid. Rooms 23 and 28 were renovated and in the latter,

six new windows were placed and a hardwood floor laid. Two cupboards were erected

in Mr. Lelievre's room and one in room 19 and a set of open shelving in rooms 18 and
19. In addition to this, there were minor repairs made where necessary and the build-

ing kept in proper condition.

The corridor surroimding the light shaft, ground floor of Senate, was laid with
marble mosaic after the concrete floor had been cut up for the placing of electric light

conduit.

The skylights over the Senate and House of Commons Chambers were replaced

with modern steel and copper skylights glazed with ^-inch wired plate glass. The
galvanized iron roofs and cornices over both chambers were removed and " toncan

metali " roofs on wood strips laid.

The pent house over the twin elevators, Hoxise of Commons, was altered by
lowering the roof about eight feet.

East BlocJc.

This building has been equipped with the Presto heating plant, the work was com-

menced in 191'!: and closed down for the winter, being again proceeded with during the

summer months. Everything is now complete including the placing in the eastern

stack of a 45 inch full house fan fitted with water-cooled bearings for the purpose of

creating induced draught, and the placing of a new ventilating stack to give better

ventilation in boiler room and carry off gases which were causing trouble in room*
adjacent to the boiler room thereby preventing windows from being opened.

19—34
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The window in room 53 (overlooking the yard) was changed from a Gothic to a

pqjare head opening in order to increase the light. Rooms 131 and 133

were renovated for Auditor General's Department. In room 96, a cast iron

«uamel wash basin was installed, in room 99 a system of call bells, both

ior the Department of External Affairs. One hundred and fifteen feet

•of shelving was placed in three basement rooms for Finance Department.

The room occupied by the Assistant Superintendent of Labour was renovated and a

-wash basin installed. Three sets of Pullman automatic ventilators were placed in the

anlnister's room and six sections of shelving were erected in the incinerator room.

The messenger's room, Department of Justice, was renovated and a new floor laid.

Shelving was erected in the stationery room and in the private secretary's room. In

the corridor of the Pri\'y Council a partition was moved and the height increased. Two
sets of shelving were erected in room 85, and a cupboard in the office of the assistant

clerk of Privy Council. For the Secretary of State, rooms 110, 112 and 121 were

renovated. In room 121, an electric clock installed, also a new wash basin ; a new hard-

wood floor was laid in room 110 and in room 116 the floor was planed and treated;

shelving was erected in rooms 3 and 4.

Alterations were made on the top floor to accommodate the Chief Press Censor.

A^h partitions, half glass, were erected, walls tinted, woodwork painted and cupboards

built.

The ground and first floor corridors were stripped of the old gas and combination

fixtures and a complete installation of Realite fixtures installed, making a marked
improvement in the appearance of the corridors.

In addition to the foregoing, there were placed thirty-eight new windows in various

rooms, most of which were renovated. Minor repairs were executed where found neces-

sary.

West Block.

In the West Block the work of providing increased accommodation for the

Department of Trade and Commerce was proceeded with and completed. The work
done consisted of the removal of a brick wall between rooms 35 and 37 and the placing

of an iron column and steel girders to carry the wall above. The new quarters were

renovated and electric lighting and plumbing altered. Twelve brass rods and curtains

were installed in various rooms throughout the department. Alterations were made
to give increased accommodation in the Department of Inland Revenue, consisting of

removing partitions and erecting other partitions of 6-inch terra-cotta to a height of

the old partition, the balance in sash with opaque glass. Alterations were also made
to the heating radiators to suit the new room and one two-light cluster and electric

light fijxtures placed, as WeU as a re-arrangcmcnt of bells. The Weights and Measxires

branch of the same department was also renovated and a new wash basin installed.

The floor of room 228 was repaired and a new floor laid in room 64; this room also was
renovated and a time clock and system of call bells installed.

For the Department of Public Works, the chief engineer's storeroom in the base-

ment was renovated, and some shelving erected. Room No. 8 was renovated, as were

i.lso rooms 3, 4, 6, 118, 118a, and that of the paymaster, collector of revenue and the

record room. In the stationery stock room, in basement, one large window replaced two
smaller ones. Two new doors were also provided to the paymaster's office in basement.

A room for the stationery branch of the Department of Railways and Canals was
renovated, cleaned and oiled the floor of messengers' room and that of room 147 and
made a pigeon-hole cabinet for room 190. There were also a number of rooms renovated

in connection with the re-wiring. In addition to works enumerated here, a number
of minor matters were given attention, whereby the building was kept in proper repair.

The sandstone steps to the customs entrance were very much worn and were cut down
and patent non-slip treads inserted. The sandstone ballusters on the entrance landing

were replaced by bronze ballusters.
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At the Wellington street main entrance there was installed a set of revolving

doors and the tile floor made good where necessary.

The ground floor corridor was laid with hattleship linoleum, and in doing so a

new departiire was made in laying the corridor floor covering close up from wall to

wall, in place of a centre strip only as has heen done heretofore.

Considerable pointing was done to the stone work, more particularly on the south,

east and west walls from ground to under side of first floor windows. Some of the

base course stones had to be renewed, as they had been split open by frost.

A decided improvement in the system of corridor lighting of this block was made

by the installation of Eealite fixtures.

Supreme Court—No. iO Bank Street.

The greater portion of the galvanized iron cover on the deck roof was renewed.

A portion of the stone (exterior) walls was pointed, also the retaining and enclosure

walls at rear. Eepairs were made to window casings and the lighting system.

Langevin Block.

The principal item of constructional work done by this branch in the above build-

ing was the extending of the iron staircase from second to top floor at the west end

of building. In conjunction with this work, the wellways of two elevators were white-

washed and rubber mats were installed in thfee elevators.

In room 24, occupied by Agricultural Department, weather strip was placed

around window and one rotary ventilator installed. Some changes were made to the

photographic room of the Patent Branch in the attic, a small dark room was built and

five call bells installed. Room 22 was also renovated.

The Minister of Interior's offices, three sets of ventilators were supplied, and for

the correspondence registration branch, erected 137 feet of glass partition, changed

the position of another partition, repaired the floor, rearranged the heating system,

removed some steel filing cases and did some 1,050 yards of washing and tinting.

For the ofiice of the Deputy Minister, placed a new wash basin ; rooms Nos. 30

and 36 were renovated for the Private Secretary, Post Office Department, also that of

the Deputy Postmaster General.

A large section of the copper roof which had been laid with a standing seam was
removed and relaid on wood strips with expansion joint.

Post Office.

A glass screen was placed 26 by 8 feet to take the place of a wire mesh screen.

Three sets of rubbers and felt were placed on three revolving vestibule doors. A wash
basin was installed in the dead letter office, an l^-inch pine floor was laid in that part

of the basement where vaults are located. A set of pigeon-holes erecfed in the exam-

ination room. The large room on the first floor, formerly letter carriers' room, was
renovated and electric light given attention. An electric clock was placed in the

letter carriers' division, repairs were made in the lavatories and in the dead letter

office ; to replace a wooden one a terra-cotta partition was erected, a doorway was cut

in the brick wall in basement and parcel post boxes moved to make room for the instal-

lation of a new elevator. The floor was given two coats of paint and the entire top

floor fitted up as quarters for the letter carriers. Many minor repairs were carried

out from time to time.

Customs Building—Sussex Street.

This building, a description of which appeared in the report of 1914, is still in

process of construction.
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Mines Branch Building, Sussex Street.

About 200 feet of shelving, 40 feet of " V " joint partition, was erected, with a

sliding door 8 feet wide, replaced a new floor on east side of building, with 16 feet of

track and rollers for same. Installed a Quebec heater and made minor repairs to

stairs, etc. Renewed the foundation of an outhouse or storeroom with some 700 feet

of plank and 30 joists. Alterations were also made to the carpenter shop and the walls

whitewashed and woodwork painted. Fitting up the ceramic laboratory of Mines
branch, including the suisplying and laying of about 8,000 wire cut shale bricks,

erecting shelving; placing sections of radiators, erecting a smokestack (about 40 feet,

with cast iron base, buckstays and bolts) ; building a terra-cotta partition and plastering

same, together with about 250 yards of plastering on stone wall ; installed a wash basin

and electric lights; in the photograph room a new wash basin was erected; in the

cement laboratory drain pipe was diverted to make room for a large testing machine.

Additional laboratory room was provided for the ceramic division. The drain at the

fuel testing plant had to be opened in mid-winter to clear it, and there is a possibility

that a large section of the tile pipe will have to be renewed.

SSIf Sussex Street, Occupied as a Distribution Office of Department Puhlic Printing.

The hallways were completely renovated, all broken glass replaced and a Quebec
heater installed; a number of rooms were renovated and repairs made. Electric

lighting was given attention. The wooden sheds in the rear of the premises, facing

the driveway, were repaired and painted.

Printing Bureau.

In connection with this building, there was placed new wood planking at the rear

entrance; a partition was erected in the basement; the stamping room and franchise

room was renovated throughout; the stock room was also renovated; the walls washed

and tinted, fifty columns, also two partitions and forty-one beams were painted. The
office of the King's Printer was renovated and thirty-four feet of partition was erected

;

made alterations to existing partition in the office of the Assistant King's Printer.

Installed two radiators and generally renovated these quarters. Repairs were made
to the concrete floors and one hundred and forty-six feet of gutter cut in floor and a

cast iron cover placed thereon. Electrical supplies, plumbing, lumber and hard\vare

were supplied for mechanics employed by the stationery department. The wooden
sidewalk at the east side of the building and lialf way across the rear was replaced by a

concrete walk.

A portion of the exterior walls were pointed, and the rear of all wooden out-

buildings facing the east side of the building were repaired and painted.

Boyal Mint.

Some washing and tinting was done and 100 feet of shelving was erected in the

assay dejiartment, as well as painting of wood work. Some changes were Tuade to the

hot water supply in the old portion of refinery. A new fan was purchased and installed

in the lefinery to replace the old worn out fan, and a new fan was supplied. Repairs

were made to the roof and minor repairs to building where necessary, inclu(Jing the

varnishing of main doors.

A section of the pavement in front of the refinery was laid with mastic.

Victoria Museum.

Occupied by the National Art Oallery and Mines Branch.

National Art Gallery: Renewed the boiler plates in heating boilers and cleaned

the furnaces; the water pipe from lavatory was renewed; the position of telephone was
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clianped also bells and annunciator. Some 262 yards of burlap placed on the wall with

moulding and painted to match existing burlap. A green baize, door placed and the

floor stained and waxed. Four sections were removed from water coils in main gallery

and wall blocks for holding cases and a number of key stretchers were supplied.

To tlie above work may be added the moving of the Mines Branch to Wellington

street and the fitting up of the building as temporary quarters for the Commons and

Senate. This entailed considerable work, and included the construction of a large

number of rooms in the main halls, the erection of a new lavatory, the installation of a

system of bells and phones. The electric lighting was considerably changed to meet the

new requirements. A Senate chamber was constructed and the building generally

fitted up and furnished without the business of the House being seriously handicapped.

Eoyal Victoria Memorial Museum Tower.

A contract was entered into on the 13th September, 1915, for the partial removal

of the main tower at the Victoria memorial museum.
The work consisted of removing eighty feet (80' 0") of masonry, eleven leaded

stained glass windows, a roof and ceiling of steel floor beams, covered with terra cotta

and concrete.

A temporary wooden roof was erected at the first floor level over the area of tower.

The construction was completed during the fi^scal year.

Contractors—The Carleton Construction Co., Limited.

Clerk of works.—Pat. Canty.

Fisheries Building, Queen Street.

About 94 feet of concrete capping was placed on stone retaining or garden wall at

back of building.

For the purpose of showing specimens, twelve cases made of plate glass on steel

frames with wood bases were supplied. The sidewalk was repaired and areas enclosed

with prismatic sidewalk lights and the wooden fences repaired and painted.

Harris and Campbell Building.

This building is entirely occupied by the Superintendent's Branch, Department of

Public Works, to give increased accommodation for the carrying out of repairs, etc.,

to Dominion buildings at Ottawa.

Prism lights were placed in the Queen street areas. The chimney was built up an
additional 13 feet to prevent smoke beating down on streets during high winds. Minor
repairs were made where necessary and the building kept free of shavings and other
combustible materials usually found around workshops of this description.

Ee. Wellington Street Properties—Perley Home, No. Jflo ^Yellington Street.

Tliis building has been thoroughly overhauled and renovated, partitions erected,

floors repaired. Electric lights, telephones and call bells instiiUed and generally fitted

up to meet the requirements of the live stock branch of the Department of AgTicul-

ture, which was recently moved into the building from 66 Queen street. Nos. 2U7 and
227 were reinforced and altered to meet the requirements of the Department of Militia

and Defence which was to occupy the premises as inspection rooms. The plimibing

and heating were thoroughly overhauled, a new steam boiler installed, also the elec-

tric wiring and lighting, and two electric freight elevators were installed.

As a result of the disastrous fire of February 3, the entire property was placed at

the disposal of the Mines Department, which was moved from the Victoria memorial
museum to give the necessary space in that building for the Senate and House of

Commons.
Number 303 Wellington street. Workman store, was fitted up for stationery branch

of Naval Service. One No. D 2 A Otis hand power elevator was installed; about 800
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feet of shelving erected; an archway cut through a brick wall, a lath and plaster par-

tition removed ; floors repaired ; lighting and heating altered and increased, and the

building made suitable for the purpose for which it is now used.

At 345 to 351 Wellington street, occupied by the Geological Survey of Mines
Branch, there was about ten thousand feet of shelving erected, and a freight elevator

installed- The building shored up suiBcient to carry the weight that it will be

required to carry ; a new heating system installed, also rewiring and the building

thoroughly overhauled and renovated.

Ee Wellington Street Properties. (No. 2.)

The Department of Militia and Defence has been given several properties, Nos.
341, 343, 353, 357 Wellington street, for use in caring for war supplies and housing
certain portions of battalions raised in Ottawa.

22 Vittoria Street.

This building is occupied by the War Hospitals Commission and the Economic
Development Commission and was thoroughly renovated to meet the requirements of

the Commissions ; the plumbing and electric light overhauled and a new boiler installed,

some cupboards erected, an archway made through wall to lavatory, a new closet and
wash basin were placed, a system of call bells was installed and brass name plates were
placed at the entrance door.

21 Cliff Street.

This building was renovated for the Fruit branch, Department of Agriculture.

Seven tungstoliers and two telephones were installed. A brass name plate was placed

at the entrance and eight awnings for windows- were erected.

Canadian Building.

Structural work.—Two iron frames and skylight awnings were placed over sky-

lights for the seed branch. Department of Agriculture. A partition was taken down
and rebuilt in another room. Five rooms were also renovated for this branch ; two

4-light clusters and four drdp lights wore installed in quarters of Mr. Euddick; Dr.

Hilton's office was also renovated.

Three rooms were renovated for the dairy branch and the office of the chief of the

branch was renovated.

For the immigration branch. Department of Interior, six special cupboards were

erected.

A considerable amount of work was done in this building for the lands patent

branch previous to their removal from the Langcvin block, comprising about 900

yards washing and tinting of walls; 500 yards cleaning and oiling hardwood floor; the

removing of vault; taking down and re-plastering ceiling; placing new hardwood

flooring; removing a partition; erecting some new ash half-glass partitions. There
was also installed, in these q^iarters, sufficient electric light clusters to give adequate

light and a system of call bells to meet the requirements of the branch. Eooms 13

and 14 were renovated and a tungstolier placed in room 13.

For the Department of Trade and Commerce, census branch, we erected 176 feet

of open shelving and the lavatories on the 6th floor were renovated.

In addition to above works, repairs were made where necessary.

Woods Building.

Eooms 16, 17 and 18 were renovated and the floors oiled; in room 45 erected

twenty-three feet of wood and glass partition, renovated the room and oiled the floor.

Considerable work was done in the quarters occupied by contracts branch, consisting

of taking down a wall between rooms 52 and 53, renovating the same and placing cork
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lino on floor. Eoom 55 was also renovated and electric lights provided; room 2 was
also renovated; shelving was erected in room 71, and in room 80 some three hundred
hooks placed on wooden strips. In the records office some changes were made to the
electric lighting, some shelving in cupboards was altered, 100 hat and coat hooks
placed on wood strips and minor repairs were made. The lights in quarters occupied
by pensions claims board were re-arranged and call bells installed. New quarters were
prepared for the adjt. general ; 14 feet of glass pannelling placed on top of partition,

the room renovated and a three-light fixture installed. In room 6a, fourteen feet of
partition was erected, bell connection made to orderlies' room and a few minor changes
made. Two rooms in the basement were washed and tinted for the central registry.

Kooms 3, 4, .30, 50, 54 and 56 were renovated. A private branch telephone exchange
was installed; electric lighting given attention, new fixtures installed and general
repairs made where necessary.

66 Queen Street.

Occupied hy Agriculture Department.

The live stock branch was moved from this building to the old Perley home on
Wellington street, and the space that was vacated was taken by the publications branch.

A re-arrangement of electric wiring to suit machines was attended to for Agricul-
ture Department.

Rohinson Building.

In this building, rooms 2, 3 and 4, 5-10, private office and the hallway on top floor
were renovated and floors oiled for the Post Office Department, a sink was installed on
the ground floor, and the lighting and call bells were repaired as required.

Imperial Building, No. 126 Queen Street.

The Interior Department occupy the entire building; one double and one single
cupboard was supplied and placed for char service.

Stephen Building.

Shelving was erected, window shades supplied, a number of drop lights provided
and two rooms renovated for the seed grain branch. The stationery branch. Interior

Department, was moved from the Jarman and Popham building on Queen street (the
lease of which had expired). To this building considerable shelving and other altera- ,

tions were required.

Lamh Building, 317 Queen Street.

This building is occupied by the Department of the Inland Eevenue for laboratory
purposes.

Some twenty-two rooms were washed and tinted (about 2,713 yards) and 130 yards
painting of ceiling and floors.

Trafalgar Building.

Eoom 206 was renovated throughout, about twelve feet of partition was built to

ceiling and a green cloth door placed. Eooms 208 and 209 were renovated.
For the acounts branch. Department of Interior, a re-arrangement of the electric

lighting was executed and a number of drop lights installed, and lettering on doors
was attended to.

Carling Building.

For the school lands branch, Department of the Interior, a partition was extended
to ceiling, 26 drop lights were installed for the survey records branch, and minor
repairs made where necessary.
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Booth Building.

The quarters occupied by the War Purchasing Commission were fitted up with a

system of call bells. Electric lights, brass rod and curtain were supplied; alterations

made to partition, door springs, etc.

For the Department of Indian Affairs, some minor repairs were made.

Birlcs Building.

The departments having space in the Birks Building are: Agriculture, Militia

and Defence, Railways and Canals, and Public Works.
The Dominion Entomologist was supplied with storage sections and storage cup-

board; shelving and a brass plate was placed on the 6th floor for Agriculture Depart-

ment; two double cupboards were placed for charwomen, and for the engineer's branch,

Militia and Defence, window shades were supplied.

Royal Bank Building.

For the Department of the Interior, some shelves in the basement were built,

installed a new wash basin and provided a number of window shades.

For the Engineer in charge of test borings, D.P.W., we placed five awnings, did

some lettering upon the door and moved the bells and phone from 128 Queen street.

Blachhum Building—(Union Banh)—Sparks Street.

For the railway lands branch. Department of the Interior, there was erected 66

feet of partition with fireproof panels, a stationery cupboard, about twelve feet of cup-

boards and a blue print cupboard was built. Electrical connections were made to a

blue print machine and a wood sink, lined with lead, was installed. Some 14 feet of

fireproof partition and 21 feet 6 inches of shelving were erected in the quarters occupied

by the water-power branch.
^

G. T. Railway (Central Station) Building, occupied i'y Railway Commission.

In this building, the offices of the Chief Commissioner and the Asst. Chief Com-
missioner were renovated, also in rooms 2C, 28 and 30 the floors were oiled, and a few

minor repairs were made.

Plaza Building.

The three top floors of this building were occupied by the statistical branch of

the Customs Department early in the year. Their former quarters in the Woods
building were urgently required for the Department of Militia and Defence. Some
few articles of furniture only and the necessary cupboards for the equipment of the

char service were supplied.

Rea Building.

This building is occupied by the Departments of Naval Service aud Marine and

Fisheries. For these departments one hundred and thirty-eight window ventilators

were placed; about 1,000 yards whitewashing was done to walls in the area to give

more light in the building ; two vault doors were placed for the naval architect ; eleven

door springs were placed for rooms. In room 538, we erected 32^ feet of partition aud

for the records branch 24 feet of railing. Some shelving was placed in room 87, and

in room 530 a gas radiator was installed. In the intelligence branch, installed a system

of call bells, and six white delica glass bowl electric fixtures. Other minor changes

and additions in lights and bells made and general repairs were done.

GENERALLY.

During the year, some 4,500 requisitions for various works, supplies, etc., were

received. I have enumerated in this year's report only important works of a structural
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•nature and those which can be classed as important renovations carried out by this

branch of the department. The re-wiring of the departmental and parliament build-

ings was done under the supervision of the chief electrician. The re-decorating,

however, necessitated by the cutting of walls, was repaired by the stafE. The removal

of the main tower of the Victoria memorial museum was supervised by a clerk of

works of the headquarters staff; this branch built the fence enclosure and cleared up
debris after the work was completed.

The disastrous fire of February 3, which so seriously damaged the Parliament

buildings, necessarily gave this branch much work. Although the fire occurred on the

night of February 3, by 3 o'clock of the 4th (Friday), the House of Commons met in

the auditorium of the Victoria memorial museum, and by Monday, the 7th, the

museum building had been practically emptied of its exhibits and quarters were fitted

up for both the Senate and House of Commons and the respective members.

The cleaning up of debris, etc., at the old parliament building was supervised by

Mr. Ewart.

The guarantee on the Wellington street pavement expired this year, and extensive

repairs were made by the contractors before the same was released.

The departmental staff repaired the pavement on parliament hill. The old pump
house at the foot of the locks was demolished and the ground levelled. Attention was

given to the Lovers' Wallc in the way of drainage to prevent the washing down of

embankment, and considerable foliage set out in cliff. A quantity of glass was replaced

in Government greenhouses, and these houses received every care and attention; the

chrysanthymum show was the best in, years. The walks and paths were all kept clear

of snow and sanded when necessary during the winter months. Step covers and storm

sash were placed in position and again removed in the spring.

Grass was cut, lawns rolled and watered and pathways trimmed regularly and a

top dressing of wood ash fertilizer placed on the grass. Flower beds were filled with

bulbs and other decorative flowers. Trees trimmed and dead wood removed in parks

and along the cliff, both above and below the Lovers' Walk.

The numerous heating plants were carefully supervised. Coal delivered, ashes

removed and the equipment kept in first class condition. The same care was given to

all elevators in our Ottawa buildings. All the operators were furnished with uniforms,

and have given excellent service to the department.

(Improvements and repairs on all huildings in Ottawa, occupied hy the Federal

Government, are executed under the supervision of Mr. John Shearer, Superintendent

of Dominion buildings.)

CENTRAL EXPERIMENTAL FARM.

Apicultural Building.

A contract was entered into the 29th day of July, 1915, for the erection of this

building which is situated on a site fronting on the winding road.

This building measures 32 feet front by 27 feet deep and consists of a storey and a

half. Roof is covered with asbestos shingles, brick veneer facing, set on concrete foun-

dation walls, giving a basement full size of building.

The basement floor consists of furnace room, coal bunker, toilet room and three bee

cellars, each cellar provided with ventilating shafts terminating at the femerell on

roof, also two 9-inch cold air ducts, with intakes 80 feet from building.

The ground floor is sub-divided into two offices, dark room and laboratory.

The first floor divided with a studio and storage room and a hoist from ground to

first floor is installed.

Heating by hot water system, and lighting by electricity.
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Plans and specifications prepared by this department.
Contractor, William Ashe.

Contract completed within fiscal year.

Cereal and Agrostology Building.

A contract was entered into the 19th November, 1915, for the erection of this

building which is situated on the site of the old cereal building.
The building measures 40 feet front by 90 feet 6 inches deep and is two storeys in

height.

The construction is a balloon frame, set on concrete walls, outer walls being covered
with double sheeting and tarred paper interposed between, up to the first floor, and
with shingles from first floor to the eaves ; the roof is also shingled.

The basement floor is allotted to a furnace room, power room, toilet room, cellar

and storage earth floor.

The whole of interior is finished in V sheeting painted, the outer walls double with
sulphide paper interposed.

The ground floor is divided into four work rooms and a thrashing apartment.
The first floor contains one ofiice, one bakery, one milling, one grain inspection, one

grain sorting, three work rooms and granary.

Heating is by hot air—lighting by electricity.

Plans and specifications prepared by this department.
Contractors—Cathcart & Webster.

Contract completed March 13, 1916.

Chemical Lahoratory.

In the basement of the new wing of the chemical laboratory, two up to date labor-

atories have been fited up. Hardwood centre and side tables fitted with drawers, cup-

boards, wall cupboards with glass fronts, two fume cupboards are also installed; floors

leaded, sash doors and ventilators connecting with chimney. Each of the said centre

and side tables, also the fume cupboards are piped for water, gas, air and vacuum, and
fitted with N. P. fijstures, the tables are also provided with special porcelain sinks and
glazed tile traps connected with iron waste and drain.

A " Crowils " vacuum and pressor pump was installed on concrete pier in the base-

ment and connected with motor. Connections are also made with the pump and the

air and vacuum piping of the tables in the old and new laboratories. Connections are

also made between the vacuum pump and the drying oven on ground floor.

A cut-off system in the water and gas piping of all the several tables in the old

and new laboratories, was installed, so that one or more tables may be cut-off without

the whole being involved.

Sundry minor works such as installing a canopy, light at main entrance door, a

large four door glass fronted cupboard installed in the basement, curtain and pole, etc.

supplied and &xed in library. All tables in old laboratory were repaired, waxed, etc.

;

changes were also made in electric lighting.

Offices of the Tohacco Division.

Installed thirteen wall radiators and connections with steam boiler in tobacco

room; two W.C.'s complete; three enamelled wash basins with N.P. fittings; eleven

2-light electric fixtures; twelve 1-light wall bracket fixtures; six flush sockets, and

seven switches. Laid hardwood floor on ground and first floors, basement floor was
laid in concrete; provided and fitted a ventilating shaft from fume cupboard to roof;

installed laboratory tables, fume cupboard and connected these latter with gas and
water. Provided and fitted thirteen window blinds, thirteen window fly screens, also

four awnings and other articles, and made minor repairs. Wiring and setting up
three dynamos, seven double sockets and lampvs supplied and fitted. Installing a cen-

trifuge apparatus, a rheostat, and a steam radiator in attic.
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New Greenhouse Building.

Two offices were fitted up in the attic for the horticultural division; two dormer

windows were erected in the south room, including painting, glazing and plastering;

one hot water wall radiator was installed, also two large four door cupboards, shelving,

clothes cupboard and window blinds.

In north office, two hot water wall radiators, two four door cupboards, partition,

shelving, window blinds and electric drop light.

A dark room was also fitted upon same floor with leaded sink, hot and cold water

connections, leaded draining and splash boards, three cupboards, shelving, drying

racks and painted black.

A small room adjacent to dark room was partitioned off, interior painted black,

three sliding sash frames containing ruby, j'ellow, and white glass was also provided

and fitted, also two drop lights installed.

The ground and first floor windows were provided with storm sash, and seven

windows were fitted with awnings, also shade blind to all windows.

Electric light wiring in conduit was installed in new greenhouse, 75 iron shelf

hangers and shelving.

Three hundred and eighty-five lineal feet of concrete sidewalk was laid on west,

south and east sides of the new greenhouse. Sundry repairs were also made in this

building.

Poultry Division.

Altering and arranging feed house into temporary offices. Carpentry work, paint-

ing, installing stove, etc.

Demolishing 370 feet old offices, hen houses and store house.

Erected two hen houses measuring 32 feet front by 16 feet deep, concrete floors,

glass and cotton fronts with ready roofing covering roofs.

Erected one hen house measuring 20 feet by 20 feet concrete floor, gilass and cot-

ton fronts with ready roofing covering roof.

Erected a water fowl house, 60 feet by 15 feet deep, concrete floor, glass and cot-

ton on front and back sides, divided into twelve pens, one feed room at north end with

chimney, hydrant, double sheeted with paper interposed.

Partitioning off bed room in feed house, altering the cockerel house, making cot-

ton frames, changing windows, also making, fitting and repairing cotton frames for

several of the hen houses, and other repairs.

Groimds.

A new hand pump was installed at well near the old green house. Two fire hose

huts, 10 feet by 8 feet, framed, sheeted, shingled and painted, were erected on suitable

locations, one at the experimental farm, opposite main cow barn, and the other near the

centre of the observatory building.

Provided and installed on the farm grounds, are three groups of emergency ladders,

(4) four ladders in each group, each group are hung on supporting brackets and shel-

t red by a roof; 780 feet of 9-inch drain pipe was laid between the main drain and the

agricaltural building, and connected at the main drain and by concrete cesspit with

ii.an hole iron cover; goose-neck hydrants were installed; 540 feet of piping was laid at

the poultry yard, 250 feet at the forage plant shed, 700 feet laid in the turkey yards,
<'12 feet was laid from tobacco barn, 140 feet was also laid to the agricultural building.

One three nozzle hydrant was installed at the entrance to the observatory grounds.
Grading and stoning 900 feet of roadway, 1,200 yards of sodding was laid at

geodetic building, and 560 lineal feet of concrete sidewalk; a concrete manhole with
iron cover at near entrance of geodetic building, also a concrete manhole with cover,

connecting with drain at observatory building, a 5-inch gate valve and manhole cover.
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etc., was installed near pump house, 400 feet of electric cable laid in conduits

between the observatory and the north azimuth mark hut, a by-pass with 4-inch check

valve connecting the motor mains at biological laboratory was installed.

(Improvements and repairs on 'buildings at the Ottawa Experimental Farm are

executed under the supervision of Mr. John Sharpe, Cleric of Worhs.)

GOVERNMENT HOUSE—RIDEAU HALL.

I

Alterations, Additions and Sundry Repairs Ca'rried Out.

The dairy standing opposite the west end of stables, was moved to another site

about 250 feet to the northeast of old position.

A large amount of grading down embankment and filling up ot old site where
building stood was carried out, then sodded ; trees and shrubs were planted.

An addition of about 2,890 sup. yards was made to the kitchen, 16 large elm trees

and stumps, together with a large number of boulders, of which several had to be

drilled and blasted, were removed from this piece of ground. Nine hundred and fifty

lineal feet by nine feet high, rough board fence was rebuilt at kitchen garden. Six

new hotbed frames and sash were made, painted and glazed.

A new macadam road 915 feet long by 14 feet wide was built from Secretary's

cottage to McKay Street. Two new gates with 10 by 10 cedar posts were made for

entrance to new roadway from McKay Street.

A large addition of 300 feet by 212 feet was made to the lawns and flower garden,

'o the south of the old lawns. Plans were prepared for the lawns and terraces, and
approved of by Their Royal Highnesses. These lawns required between 6,000 and

7,000 cubic yards of filling and grading to bring the grounds to the proper grade for

sodding; 7,613 sup. yards of sod were laid; 1,300 by 5 feet wide of gravel walks were

laid through these lawns. A flight of concrete steps 10 feet wide by 5J inch rise was

built at the upper terrace; two flights of concrete steps, each 5 feet wide by 6J inch

rise, was built at lower terrace. A flower bed 11 feet wide was prepared around three

sides of the lower lawn ; a cedar trellis 472 by 10 lineal feet was built along the outer

side of these beds for climbing plants and vines.

A new gravel path 1,097 lineal feet by 5 feet wide was graded and laid from Secre-

tary's cottage to connect with concrete walk below tennis court; the sides of walk

were graded and levelled up and sodded for an average width of 5 feet on each side.

A macadam path 530 by 13 feet wide was built from the old avenue to McKay
Street, to take the place of the plank sidewalk through cricket field. A large quantity

of stone filling was put down to bring road up to grade.

Three squares new hardwood was laid in men's sitting room.

Eighty-two feet of concrete border and gutter was laid around three sides of grass

plot at south end of workshop. A concrete face 46 by 4 feet by 6 inches was put on

face of old stone wall.

The grass tennis court on upper lawn was all dug up and a cinder court laid,

rolled and prepared for playing; fifteen 1-inch iron pipe posts with wood rail on top

to carry guard net, was set up at north end and portion of sides of court, to prevent

balls from being lost.

Fourteen green blinds were made, fitted and painted for windows of living room
in garage. Fifteen squares of reshingling roof of gas holder were laid; 300 yards of

rock in knoll on north side of main avenue was removed to make the ground level

with other portions. The rock from this work was used to build a dry wall on another

portion of ground and the depression filled up to grade level.

A flight of concrete steps with landings and cobble stone parapets on each side

was built from cliff to level of roadway at ball room.

A roof 20 by 6 feet was built over balcony at coachmen's rooms.
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One hundred cedar staves from 5 to 8 feet long, were made and painted. Sundry

alterations were made to paint shop: ceiling raised, walls and ceiling sheeted with

T. & G. matched stuff. A large sentry box was made and placed at front gate for use

of police guard during cold and stormy weather.

Two wardrobes, 7* by 4* by 1| feet deep, two panel doors each, were made for

rooms 7 and 8. A large number of minor alterations and repairs Were effected, which

cannot be all enumerated here.

Sixteen hundred sup. yards of roadway on Princess Avenue were tarviated; patch-

ing and repairs to gravel roofs ; repairs made to cement plastering on chimneys of

ball room, housekeeper and stable.

A section of heating pipes \n basement were covered with asbestos ; 3,948 sup.

yards of sodding were laid in sundry places about the grounds; 250 lineal feet of

6-inch agricultural tiles were laid to extend waste water drains at front of house; a

new enamel sink 20 by 40 inches, with back, was installed in the still room, to replace

old sink which was broken.

452 spruce trees, 3.31 maple trees. 36 elm trees were supplied and planted about

the grounds.

All plank sidewalks about grounds were repaired as required. The rinks and

slides were repaired where necessary, and put in good order for skating and sliding.

The greenhouses, flower and kitchen gardens, lawns, paths and avenues were

maintained in the usual first-rate order. Seeds, plants, bulbs, etc., etc., were supplied.

The snow cleaning from roofs, roads, footpaths, rinks and slides was done and

e^rrything kept clean and in good condition throughout the winter. The ice houses

wore cleaned out and refilled.

jVll the lighting plant throughout the different buildings was repaired as required

and kept in good working order.

{Improvements and repairs on luildings and grounds at Rideau Hall aire executed

under the supervision of Mr. William Hutchison, Superintendent.)

OWEN SOUND.

PUBLrC BUILDING.

Part of the tile floor was broken, this was taken up and relaid.

A gas heater and two window screens were furnished.

PALMERSTON.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

This building is still in course of construction, as described in report of 1915.

A tower clock has been received from Gillett & Johnston, England, and wiU be

installed as soon as the building is ready.

PEMBROKE.

PUBLIC BUILDING ALTERATION AND ADDITION.

Alterations made in position of switches controlling lobby lights and outside

lights over entrances so as to be independent of the working part of post ofiice.

Restoring the wiring for electric lights on the interior post office fittings.

Two revolving collapsible panic proof doors made of quarter cut oak with base,

dado cornice, dado strips, sills, doors and trimmings were installed complete.

Painting and graining the inside windows in the public lobby to match the hard-

wood fittings and finish.
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PEMBEOKE.

DRILL HALL.

The construction of this building was described in the report of 1914.

Including additional work to contract, the building is completed.

Four specially made brass screw jilugs in the floor traps of the drill hall were

installed to prevent sewer water backing into the building.

In the room set apart for shower baths in the basement, two electric drop lights

•and one switch were provided. '

PETEEBOEOUH.
PUBLIC BUILDING.

A common door was changed into a sliding door and a radiator moved.

POET AETHUE.

EXAMINING WAREHOUSE.

The construction of this building, described in the report of 1914. is completed.

Brass goods were supplied for the fittings.

A contract was entered in 10th December, 1915, for the supply and installation

of interior fittings.

Contractor—W. J. Trick Co., Limited, Oshawa, Ont.

POET COLBOENE.
PUBLIC BUILDING.

Changes were made to comply with the new sanitary by-law.

An oak i^areel case was furnished for the post office.

POET HOPE.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The gas inspection office was removed from the ground to the first floor in order

to give the post office more room. Additional radiation was placed in the new offices

and all necessary gas and water connections made.

The tile floor in the lobby of the post oflice was repaired, a hand railing put up at

the outside stairway and general repairs made as required.

PEESTON.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

This buildins', described in the report of 1914, is completed, the interior fittings

have been installed.

A large brass sign was furnished and set in position for the Customs department.

Door checks furnished, electric light switches changed and a grating was put in the

cement sidewalk.
,

SAULT STE. MAEIE.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Eepairing the plaster and rctinting the walls of the janitor's suite of five rooms,

including bathroom and halls 'with two coats of muresco, repairing and rctinting the

coiling in the post office, and repairing and refinishing the floors of the building with

two coats of varnish.

Bleaching and varnishing 1.000 square yards of floors in the halls, stairs, and

rooms occupied b,y the government offices, and twenty-nine letter boxes and seven parcel

receivers were painted.
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A substantial fire-escape was erected on the west side of tte building, extending

downward from the second floor, consisting of two platforms and two stairways with

g-uard railings, etc., constructed of riveted iron angle bars and rods.

The heating capacity of the radiators in the Inland Eevenue officer's room being

insufficient, fourteen new sections were installed.

A sheet-iron burner was constructed in the basement, in connection with the heat-

ing plant, to dispose of waste paper, etc.

ST. CATHAETXES.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

A new gas testing apparatus was installed in the gas inspector's office.

ST. MAKYS.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

A broken section in the hot water furnace was replaced and hot water con-

nections made.

The winter porch was set up, n light installed, several changed and a pole and two

pulleys furnished for clothes line.

ST. THOMAS.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The furniture in the post office was repaired, several post office box glasses fur-

nished and new locks placed on the doors.

SAENIA.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The copper dome, injured when the flag pole fell, was repaired. Severd old

post office boxes in screen were removed and twelve new drawers installed.

SEAFORTH,

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The walls in the post office lobby were painted and the doors refinished.

The horticultural society furnished flowers for the beds on the lawn.

SHELBURNE.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The safe could not be opened and was therefore sent to the makers to be repaired.

The post office bag rack and sorting equipment were set in position.

SIMCOE.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The building has been wired in conduit for electric light and all necessary fix-

tures installed and fitted with tungsten lamps. Connection was made to the town

drainage system. The outside doors were revarnished and the winter steps repaired.

19-^
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SMITHS FALLS.

PUBLIC BUILDJNG.

The work of alterations and additions to building, described in the report of 1915,
has been completed.

A contract was entered into 17th May, 1915, for the re-arrangement of post office

fittings.

Contractor—Berlin Interior Hardwood Coy.

Brass fittings and grilles with P.O. box fronts were supplied.

The external face of stonework to old portion of building was pointed.

Additional work was executed in attic and a new staircase provided. Placing of

suitable picture mouldings on walls of the caretaker's quarters.

Changes and additional electric wiring was done in the working space on the

ground floor of the old building, and lights supplied in tower and clock dials.

The yard at side and rear of building was covered with concrete, forming a drive-

way around building, and a graded gutter was formed to carry off the surface water.

Grooved crossings were made in both sidewalks. A concrete retaining wall with

dressed and painted board fence envelopes the rear and a portion of the side boundary.

A new concrete sidewalk was laid for the full frontage of Market street.

Building an approach or crossing to line of curb on Market street and extending

the gutter across the sidewalk and connecting same with drain. Constructing a con-

crete curb on Market street.

Excavation of the boulevard space on Market street and refilling with good earth,

and sodding the surface.

A tower clock was supplied by Jno. Smith & Sons, Derby, England.

The tower for a four-dial clock installation is constructed over the front gable of

wooden framework supported on steel beams, sheeted inside and out, weight boxes,

trap doors and ladders built.

External portions of tower, cornice, mouldings and louvres covered with galvan-

ized iron and terminated by a finial.

New partitions erected to form tower room, closets and two bedrooms.

Bath-room placed in a new location, installing of present plumbing fixtures and
radiator.

Laying hardwood floor in new bath-room.

Eepair plastering and painting.

Cutting opening in wall and fixing new frame and door and altering heating coil!

A level slat platform covering the gravel roof, a clothes reel for caretaker and an
iron parapet railing over coping was constructed.

Coal bunkers built and cast iron coal chute provided.

STEELTON.

PUBLIC BUILDIXG.

The building, which was described in my report of last year, is now completed.

A fence was erected around the property; a new driveway made and the grounds

graded.

Post office boxes and cases used in the old office were purchased, repaired and
installed in the new building.

Hot water connection was made with the range; several doors rehung, and tung-

sten lamps furnished.

STKATHROY.
PUBLIC BUILDING.

The drain and septic tank were cleaned out; small repairs made to plumbing,
and a new rope put in the flag pole.
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SUDBUKT.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

This building, described in the report of 1914, is completed.

Concrete sidewalks and roadways were laid around the building.

The weight boxes were extended to allow the clock weights to run for eight days

and the new work painted.

TILBUEY.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The post office grounds were graded and sown with grass seed. Two door checks

furnished.

The floor of the clock tower was repaired with galvanized iron and a new clock

weight cable furnished.

TILLSONBURG.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Four outside bracket lamps were installed and changes made to the interior light-

ing with flush lock switches placed outside of the post office working space in the

public lobby. The outside doors were varnished.

Cable, pulleys, etc., were furnished for the tower clock.

TRENTON.

PUBLIC BUILDtNG.

A covered porch with open sides was erected at the mail entrance; the conductor

pipes, steps, etc., were repaired.

TORONTO.

I
CUSTOM HOUSE.

The boilers were put in order, to comply with the report of the Fidelity and

Casualty Company.
Builders' scafi'olding was rented and erected in the long room, which is 45 feet

high, to permit of dusting and washing down the walls and ceiling.

A wire screen was erected at the head of the basement stairs to prevent traffic

through the basement, and linen fire hose was supplied for the protection of the build-

ing.

EXAMINING W.^REHOUSE.

Linen hose was furnished for the protection of the building.

POSTAL GARAGE.

A new set of grate bars installed in the furnace and a gas hot water heating
apparatus put in.

The curb at the entrance was cut away and reconcreted to permit auto cars to run
in easier.

New shelving put up in the postal stores department, and eight fire extinguishers

supplied for building.

GENERAL POST OFFICE.

The boilers were retubed and general repairs made as instructed by the Fidelity

and Casualty Co.

19-4i
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The receiving plaiform at the rear of the general post office was enlarged and the

yard repaired.

Lumber and hardware were furnished to erect a room for special letters; a new
door was put on room 6, the registration department was enlarged, and a new screen

set up.

A safe was brought from Aiichat, N.S., and placed in this building; another was
brought from the old station " G " and placed in the superintendent's office. A safe

door and a vault door were opened and combination adjusted by makers.

Wire guard put up to prevent free access to basement, fire hose supplied and a

basin connected.

INLAND REVENUE AND ASSISTANT RECErVER GENERAl's OFFICE.

A new flcxir laid in the entrance hall of this building.

The broken plaster repaired and the interior walls and ceilings painted and var-

nished.

UNION STATION POSTAL STATION "a" AND IMMIGRATION DEPARTMENT.

Postal station "A"—Rented Premises.

One hundred and twenty-five steel lockers were furnished.

Immigration Department.

The roof, pipes and plastering at the immigration hostel were repaired. A sign

was moved and relettered, gratings were put. on to form a detention room, and new
locks were provided.

This building has now been vacated and the furniture stored.

POSTAL STATION " D ".

The kitchen and toilet room were painted.

POSTAL STATION "f" (yONGE AND CHARLES STREETS).

One latch lock was supplied for Railway Commission office.

The Public Works, Clerk of Works' office, was moved into a larger room ; paint-

ing, graining and lettering was done.

POSTAL STATION " G " (QUEEN STREET EAST) RENTED PREMISES.

(Old building.)—According to the lease the old premises had to be left in the

condition in which they were when rented. This work has been done.

POSTAL STATION " G."

A description of this building appeared in the report of 191-i and is now com-

pleted. A one-face gable clock supplied by Joyce & Co., England, has been installed

and is now running.

A contract was entered into 27th July, 1915, for the supply, erection and finishing

of interior post office fittings.

Contractors: The Berlin Interior Hardwood Co., Ltd., Berlin, Ont.

POSTAL STATION " K."

The grounds around this building were graded and good loam spread. A wooden

fence was erected at the rear boundary and painted, a neat iron fence was also put

up on the three frontages.

A new roof was put on, several rooms rekalsomined, three door checks, step lad-

der, wheel barrow and small hardware were supplied.
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STEAMBOAT INSPECTOR'S DEPARTilEXT (RENTED BUILDING).

During the fiscal year, this department was moved to offices in the Federal block.

New window shades were furnished.

UXBRIDGE.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Tungsten lamps were supplied, also lumber, nails and paint to erect locker in

basement and cordi to put light in same.

WALKERTON.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The line fence having been partly destroyed by fire, was rebuilt, the department

paying one-half the cost.

WALKERVILLE.

PUBUC BUILDING.

This building described in last year's report, is now completed and occupied by

the Post Office Department.

Brass grilles, fittings, lock letter boxes and drawers have been installed.

A contract was awarded 24th September, 1915, for the making, erecting and finish-

ing of interior post office fittings.

Contractors: The Berlin Office and Fixture Co., Ltd., Berlin, Ont.

WELLAND.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The interior of this building was decorated.

WHITBY.
\

PUBLIC BUILDING.

This town now has a drainage system and the plumbing and drains in the build-

ing liave been connected with the street sewer.

The tower clock which had not been keeping good time was taken apart, cleaned,

repaired and reset.

An electric bell was installed from the side door to the caretaker s apartments.

WINDSOR.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The living apartments in this building were in very bad condition: partitions

were changed, floors repaired, old store-room cleared out and two lights extended.

An apparatus for supplying hot water tliroughout the building was installed and

the furnace examined and any necessary repairs executed.

New rubbers were put on the revolving doors; arc lamps were put in working

order in case of emergency, andimiiior improvements made to lights.

Tiic letter boxes and parcel receptacles were repainted.

WING-HAM.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Checks were supplied- for tlie front doors and a new cable for the clock weights.
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woodstoce:.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The eavetrougits were cleaned out and repaired; a new wash basin installed;

three fire extinguishers recharged, and various small repairs executed.

Flowers were planted in the bed and the grounds kept in order.

(Unless otherwise stated in the report, all worhs of repair and improvement on

public buildings in the Province of Ontario were executed under the supervision of

Mr. Thos. A. Hastin/js, Clerk of Works, Toronto, Ont.

PROVINCE OF MANITOBA.

BRANDON.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

"Walls throughout the following portions of building were cleaned and the plaster-

ing repaired: East and west entrance vestibules, post office lobby, stair hall ground

floor, lobby, at head of basement stairs main hall, first floor and stairway and hall

first iijor to second floor, ' Customs department first floor and annex at south side.

Walls and ceilings tinted with Silkstone finish and alabastine. Woodwork cleaned

and painted or varnished as required, in two coat work. Put up burlap and capping

to walls of stairways, halls and post office lobby and painted same two coats. Storm-

sash for windows were cleaned and repainted. Official sign in entrance repainted.

Put up door to basement stairs, supplying latch lock and other hardware. Cleaned

and sandpapered and varnished the post office screens and desk ledges, also parcel

cases, drawers and tables in parcel and express departments. Cleaned glasses in post

office screen and refrosted it. Radiators and aU piping throughout were refinished in

painting or bronzing.

CARilAN.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Cinder paths were constructed in the open space adjacent to the public building;

cement paving, grading, filling and seeding lawns; building gravel paths and the

erection of fence, and additional electric lighting for the post office screen were exe-

cuted.

Plans and specification prepared for work in connection with the installation of

clock and bell in the tower.

Work of installing a tower clock commenced.

DAUPHIN.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Storm doors provided for back of post office, and repairs were made to hot water

beating furnace.

EMERSON.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Renewed grate bars in the hot water heating furnace.
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MIKNEDOSA.

PUBLIC BUILDING.,
I

Soft water cistern built in basement and provided with supply and waste
connections.

Eepairs to tower clock and supplying a cylinder lock on door leading to the room
in which the clock mechanism is installed.

Awnings provided to windows of the Dominion lands office.

Installation of an outside electric light outlet over the postal street receiver.

The necessary changes were made in the present work, making of extensions and
•complete electric wiring with fixtures and lamp to the dials of the tower clock.

MOEDEN.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Eepairs made to drains connecting building with septic tank, and the inside

surface of septic tank was lined with brickwork and thoroughly waterproofed.

Installation of additional radiation in the office of the collector of customs.

The tower was prepared for the reception of the clock machinery and bell by
making louvre windows and laying galvanized iron floor in the bell chamber, sheeting
the walls and ceilings, building a cabinet for the works and a box enclosing weights,
cutting of an opening and providing a door leading from roof space into the clock
room, putting in an electric light with switch in the dark space underneath the main
roof, electric lighting of clock faces and tower and assembling and fitting clock
mechanism.

NEEPAWA.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

New springs for repairs to door checks. Eeplacing a defective furnace of the
heating system by a new furnace, and covering same and the connections with asbestos.

POETAGE LA PEAIEIE.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Eemoval of stamp vendor's office from post office to be stored in basement.
Eepairs to plastering in the inland revenue office. The entire building was pre-

pared in conduit for the installing of a new system of electric lighting, and electric
fixtures were installed.

ST. BONIFACE.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

A door was put in proper repair; the plumbing work and furnace was repaired
and firing tools furnished, and electrical supplies and repairs provided.

SOUEIS.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Installation of new section of wall radiation in cuatoms office.
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STONEWALL.

PUBLIC BDILDING.
I

Altering position of radiator in the vestibule of post office.

A contract was awarded on list May, 1915, for the making and installation of

interior post office fittings. Contractor: Berlin Interior Hardwood Co., Limited,

Berlin, Ontario.

Shades were furnished for the post office windows, and office furniture and lock

boxes for the outer post office were purchased, to be used in the new office.

VIRDEN.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Soft water cistern constructed and connections made for supply and waste pipes.

Electrical work was done for illuminating the clock dials.

A contract was entered into on 6th April, 1915, for the supply and installlation of

interior post office fittings. Contractors : The Berlin Interior Hardwood Co., Limited,

Berlin, Ontario.

WINNIPEG. *

CUSTOM HOUSE.

Kepairs were made to building, necessitating the use of lumber and hardware

Window frames refilled; flag pole repaired and painted; set of rubber strips for

revolving door supplied; roof and skylight repaired; plaster work and radiator

repaired ; furnace overhauled, and new grate bars and sections supplied for same.

EXAMINING W.\REHOUSE.

Heating boiler No. 2 was examined by boiler inspector.

Sparc armature was installed to freight elevators.

Armature repaired and commutator turned for elevators and elevators repaired.

Heating apparatus and boiler repaired and valve supplied.

Furnished a set of rubber strips for revolving door, and the flag pole was painted.

MAIN POST OFKICE.

Considerable carpenter repairing work done to building. Sliding doors prepared

for cupboards in post office inspector's office. A portion of the gallery at rear on main

post office lioor was extended and partitioned with new glass front.

A new hardwood floor was laid over a portion of concrete floor in basement; alter-

ations were made in door to postmaster's office upstairs; improvements made to the

water storage tanks in the roof space; alterations were made in the old system of light-

ing in post office and new electric lighting fixtures installed; supplied lock sockets an(i

placed them in the post office. Plumbing work was kept in repair; a new basin

instnllrd, cold water pipes covered and new connections put on furnace. Two plate

glasses put in and two set^ of rubber furnished for revolving doors. Elevator cage

and doors were thoroughly overhauled, armature of elevator repaired; passenger and
frciglit elevators repaired, and dumb waiter rei)aired. Two rooms in the caretaker's

quarters were kalsomined.

POSTAL STATION " B."

Carpenters' repairs attended to; plumbing work kcjit in repair; fivi^ new grate

bars supplied fir boiler; flag p de painted, and one set nf rubber strips furnisbed fur

revolving door.
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Shelves and table were supplied to storo-room in basement; fan motor and ducts

to draught cupboard in laboratory; electric leads and special panel boxes installed;

set up air compre sor and m it-r; a pent house was constructed on roof and an exhaust

fan and motor were installed.

IMMIGR.^TIOX H.\LLS.

No. 1 Hall.—Plumbing kept in repair; boiler sections renewed; new grates for

furnaces supplied; heating system overhauled and flag pole was repaired and painted.

No. 3 IInil.—Pf.rciies wore repaired; five grate bars for furnaces furnished; jacket

heater repaired, and new valve put on boiler and boiler re-rubbered.

No. S Hnll.—Heating apparatus overhauled, boiler re-rubbered and new valves

supplied.

CHAMBER OF COMMERCE BUILDING (rEXTED) GAS .\N'D ELECTRIC OFFICES.

A sink was installed ai:d conne?tel iip with necessary fittings.

WINNIPEG—NOETH.
.\RMO0RY BUILDIXG.

The construction of this buihlina-, a description of which appeared in the report

of 1915, is c impl?ted.

(Linle.<t.i othenviie stated in the report, all worhs of repair and improvement on
public Jiuildings in the Province of Manitoha were executed under the supervision of

Mr. n. E. Matthews, Resident Architect, Winnipeg, Man.)

PKOVINCE OF SASKATCHEWAN.

ESTEVAN.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The town of Estevan having completed their sewage system and water supply

mains, this building has had connections made to the town's sewer and water main.

Alterations and additions have been made to the hot water heating system.

The interior of building has been kalsomined and painted and all exterior

painted woodwork was repainted in two coats, and varnished work was revarnished.

Minor repairs were made' to staircase, outside doors, etc.

GEAVELBOUEG.

POST OFFICE.

Screen windows were supplied and fitted; repaired and adjusted doors and windows
and supplied and fitted latch lock to front entrance door.

HUMBOLDT.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Owing to the town of Humboldt having completed their sewage system and water

supply main, this building has had connections made to the town's sewer and water

main.

The first floor, occupied by the Dominion Lands office, has been rearranged by the

changing of store-room into stenographer's office, and by cutting opening between
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agent's and general offices, the opening being filled in with frame and glazed parti-

tion and fitted with door. Additional radiation has been installed in the general

office.

Repairs to waUs and woodwork throughout the building were made. A 54-inch

•dyed burlap dado with moulding was put in the post office lobby, vestibules, staircase,

and customs entrance and halls to the Land and Customs offices. All broken plaster

was repaired, walls in public offices, halls, and caretaker's quarters were kalsomined

and main entrance doors re-varnished. Windows were re-puttied and painted, storm

sashes adjusted and re-puttied.

INDIAN HEAD.

FOREST KURSERY STATION.

Supplied one electric bell with an eight point annunciator;

LLOYDMINSTER.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Minor repairs were made to door frames, doors, windows, broken sash lines and

Talve of radiator were renewed.

MAPLE CREEK.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Interior of building was kalsomined and painted, and all exterior wood and iron

work painted.

Spiked planks, to prevent loitering, fitted over radiators in public lobby.

Minor repairs done and broken windows were reglazed.

MELFORT.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

A steel fire-escape with egress balconies on first and attic floors has been installed

on this building.

New section has been supplied and installed in boiler of heating apparatus, and

minor repairs have been made to W. C.'s and lavatory basins.

A new composition roof was put on, as the old roof was found to leak in several

places and was otherwise in bad condition. Necessary repairs to plumbing and heating

nere made, and walls and ceilings in caretaker's quarters which were damaged by the

leaking roof were kalsomined.

MODSEJAW.

NEW PUBLIC BUILDING.

The interior fittings installed in post office and customs department, by the

Office Specialty Co., have been completed.

Repairs to windows, doors, etc., have been made, the doors of storm porches at

rear have been changed from opening outward to sliding doors on the inside of porches.

A new framed and glazed partition and counter has been installed in the post

office inspector's office.

Repairs, alterations and additions have been made to the hot water heating

apparatus, to W. C's, urinals, lavatory fittings and electric passenger elevator, and

burst water pipes were renewed by new pipes.
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NOETH BATTLEFOED.
/

PUBLIC BUILDING.

A new room was formed iii basement by building brick division walls, plastering

tbe interior walls of new room and fitting V joint partition to protect pumping

machinery ; the room thus formed is for the use of mail clerks attached to the railway

mail service.

PEINCE ALBEET.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Extensive alterations were made to the ground and first floors of this building

a id general repairs throughout the building. Si.x separate contracts were awarded for

this work.

Alterations to the first floor were completed, and the Customs, Dominion Lands,

Torestry Inspector and Fisheries Inspector are now occupying their new ofiices on

ibis floor.

Alterations to the ground floor wiU be completed in a few weeks. New fittings

for the parcel department of the postal service, which is to occupy premises now
neiiring completion, are to be provided. New quarters will be ready for occupancy

by the Post Office Department when the fittings have been installed.

Changes in the water supply connections and, minor repairs to the heating system

in the basement were made in addition to general repairs under contract.

The radiator in vault of new Dominion Lands ofiice was removed from wall and

fixed to the ceiling.

A ventilator was installed in Dominion Lands vault.

An opening was cut in the partition between the postmaster's private lavatory

and Customs examining warehouse and a window inserted.

Shelving for use of the Forestry branch was fitted up in the basement.

A wood and glass partition for stenographers' room was installed in Dominion
Lands ofiice.

The entire basement was renovated with limewash, and woodwork in lavatories

painted.

Two vaults in Dominion Lands ofiice were cleaned and kalsomined.

EEGINA.

DOMINION LANDS OFFICE.

Owing to the vacation of the ground floor by the sherifi's ofiice, rented from

the Dominion Government by the Provincial Government of Saskatchewan, this

floor was altered by the removal of three brick walls and one stud partition, the

brickwork of first floor being carried on steel beams. The space thus gained has

been fitted up and occupied by the customs as an express parcels office and examining

warehouse. The repairs to electric light fixtures now fitted in the customs quarters,

were necessary owing to wear. On the expiration of lease, the rented premises in

South Eailway street, Eegina, were vacated and fittings removed from the rented

premises to, and refijxed on the ground floor of the Dominion Lands building.

Minor repairs were made to the hot water heating.

^
INLAND REVENUE DEPARTMENT.

Offices for the Inland Eevenue were rented from the J. A. Westmau Agencies,

situated in the Westman chambers; these offices were fitted with counter, shelving,

screen and drawers and electric lighting was installed.
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OFFICE FOR INSPECTOR OF WEIGHTS AST) JIEASURES.

Owing to the formation of a new inspector's district, with headquarters at Regina,

the accommodation for the Weights and Measures department in the public building

became inadequate, so offices have been rented from the J. A. Westman Agencies, on

the ground floor of the Aldon block, on 12th Avenue, Eegina. Furniture and fittings

have been supplied.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

An additional electric light and switch was supplied and installed in postal stores

branch in basement and on main staircase. Additional electric lights have been

installed in money order enclosure, over new letter carriers' tables. The electric

lighting in stamp accountant's office has been changed by the installing of a 200 Watt

nitrogen filled lamp and opal globe.

Two additional lavatory basins were installed in basement and a drinking fountain

on ground floor for the use of postal employees.

The money order enclosure was enlarged by the removal and refixing of transverse

partition and supplying and installing of new partition to fill in space between old

partitions.

One case of shelving for the storage of seed grain samples has been installed in

the seed grain oflices.

Additional shelving has been installed in the postal stores branch.

General work was done, consisting of repairs to doors, windows, floors, fittings,

fixtures and furniture, to W.C.'s, lavatory basins, flushing tanks, hot water heating

apparatus, electric light fittings and electric passenger elevator, caretaking and repairs

to turret clock, etc.

Street letter boxes and iiarcel receptacles have been painted.

SASKATOON.

POST OFFICE.

Alterations and additions have been made to the interior post ofiice fittings on the

ground floor, by providing ii)creascd accommodation and space in the money order

department, and for customs parcel post work on first floor by cutting opening into

old inland revenue office and providing additional space and fittings.

SUTHERLAND.

FOREST NURSERY STATION.

Supplying and installing 8 foot windmill with 30 foot tower and pump complete

for use in emptying storage tank. of sewage system.

SWIFT CURRENT.

DOMIKIOX LANDS OFFICE (RENTED PREMISES IN GALBRAITH BLOCK).

Taking down fittings, furniture and safes, removing same from old quarters to

new premises in Oalbraith block, fixing same, supplying additional fittings required

and installing electric lighting.

OLD POST OFFICE (kENTED PREJIISES).

Suppb'ii'g and fitting sun awning over window of money order and registered

letter enclosure. Repairs to check springs of front entrance doors and repairs to lava-

tory ba in-.
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POST OFFICE (rented PREMISES IN YAGER BLOCK).

Taking d >wn fittings and furniture in old post office premises, removing to and

fitting same in new quarlers in Yager block, supplying and fixing new fittings as

required and installing electric lighting.

WEYBIJRISr.

Pl'BUC BUILnlXO.

Repairs were made to windows, doors and frames, staircase, floors, roofs, W.C.'s,

urinals and lavatory fittings.

An outside staircase hns been erected to give access to the armoury on the first

floor.

Interior of luiilding was kalsomiiied and painted througihout and all wood and

iron work of exterior painted and varnished.

YOEKTOK
PUBLIC BUILDING.

Polished ste 4 plates instal'ed at money order wickets instead of plate glass.

Minor repairs have been made to doors, windows, locks, supplying and fitting new
door locks, reiewing broken sash line-:, taking out broken section door and frame of

boiler of hot water heating apparatus and installing new.

A contract was entered into ITth May, 1915, for the re-arangement of post office

public huildings in the Province of Saskatchewan were executed under the supervision

of Mr. W. T. Mallard, Cleric of Woi-ks, Regina.).

ALBERTA.

BASSANO.

PUBLIC BUILDx5S(G.

This building, described in the report of 1915, is completed.

A contract was entered into 5th January, 1916, for the supply and installation of

interior post office fittings. Contractors—Berlin Interior Hardwood Co.

Brass grilles and key lock boxes supplied for post office fixtures.

CALGAEY.

CUSTOMS EXAMINING WAREHOUSE.

The building, described in the report of 1015, has been completed.

A contract was entered into on the 16th March, 1914, for the supply and instal-

lation of one electric passenger and three electric freight elevators.

Contractors—The Tumbull Elevator Mfg. Co., Toronto.

A contract was awarded 6th April, 1915, for the making and erection of interior

fittings in Customs examining warehouse.

Contractors—The Berlin Interior Hardwood Co., Ltd.. Berlin, Ont.

A contract was entered into 22nd November, 1915, for the manufacture and

setting up of Customs postal parcel fittings in the Customs examining warehouse.

Contractors—The Riverside Lumber Co., Limited.

The electric feed lines were extended to pent house over elevator shaft.

An ash hoist was provided and installed.

Concrete approaches to driveways were built to the Eleventh avenue and First

street, East, at vehicle entrance on south and east sides of building.
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A steel fire-escape was constructed on the north side of the building with plat-

forms and stairways from the first floor to the third floor, and with counter-balanced

telescoped drop ladder from first floor to ground level.

An oak directory board was provided and lettered, enumerating all ofiices in the

building.

EDMONTON.
DRILL HALL.

The construction of this building, described in report of 1915, is completed.

Control switches to operate electric ventilating fans were provided and installed.

Steel channels and tie rods to strengthen the brickwork of boiler setting supplied

and the brickwork repaired.

Cementing floor and repairing chimney.

Pumping and bailing of water made necessary through sewer connection not

being installed.

LETHBEIDGE.

NEW PUBLIC BUILDING.

The interior post office fittings and other alterations were made on the first floor

to accommodate the customs ofiSces.

Some slight alterations were made on the second floor, which is occupied by the

Dominion Lands Oifice.

A tower clock and bell, made by W. F. Evans & Sons, England, was supplied.

The tower was prepared for the reception of the bell and clock machinery and the

dial openings were made waterproof.

OLD PUBLIC BUILDING.

The old public building has been used by the Militia Department as a school for

oiticers, and is now in use as a military hospital.

MEDICINE HAT.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Alterations and Additions.

The work described in the report of 1915 has been completed.

A contract was entered into July 20th, 1915, for the supply and installation of

interior post office fittings.

Contractors—Berlin Office and Fixture Co., Berlin. Ont.

Brass grilles for P.O. fittings and brass plate furnished.
^

The following minor works were executed :—
Eobuilding fittings, etc., additional work on P.O. interior fixtures, taking out

old pipe radiator; connecting up gas testing machine, and building a bridge over

gutter.

BRITISH COLUMBIA.

CUMBERLAND.
PUBLIC BUILDING.

Plumbing repairs executed to toilets; hat and coat hooks supplied; heating furn-

ace was repaired, and lock repaired on post office door.
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DUNCAN.

P0BLIC BUILDING.

Furnace flues and chimneys cleaned ; tot water pipes covered with asbestos ; over-

flow pipe from septic tank extended for proper sanitation. Galvanized iron on roof

repaired, also three toilets.

GONZALES HILL.

OBSERVATOiBY.

Dome, deck and walls of hatch on roof were painted; storm door supplied and

installed to main entrance; hatchway above roof relined outside and replastered inside

to prevent leaks, and furnace flues were cleaned.

NANAIMO.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Stone wall drilled and railing erected and the whole painted. Repairs made to

ladies and caretaker's lavatories; water main altered; repairs made to general toilet

and wash basin in asst. caretaker's room; repairs made to customs collector's toilet.

Mail wagon in use at railway station, painted and lettered ; windows and doors repaired

;

one transom light repaired; kitchen and toilet in caretaker's quarters painted.

PORT ALBEENI.

,^
PUBLIC BUILDING.

Grading and gravelling side and rear of grounds ; cement walk laid at front and
side of building, and drain laid to keep surface water from entering basement.

Tower clock supplied, installed and fitted up. Supplied and installed one pres-

sure reducer on water main. Painted and fitted up counter at customs; moved safe

and furniture from customs and telegraph oiEces to new building; took down tem-

porary fittings and stored same in basement ; repainted two doors in Customs Depart-

ment; a letter receiver was installed and wired and fixed five electric lamps.

SAANICH MOUNTAIN.

DOMINION OBSERVATORY.

An agreement was entered into between the department and the British Columbia

Electric Railway Company, whereby they would erect a transmission line from their

tram car line, which passes the observatory, and the department to pay $2,000 towards

the cost. The line has been constructed and the money has been paid.

It was also agreed that there being a spring on the property of the British Colum-
bia Electric Railway Company, producing four and one-half gallons per minute of

which the department secured possession; the spring has been enclosed with cement

concrete and wooden cover, three-inch galvanized pipes have been laid therefrom to

a concrete cistern and covered with tongued and grooved sheeting, put on double, sup-

ported by 4 by 4-inch joists at 24-inch centres. A pumphouse was erected adjacent

thereto, of ballon frame construction, sheeted outside and inside with boards clap-

boarded outside and V-sheeting inside, floor of cement concrete, walls constructed of

2- by 4-inch stud at 24-inch centres; roof of similar construction, covered with 1-inch

boards and shingled with wood shingles 44 inches to the weather, with one thickness

of 12 ounce tar felt between; a four panel door on each side and two windows on one

side and the whole painted three coats inside and outside. A ten horse-power electric

motor has been provided. A well was bored to a depth of 95 feet, 25 feet in earth and
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70 feet in rock, which produces about 3 gallons per minute; the pipes were extended to

the reservoir cistern, connected thereto, and gate valves were provided at certain

places on the line of the pipe.

A contract was entered into June 24, 1915. for the construction of an observatory

building; the size is 66 feet diameter. The foundation walls and the two large piers

with arch between are of cement concrete. The walls are of steel columns, connected

by steel girts and sheeted inside and outside with " Toncan metal."

The columns and girts and part of the sheeting is in position on the outside and

the dome is being placed in position. Plans and specifications prepared by this depart-

ment.

C. H. Topp. Clerk of Works.
Contractors, Messrs. McAlpine-Eobertson Construction Company for foundation

and steel work to springing and dome.

Contractors for dome, etc., the Warner & Swasey Co., of Cleveland, Ohio.

observer's residence.

A contract was entered into September 25," 1915, for the construction of a cottage

covering an area of about 40 feet by 40 feet, set on concrete walls, covered on the out-

side with clapboards for a portion of the height and the balance with shingles. The
roof is also shingled. There is a basement, ground and first floors and the basement

is built of cement concrete and is allotted to the heating furnace, fuel and storage, etc.

Plans and specifications prepared by this department.

Clerk of Works, C. H. Topp.
Contractors, Parker & Grace, Victoria, B.C.

UmON BAY.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The well was sunk to a depth of 25 feet.

VANCOTJVEE.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Eepairs were made to buzzer in postmaster's office; floor of freight elevator was

repaired; door and door check at elevator door entrance supplied; elevator brakes

adjusted; dumb elevator repaired and freight and passenger elevators repaired from

time to time.

Additional electric light with switches was installed in office of collector of customs

and in long room, pendant switches installed in superintendent of buildings' office,

clock in post office adjusted and new batteries supplied, repairs made to iloor in despatch

office, cement floor on fourth storey repaired, broken cement at wagon delivery entrance

taken up and new cement laid down, sidewalk and prism lights repaired, repairs made
to ladder and handrail leading to clock tower, shelves to telegraph office extended, walls

drilled and fire extinguishers fitted up throughout building, leaking tank repaired, clock

in customs department repaired, glass replaced in window of superintendent of build-

ings' office. Bash repaired and glass put in window dead letter office, repairs and

beading of doors, and notice signs made for despatch office, blinds repaired

and rehung in customs record room, cupboards and shelves in despatch

office repaired ;
parcel chute in sorting office repaired, various leaks and

defects in water main in building traced and repaired, catch basin under

basement floor removed and diverted waste pipe to same into main drains. Partition

was erected for store room in post office, gla.«s panel in postmaster's office

replaced, wickets on main floor of post office repaired, doors eased, locks

and hinges of men's lavatory repaired, wicket in general office eased, win-
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dow sash in long room eased and same rehung, windows at various parts

of building eased and rehung, new lock supplied aind fitted for railway
mail service. Letter racks in main post office and despatch office repaired,

meter cupboard in despatch office repaired, elevator sorting cables repaired and braces

put on same in general office, 377 yards of Wilton carpet in Inland Eeveuue office

cleaned and relaid, combination lock and safe in customs long room adjusted, two
despatch boxes for railway mail service lettered, lettering " Collector of Customs " and
" Registration of Shiijping," placed on door ; stamp signs made and lettered for main
floor, paper chute repaired. Screen erected enclosing mail hoist at ground floor,

repairs made to hall hoist cage and repairs made to hat and coat rails main floor of
post office.

OLD POST OFFICE.

Repairs made to leaking joint of toilet, tank and toilet on third floor repaired,

repairs made to fire hose, leaking fire and heating pipes emptied and repaired, roof at

rear leaking was repaired. Grates in "tank heater reset, drain in alley at rear cleared,

fire extinguishers supplied and installed. Tap and meter in testing branch of Inland
Revenue repaired, nickel plated air valves supplied and fitted on radiators, taps in gas
and electricity branch of Inland Revenue department repaired. Letter plates on gas
and electricity' office, Inland Revenue department, placed in position at entrance door,

door and lock of Harbour Commissioner's office repaired and windows eased. Openings
for doors cut and doors hung, cupboards cut in two and fi:sed in Harbour Commis-
sioner's office. Worn out tank valve renewed. Fittings in assay office repaired, W.C.
supply pipes and tank valve fittings in boiler room repaired, main roof of building and
lean-to roof repaired, skylights at rear covered over with limiber to protect from snow,
and roofs cleared of snow and gutters of ice and dirt.

EXAJimiNG WAREHOUSE.

Ceiling radiators repaired; cement ceiling drilled for supplementary and hanging

stays; girder shoe on elevator, cement floor and split pipe repaired, and repairs made
to passenger elevator dash pot and car switch. Fire extinguishers supplied and
installed throughout building. Sewer cleared of stoppage; W.C. in basement repaired;

slop sink and wash basin on second and third floors repaired. Marble cut out around

stop cocks and fitted in panel again. Flag pole erected, flag repaired. Reglazing tliree

lights of glass; easing doors and rehanging windows; repaired locks and handles of

doors; three cupboards made and installed; repairs were made to trucks and truck

irons, and hot water boiler was repaired.

p. U. STATION.

Changing wiring for switch and cluster of lights ; taking out mullion window and

brick work; setting frame and hanging part of double doors; building slat partition

and putting up shelving, and making and installing slat racks on floor for mail sacks.

POSTAL STATION " B "—249 HASTINGS STREET.

Repairing plumbing in pure food branch, directory board painted and lettered;

fitting up laboratories for Inland Revenue department; putting in additional shelving;

cutting through ceiling and roof for ventilators; making cabinet, sliding doors, one

chest of 23 drawers, one cabinet, tables, draw board, erecting partitions and doors;

kalsomining walls, painting and varnishing woodwork. Store room in basement fitted

up; three sinlvs supplied and installed with all necessary connections; supplied and
fitted in five bed gutters on tables with waste and vent pipes. Three radiators moved
and connected up in new positions. Gas supply pipe from company's main put into

19—5
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basement and branches run to various places. Fire extiguishers supplied and installed

throughout building. Shelves were placed in fruit inspector's office; a defective W.O.
bowl was replaced by a new one, and doors and windows were eased.

POSTAL ST.\TION " C "—NEW 15tH AVE. AND MAIN ST.

The construction of this building, which- was described in the report of 1915, is

completed. A contract was entered into on the 29th November, 1915, for the supply

and installation of post office fittings and the work is now being proceeded with.

Contractors : Berlin Office and Fixture Co., Berlin, Ontario.

Latch lock supplied and put on door; sorting tables, bags, racks and pigeon-hole

cases set up; fire extinguishers supplied and put up throughout the building; clock

supplied and installed in tower ; partition, etc., erected and several -rooms made for

caretaker's quarters on third floor.

Shades were supplied for various windows; 48 pairs of special brackets supplied;

one office fiat desk, one swivel chair, two high stools, one table for stamping tellers, all

supplied to the Post Office department.

IMMIGRATION DETENTION BUILDING.

Tihis building was described in reports of 1914 and 1915 and has now been com-
pleted and occupied. A vulcan over rest range supplied and connected up in position

;

special oval tee pipes supplied; repairs made to elevator motors; renewed damaged
gutters, caused by heavy snow fall and frost; space behind downpipes filled in with

cement mortar; wrought iron grilles supplied and installed in two deporting rooms;
wrought iron grilles supplied for heaters in baggage room; fourteen locks supplied

and fitted for detention room doors; one Chinese cook stove supplied; six locks sup-

plied and fitted for dumb waiter to prevent any one escaping by that outlet. Slates

were repaired; several signs jjainted and fixed. Sixteen fire extinguishers supplied

and installed in suitable positions tlu-oughout the building. Four wrought iron grilles

ajid collapsible gate supplied and installed. One hinged grille and frame; three slid-

ing grilles for windows opening on fire-escapes supplied and installed; ten grilles for

end windows furnished and erected; reducing valve on water main supplied and
installed; an nil burning iilant was installed, including an oil tank wit^i a pipe line

connected thereto from the Imjierial Comi^any's oil tanks.

VICTORIA.

PUBLIC BUILDIN'O.

The springs on floor, hinges of several doors were repaired, now hinges supplied

and installed; new brass sash chains supplied and put on windows; toilet tank repaired;

liammer cut-out switch on elevator repaired and new coil supplied; reserve water tank
wliich had been leaking, annunciator bell on passenger elevator, and one of the basins

in old portion of building taken down and repaired. Two new door checks supplied

and installed; track made and supplied for running truck into post office vault; fire

extinguishers supplied and installed in suitable position in the building. Repairs and
keys made to lock boxes and drawers for post office, also latch locks and keys, where
and when required, f < r various offices in the building. Screen and racks erected for

newspapers and magazines in jwst office department, consisting of V-jointed parti-

tions, nine feet liigh, three rows of large jiigeon-lioles with wicket into lotiby to accom-
modate public without going inside to the main floor for newspapers, bundles, etc.

New fittings for customs postal parcels and express parcels installed on first floor for

Customs department; these fittings are of the most modern kind. The racks are made
of birch throughout with strong wire backs and alleys between covered with same
materials; doors are placed on each end of the alloy and electric light in condtiit over-
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head. The screen is of oak of very beautiful ilesig:n with wickets for all branches at

intervals. Two cashier cages, one for customs and the other for exjiress parcel bran-

ches. Bracket lights witi condulet leads supplied and installed to every wicket and
cage. A wide loliby was provided for public, with desks. The old wooden floor in

public lobby on ground floor has been taken up and a modern tile floor with border all

the way around was laid down. New hardwood floor laid on old portion of post office

floor. The stamp vendor's office in the lobby has been enlarged. The telegraph office

which occupied a position in the main entrance lobby, and office of district superin-

tendent and stores room removed to old post office building. Additional equipment of

ligiiter tubing to enable cleaners to carry same up ladders to reach high ceilings sup-

plied for vacuum cleaner.

Temporary fixtures for customs parcels and express office used in rented quarters

in Belmont building removed and stored in basement of ijublic building, in case of

requirement elsewhere. Additional electric light facilities supplied and installed on
post office main floor for sorting and despatching in the newspaper, parcel room, regis-

try and money order offices.

Shelving supplied and fitted up in record room, and manifest case repaired and
altered in Customs department. Shelving supplied and fitted up in surveyor and
locker rooms. Customs Department ; cashier's cage in long room altered ; a three-phase
electric service installed; new condulet service installed for stamping machine post
office department; post office screen in public lobby moved back to give greater width
for public drops and wickets rearranged.

The addition to the public building which was in eour-e of construction during
1914-15-16, has now been completed and gives a splendidly equipped building for the
conducting of public business.

OLD POST OFFICE.

Night latches fitted to doors of radiotelegraph branch of Naval department;
lean-to roof at rear of building which has been leaking was repaired; one enamel wash
basin supplied and installed and line of waste pipe from sink and basin altered to
provide better di'ainage.

Clearing snow from roof, replacing glass broken by weight of snow in photo-
grapher's studio, also repairing wooden portion of skylight.

One of the stores in the building became vacant, it was altered and fitted up for

a telegraph office, district superintendent's office, battery and store rooms, with spaces

and desks in front of counters for public. Walls painted and papered; signs painted
on walls and windows, etc., making a first-class and modern office.

IMMIGRATION DETENTION BUILDING.

Heating pipes and broken fire pot repaired and boiler recovered with asbestos.

Toilet and taps repaired; screen door and four window screens supplied and fitted up,~"

and spring hinge and door checks repaired.

OLD CUSTOil HOUSE.

Locks, doors, springs and handles repaired; window and doors eased; door made
and hung under stairs to form locker with lock, etc. Four flues cleaned and furnace
and radiators and toilet and taps were repaired. Wiring for and installing_ fuse cut-

outs. A severe snow storm and frost caused damage to waste pipe and cast iron pipe
which were repaired.

WILLIAM MEAD.

QUARANTINE STATION.

One mullion window (30 lights') supplied and installed in superintendent's resi-

dence. Two sets of twin cylinders for four cylinder engine fitted with valves and
19—5J
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springs supplied; four pistons complete for above. Two skylights supplied and

fitted up at superintendent's residence.

Porcelain bath supplied and installed, with hot and cold water connections, in

isolation hos[)ital building. Chinese cook-house constructed and fitted up with two

-steam jaeketted rice cooking boilers, 50 gallon capacity, fitted with 6.M. steam exhaust,

safety valves, etc., and one set welded wrought steel, two compartment ovens, one above

the other. Each compartment fitted with C.I. steam-tight doors, safety bridge and
iiand fastenings, perforated vegetable trays, G.M steam and exhaust safety valves.

The building is of cement concrete walls with cement concrete floors and slate roof.

Four latrine buildings were constructed of cement concrete, walls and floors with

cement concrete, roofs slated, all fitted with porcelain automatic flush closets with

water service and sewer, to sea at low water, in each case.

(Unless otherwire stated in the report, all worls of repair and improvement on

public huildings in the Province of British Columbia were executed nnder the super-

vision: of Mr. Wm. Henderson, residence architect, Victoria, B.C.)
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Chief Architect's Office,

Ottawa, July 22, 1916.

E. L. HoRWOOD, Esq.,

Chief Architect,

Ottawa.

Dear Sir,—Annexed please find details of arrangements under which rents are

paid by this department for buildings and sites, also index to names of lessors.

The list shows that 279 places are under lease, a reduction of 10 as compared with

last year's list. The total rents to be paid this year amounted to $624,649.46 as under,

a reduction of $22,032.4.5 as compared with last year's list.

Tn Calgary.. .

.

Ottawa . .

.

Montreal . .

.

Quebec
SaskatDon.

.

Toronto . .

.

Vancouver

.

Winnipeg. .

.

other i)laces.

Total rents as above stated

.

We pay this

year.

•S 3fi,937 30
411,847 92
28,937 08
6,687 50
9,640 20

26,884 93
12,108 63
17,89.5 16
73,710 74

$624,649 46

Decrease
si^nce

last year.

S 3,464 85

18,363 34

2,152 50
4,.503 00

2,041 00
115 00

12,311 40

Increase
since

last year.

811,478 7

9,439 93

S42,951 09 820,918 64

Total Decrease as above stated 822,032 45

Yours truly,

J. G. TAYLOR.

71





7 GEORGE V SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19 A. 1917

INDEX TO NAMES OF LESSORS.

Allan, W. A., and Fleming, S. H Ottawa No. 104

Annable, John Ed Nelson, B.C 99

Ashbury College Co., Ltd Ottawa 10a

Aubin, A. A Sturgeon Falls, Ont 222

Bank of Toronto Kingston, Ont 69

Bank of Toronto London, Ont 76

Banque Nationale Ottawa 143

Banque Nationale " ..••• I''*

Bate Realty Corporation, Sir H. N " 106
" 107

•• • ••
..'.'.'.'.'.'. " lOS

Battleford, Town of '.. Battleford 7

Bawlf, Estate N Winnipeg, Man 266
267
265

.
• 26S

Beardmore & Co Montreal, P.Q 87

Belanger, A ,
Montmagny, P.Q 86

Bell Telephone Co ". Ottawa 109
Bergeron, J. S Quebec, P.Q 181

•• " 180
Berlin Rink and Auditorium Co., Ltd Berlin, Ont 9

Berlinguet, P. X Three Rivers, P.Q 228

Birks & Sons, Ltd., Henry Ottawa, Ont 110
Birks, Wni. M., J. H. Birks and G. W. Birks . . Vancouver, B.C 244
Blanche, Cordelia, Curatrix to A. Dalbec, her
husband.. .. Montreal, P.Q 88

Blackburn, Russell Ottawa, Ont 110a
Blackburn, R. L. & R " Ill

•' 112
•• 113

114
" 115
' 116

.'• 117
Blenheim, Town of Blenheim, Ont 13
Blow, T. H Calgary, Alta 16

" 17
Booth, C. Jackson Ottawa 134
Booth, C. Jackson, and Holbrook, J. A. D " 118

.... " 119
Boyd, Wm. James Winnipeg, ivian. . ......' 269
Boyd, W. J 270

" 271
Brady, Wm. A Repton, Man 193
Brennan, J. C Ottawa .. 120

•• 121

,
" .. . . , 122

Brown, Julius A Vancouver, B.C 245
Bryson Realty Co., Ltd Ottawa 123

" 124
Burns & Co., Ltd., P Calgary, Alta 18
Buxton, H. H Deloraine, Man 37

Bytown & Suburb Land Co., Ltd Ottawa 125
Cameron, John H. and John.stone, Annie M. .. Saskatoon, Sask 212
Campbell, Allan.. Prince Rupert, B.C 177
Canada Life Assurance Co., Ltd Calgary, Alta 19

... ... " -. 20
' " 21

Canadian Bank of Commerce Revelstoke, B.C 194
" 195

Canadian City & Town Properties of Saskatoon. Saskatoon, Sask '-13

Canadian Government Railways . . Tignish, P.E.I 230
Canadian May-Oatway Fire Alarms Co., Ltd. . Winnipeg, Man 272
Canadian Northern Railway Edmonton, Alta 39

" " North Battleford, Sask 101
" " Vermilion, Alta 254
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Canadian Pacific Railway Calgary, Alta No. 22
" ' Kerrobert, Sask 6S
" " Montreal, P.Q 89
" " Xominingue, P.Q 100
" '• North Portal, Sask 102

Vancouver. B.C 248
" " " 247

" .. . .- 246
Victoria, B.C 255
'Wilkie. Sask 263
"Winnipeg, Man 273

Capital Storage Co., Ltd Ottawa 126
" 127

Carling, Mrs. Eva C " 12.S

Chatelaine, Alexandre [..'Orignal, Ont 78
Clark, E. W Ottawa 129
Cliche, Odilon -^t. Joseph de Beauce, P.Q 208
Compton, Village of Compton, P.Q 36
Confederation Life Association Toronto, Ont 231
Cooper, C. W. & W. A Winnipeg, Man 274
Costello, Miss E Calgary, Alta 23
Delorn.e. Estate of Simeon Montreal, P.Q 91
Dennis Realty Corporation Halifax, N.S 62

" 53
" 54
" 51

Dionnc. Thos Cacouna, P.Q 15
Dominion Coal Co Olace Bay, C.B 45
Dominion Fish & Fruit, Ltd Quebec, P.Q 182
Dorchester Realties, Ltd Montreal, P.Q. 92

" 93
Duford & Charleson Ottawa 130
Eastern Canada Savings & Loan Co llalif.ix, N.S P';

Eaton Co., Ltd., T .
To^ronto, Ont 23'

Ehitwistle, Village of I3ntwistle, Alta 42

Finnic. D. M. and Morris, W. D. Ottawa 131

Fish Co., I. C Big River 1)

Fletcher, J and McLean, A. S Grand Prairie, Alta 4 7

Fortier, T. H. H Annapolis Royal, N.S 2

Foster. Dr. A. L Ottawa. 132

Fraser Bros, and McRoberts Pincher Creek, Alta 173

Frederickss Chas. "W ..Peace River Crossing, Alta 171

Galbraith. Archibald Swift Current, Sask 224

Garland, John J Portage la Prairie, Man 174
Garland, Son & Co., John M Ottawa 133

Gaudry. L. H Quebec, P.Q 183

Geddes & Sheffield, agts. for Geo. B Ryan, et al. Calgary, Alta 24

George & Stewart ..Peace River Crossing, Alta 172
Germain, Mrs. M. M Quebec, P.Q 184

Ciroux, J. O Grouard, Alta 49

Governor and Company of Adventurers of
England trading into Hudson Bay Athabaska, Alta b

Graham. G. A. and Home, J. T Fort William, Ont *<

Grand Trunk Railway Co; Berlin. Ont 10
• Toronto, Ont 234

" 235
" 233

Victoriaville, P.Q 257
Grand Trunk Pacific Railway Co Prince Rupert, B.C 176
Grand Trunk Pacific Development Co Unity, Sask .. 243

" Viking. Alta 258
Grand Trunk Pacific Town and Development

Co., Ltd Wainwright, Alta 261
Green, Mary C Rocky Mountain, Alta 198
Hamilton, City of Hamilton, Ont 57

Hamilton, Mrs. Robert Vancouver 250
" 251

Hanna, J. E Ottawa 135

Heintzmann Co Windsor, Ont 264

Herald Building Co., Ltd Prince Albert. Sask 175

Herchemer Committee, Helen Kingston, Ont 70

Hills, Jas Alberni, B.C 1

Hope, James Ottawa 137

Hope & Son, James " 136

Huckvale. Walter and Hooper, S. T Medicine Hat. Alta 82

Imperial Canadian Trust Co .Saskatoon, Sask •.. 216

... " " 215

... • " 214
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Imperial Realty Co., Ltd Ottawa . .No. 138

Independent Securities, Ltd Kamloops, B.C 66
" 67

.... '• 65

Inland Express Co., Ltd .4shcroft, BC. . 4

Intercolonial Railway Hampton, N.B 59

Irvine & Co., J. A Calgary, Alta 25

Jack, John Quebec, P.Q 185

Jakes, Geo. L Merrickville, Ont 84

Jackson, Clark & JohnsT Cobourg, Ont 35

Jacobs, J. A Cobalt, Ont 34

Jarman, Frank Ottawa 139

Johnson, David St. Stephen, N.B 210

Journal Printing Co., Ltd Ottawa 140
' " " 141

' " 142
Knights ot Columbus Council, 1001 Three Rivers, P.Q 229

Labelle, Patrick Ottawa 145
• 146

La Compagnie Artistique et FinanciJre d'As-
bestos, Ltd . . .\sbestos, P.Q 3

Lamb, J. B. & W. A Ottawa 147
Larochelle, Alfred. Black Lake, P.Q. 12
Lavallee, J. H St. Felix de Valois, P.Q 201
Lavoie, Mrs. Odile, widow of J. O. Normand. . Maisonneuve, P.Q 79
Le Comptoir Mobilier Franco.Canadien Montreal, P.Q 90
Leduc, J. Lionel Beauharnois, P.Q 8

Levesque, Etienne Mont Joli, P.Q 85
Thos. J Clair, N.B 33

Lyall & Sons Construction Co., Ltd., P Longue Point, P.Q 77
McConnell, "Wm Lansdowne, Ont 74

McDermott, A. J. C Victoria, B.C 256
McEvoy, Ed. Hudson Bay Junction, Sask 60
McFarlane, Wm Transcona, Man 241
McKenzie & Mann Gravelbourg, Sask 48
McKenzie, Mann Co., Ltd Wadena, Sask 260
McLennan, J. S Sydney, N.S 227

" " • 226
McMillan, Andrew and Costain, Wm Toronto, Ont 236
McNeill & Stewart Ottawa 150
Major, A. J " 151
Martin & Co., W. H " 152
Mathewson, Mrs. C Kingston, Ont 71
Melita Lodge No. 120, I.O.O.F Melita, Man 83
Moisan, Mrs. P. L St. Georges de Beauce, P.Q 202
Molsons Bank Ottawa 155
Montreal, City of Montreal, P.Q 94

" " 95
Moosejaw, City of MoosejaTV, Sask 98

Mullin, Alexander Toronto 237
Nesbitt. Sam Brighton, Ont 14

New Brunswick Telephone Co St. John. N,B 207
FairviUe, N.B 43

Newton, Fred. Young Roblin, Man 197

Nichols. Geo. B, E. and Lynch, M. Edith L. . . Digby, N.S 38

Northern British Columbia Development Co ... Prince Rupert, B.C 179
..." " 178

North West Comrr.ercial Travellers Association. Calgary, Alta 26

Notre Dame Investment Co., Ltd Winnipeg. Man 275
O'Connor Bros Huntingdon, P.Q. . 61

Osment, Mrs. Loretta A Indian Head, Sask 62

Ostell. J. Thos Montreal, P.Q 96

Ottawa Building Co Ottawa 156
. " 157

Ltd ' 158
Ottawa Investment Co. Ltd ' 159
Ottawa Masonic Temple Co., Ltd " 153

" 154

Ottawa Terminals Railway Co " 160
Page Printing & Binding Co .Sherbrooke. P.Q 219
Paris, Mrs. O Quebec, P.Q 186

Parsons, L. C Maple Creek,' Sask 80

Patterson, J. O Grand Prairie, Alta 46

Pearson, Mrs. E. A Ottawa 161
Pelletier, Jos Edmundston, N.B 41

Perrin, Hector Verdun. P.Q 253

Pheasey, Geo. and Batson, Chas. C Edmonton, Alta 40
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Polly, Thos. J Kingston, Ont No. 72
Preville. Mrs. Jos. Louis Joliette, P.Q 64
Prurt'homme, T Montreal, P.Q 97
Quebec Buildings, Ltd Ottawa.. 162
Quebec Central Railway Slierbrooke, P.Q . . 220
Quebec Railway Light, Heat and Power Co. .. Quebec, P.Q 1S7
Rea Co., Ltd., A. E Ottawa 163
Revillion Bros Athabasika, Alta 6

Rice, Thos. C Wej-mouth, N.S 262

Rideau Club Ottawa 164
Ridgetown. Town of Ridgetown, Ont 196
Robb, X, Manager Bank of Hamilton Salrr.on Arm, B.C 211
Robinson, Hiram Ottawa 165
Roblin, Sir R. P. . Winnipeg. Man 276
Rosin House Hotel Co Toronto, Ont 23S
Rossborough, R. S., Trustee Dr. Jas. Walker

Estate Halifax, N.S 56
Rothwell, Benjamin E Swan River, Man 223
Royal Bank of Canada Charlottetown. P.E.I 32

Ottawa .. 166
" " 167

Ste. Anne de Bellevue, Municipality of Ste. Anne de Bellevue 1E9
St. Eustache, Village of . . .. '. St. Eustache, P.Q 200
St. John, City of . . . . . St. John. N.B 204

" • " 206
" " 205

St. Rose, P.Q., Village of St. Rose. P. Q 209
Shewan, A. P ..Indian Head, Sask 63
Shoal Lake. Town of Shoal Lake, Man 221

Simpson Co., Ltd., Robt Regina, Sask 190
Toronto, Ont 239

Sinclair. Wm Le Pas. Man 75

Slater Estate Ottawa 1S8
Slater, Robt. Nicholasi " 169
Southam, William Jas Calgary, Alta 27

Stewart. Wm Grouard, Alta 50
Stroud, W. R Ottawa 170
Swales, Clara Jane Hamilton. Ont 58

Tardival, J. Paul Quebec, P.Q ISS
Thomas, R. C Calgary, Alta 28

•• 29
" ; ; . . 30
• " 31

Thompson, Chester Saskatoon, Sask 217
Toronto Terminals Ry. Co Toronto, Ont. .^

" 240
Tremblay, Dame Gubladine Lacolle. P.Q..' 73
Trois Pistoles, Town of Trois Pistoles, P.Q 242
Turcotte, J. Baptiste St. Jean de Matha, P.Q 203

Two Macs. Ltd Ottawa 149
" 148

TTnion Bank Winnipeg. Man 279
Vancouver. City of Vancouver. B.C 249
Virden School District Virden. Man 259
Westman Agency, Ltd., J. A Regina, Sask 191

" 192
White. Miss Margaret Quebec. P.Q 189
Wilson Bros Saskatoon. Sask 218
Winch & Co., Ltd.. R. V Vancouver. BC 252

Winnipeg Joint T. rminals Winnipeg. Man 278
Wylle. D. J Maple Creek, Sask 81

Yager, Jas A Swift Current. Sapk 225

Young Mens' Christian Association.. .... . . Xorth Sydney. N.S 103
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LEASES.

No. 1.—Albcrni, B.C Part of building erected on Lot 1, Block 11, in
town of Alberni, B.C.

Occupied by .. Post Office.
Lessors James HiUa
Teiin expires April 1, lOlS.
Kent $1S0 per year—$100 by postmaster, $S0 by

Government,
Lessor pays all taxes including water rates.

No. 2.—Annapolis Royal, N.S Two rooms on ground floor of lessors' building
on St. George street.

Occupied by Inspector of British Immigrant children and of
Immigration Agencies for Maritime Prov-
inces.

Lessor T. H. H. Fortier.

Term expires 1st September, 1917.
Rent $15 per month.
Lessor pays all taxes including water, heating, lighting and cleaning.

No. 3.
—Asbestos, P.Q . . . One room on southeast side of lessor's building

20x22 feet.

Occupied by Post Office.

Lessor La- Compagnie Artistique et Pinanciere d'Asbes-
tos, Ltd.

Term expires Year to year. Lessee has privilege to end
lease at end of any year by giving notice
on or before 5th January.

Rent $300—$200 by government and $100 by post-
master.

liSBSor pays all taxes, heating, lighting ; nl snow c'ean'ng.

No. i-
—Aslicfoft, B.C Storeroom in building owned by James Haddock,

of Ashc.-oft. B.C.
Occupied by Storerooom for mail.
Lessor Inland Express Co., Ltd.
Term expires Monthly. This is a sub-lease.
Rent • $25 per month.
Lessor pays heat, light and caretaking.

No. r>.
—Athabaska, Alia ..Piece of Innd fronting on A;habaska river, 100

by l.'^O feet.

Occupied by Immigration hall

Lessor The Governor and Company of Adventurers of
iEnglai a trading into Hudson bay.

Terra expires June 1, 191S.

Rent $1 per annum.
Lessors stipulate that no lumber shall be cut.

No. G.—Athabaska, Alta Space in warehouse.
Occupied by Post Office mail storage.
Lessor Revillion Bros.
Term expires At one month's notice.
Rent $5 per month.

No. 7.

—

Battleford Lots 41 and 42 South Twenty-four street, west
of Central avenue.

Occupied by Immigration.
Lessor Town of Battleford.
Term expires April It), 1919.

Rent Amount of municipal taxes.

No. 8.—Beauhamoia Two rooms and one toilet room on west side of
lessors building, southeast corner of EUice
and Brown streets.

Occupied by Post Office.

Lessor J. Lionel Leduc.
Term expires May 1, 1917.
Rent $350 per annum, of which Public Works De-

partment pays $225 and Post Office Depart-
ment lays $125.

Lessor pays all taxes, street sprinking, heating, removal of snow and lighting.
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^o- 0.—Berlin, Ont Store in -rink and auditorium blocli on Oupen
St. south, with use of basement—840 s'luara
feet on ground floor.

Occupied by Exam, warehouse.
Lessor Berlin Kinli and Auditorium Co., Ltd.
Term expires l.'th February, 191S.

Rent $55 a mjnih.
Lessor Pays all taxes (except water).
Lessee to pay lessor J17.50 quarterly for heating.

No. to.—Berlin, Ont. Part of station building, having an area of 138
square feet.

Occupied by Sorting and stamping of letters and postal

matter mailed at Berlin station, etc.

Lessor Grand Trunk Railway Company.
Term expires Tear to ye.Tr from April 1. Iiil4.

Rent $-tO per annum.
Lessors pay heating and lighting.

No. It.—Big River
Occupied by Officers of Sturgeon River and Big River, Forest

Reserves. Department of Interior.

Lessor I. C. Fish Co.

Rent 510 per month.
Term expires .. ..Month to month from May 3, 1915.

No. IS.—B!oc7c Lake, P.Q Part of premises owned by lessor, 22 by 26 feet

northwest side Notre Dame street.

Occupied by Post Office.

Lessor Alfred Larochelle.
Term expires Tear to year.

Rent $300 per annum of which Government pays $150
and Postmaster $150.

Lessor pays taxes, heat and light and removes snow from roof.

No. 13.—BJenheim, Ont .

.

Portion of townhall building.
Occupied by Post Office.

Lessor Town of Blenheim.
Term expires Year to year.
Rent $350 per annum of which Government pays $200

and Postmaster $150.
Lessors pay taxes, water, heating, lighting and cleaning.

No. /J.

—

Brighton, Ont
Occupied by Post Office.

Lessor Sam. Nesbitt, M.P.P.
Term expires 4 years from date of occupation.
Rent $100 by D.P.W., remainder by postmaster.
It is disitinctly understood that the Dominion Government shall not be called

upon to pay anything further in this connection in taxes, water, heat,
light and janitor service.

No. to.—Cacotma, P.Q
Occupied by Post Office.

Lessor Thomas Dionne.
Term expires Year to year.
Rent $100 per annum, of which Government pays $50

and Postmaster $50.
Lessor pays taxes, removal of snow, heat, light and cleaning.

No. IS.—Calgary, Alto C,715 square feet in Blow building at 85 cents;
also premises in basement, GCO square feet

at 25 cents per square foot.
Occupied by Commissiner of Irrigation.
Lessor T. H. Blow—W. R. Blow & Co., Attorneys.
Term expires March 31, ISlfi. In course of arrangement for

another year.
Rent $5,872.75 per annum.
Lessor pays .taxes, water and heat.

No. n.—Calgary, AUa 5,974 sq. feet on ground flour of Blow building,
Sth Ave. West ; 85c. per sq. ft.

Occupied by . . . . . Lands.
Les.sor Dr. T. H. Blow.
Term From May 1, 1916 (arrangements not yet com-

pleted).
Rent $5,077.90 per annum.
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No. 18.—Calgary, Alta Room 503, Burns block, corner Sth Avenue ; and
Second street E., Central on Fifth Avenue

—

12 by 18 feet.

Occupied by S. S. Slipper, of Geological Survey of Minfs.
Lessor P. Burns & Co., Ltd.
Term expires Month to month.
Rent $40 per month.
Lessor pays water, heating and lighting, and provides janitor service.

No. 19.—Calgary, Alta Rooms 51 to 54, Canada Life building and half
vault.

Occupied by Inland Revenue.
Lessor Canada Life Assurance Co., Ltd.
Term expires January 1, 1919, with privilege of vacating any

time after 3 years on giving three months'
notice in writing.

Rent $315 per month.
Lessor pays taxes, water, heating, janitor and elevator service.

Lessee pays lighting.

No. iO.—Calgary, Alta Rooms 41 to 44 inclusive in Canada Life
building.

Occupied by. . Post Office Inspector.
Lessor Canada Life Assurance Co., Ltd.
Term expires January 1, 1919, with privilege of removing

any time after 3 years on giving three
months* notice in writing.

Rent $315 per month.
Lessor pays taxes, water, heating. Janitor and elevator service.

Lessee pays lighting.

No. il.—Calgary, Alta Roams 55 to 58, Canada Life building.
Occupied by Railway Mail.
Lessor Canada Life Assurance Co., Ltd.
Term expires January 1, 1919. with privilege of vacanting any

time after 3 years on giving three months'
notice in writing.

Rent $222 per month.
Lessor pays taxes, water, heating, janitor and elevator service.
Lessee pays lighting.

No. tt.—Calgary, Alia Parcel of land and premises situate, lying and
being in Calgary, specified on plan attached
to lease.

Occupied bj- Immigration Hall site.

Lessor C. P. Ry.
Term expires .'.March 1, 1927. but may be terminated at any

•time by lessor on one month's notice.
Rent $10 per annum.
Lessee pays all taxes.

No. iS.—Calgary, Alta •.

Occupied by Weights and Measures.
Lessor Miss E. Costello.
Terra expires From month to month.
Rent $30 per month.
Lessor pays for heating.

No. t!,.—Calgary, Alta Lots 17, 18, 19 and 20 block 52, section 15, plan
"A," 100 feet on 7th avenue by 130 feet on
2nd street east.

Occupied by Site—temporary building for Post Ofiice.
Lessors George B. Ryan, Helen J. Raymond, John

Moody, Geo. McAllister, Walter Sharpe,
Henry Knight, Malcolm D. Geddes and

'' Herbert T. Sheffield. Geddes & Sheffield,
^ Collecting agents. '

Term expires October 23, 1918.
Rent $7,500 per annum.
Lessors pay taxes and water.

I
No. iS.—Calgary, Alta Rooms 412 and 413 Leeson-Lineham block.

Occupied by Lands Office.

Lessor .T. A. Irvine & Co.
Term expires From month to month.
Rent $40 per month.
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No. 26.

—

Calgary, Alta Premises in Northwest Commercial Travellers'
Association building. Centre street, between
Sixth and Seventh avenues.

Occupied by Seeds Branch, Agriculture.
Lessor Northwest Commercial Travellers Association.
Term expires.. .. .. ..Month to month from November 1, 1915.
Rent $1,347.25 per annum.
Lessors' pay all taxes, including water rates, heat and elevator service.

No. 27.

—

Calgary, Alia Rooms 310 and 311 on 3rd floor of Herald
.building.

Occupied by Railway Commission.
Lessor William James Southam.
Term expires April 1, 1917.

Rent ?1 05 per month.
Lessor pay all taxes, water, heating, window cleaning, janitor and elevator

service.

No. 2S.—Calgary, AHa . . GfTice in Cadogan block, corner Sth avenue and
,

2nd street.

Occupied by Inspector of gas and electricity.

Lessor R. C. Thomas.
Term expires '. ..Monthly.
Rent $50 per month.
Lessor pays heating.

No. 29.—Calgary Alta Six rooms on second floor Thomas block, Nos.

7, 8, 9, 10. 11 and 12, 2,0535(, square feet at

S5 cents per square foot.

Occupied by Topographical Survey.
Lessor R. C. Thomas.
Term expires From month to month, one month's notice in

writing to be given by lessors.

Rent $145.45 per month.
Lessor pays taxes, water, heat and provides elevator service.

No. SO.—Calgary, Alta Rooms 28, 29. 30 and 31 in second floor of

Thomas block.

Occupied by Forestry Department.
Lessor R. C. Thomas.
Terra expires Montli to month.
Rent $130 per month.
Lessor pays taxes, water, heating and gives free use of elevator.

Lessee pays for cleaning.

No. SI.—Calgary, Alta Room 27 in Thomas block, Calgary.
Occupied by Additional accommodation for District Inspector

of Forest Reserves.
Lessor R. C. Thomas.
Term expires Month to month.
Rent. .' $35 per month.
Lessor pays taxes, water, heating, clean's corridors, supplies elevator service

and general lavatory service.

No S2.—Charlottetown.__P.E.I ..Two rooms in Royal Bank building.

Occupied by Publicity agent. Immigration Department.
Lessor Royal Bank of Canada.
Term expires No lease, we are tenants from year to year.
Rent $175 per annum.

No. S3.—Clair, N.B Office in lessor's house.
Occupied by immigration Agent.
Lessor Thos. J. Levesque.
Term expires Monthly.
Rent $10 p'-r month.

No. S/,.—Coialt, Ont Space in Royal Exchange building, GO feet
frontage with a depth of 33 feet, Prospect
avenue.

Occupied by Post Oincc.
Lessor J. A. Jacobs.
Term expires January 30, 1918.
Rent $2,000 per apnum.

'

Lessor pays taxes, water and heating.
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.Vo. SS.—Cobourg, Otit Two rooms in property of lessors, north side

King street.

Occupied by Immigration Inspector.

Lessors John Gill Jaclvson and Lisgar Clarl: and O. G.

Johns.

Term expires October 1. 1916.

Rent $170 per annum.
Lessors pay taxes and water.

j\'o. S6. Compton. Que Large room on west side of ground floor of the

town hall.

Occupied by Post Office.

Lessor Village of Compton.
Term expires December 2, 1924.

Rent 5150 per annum, of which Government pays $110

and Postmaster $40.

Lessor pays all taxes, water, heating and lightiner.

No. S7.—Delorainp. Man
Occupied by Immigration.
Lessor H. H. Buxton.
Term expires April 1, i;il7.

Rent $300 per annum.

^o. !S.—Digby, N.S . . .'. Privilege of laying sewer across lands on east

side Water street from Dominion building.

Occupied by As above.
Lessors Geo. E. E. Nichols and M. Edith L. Lynch.

Rent $1 per annum.

jV'o. S9.—Edmonton, Alta Part of Canadian Northern Railway station

grounds.
Occupied by Immigration hall site.

Lessor Canadian Northern Railway.
Term expires On one month's notice from either lessor or

lessees.

Rent $1 per annxim.
Lessee pays taxes and water.

No. iO.
—Edmonton, Alta Two stores on ground floor, including one vault

store rocftn, gents' lavatory and cloak room,

together with additional space in basement
of Alexander block.

Occupied by Lands.
Lessor George Pheasey and Charles Colbert Batson.

Term expires July 1, 1918.

Rent $550 per month.
Lessors pay taxes, water and heat.

Lessee pays for light.

No. jl.—Edmundston, N.B Two rooms, one IS x 12 feet and the other

12 X 12 feet in lessor's building, one of

these rooms being furnished with a bed
complete.

Occupied by Immigration.

Lessor Joseph Pelletier.

Term expires March 1, 1917.

Rent ^H-l per year.

Lessor pays all taxes, water, and heat.

No. iS.—EntvAstle, Alta Lots Nos. 20, 21 and 22 in block No. 4.

Occupied by Immigration hall site.

Lessor Village of Entwistle.

Term expires March 12, 1919.

Rent 53 per annum.
Lessee pays all taxes and rates.

No. .',.!.—Fairville. N.B Wire for clock service.

Lessor N. B. Telephone Company.
Rent $40 per annum.

j\ro. y,,j.

—

Port William, Ont Suite of rooms with v.-iult accommodation in

lessors' building,. Floor area about 1.250

square feet.

Occupied by District Engineer.

Lessors G. A. Graham and J. T. Home.
Term expires August 1. 1918.

Rent $75 per month.
Lessors pay taxes, water and heating.

19—6
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No. iS.—Glace Bay, Cape Breton, N.S Lot of land for construction of protection wall
at Glace Bay beach.

Lessor Dominion Coal Company.
Terra expires January 30, 192S, with option to renew upon

request of lessee 6 months previous to ex-
piry for a like period of 20 years.

Rent $1 per annum.

NO. i6.
—Grande Prairie, Alta Parts of building on lots 31 and 32 block 4.

Occupied by Immigration.
Lessor J. O. Patterson.
Term expires January 1, 1917.

Rent $65 per month.

No. i7.

—

Grande Prairie, Alta Premises for Lands Office.

Lessors J. Fletcher and A. S. McLean.
Term expires Monthly.
Rent $20 per month.

No. iS.
—Gravelbourg, Saak Lota 7, 8, 9, 10, block '4.

Occupied by Immigration hall.

Lessor McKenzie & Mann.
Term expires January 1, 191S. Premises to be vacated on

30 days notice by lessors at any time.
Rent $1 per annum.
Lessee pays taxes.

No. Ifi.
—Grouard, Alta.

.

One long room owned by lessor.

Occupied by Immigration hall.

Lessor J. O. Giroux.
Term expires June 1, 1917.
Rent $25 per month.

No. SO.—Grouard, Alta Frame building 22' 6" x 50'.

Occupied by Lands office.

Lessor Wm. Stewart, Manager Royal Bank of Canait,
Peace River Crossing, Alta.

Term expires Monthly.
Rent $60 per month.
Lessee pays water, heating and lighting.

No. 51.—Halifax, N.S Top floor Dennis building.
Occupied by Militia and Defence.
Lessor Dennis Realty Corporation.
Term expires . . October 1, 1918, with option to lessee to ter-

minate lease at end of 3rd or 4th year
from October 1, 1913, on 6 months pre-

vious notice.
Rent $3,112 per annum.
Lessors pay taxes, water, insurance, heating and provide elevator service.

No. St.—Halifax, N.S Fifth floor Dennis building corner Granville and
George streets.

Occupied by Militia and Defence.
Lessor Dennis Realty Corporation.
Term expires October 1, 1918, with option to lessee to ter-

minate at end of 3rd and 4th year from
October 1, 1913, on G months previous
notice.

Rent $3,112 per annum.
Lessors pay taxes, water, Insurance, heating and provide elevator service.

No. SS—Halifax, N.S Two rooms, including use of vault in Dennis
building.

Occupied by J. P. Edwards In connection with Business War
Tax Act.

Lessor Dennis Realty Corporation.
Term expires Month to month from June 7, 1916.
Rent $30.20 per month.

NO. Si—Halifax, N.S 2,225 square feet and use of vault on fifth floor

of Dennis building.
Occupied by.. .. ^. Headciuarters ptaff of Militia District No. 6.

Lessor Dennis Realty Coriioration.
Term expires October 1. 1918.
Rent $2,225 per year.
Lessors pay all taxes, water. Insurance, heat, elevator and Janitor service.



REPORT OF THE CHIEF ARCHITECT 83

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

Xo. SS.—Halifax, N.S Office and vault In Metropole building.
Occupied by W. C. Milner, oaslern represertative of the

Archives.
Lessor Eastern Canada Savings and Loan Company,

Metropole building, Halifax, N.S.
Term expires Monthly.
Rent $18.75 per month.

No. Be.—Halifax, N.S 245, 247 and 249 Hollis street.

Occupied by Customs Express and warehouse.
Lessor Estate of Dr. James Walker represented by

R. S. Rossborough, trustee, Halifax, N.S.
Term expires April 30, 1917.
Rent $1,200 per annum.
Lessor pays taxes.
Lessee pays water.

NO. (7.—Hamilton, Out Area rents. Coal bin. Main street. Weights
and Measures and Gas Inspection. Portion
of area John street used by Post Office for
storage of ashes.

Rental The rate for this area sieems to be dependent
on the assessment, if any, for the year.

Lessor. City of Hamilton.

No. SI.—Hamilton, Ont Ground floor of building^on south-east corner of
Kinrade avenue and Barton street, also
cellar accommodation and rear entrance.

Occupied by Post Office station " B."
Lessor Clara Jane Swales.
Term expires November 1, 1916.
Rent $1,200 per annum.
Lessor pays taxes, water, heat and repairs to heating apparatus, also cleaning.

No. 59.—Hampton, N.B Right and privilege to connect with I. C. Ry.
water pipe at Hampton and draw water
therefrom for purposes of post office at
Hampton.

Lessor I. C. Ry.
Term expires During pleasure of lessor.
Rent $25 per annum.
Lessee pays all taxes.

No. SO.—Hudson Bay Junction, Sask House situated on lot 17, block 1.

Occupied by Office and headquarters of Pasquia Forest Re-
serve.

Lessor Ed. McEvoy, Star City, Sask.
Term expires Month to month from April 7, 1916.
Rent $12 per month.
Lessee pays heat, light and Janitor siervice.

No. 61.—Huntingdon, P.Q Space on ground floor in front part of O'Connor
building, and vault.

Occupied by Post Office.

Lessors O'Connor Bros.

4, Term expires April 1, 1921.

i Rent $£00 per year, $225 by postmapter and $675 by
4 Government.

Lessors pay all taxe^, heating, lighting and supply vault accomrt.odation

;

cleaning by postmaster.

No. 6",

—

Indian Head, Sask .The whole of the second floor of a 2-storey brick
building on Main street and 650 square feet
on the first floor of the adjoining building.

Occupied by Forestry Branch, Interior Department.
Lessor Mra Loretta Ann Osment.
Term expires September 1, 1916.

Rent $43 per month.
Lessor pays all taxes, including water.

i No m.—Indian Head, Sask Part of ground floor of a solid brick building
^ on east pide of Grand ave.

Occupied by Chief Inspector of Fisheries.
Lessor A. P. Shewan.
Term expires Month to month.^
Rent $13 per month.
Lessor pays taxes, water and heat.

Lessee pays light and caretaklng.

19—6i
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jVo. 6.}.

—

JoUette, P.Q Part of first flat of house east corner ot St.
Viateur and Place Bourget.

Occupied by Weights and Measures.
Lessor (executor of) Mrs. Joseph Louis Preville, widow.
Terra expires January 22, 1918.
Rent $264 per annum.
Lessor pays taxes, removes snow and pays lieat, light and cleaning.

No. 65.—Eamloops, B.C.. Part of ground floor GO by 20 feet and two
vaults 15 feet C inches by S feet and G feet
S inches in lessor's building, north-east
corner Fourth avenue and Seymour street,

Western Canada Trust building.
Occupied by Dominion Lands and Crown Timber Agency.
Lessor Independent Securities, Ltd.
Term expires September 1, 1917.
Kent $125 per month.
Lessors pay taxes, water, heat and cleaning.

No. «6.—Kamloojis, B.C Rooms, 11. 12, 13, 14 and 15 in Acadia building.

,
Occupied by Forestry Branch, Interior Department.
Lessor Independent Securities, Ltd.
Term expires July 15, 1916.
Rent $960 per year.
Lessorsi pay all taxes, water, heat, light and provide janitor service.

No. 67.

—

Eamloops, B.C Rooms 19, 20, 21 and 22 in Acadia building.
Occupied by Divisional Hydrographic Engineer.
Lessor Independent Securities, Ltd.
Term expires Month to month.
Rent $62.50 per month.
Lessors pay all taxes, water, heat, light and provide Janitor service.

A'o. 6S.

—

Kerrobert, Sask Site Immigration hall.

Lessor C P. Railway.
Term expires May l, 1912, and afterwards fronr. year to year,

lease may be terminated by lessor by one
month's notice, and such notice may be
given by posting same on the premises.

Rent $1 per year.

Lessee pays taxes.

Xo. 69.—Kingston, Ont Four rooms in second flat, facing on King
street, Nos. 1, 2, 3 and 4 (vault accommoda-
tion included) in the Bank of Toronto
building, and part of lot 96 in city of
Kingston.

Occupied by E. H. Pense and staff in connection with har-
bour improvements.

Lessor Bank of Toronto.
Term expires October 31. 1916.

Rent. J360 per annum. Rental paid charged monthly
to harbour improvements.

Lessors pay water, heat and cleaning of halls.

yo. 70.

—

Kingston. Ont.. Premises on Market square, ground floor of

tenement No. 8, the ground Hoar and second
floor of tenement No. 10, and the whole of

tenements Nos. 12 and 14 street number,
forming part of lot letter I in Ontario ward,
Kingston.

Occupied by Federal Public Service, Inland Revenue. Cus-
toms, Marine and Fisheries, and Railways
and Canals.

Lessors Representatives of Gildersleeve >;Stato, Kingston,
represented by Henry Herclimer Gilder-

sleeve and Helen Emily Herchmer, of

Belleville, committee of the person and
estate of Laurence Kirby Herchmer, a per-

son of unsound mind.

Term expires July 1, 1928, with option to renew for 21 years
on same conditions.

Rent $1,762 per annum.
Lenaee provides fireman, light and fuel and water and pays taxes, street

sprinkling and snow cleaning.
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.Vo. 7J.—Kingston, O/it Front room, ground floor, of house 3, Johnston
street.

Occupied by Immigration agent.
Lessor Mrs. Catherine Mathewson.
Term expires May 31, 1917.

Rent $180 per annum.
Lessee to i<eep up fences.

*

No. 72.

—

Kingston, Ont Premises situate on part of lots 294 and 295.

,
west Bagot street, frontage 134 feet, depth
119 feet, south side of Brock and Clarence
streets, with bricli building, stables and
sheds.

Occupied by Additional stores for Militia Department.
Lessor Thos. J. Pelly, present address 414 Sth street

W., Calgary.
Term expires May 1, 1919.
Rent $1,000 per annum.
Lessor pays ground rent, taxes and water.

No. 13.—Lacolle, P.Q . . .. Office S.B. corner of Church and St. Bernard
streets.

Occupied by Immigration Inspector.
Lessor Dame Gubladine Tremblay.
Terra expires Year to year.
Rent $9C per annum.

No H.—Laiid^downe, Ont Ground floor of tenement of building owned by
lessor, north-east corner of Prince street
and Grand Trunk avenue.

Occupied by Post Office.

Lessor Wm. McConnell.
Term expires December 1, 1918.
Rent $150 per annum of which Government pays $25

and postmaster $125.
Lessor pays taxes.

No. 7.;.

—

Le Pas, Manitoba Store on east side of Edwards avenue adjoining
corner of Edward avenue and Second street.

Occupied by Post Oflice.

Lessor Wm. Sinclair, M.D.
Term expires Month to month.
Rent $600 per annum.
Lessor pays all taxes.

No. 76.

—

London, Ont Roor on first floor, divided into three offices.

Bank of Toronto Chambers. Floor area.
486 square feet.

Occupied by Mr. Geo. Tambling, for business profits war tax.
Lessor Bank of Toronto.
Term expires June 15, 1917.

Rent $200 per annum.
T-ftssor pays water and heating.
Lessee pays lighting and janitor service.

No. 77.

—

Longue Point, P.Q A portion of ground adjoining lessors shops at
National Bridge Co., Longue Point.

Occupied by Storage of materials in connection with the
construction of new examining warehouse.
Montreal.

Lessor P. Lyall & Sons Construction Co., Ltd.
Term expires " During such time as premises are required by

the lessee for said purpose " of storage.

Rent $1 for period "of which receipt is hereby
acknowledged."

No 7S

—

L'Orignal, Ont West half of two-story brick building north side

King street on lot letter " D " in village of

L'Orignal and a strip of land 21 feet in

width by 30 feet in depth at the rear of

building.
Occupied by Post Office.

Lessor.. Alexandre Chatelaine.
Term expirts January 1, 1919.
Rent $250 per annum, half of which is paid by Gov-

ernment and half by Postmaster.
Lessor pays taxes, postmaster pays for water, heat, light and cleaning.



86 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

No. 79.

—

Maisonneuve, P.Q Portion of lessor's building, 116 Letourneux st.

Occupied by Tostal Station " M."
Lessor M''s. Odile Lavoie, wife of J. O. Normand.
Term expires ^lay 1. 1917.

Rent $25 per month.
Lessor pays all taxes except water rates.

No. SO.—Maple Creek/Sask First floor of lessor's building corner facing the
railway depot.

Occupied by Lands.
Lessor L. C. Parsons, Cowansville, P.Q.

Term expires March 1, 1918.

Rent $1,200 per annum.
Lessor pays all taxes and provides water service and drainage.

No. 81.—Maple Creek, Sask Room in building adjoining Lands office.

Occupied by Ranch Inspector.

Lessor D. J. Wylie.
Term expires. Monthly.
Rent $15 per month.

No. 82.—Medicine Hat, Alta Office 306, owned by lessors in office building on
lots 23 and 24, block 14, plan 1491.

Occupied by Immigration.
Lessor 'Walter Huckvale and Sidney Tom Hooper.
Term expires June 1, 1917.

Rent $28 per month.
Lessor pays janitor.

No. 8S.—Melita, Man About 880 square feet of lessor's building.

Occupied by Post Office.

Lessor Melita Lodge No. 20, LO.O.F.
Term expires March 1. 1917, with option to less^ee to con-

tinue from year to year unless notice in

writing is given by either party two months
previous to the end of any year.

Rent ?266 per annum, $103 by postmaster, $163 by
Government.

Lessors pay all taxes. Including water. The lessiee shall in no way contribute

to the cost of heating the premises.

No. 8i.—MerrickviUe, Ont Portion of Jakes block erected in part on lot 6

on Main street.

Occupied by Post office.

Lessor Geo. L. Jakes.

Term expires January 1, 1917.

Rent $350 per annum of which Government pays
$220 and postmaster $150,

Lessor pays all taxes, including water, also heat, light and cleaning.

Ifo g5_ Mont JoU, P.Q.. One storey wooden building on principal street.

Occupied by Post Office.

Lessor liJtienne Levesque.

Term expires January 15, 1918, option to lessee to continue
from year to year by giving three months'
notice.

Rent ?300 per year, $240 by D.P.'W., $60 by P.O.D.

Lessor pays all taxes.

No. 86.~Montmagny, P.Q Lessors' building, near I.C.R. station.

Occupied by Storage for machinery, tools, etc., owned by
Department of Public Works.

Lessor A. Belanger.

Term expires November 1, 1916.

Rent $B0 per annum.
Lessor pays all taxes.

jfo. SI. Montreal, P.Q.. .. Room No. 20 on first floor of Beardmore bldg.

Occupied by. Supervising Engineer, Public 'Works Dept.

Lessor Beardmore & Company.
Term expires Month to month.

Rent $800 per annum.
Lessor pays taxes and heating and provides elevator service.

Lessee pays water.
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No. 88.

—

Montreal, P.Q Northwest part of a store No. 101 St. Catherine
street east.

Occupied by Postal station " N."
Lessor Cordelia Blache curatrix to Alfred Dalbeck,

advocate, her husband represented herein by
Jas. A. Dupuy.

Term expires May 1, 1917.

Rent $1,680 per annum.
Lessor pays all taxes.

Lessee pays water and heats whole building.

No. 89.

—

Montreal, P.Q Office southwest corner of baggage room ot
Windsor street station.

Occupied by Mail room.
Lessor Canadian Pacific Kailwav.
Term expires November 1, 1908, or lease may be terminated

by lessor at any time by mailing; (postage
paid) at post office in Montreal, a notice
addressed to the Minister of Public Works,
Ottawa, naming a day at least thrne months
from the mailing thereof.

Rent $213 per annum.
Lessor pays for heating.

No. 90.—Montreal, P.Q Building on Craig street, opposite Central Post
Office, being numbers 117 and 119 and
known as " Old Herald Building.''

Occupied by I'ost Office.

Lessor r.e Comptoir Mobilier Franco-Canadien.
Term expires November 23, 1£17, witli option to renew for

2 years on same terms on 3 months' notice
in writing.

Rent $8,000 per annum and 10 per cent ot cost of
new floors during tirm of present lease.

Lessors pay all taxes.
Lessee pays water rates, heating, lighting, janitor service and cleaning and

repairs elevator.
*

No. 91. Montreal, P.Q Brick and stone building on St. Paul street, Nos.
272 and 274, e.\:tending through to Nos. 113
and 115 on Commissioners street.

Occupied by Military stores and offices

Lessor Estate of Simeon Delorme.
Term expires May 1, 1917.

Rent $3,000 per annum.
Lessee pays general taxes.

1^0. 92.

—

Montreal, P.Q Portions on the fifth and ninth floors ot
Shaughnessey building corner of McGill and
St. Paul streets.

Occupied by District Engineer Public Works Department and
Wreck Commissioners of Department of
Marine and Fisheries.

Lessors Dorchester Realties, Ltd.
Terra expires May 1, 1919.

Rent $7,327.37 per annum equals $1 a square toot
and 10 per cent Oft cost of partitions.

Lessors pay taxes, insurance, heating and provide elevator service.

Lessee pays tor water.

No. 9S.—Montreal, P.Q . . .. About one-half ot the eighth floor of
Shaughnessey building, corner McGill and
St. Paul streets.

Occupied by Marine and Fisheries.

Lessor Dorchester Realties, Limited.
Term expires May 1, 1919.

Rent $4,420.05 per annum equals $1 per square foot
and 10 per cent on cost of partitions.

Lessors pay taxes, insurance, heating and provide elevator service and
attendants thereof.

Lessee pays for water.

No. Oi.—Montreal, P.Q Canopy over sidewalVc, Carslake building, 133'20

square feet.

Occupied by As above.
Lessor City ot Montreal
Rent $6.66 per annum.
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No. 9S.—Montreal, P.Q St. Cunegonde Ward, ground flour, Municipal
building, corner Vinet and Richelieu,
Montreal, with vault and toilet room, and
basement, with entrance on Vinet street

Occupied by Post Office.
Lessor Originally City of St. Cunegonde, now City of

Montreal.
Terra expires June 10, 1925.
Rent $1,750 per annum.
Lessor pays heat, light and cleaning.

Xo. 96.—Montreal, P.Q Rooms 4, 5. 6 and 7, also space in vault in
" Duluth Building," corner Notre Dame and
St. Sulpice streets.

Occupied by Archives Department.
Lessor J. Thomas Ostell.
Term expires May 1, 1916, thereafter from n.onth to montli.
Rent $90 per month.
Lessor pays all taxes, water, heating, cleaning and provides janitor and ele-

vator service.

-Vo. 97.

—

Montreal, P.Q Two rooms in lessor's building at 129 Commis.
sioner street.

Occupied by Department of Naval Service.

Lessor Mr. T. Prud'homme.
Term expires December 1, 1916.

Rent $30 per montli.

No. 98.—Moosejaw, Sask Lots 27 and 28 in block 127 on Manitoba street.

Occupied by Immigration.
Lessor City of Moosejaw.
Term expires April 15, 1917.

Rent $100 per annum.
Lessee pays all taxes.

No. 99.—Nelson, B.C Four rooms in lessor's brick building, corner
Ward and Victoria streets.

Occupied by District Engineer.
Lessor John Ed. Annable.
Terra expires April 13, 1917.

Rent $600 per annum.
Lessor pays taxes, water, heating, lighting and janitor.

-Yo. 100.—Nominingue, P.Q
.'

Privilege of gate, 15 feet in width in fence at

C. P. Ry. station grounds.
Lessor C. P. Ry.
Term expires Gate may be removed and opening closed any

time by C. P. Ry. on one month's written
notice or by posting notice on premises.

Rent $8 for first year and $1 per year after that
Lessee indemnifies lessor against any damages.

No. 101.—North Battleford site.

Occupied by Immigration Hall.
Lessor Canadian Northern Railway.
Term expires April 30, 1909, lessee or lessor may terminate

lease on one month's notice in writing.
Rent $1 per annum.
Lessee pays taxes.

No. lot.—North Portal, Saak Site.
Occupied by Immigration Hall.
Lessor C. P. Ry.
Terra expires Year to year (1st June each year).
R6"t $1 per annum.
Lessee pays taxes.

No. lOS.—North Hydney, N.S Entire second flat of Y.M.C.A. building.
Occupied by Engineers.
Lessor Y.M.C.A.
Term expires May 1, 1917, option to lessee to continue from

year to year on same terms by giving three
months' notice in writing ; this option sub-
ject to cancellation by written notice from

,

lessors to lessee jirior to first day of Not-
err.ber in any year.

Rent.., $600 per annum.
Lessor 'pays ordinary taxes and heating.
Lessee pays water and light.
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A'o. lOi.—Ottawa, Ont Two rooms, one in front and one in rear with
vaults and lavatories, Victoria Chambers,
130 Wellington street, floor area 950 square
feet.

Occupied by Interior Department, Inspector Dominion Lands
Surveys.

Lessor William Anderson Allan and Sandford Hall
Fleming.

Term expires April 20, 1918.
Rent $90 per month.
Lessor pays all taxes, heating and lighting.

No. 105.—Ottawa, Ont Whole of building No. 140 Argyle aye.
Occupied by House of Commons Restaurant.
Lessor The Ashbury College Co., Ltd.

Term e.xpires March 1, 1917.

Rent $2,000 per year.

Lessor pays all taxes except water rates.

Lessee pays water, heat and light.

-Vo loe.—Ottawa, Ont Suite No. 5 In Aylmer Annex, Nos. 11, 19 Slater
street and storeroom in bapement, 1,548
square feet at 4 6Jc.

Occupied by Col. Biggar and staff. Militia and Defence Dept.
Lessor Sir Henry N. Bate Realty Corporation.
Term expires December 1, 1916.

Rent $720 per annum.
Lessors pay all taxes and heating, also janitor, tjut not care of premises leased.

A'o. M7.

—

Ottawa, Ont Aylmer Annex, apartment No. G.

Occupied by Militia and Defence.
Lessor Sir Henry Bate Realty Corporation.
Term expires October 1, 1916.
Rent $648 per annum.
Lessor pays all taxes, water, street sprinkling, snow cleaning rates and heat-

ing.

Lessee pays gas.

No. IDS.—Ottawa, Ont . . . Suite of rooms in Apartment No. 7, in Aylmer
Annex, and storeroom in basement, floor

area 1,118 square feet.

Occupied by Royal Engineers.
Lessors Sir Henry N. Bate Realty Corporation.
Term expires October 1, 1916.
Rent $30 per month in advance.
Lessor pays all taxes, water, street sprinkling, snow cleaning rates and heat-

ing.

Lessee pays gas.

No. 109.—Ottawa, Ont Clock line service.
Lessor Bell Telephone Co.
Term expires September 19, 1920. May be terminated by

either party on 30 days' written notice in

advance. Line remains the property of the
company.

Rent $560 per annum.

A'o. 110.— OttavHi, Ont. Whole of five upper floors and part of basement
in Birks building. Sparks street, floor area
23,185 square feet.

Occupied by Militia and Defence, Railways and Canals, Pub-
lic Works Department and Agriculture and
Customs.

Lessors , Henry Birks & Sons, Ltd.
Term expires October 1, 1916.
Rent $17,000 per annum.
Lessors pay taxes, heating and provide elevator.
Lessee pays water, lighting and cleaning.

No. lioa.—Ottawa, Ont Two rooms on first floor of lessors' building,
corner of Sparks and Bank streets. Floor
area, 469 square feet.

Occupied by Mr. Challoner, Geodetic Survey, P. W. Dept
Lessor Russell Blackburn.
Term expires May 1, 1917.
Rent $350 per annum.
Lessors pay taxes and heating.
Lessee pays water.
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No. 111.—Ottawa, Ont Uoom 414 in Union Bank building.
Occupied by -Munitions Board.
Lessor R. L. & R. Blackburn.
Term expires November 9, 1916.

Rent .$371 per annum.
Lessor pays all taxes (except water), heating, and provides elevator service.

Lessee pays water, lighting and cleaning.

Bent to ie paid by this Department to end of lease only.

No. 112.—Ottawa, Ont Part of 2nd floor, part of 3rd floor and the whole
of 4th, 5th, 6th, 7th, 8th and 9th floors of
eastern portion of Union Bank building,
29,350 square feet, which excludes hallg,

staircase, elevator space, corridors and
toilet rooms, counting the top floor at one
and one-half floors on account of its extra
height.

Occupied by Post Office and Interior.

Lessors R. L. and R. Blackburn.
Term expires July 16, 1918.

Rent $28,986 per annum.
Lessors pay taxes, heating and provide elevator service.

Lessee pays water, lighting and cleaning.

No. lis.—Oitawa, Ont Six floors in Union Bank building at rear of

Langevin block, floor area, 15,240 square
feet.

Occupied by Interior and Post Office.

Lessors R. L. & R. Blackburn.
Term expires January 6, 1917. .

Rent $13,000 per annum.
Lessor pays taxes and heating.
Lessee pays water.

No. It.').—Oitawa, Ont Rooms bearing Nos. 60S, 609 and 611, Union
Bank building, 1,154 superficial feet.

Occupied by Post Office Department.
Lessors R. L. & R. Blackburn.
Term expires July 15, 1918.

Rent $1,154 per annum.
Lessors pay all taxes (less water rate?) and heating.

No. 115.—Ottawa, Ont Large front room in basement of Union Bank
building, on eastern side of building, floor

area 2.600 superficial feet.

Occupied by Railway Lands Branch Interior Department.
Lessors R. L. & R Blackburn.
Term expires August 21, 1917, with option to renew.
Rent $1,040 per annum.
Lessor pays taxes, heating and elevator service.

Lessee pays lighting, water and cleaning.

No. 116.—Ottawa, Ont Room 408 with adjoining L in section "C"
Union Bank building, 431 square feet floor

space.

Occupied by -VUinition Board.
Lessors li. L. & R. Blackburn.
Term expires July 16, 191S.

Rent $431 per annum.
Lessors pay all taxes (except water rates), heating, lighting, cleaning and

provide elevator service.

No. in.—Ottawa, Ont Three top floors of the Plaza building, corner
Sussex and Rideau streets.

Occupied by Militia and Defence.

Lessors R. L. & R. Blackburn.
Term expires VuKUst 23, 1916.

Rent $G,0S5 per annum.
Lessors pays taxes, heating and elevator service.

No. lis.—Oitawa, Otit 4th floor Booth building, 2,500 square feet at

$1 per foot.

Occupied by War Purchasing Commission.
Lessors C. Jackson Booth and J. A. D. Holbrcok.

Terra expires November 1, 1918.

Rent $2,540 per annum.
Lessors pay. all taxes and heating and provide use of elevators.
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No. lis.—Ottawa, Ont . . , , Three upper floors of building on Sparks street
known as Booth building, 16,495 square feet.

Occupied by Indian Affairs.

Lessors C Jackson Booth and J. A. D. Holbrook.
- Term expires November 1, 1918.

Rent $16,495 per annum.
V Lessors paj- all taxes and heating and provide use of elevators.

V
.- Kfo. 120.—Ottawa, Ont Room No. 410 in Trafalgar building.

Occupied by Mr. Pope, Controller of Revenue, Interior Dept.
Lessor John Charles Brennan.
Term expires May l, 191S.
Rent $268.95 per annum.
Lessor pays taxes, except water rates and' heating and provides use of ele-

vator.

Lessee pays water rates, lighting and cleaning.

No. 121.—Ottawa, Ont Room No. 212 Trafalgar building, floor area 291
square feet.

Occupied by Civil Service Commission.
Lessor John Charles Brennan.
Term expires May 1, 1918.

Rent $274.62 per annum.
Lessor pays taxes, heating and provides use of elevator.

Lessee pays water, lighting and cleaning.

No. m.—Ottawa, Ont Premises in Trafalgar building : —
On 1st floor.—Rooms Nos. 101 to 106 in-

clusive and Nos. 112 and
113, rooms 107 to 111 in-

• elusive, occupied by An-
nuities Branch, Post Office

Department.
On 2nd floor.—Rooms Nos. 201, 202, 203,

206 to 214 inclusive, occupied
by Civil Service Commission.

On 3rd floor.—Rooms 301 to 314 inclusive,

occupied by Accountant's
Branch Interior Department.

On 4th floor.—Rooms 401 to 409 inclusive,
412 also 413 (room 413
vacant), occupied by Con-
troller of Revenue, Interior
Department. Floor area
16,955 square feet.

Lessor John Charles Brennan.
Term expires May 1, 1918.
Rent $16,000 per annum.
Lessor pays taxes and heating and provides use of elevator.
Lessee pays water, lighting and cleaning.

No. 12S.—Ottawa, Ont Four floors above ground floor in lessor's
building on Queen street between Bank and
O'Connor streets, 12,280 superficial feet.

Occupied by Interior Department, Dominion Parks Branch,
1st and 2nd floors ; Public Works Depart-
ment, UpperOttawa storage, 3rd floor ; Pub-

/ lie Works Department, Georgian Bay Com-
i mission, 1st floor (part) ; Public Works
I Department. District Engineer, 4th floor.
» Lessor Bryson Realty Co., Ltd.
i Term expires April 25, 1919.

C Rent $8,596 per annum.
Lessors pay taxes, water rates, heating.
Lessee provides elevator attendant.

No. l2.',.—0liawa, Ont 100 feet storage space in Bryson Realty Co.'s
building on Queen street between Bank and
O'Connor streets.

Occupied by Storage.
Lessors Bryson Realty Co., Ltd.
Rent $30 per year.
Term expires Year to year. May 20.
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No. 113.—Ottawa, Ont. . No. 105 Murray street, floor area 5,975 square
feet. Lessors to provide the necessary
access to 1st floor from the main building.

r Occupied by Storage for Printing Bureau.
Lessors The Bytown and Suburbs Land Co.. Ltd.

Term expires July 14, 1919.

Rent $2,390 per annum.
Lessors pay taxes, water and insurance.

None.—Ottawa, Ont ^ .. Third or top floor of building on Driveway,
corner of Emmett and Lewi? streets.

Occupied by General Medical Service, Militia and Defence
Department.

Lessors Capital Storage Co., Ltd.

Term expires April 17, 1917.

Rent $1,520 per annum.
Lessors pay. all taxes, water, heating and provide elevator for freight.

No. 127.—Ottawa, Ont Basement 136 Emmett street, 3,300 square feet.

Occupied by Storage Militia and Defence.

Lessor Capital Storage Co.. Ltd.

Term expires Date of lease, October 8. 1914. Term 1 year
from date of occupation and thereafter

during the continuance of the war. Lessee
to give 3 months written notice of intention

to vacate.
Rent $1,650 per annum.
Lessor pays taxes, water, insurance, heating and elevator service.

No. 12S.—Ottawa, Ont 2nd, 3rd, 4th, 5th, 6th and 7th floors of Carting
building east side Bank street between
Sparks and Queen street.

Occupied by Interior Department.
Lessor Mrs. Eva C. Carling.

Term expires February 22, 1920.

Rent $13,000 per annum.
Lessor pays all taxes, heating and provides elevator service.

No. 129.—Ottawa, Ont Dwelling house and premises. No. 12 Emmett
street, excepting the stable facing Lisgar
street, which lessor may remove at^ any
time, floor area 3,000 square feet.

Occupied by.. Director General Medical Stores.

Lessor E. W. Clark, Managing Director Standard Milk
Co., corner Yukon and Sth avenue, Van-
couver, B.C.

Term expires April 30, 1918.

Rent $50 per month.
Lessor pays taxes.

Lessee pays water, water sprinkling, snow cleaning.

No. ISO.—Ottaiea, Ont First and second floors of building 113-115
Rideau street (corner William), with a

small shed in rear. Floor area 10,919

square feet.

Occupied by Militia Department.
Lessors Duford and Charleson.

Term expires February 20, 1918.

Rent $7,053.60 per year.

Lessors pay taxes and heating and freight elevator service.
^ Lessee pays water.

No. W.—Ottaica, Ont. . Property in Ottawa, 128 Wellington street.

Floor area 5.714 square feet.

Occupied by N. W. Mounted Police.

Lessor D. M. Finnie and W. D. Morris.

Term expires November 20, 1917.

Rent $4,000 per annum.
Lessors pay taxes, water, Insurance.

Lessee pays heating, cleaning and lighting.

No 1-fi. Ottawa, Ont Premises l>earing civic No. 128 Queen street.

Occupied by Stationery and Supply Branch of Railway
Land-s Interior Department.

lessor .Archibald Leslie Foster, M.D.

Term expires November 1, 1916.

Rent $75 per month.
Lessor pays' all taxes.
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Xo. 133.—Ottawa, 07it -Two top floors of Imperial building, corner
Queen and O'Connor streets. Floor area

10,497 square feet.

Occupied by Topographical Branch of Interior Department.
Lessor John M. Garland, Son & Co.

Terra expires October 1, 1916, renewed for 3 years with Mrs.
E. A. Pearson.

Rent $2,500 per annum.
Lessors pay taxes, water, insurance, heating.
Lessee pays lighting and cleaning.

Xo. I3'i.
—Ottawa, Ont Easement for projection of about two feet

beyond line of division between southeast

corner of roof of Langevin block and pro-

perty of G. H. Perley.

Lessor C. Jackson Booth.
Term expires... October 1, 1918, and is renewable for 21 years

at expiry of each 31 years for which period

lease is drawn.
Rent $5 per annurr..

Xo. 13S.—Oltaioa, Ont All that 4-story brick building northeast corner

of O'Connor and Queen streets, known as

Regal building. Floor area, 22,512 square

feet.

Occupied by Labour Department, Militia Department.

Lessor J. E. Hanna.
Term expires September 12, 1919.

Rent $13,000 per annum.
Lessor pays taxes.
Lessee pays water, snow cleaning, heating, lighting, street sprinkling, janitoi

service, operation of elevator and all expenses in connection with main-

tenance. Order in Council, September 11, 1914.

Xo. 13e.—Ottawa, Ont Third floor of Hope building, corner Sparks and
Elgin streets. Floor area, 2,544 square feet.

Occupied by Railway Mail Service.

Lessor James Hope & Son.

Terra expires January 29. 191S.

Rent $2,500 per annum.
Lessors pay taxes, water, insurance, heat and provide elevator service

Xo. W.—Ottuioa, Ont . . . Easement Langevin block.

Lessor Jas. Hope.
Term expires April 25, 1919, renewable at expiry of lease for

21 years and thereafter for further 21 years

at expiry of each 21 years period.

Rent $5 per annum.

Xc^m.—Ottawa, Ont Canadian huUding.—12 and 14 Slater street, ex-

cepting that portion oc-

cupied by lessor as an
office.

Militia buildinig.—22 and 28 Slater street.

Queen street building.—64 and 66 Queen street.

Occupied as follows Canadian building present occupants:
7th floor.—Agriculture.
6th " -—Census and Statistics.

5th " —west side.—Agriculture.
5th " —east side.—Auditor General.
4th " —Interior.

3rd '* —Interior.

2nd " —Immigration.
1st " —Immigration (west side).
1st " —Interior (east side), also Trade

and Coinmerce.

Militia building.—All floors occupied by Militia

and Defence.

Queen street building.—By Agriculture. Total
floor area, 127.581 square feet.

Lessor Imperial Realty Co., Limited.
Term expires May 1, Hitfi. New arrangement pending.
Rent $78,468.94 per annum.
Lessor pays special taxes, heating.
Lessee pays taxes, snow cleaning, water, street sprinkling and lighting.
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No. 1S9.—Ottawa, Ont First two flats and basement 326 and 328 Queen
street. Floor area, 4,000 square feet.

Occupied by Agriculture.
Lessor Frank Jarman.
Term expires April 1, 1919.

Rent $130 per month.
Lessor pays taxes, water and heating.

jfo, no.—Ottawa, Ont Second, third, fourth and fifth floors of Journal
building on Queen street, near Bank, 16,560
square feet at 70 cents (See also additional
space for Departments of Agriculture and
Interior not included in this lease).

Occupied by 2nd floor.—Auditor General Department.
3rd floor.—Interior Department.
6th floor.—Agriculture Department.
3rd, 4th and 5th floor.^Forestry Department.
5th floor.—Ottawa River Works.
5th floor.—Public Works Department.

Lessor Journal Printing Co., Limited.
Term expires January 12, 1919.

Rent $11,592 per annum,' see also additional space
for Departments of Agriculture and Interior.

Lessor pays all taxes and heating.

No. lit-—Ottawa, Ont ..Seven hundred and seventy square feet at 70

cents southeast corner 6th floor Journal
building.

Occupied by Translator and assistants of Department of

Agriculture.
Lessor Journal Printing Co., Ltd.

Term expires Yearly.
Rent $539 per year.

No. Lit.—Ottawa, Ont Six hundred and twenty-one square feet at 70

cents in basement Journal building, south-

east corner.

Occupied by Forestry Branch of Interior.

Lessor Journal Printing Co., Ltd.
Term expires Yearly.
Rent $434.70 per annum.

No. Ui.—Ottawa, Ont Premises on sixth floor of La Banque Nationale

building, Rideau street.

Occupied by Translators.
Lessor La Banque Nationale.
Term expires April 14. 1919.

Rent $2,110.20 per year.

Lessors pay all taxes, water, heating and provide elevator service.

No. m.— Ottawa, Ont ... Rooms 4, 5, 6, 7, 8 and 9 in lessors' buildinMn
Rideau street, floor area 2,209 square feet.

Occupied by Ofllcer commanding internment operations, Mili-

tia and Defence Department.

Lessor La Banque Nationale.

Term expires At end of war, with right to lessee to terminate

on month's notice to lessor.

Rent $1,150 50 per annum.
Lessor pays all taxes, water, heating and provides elevator service.

jVo /j5 otiaiva Ont Three stores on ground floor, the whole of 1st

and 2nd floors and 4,800 superficial feet of

basement of lessor's building, corner Dal-

housie and York streets. Total floor area,

18,000 square feet.

Occupied by Stationery Branch Printing Bureau.

Lessor Patrick Labelle.

Term expires January 2, 1919.

Rent $11,500 per annum.
Lessor pays taxes, water, heat and gives use of elevator.

No. US.—Ottawa, Ont Garage building on York street.

Occupied by Dept. of Public Printing and Stationery.

Lessor Patrick Labelle.

Term expires January 2, 1919.

Rent $2,448 per annum.
Lessor' pays all taxes (Including white way) and water rates.
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No. 1)1.—Ottawa, Ont Nos. 317, 319 and 321 Queen street, together
with the new building thereto annexed.
Floor area, 16,000 square feet.

Occupied by Analyst and Testing Departments, Inland
Revenue.

Lessors J. B. & W. A. Lamb.
Term expires June 1, 1917, and thereafter from year to year.
Rent $2,660 per annum.
Lessors pay local improvements, taxes and water.
Lessees pay taxes (excepting as above) and heating.

No. US.— Ottawa, Ont .. .. ..Third and fourth floors of Stephen building,
217-219 Queen street.

Occupied by Seed grain staff. Interior Department.
Lessor The 2 Macs, Ltd.

Term expires June 29, 1916.

Rent $300 per month.
Lessor pays all taxes, heating and elevator service.

Lessee pays water rates.

No. 1^9.—Ottawa, Ont 1st and 2nd floors of Stephen building, north
side Queen street, immediately west of Bank
street. Floor area 4,970, rent equals 70
cents per square foot.

Occupied by Stationery Branch Interior.

Lessor The 2 Macs, Ltd.
Term expires June 6, 1920.

Rent $3,479 per annum.
Lessors pay all taxes (except water rates), heating and provide elevator

service.

No. ISO.—Ottawa, Ont.. .. .. Third and fourth floors of McNeill-Stewart
building, 19S and 200 Queen street. Floor
area, 2,893 square feet.

Occupied by Additional accommodation for Auditor General
Lessor E. R. McNeill and R. G. Stewart.
Term expires September 5, 1916.

Rent $1,850 per annum.
Lessors pay taxes and heating and provide elevator service.

Lessee pays water.

No. 111.—Ottawa, Otit Building No. IS York street; floor area about
25,000 square feet.

Occupied by Distribution office of Printing Bureau.
Lessor A. J. Major.
Term expires Five years from date of occupation.

Rent $6,155 per year.
Lessor pays all taxes and insurance.
Lessee pays heating and elevator service.

No. lit.—Ottawa, Ont Basement of premises 174, 175 and 178 "Welling-

ton street. Floor area, 2,830 square feet.

Occupied by Lithographing Division Survey Branch, Militia

and Defence.
Lessor W. H. Martin & Co.
Terra expires December 4, 1916, with option to renew for two

years at same rental.

Rent $900 per annum.
Lessors pay taxes, water, insurance and heating.
Lessees pay light.

No. lis.—Ottawa, Ont.. Mezzanine floor and basement, Ottawa Masonic
Temple. Floor space 1,017 square feet,

feet.

Occupied by Conservation Commission.
Lessor Ottawa Masonic Temple, Ltd.
Term expires November 15, 1918.
Rent $636.75 per annum.
Lessor pays all taxes (except water rates) and heating, and provides use of

elevator.

No. Wj.

—

Ottawa, Ont Ground floor and first floor building on Metcalfe
street, between Slater and Laurier avenue
west, known as " New Masonic Temple,"
8,188 square feet at 75 cents a foot.

Occupied by Conservation Commission.
Lessor Ottawa Masonic Temple, Limited.
Term expires November 15. 1918.
Rent $6,141 per annum.
Lessor pays taxes, heating and gives use. ot elevator.
Lessee pays water, lighting and cleaning.
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^'o. 155.—Ottawa, Ont Premises two stories high. No. 64 and 66 George
street, 4.200 square feet at 43c.

Occupied by Storage Militia and Defence.
Lessor The Molson's Banl<.
Term expires February 20, ]917.
Rent $150 per month,
Ijessors pay all taxes, including water.

Xo. iJS.

—

Ottawa, Ont T\niole of building northeast corner of Metcalfe
and Slater streets, except 33 by 66 feet of
lot up^n which building stands, which is

not built upon. Floor area 9,764 square feet.

Occupied by Interior and Surveyor General.
Lessor Ottawa Building Co.
Term expires May 1, 1918.
Rent $4,000 per annum.
Lessors pay special taxes and insurance
Lessee pays taxes, excepting as above, water, heat, light and cleaning.

.Vo. /.;7.

—

Ottawa, Ont West half of lot No. 19, on south side of
Wellington street, Nos. 102 and 104 Welling-
ton street Floor area, 5,232 square feet.

Occupied by Interior Department-
Lessor Ottawa Building Co., Ltd.
Term expires June 1, 1920.
Rent $2,500 per annum.
Lessors pay special taxes.
Lessee pays taxes, excepting as above, water, street sprinkling and snow

cleaning.

yo. 15S.—Ottaica, Ont Nos. 98, 100 south side Wellington street, known
as " Nagle building." Floor area, 5,506
square feet.

Occupied by Justice Department.
Lessor Ottawa Building Co., Limited.
Term expires May 1, 1918.
Rent $2,500 per annum.
Lessors pay special taxes and insurance.
Lessees pay taxes, excepting as above, water, heating, lighting and cleaning.

-Yo. 159.—Ottdwa, Ont .

.

Stone building, southwest corner Queen and
Metcalfe streets, Nos. 94 and 96 Queen
street, also yard. Floor area, 7,129 square
feet.

Occupied by Stationery and Exhibition Branch Agriculture
Department. i

Lessor Ottawa Investment Co., Ltd.
Terra expires Yearly on 1st August.
Rent $1,000 per annum.
Lessor pays special taxes.
Lessee pays taxes, excepting as above, and water.

Xo. 160.—Ottawa, Ont. .
'. Second, third and fourth floors of new Central

station building. Floor area, 23,761 square
feet.

Occupied by Railway Commission, Board of.

Lessor Ottawa Terminals Railway Co.
Term expires November 1, 1916, with option to renew for five

years or less under terms to be agreed upon
between lessor and lessee.

Rent $19,500 per annum.
Lessors pay taxes, heating and power for elevators.
Lessee pays water and light.

No. ISI.—Ottawa, Ont Basement, ground and first floors, 'brick build-

ing known as Imperial building, south side

Queen street. No. 138 (excepting that por-
tion of basement used for heating plant and
coal storage). Floor area, 11,162 square
feet.

Occupied by Interior Department, Surveyor General.
Lessor Eliza Ann Pearson.
Term expires Tanuary 1. mifl.
Rent $5,400 per annum.
Lessor pays taxes.
Lessee pays water.
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No. liil.—Ottawa, Ont Three rooms on 2nd floor and two rooms on 3rd
floor in Quebec Bank building, Wellington
street. Floor area, 1,500 square feet.

Occupied by Statistical Branch of Railways and Canals.
Lessor Quebec Buildings, Lirr.ited.

Term expires May 1, 1917.
Rent $1,200 per annum.
Lessor pays taxes, water, insurance and heating.

No. 163.—Ottawa, Ont Three upper stories of lessor.s' building, corner
Rideau and Sussex streets, 62,907 square
feet at 70 cents per foot.

Occupied by Marine and Fisheries and Naval Service.
Lessor A. E. Rea Co., Ltd.
Term expires September 9, 1919.
Rent 544,034.90 per annum.
Lessor pays taxes, heating and elevator service.

Lessee pays water.

No. 16li.—Ottawa, Ont West ofBce of ground floor of lessors' building,
Wellington street, 1,785 square feet.

Occupied by Rural Mail Service.
Lessor The Rideau Club.
Term expires May 1, 1917.
Rent $1,800 per annum.
Lessor pays taxes, water and heating.

No. 16-j,—Ottawa, Ont . . .
Whole of Robinson block south side Queen street

between Metcalfe and Elgin streets, except
one store and the basements under said
store. Floor area 38,272 sq. feet= 39Tio
cents.

Occupied by P. O. Department, Public Works Department
and Customs Department.

Lessor Hiram Rotjinson.
Term expires September 1, 1918.

' Rent $15,200 per annum.
Lessor pays taxes, water, insurance and provides power for elevators.

I

Lessee pays heating, lighting and cleaning.

No. 166.—Ottawa, Ont Rooms 1, 2, 3, 4, 7, 8, 9 on second floor lessors'

building, on southeast corner Sparks and
Metcalfe streets.

Occupied by District Engineer and Captain Davey, Public
Works.

Lessor Royal Bank of Canada.
Term expires March 18, 1920.

Rent $2,913.30 per annum.
Lessors pay all taxes, water, heating, and provide elevator service.

No. 167.—Ottawa, Ont Portion lessors' building southwest corner
Sparks and Metcalfe streets.

Occupied by Interior Department, Chief Geographers Branch
and the Geographic Boaid.

Lessor Royal Bank of Canada.
Term expires March 18, 1920.

Rent $4,747.10 per annum.
Lessors pay all taxes, water, heating, and provide elevator service.

No. 16S.—Ottaica, Ont., Lot No. 11 south side Wellington street.

Occupied by Public W^orks Department.
Lessor Slater Estate.
Term expires Monthly.
Rent $30 per month.
Lessor pays all taxes and water.

No. 169.—Ottawa, Ont Building 172 Wellington street, also yard and
addition in rear two stories high along with
basement. Floor area, 5,752 square feet.

Occupied by Northwest Mounted Police.

Lessor Robert Nicholas Slater.

Term expires March 15, 1910, since which we have been ten-
ants from year to year.

Rent $1,140 per annum.
Lessee pays taxes, water, street sprinkling and snow cleaning.

19—7
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No.no.—Ottaica, Ont. . Two flats at lOD Rideau street Floor area,
2,600 square feet.

Occupied by Additional accommodation for Inspection StafC
of Department of Militia and Defence.

Lessor W. R. Stroud.
Term expires February 20, 1917.
Rent $1,677 per annum.
Lessor pays all taxes and heating.
Lessee pays water and lighting.

Xo. 17J.—Pftire Eirer CrosHng, Alta. . . . . . . .South half of first floor of lessor's building.
Occupied by Post Offlce.

Lessor Chas. W. Fredericksi.

Term expires November 1, 1916, and thereafter from year to
year on same terms. Three months' writ-
ten notice shall be required from either

party to terminate the tenancy at end of

any year.
Rent.. iXCO per annum. $12.5 by postmaster, $235 by

Government.
Lessor pays all taxes.

Xo. m.—Peace River Crossing, Alta Building owned by lessors.

Occupied by Dominion Lands Agency, Interior Department.
Lessor... George & Stewart.
Term expires Month to month from October 15, 1915.

Rent $60 per month.
Lessor pays all taxes.

No. 173.—Pincher Creek, Alta. . . . .
Two roorr.s on 2nrl floor in lessor's new building.

Occupied by Supervisor of Crows Nest Forest Reserve.

Lessor Mesp-s. Fraser Bros. & McRoberts.
Term expires Month to month.
Rent $30 per month.

Xo. n/,.—Portage la Prairie, Man First floor, premises on Tupper street, 40 by 60

feet.

Occupied by Customs Examining Warehouse.
Lessor John J. G.irland.

Term expires April 8, 1918.

Rent $35 per month.
Lessor pays all taxes and heating.

Xo. n.'i.—Prince Albert, Sask Premises.—Ground floor in Herald block, south
side 11th street west, between 1st and 2nd
avenues west, 1,286 square feet, rent equals

93J cents per square foot.

Occupied by District Engineer.
Lessor Herald Building, Ltd.

T?erm expires Month to month.
Rent $100 per month.
Lessors pay taxes, water, heating and provide janitor service.

Lessee pays $1 per month for light.

A'o. 116.—Prince Rupert, B.C Part of lessor's wharf.
Occupied by Site,-for Immigration Hall.

Lessor Grand Trunk Pacific Ry. Co.

Term expires November 20, 1915, and thence from year to
year. Lessee may determine any time on
three months' notice.

Rent $5 per annum.
Lessee pays taxes.

Xo. m.—Prince Rupert, B.C First story of lessor's building on 1st avenue.
Occupied by Examining warehouse.
Lessor Joseph Edward Merryfleld, now Allan Campbell.
Term expires June 1, 1917.

Rent $175 per month.
Lessor pays taxes, water, heating and Janitor service.

No. ns.—Prince Rupert, B.C Two rooms in Federal building. Floor space,
347'24 square feet, which equals 88 cents
per .»;quare foot rental.

Occupied by, Captain Davies. Examiner, Masters and Mates,
Marine and Fisheries Department.

Lessor , .. ..Northern B. C. Development Cor.
Term expires Month to month.
Rent $25 per month.
Lessors pay taxes and heating.
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-Vo. J7S.

—

Prince Rvpert, B.C Whole of ground Hoor together with rooms Nos.

1 to 9 inclusive on first floor of lessor's

building, known as the " Federal Block."

Occupied by Inland Revenue, Marine and Fi.^heries, Post
Office and Customs and Public Works
Departments.

Lessor Northern B. C. Development Co.

Term expires June 1, 1917.

Rent $i>00 i.er month.
Lessors pay taxes and heating.
Lessee pays water.

Xo. ISO.—Quebec, Que Offices in building, 103 St. John street.

Occupied by Engineers in connection with River St. Charles^

improvement.
Term expires May 1, 1917.

Lessor J. S. Bergeron.
Rent $32.'i per annum.
Lessor pays taxes, water, heating, lighting and cleaning.

No. 131.—Quebec, Que Whole of .second floor, 103 St. John sitreet, also

toilet room.
Occupied by Colonization Agent.
Lessor J. S. Bergeron.
Term expires May 1, 1917.

Rent $450 per annum.
Lessor pays taxes, heat and light.

No. 182.-—Quebec, Que.. Ground floor (1,761 square feet) and portion of

basement (1,216 square feet) in Dominion
building, St. Peter street.

Occupied by P. O. station " B."
Lessor Dominion Fish and Fruit, Ltd.
Term expires May 1, 191S.
Rent $3,000 per annum.
Lessor pays taxes, water, heating, cleaning and removal of snow.

Xo. 1S3.—Quebec, Que Three offices in R. Forget property. 76 St. Peter
street, 465 square feet at 64 Jc.

Occupied by Mr. E. Rochette. Business Proflts War Tax
agent.

Lessor L. H. Gaudry.
Rent $25 per month.
Lessee pays heating and ligliting.

-Vo. IS.'i.
—Quebec, Que Room 15 x 14 in lessor's premises.

Occupied by J. A Simard of Seeds Branch of Agriculture
Department.

Lessor ,. ..Mrs M. M. (ietmain, 57 Ste. Anne St., Quebec.
Term expires Month to month.
Rent $25 per month.
Lessor provides telephone and telephone service and caretaking and part

furnishings and pays for heating and lighting.

-Vo. 1S5.—Quebec, Quebec Brick house and grounds on Little River road.

Occupied by House for Medical Superintendent, Quebec Immi-
gration Hospital.

Lessor John Jack.
Term expires May 1, 1918.
Rent $600 per annum.
Lessor pays taxes and water.

Xo. IS6.—Quebec. Que Room 17 by 16 feet. No. 1, Couillard street.

Upper Town.
Occupied by P. O. Case Examiner, D. Blondeau.
Lessor Mrs. O. Paris.
Term expires Letter of Mrs. Paris of May 14, 1914. says

Department may keep office as long as
wanted, but not less than a year.

Rent $20 per month.
Lessor pays taxes, water, snow cleaning, heating, lighting and caretaking.

Xo. ;s7.

—

Quebec, Que. . . . . One thousand eight hundred square feet at $1.25
per square foot. Rooms 500, 501, 502 and
503 on 5th floor lessor's building, corner of
St. Joseph and Crown streets, Quebec.

Occupied by District Engineer.
Lessor Quebec Railway, Light, Heat and Power Co.
Term expires .September 1. 1916, with option to continue from

month to month.
Rent $2,250 per annum.
Lessor pays taxes, water, heat, elevator service and janitor.

,19—T*
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No. 1S8.—Quebec, Que Part of lessor's building. 35 Chemin Ste. Foye.
Occupied by Candlac postal station.
Lessor J. Paul Tardival.
Terra expires September 1. 1917.
Rent $300. of which postmaster pays $175. and Gov-

ernment $125.
Lessor pays all taxes, water, cleaning: and heating.

Xo. 1S9.—Quebec, Qu^ Three rooms, one vault and vestibule. 23 St.
Louis street.

Occupied by Archives.
Lessor Miss Margaret White.
Term expires April 30. 1£17.
Rent $30 per month.
Lessor pays taxes, water, heat, removal of snow.

No. ISO.—Eeglna, Sask Premises on grountl floor in new Robt. Simpson
building.

Occupied by Parcel Post.
Lessor Robt. Simpson Co. Ltd.
Term expires Year to year.
Rent $100 per annum.
Lessors pay all taxes, heating and lighting.

No. 191.—Reuina, Sask Portion of ground floor of building No. 215S on
12th ave. Floor area, 1,470 square feet.

Occupied by Weights and Measures.
Lessor J. A. Wes'tn.an Agency Ltd.
Term expires November 1, 1917.
Rent $100 per month.
Lessors pay all taxes (except business taxes), water and heating.

No. IK.—Regina, Sask Two rooms in Westman chambers, Rose street.

Floor area. 270 square feet, which equals

$1.33!i oer square foot.

Occupied by Inland Revenue.
Lessor The J. A. Westman agency.
Term expires Month to month.
Rent $30 per month.
Ijcssors pay taxes except business tax. provide water service and heating.

No. 193.—Reston, Man Ground floor of lessor's building situated on lot

17. block 4.

Occupied by Post Ofllce.

Lessor Wm. Albert Brady.
Term expires August 15. 1916.

Rent $300 per annum, of which the Government pays
$112 and the postmaster |1SS.

Lessor pays all taxes.

No. J9i.

—

Revelstoke, B.C Rooms 2 and 3 of Canadian Bank of Commerce
building.

Occupied by Chief Fire Ranger.
Lessor Canadian Banl< of Commerce.
Term expires December 16. 1916.
Rent $40 per month.
Lessor pays all taxes, heating and cleaning.

No. 195.—ReveUtoke, B.C Rooms 1. 4 and 5, on 2nd floor. Canadian Bank
of Commerce building.

Occupied by Dominion Lands agent.
Lessor Canadian Bank of Commerce.
Term expires February 1. 1917.

Rent $60 per month.
Lessor pays taxes, heat and caretaklng.
Lessee pays lighting.

Ne. t9S.—Ridgelown, Ont Portion of municipal building.
Occupied by Post ofllce.

Lessor Town of RIdgetown.
Term expires Year to year.
Rent $525 per annum, of which $300 is paid by Gov-

ernment and $225 by postmaster.
Lessors pays all taxes. Lessors provide heat and light at a cost to the

postmaster not exceeding $150 per annum.
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Xo. :o~. Roilin, Man Second floor, lot 6 in block 4 in townsit© Of

Roblin. Man. Registered Plan No. 352.

Occupied by .'!uper\''soi- of Riding Mountain Reserve.

Lessor Frederick Young Newton.
Term expires December 1, 1916.

Rent $27.50 per month.
Lessor pay.s taxes and heat.

Xo. laii.—Rocky Mountain House, Alta Whole of a frame metal covered building on
Center street.

Occupied by Forest Supervisor.

Lessor Mary Catherine Green, wife of T. D. Green.

Term expires Month to month.
Rent $25 per month.
Lessor pays all taxes.

No. 190.—St. Anne de Bellevue, Que ..Room 23 by 25 feet in municipal building, with

use of shed for storage of wood and coal.

Occupied by Post office.

Lessor Municipality of St. Anne de Bellevue.

Term expires From year to year on June 1, each year.

Rent $250 per annum.
Lessors pays taxes, removal of snow.
Lessee pays heating, lighting and water.

No. 200.—St. Enstache, Que Part of first floor of town hall—524 feet 3 in.

Occupied by Post office.

Lessor Village of St. Eustache.
Term expires February 1, 1919.

Rent $300 per annum.
Lessor pays all taxes, heating and snow cleaning.

No. 201.—St. Felix de Valois, Que Front room of hosue on south side of principal

t'treet.

Occupied by Post office.

Lessor J. H. Lavallee.

Term expires February 23, 1917, with option to renew from
year to year on 3 months' notice.

Rent $125 per annum, of which the Governn.ent pays

$87 and the postmaster $3S.

Lessor pays all taxes, water, heat, light, cleaning and removal of snow.

No. 202.—St. Georges de Beauce, Que First story of building, 20 by 30 feet.

Occupied by Post office.

Lessor Mrs. P. L. Moisan.

Term expires September 1, 1917, with option of renewal for

another 5 years on same terms.

Rent $300 per annum. $200 paid by Department and
$100 paid by Postmaster.

Lessor pays taxes, removal of snow, heat, light and cleaning.

Wo. 203.—St. Jean de Hatha, Que.. Wooden house, 30 by 40 feet, 2 stories. No. 300
of first row. St. Louise.

Occupied by Post office.

Lessor J. Baptiste Turcotte.

Term expires July 1, 1916.

Rent $44 per annum of which Postmaster pays $19
and Department 25.

Lessor pays taxes, heating and removal of snow.

No. 20.',.—St. John, N.B Lot. upper end No. 5, Warehouse, Sand Point.

Occupied by Site for construction of a shelter at Sand Point
for the ship labourers.

Lessor-. City of St, John, N.B.
Term expires January 1, 1918. Renewable for other seven

years, but should lessor refuse to renew,
then city to pay lessee the sum spent in

improvements.
Rent Two cents per annum.
No taxes.

No. 20-5.—St. John, N.B Ground rent for portion of site of Customs
House.

Lessor City of St. John, N.B.
Rent $-2 per annum.
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No. !oe.—S;. John. X.B Second story of Xo, 4 Wharf Warehouse and
Ramp.

Occupied by Immigration.
Lessor City of St. John.
Term expires Year to year from December 31.

Rent $2,105.32 per annum.
Lessees pay City of St. John consumption rates for water supplied.

No. 20~.—St. John. y.B Extension wire for regulation ot P. O. clock.

Lessor N. B. Telephone Co.
Rent $10 per annum.

No. 20S.— St. Jos€i)h de Beauce, Que 20 x 30 feet which equals 600 square feet, height
to be not less than 10 feet in building on
Main street where the Post Office building
now stands.

Occupied by Post OflTice.

Lessor Odilon Cliche.

Term expires Five years from date of occupation.

Rent '. .. .. $350 per annum, of which Government pays $200
and postmastei $150.

Lessor pays all taxes (except water rates), heating, and provides janitor ser-

vice, necessary stove and is to install electric light for 7 twenty-five

watt lamps.

No. 209.—St. Rose. Que Ground floor of school house.
Occupied by Pos: office.

Lessor \ i :age of St. Rose, Que.
Term expires May 1. 1917, with option of renewal for five

years at same terms on mutual consent ot
the parties. Lessor entitled to tliree months'
notice of renewal.

Rent $200 per annum, of which postmaster pays $3S
' and Department $162.

Lessor pays taxes, water, removal ot snow, heat and light.

No. 210.—SI. Stephen, X.B Rooms in building, corner King and Water
streets, witli right to use of basement for

storage of fuel, etc., and right of entrance
from Water street.

Occupied by Immigration office. .,

Lessors Orignally John D. Chipman, now David John-
son.

Term expires ..August 13. 1916.

Rent $150 per annum.

No. 211.—Salmon Arm, B.C Three rooms in rear of Bank of Hamilton bulldr
ing.

Occupied by Chief Fire Ranger.
Lessor L. J. Robb, Manager, Bank of Hamilton.
Term expires On three months' notice by lessor.

Rent $12 per month.
Lessor pays taxes and heating.

No. 212.—Saskatoon, Sask _ . . .Two rooms in lessor's premises with use ot lane
for entrance, also use ot lavatory in com-
mon with other tenants.

Occupied by Inspector of Weights and Measures.
Lessor lohn H. Cameron and Annie M. Johnstone.
Term expires November 11, 1916.

Rent $t!0 i)er month.
Lessors pay heating and lighting.

Lessee pays taxes.

No. 213.—Saskatoon, Sask 2,000 square feet on ground fl >or of "York
Building."

Occupied by Customs, Express Office and Exam ning Ware-
house.

Lessor Canadian city and town properties of Saska-
toon.

Term expires ..June 5, 1917, with option to renew tor another
year.

Rent $70 per month.
Lessor's pay all taxes, water, and steam heating.

No. m.—Saskatoon, Sask Suites Nos. 412 and 415 in lessor's building, cor-

ner of 21st street and 1st avenue.

Occupied by Superintendent Railway Mail Service and Staff.

Lessor Imperial Canadian Trust Co.

Term expires Sjptember 1, 1916.

Rent $631.20 per annum.
Lessor pavs all taxes, water service, heating, cleaning and elevator service.
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No. 2IS.—Saskatoon, Sask Suite No. 212. in building corner 21st street and
1st avenue, known as the Canada building.
Floor area, 477 square feet.

Occupied by Excise Inland Revenue.
Lessor '. ..Imperial Canadian Trust Co.
Term expires November 1. 1916.
Rent $600 per annum.
Lessors pay taxes, heating, cleaning and power tor elevator.

Lessee pays lighting.

No. 2ie.—Saskatoon, Sask Suite No. 414 in Canada Lite building, corner
21st street and 1st ave. Floor area 310
square feet.

Occupied by Superintendent Railway Mail Service and Staff.

Lessor Imperial Canadian Trust Co.
Term expires May 1, 1917, with option to renew for one year

on sanr.e terms by giving 3 months' notice.

Rent $249 per annum.
Lessors pay all taxes, water,- heating, janitor and elevator se:vce.

No. 217.

—

Saskatoon, Sask Ground floor, lessor's building, corner 23rd street

and second avenue; floor area, 3,700 square
feet.

Occupied by Customs.
Lessor Chester Thompson.
Term expires December 12, 1916.

Rent $350 per month.

Lessor pays taxes, water, heating and cleaning.

No. 21S.—Saskatoon, Sask Northwest corner of 3rd avenue and 22nd street,

in new fireproof building with basement
and ground floor only.

Occupied by Lands ofHce.

Lessor Wilson Bros.
Term expires October 1, 1916.

Rent $200 per month.

Lessors pay taxes, water, and heating.

Lessee pays lighting and caretaliing.

No. 219.—Sherbrooke, Que Whole of first floor of a building, bearing civic

Nos. 3, 5 and 7, Albert street. Floor area,

2,714 square feet. Rent equals 36 cents per
square foot.

Occupied by Post Office Inspector.

Lessor E. J. L. Page and James R. Sangster, carrying
business as Page Printing and Binding Co.

Term expires September 15, 1918, with option to renew for

five years on same terms and conditions

;

but lessees have privilege to terminate pre-

sent lease on September 15, 1917, or the re-

newal thereof at the end 'of third or fourth
year of said renewal period by giving les-

sors three months' notice in writing, three
months previous to May 1, 1917, or previous
to the expiration of said fourth year,-notice

in writing of his intention to terminate this

lease at said date or the renewal thereof
at the end of the third or fourth year.

Rent $996 per annum.
Lessors pay taxes, water, insurance, heating, cleaning, including halls and

provide power for freight elevator, which can be used day and night in

common with other tenants.

No. 220.—Shcrbrooke, Que Portion of top floor and use of two vaults in
lessor's building. Floor area, 1,863 sq. ft.

Occupied by District Engineer, Public Works Department.
Lessor Quebec Central Railway.
Term expires February 1, 1917, with option to renew for two

years on three months' notice in writing,
prior to expiry of lease.

Rent $1,400 per annum.
Lessors pay taxes, water, heat, cleaning, elevator service.



104 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

No. 221.—Shoal Lake, Man Front room in Town Hall 16 x 35 feet and ex-
clusive use of vault.

Occupied by Post ofBce.

Lessor Town of Shoal Lake, Man.
Term expires March 1. 1918, with option to renew for 3 years

on 3 months' notice prior to expirj' of lease.

Rent $360 of which Postmaster pays $180 and Gov-
ernment $180,

Lessors pay taxes, water, heating, lighting, snow cleaning and janitor.

yo. 222.

—

Sturgeon Falls, Ont .

.

Ground floor of a brick building 24 x 80 feet =
1,920 square feet.

Occupied by Post Office.

Lessor Azaire Adulphe Aubin,
Term expires November 1. 191T, and renewable thereafter

from year to year for a further period of

three years if required by lessee.

Rent $900 per annum, of which the postmaster pays
$2.'>0 and the Department $650.

Lessor pays all taxes, heating and lighting.

No. 03.—Swan River, Man Southwest corner room in lessor's law office.

Occupied by Immigration.
Lessor Benjamin E. Rothwell.
Term expires September fi. 1916.
Rent $15 per month.
Lessor pays heat and light.

Ko. Z2i.—Sicift Current, Sask Two stores on ground floor of building situated
on south half of lot No. 8 in block 49, fac-
ing on 1st ave. E. Floor area, 2,640 square
feet.

Occupied by Dominion Lands, Interior Department.
Lessor Archibald Galbraith.
Term expires November 17, 1E17.
Rent $100 per month.
Lessor pays all taxes, water and heating.

yo. 225.

—

Swift Current, Sask 2,075 square feet on ground floor and 587 square
feet of basement of lessor's building
situated on lot 18, block 55.

Occupied by Post Office.

Lessor Ja.s. A. Yager. Lease assigned to Western
Trust Co. on February 17. 1916.

Terra expires November 20, 1917.

Rent S105 per month.
Lessor pays all taxes, water, heating, cleaning and caretaking.

No. 226.

—

Sydney, N.S Room 3 and 4a in "Post Building.'' Dorchester
street. Floor area. 56S square feet.

Occupied by AG. MoLeod. Inspector of Fisheries.

Lessor J. S. McLennan.
(Sydney Post Publishing Co. on April 17.

1916, advise us that since January 1,

1916. they hold the lease of entire build-
ing and are entitled to rentals from that
date.)

Term expires October 1. 1916.

Rent $360 per annum.
Lessor pays all taxes, water, snow cleaning, heating, lighting and janitor

service.

No. 227.

—

Sydney, N.S Room 5 in Post building. Dorchester street.

Occupied by V. Mullins, sub-agent Marine and Fisheries.

Lessor J. S. McLennan, of Petersfleld, Sydney, N.S.
(S.vdney Post Publisihing Co. on April 17. 1916,
advise us that since January 1. 1916, they
hold the lease of the entire building and are
entitled to rentals from that date.)

Time expires May 1, 191S..

Rent tlSO per annum.
Lessor pays taxes, water, snow cleaning, heating and janitor service.

jfo, tiS.—Three Rivers, Que •• ..Office in lessor's residence.

Occupied by Consulting Engineer Berllnguet.

Lessor.. .

.' F- X. Berllnguet.

Term expires When new pulblc building Is completed.

Rent Free of charge.
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No. 229.—Three Rivers, Que First floor of a building, corner Notre Dame and
St. Antoine streets. Floor area, 36 by 23
feet.

Occupied by Post Office Inspector.

Lessor Knights of Columbus Council 1001.

Terra expires May 1, 1919. Five years lease from May 1,

1914, with option to lessee to terminate at

expiry of each year on 3 months' notice 1»

writing prior to end of year.

Rent $420 per annum.
Lessor pays taxes, water and heat.

No. ISO.—Tignish, P.E.I . . . . . 9,542 square feet of land at Tignish.

Occupied by Site for Post Office.

Lessor Canadian Government Railways.

Term expires On written notice by lessors.

Rent $1 per annum.
Lessee pays all taxes> of whatever description.

No. 231.—Toronto, Ont Offices Nos. 542, 543, 544, 545, and vaults Nos.
125, 126 and 127.

Occupied by District Engineer.
Lessor Confederation Life Association.

Time expires September 14, 1916.
Rent $2,500 per annum.
Lessors pay taxes, water, heating, caretaking, and provide use of elevators.

No. 23S.—Toronto, Ont Space on second floor of T. Eaton Co.'s mall
order building on Albert street. Floor area,

726 square feet.

Occupied by Sorting of parcel mail. -

Lessor T. Eaton & Co., Ltd.

Terra expires On three n-.onths' notice by either party.

Rent Free of charge.
Lessors pay heat and light.

No. 2SS.—Toronto, Ont Part of water lot No. 48, on registered plan 5a,

S.W. corner of Front and Lome streets,

with company's building thereon.

Occupied by P.O. Station " A,"
Lessor Grand Trunk Railway.
Term expires Month to month. Railway to have right to ter-

minate lease by giving one month's notice

in writing—changed to three months' notice

when additional space taken, September 2,

1910.

Rent $200 per month.
Lessors pay taxes.

Premises to be vacated.

No. 2Si.—Toronto, Ont Additional space in Union Station building, be-
yond space now occupied.

Occupied by P O. Station "A."
Lessor Grand Trunk Railway.
Term expires Month to month. Lea^e of whole of premises

now to run from month to month to be ter-

minated by either on three months' notice
in writing.

Rent SlOO per month.
Lessors pay heating and lighting.

No. 2SS.—Toronto. Ont Part of Union Station with use of lavatories.

Occupied by Immigration.
Lessor Grand Trunk Railway Co.

Terra expires Year to year from January 1, but lessors have
right to terminate at any time on one
month's notice in writing.

Rent $1,000 per annum.
Lessors pay taxes (except taxes on personal property, which lessees pay)

heat and light.

Lessees pay water.

No. 236.

—

Toronto, Ont Ground floor of a three-story brick building on
west .side of Main street. East Toronto,
with right of way over the yard from rear

entrance to lane and right of way over the

lane in rear to Gerard street.

Occupied by Postal Station " H."
Lessor Andrew McMillan and Wm. Costaln.

Term expires October 1. 1918.

Rent $75 per month.
Lessors pay all taxes and heating.
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\o. 2sn.—Toronto, Ont Ground floor and basement of premises S.W.
corner of Bloor and Markliam streets.

Occupied by Postal Station " E."
Lessor Alexander Mullin.

Term expires August 1. 1916, with option to renew for three

years on same terms.

Rent 51,440 per annum.
Lessor pays taxes and heating.
Lessee pays water.

No. 23S.—Toronto, Ont Portion of premises in Rossin House block

—

store No. 121 King street west, with base-
ment beneath same.

Occupied by Postal Station " B."
Lessor Rosin House Hotel Co.
Term expires August S, 1913. Renewal pending.
Rent $1,800 per annum.
Lessors pay special taxes and heating.
Lessee pays water.

No. 239.—Toronto, Ont Space containing 1,500 square feet in basement
of lessor's ir.ail order building, 156 Front

^ street West.
Occupied by Sorting of Parcel Mail.
Lessor The Robt. Simpson Co., Ltd.
Term expires On three months' notice by either party.
Rent Free of charge.
Lessors pay heat and light.

No. 2i0.
—Toronto, Ont That certain parcel or tract of land composed

of parts of lots 5. 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13
and 14, block "A," and lanes in rear of
said lots on south side of Front street.

Occupied by.. . .* The purposes of erecting thereon a building to

be used by the lessee for postal and other
Government purposes.

Lessor Toronto Terminals Railway Co.
Term expires September 1, 1936, to be renewed at end of

every 21 years at such rental per annum as
the premises sliall then be worth.

Rent SI",000 per annum.
All taxes by lessee.

No. 2il—Transcona, Man Ground floor and basement of central portion

of building on lots 22, 23 and 24, in block

22. and grounds in connection with same
Occupied by Post Office.

Lessor ~Wm. McFarlane.
Term expires April 1, 191S.

Rent , $900 per annum—$650 paid by the Department
and $250 by postmaster.

Lessor pays taxes, water, heat, light and cleaning.

No. 2i2.
—Trois Pistoles, Que Portion of ground floor Town Hall building.

Occupied by Post Office.

Lessor Town of Trois Pistoles.

Term expires Yearly on October 1.

Rent $100 per annum.
Lessors pay taxes, removal of snow. Postmistress pays water, heating,

lighting and cleaning.

Xo. 2^3. Unity. Snsk Lot.s 27. 28 and 29. block 6. in townsite of Unity.

Occupied by Immisration building.

Lessor Grand Trunk Pacific Development Co.

Time expires \pril l, 1931, with option to renew for 21 years

more at same rental.

Rent *1 V^'' annum.

No 2ii— Vancouver, B.C Rooms 614, C15, 616, 617 and 618 on sixth floor.

Birks' building; 1,125 square feet equals

$1.15 per square foot.

Occupied by Superintendent of Dredgea
Lessor Wm. Massey Birks, John Henry Birks and

Gerald Walker Birks. Montreal.

Time expires November 30, 1916.

Rent $1,296 per annum.
Lessor's pay all taxes, water, light to extent of 29 lamps of 25 watts, janitor

and elevator service.
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Xo. i-',j.—Vancouver, B.C Two rooms. Empire building, 603 Hastings
street. W. Vancouver. Floor area. 748
square feet.

Occupied by Captain Charles Eddie. Examiner of Masters
and Mates.

Lessor Julius A. Brown.
Term expires Monthly at end of each month.
Rent 540 per month.

No. 2)6.—Vancouver, B.C That tract of foreshore land being a portion of
Burrard Inlet, adjoining lot 1S5, group 1,

Mew Westminster District.

Occupied by Site for Immigration Detention building.
Lessor Canadian Pacific Railway Company.
Time expires The railway company may terminate lease on

one year's notice.

Rent Lessee pays all taxes, rates and assessments.

Ko. 2:,1.—Vancouver, B.C Room in le?s:>r's railway d?pot. 2,524 square
feet at Jl.:2 per square foot.

Occupied by Sorting room P.O. Department.
Lessor Canadian Pacific Railway.
Term expires August 1, 1919.

Rent $.). 079. 28 per annum.
Lessors pay all taxes and heating.

No. 2!S.—Vancouver, B.C Three rooms on 2nd floor. Chinese detention

shed adjacent to shed. No. 1 wharf front,

Vancouver, and right of access over lessor's

property by usual channels.

Occupied by Office of Immigration and temporary detention

of immigrants and storage.

Lessor Canadian Pacific Railway.
Term expires Year to year from January 1.

Rent $25 per month.

No. 2i3.

—

Vancouver, B.C Cavity under sidewalk, situated on east side of
Howe street, and having a superficial area
of 107 superficial feet.

Lessor City of Vancouver.
Term expires On on? month's written notice at any time.

Rent $5.35 yearly.

A'o. 230.

—

Vancouver, B.C First, second, third and fourth floors, 249 Hast-
ings street east. Total square feet in this

and in premises rented under lease No.
9542—5.814 square feet.

Occupied by P.O. " B." etc.

Lessor Mrs. Robert Hamilton.
Term expires Monthly.
Rent $335 per month, till new building is ready for

occupation. Note—Between this and other
premises rented from Mrs. Hamilton, rent
for the two not to exceed J600 per month.

Lessor pays water and heating.

No. 2J1.—Vancouver, B.C Ground floor of building 249 Hastings street.

Occupied by P.O. Station " B."
Lessor Mrs. Robt. Hamilton.
Time expires ..April 15, 191S (lease No. 9542).
Rent ?315 per n.onth for the following three years.
Lessor pays taxes, water and heating.

No. S.i2.—Vancouver, B.C Room in Winch building.

Occupied by Inspectior of Taxation.
Lessor R. V. Winch & Co., Ltd.
Term expires Month to month.
Rent $15 per month.
Lessor pays heating.

No. S53.—Verdun, P.Q Two floo :s of two rooms each in lessor's building
adjoining Post Office. Fioor area. 810
square feet.

Occupied by Letter carriers.

Lessor Hector Perrin.
Tern, expires December 21, 1917. option to lessee to renew

for two years on same terms by giviiig three
months' written notice.

Rent $300 per annum.
Lessior pays all taxes, water. I'.eat, light and caretaking.
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No. 25i,—YermiUon, AUa Part of lessor's station grounds.
Occupied by Site for Immigration Hall.
Lessor Canadian Northern Railway Company.
Term expires On one month's notice from either lessor or

lessee.

Rent $1 per annum.
Lessee pays taxes and water.

No. !S5.—Victoria, B.C Shelter in one of the freight sheds of C. P. Ry.
Co.'s wharf for fumigating plant.

Lessor Canadian Pacific Railway.
Time expires Monthly.
Rent $2.50 per month.

No. 256.^Victoria, B.C Three storey building corner of Langley and
Broughton streets, " Ames-Holding Build-
ing."

Occupied by Temporary Examining Warehouse.
Lessor Alexander James Coholan McDermott.

' Term expires January 1. 1917.
Rent $500 per month.
Lessor pays taxes.
Lessee pays water.

No. iST.—Victoriaville, Que Drain site.

Lessor Grand Trunk Railway Company.
Terra expires Permission may be withdrawn at any time.
Rent $1 per annum.
Lessee pays taxes

No. 258.

—

Viking, AUa Site.

Occupied by Immigration Hall site.

Lessor Grand Trunk Pacific Development Co.
Term expires February 16. 1E32, option to renew for further

term of 21 years on same terms and condi-
tions*.

Rent $1 per annum .

No. S5».—Virden, Man ". School building.
Occupied by Immigration.
Lessor School District of Virden, Man.
Term expires March 15. 1917.
Rent $250 per annum.

No. 260.—Wadena. Sask Lots 5 and 6, block 23, corner of Railway avenue
and Third street, in townsite of Wadena.

Occupied by Immigration.
Lessor McKenzie. Mann Co., Ltd.
Term expires January 1, 1918. Lessee to vacate at any time

on thirty days' notice and proportionate
rental to be returned.

Rent $1 per annum.
Lessee pays taxes.

No. 261.—Wainwrifiht. AUa
, . . . Lots 1 and 2 in block 2.

Occupied by Site for Immigration Hall.

Lessor Grand Trunk Pacific Town and Development
Company, Ltd.

Term expires September 1, 1929, with option to renew for a
further tern; of 21 years at same rental.

$1 per annum.

No. 262.

—

Weymouth,, N.S Building owned by lessor, west side of Main
road and south side of Bridge.

Occupied by Pest Office.

Lessor Thos. C. Rice.
Term expires June 1, 1917.

Rent $200 per annum, of which $100 is paid by De-
partment and $100 by postmaster.

Lessor pays taxes, heat, light, cleaning and water.

No. 163.—Wilkie, Sask Site for Immigration Hall.
Lessor Canadian Pacific Railway.
Term expires No lease filed with Department, but rent hag

been paid yearly in advance to 27th Janu-
ary. 1917.

Rent. $1 iior annum.
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.Vo. 26//.

—

Windsor, Ont Part of lessor's building southeast corner of
Ouelette avenue and London street.

Occupied by District Engineer, Public Works Department.
Lessor Heintzman Co.

Term expires October 2, 1919.

Rent $1,200 per annum
' Lessors pay taxes and heating.

Lessee pays water.

No. 263.—Winniperi. Man Extra room in Bawlf building.

Occupied by Indian Affairs.

Lessor N. Bawlf estate.

Term expires Monthly at end of each month.
Rent $35 per month.

No. 266.—Winnipeg, Man Ollices on third floor and small storeroom on
second floor. Chamber of Commerce build-
ing.

Occupied by Hydrographic Survey.
Ijessor N. Bawlf estate.

Term expires December 1, 1918, with privilege to lessee to
terminate lease at end of third year (De-
cember, 1. 1916. or fourth year( December
1. 1917) on three months' .notice in writing
prior to end of third or fourth year.

Rent $225 per month.
Lessor pays all taxes, water, heating, light, insurance, cleaning and elevator

service.

No. 2S7.

—

Winnipefl, Man.. .. Two rooms in Chamber of Commerce building.

Occupied by Gas and Electricity.

Lessor N. Bawlf estate.

Term expires At any time on thirty days* notice.

Rent $70 per month.

No. 26,s.

—

Winnipeg. Man. . Seven rooms Nos. 400, 402, 404, 240, 210. 208
and 214 in old Grain Elxchange building.

Occupied by Indian Affairs.

Lessor N. Bawlf, estate of.

Term expires On one month's notice from first of month in

any month.
Rent. $90 per month.
Lessor pays heat and sweeping.

No. 26y.—Winnipeg, Man Office No. 406 in lessor's building, corner Port-
age avenue and Edmonton street.

Occupied by Archives.
Lessor Wm. James Boyd.
Term expires March 31, 1917.
Rent. . $45 per month.
Lessor pays all taxes, water, heat. Janitor and cleaning.
Lessee pays lighting.

No. 270.—Winnipeg, Man Office (15 by 16 feet, equals 240 square feet) In

Boyd building.

Occupied by Inspector of Fisheries.

Lessor W. J. Boyd.
Term expires Month to month at end of each month.
Rent $27 per month.

No. 2T1.—Winnipeg, Man.. ,, Part of second floor of Boyd building, corner of
Edmonton street and Portage ave. Floor
area, 1.016 square feet.

Occupied by Railway Commission.
Lessor Wm. J. Boyd.
Term expires June 1, 1917.

Rent $1,270 per ann-unr..

Lessor pays all taxes, water, heat, light, cleaning, window cleaning and pro-

vides elevator and janitor service.

No. 272.—Winnipeg, Man Private line to Fire Hall, Immigration building,
Winnipeg, in connection with Canadian
May Oatway Fire Alarm, Ltd.. Are alarm
system; 14 miles at $7.50 per quarter mile.

Lessor Canadian May Oatway Fire Alarm Co., Ltd..

now Manitoba Government Telephones. •

Rent $37.50 per year.
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Xo. 273.—Winnipeg, Man Room in lessor's Dominion Express Co. building.
Occupied by Post Office Station "A."
Lessor Canadian Pacific Railway.
Term expires July H. 1916, but may be ended any time by the

lessor on one month's notice in writing to
lessee. To be vacated July 11. 1916.

Rent.. $2,992.66 per annum.
Lessor pays heating and lighting.
Lessee pays taxes.

No. 27i.—Winnipeg, Man That messuage and tenement, southwest comer
Portage avenue and Aubrey street, being:
two stores west of corner store in said
building.

Occupied by Post Office Station "D."
Lessor C. W, Cooper and TV. A. Cooper.
Term expires March 31, 1917, option to renew for one year.
Rent $1,600 per annum.
Lessee pays business taxes, water, heat, light.

No. 275.

—

Winnipeg, Man Rooms 701, 702, 703 and 704, Notre Dame build-
ing.

Occupied by District Engineer and Staff.

Lessor Notre Dame Investment Co., Ltd.
Term expires January 1, 1920.
Rent.. $1,500 per annum.
Lessors pay taxes, water, heating and janitor service and provide elevator

service.

No. 276.—Winnipeg, Man All that messuage and tenement known as 103
Osborne street, " Adelaide Block."

Occupied by Post Office Station " C."
Lessor Sir R. P. Roblin.
Term expires February 1, 1917.
Rent ' $1,500 per annum.
Lessor pays heating.

No. 277.—Winnipeg, Man.. ..Three rooms and vault in Union Bank building.
600 square feet at $1.12} per square foot.

Occupied by W. L. Ball, Insipector of War Profits Tax.
Lessor Union Bank.
Term expires One year from date of occupation.

Rent $675 per annum.
Lessors pay heating and janitor service.

No 27S.—Winnipeg, Man Room 28 by 75 feet in the basement of Union
Station.

Occupied by Postal purposes.
Lessor Winnipeg Joint Terminals.
Term expires September 1, 1917, with option of renewal of a

further term of five years on same condi-
tions.

Rent $2,416 per annum.
Lessors pay taxes, heating and lighting. ,
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REPORT OF THE CHIEF EiNGINEER.

Department of Public Works of Canada,

Chief Engiveer's Office.

Ottawa, September 21, 1916.

E. C. Desrochers, Esq.,

Secretary,

Depai'tment of Pulilio Work.?.

Slit,—I have the honour to subuiit the annual report on the various works under

my charge during the fiscal year ended March 31, 1916.

These works comprise the construction and repair of wharves, piers, breakwaters,

dams, weirs, bank and beach protection works; the improvement of harbours and

rivers by dredging; the construction, maintenance and operation of Government

dredging plant; the construction and maintenance of graving docks; the construction,

maintenance and working of slides and booms; the construction and maintenance

of interprovincial bridges and approaches thereto, and of bridges on highways of

Federal importance in the Northwest Territories, and the maintenance of milifary

roads; also hydrographic and ordinary surveys and examinations, inclusive of preci-

sion levelling and geodetic measurements which are required for the preparation of

pjans, reports and estimates; the testing of cements, etc.

I have the honour to be, sir.

Your obedient servant,

EUG. D. LAELEUn,
Chief Engineer.

PROVINCE OF NOVA SCOTIA.

abercrombie pokt.

Abercroiubie point is on the .south side of Pictou harbour, a mile distant from

Pictou town, and on the opposite side of the harbour. The dredging was undertaken

to permit the subsidized ferryboat, running between this wharf and Pictou, tp dock

at L.W.S., and in deepening to 10 feet, at L.W.O.S.T., a basin extending 50 feet out-

wards from the sides and the end of the outer block, together with a passage 35 feet

in width to the harbour channel 950 feet distant.

The work was performed by the departmental dredge A^o. .4 between June 18 and

June 23, 1915, and involved the removal of 2,121 cubic yards, in situ, or 2,535 cubic

yards, scow measurement, of soft clay, which gives an expansion factor of 19-5 i)er

cent. The channel will probably remain navigable for the ferryboat for a period of

from five to ten years.

19—8 113
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ADVOCATE.

Advocate is an important town in Cumberland county, situated on Graville bay,

oO miles southwest of Parrsboro, with a population of 1,000. The chief industries are

farming, lumbering, mining and fishing. During the fiscal year 1898-09, and 1S99-1900,

$2,765.41 was expended in constructing a pile wharf. In the year 1900-01, an additional

sum of $431.82 was expended in sheathing this wharf. In the year 1904-5, this work
was widened an additional 12 feet. In the year 1910-11, the covering was replaced on

this work; so that the wharf was 360 feet in length, 32 feet wide, with the exception of

the head which was 40 feet long and 42 feet wide. It has a height of from 12 to 16 feet.

It is constructed of pile trestle bents 10 feet apart, thoroughly braced, bolted and waled.

During the past year, this wharf was further extended a distance of 100 feet in length,

with a common width of 42 feet. The new portion of this work was of the same charac-

ter of construction as the remainder of the wharf, namely, pile trestle bents separated

from each other longitudinally 10 feet, measured centre to centre of pile head. Besides

the extension, about one-half of the outside stringers on the old work were replaced, a

small portion of the planking was renewed, and 12 new fenders were added. The total

amount expended was $2,20C.1T. The height of the work on the outside end of the

ixtension is 18 feet, so that this wharf can now accommodate two vessels with two feet

additional draught of water. Work was begun July 1, 1915, and completed September

22, 1915. Tides rise here, spring 38 feet, neap 31 feet.

AMAGUADKES POXD.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1914.)

Amaguadees pond. Castle bay. Cape Breton county, is on the northern side of East

'

bay, the eastern arm of the Great Bras d'Or lake.

During the fiscal year 1915-16, the sum of $200.29 was expended by day labour in

renewing part of the covering of the inner end of the wharf, and in strengthening and
repairing the bridge across the outlet of the road.

AMHERST.

Amherst harbour is situated at the head of the Bay of Fundy, at the mouth af the

La Blanche river. The site of the dredging operation is about 2J miles in a direct line

from Amherst town, and four miles by post road. The population of Amlierst, which is

the county seat of Cumberland, is about 12,000.

The shipping at this port ordinarily consists of tern or three-masted schooners and

steanieia, the steamers being from six to twelve hundred tons burden.

The entrance to this harbour is contracted, and in the fiscal years 1911-12, and
1912-13, a small contract was let for the removal of material from a point near the

entrance to the harbour. Conditions in this harbour are peculiar; each tide deposits

on the banks or on any obstructive point in the river, a certain amount of sand or clay,

so impregnated is the water with this material that on some tides as much as three-

eights of an inch of this silt has been deposited by observation at a certain selected

location. After considerable examination into the conditions, it was decided that a

small dipper dredge with two scows should be permanently employed with a view of

removing each year's accumulation and gradually cutting off the points jutting out

into the river, so that with a straight channel, the current will be sufficiently strong to

keep the material from being deposited in such a manner as to further obstruct navi-

gation.

During the past fiscal year, dredge No. llf has been engaged in removing a portion

of one of these jxiints. Dredging commenced on May 31 and was suspended on Novem-
ber 25, 1015; when 18,430 cubic yards of material were removed. 1,060 yards repre-

sented the amount removed from the bed on the outside of the pier; the remainder,

17,370 yards being removed from the said point. During the past fiscal year, a trape-
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zoidial area 30 feet wide, with a base (580 feet in length (the former base line being 580

feet in length) has been removed. The average depth of this cutting was about 19 feet.

There was probably removed from the old cutting, as near as could be estimated, about

1,500 cubic yards, so that the expansion factor would be very nearly 20 per cent. Tliere

Htill remains to be removed from this point a strip about 25 feet wide, with a base 760

feet long, and an average depth of nearly 22 feet.

The material removed is largely clay; the top four feet of this is fairly easy of

removal but beyond that depth it becomes quite hardened and consequently much more

difficult to excavate.

Spring tides rise here 40 feet, neap 38 feet.

AMHERST POINT.

Amherst point is a farming settlement of some 400 people, situated about three

miles south of Amherst town. At the end of the year 1907-8, a cribwork wharf was com-

pleted at this place. In the year 1912-13, $503.37 was expended in repairing the out-

side face of the outside blocking of this work.

During the past fiscal year, the piles were cut by moving ice and a number of the-

mattresses, which had been laid in 1912-13, were destroyed. Scouring took place, and:

the entire outside portion of the wharf settled, spilling out a large portion of the bal-

last. During the year, $190.52 was expended in temporary repairs.

There is a ferry slip on the inside of the wharf, from which a gasoline ferry oper-

ated between Amherst and Minudie. The work done during the past fiscal year con-

sisted of sheathing with hardwood i^lank the corner of this work, 15 feet on each side

of it, so as to avoid further damage from moving ice. This work was commenced on
October 27, and completed on November 18, 1015. Spring tides rise here 40 feet, neap
33 feet.

ANNAPOLIS ROYAL.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1914).

Annapolis Royal, Annapolis county, is the oldest town in the province of Nova
Scotia, having been founded in 1605. It is beautifully situated at the head of Annapo-
lis basin, and on the south side of the Annapolis river. It has a population of about
2,000, and in the centre of one of the most fertile districts of Nova Scotia.

In 1915-lC, the sum of .$90.63 was expended in miscellaneous and emergent repairs

to the floor of the wharf, in which a nmnber of looose and decayed planks were renewed.

Anderson's cove.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915).

Anderson's cove, Annapolis county, is a very slight indentation in the coast line on
the south side of the Bay of Fundy, 15 miles east of Digby Gut, 2 miles east of Litch-
field and 5 miles west of Parker's Cove. The settlement, which is called Hillsburn, com-
prises, within a radius of a mile, about 150 people, dependent almost exclusively on tlie

fisheries for a living.

In 1915-16, the sum of $299.94 was expended in emergent repairs to the covering
and sheathing.

ARISAIG.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

Arisaig is on the south-eastern shore of North\miberland strait, about 15 miles
south-west from Cape George.

During the fiscal year 1915-16, the sum of $2,022.26 was expended in placing two
concrete blocks, 5 by 5 by 10 feet in length on the seaward side of the wharf. During
a heavy storm and an exceptionally high tide, while the work was in progress, both

19—Si
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blocks were destroyed. In order to jn-otect the seaward I'aee and outer end of the

wdiarf, the face-chambers, for a disfance of 60 feet along the seaward face and across

the outer end. were filled with concrete from low water level to the under side of the

covering. About 60 feet of the seaward side of the work. 20 feet in width and 10 feet

in average height, was reconstructed before placing the concrete.

Work was in progress in May, August, September, October and November.

BADDECK.

(This work is descrilied in the annual report for 1!)15.)

Baddeck, the shiretown of Victoria county, is on the northern shore of the Little

Bras D'Or lake, near the entrance to St. Patrick's channel.

During ] 914-1.5, the sum of $624.86 was expended by day labour in the partial

renewal of covering, cap-timbers and upper fenders on the wharf, and during the

present fiscal year the sum of $499.91 was expended in completing the renewal of the

top work of the wharf, commenced during 1914-15.

baker's point.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1914.)

During 1915-16, the sum of $99.86 was expended in buying posts and wire to

replace the fence along the right-of-way to the wharf, and timber for some minor

repairs to be made to the wharf. The present dimensions of this structure: Approach,

61 feet by 35 feet, pilework 94 feet by 25 feet, and ell on outer end 31 feet by 41 feet,

giving a face length of 66 feet.

BASS im'ER.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

Bass River, Colchester County, is a farming and manufacturing village of about

500 people, situated at the north side of Cobequid bay, the eastern arm of the Bay of

Fundy. It is half way between Truro and Parrsboro or about 28 miles from either

place.

During the year 1915-16, the sum of $1,020.17 was expended in general rejjairs,

consisting of placing new piles, splicing and strengthening some of the piles that

could not be removed, placing some new fenders, replanking thm top, and placing new

guard timbers and repairing approach.

The present dimensions of this wharf are as follows: From the approach, which

has a length of 25 feet and width of 25 feet, the wharf runs for a distance of 210 foot.

25 feet wide. At the outer end on one side it has an ell 45 by 40 feet, and at the other

side an ell 40 by 66 feet. This gives a face length of 110 feet.

Work commenced November 15 and completed January 6.

niC IIAKBOUIJ.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.1

Big harbour, or Port Bevis, Victoria county, is on the northern side of the Great

Bras d'Or channel, about 15 miles to the westward of its entrance into the Atlantic.

During 1915-16, the sum of $399.87 was expended in the renewal of the top of the

wharf, consisting of the placing of new floor-stringers, covering, cap-timbers and upper

fenders.

Big Pond, Cape Breton county, is on the south side of Fast bay, the eastern arm of

the Great Bras d'Or lake, about thirteen miles from the head of the bay, and twenty-five

rniles south-eastward froin the city of Sydney.
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On January 4, 1904, a eoiitrac-t was. entered into in the .-uni of $7,720, for the

construction of a wharf,- with approach thereto from the public road. The work was

commenced on June 30, and completed in a satisfactory manner on October 8, 1904.

It consists of a block and span structure, extending to 11 feet at low water, and

ioad 223 feet in leufrth. The wharf is 254 feet in length and 20 feet in width, with an
'• L " on the north-fastern side of the outer end. 25 feet long and 24 feet wide, and is

made up of a shore abiitment 50 feet long, of four blocks 20 feet long, and of an outer

block 24 feet by 48 feet, with openings between them. 18 feet in length. The abutment

and blocks are constructed of round timber, with ereosoted timber subsrueture, fully

ballasted and fendered and the faces of the two outer blocks are protected with close-

sheathing. *

During the year 1915-lti. the sum of 5^350 was expended in placing over the

original covering of the wharf, a 'drive-way 12 feet wide from the shore end to the end

block, a distance of 160 feet, consisting of 2-inch planking; the guard-rails on each side

of the wharf over the same distance, were renewed, and a freight-shed 12 by 14 feet

was erected on the outer end of the wharf.

BL.VCK POLVT.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1914.)

Black Point, Richmond county, is on the southern or Atlantic shore of the Island

( f Cape Breton, about 15 miles to the eastward of the entrance to St. Peter's canal.

During 1915-lfi, the sum of $450 was expended in placing large quarried stona

along the outer face of the breakwater.

BOULARDARIE CENTRE.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

Boulardarie Centre, Victoria county, is on the southern side of the Great Bras d'Or

channel, about 8 miles to the westward of the entrance into the Atlantic ocean, and 10

miles to the eastward of its entrance into the Little Bras d'Or lake.

During the .year 1915-16, the sum of $1.54.85 was expended in repairs to the road

leading to the wharf, and in filling in of the bridge.

WmkVt COVE.

Broad Cove is a fishing village of 350 people, situated on the Atlantic coast of

Lunenburg county, and distant 25 miles by road from Bridgewater. and 8 miles from
the county line station on the H. it S. AV. railway. It has telephone connection, one

church and two stores.

The breakwater, which affords shelter to about twenty fishing boats^ was built in

1876, b.v da,y labour, at a cost of $4,000, of which $3,000 was contributed by the Federal

and $1,000 by the Provincial government. It is a well built structure of close-faced

stone-filled cribwork. The approach is 70 feet long, the cribwork 247 feet, and the

work has a width on top of 22 feet. In 1894, the sum of $499.99, in 1901 the sum of

$499.93, and in 1911 the sum of $207.39, were expended in repairs to this structure.

The expenditure for 1911 also included the removal of a bar of stone and gravel near

the head of the wharf.

During the fiscal year 1915-16, on account of the ballast floors and outer end of

the work being eaten through by the teredo, at L.W.O.S.T.. allowing the ballast to fall

out, it was necessary to construct a new block at the outer end of the work. It is

built the width of the work and 12 feet in length. At the shore end of the wharf new
fenders were placed, and stringers, cross ties and planking were renewed where neces-

sary. The total cost of the work, this year, $1,500.87. The work now has a total length

of 329 feet.

Work commenced September 24 and completed March 29.
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(This work is deacribed iu the annual report for 1913.)

Burlington, Hants county, is a farming settlement, with a population of 350

people, situated on the right hank of the Keuuetcook river, five miles north of the

county town of Windsor.

The work is now 224 feet long by 25 feet wide with an ell 28 feet wide and 34 loni;,

giving a face length of 59 feet. It is built of cribwork, block and span construction, and

has an average height of 18 feet.

In the year 1915-16, the sum of $16.42 was expended in making some temporary

repairs to the floor of the wharf.

Work started August 10 and completed August 30.

CABB.\GE GUT.

Cabbage gut, Lunenburg count.v. is a channel between Middle island on the south

and Cabbage island, on the north of the La Have island group, about fifteen and a

half miles, in a southerly direction, from the town of Bridgewater.

During the season 1913-14, the department opened the channel to a depth of 4

feet, in order to shorten the run between the islands, and for the convenience of

fishing boats. 1,500 cubic yards of mud were removed, by day labour and hand dredg-

ing, at a cost of $598.23.

During the fiscal year 1915-16, the channel was widened 12 J feet, the length being

1,000 feet and the depth of cutting 3 feet. 1,520 cubic yards place measurement were

removed, by day labour and hand dredging, at a cost of $599.62.

The work as completed has a length of 1,000 feet and a width of 25 feet, to a

depth of 4 feet below L.W.O.S.T. The material removed this year consisted of mud.

the period of operations being from September 16 to October 13.

The improvement should last for a number of years, but in order to keep the

channel open for boats, an annual outlay of about $100 will probably be required.

CANADA CREEK.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1912).

Canada Creek, Kings county, also called Black Rock, is a fishing and farming vil-

lage, of about 150 people, on the south shore of the Bay of Fundy, sixty miles east of

Digby gut, nine miles northwest from Watervillc station, on the Dominion Atlantic

Railway, and eight miles west of Hall's Harbour.

In 1915-16, the sum of $40.:!2 was expended in filling a hole, about 10 feet square

and 10 feet deep, in the floor of the breakwater, caused by seas washing out the t<ip

ballast.

C.\NNING.

(This work is deacribed in the annual report for 1915).

Canning, Kings county, is a prosperous village of about 1,500 people, mostly

engaged in farming and fruit raising, situated on the north bank of the Habitant river,

which, 2J miles below, debouches into the Basin of Minas.

In 1915-16, tlie sum of $797.18 was expended in repairs and renewals to the steamer

bed in front of the wharf, and the renewal of stringers and flooring on its eastern side,

over an area 100 feet long and 20 feet wide.

CAXso.

Canso, Guysborough county, an important fishing centre on the southern shore of

• Nova Scotia, at the entrance to Chedabucto bay, 32 miles from the town of Guys-

borough and 30 miles from Mulgrave. Population, 1,750.
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Dredging was undertaken with the object of cutting down and removing, to a

depth of 16 feet at L. W. S., the rock shoal located within Canso harbour, at the east

of Whitman's wharf, in order to provide an easy and safe passage to the pier, which is

used as a public wharf.

The work undertaken involved the removal of 4,481 cubic yards in situ, 4,091 cubic

yards, class " A," and 390 cubic yards, class " B," over an area of 29,000 square feet,

with an average cut to grade of 3-2 feet.

During the season 1915-16, the departmental rockbreaker Lohnitz No. 3 worked
over this shoal from August 17 to October 26. The departmental dredge No. 6 followed

this plant, working from December 20 to January 3. Quantity of class "A" broken
and removed, 285 cubic yards, in .nhi, and class " B " dredged 400 cubic yards, in situ.

Expansion factor of class " A " Y5 per cent, and of class " B " 20 per cent.

CAPE NEGRO.

Cape Negro is a scattering settlement situated about five miles south of Port
Clyde, having a population of about 300, ranging along two miles of territory. To
grant proper and suitable acommodation for these people, during the fiscal year 1913-14,

$1,489.49 was expended in commencing the construction of a wharf; and during the

past fiscal year, $889.68 was expended in practically completing the same.

This wharf consists of a rock bank 94 feet long, 20 feet wide on top, a span 21 feet

long, 3 cribs, each SO feet long, separated by two spans, each 15 feet long, and an addi-

tional crib 20 feet in length, separated from the former cribs by a span 18 feet in

length. The last crib is 31 feet in width, whilst the remainder of the cribs are 16

feet in width. During the past fiscal year, the outside two cribs were constructed, and
tie whole wharf planked, stringered and put in proper condition for the landing of

supplies, etc. It has a height at the outer end of 17 feet. Work was commenced
November 15 and completed December 17, 1915. Spring tides rise here 8 feet, neap

5J feet.

CARIBOU HARBOUR.

Caribou harbour, Pictou county, is on the Northumberland strait, six miles to

the northwest of Pictou. Dredging was undertaken to permit motor boats to

approach Murdock and Logan's wharf at all stages of tide; and consisted of excavat-

ing a channel to a depth of 8 feet at L.W.O.S.T. (the least the dredge could per-

form) 50 feet in width, and extending from the head of the wharf 450 feet outwards
to the harbour channel, together with an enlargement near the head of the wharf,
which forms a small turning basin.

The work was performed by the departmental dredge No. Jf, between June 25 and
July 7, 1915, and involved the removal of 5,900 cubic yards, in situ, of clay, which
includes about 300 cubic yards left overcast at the inner end. The captain's weekly
reports return 6,727 cubic yards, scowed away, which includes about 1,800 cubic

yards of the total 2,100 cubic yards overcast. This gives an expansion factor of

21 per cent. No dredging was performed below subgrade. This channel and basin will

probably remain open for twenty years.

CARU'S BROOK.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1914.)

Carr's Brook, Colchester county, a farming and lumbering district, situated three

miles west of Central Economy and 28 miles west of Great Village, with a population
of about 150, whose chief industries are farming, fishing and mining.

In the year 1915-16, the sum of $10.07 was expended in constructing a small
brush and stone protection work to divert the course of the brook, which flowed down
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past the end of the breakwater and endangered the structure, tending to undermine
the outer end of it. There will have to be a more permanent work put here next year, as

the ice came in before the foreman was able to finish the job.

Work done in December.

CHEBOGUE H.\RBOUH.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1914.)

Chebogue harbour, Yarmouth county, is situated about 7 miles south of the town
of Yarmouth.

In 1915-16, the sum of $1.50 was expended in straightening and deepening, by

hand digtring. the boat channel through the mud flats in the upper part of the harbour.

The digging was comprised within a length of about a quarter of a mile, and was
carried to a depth of about 2} feet below L.W.O.S.T. The quantity was not measurable

in cubic yards.

CHETICA-MP POINT.

Cheticamp point, Inverness county, is the southern extremity of Cheticamp island,

about one mile to the westward of a beach of shingle, closing the south end of Cheti-

camp harbour, which lies between the island and the mainland, and which is entered

from the north.

A contract was entered into on July 1^. 1903, fur the construction of a breakwater,

extending to 5 feet at extreme low water, for the sum of $13,880.

The work was commenced in May, 1904, and completed on September 2;) uf the

same year.

The breakwater is 370 feet long and 20 feet wide, and consists of 20 feet of stone

embankment, SO feet of stone abutment, and 270 feet of round timber cribwork, with

ereosoted timber substructure, fully ballasted, fcndered and close-sheathed, on the

seaward face, for a distance of 96 feet from the outer end, on the outer end and on

the inner face for a distance of 4S feet from the outer end.

During the fiscal year 1915-16, the sum of $99.50 was expended in recovering a

portion of the wharf, and in refilling ballast that had been washed out.

COMEAU'S COVE.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

Comeau's Cove, Digby county, is a fishing and farming settlement of about 100

people, situated on the shore of the mouth of St. Mary's bay, Bay of Fundy, about

1* miles south of Meteghan.

In 1915-16, the sum of $1,531.94 was c-xpendcd in extensive repairs and renewals

to the breakwater, rendered necessary by a serious damage done by heavy seas in the

early part of the winter. The situation of this breakwater is one of the most exposed

on the whole coast between Digby and Yarmouth, and annual repairs and renewals

will probably be necessary to maintain the work.

COMEAf's HII.L.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

Comeau's Hill, Yarmouth county, is the name of a straggling settlement of somrt

two or three hundred people, situated on the west side of, and close to the extremity of,

the peninsula between Chebogue harbour and Onose bay, about fifteen miles southwest

from Yarmouth, the county town.

In 1915-16, the extension to the breakwater \va> .-.iMiplcted. and the final estimate

forwarded on the 5th of July, 1915.
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(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

Cow Bay (Port Morien), Cape Breton county, is on the east coast of Cape Breton

island, about 18 miles to the eastward of the entrance to Sydney harbour.

During the year ended March 31, 1010, the sum of $l,s.10.."')4 was expended by day

labour on procuring a derrick with winch, and in constructing and placing large

concrete blocks along the seaward face of the breakwater, over a distance of 53 feet,

thereby completing the concrete blocks protection on the seaward face of the breakwater.

CROSS ISLAND.

Cross island, Lunenburg county, is situated at the mouth of Lunenburg bay about

nine miles in a southeasterly direction from the town of Lunenburg. There is a per-

manent population of 0-1 people, dependent wholly upon the fishing and lobstering

industries. During the summer months, however, about twenty boats from the main-

land make their headquarters at this island, swelling the population during the season

to about twice the usual number. About forty boats fish from this place during the

summer season, employing from sixty to seventy men, who average about $500 each

per year.

This island possesses a harbour which is a very sheltered mooring place for boats

during any kind of a storm, but to approach it from the southeast, during a storm from

that quarter, was a very dangerous undertaking. To overcome the disadvantage a cut

was made through from the Lunenburg bay side to the harbour to provide an optional

entrance for the fishermen.

The work accomplished has a length of 520 feet and an average width of 16 feet.

The depth of cutting necessary, to give a depth below L.W.O.S.T. of 6 feet, averaged 5

feet. Dredge P. W. D. No. 15, was employed, removing 1,541 cubic yards, place measure-
ment, of hard, cemented gravel, having an expansion factor of 31-4 per cent, making
a scow measurement of 2,025 yards. The cost of operations this season amounted to

$1,117.07. Work has commenced on July 21 and completed August 28.

Dredging could only be carried on during high tide and some difficulties were al?o

met with owing to the narrowness of the chaimel, a great bulk of the material having
to be overcast and afterwards carted inland, where it could not wash back into the
channel. The probable duration of the improvement effected will be four or five years.

d'escousse.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

D'Escousse, Richmond county, is a thickly settled district on the north-eastern

roast of ^ladame island, and on the southern side of the eastern entrance to Lennox
Passage, a strait conecting St. Peter's bay with the Strait of Canso.

During- 1915-16, the sum of $40.34 was expended in completing the renewal of the

cap-timbers, commenced during 1914-15.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915).

Digby, Digby county, is the shire town of the county, with a population of about

1.600 people, situated on the southwestern end of Annapolis basin.

In 1915-16, the sum of $1,919.15 was expended in extensive and miscellaneous

repairs and renewals to the pier.

E.\ST END.

East End is a local name given to a portion of Cape Sable island, situated aboiit

three miles from its eastern extremity. There are about 35 boats, representing a pnpu-

lation of 250 people, all of whom are supported by the results of the fishing industry,
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for which these boats are required. In the fiscal year 1904-5, there being uo shelter

this side of Cape Sable island, the department opened up a channel from the sea to a

small point known as Johnston's point, and built eribwork protection walls on each

side. The channel itself is 365 feet long, 20 feet wide and has a depth of 7 feet at

H.W.O.S.T. The outside or southern wall was 380 feet in length, whilst the inner wall

was 30 feet in length, having a con\nion width of 10 feet and a depth of 11 feet at the

outer end. This work cost $2,606.17.

Owing to the change from sailing boats to motor boats, a further extension of this

work was necessary, as a larger number of boats were utilizing this protection, and
having been constructed for eleven years, there was in places logs in the eribwork, of

which both walls were constructed, requiring renewal ; consequently the sum of $698.77

was expended in effecting the same. The work itself consisted of replacing some

twenty-eight of the top logs whilst an extension on the southern wall of 40 feet, at an

angle of 18 degrees, was constructed of solid continuous eribwork. This work was

satisfactorily conducted, the material being of good quality. The work was commenced
October 3 and completed November 11, 1915. Spring tides rise here 10 feet, neap 6J

feet.

EAST FERRT.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915).

East Ferry, Digby county, is a fishing and farming settlement of about 100 people,

situated about 30 miles southwest from the county town of Digby, on the extreme end
of the mainland of Digby Xeek. or on the east side of Petite Passage, on the opposite

•or western side of which, at Tiverton, the department built a breakwater, in 1903-4, at

a cost of $17,110, by contract.

In 1915-16, the sum of $241.10 was expended in building two pieces of native tim-

ber eribwork, respectively, 70 feet long, 10 to 13 feet wide and from 3A to 6 feet high,

and 200 feet long, 15 feet wide and 2 feet high, to form an approach, suitable for

vehicles, to the shore end of the work. The whole of the eribwork was ballasted,

covered and finished with gravel, and with a hand rail on the south side.

EAST RIVER.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

East river is the most easterly of the three branches of Pictou harbour. It is

navigable for small vessels from opposite Pictou to the town of New Glasgow.

During the fiscal year 1915-16, the sum of $99,730 was earned, after deducting a

10 per cent drawback, in unwatering, common excavation, rock excavation, channeling

rock surface, and concrete in lock and approach piers to lock. This amount also

includes an allowance made for 50 per cent of value of material delivered. The total

earned under this contract up to March 31, 1916, amounts to $315,830.
»

Dredging.

The departmental hydraulic dredge No. 5 was employed since its inception in

1908. The amount dredged to the beginning of this season was 2,162,528 cubic yards,

measured in situ, as detailed on page 24 of annual report for 1915. During the past

season, this dredge was employed from July 14 to November 19, in completing the

turning basin at Trenton. This work consisted of deepening an area of 645,000

square feet, to 15 feet at L.W.O.S.T., which will give a total depth of 21 feet,

when the regulation works at Stone-House point are completed. The quantity of

material dredged was 159,000 cubic yards, measured in sifn, of clay, sand and gravel.

This includes 34,000 cubic yards of over-dredging, designed to provide an extra depth

for the sedimentation resulting from the operation of the hydraulic dredge, also for

the river drift of future years.
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The quantity of matorial removed, as shown by the dredge captain's weekly

returns, is 287,104 yards, scow measurement.

Of this total work authorized, there yet remains 4C9,G61 cubic yards of material

that can be removed by an hydraulic dredge; and 81,883 cubic yards of material

requiring a strong dipper dredge, with the possible assistance of a rock-breaker.

FELTZKX SOUTH.

("This work is described in the annual report for 191.5.)

Feltzen South, Lunenburg county, is the name given to a large and prosperous

farming and fishing settlement, situated on the west side of Lunenburg bay, three

miles southwest of the town of Lunenburg. The population of the village is 300.

^yharf.

During 1913-16, the sum of $700.01 was spent in replanking the whole top of the

wharf, placing new fenders, stringers and guard rail.

Work commenced November 1, and completed January 12.

Brcakirater.

During- 1913-16, the sum of $30 was expended in the erection of a crane with a

block and tackle attachment.

Work was done during the month of November.

FIRST SOUTH.

First South, Lunenburg county, is a postal-note office and farming settlement

2i miles from Lunenburg, with a population of about 223. The population of the neai

vicinity numbers 300, whose chief industries are farming and fishing.

During the fiscal year 1915-16, the sum of $2,377.87 was expended in widening

and straightening the circuitous channel which separates Lonis island from the main-

land. Two areas at opposite bends of the channel approaching the bridge were dredged,

totalling 197 feet in length, and having a width of 80 feet, and a depth of 9 feet, giving

a depth, at L.W.O.S.T., of 15 feet. Work was carried out by dredge P.W.D., No. 15,

the material dredged consisting of small shells. 6,828 cubic yards, scow measurement,

were removed, or 5,253 yards, place measurement, showing an expansion factor of 30

per cent. .Dredging was started September 1 and completed November 16.

This improvement should last for a few years. The work proved rather difficult to

accomplish on account of a strong current.

FOX ISL.\ND.

(This work is fully described in the annual report for 1915.)

Fo.x island, Halifax county, is a small island, situated on the Atlantic coast of

Nova Scotia, thirteen miles east of the city of Halifax, about 900 feet from the main-

land. It is onl.y some three or four acres in extent, and no point on it is more than six

feet above H.W.O.S.T. It has no permanent inhabitants, but during the summei
season it is used by the fishermen as a fishing station.

During the fiscal year 1915-16, the sum of $1,249.69 was expended in completing

the extension to the breakwater. As it now stands, it is 205 feet in length by 25 feet

in width, with an ell 25 feet long by 20 feet wide. It has a depth at the outer end,

below L.W.O.S.T., of 16 feet.

Work commenced July 1 and completed December 21.
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(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

Freeport, Digby county, is situated on the southern end of Long island, on the

east side of Grand passage, 40 miles southeast of Digby gut, and 26 miles southwest

from Trout Cove.

In 1915-16, the sum of $37.45 was expended in renewing some few planks, in the

floor of the wharf, that had been broken by heavy seas.

FRENCH RIVER.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1914.)

French River, Victoria county, is a small settlement on that portion of Cape
Breton island, known as the " Xorth Shore" and is situated about midway between

the harbours of St. Ann's and South Ingonish.

During the year 1915-16, the further sum of $74.25 was expended in completing

the reballasting of outer bays of breakwater, commenced during the previous year.

FRUIDS POINT.

As the repairs to this wharf were very slight, a description of it in this instaner

is hardly necessary. It is a ferr.v wharf, being situated within 400 yards of Loekeport

station, from which jx)iut a railway "Y" carries the track up to and upon the wharf.

Some slight repairs were reported as necessary. Tliere was also a small trestle under

the shoreward span resthig- on a mud sill, which had been carried away by a high tide
' during a hea\'y southeast gale. Besides this, the railway people discovered that under-

neatli their tracks some of the stringers were beginning to get weak. We, therefore,

expended $122.32 in effecting these minor repairs. The stringers, composed of 10 by 14

square timber, were renewed for a length of 120 feet, the new trestle was put in place in

the centre of the long span, about 500 feet B.M. covering was renewed, and the dro))

sliglitly repaired. The work was commenced February 1 and completed February 23,

1916. Spring tides rise here 7 feet, neap 4 J feet.

G.\BARUS.

(This work is described in the annual reiwrt for 1!I14.)

Gabarus bay. Cape Breton county, is on the Atlantic coast of Cape Breton island,

and is 5 miles wide at the entrance, between White point and Cape Gabarus.

During 1915-16, the sum of $2(X3.04 was expended in the construction of a crane,

for the loading of heavy fish boxes into vessels, and in iturchasing and placing 5,280 feet

B.M. of 2-inch covering on outer end of wharf.

r.EORGEVII.LE.

(This work is described in the annual rcixjrt for 1914.)

(ieorgcville is a settlement on the southern shore of Northumberland strait. 6.}

miles southward from Cape George.

During the heavy fall storms in 1912, the outer 50 feet of the wharf was destroyed,

to within IJ feet of L.W.S., and the ballast deposited about the structure and the " L "

on the western side was destroyed, to L,W.S., by the ice and the debris deposited in the

dock on the sheltered side of the wharf.

During the eight months ended November .'SO, 1915, ibc sum ><( $472.04 whs

expended in renewing covering and sheathing of wharf where nc^nlccl.

Work was in progress in July.
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CliANI) F.TANO.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915).

Grand Etang, Inverness county, is on the Gulf of St. Lawrence, about midway
between the harbours of Margaree and Cheticamp, on the western shore of the island

of Cape Breton. '

During the fiscal year 1915-16, the sum of $599.92 was expended in repairing and

reballasting the outer ends of the channel blocks.

(Ui.V.WII.LE CENTRE.

Granville Centre, Annapolis county, is a scattered settlement of some 300 people,

situated on the rght or north bank of the Annapolis river, 4 miles east of, or above,

Granville ferry. Both banks of the Annapolis river, from the town of Annapolis to the

head of navigation at Bridgetown, a distance of about 15 miles, are thickly settled bj' a

thrifty agricultural and fruit-growing population.

In 1901 to 1904. the department built a pile wharf, 90 feet long, 25 feet wide, with

an ell, giving a face length on the river front, of 50 feet. The cost in the three years

being $1,907.52.

In 1915-16, the sum of $977.11 was expended in thorough repairs and renewals to

the floor of the wharf, whicli liad become very much decayed in the twelve or thirteen

years since it was fini.shed.

(jnKAT VIMjACE.

(This work is described in the annual rejiort for 1914).

Great Village, Colchester county, is an important .settlement of about 050 or 700
situated in a thriving farming di.strict. along the north side of Cobequid bay, on the
Great Village river, about 1^ miles from its mouth, and about 15 miles west from Truro
and "\ from Londonderry, the nearest railway station.

During 1915-16, the sum of $149.99 was expended in replanking the top of wharf,

placing some new stringers and a new guard rail, and in repairing approach.

Work done in the month of July.

ll.VKBorin ILLE.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1913).

Ilarbourville, Kings county, is situated on the south shore of the Bay of Fundy, 53

miles northeast of Digby gut, 9 miles northwest from Berwick, on the D. A. Ily. The
population of the village is about 200 people, engaged in fishing and farming.

In 1915-16, the sum of $3,791.45 was exjjcnded in taking down and rebuilding the

whole length of the wharf wall, or retaining wall, on the northeast side of the inner

harbour, 394 feet long, from 20 to 12 feet wide and of an average height of 16 feet.

H.\RRir;AN COVE.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1914.)

Harrigan Cove, Halifax county, is a settlement of some 400 people engaged in
fishing and farming. It is situated on the Atlantic coast, seventy miles east of Hali-
fax.

In the year 1915-16, the sum of $499.76 was expended in replanking the whole
top of the wharf with 3-inch spruce planking, placing new fenders and three new
mooring posts, also the placing of some new 3 by 10 floor beams.

Work commenced July 19 and completed August 31.
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(This work is described in the animal report for 1915.)

Head of Chezzeteook, Halifax county, is a small settlement, about 22 miles east

from Dartmouth by stage, with a population of about 300 people, engaged in fishing

and farming.

During the fiscal year 1915-16, the sum of $2,S'39.61 was expended. The rebuilt

structure is of native timber eribwork, stone ballasted, 84 feet in length by 45 feet in

width, with a stone and gravel approach 30 feet by 45 feet wide. The work has an

average height of 6 feet.

V ork commenced October 1 and completed January 28.

HERRING COVE.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1912.)

Herring Cove, Halifax county, is a small, narrow and nearly landlocked inlet,

situated on the western side of the mouth of Halifax harbour, 5* miles in a direct

line from the city of Halifax. Around, the cove extends a fishing village of about

150 people, wholly dependent upon the fishing industry as a means of livelihood, the

annual catch being valued at $100,000.

In the fiscal year 1915-16, the sum of $170.50 was expended in rebuilding part of

the walls of the approach, filling in a hole in the same, and grading 250 yards of the

right-of-way.

Work commenced June 28, and completed July 8.

There is also a breakwater of creosoted timber on the eastern side of the niuiitli

of the cove. It was built in 1903-4, by contract at a cost of $11,550.

JAMESVILLE.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

Jamesville, Victoria county, is a country district with a population of about 30

families, situated on the northern shore of the Great Bras D'Or lake, about 2 miles

west of lona, a station on the Intercolonial railway.

During the year 1915-16, the sum of $3,399.62 was expended in procuring the

balance of materials required for the construction of a eribwork block 170 feet long,

116 feet wide, with 7 feet at low water, in the construction of the pile approach, 170

feet long, and 90 feet of the breakwater, and of the substructure of the balance of the

breakwater, 80 feet in length.

JOGGIN MINES.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1913.)

Joggin Mines is a town of about 2,000 people, situated on the shores of Chignccto

ba.y, about 15 miles southwest of Amherst.

During the past fi.scal year, in order to place the old work in proper shape, 70 feet

in length of the old breakwater, to a depth of 14 feet and width of 10 feet, was recon-

structed. The work performed in 1912-13 required further ballasting, and the turning

place was extended a further distance of 65 feet. This work was commenced July 2

and comideted October 30, 1915. Spring tides rise here 38 feet, neap 32 feet.

Kelly's cove.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915^
Kelly's Cove, Yarmouth county, about 3 miles south of the town of Yarmouth.
In 1915-16, the sum of $1,289.72 was expended in placing about 1,000 cubic yards

of large boulders along the western or seaward face of the breakwater, to cheek the

undertow which was threatening to scour the foundation.
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KEMPT HEAD.

Kempt Head, Victoria county, is on the northern side of Boulardarie island, on
the Great Bras D'Or channel, and iihout 1 mile from Boulardarie Head, the south-

western end of the island.

During 1901-2 a block and span wharf, with creosoted timber substructure, 18.5

feet in length and 20 feet in width, with an " L" at the outer end, 20 by 20 feet, and
e.xtendiug to 12 feet at low water, was constructed by the department, and during
1902-3 a road 900 feet in length and 20 feet wide was constructed to connect the wharf

with the public road.

During the fiscal year 191.5-lt3, the sum of $821:.S2 was expended in the recon-

struction of the whole top of the structure, consisting of stringers, covering, cap-tim-

bers and upper fenders, to replace the original top, which was badly worn and decayed
and in repairing the road leading from the wharf to the public road.

KINGSPORT.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1914).

Kingsport, Kings countj% is a village of some 500 people, on the southwest of the
Basin of Minas, between the mouth of the Cornwallis river and Cape Blomidon.

In 191.5-16, the sum of $2,359.01 was expended in extensive repairs and renewals to

the upper part of the pier. The whole floor was renewed, including planks, stringers

and caps, for the whole length of 565 feet, except the outer 140 feet, which was com-
paratively new and in good condition. Numerous mooring posts and fenders were also

renewed.

KRAUT roiXT.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1914).

Kraut Point, Lunenburg county, is situated at the entrance to the harbour of

Riverport, one of the most important shipping points in the county of Lunenburg. It

is about 16 miles by river from Bridgewater and 10 miles from Lunenburg.
During the year 1915-16, the sum of $53.24 was expended in the erection of a crane

on the wharf, and the placing of shutters on the shed.

Work done in the month of December.

l'ardoise.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915).

L'Ardoise, Eichmoad county, is on the eastern side of St. Peter's bay, near its

entrance from the Atlantic ocean, and about 9 miles to the eastward of the southern
entrance to St. Peter's canal.

During 1915-16, the sum of $499.90 was expended in repairing, by concrete work,
the inner face of the breakwater, for a distance of 100 feet from the outer end inwards.

l'akdoise beach.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

L'Ardoise beach separates Shaw's lake from Shaw's cove, and serves as a landing
place for fishing boats, as a site for fish-houses, and as a place to cure fish upon.

During 1915-16, the sum of $400.82 was expended by day labour, in close-sheathing
the outer faces and ends of the cribwork bridge abutments, to prevent undermining of
the sand foundation by the scouring action of the sea, and in extending the brush and
stone beach protection work.
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(This work is described in the annual report for 1914.)

Leonard's Cove, Annapolis county, is a slight indentation in the coast line of the

east side of the Bay of Fundy, 2J miles east of Parlvers Cove. The population com-

prises about 100 people engaged in fishing and farming.

In 1915-16, the sum of $49.11 was expended in repairs to the floors of the break-

water, comprising the replacing of a few fenders and guard timber on the outer end,

and a small quantity of ballast.

LITCHFIELD.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1914.)

Litchfield, Annapolis county, is a fishing and farming settlement on the south

coast of the Bay of Fundy, 14 miles north-east of Digby gut.

In 1915-16, the sum of $547.38 was expended in completing the extension of thi

breakwater built in 1913-14.

LITTLE .WSE.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1914.)

Little Anse, Richmond county, is a boat harbour on the eastern coast of Petit de

Grat island, which lies to the eastward of Madame island, off the southern coast of

Cape Breton island.

During 1915-16, the sum of $849.37 was expended in the construction of concrete

retaining walls along the inner and outer faces of the stone approach, 25 feet in length.

7 feet in height, and 4 feet in width at the bottom, and 1^ feet in width at the top,

and in repairs to the 6-inch concrete covering of this section of the stone approach.

LITTLE B.^SS HIVKH.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

Little Bass River, Colchester county, is a settlement of 100 people, three miles

from Bass river, the chief industries being lumbering and farming.

During 1915-16, the sum of $999.63 was expended in placing a crib retaining wall

along one side of the cut which was made during last year. The crib is 127 feet long by

13 feet wide with an average height of 10 feet. In order to construct this retaining wall,

it was necesasry to excavate 340 yards of material. The poles which protected the bank

from caving last year were taken out and used in making this retaining wall. Since

the work has been completed, the object for which it was undertaken', namely, the

deepening of the river in front of the lumber loading trestles, has been accomplished.

As expected, the spring freshets of last season assisted in opening up the channel to an

extra depth of about 4 feet and width of about 30 feet, which allows vessels to come up

to the loading trestles. This work will prove a gi'cat benefit to the lumbering interests

and to the people generally.

Work connneneed September 20 and ciniiiilctcd ( )cti)l)i'r-2;!.

I.ITTI.I'. llAlillol l(.

Little Harbour. Lunenburg <-(iinity. is a fi>biug village ..f ab.uit 'Mi) inlmliitants.

situated 27 miles south of Bridgewater. Abo\it $12,000 worth of fish is exported

annually. The dredging is to provide suitable shelter and better liarbourage for the

fishing boate.

During the fiscal year 1914-15, the sum of $1.7:!'3..">0 was expended in dredging

."^.096 cubic yards, scow measurement, of mud frcuu tin' linrlmnr.

During the fiscal year 1915-16, dredging oiierations were cuntinned by dredge

P. W. D., No 15, and 3,207 cubic yards, place measurement, nf mud and gravel were
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removed, having an expansion factor of 30 per cent, showing 4,247 yards, scow measure-
ment. The excavation this year was over an area of 12,601 square feet, and the average
cutting was 7 feet, giving a depth of 6 feet at L.W.O.S.T. To complete the work as

estimated will require the removal of another 2,407 yards, scow measurement, 7,343 cubic

yards having been removed to date.

Work was carried out under some difficulties this year, as operation was only
possible over the greater part of the work at high tide, and rough weather greatly inter-

fered with dredging. Dredging done here should last for a considerable time, but it

v/ould be advisable to make an annual e.xpfnditure of $200 to. keep the channel clear.

LITTLE HARBOUR. *

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

Little Harbour is on the Northumberland strait about 5 miles east of the entrance
to Pictou harbour.

During the fiscal year 1915-16. the sum of $206.46 was expended in procuring
timber and stone for a proposed reconstruction of an outer block of wharf above low
water, but not used for this purpose; in replacing some round timber in damaged por-

tion of outer end, in renewing corner fenders and covering, and in placing a small
quantity of heavy stone in the approach.

Work was in progress in September, October and November.

LITTLE RIVER.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1914.)

Little River, Digby county, is situated on St. Mary's bay, on the inner or eastern

side of the peninsula known as Digby neck.

In 1915-16, the sum of $91.64 was expended in the construction of a fence along

the water front face of the road, constructed by the department in 1911-12, as an
iipprocah to the breakwater. The work was satisfactorily completed.

Livingston's cove.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

Livingston's Cove is situated on the southern shore of Northumberland strait about 2

miles south-west from Cape George.

During the fiscal year 1915-16, the sum of $299.31 was expended in procuring about
100 "cubic yards of large stone to be used in strengthening the seaward face of the
wharf.

Work was in progress in October. i

LOCKEPORT.

Lockeport, Shelburne county, is a town of about 800 people, situated on the
Atlantic seaboard, about 110 miles southwest of Halifax, and 80 miles east-southeast of
Yarmouth. Fishing is practically the only and main industry, Lockeport being the
centre of the fishing industry along this coast. Considerable development has taken place
here, whilst the prospects for the future tend towards a still greater development. The
shipping consists of about 30 small schooners, ranging from 20 to 80 tons, two schooners
of 100 tons burden each, about 200 boats, ranging from J to 3 tons burden, three small
steamers, from 50 to 60 tons, one steamer of about 100 tons burden, and a refrigerator

steamer of about 500 tons burden. Owing to the dredging, which has been undertaken
during the past three fiscal years, twenty large Lunenburg fishing schooners ranging
from 95 to 130 tons burden, were supplied with bait this spring. In former years, owing
to the shallowness of the channel and approaches to the wharfs, this was impossible.

and the bait had to be shipped by railway to Lunenburg, and a large number of

19—9



130 DEPAKTMEyr OF PUBLIC fVORES

7 GEORGE V, A. 19l7

American fishing schooners have been enabled to make Lockeport a port of call for

supplies, etc. During the last fiscal year, over $50,000 worth of bait was supplied to

various fishing interests. The value of the shipping iu Lockeport is in the vicinity

of $250,000. Practically all the small vessels, being engaged in what is locally termed
off-shore fishing, make from 40 to 60 trips per year.

The improvements to this harbour were first undertaken during the fiscal year

1913-14, when 83,000 cubic yards, scow measurement, were removed. During the fiscal

year 1914-15, some 69,200 cubic yards were removed, and during the past fiscal year,

113,280 cubic yards were removed. These are all scow measurements.

Work was commenced on the 23rd of June, and completed on the 22nd of Decem-
ber, 1915. The principal object of this work was to make the harbour navigcihle for

vessels of deeper draught, likewise to provide anchorage for the increasing fishing fleet.

During the fiscal year the channel was thoroughly gone over, and a considerable

quantity of sand and mud removed from the western portion of the same.

Besides this work, a basin was excavated, practically 600 feet in length and 450 feet in

width. From a large x>ortion of this basin, mud to the depth of 10 feet was removed.

Spring tides rise here 6J feet, neap 4i feet.

LUNENBURG.

Lunenburg, Lunenburg county, is situated on the Atlantic coast 49 miles west of

Halifax, by water, with a population of about 4,000. It is the most important fishing

port in the Dominion, the fishing business aggregating about $1,000,000 a year, 200
vessels being engaged, which employ 3,000 men.

During the fiscal year 1912-13, 161,709 cubic yards of mud and sand were removed
from the harbour at a cost of 2Ti cents per yard. Work was performed in front of the

wharfs and in the immediate vicinity of the same, the object being to provide safe

anchorage to a depth of 17 feet below L.W.O.S.T.

During the fiscal year 1914-15, dredging was carried on by the department to

provide a depth of 18 feet below L.W.O.S.T. in front of the wharfs. The plant

employed consisted of the Lohnitz Roclchrealcer, No. 3, and dredge Beacon Bar, with

two scows from dredge No. 7. The nature of the material removed was mud and rock,

the average depth of cutting being 4-1 feet and the area covered 1-3 acres. Material

removed was as follows:—

•

Place. Scow.

Hard pan 3,428 4,600

Broken rock 3,640 5,400

Soft material 490 600

During the year 1915-16, dredge Beacon Bar and Lohnitz Rochhreaher, No. S,

were in operation during the months of April and ifay. In December, the rockbreaker

returned and continued work until the end of the fiscal year. Dredge No. 6, with two
scows, started on February 5 and worked initil the end of the year.

- During the year, LohnHz No. 3 reported breaking up 24,358.29 cubic yards.

Dredge Beacon Bar, from April 1 to May 8, removed the following:

—

Cubic Yards.

Hard pan 2,700

Broken rock 9,100

Mud 800

12,600
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Dredge Nb. G, from February 5 to Mar<'li 31, removed the following:

—

Cubic Yards.

Hard pan 2,372-5

Broken rock 7,257 -3

Mud 1,740

11,370

Total dredged during the season, 23,970 yards.

The area covered by the rockbreaker totals 124,996 square feet, exclusive of a

spfond ffoing-over of an area of 24,206 square feet. The area covered bj' the dredge

totals 105,230 square feet. The Brick shoal has been dredged to 15 feet below

L.W.O.S.T., the intention being to dredge this portion to 18 feet below L.W.O.S.T.
Isnor's shoal has been partly dredged to 14 feet below L.W.O.S.T., or to grade. The
area in front of the' wharfs has been partly dredged to grade.

The area yet remaining to be done is the area along the front of the wharfs, to be

dredged to 18 feet below L.W.O.S.T., and the area lying off in front of the wharfs, to a

depth of 14 feet below L.W.O.S.T. The tfltal area to be covered is 463,000 square

feet. In order to complete the work it is estimated the following quantites of material

yet remain :

—

Ep. Factor. Place. Scow.
Nature of Material

—

Cxibic Yards. Cubic Yards.

Rock .50% 14,162 21,242

Other materials 30% 98,8'77 128,540

The duration of these improvements will be until a greater depth is necessitated

by the commerce of the town.

iickay's point (judique).

(This work is described in the annual report for 1914.)

McKay's Point (Judique), Inverness county, is on the east side of St. George' .s

Bay, 10 miles south of Port Hood and 16 miles north of the northern entrance to the

Strait of Canso.

During 1915-16, the .'um of $198.62 was expended in repairs to the covering of the.

breakwater and in the renewal of some fenders.

JICK.W'S POINT.

McKay's Point (Lower Washabuck), Victoria count.v, is on the western side of the

entrance into St. Patrick's channel, an arm of the Bras D'Or lake, about two miles by
water, from and opposite the town of Baddeck. The wharf was built by the depart-

ment during 1903-4, at a cost of $5,442. It is a block and span structure extending to

12 feet at low water, 206 feet in length and 20 feet in width, with an " L " on the west-

ern side of the outer end, 20 feet by 20 feet, and is composed of a shore abutment 28 feet

long, of four cribwork blocks, 17 feet long, and of an outer block, 20 by 40 feet, with
openings, between blocks, 18 feet in length. The blocks are constructed of round
timber, laid open-faced, with tics of round timber, creosoted to high water level, fully

ballasted and fendered and the outer faces of the outer block were clo.se-sheathed as a

protection against floating ice.

During 1905-6, the sum of $100 was expended in repairing the outer face and ends
of the outer block, and during 1907-8, the sum of $150.39 was expended in the construc-
tion of a small warehouse on the outer end of the wharf.

During the year 1915-16, the whole top of the wharf, built 12 years previous, which
had become worn and decayed, and including floor-stringers, covering, cap-timbers and
upi)er fenders, was entirely renewed at a cost of $899.74.

19—9i
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mcxair's co^T:.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915).

MeNair's Cove is situated on the western side of St. George bay about two miles
to the southward of Cape George.

During the fiscal year 1915-16, the sum of $5©9.&2 was expended in reballasting and
protecting, by stoue talus, about 45 feet of the seaward face of the work, and strength-
ening the inner face over a distance of 200 feet, by native timber piling driven 5 feet

apart.

Work was in progress in October.

MABOL" HAHBOll!.

Mabou harbour, Inverness county, is on the western side of Cape Breton island,

about 6 miles northeast from Port Hood.
The entrance was formerly at the southern extremity of a range of hills and by

an intricate channel, obstructed by a bar over which there was a depth of only 4 feet at

extreme low water.

The opening of the new channel, by dredging through the sand hills at their

northern e:stremity, was undertaken in 1872, and a pier for its protection was con-

structed on its southern side.

Expenditures were made nearly every year, from 1870 to ISOii. in dredging and in

repairs to channel protection works.

In 1903, the minimum depth, at extreme low water over the bar, was 6 feet 3 inches,

in July. 1900, this depth was increased to 10 feet, but this deptli decreased 13 feet in

November, 1907, and to 9 fept in July, 1908.

The first dredging of the channel in 1S72 was done under contract, but all the

dredging done subsequently and up to July, 1908, was done by Government dredges.

During 1908-9, the harbour and the channel inside of the bar were dredged under
contract and a quantit,y of material, amounting to about 144,000 cubic yards, scow
measure, was removed, but the improvement was not completed.

During the year ended March 31, 1910, the Government dredge. Cape Breton, No. 6,

was detailed to complete the dredging of the channel, 100 feet in width over the bar

inwards, and outwards over a total distance of about 3,900 feet, to a depth of 12 feet at

low water springs. Operations were commenced on June 2S, 1915. and continued until

September 9 following, when the work was completed in a satisfactory manner, both as

regards the depth and the widths obtained.

The amount of material removed to effect these improvements, consisting mostly

of sand, measured 20,144 cubic yards in place, and as, in accordance with returns, the

quantity removed measured 34,395 cubic yards in the scows, the expansion would
appear to have been about 70 per cent, which is double the expansion generally found
in dredging similar material.

This increased percentage is due to the shifting nature of the material outside of

the cut, which, being mostly light sand, was washed into the cut by the heavy seas, while

the work was in jirogress, and had to be removed, as well as the orginal material in

place, to obtain the depth required.

Owing to the shifting nature of the bottom in the outside channel, it is not expected

that the present depths will 1k> maintained for any length of time, unless the break-

water on the southern side of the channel is extended outwards, at least as far as the

outer end of the dredged channel.

mahokey's be.vcii.

Mahoney's beach is on the western shore of St. George's bay about 13 miles south

from Cape George and nine miles from the town of Antigonish.

The beach is about one-third of a mile in length and from 1,")0 to 350 feet in width

and separates Ogden's pond from St. George's bay.
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During the fiscal year 191.".-1<J, the sum of $29.31 was expended in repairing the

road between the highway and the beach, partly destroyed by trucking during repairs to

the protection work at Ogden's pond in 1914-15.

MARGAREE HARBOUR.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

Margaree harbour, Inverness county, at the mouth of the Margaree river, is on

the west coast of Cape Breton island, about 30 miles northeast of Port Hood.

During the year 1915-16, the sum of $411.09 was expended in general repairs to

the breakwater, rendered necessary by damage during a heavy gale, and consisting

of the renewal of some covering, fenders, cap-timbers and of ballast.

MARGARE'niLLE.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

ilargaretville, Annapolis county, is the most important village on the south shore-

of the Bay of Fundy, between Digby gut and Scott's bay.

In 1915-16, the sum of $4,785.18 was expended in taking down and rebuilding

a portion of the west, or seaward face, of the breakwater, 130 feet long, 20 feet wide,,

and from 27 to 33 feet high. The flooring and stringers of other portions of the worlc

were also renewed.

METEGHAN.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

Meteghan, Digby county, is situated on the south side of St. Mary's bay. Bay of

Fundy, 25 miles north of Yarmouth, 20 miles south of Weymouth, 21 miles south of

Meteghan river and 40 miles south of Digby, the county town.

In 1915-16, the sum of $149.84 was expended in emergent repairs to the covering
of the main breakwater, also the replacing of some sheathing along the face of the

work.

MIDDLE COUNTRY HARBOUR.

(This work is described in the annual rejwrt for 1914.)

Country harbour is on the Atlantic coast of Nova Scotia, 36 miles westward from
Cape Canso. »

During the fiscal year 1915-16, the sum of $764.18 was expended in cutting down-
to within 1 foot of high water, and reconstructing the two outer blocks of the whan,
and in constracting a brush mattress to protect the piles in the foundation of the

warehouse from being lifted b,y the ice.

Work was in progress in June, July and September.

MILL CREEK.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

Mill creek. Kings county, is a small farming settlement of a couple of hundred
people, situated on the eastern side of the Basin of Minas, 3 miles south of Blomidon
and 4 miles north of Kingsport. the terminus of a branch of the D. A. Ey.

In 1915-16, the sum of $400 was expended in hand digging a channel along the
beach to divert the brook, which issues in the neighbourhood, for the purpose of scour-
ing the gravel that obstructs the berthing of schooners and other craft.

MINUDIE.

_
Minudie is a small village of about 300 inhabitants, situated at the head of

Chignecto channel, at the mouth of the Eiver Hebert, about six miles north of River



134 Di:PAIfTMK\r OF PlBLir WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

Hebert village. This wharf was eonstruoted in the fiscal years 1911-12 and 1912-13, at

a total expenditure of $3,166.17. Since that time there have been minor repairs,

together with the construction of a ferry slip amounting to about $400.

The work itself consists of air approach, 123 feet long, 16 feet wide on top and 9

feet high at the outer end. The approach is constructed in the form of a rock bank
with the wall about four feet thick, whilst the centre was filled in with smaller stones.

The wharf proper is 75 feet long, the shoreward 50 feet beijig 20 feet wide on top, whilst

the outer 25 feet had a frontage of 65 feet, the outer face having a height of 26 feet. This
was constructed of continuous cribwork. During the past fiscal year, $643.12 was
expended in replacing the covering, stringers and guard rails, and the outside crib was
reconstructed for a depth of six feet. This work was commenced October 15 and com-

pleted November 19, 1915. Spring tides rise here 40 feet, neap 33 feet.

moshkr's bay.

Mosher's bay, Lunenburg county, is situated o^ the cast side of the entrance to

La Have river, about half a mile west of La Have Ironbouud island.

During the year 1914-15, the department expended the sum of $2,960.50 in pro-

curing material for a breakwater, which it was proposed to construct during the fiscal

year 1915-16.

During 1915-16, the construction was commenced and the sum of $2,815.35

expended. An additional amount of $2,022.08 was expended in securing timber for the

carrying out of the work here next year, so that the total expenditure this year has

been $4,838.43.

Owing to the exposed position and exceptionally heavy seas, work was carried out

with great difficulty. 150 feet of the shoreward end was built to an average height of

8 feet, 20 feet wide. An additional 60-foot crib, which was being set at the outer end

was moved and considerably damaged by a storm. The outer end which has been left

uncompleted was temporarily covered to protect the ballast, but later on another severe

storm did further damage to this crib, breaking it in two and washing part of it ashore,

leaving the remaining portion about 100 feet away from the breakwater. Another

40-foot portion of the structure in place at the outer end also suffered to some extent

from storm, about four to six feet being broken away and washed ashore, leaving

i.othing but the ballast floors, a few logs and a small quantity of ballast intact. The
logs which had broken adrift were piled on the shore in a place of safety. The ballasted

portion of the work remaining intact was covered, as best possible, to protect it for the

rest of the winter.

Work on this breakwater was commenced October 1 and carried on intermittently

during the season.

MUSHABOOX.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1914.)

Mushaboon, Halifax county, is a small village on the Atlantic coast of Nova

Scotia, ninety miles east of Halifax, with a population of about one hundred people

engaged in iishing and lumbering. Thirty well equipped boats are used in the fishing

industry and the annual catch amounts to about 500 quintals of cod and 2,000 barrels

of herring, the value being from $10,000 to $12,000.

During the fiscal year 1915-16, the sum of $298.86 was expended in (licdging a

channel at this place between Malagash island and the mainland, 330 feet in lengtli

by 10 feet in width, with a depth of three feet below L.tV.O.S.T. Material dredged

consisted of mud and boulders. The work was done by hand.

Work commenced November 1 and completed Dccembci- 24.
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NFXl -\I TEICH.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1914.)

Necum Teuch, Halifax county, is situated on the east side of Necum Teuch bay.

at the mouth of Moser's river. It is sixty-nine miles east from Halifax in an airline

and one hundred and five miles by stage. The population of the place is about 400

people, who are engaged in fishing, farming and lumbering.

During the fiscal year 191.5-16, the sura of $72.02 was expended in replacing some

planks in the top of the wharf.

Work begun October 5 and completed October 12.

NEW HARBOUR.

(This work is described in tlie annual report for 1914.)

New Harbour is on the southern or Atlantic coast of Nova Scotia, thirty miles to

the westward of Canso Harbour.

During the fiscal year 1915-lG, the sum of $805.46 was expended in procuring the

materials required and in placing 6 concrete blocks on the seaward side of the break-

water, making a continuous wall, .>8 feet in length from within 30 feet of the outer end,

.0 feet in width and 4-8 feet in average height, founded on a talus of heavy stone.

Work was in progress in July, August, September and October.

NORTH BELLEVILLE.

North Belleville, Yarmouth county, is a settlement ofabout 150 people, engaged

in farming, lumbering and general trade. It is 11 miles east of the town of Yarmouth
and the settlement is scattered around the extreme end of Eel lake.

In 1914-15 the department expended the sum of $120.60 in purchasing timber for

the construction of a small public wharf.

In 1915-16, the sum of $815.27 was expended in the construction and completion

of the wharf, which is a stone-sided, earth-filled, gravel-topped embankment approach.

75 feet long, from 2 to 8 feet high and from 20 to 30 feet wide, finished by a substantial

block of cribwork, 30 feet long, 11 feet wide and 9 feet high, giving a depth of water

along the outer face of 7 feet at H.W.O.S. Rise of tide being about 10 feet, the work

is dry at low water.

K(JRTH SYD.NEV.

North Sydney, Cape Breton county, is an incorporated town and seaport on the

northern side of Sydney harbour and is one of the eastern terminals of the Inter-

colonial Railway.

The harbour is large, with a depth of water up to 30 feet at low water and being

safe in all winds, it is used as a harbour of refuge by a large number of fishing vessels,

besides being the port of call for several seagoing as well as coasting steamers.

The breakwater is situated on the south bar at the eastern end of the harbour of

North Sydney, and was constructed for the purpose of strengthening the bar and to

add to the protection of the harbour from easterly winds. It is a native timber crib-

work structure about 940 feet long and from 12 to 40 feet wide.

The property on which it is built was granted by the province of Nova Scotia to

the Harbour Commissioners of North Sydney in the year 1882, and during that year,

the Public Works Department of Canada granted the commissioners, the sum of $2,000

to aid them in the extension of the work. Since that year, the harbour commissioners

have constructed various extensions and have kept the work in comparatively good

repair.

During the year 1912, they expended the sum of $3,000 in building a block aWiut

40 by 50 feet at the outer or southern end of the breakwater. This work has now been
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handed over to the Marine and Fisheries Department. During the year 1915-16, the
sum of $50 was expended by this department in reboltinjr some of the piles in the work,
and in placing ballast in some of the empty chambers of the cribworlc.

Ballast Groundh.

The ballast grounds are situated off the centre of the town and are being used for

the depositing of ballast from vessels. They were the property of the harbour commis-
sioners until a short time ago, when they were transferred to the Marine Department.

A native timber-cribwork block, 140 feet in length and about 40 feet in width was
built by the harbour commissioners on the eastern side of the ballast grounds to permit

vessels to approach and discharge ballast. After a few years, the structure became
weakened by the attacks of the teredo and its seaward face was close-piled with native

materials. This piling is also in a bad condition, and as many pieces have been

loosened and carried away by the sea, the ballast is falling out of the structure to the

detriment of the depth of water outside. It is proposed to extend this block 10 feet

out into the harbour by creosoted pile-work, but as the creosoted timber could not be

obtained at the time, it was thought advisable to close-pile the face of the block with

native timber-piling for the present, and during the fiscal year 1915-16, the sum of

$750.03 was expended in doing this work.

NYANZ.\.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1914.)

Xyanza, Victoria county, is a small settlement 7 miles to the westward of the

town of Baddeck, and is at the head of Indian bay on the northern side of St. Patrick's

channel, an arm of the Bras-d'Or lakes.

During 11915-16, the sum of $179.13 was expended in the removal of the ware-

house from the inner to outer end of wharf and in repairs on it, consisting of reshing-

ling roof and walls and in painting the outside walls.

OSBOnNES.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

Osbornes, Cow bay. Halifax county, is a fishing and farming settlement, ten miles

east of Halifax, on the Dartmouth side of the harbour, with a poi)ulation of 150 people.

It is a very poi)ular place as a summer resort.

During the fiscal year 1915-16, the sum of $183.47 was exiwndcd in completing the

sheathing of the extension.

Work was commenced December 2, and completed Deceml>er 24.

OSTREA LAKE.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1914.)

Ostrea lake,' is a fishing district in Halifax county, situated on the east side of

Musquodoboit harbour, near its mouth, 35 miles from Halifax by coach and 8 miles

from Musquodoboit harbour village.

In the year 1915-16, the sum of $1,S14.45 was expended in tearing down the whole
superstructure of the wharf and rebuilding. The wharf is now partially pilework and
partially cribwork construction, 98 feet long by 60 feet wide, at the shore end, and 70
feet along the sea face, with a small irregular-shaped L projecting from the southern
side of the wharf, 49 feet long by 11 feet wide. A sihed, 14 feet by 18 feet, was con-

structed on the wharf, and a trolley track run from the end of the wharf, where the
steamer docks, to the shed. This will be a convenience to the people as the shed could

not be built on the end, on account of the exjxjsed position.

Work commenced September 14 and completed JIarch 18.
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PECJCiV's COVE.

(This work is described in the niuiuiil report for 1915.)

Peggy's cove, Halifax count.v, is situated on the Atlantic coast on the east side of

the entrance to St. Margaret's bay, thirty miles from Halifax by team. The place has

a population of about 200 people, engaged chiefly in fishing.

During the fiscal year 1915-16, the sum of $1,0-14.07 was expended in completing

this sea-wall, adding three feet to its height. It now has a maximum height of 15 feet,

which extends for a length of 20 feet, and from this to either ends runs off to nothing.

Tlie work has been entirely constructed by hand; the harbour is now much improved,

and the fishermen have, a safe shelter for boats.

Work commenced August 13 and completed November 27.

PETITE RIVIERE.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1914.)

Petite Riviere, Lunenburg county, is the centre of a thriving farming and lumber-

ing district, situated about 21 miles from the town of Bridgewater in a southwesterly

direction. The present length of the work is 1,350 feet, 895 feet being 16 feet wide
and the outer 461 feet being 20 feet wide. It is from 5 to 13 feet high and rests on a

brush mattress 20 to 30 feet in width and about 2 feet in thickness.

During the year 1915-lG, the sum of $999.99 was expended in rebuilding four por-

tions of the breakwater, which had settled. These portions, having a total length of

375 feet and width of 16 feet, were raised to an average height of 2 feet, fully ballasted

and replanked. New guards and flooring were put on the work.

Work carried out during the month of October.

PICTOU LANDINO.

Pictou Landing, on the east side of Pictou harbour, is the terminus of the Pictou
Landing branch of the I.E.C. There are two wharfs; the smaller, known as the ferry

wharf, is connected by a subsidized ferry boat with Pictou Town, a mile distant on
the opposite side of the harbour ; the other, known as the shipping pier, is utilized

principally by the Eastern Car Company in importing lumber and in shipping cars to

foreign countrfes.

In order to remove a deposit of silt which prevented the ferry-boat from docking
at low water, the departmental dredge No. k was employed from June 16 to 18, in

dredging to 9 feet at L.W.O.S.T., a small irregular area between this wharf and the

shipping pier, which involved the removal of 1,150 cubic yards of soft clay, measured
in situ, or 1,365 cubic yards, scow measurement, giving an expansion factor of 15

per cent.

In order to make the docks on both sides of the shipping pier available for large

ocean-going ships employed in exporting cars to France and Russia, the departmental

hydraulic dredge No. 6 was employed, between June 28 and July 10, in dredging a dock

on the east side, 25 feet in depth at L.W.O.S.T., 450 feet in length by 100 feet in

width at the inner end, but widening from near the middle point outwards to 175 feet

at the outer end, also a dock on the west side, 24 feet in depth, 350 feet in length by
75 feet in width, including the small area referred to above, which was dredged over

the earlier part of the season. The total amount of material excavated was 28,440

cubic yards of clay, sand and gravel, measured, in situ, which amount includes 810

cubic yards of over-dredging. The weekly reports return a total of 33,212 cubic yards,

including material deposited at the entrance to the docks during the process of dredg-

ing which being redredged does not appear in the final measurements.

Under ordinar.v conditions, these docks should remain open for a period of ten

years.
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PICTOU.

Harbour Commissioner's Wharf.

The harbour commissioner's wharf, is on the water front of Pictou town, about

1.400 feet west of the I.R.C. wharfs. The dredging was undertaken to permit sailing

vessels drawing 15 feet of water to approach the wharf, in order to discharge ballast

and to take cargoes, and consist of excavating, to 15 feet at L.W.O.S.T., a channel

100 feet in width, extending from the head of the wharf outward f>75 feet to the

harbour channel, together with three docks, each 100 feet in width, one across the

wharf's head and one on each side of the wharf for a distance of 200 feet.

The work was performed by the departmental dredge No. It, between July 14 and

September 21, 1915, and involved the removal of 37,100 cubic yards, in situ, of soft

clay, all above sub-grade, or 44,460 cubic yards, scow measurement. This gives an

expansion factor of 20 per cent, which accords with 21 per cent at Caribou harbour,

where the material was a firmer clay, with 19-5 per cent at Abercrombie point and

with 18 per cent at Pictou Landing, where tlie material was a soft deposit of alluvial

clay. No dredging was performed below sub-grade. The channel will probably remain

navigable, for the above described class of vessels, for a period of from five to ten years.

POUT DlFJ'EniX.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1914).

Port Dufferin (East), Halifax county, formerly called Salmon River, is a thriv-

ing village of from 300 to 400 people, engaged in fishing, farming and gold mining. It

is situated on the Atlantic coast, on the east side of an inlet known as Beaver harbour,

about eighty-four miles east of Halifax by high road, and about half-way between

Halifax and the harbour of Canso.

During the fiscal year 1915-16, the whole structure was thoroughly overhauled and

put in a state of repair. A complete lot of new piles were driven, new caps and

stringers placed, and the whole top of the wharf replanked and new guards and fenders

placed, at a cost of $999.13. The measurements of the wharf at present are: stone and

earth approach, 135 feet long by 27 feet wide; stone-filled crib, 60 feet long by 27 feet

wide; pilework portion 84 feet long by 27 feet wide, and ell 29 by 64 feet, giving a face

length of 50 feet. The wharf has an avragc height of 13 feet and has a depth of water

along the face, at L.W.O.S.T., of 13 feet.

Work started, Xovember 3 and completed. January 29.

PdliT DLFl-KlilN UKST.

Port Dufferin (West), Halifax county, is situated on the opposite side of the river

from Port Dufferin East. It has a population of about 150 people.

During the fiscal year 1912-13, {he .sum of $2,938.03 was expended in the construc-

tion of an aiijiroach for a wharf to be built next season. This approach, 70 feet long

by 25 feet wide, was constructed witli walls of dry stone masonry, the centre being

gravel filled. Two cribs, 20 feet by 25 feet each, 10 feet to 15 feet in lieight, placed 10

feet apart, were also constructed and timber was purchased the next fiscal year.

During 1913-14, the sum of $4,133.05 was expended in completing the wharf. The
work consists of a stone and gravel approach 70 feet by 25 feet, next 130 feet of block

and span construction and then a solid cribwork L, 40 feet by 45 feet, giving a total

length of 240 feet and a face length of 45 feet, with an average height of 14 feet and
depth of thirteen feet along the face at L.W.O.S.T.

During tlie fiscal year 1915-16, the sum of $300.07 was exju'iidcd iji the construction

of a slied on the L of the wharf. The shed is IS feet by 16 feet.

Work began Stli Novemlier and completed 28tli December.
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porter's lake.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1914).

Porter".s lake, Halifax county, i.s situated about the middle of the county, fifteen

miles distant from Halifax. It is eighteen miles in length and from one-quarter to one-

half a mile wide. The water, having a good depth for almost its entire length, is navi-

gable for vessels of sixty tons to its extreme head. The normal level of the lake is from

two to three inches above H.W.O.S.T.

During the year 191C, the sum of $100.01 was expended in opening and keeping

outlet open at the foot of the lake. The work was done as required from time to time

through the season.

PORT FELDC.

Port Felix is a harbour and fishing station on the eastern extremity of Tor bay,

on the Atlantic coast of Nova Scotia, 3.^ miles to the westward of the entrance to

White Haven.
A contract for the construction of a wharf was entered into on September 29,

1910, for $4,309.

The work, which is a block and span structure, 225 feet in length and 20 feet in

width, extending to 9i feet at L.W.S., was commenced June 5 and completed July 4,

1911. Spring tides rise 6 feet.

During the fiscal year 1915-16, the sum of $254.75 was expended in constructing a

road, 357 feet in length, between the highway and the western end of a road built in

1911-12, and $264.39 in placing stringers and covering over the ground sills of the

approach to the wharf, and in constructing a small warehouse.

Work was in progress in September. October and November.

PORT HASTINGS.

Port Hastings, Inverness county, is on the eastern side of the Strait of Canso, 2i

miles to the northward of Port Hawkesbury. The Inverness Railway and Coal Com-
pany have piers at this place, for the shipment of coal from their mine in Inverness on
the Gulf of St. Lawrence, SO miles distant.

A contract, entered into September 28, 1908, for the construction of a wharf,

warehouse and roadway, was completed during the fiscal year 1909-10.

The wharf consists of a crib-work retaining-wall, 105 feet in length and 14 feet

in width (with earth and stone filling behind it, 40 feet in width) ; a triangular crib-

work-block, in continuation of the retaining wall, 55 feet in length and 40 feet in

width, placed so as to be in line with a possible extension of the Inverness Railway
and Coal Company's low level shipping pier, and nearly parallel to and 130 feet from
a line in extension of the inner or northern face of the high level shipping pier. The
depth, at extreme low water, on the southern side of the outer block, varies from 14i

feet at its outer to 10 feet at its inner end. The top of the covering is 5 feet above
extreme high water.

Spring tides rise 5 feet.

The warehouse at the back of the triangular block is a one-story building, 30 feet

by 20 feet, with two doors, a sliding and swing door, on the southern side.

The roadway extends 320 feet from the inner end of the wharf, to a public road
leading from the railway station to the village of Port Hastings. It is properly graded,

covered with broken stone, has plank crossings over the railway, a siding near the
inner end of the wharf and a box culvert at the junction with the public road.

Owing to wear and tear and to natural decay of the wood, it was found necessary,

during 1915-16, to expend the sum of $499.46 in tlie renewal of the covering and of the

cap-timbers over the whole of the wharf.



140 DEPARTMEXT OF PVBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V. A. 1917

PORT IIAWKESBURY.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915).

Port Hawkesbury. Inverness county, is on the eastern side of the Strait of Canso,

nearly opposite Port Mulgrave.

During the year 1915-16, the sum of $427.64 was expended, by day labour, on

repairs to the warehouse and on repairs to and strengthening of the corners of the

wharf which were damaged by being run into by a heavy steamer.

I'ORT HOOD.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915).

Port Hood, the shiretown of Inverness county, is on the west coast of Cape Breton -

island, 20 miles north of the northern entrance to the Strait of Canso.

The inner end of the wharf, for a distance of 50 feet, was badly damaged during a

heavy gale in September, 1915, and the sum of $297.78 was expended during 1915-16.

in the renewal of close-sheathing on the seaward face of, and in replacing the damaged
covering and cap-timbers over the damaged part of the work.

PUGWASH.

A description of the wharves at Pugwash has been given so many times tliat it

would probably be superfluous in connection with this small expenditure of $499.97

The amount was for the purpose of repairing the wharf last built. The covering wa.'j

renewed, and about 400 tons oi additional ballast were placed in the cribs. This addi-

tional ballast was required, as a lot of the former ballast had fallen out and settled,

the teredo nevalis having eaten away a portion of some of the ballast floors.

Ql'ODDY.

Quoddy (called in former reports '" West Quoddy ") is a scattered settlement of

about 300 people, situated on the south coast of Halifax county, eighty miles east from

the city of Halifax and five miles west of Salmon river. The principal occupations

of the people are fishing and farming.

During the fiscal years 1905-6-7, the Department constructed a pile wharf, with

a freight shed on the ell, 20 by 13 feet, for the convenience of shippers. The wharf

has a stone and gravel approach, 70 feet long by 25 feet wide, and the main portion,

which is built of pilework, has a length of 216 feet and width of 25 feet, with an ell

27 feet by 26 feet, giving a face length of 51 feet. The total cost of this work was

$2,854.38.

During the fiscal year 1915-16, the whole work was rcplanked, new guards and

fenders placed, a number of new piles driven and new caps and floor-beams placed.

The shed on the ell was overhauled and repainted. An amount of $976.91 was expended

on this work.

Work commenced October 16 and completed December 26.

B.\INY COVE.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

Rainy Cove, Hants county, is situated in the district of Pembroke. It is a small

farming and lumbering centre with a population of about 175 people, situated on the

south shore of Minas basin, nine miles east of Cheverie and three miles west of Walton.

During the fiscal year 1915-16, the sum of $3,931.77 was expended in completing

the wharf four feet higher to bring it to the designed height, placing a 3-foot timber

break along the seaward side of the work and sheathing the seaward face. The road

was widened out to 20 feet and a cribwork protection built along the right of way 71

feet long by 20 feet wide.

Work commenced 1st July and completed 20th of November.
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RIVER JOHX.

Eiver John empties into the head of John bay, on the Northumberland strait,

about 24 miles to the westward of the entrace to Pictou harbour. It has 3 feet at low

water, or 11 feet at high water, over a bar at the entrance, and from 3 to 11 feet at

low water in a very crooked channel up to the bridge, a distance of nearly a mile.

The village is situated on. each eide of the river, near the bridge, and about three-

quarters of a mile from the station of the Oxford and Pictou Branch of the Inter-

colonial Railway.

A wharf on the south side of the river, immediately below the bridge, undertaken

in l'S99-1900. and completed in 1901-2, consists of a pile-head (bearing-piles creosoted),

60 by 20 feet with a crib-work retaining wall, 60 by 10 feet, at the back of it, and

crib-work wing-walls, on either side, 10 feet in width and respectively 78 and 61 feet

in length. The area enclosed by the retaining walls and the shore is filled ip with clay

covered with gravel. The depth at channel face is 9 feet. Spring tides rise 8 feet.

In 1910-11 the sum of $257.96 was expended in renewing the covering of the pile-

head and placing a small quantity of ballast in the retaining walls.

During the fiscal year 1915-16, the sum of $103.3fi was expended in placing a

cluster of 6 piles, near upper outer corner of pile-head, to prevent damage by ice,

pending renewal of mooring and fender-piles, etc.

Work was in progress in September.

ROCKLAND.

A full description of the wharf at this place has been given so often, that for a

matter of a shed, it would appear superfluous. This w6rk has been commonly termed

East Ragged island, and all reference to it in the departmental files will be

found imder that name. However, the locality itself is known now as Rockland. East

Ragged island, of whioii Rockland originally formed a part, is now confined to the

southern end of the peninsula, and the name East Ragged island applies only to the

southern end of the peninsula. The amount expended was $202.41. This is a ferry

wharf, it being a stopi>ing place for the subsidized ferry-boat which runs from Locke-

port station to Lockeport town, and accommodated about 1,000 people who utilize this

ferry at diiferent times. A shed 10 by 14 feet was constructed. Besides constructing

this shed, the corner fenders on this wharf had been broken and, in some instances,

carried away, S feet of these were replaced and on each comer a buttress of six

fenders was placed banding them together with iron bands at the top and chains at

the bottom, making the buttress as solid as possible. Work was commenced September
25 and completed October 29, 1915. Spring tides rise here 7 feet; neap 4A feet.

Ross's FERRY.

Ross's Ferry, Victoria county, is on the northern side of Boulardarie island, and

on the southern shore of the Great Bras D'Or v.'hannel, about 13 miles to the westward
of its entrance into the Atlantic.

During 1895-96-97, a wharf was built by the department at a point about half of

a mile to the eastward of tiie ferr.v landing. It is 106 feet in length and 20 feet in

width, with an '' L '' on the eastern side of its outer end, 30 by 22 feet, and extends to

12 feet at low water. It consists of a shore abutment of stone, 23 feet long, a creosoted

timber-pile approach 61 feet long and of a crib-work block with creosoted timber sub-

structure, 50 feet long and 22 feet wide.

In 1897-9S, the wharf was connected with the public road by a road 320 feet in

length, including a small bridge.

During 1909-10, the sum of $549.21 was expended in the renewal of floor-stringers,

etc., and during 1910-11. the sum of $218.57 was expended in the partial reconstruc-
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tion of the cribwork abutments of the small bridge on the road counectin<r the wharf

•with the public road, and in the purchase of a small warehouse at the outer end of the

wharf.

During the year ended March 31, 1916, the sum of $28.63 was expended in the

renewal of two mooring posts at the outer corners of the crib-work block.

ROUND HILL.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

Round Hill, Annapolis county, on the south or left bank of the Annapolis river,

8 miles east of the town of Annapolis.

In 1915-16, the sum of $500 was expended in renewing the floor on the stem of

the wharf, 100 feet long and 16 feet widp, and a piece about 24 feet square on the ell.

ST. Joseph's.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

St. Joseph's, Inverness county, is a fishing and a farming district on the western

coast of Cape Breton island, about midway between the harbours of ilargaree and

Cheticamp, and about 14 miles to the north-westward of the excellent boat-harbour of

Grand Etang.

During the year 1915-16, the sum of $249.22 was expended, by day labour, in

repairing the outer end of the breakwater which had been badly damaged durinii' a

heavy gale, accompanied by an extreme high tide.

ST. JfARv's RIVKH.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1913.)

St. Mary's river is a fine stream, sixty-five miles in length, traversing valuable

timber lands and discharging into the Atlantic Ocean, forty-eight miles to the west-

ward of Cape Canso.

During the fiscal year 1915-16, the sum of $899,98 was expended in removing
boulders, with the aid of a'diver, from the ship channel between Sherbrooke and

Goldenville wharf and in the "Narrows,"' about 1-3 miles below Sherbrooke.

Work was in progress in August. September and October.

SANDY COVE.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

Sandy Cove, Digby county, is a fishing and farming settlement of some 400 people,

situated on the Bay of Fundy side of Digby neck, twenty miles soutii of Digby town.

In 1915-lC, the sum of about $50 was expended in emergent repairs to the Vireak-

water.

SEAFORTH.

(This work is described in the, annual report for 1915.)

Seaforth, Halifax county, is a fishing and farming settlement, 24 miles east of

Halifax and 3 miles west of Chezzeteook, with a i)opidation of about 160 people.

During the fiscal year 1915-16, the sum of $75.03 was expended in replacing brukmi

plank in the floor of the breakwater, and in placing some new stringers. An addi-

tional sum of $37.91 was expended in the erection of a fence along the right-of-way

to the breakwater. The work on the breakwater was done in November and the erec-

tion of the fence carried out in December.
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SELMA.

Selma, Hants county, is a small agricultural village of about 200 people, situated

on the south side of Cobequid bay, three miles from Maitland and twenty-three miles

from Shubenacadie on the Intercolonial Kailway.

In the year 1908-9, the sum of $0,955 was paid for the construction of a block and

span wharf. The work is 375 feet long, the shoreward 285 feet being 20 feet wide, of

block and span construction, and the outer 90 feet 25 feet wide of solid crib. The

spans are 13 feet wide and the work has a height varying from to 21 feet.

During the fiscal year 1915-16. the sum of $149.41 was expended in replacing a

few floor-stringers and flooring.

Work done in October.

SH.\D B.\Y.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

Shad Bay, Halifax county, is a small village extending over a sparsely settled

extent of one and a half miles along the shore twenty-one miles from Halifax and two

miles from Upper Prospect by stage.

During the fiscal year 1915-16, the sum of $500.58 was expended in the construc-

tion of the approach and the completion of the structure whicii now measures 145

feet in length by twenty in width, with an ell 20 feet wide and 31 long, giving a face

length of 51 feet. The average height of the work is 10 feet, and the depth of water

along the face at L.W.O.S.T. is 9 feet.

Work commenced November 8 and completed January 21.

SHAJGl HARBOUR.

Siag Harbour is a scattering village of about 600 inhabitants, situated about 6

miles northwest of Barrington, and about 40 miles southeast of Yarmouth town. The

chief occupation of the people is fishing. In the fiscal years 1899-1900, 1900-1 and

1903-4, a total sum of $2,303.28 was expended in constructing a wharf for the accom-

modation of the public.

The wharf consists of a rock bank approach, 53 feet in length, 25 feet wide on top,

and the wiiarf proper. The wharf proper is 221 feet in length, 20 feet wide, with the

exception of the last 20 feet, which has a frontage of 40 feet, with a height, at the

outer end, of 20 feet. The wharf proper consists of pile trestle bents located 10 feet

apart between centres, well braced, waled and fendered. During the past fiscal year,

the sum of $775.02 was expended in effecting necessary repairs to this work. The

planking, stringers and guard rails were all renewed, 30 new fenders were put in jilace,

a landing-drop for freight was installed, and a small stationary derrick was erected.

Work commenced September 1 and ended October 30, 1915. Spring tides rise iiere 10

feet, neap 7 feet.

SHORT BE.\CH.

(This work" is described in the annual report for 1915.)

Short Beach, Yarmouth county, is the name of a small fishing and farming vil-

lage of about 100 people, 8 miles north of the coui.t.y town, 11 miles north of Sand-
f ( rd and 3J miles south of Port Maitland.

In 1915-16, the sum of $56.86 was expended in petty and emergent repairs to the

floor of the breakwater, which was damaged b.v iieavy seas.

SIGHT POINT.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

Sight Point, sometimes called Port Ban, Inverness county, is on the western
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coast of Cape Breton island, seven miles to the northward nf the eutrancu to ilabuu

harbour.

During a severe gale in November, 1915. the outer bloek of the breakwater, con-

structed during 1907-8, was wrecked and partly washed away and the sum of $100.10

was expended in saving a portion of the materials and in repairing tiie outer end of

the remaining work.

smith's cove.

Simth's Cove, Inverness county, is on the eastern shore of Smith's island, near its

northern end, and opposite to and distant about one mile from the town of Port Hood,

the shiretown of the county, situated on the mainland of the island of Cape Breton.

This cove was originally a good boat liarbour, but of late years it has been

gradually filling in with sand until it could not be entered at all, to the great incon-

venience of the fishermen, who were obliged to drag their boats over the beach for safety

during storms.

In order to relieve the situation, it was decided to open a channel into the cove,

?0 feet wide and to a depth of 8 feet at low water.

The government dredge Cape Breton No 6 commenced operations on September 4,

1914, and continued at inten-als until October 6 following, when, during a heavy

gale, the cut made was filled in again almost to the original depths, and the work was

suspended. During that period, 3,450 cubic yards in place of sand and gravel were

overcast, and 1,600 cubic yards, scow measure, were removed.

In order to prevent the sand from drifting into the cove, it was decided to con-

struct a small breakwater on the eastern side of its entrance, before resuming the

dredging. On January 19, 1915, instructions were received to expend the sum of $1,800

on the construction of this breakwater, 175 feet long and 12 feet wide, fully ballasted

and sheathed on all outer faces. The work was placed in hand at once, but owing to

the difficulty in obtaining the necessary materials, and to the inclemency of the weather,

of the amount authorized, the sum of $1,019.87 only could be expended by the end of

the fiscal year, and with this amount the construction of the cribwork proper, including

the ballast flooring, was completed and about half ballasted, leaving the balance of the

ballasting, the sheathing and the covering still to do to complete the work.

During the year 1915-16, the sum of $780.09 was expended by day labour in the

completion of the small breakwater commenced during 1914-15, on the eastern side of

Tlie entrance into the cove for the protection of the proposed channel.

The government dredge Cape Breton, No 6, was detailed for the dredging of a

channel into the cove, 200 feet long, 75 feet wide and to a depth of 10 feet at low water;

of a basin in the cove, 250 feet in length, 150 feet wide and to a depth of 8 feet at low

water, and to improve the depth of water on the western side of 11. A. Smith's and on

the eastern side of Joshua Smith's wharfs.

Dredging operations were commenced on September 15, 1915, and continued

until November 29 following, when the work was suspended owing to the necessity of

removing the dredge to Canso.

The work performed consisted in overcasting 10,373 cubic yards of material and in

the removal of 18,235 cubic yards in place of sand and gravel.

Tlie total amount of material removed by the dredge was 24,850 cubic yards, scow

measure, and as this quantity measured 18,235 cubic yards in place, the expansion

would appear to be about 36 per cent, whicli is abnormal, being about 10 per cent

larger than is usually found in dredging similar material. Tliis additional percentage

i< due to the shifting nature of the material, which was washed back into the cut, and

had to be removed a second time.

The work, on suspension of operations, was not quite completed, tin; full depths

proposed not having been reached over the whole areas, but as the depths obtained

were sufficient to meet requirements, the parties interested were fully satisfied witli tlio

rtsults obtained.
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Owing to the shifting nature of the sand along this shore, it is not expected that

the present depths will be maintained for any length of time. The breakwater built

in the eastern side of the channel has proved beneficial as far as it goes, but it will be

necessary in the near future to extend it.

SOVTII BAR.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

The South bar is situated on the southern side of Sydney harbour, at the entrance

to its south-western arm, about 5 miles from the city of Sydney.

During 1915-16, the sum of $9.50 was expended in replacing some of the stakes

placed along the beach to mark the western Hue of the government property.

SOUTH GUT.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1911.)

South gut, Victoria county, is the local name of the southern arm of the head of

St. Ann's harbour, on tie eastern coast of the island of Cape Breton.

The sum of $319.93 was expended, by day labour, during 1915-16, in raising, about

3 feet, the outer block of the work built during 1902-3, and which had settled about 2

feet into the muddy bottom since its construction,

f

SOUTH INGOXISH.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1914.)

Ingonish bay, Victoria county, is situated on the eastern coast of Cape Breton

island, about midway between Sydney harbour and cape North, and is divided into

North and South bays, "by Middle Head, a narrow and rocky neck of land, over 2

miles in length.

At the head of the vSouth bay is an extensive lake separated from the sea by a

beach, through which there formerly existed but a shallow channel.

During the year 1915-16, the sum of $2,499 was expended in procuring the balance

of the materials required for and in the construction and completion of a further

extension to the wharf, consisting of a cribwork block, 30 feet in length and 20 feet

in width on top, connected to the old work with a span, 15 feet in length and 20 feet

in width.

Ferry. ,

(This work is described in the annual report fur 1915.)

During 1903, a wharf, 160 feet in length and extending to 16 feet at low water,

was constructed near the ferry landing on the southern side of the harbour, near its

entrance. The wharf consists of abutment and three inner blocks which are 16 feet wide

and the outer block which forms the head is 30 by 30 feet ; all blocks are constructed

of round timber laid open-faced and the outer block has a creosoted timber sub-struc-

ture, and is close-sheathed on all outer faces.

On January 21, 1911, a contract was entered into for the construction of an exten-

sion to the wharf in the sum of $5,100. The work of construction was commenced on

October 18, 1911, and was satisfactorily completed and accepted on December 20,

following.

The extension consists of a span, S feet wide and 30 feet long, and of a cribwork

block, 24 feet in lengtJi on line of wharf and 40 feet long on the channel face. The
block consists of round timber cribwork creosoted to half tide, fully ballasted and

fendered and protected by close-sheathing on all outer faces. The depth along the

channel face, at low water of the new block, is 25 feet. Spring tides rise 4 feet.

19—10
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The covering in tlie section of the wharf built in 1903-4, particularly in the centre

where the traffic is heaviest, iiaving become weak from wear and tear, during 1915-16,

the sum of $77 was expended in placing new 2-inch planking over the old covering in

the centre of the wharf for a width of 12 feet, and extending over the whole length of

the original work.

SOUTH LAKE.

(Tiis work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

South Lake, Lakeville, is situated on the western shore of St. George's hay, about

midway between the entrance to Antigonish harbour and Cape George.

During the fiscal year 1915-16, the sum of $699.90 was expended in reconstructing

and reballasting' the outer 50 feet of the cribwork breakwater on the north side above

high water, and renewing the sheathing from the bottom of the work to the top of the

cap-timber at the outer end and for a distance of 110 feet inwards on each side with

creosoted and hardwood sheathing.

On the south side, the sum of $3-19.91 was expended in constructing an extension

25 feet in length and 15 feet in width to the pile, brush and stone work.

Work was in progress in July on the south side and in July and August on the

north side.

STONEIIURST.

Stonehurst, Lunenburg county, is situated about 41 miles, in an airline, in a

southeasterly direction from the town of Lunenburg through what is known as Tan-

ner's pass, and at the western extremity of this pass.

The work required is t.!ie dredging of a channel and mooring place for fishing

boats. Each year, the fishermen of the vicinity arc building larger boats and instal-

ling gasoline engines, necessitating more depth of water for mooring purposes. There

are about one hundred people interested in this improvement, the place being well

located and well sheltered. At present there are ten gasoline boats in the vicinity,

drawing from three to six feet of water, besides numerous smaller craft. Fishing is

the one and only industry, and the average catch per man is about $600 per annum,

which will greatly increase when the "dredging improvements have been completed.

During the season of 1915-16, dredge P.W.D. No. 15 was operated at a cost of

$738.85, the period of operation being from November 17 to December 7. The material

taken out consisted of mud, 2,109 yards, scow measurement, being removed or 1,553

yards, place measurement, which shows an expansion factor of 35-8 per cent. The

work done this year has a length of 466 feet, a width of 45 feet and an average depth

of cutting of 2 feet and was taken out to a depth of 6 feet below L.W.O.S.T. The work,

when completed, will have a length of 695 feet and a width of 145 feet, with a depth of

6 feet below L.W.O.S.T., 79,805 square feet yet remain to be dredged. No special diffi-

culties were met with in connection with the work, as the material was soft and the

harbour well sheltered. The probable duration of the improvement will be from four

to five years.

SlTMMF.RVnLI.E.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

Summerville, Hants county, is situated on the right or east bank of the Avon
river, about midway between Windsor, the county town of Hants, and the month of

the river, and about four miles south of Cheverie.

The work as it stands now has a width of 30 feet, for a distance of 250 feet, it

then runs off at a deflection angle of 74 degrees, for a distance of 35 feet with a width

of 34 feet, and from here runs parallel tu its first course for a distance of 50 feet and

width of 26 feet. There is a shed on the wharf, measuring 20 feet by 17 feet, and ice-

break on one of the outer corners.
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During the year 19ir.-10. the sum of $5.70 was expended in making minor urgent

repairs to the planking of the wharf.

Work done in Decemher.

SURRETTES ISLAND.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

Surrettes island, Yarmouth county, is one of the numerous archipelago lying off

the south coast of the county. It is a mile and a half long by about a quarter of a

mile wide and is separated from Sluice point, on the mainland, by a channel about 800

feet wide, through which ebb and flood tide flows with an alternating maximum current

of seven to eight knots per hour. The population of the island comprises about 250

people, almost exclusively engaged in fishing.

In 1915-16, the sum of $148.96 was expended in improving, by hand digging, the

boat channel between Surrettes island and Morris island, the improved channel

being about three quarters of a mile to the south-east of the little public wharf known

as Surrettes island wharf.

SYDNEY QUAHANTrNE STATION.

The quarantine station in Sydney harbour, is on the southern arm near Keating
Point, and about three-quarters of a mile from Point Edward, at the eastern extremity
of land lying between the south and west arms.

A wharf built by the department of Marine and Fisheries, and repaired and
extended in 1903-3, consists of a block-and-span structure extending 148 feet at low
water.

Spring tides rise 5 feet.

In 1903-4, the sum of $1,551.52 was expended in procuring creosoted timber and
other materials to be used in repairing and extending the wharf.

The old wharf having fallen into such a dilapidated condition, as to render its

reconstruction and extension inadvisable, the appropriation for 1904-5, was made for

expenditure in constructing a new wharf, using materials procured in 1903-4. During
the year, $1,667.66 was expended in procuring the additional materials required in the

constructionjof a wharf to extend 173 feet to lOj feet at low, or 15J feet at high water,

consisting of an inner and four intermediate blocks, 14 feet in width, and an outer

block 20 feet in line of work by 40 feet, and in constructing the inner and three inter-

mediate blocks.

During the fiscal year 1905-6, the sum of $1,098.97 was expended in completing

the work in progress in 1904-5.

This wharf, besides being used in connection with the quarantine station, is also

used as a port of call for the ferry steamers plying between Sydney and North Sydney,

and is a great convenience to the inhabitants of the district of Point Edward.
During 1915-16, the sum of $302.97 was expended in raising and repairing the

head of the wharf, which having settled, made it dangerous for the ferry-steamers to

approach it during high water.

TATAMAGOUCHE.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1914.)

Tatamagouche, Colchester county, is an important town, on the Northumberland
strait, 30 miles from Truro. It is also quite an important station on the Intercolonial

short line running from Oxford Junction to Pictou.

East Side.

In the year 1888, the department built a small wharf on the eastern side of the
river, at a point nearly opposite the mouth of the French river, where it empties into

19—lOi
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Tatamagouche bay. about half a mile below the village. This wharf was 96 feet long

by 20 feet wide. In 1900, the sum of ^i^-iG was spent in repairs and renewals. In

1912-13, the sum of $886.1.5 was spent in rebuilding the wharf which was, by then, in

S very dilapidated condition. The present dimensions are 93 feet long, 20 feet wide,

with an ell 9 by 20 feet, giving a face length of 29 feet. Repairs were made to the

approach.

West side.

In the year 1905-6, the sum of $1,016.43 was expended in beginning the construc-

tion of a cribwork wharf, and in 1906-7 the wharf was completed. It consists of a

cribwork-wall built over and around an ancient structure on the same side of the river

as the village of Tatamagouche. The completed work is 97 feet long, 62 feet wide and

at the outer end 4 feet high, giving a depth of 12 feet of water

In the year 1915-16, the sum of $387.75 was spent in replanking the top of the

wharf and placing new stringers, cross logs and fenders.

Work begun September 20 and completed October 23.

THE H.\ULOVER.

The Haulover is a boat canal, or channel with cribwork sides, 1,208 feet in length,

the channel being 6 feet deep. This channel crosses an isthmus which separates Port

LaTour harbour from Negro harbour. It is 16 miles in a direct line south-southeast

of the town of Shelbume and 14 miles northeast from Cape Sable. This cutting was

made many years ago by the inhabitants, aided by the provincial government, in order

to procure a clear passage from one harbour to the other, effecting a saving of from 7 to

10 miles, and also avoiding the dangerous passage around Blanche point and the

neighbouring shoals and ledges. In 1890-91, this department expended $3,000 in

rebuilding the whole work. It was deepened and widened, and walls on both sides

were constructed of round-log stone-filled cribwork. These cribwork walls are 8 feet

wide on top whilst the channel itself is 12 feet 6 inches wide at the bottom, 14 feet

wide at the top. Several times since, repairs and renewals have been undertaken, as

the channel was, from time to time, filling up, and the cribwork in places becoming

weakened. During the past fiscal year, $698.77 was expended in deepening the channel

and making repairs necessary to the cribwork. Some 50 logs were replaced in the

cribwork, about 15 new fenders were put in, whilst we found that the approaches or

mouths of this channel were obstructed by a number of rocks, which could be removed

at a comparativel,v small cost. About 500 tons of stone were removed from the two

approaches. Besides this, there was also a lot of sand, muck and eel-grass removed
from the channel itself, amounting to about 200 cubic yards. Work was commenced
October 6 and completed on the 11th November, 1915. Spring tides rise here 8 feet,

neap 51 feet.

THK .SQUAM.

The Sciuain, Lunenburg county, is a cluuincl l>ctwccn Moser's island, on the south,

and Wolfe's island on the north, of the La Have island group about fourteen miles

southerly from the town of Bridgewater. The object of the work here is to ))rovidc a

shorter and safer route for fishermen around the islands.

During the year 1913-14, 1,250 cubic yards umd were removed, by hand dredging,

at a cost of $499.47.

During the fiscal year 1915-16, 1,280 cubic yards, place measurement, of mud,

were removed, having an expansion factor of 30 per cent, giving 1,664 yards, scow

measurement. Work was done by hand dredging and day labour at a cost of $495.91

The work was widened 10 feet for its length of 'M\(t feet, the depth of cutting being

13-6 feet. Work was commen<"ed OctoluT 4, and susiiendeil October 23, on account

of the roughncu« of the wcnther.
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The work remaining to be done consists of excavating, along the whole length of

the channel, to a depth of 5 feet, and depth of ii feet, which, when completed, will

give a channel having a total length of 960 feet, a width of 30 feet, and a depth of 4

feet below L.W.O.S.T. It is difficult to state what the duration of the improvement

will be, but it is estimated that if .$250 could be spent annually the channel would be

kept open for navigation.

TdE THRl'M. '

Upper Port La Tour is a small tishing settlement, situated on the shore of Negro

Harbour, a distance of seven miles from Port Clyde.

During the past fiscal year, we expended $895.66 in constructing, in different

fashion, the central portion of this work so as to make the protection sufficiently strong

to resist all local conditions.

In order to make it absolutely safe, it was decided to replace the fence with a

beach of strong form, of continuous eribwork, which is used in many places. The 300

feet constructed was at a cost of $8&5.66, using a large part of the material which was

already on hand. T^e eribwork protection wall is 8 feet in width. This work was

commenced June 4 and completed July 17, 1916. Spring tides rise here 8 feet, neap

5i feet.

THE \VH.\RVE.S.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1914.)

The Wharves, Lunenburg county, is a small settlement in the district of Cherry

Hill, situated in an exposed position on the Atlantic coast, 5i miles west of Petite

Riviere. The population of the district is 200, chiefly engaged in fishing.

Near this breakwater there is a narrow neck of land through which the sea used

to wash and endanger the boats lying in the harbour back of the breakwater. During
1915-16, the sum of $500 was expended in the construction of a beach protection across

this low lying piece of ground. This work is constructed partially of stone and partially

of stone-filled eribwork, the eribwork portion being 65 feet in length. The work may
be described as follows : 36 feet of stonework at the sea end is 15 feet wide : adjoining
this is the eribwork portion, 65 feet long by 12 J feet wide, with an average height of

5 feet; next 80 feet is of stonework, 12i feet wide, and a 33-foot stone portion, 15

feet wide, completes the work.
Work commenced October 16 and completed November 6.

THRKK FATIIO-M llAUBOUR.

(This work is described in the annual report for 19il3.)

Three Fathom harbour, Halifax county, is an irregular shaped inlet of the sea,

about one mile in maximum length, from north to south, and from one-quarter to

three-quarters of a mile wide, situated about fifteen miles to the east of Halifax
harbour.

During the fiscal year 1915-16, the sum of $1,799.96 was expended in repairs to

the protection work. The upper four feet of the structure, for 336 feet in length,

was torn down and rebuilt.

Work commenced August 4, and completed November 20.

TIDNISII.

Tidnish is situated on the Tidnish river, about IJ miles east of the boundary line

between New Brunswick and Nova Scotia. In 1890-91, this wharf was constructed on
the south side of the river's mouth. It is built of round log stonefilled eribwork, with

a batter of one to twelve on all faces. It is 245 feet in length, the first 200 feet being
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20 feet wide on top, whilst tlie outer 45 feet is 42 feet, and a height at the outer end

of 14 feet. In the fiscal year 1902-3, this work was repaired at a cost of $1,440.72.

During the past fiscal year, $413.40 was expended in repairing this work.

The work was rebuilt for a height of 5 feet, the planking, stringers, etc., being

all renewed. This work was commenced May 1 and completed May 29, 1915. Spring

tides rise here 7 feet, neap 5 feet.

TROUT COVE.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

Trout cove, Digby county, is on the Bay of Fundy coast of Digby neck, midway

between Digby gut and Petit Passage, or about 18 miles from each. The settlement,

at and near the cove, which is called Centreville, has a population of about 400, engaged

in fishing- and farming.

In 1915-16, the sum of $183.S9 was expended in emergent repairs to the floor of

the ell of the new breakwater, which had been damaged by heavy seas, and the tem-

porary bulkheadiug of the outer end of the old brealcwater, which was in danger of

total destruction by the winter storms.

UPPER PORT LATOUR.

Upper Port Latour is a small village jvith about three hundred people, situated

two miles northeast of Port Latour proper. In the construction of this wharf, which

"was begun in the fiscal year 1898-99. and the last expenditure made in 1903, $3,499.85

was expended. During the past fiscal year, $701.31 was expended in effecting necessary

repairs. This wharf is 310 feet in length, consisting of a rock bank, 38 feet in length,

25 feet in width; 8 cribs, 18 feet in length, separated from each other

by spans each 13 feet in length, and an additional span 15 feet in

length and a crib 22 feet in length. With the exception of the last crib and

span, the crib wharf is 20. feet wide, the latter portion having a frontage of 57 feet.

It has a height, at the outer end. of 18 feet. The head of the wharf consists of a crib

22 by 37. Upon the outside of the head of this wharf is a email freight shed constructed

by this department at a later date. During the past fiscal year, the work performed

consisted of the renewal of the entire planking, stringers and guard rails. The outside

corner was buttressed so as to avoid future damage, and about 30 fenders were replaced

along the sides. It was commenced October 1 and finished October 25, 1915.

Spring tides rise here 9 feet, neap 7 feet.

UPPER PROSPECT.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

Upper Prospect, Halifax county, is a thriving little village of about 450 inhabitants,

wholly dependent upon the fishing industry as a means of livelihood. It is situated

about 23 miles west of Halifax, by stage, on the Atlantic coast.

Wharf.

During 1915-16, $502.20 was spent in placing new fenders on the face of the wharf,

replanking a portion of the top, grading tlio approach and making some general repairs

to the shed.

Work commenced November 5 and completed Decenibcr 12.

Breakwater.

During the fiscal year 1915-16, the sum of $382.75 was expended in building a

small block as a protection to the beach near the shore end of the breakwater, 20 feet

in length and 8 feet in width, with an average height of 6 feet. A large hole in the
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approach, back of this block, which had been washed out during heavy freshets, was

filled in, sheathing placed along 50 feet in length of the breakwater from the shore

end out, new fenders placed and general repairs made to the planking. The present

dimensions of this structure are: length 202 feet, width 30 feet, with an ell running

off at a deflection angle of 60 degrees, 68 feet in length along the seaward face and

30 feet wide.

Work commenced November 5 and completed March 31.

vogler's cove.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

Vogler's Cove, Lunenburg county, is an important fishing and farming district,

situated on an inlet of Port Medway harbour, 15 miles west of the mouth of the La Have

river and 20 miles, by stage, from Bridgewater. The population is about 400.

Wharf.

During 1915-16, the sum of $246.87 was expended in rebuilding the walls of the

approach. The top of the wharf was repaired in several places and the beach cleared of

rocks to make a safer boat landing, and poles were placed every 4 feet for a distance

of 40 feet and width of 50 feet.

Work commenced August 25 and completed December 3.

Breahwater.

During 1914-15, the sum of $1,057.88 was expended in the purchase of material for

the construction of a breakwater and landing skids about a mile distant from the wharf.

During 1915-16, the construction was carried out, with an expenditure of $999.10.

A skidway was built for the use of the lobster fishermen, during the winter months, and

a breakwater 135 feet long, by 15 feet wide, and 7 feet high, was also completed, as a

protection to the skidway. A boat shed, 25 by 35 feet, and a capstan for pulling up the

boats were constructed. The skidway is 100 feet long by 20 feet wide, built at the side

of the wharf.

Work commenced June 9 and completed July 28.

WALLACE.

Wallace, Cumberland county, is situated on the Northumberland strait at the

upper part of what is known as Wallace bay. It is a straggling farming settlement,

the population on both sides of the harbour being from 1,500 to 1,600.

The shipping at this port is of a variable nature. The Wallace sand-stone or free-

stone is famous on this continent, and forms the chief industry of this port. Late in

the winter of 1915, a request was made for dredging in order to afford sufficient water

to permit scows and tugs to be loaded at what is locally termed the Quarry Wharf or

the eastern-most wharf. In compliance with this request, the dredge Northumberland,

which had been operating at the East river for the past few seasons, was sent there,

commencing work on the 31st May, and concluding the same on the 19th June, 1915.

During that time, 19,444 cubic yards of material were removed.

The total area covered by the dredging was 89,400 square feet, making an average

cut of 4-9 feet. Most of the material removed consisted of mud and clay with a con-

siderable quantity, probably 10 per cent, of old oyster shells. The total length of the

cutting was 830 feet. In front of the ballast wharf, a basin 260 by 160 feet was
excavated. The next 160 feet, in a westerly direction, was varied in width from 35 to

75 feet, the remaining 410 feet was 75 in width, which carried the cutting 40 feet

beyond the western side of the public wharf. Besides this, there was also excavated a

basin 110 feet, along the eastern side of the public wharf, with a width of 75 feet.

This work is more of a temporary nature and not liable to prove of permanent benefit.

Spring tides rise 7 feet, neap 4§ feet.
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WASIIABUCK CENTRE.

(This work is described iu the annual report for 1914.)

Washabuck, Victoria county, is a district ou the south side of the eastern end of

St. Patrick's channel^ an arm of the Little Bras P'Or lake, and extends about 6 miles

along the shore. As the name implies, Washabuck Centre, is situated near the centre

of the district.

During 1915-16, the sum of $1,100 was expended in the renewal of the top of the

wharf, built during 1903-4, consisting of floor-stringers, covering, cap-timbers and
upper fenders.

WEDGEPORT.

Wedgeport (Tusket Wedge), Yarmouth county, is the name given "to a peninsula

3 miles long, north and south, by i of a mile wide, situated between Goose bay and

the mouth of the Tusket river. The settlement on the isthmus and peninsula, 12 miles

south-east from the town of Yarmouth, comprises a population of about 2,000 people,

engaged in fishing and farming. The place was incorporated iu 1909 under the name
of Wedgeport.

A public wharf was begun here about the year 1879, by the provincial government,

and finished by the Public Works department in 1884, at a cost of $850. It was a

pile-work structure, 324 feet long, 30 feet wide and 13 feet high at the outer end.

In 1910-11-12, the department expended the sum of $7,247.31, in extending the

work a further distance of 210 feet, in order to reach the channel.

In 1912-13, the sum of $1,709.80 was expended in completing the work. At the

outer end, the wharf is now 25 feet high, carrying 12 feet of water at L.W.O.S.T.

In 1915-16, the sum of $297.68 was expended in repairs and renewals to the outer

50 feet in length of the pier, which was damaged by fire on the night of 22nd September,

1915.

WEST CHEZZETCOOK.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

West Chezzetcook, Halifax county, is situated on the Western side, on Chezzet-

cook inlet, which lies 16 miles east of Halifax.

Breakwater.

During the fiscal year 1915-16, the sum of $999.86 was expended in repairing 445

feet in length of the breakwater, by 15 feet in width. 4,264 lineal feet of timber has

been secured under this year's appropriation and is on hand for the work during nest

year.

Work commenced October 1 and completed in ^farch.

Wharf.

During the fiscal year 1915-16, the sum of $699.93 was expended in building a

cribwork-Mock ell to the wharf, measuring 25 feet by 25 feet, with an average heiaht

of 20 feet. The wharf as completed, for a di.stance of 100 feet, has a width of 20 feet

and the remaining 112 feet has a width of 25 feet, with an ell 25 by 25 feet, giving a

face length of 50 feet.

Work commenced September 1 and completed in March.

WEST PUBXICO.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1914.)

West Pubnieo, Yarmouth county, is situated 30 miles southwest of Yarmouth.

Pubnico harbour is about 6 miles long, frfim the mouth to head, lying due north and

south, and 3 of a mile to a mile and a half wide.



I

nr.ponr of rnr. cjuef fxgineer 153

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

In 1915-16, the sum nf $r!TT.64 was expended in extensive renewals and repair? to

the shoreward 100 feet in length of the upper portion of the pier, including covering,

plank. fTuards and strinjrers.

WHYCOCOlfAOir.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

Whycocomaph, Inverness county, is a village on the north side of a bay of the

same name at the head of St. Patrick's channel, an arm of the Bras D'Or lakes.

During 1915-16 the sum of $39.55 was expended in repairs to and renewal of

covering to the wharf.

WINDSOR.

Windosr, Hants county, is an incorporated town situated at the head of Minas
basin, on the Avon river. It is a station on the Dominion Atlantic Railway and the

terminus of the Midland branch of this railway. It is 46 miles west from Halifax

with a population of 3,500. In the neighbourhood are extensive gj'psum quarries,

from which about 120,000 tons are annually exported to the United Stares, and two or

three million feet of lumber are also shipped from here each year, by water.

Since the fiscal year 1908-09, it has been found necessary nearly every year to

make an expenditure for the removal, by hand dredging, of mud from in front of the

government wharf. The expenditures made since this date have been as follows:

—

1908-9 $5,046 2a

1910-11 2,.538 00

1912-13 3,000 00

1913-14 2,520 00

1914-15 3,000 00

191.5-16 2,085 29

The amount removed each year varies from 3,000 to 5,000 cubic yards.

During the season of 1915-16, the sum of $2,072.79 was expended in removing

3,838-5 cubic yards, place measurement, the unit price of the work being 54 cents per

cubic yard. $12.50 additional was expended in digging out the shoes of vessels, and

some logs which were stuck in the mud. The area excavated was 620 feet in length

by 90 feet in width, the cutting varying from to 3-8, or an average of about 110
feet. Work was done by sluicing, contractor being W. W. Shaw of Windsor. The
period of operations was from May 26 to August 12. This improvement only lasts for

a season and has to be done again each year. The chief difficulty encountered is the

fact that the work can only be done when the tide is out.

Whwrf.

During the year 1915-16, the sum of $130.48 was e.xpcnded in tearing down the

shoreward portion of the work to a depth of 3 feet and length of 40 feet, over a width

of 20 feet, and rebuilding with new cribwork, filling in back of cribwork with earth

and replanking the top of the cribwork.

Work commenced vSeptember 1 and completed September 21.

WRECK COVE.

Wreck Cove, A'^ietoria county, is at the mouth of the brook of the same name, on

the northeast coast of Cape Breton island, 20 miles north from St. Ami's harbour and

ten miles south from South bay, Ingonish.

A landing place for boats, near the mouth of the brook, was rendered unsafe by the

diversion of the stream and the opening of the .second outlet.
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During 1890-1, the sum of $700, together with $200 paid by the locality, were

expended by the department in the construction of a brush and stone dam, to confine

the stream to its old channel and to restore the landing place to its original condition.

The improvement proved successful, but as the stone in the dam had been disturbed

in places and settled in others, permitting of the water, during freshets, to run over the

low portions of the dam, during the fiscal year ended March 31, 1907, the sum of $500

was expended in raising and repairing the dam, and in extending it a distance of 100

feet; the course of the brook was also straightened above the dam by cutting away a

point of the bank which threw the force of the water on to the dam.
During the year 1915-16, the sum of $749.02 was expended in raising and repairing

the existing dam with brush and stone and in extending it for a further distance

of about 200 feet down stream.

YARMOUTH.

Yarmouth, Yarmouth county, is an important town, with a population of about
fi.OOO, situated on the western end of the province of Nova Scotia. It is the terminus

ff the D. A. Ry. (now C. P. Ry.), from Halifax 217 miles, and also of the steamer

service with Boston, 240 miles.

In 1915-16, the Maritime Dredging and Construction Co., of St. John, N.B., under

contract with the department, removed 14,907 cubic yards of fine muddy sand, scow

measurement.

4,000 cubic yards at 35 cents $1,400 00

10,907 cubic yards at 30 cents 3,272 10

$4,672 10

Towed 4i miles, from the dock of the Gateway Fish Company and from Amiro's
point. These two works could not be separated in quantities, because the dredging in

the dock needed only to be carried to a depth of from 4 to 11 feet, below L.W.O.S.T.,

while the dredging at Amiro's point had to be carried to a depth of from 15 to 20 feet,

below L.W.O.S.T., therefore, as the tide receded, the dredge had to move from the dock

to the point. The work was performed between the 2nd of July and the 1st of Septem-
ber, 1915.

The object of the dredging in the Gateway Fish Co's. dock was to enable schooners

to lie alongside and load and di_scharge during a longer period of time during each tide.

The object of the dredging at Amiro's point was to facilitate the entry of schooners

and other craft from the main channel into the secondary channel and approach to the

Gateway Fish Co's. wharf and others.

The dredging in the Gateway Fish Co's. dock is comprised within a length of 300

feet by a width of 70 to 90 feet, the depth of cut varying from 3 to 8 feet.

The dredging done at Amiro's point is comprised within a length of 350 feet by a

maximum width of 80 feet, the deptli of cut being about 20 feet, and the material in

both places a very fine, slightly muddy, sand.

The dredged areas will fill up by deposit of silt at a slow rate, and should not

require redredging for 10 to 15 years.

YARMOUTH BAR.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

Yarmouth bar, Yarmouth county—Yarmouth harbour lies about NNE. and SSW.
(true), and from the upper wharfs to the mouth of the liarbour is nearly 4 miles. At
about the middle of its length and for a distance of about tliree quarters of a mile, it

is protected on its western side from the main waters of the Bay of Fundy by a beach
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of gravel and shingle, connecting Cape Fourchu, an island, or more precisely a

peninsula, with Stoney point, the southern extremity of the mainland, forming the

western side of the harbour.

In 1915-16, the sum of $6,045.12 was expended; $1,914.08 in extensive repairs and
renewals to the beach protection, several pieces, from 20 to 40 feet long, being taken'

down for half the width of the work and rebuilt from the bottom. The floor was
repaired and renewed in many places; $4,091.83 in the extension of the groyne project-

ing from the beach protection, begun last year, the extension being 70 feet long, from
24 to 29 feet wide, on top, and 20 feet high; $39.21 in emergent repairs to the west end
of the beach protection work, which was seriously damaged by a heavy storm in

January. Permanent repairs could not be made owing to weather conditions.

Dredging.
m

In 1'915-16, the Maritime Dredging and Construction Co., of St. John, under

contract with the department, removed 16,002 cubic yards at 30 cents per yard

($4.S00.G6), of very fine, slightly muddy, sand, scow measurement, from the secondary

channel leading from the main channel to the wharf of Messrs. Parker, Eakins Com-
pany, at and near the eastern end of Yarmouth bar. The dredging was performed

betweou 14th July and 19th August, 1915.

The dredging performed is comprised within a length of 600 feet, and a width of

from 80 to 150 feet, and was carried to a depth of 3 to 6 feet below L.W.O.S.T., the

depth of cut varying from 4 to 9 feet. The normal range of spring tides is 15-24 feet,

of neaps about 12 feet.

The dredged area will fill up by deposit of silt and sand at a rapid rate and will

proliably require redredging within 7 or 8 years.

PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND.

ALBERTON.

Alberton is situated on the northeast coast of the island in Cascumpec harbour.

The place is about 55 miles, by rail, north-west of Summerside. To provide greatly

needed shipping facilities, the department, in 1914, took over the control of the old

structure, the property of the local government. This wharf is in the shape of a " T ",

having an approach 20 feet wide, 463 feet long and a pier head 130 feet long by 35

feet wide.

During summer and fall of 1914, the reconstruction of the approach was effected

at a cost of $1,983.07. During the present season the pier head was reconstructed.

Creosoted bearing-piles were driven; these waled and capped and the top floor

stringered and planked, while the sides were fender-piled. Work was commenced June
4 and continued up to completion on November 24, the total outlay for the season

heing $2,971.58, while the entire cost of reconstructing the wharf as represented by
the outlay for the two years, 1914 and 1915, is $4,954.65.

AXNANDALE.

Annandale is situated on the north side of the Grand river. King's county, imme-
diately within its entrance into Boughton bay, on the east coast of the island. The
river is navigable for large vessels for a distance of 4 miles above Annandale, and for

smaller vessels a distance of 7 miles. It traverses and affords shipping facilities for

& large and fertile farming district.
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Of late year?;, the sand bar. about one mile out from the river's entranee, \va3

found to have shoaled until it only carried from 4 to 6 feet at low water sprintr tides,

which here rise ."> feet. To facilitate the fall shipping in 1914, temporary relief was
given by the departmental dredare Monfaaup, making a fifty foot cut, carrying- about
10 feet of water on the bar, the centre of the cut being directly in line with the leading
range lights.

During the present season, the work thus started was continued, according to a
general plan for the improvement of the river, lioth here and immediately within the
harbour, where some shoals were impeding navigation. Work was commenced June
1 and continued to October 9, 1915, during which t'me 37,600 cubic yards, scow measure-
ment, of mud and sand were removed. The work effected was, first, a channel over
the bar, 80 feet in width, 1,200 feet long, carrying 10 feet at low water spring tides

;

second, cleaning up of approach to the wharf for a distance of 1,200 feet, the channel
formed being from 100 to 150 feet in width, and last, cleaning out of the middlo
ground, which had formed in the channel just above Annandale, the depth given being
10 feet, with width of 100 feet for a length of 700 feet.

In order to facilitate the work in cleaning up of approach to wharf it was neces-
sary to overcast 500 cubic yards of material, 400 of which were afterwards redredged
and seowed away. The permanency of the depth made over the bar is very doubtful.

as the material dredged was mostly all sand of a shifting nature.

BELFAST.

Belfast is situated on the south side of Orwell bay, about one mile north from the
Village of Eldon. Its construction, dimensions, etc., are fully described in depart-
mental report of 1905-06. While the pier-head was reconstructed and thoroughly
strengthened during summer of 1914, some minor damage was done to the covering and
warehouse by the extraordinary high tide and storm of September 27, 1915. To effect

the temporary repairs necessary to carrying on fall shipping, work was commenced
November 2 and completed November 19, at a cost of $71.51.

BELLE RIVER.

Belle River is situated on the south side of the island about four miles from Wood
Islands and six miles east of the entrance to Pinette harbour. The harbour consists

of breakwaters along the beaches on either side of the river's entrance; that on the
north side now having a length of 450 feet. Within the harbour are three small ship-

ping piers, one of which was constructed by the department in 1912.

As the works were originaly started many years before Confederation, some of the
older parts require reconstruction from time to time. Such was the ease during thc
past summer, practically the whole original portion of the .south breakwater, having
a length of 210 feet, being rebuilt; new wall timbers, ties, fenders, ballast, floor-

stringers and covering being put in and the work left in good condition. Work was
commenced June 1 and continued up to completion on October 19. The total cost of

the repairs was $2,649.51.

In addition to the above a small warehouse 18 by 24 feet with 9-foot posts, was
constructed, work starting August 17 and finishing September 10, at a cost of $222.22.

BONSHAW.

Bonshaw is situated at the head of navigation for small boats on the West river,

about 15 miles west of Charlottctown. On the upper stretch of the river, navigation
has been greatly impeded by the presence ef stumps, snags, logs, slabs, etc. For
improvement, the removal from the channel of as many of these obstructions as was
possible, by hand, was first undertaken in 191;'., that done being considered so beneficial

as to warrant continuance in 1914, and further carried on during the past season.
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Work was commenced June 9 and eoiitiiiued, us tide and weather permitted, until July

16, during- which 'time 735 snags, logs, etc., that interfered with navigation, were

removed from the channel. The cost of the season's work amounted to $167.50. The

total expenditure at the place for the three years is $787.58.

BlilDflETOWX.

The village of Bridgetown is .situated at the head of navigation on the Grand or

Boughton river, Kings county. It is surrounded by a rich agricultural district,

interested in the improvement of the river as a means of transportation for surplus

farm produce, and import of coal, limestone and general merchandise. The upper 4,000

feet of the river being very shoaly and difficult to navigate, improvements were com-

menced by the departmental dredge Montague. Work commenced October 16, on a cut

75 feet wide, to carry 9 to 10 feet at low water spring tides. The quantity involved in

connection with improvements is estimated at 59,000 cubic yards, scow measurement,

of which 21,0W cubic yards were removed up to Xovember 2-1, when operations were

suspended, owing to freezing over of the river. The work done to that date having a

length of 2,400 feet and width of 55 feet, carrying a depth of 10 feet. It is intended to

resume the work on opening of navigation next spring.

BRIDKXELL.

Brudenell is situated near the head of navigation, on the Brudenell river, about 3J
miles west of Georgetown, and about 2 miles southward from Cardigan station, on the

Georgetown branch of the Prince Edward Island Railway. As the wharf, the property

of the local government, was an old structure, allowed to get out of repair, it had become
impassable, and, being the only one iiv vicinity, its entire reconstruction has been

undertaken by the department. The wharf has a length of 274 feet, consisting of
approach. 244 feet long. 20 feet wide, and a pier head, 30 feet by 30 feet. The founda-
tion is formed of pole-work with close-face square-timber superstructure, the whole
solidly filled with ballast, and roadway of approach to be formed with broken stone and
gravel, while the pier head is floor-stringered and planked. Commencement of opera-

tions were delayed until September 15, owing to delay in procuring suitable material.

The work, however, from above date was carried on continuously up to December 31,

when nearing completion, had to be suspended owing to weather conditions; that
remaining to be done consists of grading of roadway approach, etc., estimated to cost

approximately $.500. The total expenditure during the season *as $3,096.44.

C.\rE TRAVERSE.

Cape Traverse is situated on the Northumberland straits shore of the island, at

tlie terminus of the Cape Traverse branch of the Prince Edward Island Railway, and
about 2i miles to the eastward of site of car-feri-y dock.

The wharf, an old structure, was built by the Provincial Government in 1869,

taken over and rebuilt by the Railway department in 1885, and abandoned by it in
"

1895, repaired by this department in 1907, and at different times since, as occasion
required. It now has a length of 1,200 feet, with width of 32 feet. During the past

summer, repair of 100-foot section of the north wall, cross-ties, stringers and plank-
ing was effected, work starting May 2'6, completed August 7, at a cost of $1,335.55.

CARDI(J.\S RR-ER.

South.

Cardigan River, (South) is situated on the south side and near the mouth of the

Cardigan river, about IJ miles, by land, north of Georgetown, and 6 miles by water.

It was originally constructed by the Provincial Government many years ago, and being
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allowed to become out of repair and impassable, it was taken over and reconstructed
by the department, as fully set forth in departmental report for 1914-15.

During the present season, some washout of the roadway having been caused by
high storm tide of September 27, its repair was efFected by making up with broken
stone and gravel. AVork was started iNTovember 9 and completed November 19 at a

cost of $99.37.

CHAPEL POINT.

Chapel point is situated on the south side of the Grand river. King's county,
about 3 miles above its entrance into Boughton bay. The wharf was originally built by
the government in 1884, since when it has required considerable expenditure, from
time to time, to keep it in a passable state for traffic. The work has a length of 308
feet, comprising approach, 282 feet long, 22 feet wide, and a pier head, 26 feet long by
29 feet wide. The work is constructed of close-face square-timber crib solidly filled

with ballast, the roadway of approach being formed of broken stone and gravel; the

pier head was reconstructed in 1909 by driving creosoted bearing jailes, these waled,

capped and the top floor-stringered and planked.

During the present season, some temporary repairs were efFected to a former arch,

which had been filled with poles ; these having settled, were made up and roadway
repaired, while general repair to the covering of the pier-head was effected where
required. Work was started July 19 and completed July 30, at a cost of $207.65.

CHARLOTTETOWN.

Charlottetown, the capital of Prince Edward Island, is a city advantageously

situated on the north bank of the Hillsborough river, a short distance within the

entrance, and at a point where the deepest water approaches nearest the shore; the

wharfs, however, require being built out some distance to reach the edge of the channel;

so that dredging is required from time to time to render their sides and docks of service.

During the season, some improvement of the harbour front was effected by the

departmental dredge Prince Edward, operating first at the Prince street wharf, where

shipping berth and approach to boating house was formed, having a width of 60 feet by

about 160 feet in length, now carrying 6 feet at low water spring tides. Work was

started June 16 and completed July 3, 3,225 cubic yards, scow, of mud being removed.

Owing to lack of depth to float plant on inner end of berth, it was necessary to overcast

200 cubic yards of material to facilitate the work, this was afterwards redredged and

scowed away.

The dredge was then removed to Pownal wharf, where some cleaning out of the

cut on the wesrt side of the wharf was done, while a berth 60 to 80 feet wide, with

length of 275, was cleaned up to 16 feet at low water spring tides on outer part, the

inner jvortion grading up to 10 feet. Work was commenced July 6 and completed

September 2, 9,175 cubic yards, scow, of soft mud being removed. During progress of

the work it was found necesary to overcast 600 cubic yards of material to obtain

floatation for plant; this was afterwards redredged and scowcd away.

Work at the railway wharf, forming berth CO feet wide. 345 feet long, carrying 12

feet at low water spring tides, and one imrawliately inward, 50 feet wide, 275 feet long,

grading up to 8 feet at inner end, was started November 16, there being removed up to

7th December, when work was suspended for the season, 5,350 cubic yards, scow

measurement, of soft mud. It is proposed carrying this work through to completion

immediately on opening of navigation next season.

Before dismantling the dredge for winter, two days work was authorized to be

undertaken in connection with extension of berth west side of Ilogan's wharf; this to

accommodate vessels engaged in the lumber business. During December 11 and 12,.
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250 cubic yards, scow measurement, of brick, clay and shelly rock, were removed in

lenstlieninpc berth 30 feet, having width of 35 feet, to a depth of 9 feet at low water

spring ,tides.

Marine Slip.

Contract for dredging approach, carrying 20 feet at low water spring tides, and
feat to rock, grading from 25| up to 0, for proposed slip-way, was awarded to Mr. V. T.

Bartram, of Toronto, March 23, 1914, for the removal of 130,000 cubic yards, place

measurement, of sand and mud, at 28 cents per cubic yard. Work was not commenced
until October, when, by the time operations were suspended for season, December 16,

only 48,770 cubic yards, place measurement, had been removed. Work on the balance
was resumed April 20, 1915, but again suspended July 3, owing to the overturning and
sinking of the operating dredge; 41,366 cubic yards, place measurement, being removed
and 851-4 cubic yards overcast, costing at contract price $12,120.19. No furtjier work
has since been done, a balance, therefore, of approximately 40,000 cubic yards, place
measurement, still remains to be removed in order to complete the contract.

DAENLEY BASIN.

Darnley basin is situated on the north coast of the island, near eastern side of the
entrance to Malpeque harbour. It has a length of two miles by three-quarters of a

mile in width, carrying a depth of 15 feet at low water spring tides, excepting at

southern end and jiear entrance to Baltic creek. The district surrounding contains
a poijulation of about 800, engaged principally in fishing and agriculture. During
fishing season, some forty boats, most of them gasoline motor, utilize the basin and
give direct employment to about 100 men, tlie value of the fish landed approximating
$30,000. Owing to the shoal-depth carried at the southern end of basin, only very
light-draft boats could reach shelter, the larger craft being forced to anchor in the

basin, exposed to severe storms, which cause frequent loss. To make a shelter above
the bridge available to all, the departmental dredge Pownal commenced operations

May 11, on a cut 2,250 feet long, with width of 40 feet, carrying 5 to 6 feet at low
water spring tides, which was satisfactorily completed on August 14, the total amount
of material removed in connection therewith being 10,175 cubic yards, scow, of prin-

cipaly stiff oyster mud. To facilitate the work, it was necessary to overcast 10,500

cubic yards of material, 4,800 of which were redredged and afterwards scowed away.
Place measurement surveys give an expansion factor of 31 per cent as compared
with scow measurement.

FRANKI.YN POINT.

Frauklyn Point, opposite the entrance to Charlottetown harbour, is situated on
the west bank of the North river, near its confluence with the West and East rivers,

A wharf, having ferry accommodations was constructed by the department in 1913
' and 1914, having a length of 540 feet, with two guide piers, 115 feet long, forming,

a ferry dock. As the wharf only extends out to 10 feet of water at low water spring

tides, and this at the outer end only, it was necessary to provide shipping berths along

the outer sides of the guide piers by dredging. For this purpose, the departmental
dredge Prince Edward conmienced operations October 18, on berths 120 feet long by
60 wide, each to carry 10 feet at low water spring tides. Work was completed Novem-
ber 12; 4,250 cubic yards, scow measuremient, of mud, clay and boulders being
removed.

GEORGETOWN.

Georgetown harbour is situated on the south-west side of Cardigan bay, about
three miles within, or to the north-west, from Panmure Head, which is distant 9

miles to the northward from Cape Bear. It is the finest harbour in the southern
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part of the gulf, excepting Charlottetown, having depth of water and space sufficient

for the largest ships. The rise of ordinary spring tides heing only 5 feet is a great
disadvantage as compared with Charlottetown, but. on tlie other hand, the ice does
not. in general, form in it so soon in the fall liy several weeks, and breaks up earlier

in the spring.

Georgetown, the shirctown of King's county, is situated on the north shore of

the harbour, and is a place of about 1,000 inhabitants ; it is the terminus of the George-
town Branch of the Prince Edward Island Railway and the present winter port for

the island. Change having been made by the Marine and Fisheries department, in

vessels being used for the winter service between Gorgetown and Pictou, N.S., and it

being found that the water at the Georgetown railway wharf was not suiBeient for

the accommodation of the new Dominion Government steamer. Prince Edward Island,

work was commenced on an extension and in deepening of berth on west side of the

wharf by dredge No. 9, on December 21, and continued up to January 17, 191C, during

which Irime 4,000 cubic yards of hard clay, boulders and shelly rock were removed.

When operations were suspended, owing to ice conditions, this berth carried a depth at

low water spring tides of 22 feet at its outer end, grading up to 19J feet a distance of

350 feet inward from outer end of wharf, the average width being 75 feet.

To give sufficient accommodation to above steamer there still remains some 1,400

cubic yards to be removed; this principally in widening inner portion' of berth; expan-

sion factor 35 per cent.

lUCJCilx's SIIOUE.

Iliggin's Shore is situated on Egmont bay at the mouth of the Fereival river, about

10 miles north of Cape Egmont, and is the shipping point for a district of about 1,000

inliabitants, engaged principally in fishing and agriculture.

The wharf at the place was built many years before Confederation by the Provin-

cial Government, its description, etc., being fully stated in departmental report for 1910.

During the past season, the repairs of washout to the roadway, caused by the

extraordinary tide and severe storm of September 27 last were made, work being com-

menced Xovember 15, and satisfactorily completed December 11, at a cost of $174.75.

KlKIt's SHORE.

Kier's shore, Malpeque, is situated on the eastern side of Richmond bay, and is the

.-hipi>ing point for the Malpeque district, a large farming community of fully 1,500

inhabitants, exporting large quantities of farm produce and importing coal, lumber, etc.,

the annual value of which may be placed at from $50,000 to $75,000.

With the view of improving the channel approach to the wharf, the extension ol

the dredged cut was undertaken, that laid down being a cut 150 feet wide and 1,050

feet in length, extending from outer end of previous dredge cut to the 10-foot contour

line in the bay at low water spring tides, cleaning up and widening to 100 feet, as well,

the dredged channel. 1,350 feet in length, leading to the wharf. Work was started by

the small departmental dredge I'ownal on August ^4, and carried on about continuously

until December 6, when suspended for the season owing to weather conditions. During
tliis time, 10,175 cubic yards, scow measurement, of principally hard nuid and brick clay

were removed, most of the work being confined to outer portion of approach. The
depth of water was also improved over shipping berths on south side of the wharf, the

dredge effecting this when stress of weather did not i)erniit working on the approach
It was necessary <Iuring the work to overcast 1,725 culiic yards of material, 1,375 of

which were redredged. As there still remains 12,325 cubic yards of material to be

lemoved, in order to complete iinprovements as laid down, it is proposed the above

dredge continue operations at the place on opening of navigation of season of 191G.
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From a careful place measurement survey made after work was suspended for

season, the expansion factor was found to be 26 per cent compared with scow measure-

ments returned.

Lambert's.

Lambert's is situated on the southern side of the !^^ontague river, immediately

below the highway bridfro at the village of Montague, a place of about 1,000 inhabitants,

snd one of the island's busiest shipping centres, spring and fall. The work has a length

of 310 feet, running parallel with the channel, its width being 25 feet.

During the present season, the renewal of the entire covering and some of the

floor-stringers and curbing was effected, fender piles, as well, being put along the

channel face. Work was commenced September 27 and completed October 22, at a

cost of $394.01.

LITTLE SANDS.

(This work is described in departmental report 1913-14.)

Little Sands is situated on the south side of the island, about 8 miles west ofl

Cape Bear and 4 miles east of Wood Islands harbour.

During the season of 1914, a close-face square-timber crib wharf was constructed

for the department, under contract by Messrs. Phillips, Mutch & McLean. The
wharf has a length of 240 feet, 30 feet wide on top, at the inner end, for a distance

of 60 feet, the aprpoach was formed of broken stone. Severe storms and high tides

washed this out, and during the present season, it was found necessary to construct

a temporary plank approach. Work was commenced October 4 and compleed

October 27, at a cost of $213.85.

Mceachern's.

Is situated on the north side of the West river, about 6 miles above the entrance

to Charlottetown harbour, being distant about 7 miles west from Charlottetown, by
water, and about 11 miles by road. The immediate surrounding district, rich in agri-

cultural and dairy products, contains a jjopulation of over 250 directly interested in

shipping facilities. The old pier, which had a length of 2.30 feet, was built many years

ago by the Provincial Government, its repair of late years, however, being neglected,

it had become impassable. In 1913 and 1914, the department entirely reconstructed

the wharf.

During the present season, shipping berths have been formed at the western side,

and outer end, by the departmental dredge Prince Edward, carrying 8 feet at low water

spring tides. Work was in progress September 4 to 14, during which time 1,800 cubic

yards of sand and mud were removed, 800 cubic yards of overcasting, which was after-

wards redredged, being required in connection with the work.

Mcpherson's cove.

Is situated on the south side of the Grand or Boughton river, King's comity, a
short distance within its entrance into Boughton bay. It is the shipping point for

the supply farm and dairy products of a district of about 400 inhabitants. The wharf

was constructed by the department in 1904, an extension being added in 1907-8, and
consists of approach, 670 feet long by 20 feet wide, and outer part, 230 feet long by

30 feet wide, constructed of pole-work foundation and close face square timber super-

structure, full ballasted, with roadway formed on approach of broken stone and gravel,

while outer portion is floor-stringered and planked. Shortly after construction of

extension, shipping berths were formed on each side of the outer end of wharf, this

causing some settlement in the work adjoining.

19—11
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During the present season, this has been made up, and the -work strengthened by

piling and put in good repair generally. Work was commenced July 13 and completed

September 30, that done being raising a sixty-foot section, 2 feet, piling, etc., costing

$1,057.23.

MIMINIO.i^SH.

Miminigash is situated on the west coast of Prince Edward Island, about 15 miles

south of North cape, and 18 miles north of West Point. Works for the formation of a

boat-harbour were commenced by the Dominion Government in 1878 and since con-

tinued, from time to time, till now consisting of piers or breakwaters, on either side of

the " Run," as fully described in department report for 1912-13.

During the present season, some minor repairs to the top portion of the north

breakwater has been made necessary by the extraordinary high tide of September 27.

Work was commenced November 15 and completed November 27, at a cost of $149.87.

MURRAY HARBOUR SOUTH.

Murray Harbour South is situated at the head of navigation on the South river, at

the south-eastern extremity of King's county, and is the shipping point for a very

fertile agricultural district.

During the seasons of 1913 and 1914, extensive improvements were effected to the

chamiel by dredging. In the present season, from January 17 to 20, some minor repairs

were made to portions of covering on the wharf, and new mooring post put in at a cost

amounting to $26.22.

NORTH CARDIGAN OR NEWPORT.

Is situated on the north side of the Cardigan river, a short distance above its

entrance into Cardigan bay, and abovit 5 miles by water below the village of Cardigan

Bridge. It is one of the Prince Edward Island piers, assumed by the Dominion

Government in 1884, since when it has been about entirely rebuilt by the different

repairs and improvements effected to it from time to time, as fuUy described in

departmental report for 1904-5.

During the present season, work was commenced November 25, on repair and

making up of the roadway with broken stone and gravel, where damaged by high storm

tide of September 27. The work was completed December 3, at a cost of $101.63.

'north rh'er bridge.

Is situated at the head of .navigation on the North river, about 4J miles, by water,

from Charlotteown. Replacement of the wooden bridge, here crossing the river, by a

steel structure, made its further use for purposes of shipping, impossible. To fill the

want thus caused, the department in 1914, constructed a small shipping pier imme-

diately below the highway bridge, as described in departmental report of 1914-15.

During the present season, shipping berths have been formed on either side of the

wharf, extending inwards 80 feet, and having a width of 40 feet, grading from 10 feet

up to 6 feet, on inner end, at low water spring tides. Work was commenced by the

departmental dredge Prince Edward, September IS, and completed October 16, removing

4,350 cubic yard-s, scow, of mud, clay and gravel, 340 cubic yards of overcasting being

required, which was all redredged and scowed away excepting 40 cubic yards.

PANMURE ISLAND.

Panmure island is situated on the east coast of Prince Edward Island and on the

south side of the entrance to Georgetown harbour. During 1904-5-6, the departmenrt
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constructed a small wharf or boat-landintr on the south side of the island, on St.

Mary's bay, and in 1907-8 added an extension, to reach low water mark, to that origin,-

ally constructed, as described in departmental report for 1907-8.

During the past season, the settlement and washout in roadway, caused by severe

fall storm, was made up with broken stone and gravel, work commencing December

6 and completed December 11, at a cost of $.50.

Dredging.

As the wharf only extended out to low water mark, in order to provide a better

approach from the deep water in the bay also to form shipping berth at its head, work

was commenced December 2, by dredge No. 9, and continued so long as weather con-

ditions would permit, or up to December 15, during which time 4,900 cubic yards, scow

measurement, of sand, brick, clay and mud were removed, of the 12,000 cubic yards

estimated necessary to give the desired accommodation. The work done was confined

to the approach, having a length of 425 feet and width of 60 feet, to carry not less than

9 feet at low water spring tides. The balance of the work, or that necessary in con-

nection with forming shipping berth and turning basin in front of wharf, will be

undertaken immediately navigation opens next season.

PINETTE.

Pinetto is situated at the head of navigation on the Pinette river, about two miles

from its entrance into Northumberland straits, being distant from Charlottetown, by

water, about 20 miles in a southerly direction. The pier, the property of the Dominion
Government, is 128 feet long by 28 feet wide, and constructed by close-face timber

work, being floor-stringered and planked over; it faces on the river channel, where

upwards of 8 feet of water is available at low water spring tides.

During the present season, the department constructed a warehouse, 16 by 20

feet, having 8-foot posts, square-pitch .shingle roof, battened sides and suitable win-

dows, doors, etc. Work was started June 25, and the building was completed Septem-

ber 30, at a cost of $270.99.

PORT SELKIRK OR BRUSH WHARF.

Port Selkirk or Brush wharf is situated on the south side of the Orwell river, at

its entrance to Orwell bay. It is distant from Charlottetown, by water, ajjout 20 miles,

communication being had twice weekly by a steam-passenger and freight packet. The
pier, built many years before Confederation, isjn the shape of a " T," consisting of a

pier-head, 230 feet long and 35 feet wide, fronting on the edge of the channel, the

approach being 250 feet long by 23 feet wide; all, with exception of inner portion Oi.'

approach, is composed of a series of close-faced sawn-timber blocks, with intervening

spans, floor-stringered and planked over. During the present season, some temporary

repairs were effected to the piling on the northwest corner of the work, from September

29 to November 4, at a cost of $00.37.

POWXAL BAY.

Pownal bay is situated on the north-eastern part of Hillsborough bay, about 9 miles

from Charlottetown. It is the shipping point for a large agricultural district. The
wharf was constructed by the Provincial Government before Confederation, its control

being assumed by the Dominion Government in 1883-84. It has a length in all of 760

feet, the approach having width of 19 feet, while outer 90 feet, or pier head, carries a
width of 40 feet. The work was composed of a series of " blocks " and " spans," the

latter thirteen in number.
Owing to the span-beams and covering and portions of approach becoming defec-

tive, it was decided to reconstruct and repair the approach, filling in some of the spans

19—Hi
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with poles, and formiug a clay roadway over them. Work was commenced August 16,

by December 10 it was suspended, owing to weather conditions, 400 feet of the inner

portion of approach had been reconstructed, new face-timbers, guard and fenders being

put in where required, five of the inner spans being filled with poles, while three of

the outer ones were narrowed down with creosoting bearing-piles, these capped,

stringered and planked, all at a total expenditure of $2,503,84 There still remains some

necessary repairs to be made, principally to pier-head, estimated to cost $2,000, which

were impossible to complete last season, owing to difficulty in procuring suitable

material,

RED POINT,

Eed point is situated on the southern side of the Hillsborough river, si.x miles

east of Charlottetown, and is a shipping point for a large agricultural district having

railway facilities. The wharf was built by tire Provincial Government, and in 1897

its control was assumed by the Dominion. It has a length of teO feet and is 21 feet

wide, excepting on the outer 53 feet, which the department, in 1912, widened to 35 feet.

During the present season, considerable repairs and reconstruction has been

effected to the walls of approach, portions of the original work being entirely rebuilt,

fendered, etc., while two of the outer spans were narrowed down to 20 feet with creo-

soted bearing-piles, these capped with 12 by 12-inch timber, stringered and planked

over and the whole work put in good and serviceable condition. Work was commenced

July 23 and completed December 8, at a cost of $2,072.50,

Robinson's island.

Robinson's island is on the eastern side of the entrance to Rustico harbour, on ths

north coast of the island. The place is a very important fishing station, the surrounding

districts containing fully 3,000 inhabitants. This work was constructed by the depart-

ment in 1906-7 and consists of a breakwater 750 feet long, the inner 200 feet being

of round-log cribwork 12 feet wide, the balance being of pile-bents, close-piled, 16 feat

in width, the outer fifty feet being 24 feet in width.

During the past season, some settlement in the ballast was made up at outer end

of the breakwater, and piling renewed where most exposed to heavy seas and running

ice. Work was commenced September 13, but suspended on November 20, was resumed

early in February, when the settlement, in a length of 80 feet of the cribwork, imme-

diately inward of the breakwater, was repaired and a low portion of the beach to the

eastward, about 300 feet in length, protected with brush and stone; this to prevent

heavy seas from washing away the beach. The work was satisfactorily completed

February 20. Total expenditure for fiscal year was $1,269.75.

ROCKY POINT.

Rocky point is situated on the south side of the West river, immediately within,

iiud to the west of the entrance to Charlottetown harbour.

To accommodate probable shipping, the department entered into a contract, on the

unit price basis of i)aymcnt: (o) for a work consisting of approach, 22 feet wide, 507

feet long, containing three spans, and constructed of pole-work foundation with close

face-sawn square-timber superstructure, solidly filled with ballast and sides fendered,

roadway of broken stone and gravel being formed on top, a sidewalk and hand-rail

extending along eastern side; (b) pier head, 157 feet long, 22 feet wide at inner end^

and spreading to a width of 84i feet at outer end, being of exactly similar construction

to approach, excepting that the top is floor-stringcred and planked, and outer end con-

tains berth, 23 by 65 feet, for ferry landing floats; (c) guide piers, two in number, con|-

structed of solid face-sawn 12 by 12-inch timber, full ballasted, averaging about 115

feet in length, 24 feet wide on top, and so placed as to form a dock for ferry steamer,
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their inner or doek *ides being sheathed with 111 by II) hardwood, outer ends close-piled,

and outer sides fendered at 5-foot centres, roadway on top is broken stone and gravel^

Work was first commenced .Tune 2, 1014, and suspended for season October 26, the

approach, inner 02 feet of pier-head and warehouse being then about completed. Opera-

tions were resumed on May 7 and satisfactorily completed October 4. The total cost

cf the work, which was built on a unit price basis, being $30.3^4.84.

Dredging.

To make the wharf available for the purpose for which it was constructed, a con-

tract fur dredging was awarded to ilr. V. T. Bartram, June 29, and operations com-
menced by dredge Edmund Hall, Xo 1, August 10, the contract price being 16-95 cents

per cubic yard, j^lace measurement. The work which was completed December 1,

involved the removal of 57,624-3 cubic yards, scow, and 2,808-4 cubic yards of over-

casting, costing, at contract price, $10,084.65, and consisted of forming a channel
approach to wharf, 1,250 feet in length by 150 feet in width, the entrance being " bell-

mouthed" to a width of 300 feet. The dock for ferry steamer was also cleaned out,

and berths 200 feet in length with width of 60 feet, formed on each side of the guide
piers. The depth made was 9 feet at low water spring tides, or 18i feet at high water.,

that here rise OJ feet, the nature of material removed being soft mud and brick clay.

Kustico is situated on the north coast of the island at about its central portion,

and is one of the most important fishing stations. For improvement of the harbour's

approach, which is obstructed by a shifting sand bar, the department, during 1881-82-

83-84, constructed works on either side of the entrance for the purpose of confining

the current at ebb tide, thus, by scour, deepen the water. The works, as at present, are

fully described in departmental reports for 1908-9.

During the past season, December 1 to 18, the sum of $112.54 was expended in

making renewals as found required to the covering on top and sheathing on sloping-

face or seaward side of the breakwater.

ST. Mary's bay.

St. Mary's Bay is situated on the south side of St. Mary's bay, about 5 miles, by

water, south of Georgetown, the shiretown of the county. It is the shipping point for

the farm produce of a fertile agricultural district, and was constructed by the govern-

ment of Prince Edward Island, its control being assumed by that of the Dominion in

1884. It has a length of 407 feet, the outer 100 feet being 28 feet wide, while the

approach is 21 feet wide, entirely constructed of close-face square timber, full ballasted,

fendered, etc. During the present season, it was necessary to about entirely reconstruct

the walls of approach, which had become decayed through age. Work was completed

November 3, at a cost of $1,500.08.

SOURIS.

Souris is situated on the south-eastern coast of Prince Edward Island, about 16

miles southwest of East Point, and is most important as a harbour of refuge and
place of shipment, for both of which it has been rendered available by the breakwater

built and maintained by the Dominion Government, as described in departmental

report for 1908-9.

To enlarge the harbour area, an extension was undertaken under contract, October

18, 1912 for the sum of $143,917, and about completed during season of 1914, as fully-

set forth in departmental report for 1914-15.
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Work was commenced May 24, 1915, on the repair of the breach made in the wall

below the sloping face of outer block by storms of the previous fall ; an extension was
then made to the contract to provide for the further strengthening- of this portion of

the work by reinforcing with 12 by 12 creosoted sheathing. Work on this was com-
menced June 5 and when about completed, the whole was again displaced by storms on
July 9, since when no further work has been attempted. The cost of the sheathing

was $2,365.41.

In addition to the above, the contractors, placed during the month of July, under
agreement, on harbour side of the new 400-foot extension of the breakwater, eight

creosoted mooring posts, 12 feet long and 15 inches diameter, ten ring bolts and two
ladders, at a cost of $194.50.

SUMMERSIDE.

Summerside -harbour is on the southern coast of the island. The town of Summer-
side is next in population to Charlottetown, having some 3,000 inhabitants; it is, as

well, one of the principal stations on the line of the Prince Edward Island Railway,

distant from Charlottetown 49 miles and from Tignish, the western terminus 68 miles.

For improvement of the channel, as to depth and direction, dredging has been

done at different times by the department, while, for protection from southwest winds,

a breakwater was completed September T, 1909, extending from Indian Head to the

lighthouse at harbour entrance, a distance of 3,220 feet. The work consists of a

rubble mound four feet wide on top and five feet above H.W.S.T., having slope on sea-

ward side, of 2 to 1, and, on the inner side li to 1. The length of the stonework is

3,200 feet, with an outer block 112 feet long by 20 feet wide on top, constructed of

close-face timber-work fully ballasted and having slope of 1 to 1 on its seaward side

and ends.

During the past season, November 15 to 23, the sum of $41.34 was expended in

effecting small repairs to sheathing on the sloping face of the outer block.

TIGNISH.

Tignish is situated on the northeast coast of the island, about 8 miles south of

Xorth cape, being at the mouth of the Tignish river, here entering the Gulf of St.

Lawrence. Works for the formation of a boat harbour were commenced in 1868, by

the Provincial Government, and are now as described in departmental report for

1914-15.

During the present season, a 325-foot length of the south breakwater, inward of

the outer block, has been raised and repaired for a height of two to four feet, with 12

by 12 timbers, fenders, etc., being put in, and the whole top-covering renewed with

3-inch plank. Small repairs were also effected to portions of the beach protection and

harbour works generally where found required. Work was started August 19, 1915,

.and completed January 4, 1916, at a cost of $2,484.79.

^•ERNON RIVER NORTH.

Vernon River North is situated on the north side of the Vernon river at the head

of navigation, and immediately below the public road bridge, here crossing the river.

The wharf was built by the department in 1909, having an approach 170 feet by

24 feet and a pier-head 125 by 40 feet, its construction being as fully described in,

departmental report for 1909-10. As only a 10-foot portion of the pier-head along the

channel side was planked, the balance, 30 feet in width, being clay, it was desired by

the shipijcra that the whole be planked over. Such was done during present season,

work being commenced August 2 and satisfactorily completed September 23, at a

cost of $745.69,
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WEST POINT.

West Point is situated on the western end of tjie Northumberland straits coast

of the island, and is important to the district both as point of shipment for farm pro-

duce, landing of supplies, etc., and also as shipping station. The population of the

district numbers about COO. The work was originally built by the Provincial Govern-
ment, its control being assumed by the Dominion Government in 1883-8-1-, and since

reconstructed and extended till now it has a length of 720 feet by 30 feet in width,

constructed of clcse-face square timber crib-work, full ballasted, etc.

During the present season, the greater part of the covering was replaced, fenders

being put in around the outer portion of the wharf. Work was started July 5 and
completed September 15, at a cost of $908.33.

NEW BRUNSWICK.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

Albert, Albert county, a village of 450 inhabitants, is situated on the Shepody,
a tidal river with a strong current, practically dry at low water, discharging into the
Bay of Fundy.

During 1915-16, the bed for vessels was cleared of the mud, which accumulated
there, and 13 loads of gravel were placed on the approach to the wharf. Work was
in progress between the 20th and 29th of May, 1915.

Expenditure for the fiscal year is $83.30.

Anderson's hollows

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

Anderson's Hollow, Albert county, is a cove of Salisbury bay on the north-west
side of Chignecto channel in the Bay of Fundy.

On 2nd and 3rd July, 1915, repairs were made to the approach to the break-

water-wharf, which was damaged by heavy rains. On the 7th of January, lOlfi, some
covering which had been removed by a heavy storm, was replaced.

Expen<iiture for the fiscal year is $19.80.

BATHURST.

Bathurst, the shire-town of Gloucester county, is situated on the south shore of

the Bale des Chaleurs.

Bathurst harbour is about 2i miles long, by 2 miles wide, and is shallow and
largely dry at low water except in narrow channels. A wide shoal outside the entrance

also seriously interferes with navigation.

On the 7th July, 1913, a contract was entered into with The Northern Dredging
and Construction Co., Ltd., for dredging in the Main or Nepisiquit channel of

Bathurst harbour in order to allow vessels, which previously have been obliged to lie

outside, to come to the wharfs for loads of lumber, also for the benefit of shipping in

connection with a large pulp mill under construction, a proposed iron ore shipping

dock, etc.

The width of the cut is generally 200 feet, increased to about 300 at the curves,

and the depth called for under the contract, 17 feet at low water ordinary spring tides.

The final depth under the general scheme of improvement is 25 feet.

Spring tides rise 7 feet, neaps, 2-5.
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The original contract, for 400,000 cubic yards, at 25 cents per cubic yard, place

measurement, was completed on 22nd August, 1914, when work was begun under a

second contract with the same firm, entered into on the 19th May, 1914. The total

quantity to be removed under the second contract was 600,000 cubic yards, place

measurement, of which 199,828 cubic yards were removed in 1914-15 and 361,575 in

1915-16, the price being 30 cents per cubic yard.

Work was in progress during 1915-16, with the dredge Sayward, between 15th May
and 16th August and between 4th October and 11th December; with the dredge

Invader between 22nd May and 16th August and between 2nd October and 11th

December, and with the dredge Gray Loggie between 24th June and 16th August and
between 23rd October and 16th November.

The dredging in 1913, covered about | of a mile of channel immediately inside

the entrance and taking in the Eipple and Ballast bars. The next section, about 1,700

feet long, where there are depths of about 12 feet or over on the centre line has not

been dredged. Above this, in 1914, a section 4,400 feet long was dredged, covering the

Seal bar and reaching to the Forks. Extending above the Forks, a narrow cut was

made, 1,9(X) feet long. A small area, 400 by 50 feet, was also dredged on the Xopisi-

quit shoal, one mile above the Forks.

The dredging, during 1915-16, consisted of making a cut from the Forks to within

100 feet of the Jsepisiquit highway bridge, about 8,640 feet long, of which 1,850 feet

on Range 5 is completed to the full width of 200 feet, widened to 300 at the turns at

each end; 4,050 feet is 100 to 175 feet wide, and the balance 2,740 feet, is 60 feet wide.

The correct depth of 17 feet at low water was reached. The limiting depth on the

Main or Xepisiquit channel inside the harbour is now about 14 feet at low water ordin-

ary spring tides.

In addition, a small area, about 200 by 100 feet, was dredged to 15 or 16 feet at

low water at the Ripple bar. and the channel in front of the Gloucester Lumber and
Trading Company's wharf, a branch of the Nepisiquit channel, joining the latter about

one mile above the Forks, was dredged for a length of 450 feet and width of 60. pro-

viding a berth 300 feet long and an approach to the wharf, with 17 feet at low water.

The Government dredges A'o. ~, St. Lawrence , and Xo. 3, Restigouche, were also

employed at Bathurst during 1915-16, No. 2 working on the outer bar between the 16th

and 25th August and inside the harbour on the branch channel to the public wharf,

which includes the Tete-a-Gouche bar and berths at the Bathurst Lumber Company's
wharf, between 8th June and 12th August, and between 28th and 30th August; No. S
working on the outer bar between 24th September and 27th October and on the Kipple

bar, just inside the entrance, between 1st and 21st September.

The quantities removed were: on the outer bar, 23,800 cubic yards, the Ripple

bar, 15,332 cubic yards, the Tcte-a-Gaucho bar, 23,800 cubic yards, and the berth at

the Bathurst Lumber Company's wharf, 13,200 cubic yards, all barge measurement.

On the outer bar the cut previously dredged was widened 100 feet, or to about 200

feet, on the inner 1,200 feet. There remains a section, 2,000 feet long, to be widened

100 feet, and considerable dredging is required over about 1} miles to bring the cut

to the 17-foot depth and full width of 200 feet. The cut so far as dredged appears

generall.v to have maintained itself satisfactorily during the past year. The limiting

depth is now about 13 feet at low water ordinary spring tides.

On the Ripple bar, a length of about 1,000 feet was dredged to about 15 to 17 feet

at low water, chiefl.y along the southern side of the channel, to remove a bar with a

least depth of about 12 feet, formed since 1913.

On the Tetc-a-Gouche bar, the dredging covered a length of about 2,000 feet,

giving depths of 12 to 13 feet in a channel 75 to lOO feet wide. In front of the B:\thurst

Lumber Company's wharfs, a strip 900 feet long and about 75 wide was dri^dged to

depths of 14 to 16 feet. The limiting dejitli in tlie liriincli channel is now about 12

feet at low water ordinary spring tides.
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The total material removed during 1915-16, was 361,575 cubic yards, place mea-
surement, under contract, and 76,132 cubic yards, barge measurement, by the govern-

ment dredges.

The cost of the seasons work has been $120,979.87, in addition to the expense in

connection with the government dredges.

BAY DU VIN.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915).

Bay du Vin lies on the south side of the inner Miramichi bay 20 miles east of

Chatham.
Between the 2nd and ith September, 1915, about 2,300 feet B.M. of 3-inch plank

was used to replace the broken and decayed planks in the covering of the pier-head and
outer blocks.

The e.xiienditure for the fiscal year 1915-16 was $41.44.

BEAVER HARBOUR.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915).

Beaver Harbour, Charlotte county, situated 35 miles west of St. John in a direct

line, and 7 miles from Pennfield station, on the New Brunswick Southern Railway,

is used by coasting vessels as a temporary anchorage, and is besides a fishing station.

During- 1915-16', the whole of the top of the work, having an area of 10,000 square

feet, was covered with 3-inch plank ; nine fender piles, 28 feet long, were placed on the

work ; a new rail was placed around the top of the stairs, and the whole work, with the

exception of 375 feet of cap, was painted with carbolineum avenarius. The work was
begun on 4th October and was completed on 15th November, 1915.

Experiditure for the fiscal year is $1,009.47.

BLACK RIVER.

Black river is a small stream entering Buctouche harbour one mile north of

Buetouche.

A small public wharf was built here immediately below the highway bridge in

1911 and 1912.

During the fiscal year ending 31st March, 1916, the pier-head of the wharf, which

is 50-8 by 52-5 feet, was sheathed with 3-inch plank, two walings 6 by 6 being first

bolted along the outer face to even up the work. ^Four ladders and eight ring bolts

were placed and the sheathing, cap, etc., were painted with carbolineum.

Work was in progress between the 3rd and lOth,' 16th and 18th, and 22nd and 26tb

of September, on the 1st and 2nd and from the 11th to the 16th October.

The expenditure for the fiscal year was $284.97.

black's harbour.

Black's Harbour, Charlotte county, situated on an arm of L'Etang harbour, is 12
miles from St. George, the nearest railway point, and 6 miles from the departmental

wharf at Beaver Harbour. Black's Harbour has a poi)ulation of about 400, occupied

in packing sea-goods, fishing and farming. The steamer Connors Bros., makes a trip

here weekly, and coasting vessels make 150 trips per year to and from this place. The
wharf at Black's Harbour was built by the Provincial Government in 1899, and
consists of pile work 106 feet long and 24 feet wide. This wharf is in very bad condi-

tion.

On 24th January, 1916, an autliorization was received to expend $500, in making
temporary repairs to the stringers, covering, cap and bracing. Repairs were not made
during the fiscal year 1915-16; but some spikes, etc., were purchased at a cost of $88.95.
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BUCTOUCHE.

The town of Buetouche lies about 18 miles soutli of Richibucto, by road, and 22

miles north of Shediac.

The public wharf. 300 feet long, was constructed in 188-1 to 1886.

Between the 30th August and 11th September and the 21st and 25th September.

1915, six mooring posts were renewed and the covering and stringers of the approaches

at the lower end were repaired in a length of 25 feet, 18 feet 8 inches wide, 3-inch

plank being used.

The expenditure for the fiscal jear wai $124.72.

BUCTOUCTIE BEACH.

Buetouche beach, 6 to 7 miles long, separates Buetouche harbour from the

Northumberland strait. The harbour entrance is at the southern end of the beach.

At the northern end it is proposed to cut a channel through the beach to give a short

passage from the harbour to the fishing grounds and to provide a shelter for the boats

on the outer shore. Breakwaters and breastworks have been constructed on each side

of the proposed canal which will be about 950 feet long, at high water level, and about

40 feet wide.

During the fiscal year ending 31st March, 191G, the whole of the south breakwater

and breastworks, 1,020 feet long, was sheet-piled with 3-inch plank, about 14 feet long,

first replacing 550 lineal feet of 3-inch walings and 150 feet of 6 by 6 waliugs which

were decayed. An extension to the north breastworks 40 feet long which was damaged

by the ice last winter was rebuilt and the spaces behind the breastworks, 575 feet long

on the south side and 300 feet on the north side, were filled with sea-weed, with a small

amount of ballast placed over it, to prevent the sand coming through. A temporary

breastwork, 157 feet long, formed of main piles braced from behind and tied together

with walings and faced with 3-inch sheet-piling was built to repair a break in the

north breastworks, caused by the storm of September 29, 1915. 33 pieces of 3-iuch

plank which had been broken, near the iimer end of the north breakwater, were pulled

out and the gap repaired by placing two walings, and sheet-piling the breastworks for

a length of 43 feet.

Work was in progress between 16th June and 26th August, between 7th September

and 23rd October, and between 11th and 23rd November.

The expenditure for the fiscal year was $2,535.57.

Dredging.

The dredging at Buetouche Beach, Kent county, is intended to open up a pro-

posed canal, between breakwaters and breastworks already constructed, in order to

provide a harbour of refuge for fishing boats and a short passage to the fishing

grounds, from the upper end of Buetouche harbo\rr.

It covers a total lengrth of 2,800 feet, of which 1,200 is in the canal proper and

1,600 across the shoal, in Buetouche bay, as the upper end of Buetouche harbour is

called.

Dredging was begun in 1911, and in 1913 the canal was cut through and, later,

partly filled with sand by a storm.

During 1914, the dredging covered the whole length of the cut in the bay and
the inner 600 feet of the canal, the width being 40 to 50 feet, and depth 3i feet, at low
water ordinary spring tides.

The work was continued in 1915, between 13th July and 24th November under a
contract with Mr. Felix Miehaud, with the dredge Excavator, when the inner 600 feet

was gone over and the remaining 600 dredged about 55 feet wide to a depth of about
31 feet at low water.
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A heavy storm at the end of September destroyed a considerable section of the

breastworks and washed into the cut a large quantity of sand, which was in part

removed, but, later, northeast storms carried in additional sand, and at the close of

the season the depth had been reduced to about 2 to 3 feet above low water.

The total dredging for 1915-10 amounted to 15,115-4 cubic yards, including 336-5

culiic yards which were first cast over, and the cost, including $299.26 for inspection,

was .$5,700.43.

BUCTOUUHE HARBOUR.

In the 5J miles between the town of Buctouche, Kent county, and the harbour

entrance on the Northumberland strait, three shoals occur; the most serious of which

is at the entrance where a wide ledge of rock and a sand bar limited the depth to

about 10 feet at low water ordinary spring tides.

In 1913, the Government rock-breaker Lohnitz, No. S, began work on this ledge,

breaking the rock in this and the following year to a depth of 3 to 4 feet in an area

1,085 feet long by 122 wide.

Between 4th June and 20th July, 1915, work was continued and the last section,

about 600 feet long by 122 wide, was gone over.

The Government dredge P. W. D., No. 13, was in operation between 15th June
and 15th November, 1915, removing the rock and sand, over an area 440 by 50 feet and

beyond this, an area/ 1,520 by 115 feet, to a depth of 14 to 15 feet at low water

ordinary spring tides, which, with the work of the previous year, completed the rock

section of the cut. During the latter part of the season, and particularly when it was

too rough to dredge at the harbour entrance, P. IF. D., No. IS, worked on the middle

shoal, about 2| miles below the town, making two cuts, 2,300 feet long at the inner

and 550 at the outer end and 40 feet wide, with depths of 14 to 16 feet at low water

ordinary spring tides. An undredged section, 1,200 feet long, remains in the central

Ijart of the shoal.

On 15th, IGth and 19th October also, a bank was removed from the faces of the

Irving wharfs at Buctouche, about 15 to 20 feet wide, to give depths at the berths of

aboyt 14 to 15 feet at low water ordinary spring tides. The length dredged at the

Freezer wharf was about 150 feet and at the SawmOl wharf about- 280 feet.

The material removed, barge measurement, according to the dredge captain's

returns amounted to 33,183 cubic yards at the outer or rock shoal; 24,024 cubic yards
at the middle shoal, where place measurement quantities are 23,555 cubic yards, and
2.297 cubic yards at the Irving wharf.

Over the rock shoal the total materials removed in the two seasons amounted to

43,505 cubic yards, barge measurement, against 33,372-6 cubic yards, place measure-
ment.

BURNT CHURCH. .

Burnt Church, Northumberland count.v, is a farming, fishing and lumbering
settlement on the north shore of Miramiehi bay, 22 miles northeast of Chatham. The
Miramichi Steam Navi-iation Company's boat calls twice daily during the season, and
the place is much frequented as a summer resort.

A public wharf, 1,180 feet long, was con.«tructed here in 1900 and 1901.

During the fiscal year ending the 31st March, 1916, the whole of the plank covering
on the approach of the wharf was renewed with 3-ineh plank, except on the shore block,

241 feet long, where the decayed planks were replaced with earth and gravel surfacing.

1 to IJ feet deep. Several crib timbers and 280, 10 by 12, stringers and all the cap
timbers on the blocks and spans were renewed. The pier-head was shoet-pilcd with 6-

inch creosoted timber on the four faces, block 23, 20 by 40 feet, contiguous with the
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pier-head, ou both sides and the inner end. block 22, 20 by 20 feet, on both sides and

ends and block 21, 20 by 20 feet, on two sides and half of the outer end. The approach

is 1,139 feet long and 20 feet wide and the pier-head 40 by 60 feet.

Work was in progress between 1st July and 2Sth September, and ir>th October and
24th November.

The expenditure for the fiscal year was $4,770.38.

CAMPBEI.LTOX.

Ferri/ Wharf.

Campbelltou is situated on the southern shore of the Restigouehe river 16 miles

above Dalhousie, and 6 mile below the head of the tide. It is a divisional point on the

Intercolonial Railway and the terminus of the International Railway. It is an im-

portant deal-shipping port.

Between the 19th May and the 28th June, 1915, the western side of the ferry slip

was built up with cribwork 2 to 6 tiers high and 5 feet wide, the face 123-8 feet long,

was sheathed with 4-ineh plank, 3 to 20 feet long, and three posts about 8 inches in

diameter were placed around the outer corner.

On the eastern side the face for 102-7 feet was sheathed with 4-inch plank, 3 to 20

feet long, and IS posts about 8 inches in diameter were placed along the outer 14 feet

of this face and 13 posts around the outer corner. The top longitudinal of the crib-

work and the upper part of the sheathing were painted with two coats of carbolineum.

The work was required to complete the repair of damage caused by the Camp-
belltou fire of 1910.

The expenditure for fiscal year was $451.92. Half the cost of the materials used

was borne by the Shives Lumber Company, wlio own the wharves forming the sides of

the ferry slip.

Deep Water Wharfs.

The Restigouehe is a rapid river down to the tidal limits, 6 miles above Camp-
belltou, and the deposit of mud and silt in the river about Campbelltou, where the river

current is checked by the tide, is very heavy.

Dredging is required each year to maintain the depths at the wharfs and in the

river channel.

At the deep water wharfs, where berths with 22 feet at low water ordinary spring

tides are required to enable lumber steamers to lie afloat and take full loads, the de-

partmental dredge. Si. Lawrence or No. 2, was at work between 3rd and 22nd September,

and 3rd to 5th November, in deepening the berths along the inside face.

Beginning at the outer end, 22 feet at low water was reached, in a length of 325

feet; in the next 170 feet a depth of 20 feet was obtained. The width of the dredged

area is 40 to 80 feet.

The material removed amounted to lO.SOO cubic- yards, barge measurement.

Market Wharf.

Between 2:5rd and 30th September, the (ioverunieut dredge St. Lawrence or No. 2.

was at work in front of the Market wharf, a public wharf lying about 200 feet above the
deep-water wharfs.

A berth or basin was dredged about 2(M) frit long and 50 to 100 wid(> with depths
of 15 to 17 feet at low water ordinary spring tides, where there were original depths

of about 9 to 12 feet.

The material removed, consisting of mud mid gravel, amounted to 5,600 cubic

yards, barge measurement.
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CAPE BALD.

Cape Bald is a farming and fishing district on the south ^shore of the Northum-

berland strait about 14 miles east of Shediac.

Tlie construction of a breakwater was in progress in 1909 and 1910, under con-

tract with Mr. E. A. Walberg. It consists of an approach 646 feet long and a pier-

head 100-4 feet long on the outer face, built of cribwork with reinforced concrete

faces.

During the fiscal year ending 31st March, 1916, ten caissons, 11 feet by 6 feet,

by 4 tol 5J feet wide, and twenty-five caissons, 11 feet by 3J feet, by 3 to 4* feet»

were built of reinforced concrete.

The larger caissons, together with four built last year, were sunk along the

outer 55 feet of the outer face of the approach and the outer face of the pier-head,

and the smaller caissons were laid over large caissons placed last year along the

approach, and over seven of the nine iilaced this year outside the pier-head.

The large caissons and the narrow space between them and the original face

of the work were filled with ballast and the upper small caissons were filled with

ballast and concrete and capped with concrete.

430 bags of cement were used in making the caissons and 375 in filling and cap-

ping the small caissons. 282' cubic yards of ballast were used in filling the caissons

and the spaces between them and the breakwater, and 311 cubic yards in filling

four vacancies in the breakwater, where the original ballast had been washed out.

A diving outfit and crew were employed for 25 days in levelling the bottom for and

placing the caissons.

The concrete curb on the inner face of the breakwater was renewed for a length

of about 80 feet, 1 foot wide' by 1 foot deep.

A storm on 27th September carried away the plank covering of about 250 feet

of the approach and of about h of the pier-head, washed out a quantity of ballast

and displaced several of the caissons. At the close of the season, the planks were

gathered up and relaid on the breakwater.

Work was in progres between 29th May and 13th October.

The expenditure for the fiscal year was $3,605.69.

CARAQUET.

Caraquet is an important fishing district and village 42 miles east of Bathurst.

During the fiscal year 1915-16. the pier-head, constructed by the Federal

Department of Public Works in 1883-84, at the end of the Provincial Government

wharf, the Young wharf so-called, was under repair. The outer face, 100 feet long,

was close-piled with round piles, 33 feet long, and raised about IJ feet with extra

face timbers on account of settlement. Six fenders were placed at the corners. The
faces of the ends were levelled up with extra timbers and the upper timber on the

south face was renewed. Eleven new cross-ties and six mooring posts were placed.

The eastern end and inner side were sheathed with 4-inch deals, driven 3 feet

into the mud, and the sheathing on the western end was repaired.

Tlie old and worn plank covering of the block was removed and packed as a

ballast floor in the work over which was placed about 143 cubic yards of ballast

surfaced with 4 inches of gravel.

Work was in progress between 21st October and 23rd December, on 28th Decem-
ber, the 10th to 13th and 27th and 2Sth January and on 10th and 11th March.

The expenditure for the fiscal year was $1,314.55.

cniiii'AN'. ,

Chimpan, Queens coimty, is at the head of navigation on the Salmon river.

The turning basin in front of the wharf and the channel, for some distance down
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stream. Lad became silted up. The dredging was for the purpose of restoring this

part of the river to a depth of 9 feet below low water.

The basin dredged was, roughly, 700 feet long by 160 wide. The channel

dredged down stream from the basin was 1,200 feet long by 75 wide. The area

dredged over was about 205,000 square feet.

The material removed consisted of silt, sand, sawdust and edgings, also sunken

drift wood.

9,933-8 cubic yards, scow measurement, were removed. ,

The contract rate of payment was 27i cents per cubic yard, scow measurement.

The total amount due the contractors was $2,731.79.

The work has done by the dredge New Brunsicicl-, No. 1, of the Xew Briniswiek

Construction Co.

Dredging commenced on June 24, and was completed on July 8, 1915.

In 1912, the Xew Brunswick Construction Co. removed 12,399-5 cubic yards,

scow measurement, from this place, the dredging at that time being confined to the

basin in front of the wharfs. The dredging was to a depth of 9 feet below low

water. It would, therefore, seem that in three or four years', dredging will be
again needed at this place.

CHOCKFISH.

A farming and fishing settlement on the Northumberland strait, about midway
between Richibucto and Buctouche.

The works consist of breakwaters, at each side of the present river mouth, and
breastworks and a dam to close the original winding and unstable channel. Through
their construction the deptli of water has increased and a i)ermanent entrance has

been provided to a safe and convenient harbour.

Between 1st September and 30th Xovember, 1915, 230 feet of the inner face

of the north breakwater and 150 feet of the inner face of the south breakwater were
sheet-piled with -i-inch creosoted plank.

The expenditure for the fiscal year was $691.25.

CHOCOLATE COVE.

E
Chocolate Cove, Charlotte county, situated at the south-east of Deer island, is

distant 2 miles from Leonardville and 2J miles from Cumming's Cove, where there are

departmental wharfs. The population, about 125, are all dependant upon fishing.

In 1914, the department constructed an extension to the Provincial Government
wharf, consisting of a pile approach 310 feet long, together with a cribwork pier-head,

40 by 60 feet.

During 1915-16, the Provincial Government wharf was transferred to the Dominion
Government. The old approach to the wharf was removed and new pile-work, 161

feet long and 22 feet wide, was constructed. This approach forms a connection be-

tween the new wharf and the shore.

The work was commenced on 17th May and was completed September, 1915;

being in progress during part of the months of May, July, August and September.

Expenditure for the fiscal year is $1,648.36.

COCAGNE.

Cocagne is a fishing and farming village and settlement on the Northumberland

strait, about midway between Buctouche and Shediac.

During the fiscal year 1915-16, two davits 18 feet high, of 3-inch steel, were

placed on the old departmental wharf, constructed in 1881 to 1883, at the Cocagne
highway bridge.

The work was done on July 11 and 26 and on 3rd August.

The expenditure for the fiscal year was $81.01.
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Church Wharf.

In February and March, 1915, a small wharf was constructed at the Coca^e
church, about one mile north of the village proper, a point convenient to the fishing

grounds and used as a landing place by a large number of boats.

Between 1st and 4th September and on 22nd and 24th November, 1915, a slip was

cut in the pier-head and finished with 6 steps and plank sides, and two davits, 18 feet

long, of 3-inch steel, were placed on the wharf.

The expenditure for the fiscal year was $91.45.

COCAGNE BAR.

Cocagne Bar is a fishing settlement at the northern end of Cocagne Harbour,

Kent county, 5 to 6 miles north of Cocagne village and 10 miles southeast of Buc-

touche.

Boats from the settlement were obliged to cross wide flats, nearly dry at low

water, lying between a basin near the shore and the deep water of the Northumberland

strait.

Some years ago, the people made, at their own expense by hand labour, a narrow

cut which is still used.

Between 14th October and 19th November, 1915, dredging was in progress, by day

labour with a small orange peel dredge belonging to the local agricultural society,

when a cut about 1,700 feet long and 20 to 30 wide was made across the bar with

depths of 2i to 3 feet at low water ordinary spring tides.

The material removed amounted to 3,130 cubic yards, barge measurement, and the

expenditure was $1,153.10, or 36-8 cents per cubic yard.

DALHOUSIE.

Dalhousie lies at the head of the Bale des Chaleurs and at the mouth of the

Restigouche river, 16 miles below Campbellton. It has a population of 1,650 and is

an important lumber shipping port.

During the fiscal year 1915-16, the old decayed covering was removed from the

block, connecting the deep-water wharf with the original ballast wharf, which was

levelled up by placing two extra tiers of round timber along the outer face, in a length

of about 100 feet, and extra stringers inside in a width of 25 to 40 feet; new 4-inch

covering was laid over an area 245 feet long and 24 to about 78 feet wide; a new 10

by 10 cap-timber was placed along the outer face for a length of 225 feet; five piles on

the outside face which had been destroyed were replaced; the cap, mooring-posts and

tops of stringers were treated with carboliueum, the warehouse was painted, the outer

side at the upper end of the deep-water wharf, where the ice was cutting the face

timbers, was sheathed with G-inch birch-plank for a length of 30 feet, and small repairs

were made generally.

Work was in progress between 7th May and 19th June, and between 27th July and

2nd September.

The exependiture for the fiscal year was $1,809.44.

DIPPER HARBOUR.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1914.)

Dipper Harbour, St. John county, is a fishing station on the Bay of Fundy, 20

miles west of St. John.

During 1915-16, a portion of the fenders wa^ renewed ; the face-timbers were re-

bolted; and 7,868 feet B.M. of new covering were laid. Work was in progress during

the month of July, 1915.

Expenditure for the fiscal year is $403.95.
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(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

Dorchester is the shire town of Westmoreland county and a station on the Inter-
colonial Railway, 27 miles south-east of Moncton.

Work on the reconstruction and enlargement of the old railway wharf was resumed
on 19th April, 1915, and the contract was completed on 16th September. -

The old face of the wharf was removed, for a width of 10 feet and depth of about
19 feet, and a new face was constructed, 16 feet wide at bottom and 24-5 feet wide at

top, where it steps over the lower section of the old work, and is 32J feet high. The
total length is 201-7 feet. In front of the wharf, a bed for vessels, 246 feet long by
50 feet wide, was formed by excavating and levelling the mud at an elevation 29 feet

below high water, with a cribwork retaining wall along the outer side.

Between 19th and 30th June and on 13 days in July, 1915, work was in progress,

by day labour, in removing the accumulation of mud from the bed in front of the

departmental wharf, in a length of 190 feet, 18 to 20 feet wide and about 3 feet deep;

excavating a bed for scows inside this wharf, 70 feet long by 15 feet wide and 3 feet

deep, and forming a bed for scows at the upper end of the old railway wharf, about 90

feet long by 22 feet wide, by excavating the mud about 4 to 1 feet deep and facing the

outer side with cribwork. A strip of 2-inch plank, 82 by 10 feet, was laid over the

departmental wharf, where the old covering was becoming decayed and broken.

The expenditure for the fiscal year 1915-16, was $13,588.03, being $12,880.50 on

the contract, $407 for inspection, and $300.53 for day labour.

DOUGL.\S H.\RBOUR.

Douglas harbour. Queens county, is on the north shore of Grand lake and is the

oentie of a considerable farming district.

Dredging was done to form a basin in front of the wharf, approxi-

mately 272 feet wide and 340 long. This work was begun in 1914, and finished during

the present season. The work this year consisted of dredging a strip, about 100 feet

wide by 400 long, on the eastern side of the basin. The area dredged over this year

was approximately 40,000 square feet.

The material removed, consisted of silt and sand.

5344-7 cubic yards place measure were removed (56-7 being outside the ranges).

The equivalent scow measurement was 5,688-7. The expansion factor from i)lace to

scow was 6 per cent.

The contract rate of pa,vment was 35 cents per yard. The contractors were enti-

tled to receive payment for 5,288 yards, which amounts to $1,850.80.

The work was done by the dredge Tantawanta of the St. John River Dredging
and Construction Co.

Dredging commenced June 3 and was completed on June 10, 1915.

It is expected that little or no filling in will occur at this place.

DOUCL.\STOWN.

Douglastown, Xorthumberland cotmt.v, is a village on the north side of the Mira-
michi river, 1 to 2 miles above (^hatham, and 3 to 4 miles below Newcastle.

Between 13th July and 26th August, 1915, dredging was in progres.s, under agree-

ment with !^^r. F. A. Fowlie, in the deep water berth at the ^Miramichi Lumber Com-
pany's wharf, with the Dredge Fowlie.

The dredging covered an area about 600 feet long by about 50 to 70 wide, giving
a depth of 22 feet at low water ordinary spring tides.

The material removed amounted to 8,501 cubic yards, barge measurement.
The expenditure was $3,091.35, including $116 for inspection.
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DUIUIAM.

The public wharf at Durham was constructed in 1905 and 1906. It lies on the

Baie des Chaleurs near the eastern end of Restigouclie county.

Towards the close of the fiscal year 1914-15, the sides of the wharf were raised

about 25 inclies with two tiers of square timber laid over the old cap. During the

fiscal year ending the 31st March, 1916, the work of raising the level of the wharf,

which formerly was piled with drift-wood and seaweed during storms, was continued

On the inner 350 feet the old covering, which was here worn and decayed, was remov-
ed and the work was filled with about 2 to 3 feet of stone and surfaced with gravel,

raising the level of the top 'about 20 to 25 inches. Beyond this section, about 30 inches

of stone and gravel was placed over the old covering and the work was finished at the
outer end of the approach with a slope of plank, 11 feet wide and GJ feet long, des-

cending to the level of the pier-head. 200 new 10 by 10 by 12 foot fenders were placed
along the sides. On the 27th September, a storm disturbed a section of the gravel
covering, which was resurfaced with 44i cubic yards of stone and additional gravel.

Work was in progress between 29th May and 15th September, and between 26th
October and 3rd November.

The expenditure for the fiscal year was $2,028.99.

DVKEM.w's SHOAL.

Dykeman's shoal, Queens county, is situated in the St. John river, between
(Jerow's and Hampstead wharfs, about 33 miles from St. John and 51 miles from
JVedoricton.

Dredging was done for the purpose of improving the entrance to Hampstead
wharf.

A triangular area, having a base of 64 feet and a height of 123, was dredged to 11
feet below low water. The total area dredged was about 394,000 square feet. During
the .seasor. of 1914, a channel, 1,715 feet long by 150 wide, was dredged through these
sjioals to a depth of 11 feet below low water. •

The material removed was sand and fine silt. 44,238 cubic yards place measure,
were removed according to the report of the dredge captain. The after-dredging
survey, which was not complete, shows 33,045 cubic yards. The work was done by
departmental dredge No. 12, which began on June 4 and finished the work on August
25, 1915.

Silting-up will probably occur but is not expected to do so rapidly. There is no
record of previous surveying or dredging at this place, therefore, nothing definite on
which to base an estimate of the life of the improvement.

FAIRIIAVEX.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

Fairhaven, Deer island, Charlotte county, is 7 miles from St. Andrews, and is a

sheltered fishing settlement and a port of landing for the mails.

During 1915-16, the Provincial Government wharf was transferred to the Domin-
ion Government. The pontoon of the floating slip, which was sunk in a storm, was
pumped out and repaired, on 14th February, 1916.

Expenditure for the fiscal year is $10.40.

FRENCH LAKE.

French lake, Sunbury county, is one of a chain of lakes and coimecting water-

ways draining into Grand lake from the north. The eastern shore is a good fruit

region, and a large amount of lumber is shipped out of this district annually.

19—12
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Dredging was done for the purpose of forming a channel 75 feet wide and 7 feet

deep, at low water, through the lower part of the lake, to give access to thfe St. John
river, via Maquapit lake. The total length of channel dredged was 2,910 feet, the area

dredged over being approximately 94,000 square feet.

The material removed consisted of sand and mud.
13,579-9 cubic yards, place measure, were removed, of which 11,119-9 yards were

within the authorized lines and grades. The corresponding scow measure was 15,738-2

yards. The expansion factor, therefore was 16 per cent.

The'contract rate of payment was 20 cents per yard.

The work was done by the dredge Tanfauanta, for the New Brunswick -Construc-

tion Co.

Dredging was commenced May 20 and was finished on October -1, 1915.

This is the first dredging done at this place, and, there is very little information

on which to base an estimate of its jjrobable permanence. It would seem, liowever,

that this channel should not need re-dredging for a long time.

GRAND AXSE.

Grand Anse, a station on the Caraquet railway, and a fishing and farming settle-

ment of about 800 inhabitants, is situated on the southern shore of the Bale des

Chaleurs, 28 miles northeast of Bathurst. The construction of a breakwater, for the

protection of the fishing boats, was begun here in 1876.

The pier-head of the breakwater was badly damaged by a heavy storm on the 20th

November, 1914. The covering and stringers and part of the upper tier of round
timbers were carried away for about 214 feet, and the whole of the inside face of the

westerly 106 feet down to low water level. On the easterly 112 feet the greater part of

the outer sloping face and upper face timbers were carried away.

Kepairs were in progress between 7th July and 7th August and between 17th

August and 30th September, 1915, when the faces were rebuilt together with 3 to 4 tiers

of inner timbers,, the work was ballasted, new stringers were laid ready for the covering,

and hardwood sheathing was laid on about 50 feet of the outer sloping face.

The expenditure for the fiscal year was $2,000.

GRAKD LAKE^ QUEEX'S COUNTY

Across the outlet of the lake a shoal has been formed by deposits from the iutlow-

ing tide. Dredging was done for the purpose of making a channel through this shoal.

The work undertaken consists of dredging, to 9 feet below low water, a channel
150 feet wide and approximately 9,400 feet long. Part of this area was already of the

required depth. The area over which dredging was actually required was approx-

imately 586,000 square feet. During the season of 1915, approximately 357,'K)0 siiuare

feet of this area was dredged, to 9 feet below low water, and there now is a channel to

that depth and about 70 feet wide at the narrowest part, all the way through the shoals.

It is estimated that lS.286-5 j-ards, place measure, remain to be removed.
The material removed consisted of silt, sand, sawdust, etc.

70,255 cubic yards, place measure, were removed, of which 53,694-6 were within

the authorized lines and grades. The corresponding scow measure was 59,097-2 yar<l!!.

The expansion factor was, therefore, 10 per cent, the explanation being that during
dredging a great deal of the light vegetable matter in the shoal was carried away by
the strong current as soon as disturbed.

The contract rate is 14i cents per yard, place measure, and the amount <1m(^ the

contractors, on work done in 1915, is $7,785.72.

The contractor is L. W. Nickerson and the work was done by the dredges Xeir
Brunswick No. J, and Tanlawanta.

Dredging began on September 6 and was suspended on November 17, 1915.
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The last dredging at tliis place, apparently, was done in 1902, when a channel 75

feet wide was dredged to a depth of 10 feet. It would, therefore, seem that dredging

will probably be needed agftin in 10 or 12 years.

(iUEAT SALMON RIVER.

Great Salmon river, St. John county, is a small tidal inlet, 8 miles east of Quaco,

and 43 miles east of St. John. Shipments of lumber are made from this place. Spring

tides rise .30 feet. A small harbour, dry at low water, is formed by the projection of

a beach from the west side, a narrow opening remaining for an entrance. To keep

open this entrance, piers, .372 and 316 feet long, respectively, have been built on botli

sides, by the department.

During 1915-16, five mooring [Xists, four of which were broken off in a heavy storm

by a barge moored at the breakwater, were replaced on the western breakwater.

Expenditure for the fiscal year is $97.94.

GRIMROSS CANAL.

Grimross canal. Queens county, is on the route of the steamers plying between-

St. John and Fredericton, 49 miles from St. John and 35 from Fredericton.
.Dredging was done here for the purpose of completing work begun in 1914.

This year a strip 430 feet long by about 40 wide was dredged to 11 feet below low
water. The work was begun in 1914 when the department's dredge ^o. 12, dredged
the western side of the canal to 9-5 feet below low water. Owing to the hard character
of the clay encountered. No. 12 was taken off this job and the eastern side of the cut
was dredged to 11 feet below low water, the work being done by contract.

The material removed was clay and rocks.

The total quantity removed in 1915 was 5,201-5 cubic yards, of this 4,946-6 were
.within the authorized lines and grades. The corresponding scow measure was 5,305-3
yards. The expansion factor therefore was 2 per cent.

The contract rate of payment was 21^ cents per cubic yard. The total amount
due the contractor was $1,063.52.

The contractor was the New Brunswick Construction Co., and the work was done
by the dredge Neiu Brunswick, Nc. 1.

Work begun on June 9 and was completed on June 16, 1915.

It is not expected that any appreciable filling in will occur at this place.

LEOXARDMLLE.

Leonardville is a fishing station on the eastern side of Deer island fpart of the
County of Cliarlotte), 3 miles from Lord's Cove and 2 miles from Charlotte Cove.

Thirty sardine boats, from 8 to 12 feet in draught, are owned at Leonardville, in the
neighbourhood of which there are 60 families. In 1909-10, a wharf, -303 feet in total

length, consisting of a trestle approach, 143 feet long, and 24 feet wide, a pile approach
120 feet in length, and a cribwork pier-head, 60 feet by 40 feet, was built by the
department. In 1913-14, a floating slip was constructed. The slip consists of a scow,
17 feet by 30 feet, and a bridge-span, 45 feet long and 6 feet wide.

In March, 1916, repairs were made to the floating slip, the pontoon having broken
loose in a storm.

Expenditure for the fiscal year is $7.48.

LITTLE BLACK RIVER.

The Little Black river flows into the main Black river, about 2 miles above the
mouth of the latter, on the south side of Miramichi bay and about IS miles from
Chatham.

19—12J
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Dredging was in progress between 2C)th October and 15th November with the

dredge Fowlie, under an agreement with Mr. W. B. MacDouald, in making a cut 600

feet long and 30 wide, to extend the river channel to a wharf on the south shore, and
making a turning basin about 50 feet square in front of the wharf, also in cutting oif

the point of a sharp turn in the channel about i mile below the wharf; at this point,

the dredging was about 200 feet long and had an average width of 25 feet.

The depth reached was 2 feet below low water ordinary spring tides.

The work was on a place measurement basis and the material removed amounted

to 2,956 1 cubic yards.

The expenditure was .$0;l(!.:lO, including $49.37 for inspection.

l.ITTI.i: DIPPEI! II.VRBOIR.

Little Dipper Harbour, St. John county, is a fishing station 20 miles southwest

of St. John, and U miles distant, by water, from Chance Harbour. In 191-i, the depart-

ment constructed a breakwater from the mainland to Crow island, to provide protection

for the fish houses and the creek. The work consists of round cribwork tilled with

ballast, 454 feet long and 24 feet wide on top.

During 1915-16, a roadway, 150 feet long, was built, to connect the public highway

with the breakwater. The work was in progress during the month of June, 1915.

Expenditure for the fiscal year is $111.72.

i.ohd's cove.

Lords Cove, a small fishing station on Doer Island (part of the County of

Charlotte), is a port of call for steamers plying between St. Stephen, St. Andrews,
Eastport and other points in Passamaquoddy bay. Tlie departmental wharf begun

in 1900-01 and completed in 1903-04, is a pile-and-trestle work, 328 feet long and 21

feet wide, with a pier-head, 50 by 40 feet, standing in 29 feet at iiigh water. The
stone approach is 28 feet in length.

During 1915-16, the movable slip was re-constructed; mooring posts were re-

newed and an iron extension was made to the ladder at the lower landing. Work
was begun 21st June, and completed 23rd July, 1915.

Expenditure for the fiscal year is $497.87.

LOWER CMi.U^rET.

Lower Caraquet is a fishing settlement about 7 miles east of Caraquet station.

The public wharf, which is 2,602 feet long, was built in 1909 and 1910.

During the fiscal year ending 31st ^larch, 1910, a strip of 2-inch plank 9 feet

wide was laid longitudinall.v over the old worn covering of the approach 2,500 feet

long. A sloping cribwork approach to the beach. 22 feet long by 16 fix^t wide, was
built on the east side at the inner end of the wharf.

Work was in progress between 1st and 23r(l July, and 4tli and 19tli August.

The expenditure for the fiscal year was $l,2(><i.75.

LOWER ST. LOIIS.

The St. Louis river enters the NurtliunilxTliuid strait about 7 miles north of

Hichibucto.

Inside the entrance is a wide lagoon, generally shallow except in the win<liiig

river channel.

Dredging has been carried on in tlic last 4 .vcars tn olitain a cut !<• Icrt wide,

H-ith 3 feet at low water ordinary si)ring tides, across the flats to give a direct

cliannel for the fishing lK>ats from the entrance to the river pniper.
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During 1915, the cut was extended about 500 feet or to the 3-foot line at the

inner end, and several narrow and shallow sections of the former season's work were

dredged. The cut has now a total length of 5,000 feet, a width of 30 to 40 and a

general depth of 2'5 feet at low water ordinary spring tides, except at one or two

points where the depth is 2 feet. It ranges with the entrance lights of St. Louis

gully, except the inner 1,000 feet, which is in line with the up-river channel, at an
angle of 40° with the first range.

The material removed during 1915, consisting of mud, with sand at the outer

end, amounted to 4,219 cubic .yards, costing 28-5 cents per cubic yard.

Work was in progress between 26th July and 23rd August and between 13th

September and 2nd October, with a small orange peel dredge, the " St. Louis Star ",

which was hired for $13.00 per day including wages of engineer and cost of gasoline,

and oil.

The expenditure for the fiscal year 1915-16 was $996.05.

mcclure's. '

McClure's, Queens county, is on the Salmon river, about two miles belov?

Chipman. At this place, a bad shoal had been formed chiefly as the result of an

ice-jam in the river. The object of the dredging was to form a channel 9 feet deep

at low water and 75 feet wide through this shoal. Dredging was done over a channel

l<?ngth of 1,740 feet. The area dredged over was approximately 75,000 square feet.

The material removed was silt, sand and gravel.

5,156-4 cubic yards> scow measure, were removed. The contract rate of pay-

ment was 27J cents per cubic yard, and the total amount due the contractor was

$1,418.01.

The contractor was the New Brunswick Construction Co. and the work was
done by the dredges Tantawanfa and New Brunswick, No. 1.

Work-began on June 29 and was finished on July 19, 1915.

The channel is, under ordinary conditions, likely to gradually silt up. An ice-

jam in the river may cause the formation of a dangerous shoal any season. Tt is,

therefore, not possible to be very definite in predicting the probable life of this

improvement.

MAIJUAPIT LAKE.

Maquapit Lake, Queens and Sunbury counties, is one of a chain of lakes and con-

necting waterways draining into Grand Lake from the north. It lies between French
and Grand lakes.

The object of the dredging was to form a channel, 75 feet wide and 7 deep at low

water, through the shoal at the upper end of the lake. This forming part of the scheme

now completed to provide 7 feet navigation from French lake to the St. John river.

The total length of the channel dredged was 2,755 feet. The area dredged over was

approximately 208,000 square feet.

The work done this year in Maquapit and French lakes completes a project begun

some years ago to form a 75 foot channel, 7 feet deep at low water, from the head of

French lake to Grand lake.

The material removed was sand and clay. 46,715-6 cubic yards place measure,

were removed and 44,020-7 of this was within the authorized lines and grades.

The contract rate of payment was 20 cents per yard. The contractors were there-

fore entitled to $8,804.14. The contractor was the New Brunswick Construction Co.

and the work was done by the dredges New Brunswiclr No. 1 and Tantawanta.

Dredging commenced on April 26 and was finished on July 14, 1915.

It is expected that this channel will not require re-dredging for a considerable

number of years
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MARTI.x's HEAD.

Martin's Head, St. John county, is situated at tlie mouth of Quidd.y river, on the
north shore of the Bay of Fuudy, 12 miles east of Great Salmon river. About four
million feet of lumber and two thousand cords of pulpwood are shipped .annually from
this place. During 1914-15, a breastwork was constructed by the department, for the

protection of the Pejepscot Paper Company's wharf from easterly storms. All the

lumber for the work was supplied free of charge by this company. The work consists

of a timber groyne made of piling, sheathed for 150 feet, and of pile-bents, close-piled

on the seaward side, for 275 feet.

During 1915-16, the pile breastwork was extended 260 feet, the Pejepscot Paper
Company supplying the timber, as formerly. The work consists of pile-bents of 5 piles

each, capped and braced, and close-j)iled on the seaward side. Work was in progress

between 1st June and September, 1915.

Expenditure for the fiscal year is $3,223.61.

XEGU.U'.

J^eguac lies on the northern side of Miramichi bay about 27 miles northeast of

Chatham. The public wharf, built by the department in 1892 to 1894, is the terminal

point for trips of the daily river steamer.

Between 29th July and 6th August, 1915, the 40-foot span near the shore end of

the wharf, which was in a dangerous condition, was repaired. A new truss was built

on one side and a 40-foot cap timber was renewed. Several holes in the covering of

the wharf were repaired.

The exjienditure for the fiscal year was $46.81.

OAK POINT.

Oak Point, Northumberland county, is a settlement on the north side of the Mira-

michi river, 12 miles below Chatham. The public wharf, which is 481 feet long, was

built in 1907 and 1908.

During the fiscal year 1915-16, the covering of the wharf and of the approach from

the beach on the westerly side was repaired, about 2,700 feet B. M. of 4-inch lumber

being used in renewing broken and decayed planks.

Work was in progress between 22nd and 24th June and on 23rd and 24th Novem-
ber.

The expenditure for the fiscal year was $81.61.

OROMOCTO SHOALS.

Oromoeto, Sunbury county, is situated on the St. John river, about 12 miles

below l''redericton. The shoals extend over about 5 miles of channel and constitute,

by far, the most serious and persistent obstruction to navigation between St. John and

JTredericton.

At this place the flood-plane of the river widens rapidly, and the velocity of flow,

in flood-time, is very much reduced. The silt carried by the swift currents above is

consequently deposited, when the current slackens, and thus the shoals are formed.

During low water, the river carries little or no silt, and the currents over the shoals

are stronger than they are above, with the result that erosion imdoubtedly occurs at

these bars during low water.

Dredging at Oromoeto shoals has been carried on intermittently by the Depart-

ment since as early as 1872, and the records .show that about 500,000 cubic yards have

been removed. Most of this, apparently, is scow measure. Due to the annual silting



REPORT OF THE CHIEF ENGINEER 183

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

up, little if any permanent improvement has resulted. At tlie present time, in the

vicinity of 200,000 cubic yards, place measure, remains to be dredged in order to give

a channel 150 feet wide dredged to 11 feet below low water.

During the past season, the main channel was dredged for a length of about 1,900

feet, by 150 in width, to a depth of 11 feet below low water. A small area outside this

channel was also dredged.

The material removed consisted of fine sand and silt.

According to the reports of the dredge captain, 42,224 cubic yards, place measure,

were removed, while the survey which, unfortunately, was not quite complete would

make it appear that only 27,217 cubic yards were removed. This difference is probably

due in part to silting up of the channel between the times of dredging and surveying

also to the method of measuring the depth of face to which the dredge is working.

The work was done by departmental dredge No. 12. Dredging began August 8

and was suspended on November 11. From past experience at this place, it would

appear that the improvement is not liable to be very permanent.

PARTRIDGE ISLAND.

Lolo ivater landing.

Partridge island is the quarantine and lighthouse station, and at present a mili-

tary station, at the entrance of St. John harbour. The departmental wharf at Part-

ridge island, consisting of two wings of close-faced cribwork, 120 and 160 feet long,

respectively, with stone filling between, was built in 1910, for quarantine purposes.

In March, 1916, a quantity of timber was purchased with which to make repairs

and improvements to the low water landing. This landing is used by tug boats,

carrying soldiers to and from Partridge island, and was considerably damaged, partly

by a boat and partly by a storm.

Expenditure for the fiscal year is $248.99.

Water pipe.

In 1905-06, a 6-inch wrought-iron pipe was placed across the west channel of St.

John harbour., from Fort DufiFerin to Partridge island, to supply the buildings on the

island with fresh water. This pipe line was damaged and repaired several times, and

later had to be abandoned. In 191.3-14, a contract was let for the supply and delivery

of 3,.30O lineal feet of new pipe, consisting of fle/xible,* copper tubing, 4 inches in

diameter. The work of laying the pipe in a dredged trench was begun in 1913, and

was completed in 1914.

On 2nd September, 1915, the pipe line was torn in two by the anchor of a vessel.

Both ends of the pipe were located and buoyed, and on 20th, the same month, a new
piece of tubing, 36 feet longt. was connected up with the pipe in the trench. Tests

showed that a satisfactory job was done.

Expenditure for the fiscal year is $328.73.

PETIT ROCIIER.

Petit Roeher is a fishing and a farming settlement on the Bale des Chaleurs, 12

miles north of Bathurst. A breakwater was constructed here between 1905 and 190S.

Between the 1st and 8th June, on 20th September and between 20th and 20t]i

October, 1915, slight repairs were made to the plank covering and to the road leading

from the highway to the breakwater; 50 cubic yards of large stone blocks purchased last

year were placed outside the approach, and a careful examination was made with the

aid of a diving apparatus of the under-water sections of the breakwater, in consequence

of reports that considerable damage had occurred there. The breakwater .was found to

be in good condition.

The expenditure for the fiscal year was $199.22.
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PORTAGE RnXR.

Portage river is a small stream enteriiijr the Northumberland strait, about 5 miles

south of Point Sapin, and 6 miles north of Kouchibouguae.

During the past three seasons, work has been in progress on the construction of a

dam to close the old winding and shallow entrance, and of breastworks and break-

waters, at either side of a direct opening through the sand beach which had blocked

the old mouth of the Portage river

During the fiscal year ending 31st March, 1916, the dam, 180 feet long, built in

1914, was raised 2 feet with brush and stone, and an extension 240 feet long was built

12 feet wide and 6 feet high. The dam is composed of brush mattresses secured with

pickets and ballast. At the southern end of the dam about 800 lineal feet of stake and

brush breastworks were built to hold tlie sand and raise the crest of the beach.

The south breakwater was completed by driving 12 close-piles on the south side and

both breakwaters were filled with brush. About 83 scow-loads of brush were used in the

works.

Early in the season, the freshet opened up the new entrance between the break-

waters by carrying out the sand, leaving a firm bottom of marsh mud and peat which
was not easily scoured out by the current. A cut was therefore made at low tide, by

hand labour, about 400 feet long 1.5 feet wide and 2 feet deep, giving about 2 feet at

low water. A satisfactory channel has resulted which promises to be permanent and

to gradually increase in depth through scour.

The expenditure for the fiscal year was $89.'!. 27.

QU.\CO.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

Quaeo, or St. Martins, St. John county, is situated on the Ba.v of Fundy coast, 34

miles east of St. John.

During 1915-16, holes were cut in the face of the work and the ballast was removed,

so that access could be gained to the hole scoured out, which was at about low water

level. Along the face of the work, beneath the outer timbers, a concrete wall, 72 feet

long, 3 feet wide, and from 5 to 8 feet deep, was built, and the whole cavity beneath the

work filled with rock-ballast. The top of the breakwater was built up to its original

height with S.136 cubic feet of s<iuare cribwork, filled with rock. A groyne. 100 feet

long, was constructed on the seaward side of the work to collect sand and gravel. The
results of this work were very satisfactory, the berth inside being levelled off with

gravel and mud, and the creek turned so that it does not now reach the face of the

work. The work was begun on 4th Ma.v, and was completed 29th October, 1915, being

in progress during portions of the months of May and June, and continuously during

the remainder of the time.

Expenditure for the fiscal year is $4,486.95.

RED STORE.

Red Store, Charlotte county, on the Magaguadavic, is 3 miles west of St. George,

'and is used as a winter landing for the towni. Pulpwood is shii)ped from this wharf.

The wharf at Ked Store consists of round cribwork S3 feet long, 25 feet wide, with a

pier-head 21 by 39 feet, standing in 13 feet at high water. This wharf was built by

the Provincial Government many years ago, but was transferred to the Federal Govern-

ment in 1915.

During 1915-16, the top of the work, with an area of 2,327 square feet, was covered

with 3-inch spruce plank; six new stringers and 217 lineal feet of cap were placed on

the work and the roadway to the wharf was turnpiked and repaired. The work was

carried on during the month of Xovcmber, 1915.

Expenditure for the fiscal year is $318.86.
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RESTWorCHF, linER.

Ship Channel.

Between 4tli and 3Uth October, 1915, the government dredge St. Lawrence, or

No. 2, was at work ou the ship channel of the Restigouche river, on the range of the

Campbellton lights, in the 3,000 feet immediately below the de«p-water wharfs.

Depths of 16 to 19 feet were reached, except at one point, where there is 15 feet

at low water.

The material removed, consisting of gravel, sand, etc., amounted to 1S.200 cubic

yards, barge measurement.
The government dredge Restigouche, or No. 3, worked on this section for one day,

the 27th August, when 683 cubic yards were removed.

Dredge No. S also worked between 2nd and 26th August over The Traverse on the

range of the Oak-Point lights, 1| to 3 miles below the deep-water wharves. On this

range, 29,486 cubic yards, barge measurement, of sand and gravel were removed, giving

a least depth of 15^ feet at low water on the centre line.

On the next section of the .ship channel, about 2,400 feet long, and the la.«t where

shoal-water was encountered, dredge No. 3 removed 64,577 cubic yards, working

between 14th June and 31st July, and giving a depth of about 18 to 20 feet at low

water. The material was sand.

REXTON. k

Eexton, Kent county, lies on the Richibucto river, about 6 miles above its mouth.
Dredging was required in the berth in front of the public wharf to remove a bank

and enable vessels to lie close to the face, where were, formerly, depths of 7 to 14 feet

at low water.

The wharf is 250 feet long, and the average width of the bank, out to the 1.5-foot

contour, the required depth, was 30 feet.

During the latter part of 1914, about 615 cubic yards were removed. The work
was earriefl on, by day labour, with the small orange dredge, Farmer's Friend belonging

to the Weldford Agricultural Society.

Dredging was continued between 24th May and 28th June, 1915, when 1,364 cubic

yards, barge measurement, were removed, at a cost of $634.49, or 46i cents per cubic

yard. The material was firm mud. The berth was deepened about 2 feet or>to 14 to 15

feet at low water ordinarj- spring tides.

A small amount of dredging, included in the above quantity, was also done in the

berth at the upper end of the wharf.

RICHIBICTO BEACH.

The Richibucto river enters the Northumberland strait 3 miles below the town of

Richibucto, about 26 miles south of Miramichi bay, and 40 miles north of Shediae.

Works intended to protect the beaches at each side of the entrance and to increase,

by scour, the depth over the bar outside, were begun on the north beach in 1873.

On the 7th July, 1914, a contract was entered into with Engineers & Contractors,
Ltd., for the construction of extensions to the breakwaters at the north and south

beaches.

The extension to the north breakwater was completed during 1914.

Work began on the south breakwater on 13th May, 1915, and the contract was
completed on 20th September.

The extension of the south breakwater is 299-9 feet lone and 16-4 feet wide on
top, and consists of a stone-fill 26 feet long laid over the end slope of the old work, and

a pile breakwater, 273-9 feet long, composed of 46 braced pile-bents, of 3 piles each,

close-piled at the outer end and on each side. The outer end, and a leugth of about
18 feet on either side, is doubly close-piled; the piles are driven through brush mat-
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.tresses which, outside the pilework, support slopes of large stoue reaching up to low-

water level. The interior is filled with brush and stone. The top of the work is 11

feet above high-water ordinary spring tides.

The expenditure for the fiscal year was $.30,326.'>2, iiichuliiig $310.48 for inspec-

tion. The total amount of the contract for both extensions, which was on a unit price

basis, was fSS.O.il.lG and the total expenditure to date, on the Ricbibucto beach works,

has been $241,982.97.

RICHCBUCTO CAPE.

Richibucto Cape lies 6 miles southeast of the entrance to Richibucto harbour

and 5i miles north of Chockfish river. The distance from Richibucto cape to Prince
Edward Island is 14J miles.

The works at Richibucto cape, b^un in 1908, will consist of a main breakwater
and a southern pier forming a sheltered harbour about 2.8 acres in extent.

During the fiscal year 1915-16, work was in progress on the southern pier, of

which a shore section 60 feet long, was begun in the previous year. The additional

tiers were placed and three extra cribs built giving the work a total length of 326

feet. The cribs are about Hi feet wide at the bottom and 9 feet high.

A 30-foot end-block, which had settled considerably at one corner, was levelled

with extra timbers, three tiers of 10 by 12 lumber being required at the deepest

point. There remains a gap of about 160 feet between the end block and the pre-

sent end of the approach as well as an opening of 100 feet between the end block

and the pier-head of the breakwater.

A plank gangway on trestles, 160 feet long by 7 feet wide, was built from the

north side of the breakwater to the top of the bank at the lobster factory.

The exependiture for the fiscal year was $2,009.21.

RIVER ST. JOHN AND TRIBUTARIES.

BUKTON COURT HOUSE.

Repairs to the floor of the wharf at this place were made by day labour; 6,000 feet

B.M. of 3-inch spruce planking were placed.

Work commenced September 10 and was completed September 15, 1915.

The total cost of the work was $149.

earle's.

A graded timber-wharf was constructed at this place by day labour. Work
commenced June 19 and was completed October 29, 1915.

The old low-water wharf had got into very bad condition and was too low to

be of use, except in very low water. The present work consists of removing the top,

over part of the area of the old wharf, to below low-water, and building a new crib

on the foundation thus obtained. Over the rest of the old wharf, piles were driven,

capped and floored with 3-inch planking. The graded and high water sections con-

sist of a rock-filled crib with gravel surface on the upstream side and pile bents and
plank floor on the down stream side. A timber trestle, 48 feet long, and an earth-

fill, 30 feet C inches long, forms the approach.

A 10 by 20 warehouse., divided into waiting and store rooms, was built at the

inner end of the graded section.

The total cost of the work was $4,006.25.

EVAXDALE.

The warehouse and steps on the wharf were given two coats of paint, under
agreement with Wm. N. VanWart.

The total cost of the work was $25.
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Hatfield's point.

A concrete sidewalk was built on the graded concrete wharf.

The fill and surfacing of the wharf had settled and washed considerably since it

was placed in the latter part of 1914:. This was repaired at the same time the sidewalk

was built.

The work was done by day labour, and work commenced June 29 and was com-

pleted July 27, 1915.

The total cost of the work was $2.37.43.

LONG POINT.

A graded timber wharf was constructed by day labour. Work commenced June 24

and was completed November 27, 1915.

The old low-water wharf had got into very bad condition and was too small for the

traffic to be accommodated. The present work consits of enlarging it, by sinking a

new crib entirely around the pier-head, the approach was also widened by building a

crib 10 feet wide all the way inshore along it? down-stream side. The up-stream face

of the old approach was torn down and a new facing replaced it. A large part of the

old wharf above low water was torn down and the new work was securely tied in with

sound timbers in the old wharf. Close-face work of 10 by 10 hemlock was used

throughout above low water. A 10 by 20 warehouse divided into waiting and store-

rooms, was built at the inner end of the graded section.

The total cost of the work was $5,501.77.

MILLEDGE\ ILLE.

A new ferry landing was constructed at this place. The old landing, consisting

of 6 timber-crib piers, had become so badly rotted as to be useless, and these were torn

out and 8 new piers built in their place. As there was no suitable place on shore for

storing the coal used by the ferry steamer, the tops of the piers on one side of the land-

ing were connected, and a coal bin built thereon.

The work was done by day labour, and work commenced October 4, 1915, and was
finished March 31, 1916.

The total cost of the work was $4,242.76.

OROMOCTO.

Repairs to the low-water wharf were made by day labour. The work consisted of

repairing the two protection piers and filling them with stone.

Work commenced October 25 and was completed November 1, 1915.

The total cost of the work was $138.88.

High Water Wharf.

The floor of the high-water wharf was repaired at a cost of $10.25.

RENFORTH.

A low water wharf was constructed at this place by day labour. Work commenced
September 22, 1915, and was completed on March 31, 1916.

The wharf consists of pier-head, 48-8 feet on the iace by 33i-8 feet deep, with an
18-foot approach, 143-5 feet long and an earth and stone fill grading 98 feet long. The
approach and part of the pier-head are carried on piles. The remainder of the pier-

head is a close-faced rock-filled timber crib.

The total cost of the work was $4,055.97.
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Sl'MMERVILLE.

A new ferry-landing, consisting of 8 rock-filled timber-cribs and a graded
approach, was constructed at tbis place. The old cribs, of which there were five, had
become badly rotted and practically useless.

The work was done by day labour, and work began .Tune 1-t and was completed
October 4, 1915.

The total cost of the work was $3,975.67.

SUilMERVILLE AND BAYSWATER.

These two places are on the route of the ferry steamer Maggie Miller. The ferry-

landing at each place was in very bad condition and in order to make them usable at

high water, 25 piles were driven at Summerville and 6 at Bayswater.
The work was done in May, 1915, under agreement with Robert Roberts and Son.
The total cost of the work was $155.04.

IPPEB M.UGERMLLE.

The floor of the high-water wharf was repaired at a cost of $11.37.

UPPER ST. JOHX RIVER.

EDJIUXDSTOX.
,

Some years ago, the department built a training wall along the river bank at this

place. The area between this wall and the village houses was used as a dump and
came to be a menace to public health. During the past year, this area has been filled

and covered with a gravel surface.

The work was done by day labour; work began May 10 and was completed July
16, 1915.

The total cost of the work was $1.,5(X).71.

GRAB-ALL, TOBIQUE RIVER.

This place is situated just above the mouth of the river and has been a very diffi-

cult and expensive place to drive logs past. A stone-filled timber crib was built to

keep logs from going on Grab-all island.

The work was done by day labour ; work began on September 14 and was com-
pleted October 29.

The total cost of the work was $500.21.

GRAND RIVER.

During the past season, two rock-filled timber cribs were built on this river, one
was 164 feet long, 5 feet wide and 7 feet high, and the other 80 feet long and 7 feet

high. Considerable work was also done in removing rocks, trees, etc.

The work was done by day labour, and was begun September 1 and completed Sep-

tember 17, 1915.

The total cost of the work was $399.88.

GREEN RIVER.

During the past season, rocks were blasted from the channel of this river over a

stretch of 30 miles, beginning 7 miles from the mouth of the river.

The work was done by day l.ibour; work was begun August 10 and cumiililed

October 27, 1915.

The total cost of the work was $570.
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ntOQUOIS RHER.

About 8 miles from the mouth of this river, a stone-filled timber crib, 121 feet

long, 8 feet wide, and from 5 to 7 feet high, was built to prevent excessive bank erosion.

The work was done by day labour, and was begun December 1, 1915, and finished

January 29, 1916.

The total cost of the work was $396.86.

WINK COVE, TOBIQUE Rn'EU.

A breakwater, 115 feet long and S to 16 feet wide and 7 feet high, was built at

this place. It consisted of a rock-fillod cedar crib.

The work was done by day labour, and was begun September 28 and completed
October 13, 1915.

The total cost of this work was $299.06.

QUISIBUS RIVER.

On this river, at a point about li miles from the mouth of the river, an abut-*

ment, 75 feet long, 13 to 30 feet wide, and 7 feet high, was built to prevent bank ero-

sion. It consisted of a stone-filled timber crib.

The work was done by day labour, and was begun August 23 and completed August
27, 1915.

The total cost of the work was $195.50.

RED RAPIDS.

During the past season, rocks were blasted from the channel of the Tobique river

between Red rapids and the head of the narrows.

Work was done by day labour, and was begim August 28 and completed Septem-
ber 15.

The total cost of the work was $247.96.

SIEOAS RI\ ER.

The banks of this river were riprapped, the channel cleared and a cut made
through a bar.

The work was done by day labour, and was begun September 1 and completed
September 17, 1915.

The total cost of the work was $199.50.

ST. FRAXflS RIVER.

A tow-path, three miles long, was cleared on this river.

The work was done by day labour, and was begun November 8 and finished

Xoveraber 19, 1915.

The total cosit of the work was $100.

TOBICJIE NARROWS.

Rocks were blasted from the chaimel at this place.

The work was done by day labour, and was begun August 3 and completed
August 14.

The total cost of the work was $200.

TROUT UI\ER.

During the spring freshet, this river broke away from its old bed and eroded a

new chaimel about 1,500 feet long. A stone-filled timber crib 145 feet long and 4

to 5 feet higli on the face, was built, to turn the river back into its old bed.
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The work was done by day labour, and was begun November 9, lUlo, and com-
pleted January 10, 1916.

The total cost of the work was $372.87.

TURNER.

This place is on the Tobique river alwut IS miles above Perth. A breakwater,

152 feet long, 8 feet wide, and 5 feet high, was repaired at this place. It consisted

of a stone-filled timber-crib, and was for the purpose of aiding log driving.

The work was done by day labour, and was begun September 2 and completed

September 30. 1915.

The total cost of the work was $150.

AVOOLHAUPTER.

This place is on the Tobique river about 14 miles above Perth. Here, the

channel, back of Woolhaupter island, had become choked for a distance of about

one-half mile by drift-wood. During the summer, this obstruction was removed.
The work was done by day labour, and was begun September 3 and finished

September 6, 1915.

The total cost of the work was $49.50.

RIVER AUD TRIBUTARIES GENERALLY.

Owing to the extensive lumber operations on the St. John River system, there

are annually a great many snags to be removed. In the main these consist of logs,

v.hich have become water-logged and partl.v .submerged. Very frequently these logs

lie in an inclined position with one end on the bottom of the river and the other at

or near the surface. They constitute a very serious danger to navigation and each

year a large number are removed.

In 1915, snagging began on August 25 and was finished on October IG, and the

total cost of the work was $1,883.06.

ST. ANDREWS.

St. Andrews, Charlotte county, is a terminus of a branch of the Canadian Pacific

Railway, and lies, by water, 50 miles west of St. John. An extension of tlic public, or

what is known as the market wharf, was built by the department in 1909-10. The
extension consists of a pile-approach 468 feet long, and a pier-bead of square oribwork,

36 by 70 feet. There is a depth of 34 feet at high water at the end of the pier-head.

During 1915-16, some of the covering on tlie wharf was replaced, and repairs were

made to the waiting-room of the freight shed. Work was in progress from July 26

to August 20, 1915.

Expenditure for the fiscal year is $362.42.

ST. CHARLES.

The St. Charles river flows into the northwest arm of Richibueto harbour, about
4 miles northwest of Richibueto. The river is navigable for small boats for about
5 miles or as far as the upper highway bridge, and drains a good farming district,

having a population of about 150 families.

During the fiscal year 1915-16, a small wharf, for landing and storing shell-mud,

used as a fertilizer, was built on the north shore of the St. Charles river, about 3 miles

above the mouth and 2 miles below the landing constructed in the previous .year. The
wharf consists of an aiiproach, 40 by 12 feet and a block 40 by 40 feet. It is 4 feet

high at the outer end and is built of round-timber cribwork, every alternate ba,y having
a ballast floor and is filled with ballast and with mud dredged from the berth in front.
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and surfaced with about 6 inches of gravel. A right of way, 33 feet wide, was ])ur-

chased and a road about 300 feet long graded, ditched and surfaced with gravel, 10 feet

wide, and fenced on either side with wire fencing.

The work was in progress on June S, July Iti, 19 nnd 21 and on August 2, between

October 4 and 14, on October 23 and between November 9 and 16.

The expenditure for the fiscal year and the total to date has been $473.77.

Landing Slip.

Between the 2nd and 5th No-vember, 1915, a slip or ramp of the landing near the

upper highway bridge of the St. Charles river, which had been lifted by a scow moored
to it during a freshet, was replaced. The S^.ip was weighted with about 12 tons of stone

placed over 10 new ballast poles and also secured with six anchors of wire and stone

sunk 4 feet below the work. ^

The expenditure for the fiscal year was $26.12.

Dredging.

Dredging was asked for and has been carried on in the last three seasons, to enable

scowloads of shell mud, used as a fertilizer, to be delivered at the farms along the river

and at a storage point at the head of navigation. About 4,500 cartloads were used

during the past season.

Work was in progress by day labour between 5th August and 19th October and

between 3rd and 5th November, 1915', when 1,(100 feet of the channel was drelijed, IJ to

2 feet deep, for a width of 30 feet. A small orange-peel dredge, the St. Charles, belong-

ing to the local agricultural society was hired, at $14 per day, including wages of

engineer and cost of oil and gasolene. As the work proceeded, rough l>reastworks of

logs, brush and mill refuse weighted with stone and filled with dredged material were

built at one side or other for about 1,400 feet of the cut to retain the current in the

dredged channel.

The material removed, consisting of sand, mill refuse, etc., amounted to 3,622 cubic

yards, barge measurements, and cost, including the cost of the breastworks, 44.7 cents

per cubic yard.

The expenditure for the fiscal year was $1,619.89.

ST. CROIX RIVER.

The St. Croix river, Charlotte county, forms part of the western boundary of New
Brunswick, and at the same time a portion of the boundary between the Dominion of
Canada and the United States. In 1911, an arrangement was entered into with the

United States Government, whereby the Public Works Department of Canada agreed

to contribute 10 per cent of the cost of dredging a channel in the St. Croix river.

The total estimated quantity was 443,835 cubic yards, to provide a chainicl, D feet deep
and 100 feet wide, from the upper steamboat wharf at Calais to the public landing at

St. Stephen, thence, 9 feet deep and 150 feet wide, to the lower steamboat wharf at

Calais, thence, 12 feet deep and 200 feet wide, to the mouth of the river.

On 9th of February, 1912, the United States Government entered into a contract

with the Bay State Dredging Company, of Boston, Mass., for the first instalment of

dredging, namely, 226,920 cubic yards. Work was begun 17th May, 1912, and on 27th

September, 1913, the dredging covered by the first contract was completed. The total

quantity removed under the first contract was 237,420 cubic yards, scow measurement.
On 22nd September. 1913. the United States Government entered into a second

contract with the Bay State Dredging Company, for the removal of 140,000 cubic

yards, scow measurement. The work on the second contract was begun on 29th

September, 1913, and was completed on 28th December, 1914. The total quantity

removed under this contract was 244,216 cubic yards of mill-waste, mud, gravel,

sawdust and logs and 11 cubic yards of boulders.
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On 7th September, 1915, the United States Government entered into a contract

with the Eastern Dredging Company, of Boston, Mass., for the dredging of a channel,

2.000 feet in length, to a depth of 9 feet at mean low water, from the upper end of the

section previously dredged, opposite the public landing at St. Stephen. X.B.. upstream
to a point near the international bridge at Calais, Maine. The estimated quantity to

be removed under this contract is 69,200 cubic yards. Between 27th October and
9th December. 1915, the Eastern Dredging Conrpany's dredge. Keiuieher. removed,
above the required depth, 17,S46 cubic yards of mill-waste, mud. sand, gravel and logs

and 2-22 cubic yards of boulders.

Canada's share of the cost of dredging done in 1915-16, is as follows:

—

10 per cent of 17,846 cubic yards at $0.5383 $960.65

10 per cent of 2-22 cubic yards at $10 , . 2.22

Total $962.87

-ST. .JOHX HARBOUR.

Coiirtenai/ Bail.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

During 1915-16, the work of laying large-sized cover stone on the breakwater has

progressed satisfactorily, there only remains about one-seventh of the outside length,

and about half of the inside and of the top wall to be laid. The concrete pier-head

was carried up to full height. No work was done in the excavation of the dry dock

prism proper but the area on each side which will accommodate tracks and repair

shops, etc., has been increased by excavation. The suction and ladder dredges

excavated 1,987.319 cubic yards in the basin, increasing the hole to about seventy-one

acres in extent, varying in depth from 10 to 20 feet below low water. The ladder

dredges have excavated 1,095,343 cubic yards, from the second half of the channel

widtli for about the inner third of the channel length, giving a width of 500 feet, and

making a depth of from 10 to 20 feet at low tide. The expenditure tor the fiscal year

was $924,025.18.

BKACOX BAR.

(This work is described in the annual reiwrt for 1915.)

Fiscal year 1915-16, concrete work under this contract was completed on May 7,

1915. This included the completing of the wall started by Mr. Connolly, at berth 14,

the end of the pier and the southern end of the wall at the head of the second slip,

4,472 cubic yards of concrete were placed.

The concentrated weight of reclaimed material, on the back of the north wall of

the pier, caused a settlement of the central part of the wall into a yielding substra-

tum of the foundation. To prevent further lateral motion, sixty-six 2-inch 200-ton

capacity plough steel cables were run across the pier, securing tlie two walls together.

The expenditure for the fiscal year 1915-16 was $111,342.73.

Bachfilling for Wharves.

On the 1st of February, 1913, a contract wa'S entered intu witli tlic Maritime

Dredging & Construction Company, Ltd., for earth filling at the back of the lines of

cribwork and concrete superstructure being built on the I'eacon Bar, at a i)rice of 15

cents per cubic yard.

During the fiscal year 11114-15. the tilling nnidunti'd t.i 1.1)74.694 cubic yards, for

whicli tlic sum of $161,204.10 was |i:iid tiie contractors.



REPORT OF THE CHIEF ENGINEER 193

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

During the fiscal year 1915-16, 24,953 cubic yards were placed, at a cost of $3,742.95.

This completed the amount of filling covered by their contract, and operations were
suspended until a further contract is let.

Permanent Shed Foundations.

In June, 1914, the Government entered into an agreement with the Maritime

Dredging & Construction Co., Ltd., for the construction of the foundations for the per-

manent shed A, on the site where the temporary shed is built at present.

Owing to the necessity of building this temporary shed, no work was done during
the year outside of the purchase of piles and other materials, the plan being to proceed

with the building of the foundations for the shed on the pier during the next season,

leaving the construction of shed A till some later date. The expenditure during 1914-

15 was $6,666.69.

No work was done on this during the year 1915-16, as the backfilling was not in

place in the pier to take the foundations. The expenditure of $1,374.34 was occasioned

by the purchase of material, and the removal of that on hand, to a new storage loca-

tion.

Temporary Sheds.

Extra storage accommodation was found to be necessary for the handling of muni-
tions of war during the winter season, and Messrs. Rhodes Curry Company, of

Amherst, were awardted a contract to construct three temporary wooden sheds. A, B,
C, for the sum of $19,100. Later, it was found that these sheds would not be sufficient,

and their contract was extended to cover construction of an additional shed, D, at a

price proportionate to the cubic volume as compared with the contract price and
volume of the other three sheds, $13,309.15. The shed A was an extension of the shed

built in 1914 at berth 15, westward to near the head of the slip, and is 198 feet long
and 80 feet wide. Shetl B, 240 feet along berth 14, and 90 along berth 15, connected
with the older shed, 80 feet wide and four feet higher than that shed, i.e., 18 feet 4
inches. Shed C was built on the western end of the Government portion of the Union
pier, berth 7, and is 155 feet long and varied from 70 to 42 feet wide and is 18 feet

4 inches high, built to the rear of sheds at berths 14 and 15. The first three were
completed first and the last on the 31st of December, 1915.

The follovving extras and equipment of the sheds, etc., were built under the cost,

plus 10 per cent, clause of their contract ; criTswork track depression retaining walls at
the rear of sheds A and B, and three sides of D ; the extension of the shed platform to

top of these; continuous platform in front of sheds A and B to the face of the wharf
instead of ramps ; extension of track depression retaining-wall with a platform between
same and face of wharf at west end of shed A; construction of a cribwork and plank-
protection retaining-wall for embankment westward from the head of berth 15 ; placing
of mooring posts, the construction of loading gangways, landing stages, additional
doors, etc., in the older shed 15, etc. Total amount for these being $10,656.81.

John B. Jones, jr., was awarded the contract for the installation of electric light-

ing systems in these sheds, contract price was $1,450, and an addition for extra
lights was $62.98.

The Canadian Pacific Railway Company were authorized to construct a pile and
frame work trestle, on which they laid their track, from the siding on Protection street,

ending in two sidings at the rear of shed B, berth 14. They also widened tlio emVank-
ment so that an additional track could be laid from their new elevator yard and laid

seven tracks, for storage and shunting purposes, at the rear of shed D to connect with
this. The trackvvork required a small amount of excavation and fill to make grade
for the tracks. The agreement with the company being that they will be reimbursed
for the trestlework and fill, etc., required on which to lay their tracks, the latter to be

19—13
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removed by the company at the end of the v.'ar, should the department not wish to pur-

chase them. They also supplied the filling between the track depression retaining-

walls, on -which shed D is constructed, total cost being $7,689.11. They also constructed
a platform at the north end of shed B.

The Maritime Company repaired floating fenders, that had been damaged, at a

cost of $086.04.

The following new and repair work was done by day labour at berth No. 15

:

extension of 8-inch water main to near the head of berth No. 15, a distance of 435 feet;

thawing out and repairing fire protection and steamship service water-pipes that froze

at different times during the winter; repairs and renewals to wharf, sheds and appara-

tus. At the Union pier, the fire protection water-pipe was extended from the main,

under shed No. 6, to shed C, terminating in two hydrant valves; at the rear of shed

No. 6 extension, the roof gutters were renewed, and additional door constructed and
the wooden guides at the bottom of the doors replaced by iron ones; a door was added

at the rear of No. 7 shed: broken wharf fenders and ladders were replaced and laiulina:

stages, etc., repaired ; additional hose and hose reels, fire extinguishers, etc., were sup-

plied for the new sheds.

The expenditure for the year is $57,279.78.

SAND. POI-\T.

Shipping Galleries.

In order to facilitate the shipping of grain from berths Nos. 5 and 6 of the Sand
Point basin, and thus obviate tlie necessity of moving vessels across the slips to berths

Nos. 3 and 4, which are provided with grain conveyors from the old C.P.R. company's

elevator, the department built galleries to these berths in 1914-15.

The bank at the head of the Sand Point basin moved slightly in March, 1915,

throwing the grain conveyor gallery out of line. The contract for repairs was given

to the John S. Metealf Company, who built the galleries, and these were effected by

the driving of additional piles, and strengthening of the towers, the jacking back of

the gallery into line and the placing of anchorages to which the towers were secured

by iron rods to prevent any further movement.

The work was completed in June, 1915, at a cost of $3,328.33. Other repairs and

changes found necessary in these galleries were carried through by the C.R.Tly., at an

expenditure of $451.17.

Dredging.

On 10th May, 1909, a contract was let to the Maritime Dredging and Construction

Company for dredging the sites of proposed deep water docks at Beacon Bar, to a

depth of 32 feet at low water in the berths and channel, and 3G feet at low water on

the crib sites, exclusive of sub-grade. The contract rate for class B material was 39J

cents per cubic yard, scow measurement, and for class A, $4.90 per cubic yard. On
30th May, 1914, an extension to the area of the original contract was granted at a

reduced rate of 34 cents per cubic yard, scow moasuromcnt, for class B material. On
17th August, 1914, the rate for work on the original contract was also reduced to 34

cents. The total quantity of material removed to the 31st of March, 1915, was 8,058,-

689.19 cubic yards.

During 1915-16, a quantity of 75,308-5 cubic yards, scow measurement, of gravel,

sand and clay was removed, between 1st April and 10th May, by dredges Cynthia and

Si. John, to provide material for filling at the docks. The Maritime Dredging Com-

pany were allowed payment for the removal of 33,036 cubic yards, scow measurement,

of material in berths 15, 16, below the grade which existed previous to material being

deposited there for reclamation purposes. This dredging was done in 1914-15, but

payment was not made until 1915-16.
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The final estimate on this contract was sent in on 17th November, 1915, and was

made up as follows:

—

Total quantity of material removed, 8,166,933.09 cubic

yards $3,155,971 04

Deduction: Material found to have been removed below

sub-grade, and outside contract limits :

—

34,133 cubic yards barge measurement—class B at 39Jc. 13,482 54

89,288 cubic yards barge measurement—class B at 34c.. 30,357 92

$43,840 46

FOUL GROUND.

Tile work of dredging the harbour channel to a 30-foot grade has been carried

on throughout by the departmental dredge Fiddino, but it was found that this

dredg«, which is of the ladder type, was incapable of removing the stiff clay and

boulders encountered near the head of the channel, on what is known as the Foul

Ground. Owing to this, tenders were called, and a contract was entered into on the

30th of May, 1913, with the Maritime Dredging and Construction Company, Limited',

for the removal of 35,000 cubic yards, scow measurement, of clay, gravel and

boulders, at $6.90 per cubic yard for class A, and $0.49A per cubic yard for class B
material, the work comprising the removal of all material overlying ledge rock at

the ix)int of the Foul Ground. An extension of the contract, for the removal of

12,000 cubic yards, scow measurement, additional, was authorized in December,

1913.

From the beginning of the work to the 31st of March, 1915v the total quantity

of class A material removed at the Foul Ground, by the Maritime Dredging and
Construction Company's dredge Cynthiaj was 123-52 cubic yards and the total

quantity of class B material removed during the same period was 51,548 cubic

yards, scow measurement.
During 1915-16, as difficulty was met with in removing boulders with the dredge,

the work was undertaken by means of the departmental Stone Lifter^ the Maritime
Dredging and Construction Company agreeing to pay all the wages for the days on
which boulders were removed. Between 28th July anl 6th October, 1915, thirty-one

boulders (each containing 2 cubic yards or more), aggregating 227-52 cubic yards,

and one hundred and twenty-five boiilde'rs (each containing less than 2 cubic yards),

aggregating 56-49 cubic yards, were removed at the Foul Ground, by means of the

Stone Lifter.

Tlie cost of the work during 1915-16, was $2,857.85.

MAIN CHAXXEL.

The main entrance channel of St. John harbour has a length of 4,500 feet,

being 600 feet wide for 1,800 feet, and widening gradually to 1,000 feet in the

remainder of its length. The departmental dx'edge Firhlinn has carried on improve-

ments in the channel since 1908. The work consists of dredging to a depth of 32

feet at low water, and the maintenance of this depth.

With the exception of a small area at the point of the Foul Ground, where
ledge rock enters the channel at a depth of 27 feet below low water, the whole
channel had been, previous to 1914-15, dredged to a depth of 30 feet. During 1913,

however, a large bar formed across the channel, approximately 2,000 feet long, allow-

ing a depth of but from 24 to 27 feet below low water. The bar consisted of very

fine sand.

During 1915-16, the departmental dredge Fielding removed 152,664 cubic yards,

scow measurement, of sand and mud, in the main channel of St. John harbour,

between 3rd May and 25th September.

19—13J
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Over an area which was formerly included in the Beacon Bar dredarinsr con-

tract, in what might be called the inner channel, the Fielding, removed 89,141 cubic

yards, scow measurement, of mud and gravel, between 22nd November, 191.5, and
ISth March, 1916.

SURIXE WHARF.

At the request of the department of Marine and Fisheries, the departmental
dredge Fielding was placed at work in dredging a berth, to a depth of 16 feet at

low water, on the downstream side of the new marine wharf. "West St. John.
Work was in progress between ITth and 2Sth February, 191(5, and a quantity of

1,086 cubic yards, scow measurement, of mud and rocks was removed. Owing to the

fact that rock was encountered, a depth of only 9 to 10 feet at low water could be
made,

WEST ST, JOHN,

On the west side of St. John harbour there are ten deep water-berths, inoluding

those at Sand Point, Rodney Slip and the new docks lately constructed on the side of

Beacon Bar. Owing to the fact that a considerable amount of filling-iu occurs each

season, it is necessary to have the berths for steamers cleared up previous to the open-

ing of the winter-port season. In 1914-15, a total quantity of 106,268.6 cubic yards,

scow measurement, were removed by departmental and contractors' dredges, in clearing

up Sand Point berths, etc.

During the month of October. 1915, the departmental dredge Fielding, removed

33,390 cubic yards, scow measurement, of mud from berths 3, 4, 5 and 6, Between

25th October and 31st December, 1915. in berths 14, 15 and 16, the Fielding also

removed 54,254 cubic yards, scow measurement, of mud, sand and gravel.

To remove material close to the face of the wharfs, which the departmental dredge

Fielding was incapable of removing, contractor J. A. Gregory's clamshell dredge -/. A.

Gregory was employed, at 50 cents per cubic yard, scow measurement.

In berths 4, 5 and 7, contractor J. A. Gregory's dredge removed a quantity of

8,605.1 cubic yards, scow measurement, of mud, between 6th October and 10th Decem-
ber, 1915. In berths 14 and 15, a quantity of 175.4 cubic yards, scow measurement, of

mud, gravel and rock, was removed, between 12th November and 4th December, 1915.

SE,\L COVE.

Seal Cove, Charlotte county, is situated on Grand Manan island, about 62 miles

S(mthwest of St. John, in a direct line, and is one of the most prosperou.s fishing villa-

ges in the Maritime Provinces. In 1909-10, the department constructed a breakwater

on the western side of the harbour of Seal Cove, 448 feet long and from 24 to 37 feet

wide. In 1913-14, the department built a breakwater pier, on the eastern side of the

harbour, to provide a larger sheltered area for fishing boats. The work consists of

round cribwork, 515 feet long and from 24 to 30 feet wide on top.

During 1915-16, the roadway to the eastern breakwater. l.'iO feet long, was graded,

and a breast-wall, 3 feet high and 24 feet Jong, of timber cribwork, was constructed to

protect this roadway. The work was performed during the month of June, 1915.

Expenditure for the fiscal year is $75.

SHEDIAC BAV—CRANnlGUE.

Shediac bay lie.s on the Northumberland strait at the .iunction between Westmor-

land and Kent counties.

A blind channel leads into the inner Shediac ba.v, or the northern end of Shediac

harbour, towards the Grandiguc wharf and dredging was asked for in the approach to
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the wharf and across the shallow harbour largely to get rid of the seagrass, which grows

so thickly as to block the passage of gasolene boats now coining into general use for

fishing.

During 1914, the berths at end approach to the wharf were dredged.

Between 6th July and 5tli August, 191.5, dredging was in progress by day labour

in making a cut 2,000 feet long and 1.5 wide with 5 feet at low water, from the end of

the blind channel towards the wharf.

Between this cut and the outer end of the approach dredged in the previous year

is a gap of 360 feet.

A small orange-peel dredge^ belonging to the local agricultural society, was hired

for $20 per day, including use of three scows, services of engineer and cost of gasolene

and oil.

4,197 cubic yards barge measurement of mud were removed, at a cost of 23.65;

cents per cubic yard.

The expenditure for the hscal year was $992.77.

SIIEDUC ISLAND.

Shediac island, in Shediac harbour, is about 2 miles long- and 1 mile in extreme
width.

A wharf, 712 feet long, was constructed in 1914 at the northwest point of the
island, about IJ miles from the Grandigue and 3J miles from the Shediac wharf on
the mainland.

Between 9th and 19th August, 1915, a wire fence was built along each side of the
right of way to the wharf. 90 rods of fencing was used together with 91 posts and
2 gates.

The expenditure for the fiscal year was $122.70.

SHIPPIGAN GULLY.

Shippigan gully, a passage between Shippigan island and the mainland, nmch
used by fishing and other vessels in passing from Bale des Chaleurs to the Gulf of St.

Lawrence, is situated 56 miles east of Bathurst, the shire town of the county of Glou-
cester, and three miles from Shippigan, the terminus of the Caraquet Railway.

Works were begun in 1875 to improve the channel at the gully, in which there was
then a least depth of only 3} feet at low water. The construction of dams and break-
waters, concentrating the current in one channel, increased the depth to nearly flj feet
in 1898, 8 feet in 1903-04, and about 8-5 feet at low water or 14-3 feet at high water
ordinai'y spring tides in 1915.

Between 1st June and the 16th August, 1915, about 675 lineal feet of light breast-

works and one section, 159 feet long, of heavier work, partly resting on a brush mat-
tress, were built to close gaps made by a storm on the west beach. On the east side,

a pilework block, 106 feet long, was partly constructed to replace a wrecked section of
the breakwater. 63 main and 88 close-piles were driven and walings and cross-ties

were placed. A shed, 12 by 20 feet, a scow, 40 by 12 feet, and a pile-driver frame were
built and the donkey engine repaired for use on the work.

The expenditure for the fiscal year was $3,441.02.

SOUTHWEST JIIR.\MICHL

Lower Derby.

Lower Derby is a settlement on the Southwest Miramichi river about 5J miles
above Newcastle.

The channel crosses here from the north to the south side of the river and a shoal
has formed at the crossing which was first dredged in 1908 and 1909.
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Between 5th July aud 18th September aud between 20th Ootober and 5th Xoveni-

ber, 1915, dredging was in progress under contract with Mr. Peter England, when
17,492-8 cubic yards, barge measurement, of sand were removed by the dredge Peter

England.

A cut about 2,000 feet long and 100 to 130 wide was made with 7 feet at low water

ordinary spring tides.

The expenditure, including $207.25 for inspection, was $6,504.66.

STONEHAVEN.

Stonehaven is situated on the south side of the ^aie des Chaleurs, 18 miles east

of Bathurst.

The breakwater, originally 425 feet long and built by private parties, was acquired

by the department in 1878.

During the fiscal year 1915-16, repairs were in progress on the Stonehaven break-

water, particularly of the damage to the approach caused by the storm of the 20th

November, 1914, which carried away part of the wave-break and a considerable part

of the covering and stringers, the elevated shipping track, etc.

Beginning at the inner end of the approach, for about 120 feet, the stone, etc.,

carried on the breakwater was removed and the breakwater was surfaced with ballast

and gravel. In the next 70 feet, a flooring of concrete 15 feet 4 inches wide and 6 to

8 inches thick was laid, reinforced with wire fencing. Under the outer 27 feet of the

concrete and beyond for about 73 feet, the cribwork was rebuilt 2 to 5 tiers high and

filled with stone. A new ballast floor was laid over 50 feet of this length and the

outer 73 feet was covered with fi-inch plank. A further section of 50 feet required

no repair aud beyond this for about 95 feet new upper cross-ties, stringers and flooring

were laid. From this point to the pier-head, about 80 feet, and for about 20 feet along

the pier-head, the old covering, which had been lifted by the seas, was relaid.

Along the eastern side of the approach the track, on which grindstones are hauled

to the vessels, was rebuilt on stringers and sleepers, and a section of the wave-break,

50 feet long, was rebuilt. About 42 new fenders were placed on the outside of the

pier-head and northeast corner.

132 cubic yards of small stone were purchased for the work, and 352 cubic yards

of large granite blocks were purchased and i)laced around the northeast corner and

the outside of the pier-head. 28 lineal feet of cap timber was replaced on the approach.

The track timbers, tops of the fenders, etc., vcere painted with carbolineum.

The work was in progress between 25th May and 26th July, between 4th and 10th

August, on 20th August, between 1st and 11th September and 5th and 7th October.

The expenditure for the fiscal year was $2,477.90.

chamberlain's.

During the fiscal year 1914-15, the small landing wharf for fishing boats, begun

in the previous year, at the foot of Chamberlain's road, so called, abo\it J mile west of

the Stonehaven breakwater was completed.

Between 2nd and 23rd July, 1915, a ramp or approach to the beach was con-

structed on the west side of the wharf. The ramp is 36-7 feet long by 16 feet wide

and is constructed of cribwork with 3-inch sheathing and fenders along the outer

face. The roadway to the beach on tlie eastern side was graded and gravelled.

On the Chamberlain's road, next the wharf, a guard rail or fence was built along

the outside for 65 feet and above this section a 65-foot length of cribwork about 6

feet high, previou.sly built as a retaining wall, was sheathed with 3-inch plank and the

total length of the cribwork, 218 feet, was filled with ballast and gravel. The

roadway was graded and levelled for about 360 feet.

The expenditure for the fiscal year was $397.43.
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^
THE RANGE.

The Range, Queens county, is situated at tlie upper end of Grand lake about 72

miles from St. John.

Dredging "tvas done to give access to a slab and sawdust wharf immediately down-
stream from the high water wharf. This will allow of loading lumber from the

adjacent saw-mill into scows, without interfering with the public's use of the passen-

ger and freight wharfs.

The basin dredged was about 21.5 feet long by 60 wide and was dredged to 7 feet

bulow low water. The area dredged over was approximately 12,000 square feet.

The material removed consisted of mud, hardpan sawdust and slabs.

1,200-4 cubic yards, place measure, were removed. The corresponding scow
measurement was 2,730-9 cubic yards. The expansion factor therefore was 127-5

per cent.

The contract rate of payment was 40 cents per cubic yard and the total amount
due the contractor was .$480.16. The contractor was the St. John River Dredging and
Construction Co., and the work was done by the dredge Tantatvania. Work began on
June 22 and was finished on June 25.

This improvement is expected to be permanent.

THOMAS CREEK.

Thomas Creek, St. John county, is situated about 8 miles from St. John, about

one mile from Mispec, and is the home of about twenty-five fishermen. During
1913-14, the dei^artment built a beach protection, consisting of 150 lineal feet of

cribwork, 11 feet wide and 8 feet high. A second wall, 66 feet long, 18 feet wide and

11 feet high, was also built and filled with ballast.

On 29th February, 1916. an authorization was received to expend $100 in con-

structing a small flight of steps and in making some improvement, where the work

had been undermined by recent storms. Owing to heavy storms, the work was not

performed but some spikes, etc.;, were purchased.

Expenditure for the fiscal year is $2.78.

TRACADIE.

'Tracadie is a farming, fishing and lumbering village and settlement about 17

miles south of Shippigan gully and 23 miles north of Miramichi bay.

Between 5th and 10th and 21st and 23rd July, 1915, work was in progress on

the breastworks along the Tracidie beach, which were badly damaged in the storms

of November, 1914.

The breastworks consist generally of two rows of pickets, two feet apart, the

pickets being 2 feet apart in the row. For about 4,270 feet, brush was placed between

the pickets, and for about one-quarter of this distance new pickets were driven, the old

having been carried away. In a further length of about 1,200 feet, pickets were driven

for an extension of the breastworks but were not filled with brush. About 168.000

cubic feet of brush was used.

The expenditure for the fiscal year was $979.90.

UPPER" CARAQUET.

Upper Caraquet is situated at the western end of Caraquet harbour and about

six miles west of Caraquet village.

A public wharf, 3.50 feet long, was constructed here in 1891.

In the storm of 20th November, 1914, the wharf was badly damaged. Three of

the four 15-£oot square blocks were moved out of place, and the pier-head and part

of the shore block were broken and lifted off the foundation timber.
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During the fiscal year 1915-16, the wharf was rebuilt. The three displaced

blocks were removed and a cribwork, CI by 15 feet, was constructed, with a 15-foot

span at either end between the shore block and block Xo. 3 of the original work, and
between block Xo. 3 and the pier-head the space of 50 feet was filled with solid

cribwork.

The raised timbers of the shore block were replaced in a length of 64 feet and
the old decayed plank covering was removed.

The raised pier-head was lowered and secured on the original foundation.

The two spans were covered with plank but otherwise the whole top of the wharf
was filled with ballast and surfaced with gravel. New cap timbers were laid

throughout, the sides were sheathed with -l-iuch jilank and the tops of cap, sheathing,

etc., were painted with earbolineum.

Work was in progress between 2nd August and 16th October and between 26th

and 30th October.

The expenditure for the fiscal year was $1,853.46.

UPPER JEMSEG.

Upper Jetoseg, Queens county, is near the upper end of the Jemseg river, which
is the outlet of Grand lake.

Dredging was done for the purpose of improving the approach to the low-water

wharf. A basin about 270 feet long by 50 wide, was dredged to 9 feet below low
water. The material removed consisted of sand and gravel.

5,761-8 cubic yards, scow measure, were removed. The rate of payment was 30

cents per yard, and the total amount due the contractor was $1,72S.54.

The contractor was the Xew Brunswick Construction Co., and the work was
done by the the dredge Tantawanta. Work began on .Tunc 11 and was completed June
17, 1915.

It is expected that this improvement will be permanent.

UPPER SALMON RIVER.

Upper Salmon Kiver, otherwise called Alma, Albert county, is situated six miles

from Anderson's Hollow, and two miles from Herring Cove. The department has

built, on three separate occasions, on the west side of the river mouth, three piers,

30 feet wide on top, respectively 180, 240 and 104 feet in mean length, each being an

extension of the other. In 1912, an eastern breakwater, 150 feet long and 20 feet

wide, was built.

On the 5th of Xovember, 1913, a contract was let for the construction of an
extension to the eastern breakwater, the work to consist of round cribwork 40 feet long

and 20 feet wide on top, with a pier-head or eU, 100 feet long and 24 feet wide. In
1914-15, it was considered advisable to dispense with the construction of the ell,

and only to build an extension 70 feet long. The work was not constructed until

1915-16, an extension of time having been granted the contractors. Work was begun
ou 13tli September, 1915, and was satisfactorily completed 15th December, 1915.

Expenditure for the fiscal year is $5,132.

WELCHPOOL.

Welchpool, Charlotte county, a fishing village of 600 inhabitants, is situated on

Campobello island, .50 miles southwest of St. John, in a direct line, and 14 miles south

of St. Andrews. The departmental wharf, built in 1909, consists of round cribwork,

279 feet in total length.

During 1915-16, a warehouse, 12 feet by 18 feet, was constructed on the wharf, for

the accommodation of the Collector of Customs and for the protection of pori.shable

freight, etc. The work was performed in Jul.v, 1915.

Expenditure for the fiscal year is $166.24.

I
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WEST BRANCH.

Between 25th and 30th October and 19th and 26th November, 1915, a small landing
wharf, for unloadiiig shell mud used as a fertilizer, was built on the west branch of
the St. Nicholas river, about 5i miles above the mouth of the St. Nicholas, on the
main Richibucto river.

The wharf is 40 by 28 feet, having a frontage of 40 feet on the river and is com-
posed of cribwork faces and sides, filled with ballast and surfaced with gravel, the
interior being graded with earth, etc., and surfaced with gravel.

On the outside face the wharf is 4 feet high to the top of the cap.

A piece of land required for a right of way, and a piling ground for the mud, was
purchased, also wire fencing for inclosing the government property.

The expenditure for the fiscal year and the total to date, not including the cost

of the right of way, is $251.50.

Wilson's beach.

Wilson's Beach is a fishing settlement, situated in a small cove on the west side of

Campobello island, part of the County of Charlotte, 50 miles southwest of St. John,
in a direct line, and 14 miles south of St. Andrews. The breakwater-wharf is 475
feet long, varying from 15 to 25 feet in width, with a depth of 13 feet at low water at

the head.

During 1915-16, five new spruce fender piles, 40 feet long, were pl.nced and secured
with heavy chain, at the southern corner of the wharf, as a protection to the wharf
and for its improvement as a landing for steamers. The work was performed in the
month of February, 1916.

Expenditure for the fiscal year is $45.78.

woodward's cove.

Woodward's Cove, Charlotte county, is a prosperous fishing station on the eastern
side of Grand Manan island, and is six miles south of North Head. In 1914', the
department built a breakwater consisting of round cribwork, 300 feet long and 24 feet

wide on top. The work is surmounted by a break, 5 tiers in height.

DuHng 1915-16, a roadway approach to the breakwater. 1,266 feet long, was con-

structed, and timber protection at the seaward end, 2S feet long, from 3 to 4 feet deep
and 8 feet wide, filled with stone, was also constructed. Work was begun on 1st June
and completed 12th August, being carried on continuously during June, but not con-
tinuously in July and August.

Expenditure for the fiscal year is $774.99.

QUEBEC.

ANSE A BEAUFILS.

Anse a Beaufils, in the municipality of Cape Cove, county of Gaspe, is situated

on the gulf of St. Lawrence, six miles south of Perce.

In the year 1898 to 1901, protection works, on each side of the channel leading to

the inner basin, were built, consisting of two training-piers, each about 440 feet long.

Later, the western training-pier was extended 150 feet and a breakwater, 95 feet

long, built outside ou southeast side to protect entrance and prevent silting up of

channel, which results were attained. In 1913 and 1914, the harbour proper was
dredged and two retaiuing-walls, giving a total length of timber face-work of 1,150

feet, were built on both sides of the channel of the river.
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During the last six months, forty feet of the shore end of the brenkwater was

carried awaj in a storm and $254.85 was expended to close the opening at shore end and

to replace some of the stone ballast. This temporaray repair stood the fall storms.

AXSE-A-L.\-CAVE.

Ause-a-la-Cave is a well sheltered harbour, on the River St. Lawrence, situated

some two miles below River des Bergeronnes, and is one of the loading places for the

schooners engaged in the coasting trade.

During the present fiscal year, to facilitate the loading of schooners engaged in

the coasting trade, the sum of $200.05 was expended in removing boulders.

The work was carried out by day labour, started August 1 and suspended

August 10.

anse-a-l'islot.

Anse-a-l'Islot is a harbour, seven miles east of Newport, opposite the town of

Chandler, protected from northerly and easterly winds by the main coast and from

southwest gales by a small island, being thus open only to southerly gales. It was

decided to built a landing-pier, running from the main shore towards the outside end

of the island, in a southwesterly direction, answering both as a landing pier and

as a breakwater against southerly gales.

During the course of last summer, the pier, which had been badly damaged by a

storm in the fall' of 1914, towards the outside end, was thoroughly repaired, by means
of posts inside and iron rods with fenders along faces so as to bind the face timbers.

One hundred yards of stone ballast was replaced and the flooring repaired for the

whole length.

Expenditure for the fiscal year is $597.33.

ANSE-AU-GRIFFON.

(This work is described iu the annual report for 1915.)

Anse-au-Griffon is seventeen miles northwest of Oaspe cape.

During the course of last summer, the shore end of the northwest jetty was
repaired, for a length of 150 feet. Some 80 cubic yards of ballast was thrown in, tliree

tiers of timbers were added for a length of Y5 feet and the top floored.

Expenditure for the fiscal year is $675.79.

ANSE ST. JEAN.

Anse St. Jean, Cliicoutimi county, is situated on the south shore of River Sague-

nay, some eighteen miles from its mouth, it is a stopping place for the Canada Steam-
ship Co. Population, about 1,500 inhabitants.

During the present fiscal year, an extension of 30 feet in width, 80 feet in length

and 35 feet in height, has been placed in front of the wharf.

It is a common round-timber construction, with vertical posts placed at the inter-

sections of cross-ties with face-timbers, standing in 17 feet of water at E. L. W. The
extension was ballasted with stone (281 toises), when the work was suspended.

Amount expended, $4,374.54.

The work was carried out by day labour from June 4 to August 31, wlien sus-

pended.

ANSE-A-GILES.

Anse-a-Gilcs i.s a post village in the County of L'Islet on the south shore of the

that time.

St. Lawrence, about 45 miles below Quebec. Spriiig tides rise 21 feet, neaps 13 feet.

The wharf was vested in the Crown in 1904, and underwent some repairs at
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The heavy repairs undertaken two years ago were completed during the fiscal

year ended 31st March. 1916.

The outer block, 50 by 35 feet, and 17 feet high, was completely demolished and

rebuilt with new materials. Thirty-two toises of stone-ballast were added. The
sjiace between where there was only a platform, 22 feet long, was filled with crib-

work, the height being 11 feet.

The mooring posts and capping pieces have been painted. The wharf is com-

pletely renewed on its whole length, and should not need repairs for many years, if

we except accidents occurring from ice; its total length is 343 feet, the width is 12

feet for a length of 278 feet, including an earth approach 40 feet long ; the outer end,

which is 65 feet long, has a width of 35 feet on a length of 50 feet, the remaining

part being 24 feet wide.

The work was done by day labour, during the months of June, July and August,

at an expenditure of $2,800.

ASHUAPMOUCHOUAN RIVER.

Dredging.

During the summers of 1910 and 1911, a channel had been dredged in the Ashuap-
mouchouan river and on account of the shallowness of the water, the material had
been castover. Complaints were received from boat owners that the dyke caused cross

currents. The dredge No. Ill was used to redredge that castover, and 1,600 cubic

yards was removed during last season.
'

Dredging started May 21, and continued until June 8.

AYLMER.

Aylmer, Wright county, is on the Quebec shore of Lake Deschenes, as expan-
sion of the Ottawa river, 9 miles above the city of Ottawa.'

A public wharf was built in 1910-12.

During the past season, repairs consisted of renewing some 800 feet b.m. of

3-inch flooring, placing 15 loads of gravel on graded approach roadway and paint-

ing handrailings, wheel-guards and shelter.

Expenditure during the fiscal year, $150.

BAIE ST. PAUL.

Bale St. Paul is situated in the County of Charlevoix, on the north shore of

the River St. Lavn-ence, 64 miles below Quebec. Population, 4,000.

During the past season, the approach to the wharf, at the foot of a dangerous

sand slope, was cleared of boulders which had rolled dowh and obstructed traffic.

Work done by day labour, between 27th September and 4th October, 1915.

Total expenditure for fiscal year, $61.20.

BATISCAN.

The parish of Batiscan is situated on the north shore of the Kiver St. Lawrence,

00 miles above Quebec, and 21 miles below Trois-Rivieres. Its population is 1,290.

The wharf, built in 1864, had been bought from the Canada Steamship Com-
pany, and it was decided to erect a concrete superstructure. The work was awarded to

Messrs. G. A. Gruninger and Joe M. Dalton, under contract by unit measurement
as per schedule of prices. Work was started on August 27, 1913, but on July 23,

1915, by agreement between these gentlemen and Messrs. Davis Lariviere and" Reg
W. Louthood, the contract was transferred to the latter; which agreement was au-

thorized by an Order in Council.
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The wharf, which is 237.2 feet front length and 31 feet in width on the eastern

side and 31-8 feet on the western eide, has an approach of 104 feet in length by

110 feet in width, composed of earth filling protected by a stone rip-rap.

During the last fiscal year, 42 per cent of the whole work was jjerformed, in-

cluding a caisson 57 feet by 3fi feet by 1.5 feet, T\-hich was sunk at the western end;

also 280 lineal feet of concrete walls were completed, with stone and earth filling.

The total expenditure to date is $29,632.63.

Dredging.

The Batiscan dredging, undertaken to obtain a 12-foot depth, consists in cleaning

up the upstream and downstream approach channels to the government wharf, on the

St. Lawrence river, in order to facilitate the Eoyal mail steamships, plying between

Montreal and Quebec, to stop and deliver freight and mail ; the length of the channel

being 4.200 feet. The dredging was performed by dredge Xo. 116, starting on June 25

and completing on October 30.

122,149 cubic yards were removed. The area of dredging was 1,204,750 square feet,

for a channel 300 feet wide with a depth of 12 feet.

Previously, in the spring, the same dredge came to Batiscan to prepare the berth

of a cribwork, to be placed under the concrete superstructure of the south-western

portion of the government wharf under progress at that time. This dredging was

commenced on ilay 10, and discontinued on 22.

7,470 cubic yards of material were removed.

BEAUFORT.

Dredging.

Beauport is situated in the County of Quebec, on the north shore of the River

St. Lawrence, approximately 3 miles below Quebec. Population, 4,000.

The channel, 4 feet above low-water level, for the use of schooners, which was

started in 1914 was completed this season. The work performed, in pursuance of their

contract, by the W. J. Poupore Co., between 11th ilay and 21st October, 1915, con-

sisted in the removal, over an area of approximately 148,000 square feet, of 38,802

cubic yards, scow measurement, or 25,983 cubic yards, place measurement, of mud,

sand and clay. Expansion factor 50 per cent. The high expansion factor is due to

heavy liiiuid mud backfilling. Contract price, 30 cents per cubic yard. Amount paid

to contractor in 1915, $7,794.90.

BELCEIL STATION.

Beteil station, part of Beloeil village, a post village, in Vercheres county.

The Belttiil booms, placed by the department in order to facilitate the passage of

boats and barges through tfie Grand Trunk Kailway swing bridge, over the Richelieu

river, were maintained in good condition at an expenditure of $133.59.

Bersimis, Saguenay county, situated on the north shore of the river St. Lawrence,

some 56 miles below Tadousac, is a meeting place for fur traders, and an important

station of the Hudson Bay and Revillon Brothers Go's.

Population about 250 inhabitants.

During the present fiscal year, a new wharf was built at a cost of $1,908.54; it is

a pile construction, of 150 feet long by 20 feet wide, with a hcadblock of 20 feet by 30

feet, standing in 7 feet of water at E.L.W.

The materials were purchased during the previous year.

The work was carried out by day labour started August and was completed

September 30.
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HERTIIIER (i:X BAS).

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915,)

The village of Berthier, in the County of Montmagny, is on the south shore of the

St. Lawrence, 29 miles below Quebec.

The repairs made to the wliarf at Berthier (en has), during the present fiscal

year were the following:

—

The face-timbers on the west side of the wharf were sheathed with red birch, 6

inches thick on a length of 325 feet, by a height of 18 feet.

The flooring and stringers were renewed on a surface of 6,000 square feet; 175

feet of capping-pieces were renewed ; four broken mooring-posts were replaced, with

also four elm-fenders, 25 feet long by 12 by 12 inches, and the stairway on the west

side of the wharf was thoroughly repaired.

The work was commenced on 21st June and completed on 21st July, at a cost of

$1,486.39.

BERTIIIf:l)VILLE.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1914.)

Berthierville, a thriving river port, an incorporated town in Berthier county, on

the shore of the St. Xawrence, and a station on the Canadian Pacific Railway.

The sewer pipe, passing through the wharf property, was renewed at a cost of

$42.78.

BOt'CHERVILLE.

Protection wall.

Boucherville, an incorporated village in Chambly-Vercheres county, prettily

situated on the south shore of the St. Lawrence and on Quebec, Montreal and Southern

Railway.

The i)rotection wall, constructed last year on a length of 550 feet, was extended to

a length of 900 feet.

The work done this year consisted in the erection of a dry-stone handlaid wall,

350 feet long, 12 feet mean height, 6 feet thick at base and 3 feet thick at top.

The inside of the wall was filled in with earth to the level of the street.

The work was performed by day labour at a cost of $1,950.89.

Wharf.

'The wharf, being in a dilapidated cfondition, was v^zqA down to the water level

and rebuilt in concrete^ enitailing the construction of a concrete wall 18 inches

thick at base, 12 inches at top, a mean height of 10 feet around the_ sides of the

approach and headblock, also the laying of a concrete flooring 3 inches thick and

some minor improvements including cap-piece, mooring-posts, sidewalk, etc.

This wharf has the following dimensions, (a) Approach, 172 by 21 feet, (b)

Headblock, 70| by 24 feet. The work was done by day labour at a cost of $4,795.74.

Bryant's landing.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

Bryant's wharf is situated on the west side of Lake Memphremagog, five and a

half miles by water and eight miles by road from ^fagog, the nearest railroad sta-

tion on the through-line of the Canadian Pacific Railway.

On May 7, 1915, authority was received to expend forty-five dollars ($45), by
day labour, at that place.

Work of repair was commenced on June 10 and carried on intermittingly to

June 29, 1915, and capusistcd in resetting the fence on both sides of the right-of-
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way from the wharf to the main road; the right-of-way was also graded with gravel

at the same time.

In the execution of the above work 20 loads of gravel were used. Expenditure

wa-i $45.

CACOUNA.

Cacouna is situated on the south shore of the St. Lawrence, in the County of

Temiscouata, 120 miles below Quebec. It is one of the l>est known and most fre-

quented summer resorts of Canada.
Spring tides rise 19 feet, neaps 12 feet.

The work done during the present fiscal year consisted in the following: The
pavement, starting from about 200 feet from the shore end, was renewed iipon a

length of 846 feet by a width of 2f> feet, with spruce deals 3 inches thick.

. ilost of the stringers were renewed, using about 2,264 lineal feet of spruce, nine
inches square.

The spruce sheathing on the north side of the wharf was replaced, on a length

of 450 feet, on a mean height of 12 feet, with deals three inches thick.

The railing on the north side of the wharf, damaged by ice, was renewed, upon
a length of 150 feet, and painted.

Some repairs were also performed on the landing-slip.

These works were carried on during the months of June, July, August, September
and October, at an expenditure of $2,-±61.!i3.

Cap-a-l'aigle.

Cap-a-l'Aigle is situated in the County of Charlevoix, on the north shore of the

River St. Lawrence, 86 miles below Quebec. Population, 1,200.

During the past season, repairs were effected to the roof of the shelter on the

wharf. The roof, the shelter and posts were given one coat of paint.

Work done, by day labour, between 1st and 6th of August, 1915.

Total expenditure for fiscal year, $144.51.

CAP DE LA MADELEINE.

Cap de la Madeleine is a parish on the northern bank of the River St. Lawrence,

east of the St. Maurice River outlet.

A government wharf and an approach were erected in 1887.

In 1913, on account of the development of industrial trade in the neighbour-

hood, an extension was placed under contract, for 145 feet in front of the govern-

ment wharf, 200 feet on the southern face, 160 feet on the northern face and 127

feet on the eastern face. This work was paid for, at unit measurement, as per

schedule of prices.

During the last fiscal year, a crib was sunk at the eastern side, 127 feet in length,

giving a total yardage of 2,280 cubic yards of eribwork, and the complete extension

was levelled to elevation, plus 12 feet, which required 4,355 cubic yards of earth

filling; a layer of macadam was placed on the wliarf, and the whole construction was
accepted on November 23 last.

The expenditure incurred for the whole work is $73,158.55.

CAP ST. IGN.^CE.

The village of Cap St. Ignace is situated on the south shore of the St. Lawrence,

in the County of Montmagny, forty-six miles below Quebec.

The Parish, population about 3,000, contains several large stores, saW-mills and

a textile factory.
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The trade in farm produce is very active, and there is also a considerable lumber

traffic.

During the fiscal year 1915-16, the flooring of the wharf, upon a length of 700

feet and a width of 20 feet, which was altogether worn out, was completely renewed.

A few stringers which were decayed were also replaced.

The work was done during the months of June and July, and the total expendi-

ture was $997.10.

C.IRLETON.

Carleton, Bonaventure county, is situated on the north shore of the Bale des Cha-

leurs.

It is a large and important farming settlement, also a summer resort of consider-

able renown. A tannery and several lumber mills and grist mill are located in

Carleton.

During the fiscal year 1915-16, protection wall was constructed alongside the

beach, to protect the road from the action of the sea.

The work done consists of 420 feet long of continuous cribs, built with cedar and

loaded with stone and gravel ; the cribs are 10 feet wide, 5 feet high.

Expenditure for this fiscal year is $688.31.

CAUGHNAWAGA.

Caughnawaga, or Sault St. Louis, is a post village in Laprairie ccunty, 10 miles

west of Montreal, or 15 miles east of Beauharnois. Population, 2,-300.

The public wharf, built in 1908, consists of a stone-filled close-faced cribwork, 149

feet long by 11 feet wide, with 40- foot return wing at each end. This wharf is exten-

sively used for the accommodation of a ferry-boat to Lacliine, on the opposite shore,

and for the total output of a crushed stone-plant.

Minor repairs were done by day labour to the face timber, flooring and stone-

approach, at a cost of $298.07.

Dredging.

The object of this dredging is to facilitate access to the Montreal Quarry wharf,

by barges drawing 6 and 7 feet.

Traffic: The Montreal Quarry Company expect to ship every day, when their plant

is completed, from 1,000 to 1,500 tons of crushed stone, or three barges per day.

From July 21, to September 1, departmental dredge No. 119 removed some 2,423

cubic yards, scow measurement, of hardpan, in making a 7 to S-foot channel alongside

Grand Trunk wharf. The number of cubic yards, in situ, as determined by soundings

taken February 1916, is 1,817. .

The quantity, place measurement, corresponds with scow measurement, with an

expansion factor of 33J per cent. Hours of actual dredging 249J ; cut, 15 to 25 feet

wide ; face removed, 1 to 8 feet ; distance advanced, 843 feet, and dumping ground hal f

mile north of main channel.

,
Dimensions of work done: A channel 275 feet long, along old Grand Trunk wharf,

by 25 and 90 feet wide at bottom, the whole to 7 or S feet below low-water level.

The site of dredging accomplished is immediately down-stream of Grand Trunk
wharf or opposite the government wharf.

During 1912, departmental dredge No. .9 worked from August 26, to September

12, and removed some 1.082 cubic yards, scow measurement, of hardpan, boulders and

stones, in making a 6-foot channel and basin adjoining government wharf.

CEDARS.

Cedars is a post settlement in Soulanges county, on the St. Lawrence river, 3

miles from Cedars Station, on the G. T. Ry., 29 miles west of Montreal and 5 miles

from Vaudreuil.
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Population is 1.500.

The public wharf headblock, measuring 116 feet 10 inches by 24 feet, built in 1&81,

was rebuilt from low-water level to a height of 4| feet, by day labour, at a cost of

$1,725.08.

CHAMPL.4IN.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

Champlain, a post village in Champlain county, is situated on the Eiver St. Law-

rence and on the Canadian Pacific railway, fifteen miles below Trois-Rivieres.

On the western face of the approach and wharf, the erosion having broken and

washed out the wall and filling, repairs were urgent.

A concrete protection-wall, 140 feet in length, was erected on the western side of

the approaoh; on the southwestern corner of the ice-breaker slope eleven piles were

driven, to protect the superstructure against further damage during freshets and for

this purpose, a layer of concrete, 1-2A-4 was placed inside of the piles.

The total expenditure was $1,117.50

CII.\TE.\UC;UAY.

Indian Reserve Lands.

This work is situated near Chateauguay basin, on the east shore of the Chateau-

guay river. An extensive area of laud, in the vicinity of the river and of the railway,

was found to have poor drainage facility, except through the lauds of the adjoining

Indian reserve, which here form a point projecting into the Eiver St. Lawrence, imme-

diately below the outlet of the Chateauguay.

By cleaning and deepening an existing discharge, and by cutting a new one through

the reserve lands, it has been possible to find a better outlet for the drainage of the

area in question.

The old drain to be re-established was 2,500 feet long; the new one is connected

with the old and located across a swamp and through the lowest spot in a ridge which

bounds the swamp towards the east. It empties into a bay of the St. Lawrence.

The total distance excavated was 7,320 feet.

The width of the drain at bottom is 5 feet or more, and the width of surface level

is 7J feet or over. The shore is 1-80 feet in the total distance.

The excavated material consisted of black muck, loam, stiff clay, and boulders;

quite a number of these had to be drilled and blasted.

The work was done from September 1 to October 15.

Dam across Chaleauguay river.

This dam was constructed in 1913, as an experiment with a view to prevent ice

shoves and floods at Chateauguay basin, which were of almost yearly recurrence.

It consists of a core of dry stone, with a revetment of concrete 10 to 12 inches in

thickness. The dam is on an average 6 feet high, and it holds the water 4 feet 3 inches

above low-water leved.

In the spring of 1915, it was found to have suffered from the flood. A break of

30 feet was found near the east shore and the the two abutments had been destroyed.

The dam itself showed evident signs of being undermined from the lower side.

The work of the 1915 season, has consisted in closing the breach in the concreted

portion of the dam, at the same time building a fish-ladder, according to the require-

ments of the law.

The ends of the dam were rebuilt in dry stone as far as the shore line. These

repairs were done by day-work in September and October. 1915. The sum expended

was $636.80.
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Although the dam itself has been on the verge of destruction, no ice shove, to

cause damage, has occurred at Chateauguay basin in the three years 1914 to 1916

inclusive.

CHICOUTIMI.

The town of Chicoutimi is situated on the Eiver Saguenay, it is the head of navi-

gntion. The Canada Steamship Co. maintain a daily service during the summer months,

it is also the terminus of the Quebec & Lake St. John railway. Its population is about

8,000. The powerful pulp and paper mills in the vicinity are the cause of a very heavy
traffic during the whole season.

During the present fiscal year, the approach of the wharf, on a distance of 110

feet by a width of 50 feet, which was an old timber structure, was taken down, filled

in with earth 25 feet deep and the surface finished with a layer of broken stone and
gravel, 24 inches thick, well rolled with a steam roller; the flooring between the shop

and the freight shed, on an area of 60 feet by 85 feet, was taken up and filled in with

3 feet of graval and earth; the wooden pavements in front of the freight shed, over

an area of 9,600 feet, was renewed, also the slip and the sheathing of the west side of

the wharf. The northwest block, which is 20 feet by 30 feet, was repaired, a new shed,

30 feet by 30 feet, was built, the roof of the old shed repaired, and a new chimney cap

(metallic) placed. The east part of the wharf was raised from 2 to 3 feet, over an area

of 12,000 feet; the light, which was furnished by the Chicoutimi Electric Co. at an •

excessive price, was replaced by a Lister-Brouston plant, the cost of the maintenance

of that plant was $164.

The above mentioned repairs, installation of new electric plant and the mainten-

ance of the carpenter and blacksmith shops, cost $7,487.60.

Work started April 1 and suspended March 31.

RANG ST. IGNACE.

Eang St. Ignace is a portion of the parish of Chicoutimi, situated some 2 miles

from the town of the same name.

During the present fiscal year, in order to protect public properties against the

action of the current of the River Saguenay, a protection bank was built, on a distance

of 100 feet, at the cost of $195.62.

It is a common round-timber construction, 8 feet wide by 6J feet high, sheathed

with 2-inch deals and filled in with stone and earth.

The work was carried out by day labour and started December 4 and was suspended
December 24.

COMO.

Como, a post village, in Vaudreuil county, situated on the south shore of Lake
of Two Mountains, opposite the Indian village of Oka, and on the Ottawa branch
of Canadian Pacific Railway, 30 miles from Montreal. It is a landing place of the

Ottawa River steamers, and has an Episcopal church and one telegraph office. Popula-

tion in 1901 was 628.

During 1915, the department undertook two different dredging improvements,
at or near Como.

(A) Boyer: The object of this dredging was to facilitate access to Senator
Beyer's wharf, and to give a better way out on the north side of said whar:^ as

there is a landing on both sides.

On July 9 and 10, 1915, departmental dredge No. 108 removed some 332 yards,

scow measurement, of clay and boulders in completing approaches to wharf.

The number of yards, in situ, as determined by soundings taken in December,
1915, is 240.

19—14
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The quantitj place measurement, corresponds with scow measurement with an
expansion factor of 33J.

Hours of actual dredging 15J; cut 20 feet wide, face removed 2-6 feet, distance

advanced 128 feet, and dumping ground J mile downstream.

The dimensions of work done are as follows: one cut 135 feet long, by 45 wide

and average depth 4 feet clear at low water.

The site of dredging performed is some 2,500 feet below Como and Oka ferry,

or northwest of Beyer's Point.

The work is completed to the entire satisfaction of interested party.

(B) Como (Ferry) : The object of this dredging was to facilitate access on
Como side, for two gasolene launches, crossing between here and Oka, making 4

return trips daily.

The traffic carried last year is as follows: about 12,000 passengers, vehicles and
general merchandise.

From Hay 26th to July 14, departmental dredge No. 108 removed some 5,770

cubic yards, scow measurement, of clay, in completing a 5-foot channel and basin.

The number of cubic yards, m situ, as determined by 'soim^dings which were taken

in December, 1915, is 4,336.

The quantity, place measurement, corresponds with scow measurement, with

an expansion factor of 33 J per cent; hours of actual dredging, 260; cut, 7 to 32

feet wide; face removed, 1-5 to 7 feet; distance advanced, 1,851 feet; and dumping
ground within one mile 1,500 feet downstream of entrance ferry channel, in Lake
of Two Mountains.

Dimensions of work done during 1915: a channel 940 feet long by 25 feet wide

at bottom, and a basin, 375 feet by 50 feet along shore, the whole to a depth of 5

feet below extreme low-water level.

The site of dredging accomplished is 6,000 feet downstream of Como wharf, or

at the extremity of road leading to railway station (Canadian Pacific Railway.)

During 1911, the department deepened approaches to the landing, close to shore,

500 feet long by 25 feet wide, material had been deposited both sides of cut. In

1912, dredge St. Louis worked here, removing part of material cast over, left the

preceding autumn by same dredge. Quantity of material removed in 1912 was

2,^75 cubic yards, scow measurement.

The work is completed to the entire satisfaction of interested party.

COTEAU DU LAC.

Coteau du Lac, or St. Ignace, is a thriving village on the St. Lawrence, 3

miles from Coteau station, on the Grand Trunk railway, 36* miles southwest of

iXj'n.treal.

The public wharf built in 1889 has the following dimensions: (a) Approach

78 by 21 feet and 39 by 45 feet; (b) headblock 100 by 20 feet 8 inches by 13 feet 5

inches; (c) shed 45 by 27 feet.

The headblock was totally rebuilt from low water level by day labour, at a cost

of $1,-123.34.

d'autray.

D'Autray is a small village, at the northeastern extremity of the parish of Lano-

raie, some 4J miles south of Berthierville. It contains 1 saw-mill, 1 grist-mill, store

and post office.

The object of this dredging was to give a landing to the important lumber, hay,

oat and potato trade of the locality, also crushed stone in connection with a new road.

Traffic : Some 650,000 feet b.m. of lumber, 500 tons of hay, 3 scows of oats, 2 scows

of crushed stone and 3,000 bushels of potatoes.
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From May 17 to July 19, departmental dredge No. 119 removed some 11,484 cubic-

yards, scow measurement, in making an 8-foot basin. The number of cubic yards,

in situ, as determined by soundings which were taken March 16, is 8,615.

The quantity, place measurement, corresponds with scow measurement, with an

expansion factor of 3.3 J. Hours of actual dredging, 355 J; cut, 15 to 20 feet; face

removed, 1 to 8 feet; distance advanced, 2,100 feet; dumping ground one mile down-
stream, south of Berthier channel, close to the upstream end of lie aux Foins. ,

Dimensions of work accomplished: a basin 350 feet along outer face, 150 feet

along shore by 100 feet deep, the whole to 8 feet at low-water level.

The site of dredging done is immediately upstream, at St. Joseph river, opposite

E. Valois' property, some 300 feet from public road.

Owing to tlie fact that the site is not exposed to storms, and there being nearly no
current, the probable duration of the improvement wiF. be over 15 years.

During 1913, departmental dredge No. 103 dredged out some 4,485 cubic yards

scow measurement, at outer end of basin.

In 1914, departmental dredge No. lOS worked here, removed some 1,584 cubic yards

scow measurement. The total number of cubic yards scow.measurement removed from
1913 to date is 17,553 of clay.

DESJARDINS.

Desjardins, Pontiac county, is located on Allumette Island, north shore of Ottawa
river, opposite the town of Pembroke, Ont., with which point there is a regular ferry-

boat service and interprovincial traffic.

A public wharf was built in 1904-05 ; the landing-head was extended the following

year and considerably improved a year ago; in 1911-13, a layer of planking was placed

over the original flooring of the approach.

During the past year, repairs consisted of renewing the wharf-capping of the

wooden approach and gravelling the stone approach in August; in March, the landing-

head, 120 lineal feet, 7 to 9 feet above L. W. L., was sheeted with 6-inch timber.

Expenditure during the fiscal year, $698.63.

DESCENTE DES FEMMES.

Descente des Femmes, Chicoutimi county, situated on the north shore of Kiver
Saguenay, some 27 miles below Chicoutimi town, is a telegraph and post office village,

with an important saw-mill. Its population is about 25 families, engaged in farming
and lumbering.

During the present fiscal year, the head-block, which had settled down, was raised

two feet, the slip was renewed on the full length and width of the wharf, freight shed,

cap pieces, and mooring posts painted, at a cost of $1,499.81.

The work was carried out by day labour, started June 24 and was completetl

November 13.

d'israeu.

D'lsraeli, is an incorporated village and parish in Wolfe county, on the St. Francis
river, at the head of Lake Aylmer; a station on the Quebec Central railway between
Quebec and Sherbrooke.

Work of repair was commenced on June 17 and completed on July 31, and consisted

in renewing four tiers of face-timbers around the head-block, removing the wooden
flooring and replacing same by stone and gravel, sheathing the southeast and northeast

faces of the head-block with two-inch plank, widening, by four feet, the crib and stone

approach, and replacing the old wooden bridge by a steel and wood bridge.

During the fiscal year tlie expenditure was $2,174.41.

19—14i
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DOUCEt's landing, or STE. ASGELE DE LAVAL.

Ste. Angele de Laval, Nicolet county, is a post village on the south shore of the
Kiver St. Lawrence, directly opposite Three Kivers, communication is made by the

branch line of the Grand Trunk Railway with the Quebec, Montreal and Southern
Railway, at St. Gregoire, with the Intercolonial Railway at Acton Junction, and the

Grand Trunk Railway through-line, from Montreal to Quebec, at Vietoriaville.

The population of Ste. Angele de Laval village is about SOO and that of the county
about 26,000, which is all tributary to Three Rivers.

Dredging was performed by departmental dredge No. 116, attended by tug Monitor.

The work was commenced on May 21, 1916, and continued until June 9, and consist^'d

in the removal of 13,680 cubic yards, scow measurement, of class B material, that is

of hard cemented boulders, clay, gravel and sand.

The object of this work is to provide a safe landing to the ferryboat Progress,

making trips between Three Rivers and the south shore. The whole project has not

been completed, the dredge having been available only a short time, however, the work

done during those few days has been appreciated, allowing the boat to land at the

Grand Trunk wharf without any danger. It is anticipated that when the whole project

is complete, the boat will be able to land at the wharf without danger, even during the

heaviest storms experienced at that place, and it is probable that there will be ver.y

little filling-in, owing to a diversion of the current by dredging the point of the shoal

at the east side of the work.

EAST TEMPLETOS.

East Templeton, a village in Wright county, is located on the north shore of the

Ottawa river, 7 miles below Ottawa. The Canadian Pacific Railway has a station

li miles back from the river.

The public wharf was built in 1907, after the old wharf, used by the Ottawa River

Navigation Company, and a free site had been vested in the Crown.

During the past season, repairs to the wharf, November 8 to 17, consisted in

replacing corrugated iron-sheeting on lower shed and three broken braces, repairing

broken sheeting on ice-breaker and replacing waling between two pile bents. To

relieve the strain, the ice was cut around the wharf toward the end of March.

Expenditure during the fiscal year is $6!>..59.

ECHAF.4UD AUX BASQUES.

Echafaud Aux Basques, Saguenay county, is a shelter for schooners in the coast-

ing trade, situated 9 miles from Ste. Catherine bay.

The sum of $250 was expended during the present fiscal year to continue the

removal of boulders in the bay.

The object of this expenditure is to permit schooners loading with timber to

approach the coast.

The work was carried out by day labour, started August 27 and was suspended

September 14.

ESCOUMAINS.

Les Escoumains, in the County of Saguenay, is situated on the north shore of

River St. Lawrence, 27 miles below Tadoussac. It is a very important place, and a

lumber centre.

During the present fiscal year, to repair damages caused by the storm of Novem-
ber, 1914, the sum of $1,071.74 was expended in taking down the broken part of the

wharf to low-water level, for a distance of 200 feet, by the full width of the wharf.

The work was carried out by day labour, started July 25 and was suspended

August 30.
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Fabre, in Pontiac county, is an agricultural centre, with a population of 1,000,

located on the east shore of Lake Timiskaming, 11 miles south of ViUe Marie.

In 1905-07, a small public wharf was built, was extended in 1910-11, and again in

1912-14 rebuilt to a higher elevation at that time to meet conditions of storage on Lake
Timiskaming. Various improvements have been made since 1907, in connection with

repairs and maintenance of this structure, which handles a growing traffic.

During the past year, repairs were made to the flooring, handrailing, shed and
stone approach, and it was necessary to cut the ice away from braces of pilework when
E.W.S. was lowered.

Expenditure during the fiscal year, $125.

FATHER POINT.

Father Point, County of Rimouski, is situated on the south shore of the St.

Lawrence river, six miles below the town of Rimouski. It is the place where the steamer
lines call to take and land their pilots.

There is a powerful compressed-air fog horn, an acetylene-gas lighthouse and a

Marconi wireless-telegraph station.

The work done during the present fiscal year consisted in the renewing of the

pieces of sheathing broken and torn by the storms of November, 1914, and fall 1915 ; on
the east side of the wharf, a portion of the planking was repaired and part of the

sheathing broken under the low-water-tide line, was replaced.

Expenditure during the fiscal year is $1,402.11.

FORT WILLIAM.

Fort William is a village and a summer resort in Pontiac county, on the north
shore of the Ottawa river, 14 miles west of Pembroke. Population in vicinity 800.

A public wharf was constructed at this place in 1911-12.

In July, 16 to 27, the wharf, which had suffered heavy blows from the passenger
boat during wind storms, was repaired. The work consisted of setting back and
strengthening piles, replacing broken braces and walings, some replanking and painting
shed.

Expenditure during the fiscal year, $200.

GASPE.

So as to meet the demands for traffic, a shed 288 by 43 feet was built on the shore-

end of the Gaspe deep-water wharf after reinforcing the top structure with tie rods.

A pile trestle of 110 feet was built for the railway track inside of the shore-end

corner of wharf.

Expenditure for the fiscal year is $7,921.81.

GATINEAL' RIVER.

Banh Protection.

The Qatineau river, in Wright county, flows south, emptying into the Ottawa
river one mile below Hull.

The erosion of the east bank of this river, below the Canadian Pacific railway
bridge, was doing considerable damage and destroying valuable land. To check this

erosion, the construction of riprap slope-walls was commenced in 1913, and continued
in 1914, along the bank of government property acquired some years ago from Dr.

Graham.
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During the past year, it was necessary to maintain 500 lineal feet of booms owned
by the department and stretched along the shore for temporary protection of the more
exposed portions of the east bank of the river. The string of booms, drawing nearly

3 feet, is used to hold, temporarily, during the early rise of the river, submerged fas-

cines, to offset the undermining currents. Experience shows, however, that erosion,

at this point, can only be checked properly by slope-walling.

Erpenditure during the fiscal year, $99.50.

GEORGEVILLE.

Georgeville is an incorporated school municipality on the east side of Lake Mem-
phremagog, eleven miles by road from Magog, the nearest railroad station.

Work of repair was commenced May 30 and completed June 2, and consisted in

reshingling the roof of the freight shed and waiting room and driving two pile fenders
on. the southwest comer of the wharf, at a cost of $87.35.

GRAND ENTREE.

Grand Entree is the business and shipping port of Coffin island, situated at the

northeast end of the Magdalen island group. The population fluctuates as fishermen

from all the other islands make it their headquarters in the fishing season, especially

at the time of the mackerel fishing, and may vary from 500 to 1,000.

The shipping varies from a value of $30,000 to $100,000, two-thirds being exports,

mainly fish, and one-third imports, general merchandise.

The proposed dredging for the fiscal year 1916-17 at entrance of harbour, down to

15 feet below L.W.L., giving an average depth of 3 feet to be removed, that is some
20,0000 cubic yards of sand, at 30 cents per yard, making a total of $6,000, is to allow

the mail steamer Lady Sybil to come in and out with more ease and safety and to

widen the harbour, giving an additional area of 150,000 superficial feet so as to afford

anchor room to schooners and other vessels. There will be no castover. The material

can be dumped in sheltered lagoons opposite Grosse He, two miles away from site of

work.

In the latter part of the season, i.e., in October and November, the departmental

dredge No. i cleaned an area of 91,000 square feet, giving 10,000 cubic yards of

material removed.

The quantity removed, as shown by dredge captain's reports, is 16,770 cubic yards.

The difference is accounted for by filling-in.

GRAND RUISSEAU.

Grand Ruisseau is a small fishing cove in the municipality of Riviere au Renard
where some half-dozen fishing smacks land and cure their fish.

One half-dozen boulders were removed at a cost of $30.

GRAND MECHINS.

Grand Mechins, also called St. Edouard des Mechiiis, in the County of Rimouski,

is situated on the south shore of the St. Lawrence river, 30 miles below Matane, there

is a population of 1,000, mostly of fishermen and lumbermen.

Practically the only communication with the outside world is by water. Mechins

is a very fine harbour, much frequented by small vessels looking for shelter.

During the fiscal year 1915-16, tlio work done consisted in the sinking, on the

north side of the wharf, of a crib, 100 feet long by 15 feet wide and 24 feet high, to

protect the wharf damaged by the storm of November, 1914, and to prevent further

damage.

The crib is fully ballasted but only temporarily planked on top with round spars.

Expenditure for the fiscal year is $3,724.10.
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GRANDE RIVIERE.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

Grand Riviere, County of Gaspe, is the name of an important fishing centre, some

twenty-one miles southwest of Perce.

Last spring, the roadway leading from the main highway to the government wharf

having been carried away, a sum of $2,402.24 was spent to build up a timber facing

for a total length of 610 feet. A sum of $2,137.20 was spent towards extending the

concrete sheathing on the inside face on a total length of 103 feet.

Expenditure for the fiscal year is $4,539.44.

GREm'ILLE.

Grenville, population 1,200, a village in the County of Argenteuil, is located on the

north shore of the Ottawa river, about 58 miles below the city of Ottawa.

Departmental dredge No. 103 worked at Grenville from May 12 to June 12, making

some 400 lineal feet of single cut, to shallow grade, through clay, boulders, gravel and

hardpan, to provide a log-slip to the jack-ladder of Grier's stave mill. Considerable

blasting had to be done in removing the larger boulders. The slip, 20 to 25 feet wide

in bottom width, extends some 340 feet inshore from the concrete wharf at the head of

the Grenville canal. Six hundred and twenty-seven yards material, removed in scows,

plus 2,Y91 yards material, cast over. From surveys before and after, the material

measured in place is about 1,800 cubic yards, showing a very large expansion factor,

owing to the nature of the work.

CROSSE ISLE.

Quarantine Station.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

Grosse Isle is situated in the. St. Lawrence, some 30 miles below Quebec and 6

miles from the south shore.

During last winter, the eastern wharf was damaged by ice, the hardwood sheath-

ing and face timbers near the outer end on the east side, some distance above low

water mark, were broken by ice, on a surface of 12 by 6 feet, leaving an opening
through which the stone ballast was pouring out. In order to close that opening, it

has been necessary to remove the stone ballast as far as the level of the damaged
timbers. The face timbers and hardwood sheathing have been renewed on a length

of 20 feet and a height of about 6 feet and secured to new inside vertical posts with

iron screw bolts, after which the stone ballast was replaced.

Some other repairs were also performed on the wharf to the hardwood sheathing

and flooring. The stairway on the west side of the wharf was also repaired and the

capping-pieces renewed on a length of 100 feet.

The sum of $1,000 was expended to cover the cost of these repairs. The sum of

$200 was expended to make some repairs and improvements on the western wharf,

making a total expenditure of $1,200.

Dredging.

In order to improve conditions on both sides of the eastern wharf, in providing

a minimum depth of water of 8 feet at extreme low-water spring tides, the depart-
mental dredge Ottawa, between the 14th and 20th October, 1915, made the necessary

improvements. The object of the work was to permit tlie steamer Alice, doing
quarantine service, to draw near the wharf and stay at either side at any stage of

the tides, so as to be sheltered whenever necessary. On the west side of the wharf,

the dredging could not be carried on as near the shore as was intended, and the
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desired depth of 8 feet could not be reached upon the whole area, rock being en-

countered at about midway of the proposed berth.

The material removed was silt and clay and the quantity excavated was 2,662

cubic yards, scow measurements.
The area dredged over was 14,300 square feet, and the average depth of cut 4

feet, giving an expansion factor of about 30 per cent.

The work as done is satisfactory, and will stand good 3 or 4 years.

HARRINGTON.

Harrington is situated on the Canadian Labrador, about 660 miles from Quebec.

The village has a population of about 60 families, there are two Protestant churches
and one hospital.

At the last session of Parliament, the sum of $3,000 was voted towards the con-

struction of an extension to the wharf.

The inspector reports that the work was completed but it is impossible to make
an inspection before June next. If the work has been carried out according to plans

furnished, it is a head-block of common round timber construction, 30 feet square and
20 feet high, spanned over the old portion of the wharf, with stringers and 3-inch

deals.

Work started September 1 and was completed . January 29. The work was car-

ried out by day labour at a cost of $2,33,').40.

HIGH FALLS.

High Falls, a village in Labelle county, is located on the east shore of the

Riviere du Lievre, 26 miles above Buckingham, and is on the portage route for

water-borne freight transferred from boat landings above and below the falls of the

same name.

In 1908, small float-landings were built, at the foot of navigation above High
Falls, and at the head of navigation below High Falls; these have been a source

of annual expense. In 1915, the landing below High F'alls was replaced by a rough

cribwork wharf.

In order to better meet the requirements of shippers the High Falls wharf

was improved, July 1 to 17, and, as the structure later settled, it was necessary toward

the end of JIarch to raise slightly the high-level landing.

Expenditure during the fiscal year, $121.61.

mjDSON.

Hudson, a post village in Vaudreuil county, on the River Ottawa and on tlie

Canadian Pacific railway, 9 miles from Vaudreuil and tliirty-five miles from Montreal.

The public wharf built in 1902 consists of a close-faced cribwork, 120 by 19J feet,

a stone approach, of a length of 126 feet from the shore to the headblock, by a width of

25 feet for the first 87 feet from the shore, and a width of from 25 to 65 feet, for the

remaining 39 feet, with sloping sides of 1 in 1 and guard railing. A store house, 18J
feet by 24 feet, is erected at the western angle of the approach and headblock, partly

on the stone approach, and partly on piles.

Minor repairs were done to the northeast corner of wharf at a cost of $151.46.

HULL.

Hull, a city in Wright county, is located on the Ottawa river, opposite the city of

Ottawa. It possesses valuable waterpowers, used extensively in the development of

electricity and the manufacture of pulp and paper, etc.

A permanent wharf was built in 1901-03. Minor improvements and repairs have
been required, from time to time, to keep the structure in shape for the growing traffic

handled at this point.
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During: September and November, a new veranda on the second floor of freight-

shed was built with stairway and railing: as well as a new sliding door. Some window

panes were also replaced and galvanized sheeting on the high level landing side of shed

was repaired.

Expenditure during the fiscal year, $120.27.

TLE AUX COUDRES.

Tie aux Coudres is situated in the County of Charlevoix, on the Kiver St. Law-

rence, about 62 miles below Quebec. Population, 1,500.

During the past season, the ,pntire flooring of the wharf, covering approximately

1,000 square yards, was renewed. This work included the renewal of floor-stringers and

of some face-timbers, longitudinals and cross-ties. Over TOO lineal feet of coping and

10 mooring-posts were put in position. Over 120,000 feet board measure of spruce of

all dimensions were used in the execution of those repairs. 100 cubic yards of stone fill

were distributed where most necessary.

Work done by day labour from 17th May to 20th October, 1915.

Total expenditure for fiscal year, $3,883.56.

Removal of houlders.

During the past season, a harbour on the south side of the island, opposite the

church, was cleaned of dangerous boulders, in order to make it safer for schooners using-

it. Approximately 80 big boulders were blasted and removed.

Work done by day labour from 15th September to 7th October, 1915, at a cost of

$252.80.

ILE PERROT SOUTH.

(Tliis work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

He Perrot South, a post village in Vaudreuil county, 3 miles from Ste. Anne de

Bellevue, and 21 miles west of Montreal.

During the year, the closefaced headblock was constructed on the shore and a

scow built to carry the material.

The dredging being partially completed on November 1 last, the headblock was

launched,' sunk in place, built to a height of 7 feet above low-water level, and filled

with stone for a height of 12 feet. Half of the flooring was finished and i of the stone

approach was completed.

This work was done by day labour, under the foremanship of A. Lalonde, at a

salary of $3.00 per day.

Expenditure, $5,027.62.

ISLE VERTE.

The village of Isle Verte, in the County of Temiscouata, is situated on the south

shore of the St. Lawrence, 16 miles below Riviere du Loup, and 130 miles below Quebec.

Spring tides rise 19 feet, neaps 12 feet.

The renewing of the superstructure of the wharf, begun three years ago, was con-

tinued during the fiscal year and a length of 160 feet near the outer block, by a width

of 2'2 feet, and a mean height of 12 feet, was altogether renewed from top to bottom.

All the stone-ballast was removed and every piece of timber was replaced. To keep

the wharf open to the public, a temporary flooring on trestles was built along the east

side of the wharf on a length of 200 feet. The flooring upon the head of the wharf

has been repaired on a surface of 17,600 square feet. It was requested by the owners

of the land in the vicinity of the wharf, that a ditch be cleaned and put in a state of
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efficacy for the drainage of the land, and the balance of the money available, about
$50, was used to do the necessary work.

These works were performed by day labour during the months of July, August
and September, and the total expenditure was $4,499.99.

Dredging.

Navigators having complained that the bottom, near the wharf, on the west side

was too high, and prevented them from drawing their schooners near the wharf except

at high tides, the sum of $991.95 was expended in dredging to improve conditions.

Dredging was performed over an area of 14,500 square feet, and the mean depth

excavated was two feet.

The quantity of material removed amounted to 918 cubic yards, place measure-

ment, and consisted of silt and soft clay.

The expansion factor would have been about 25 per cent.

The work, which was commenced on 24th September and completed on 14th

November, 1915, was done by shovelling the mud into scows at low tide and removing
same at high tide.

KAMOURASKA.

The village of Kamouraska, in the county of the same name, is situated on the

south shore of the St. Lawrence river, 90 miles below Quebec; it is a well known
place, much frequentel as a summer resort

Its population is about 1,500.

During the fiscal year, some urgent repairs were made to the wharf; the floor-

ing was repaired, and six mooring-posts were renewed.

The sum of $99.52 was expended during the mouths of September and
November.

KNOWLTON LANDING.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915).

Knowlton Landing is situated on the west side of Lake Memphremagog, about

11 miles by water and 15J miles by road, from Magog, the nearest railway station

on the through line of the Canadian Pacific Railway.
The work of repair consisted in removing, from the north corner, the fender

which had been destroyed during extreme high water and rebuilding a new one.

In the execution of the above work, 800 feet of timber and some iron were used,

at a cost of $50.

LANORAIE.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915).

Lanoraie, a post village and parish in Berthier county, on the north shore of St.

Lawrence river, 5J miles from Lanoraie Station on Canadian Pacific Railway and
37 miles north-east of Montreal.

Last winter, the water froze below the bottom of the ice-breaker sheathing and
when the water level rose it caused the ice-breaker to be lifted, breaking some of the

timber. This was repaired, by day labour, at a cost of $59.38.

LAPRAIRIE.

Laprairie, a town in Laprairie county-, on the south shore of the St. Lawrence,

and a station on the Grand Trunk Railway.

(A) Dyhe—Contract.

A contract was awarded in January, 1914, to Duranceau & Poupore, of Laprairie,

for the construction, of a dyke and a roadway thereon on a unit-price basis. Last
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fiscal year, the total filling and almost all riprapping were done, a portion of the

macadam road, some 1,500 feet long, was constructed and all the stone necessary

for the completion of the contract was delivered on site of work.
This year, 700 feet of the 15-inch road-bed was laid, and 2,226 tons of crushed

stone were delivered on site of work. Total expenditure for this year, including
salary of inspector, is $2,826.47.

(B) Dyke—By day-labour.

A macadamized roadway, 6,500 feet long, was built on the top of the dyke in

order to temporarily accommodate the traffic during the spring season. Stones already

delivered on the dyke by the contractor were spread, on a thickness of 15 inches by

an average width of 15 feet, and covered with crushed stone and screenings to fill

the interstices between stones, covered with a layer, two inches thick, and the whole

properly watered and rolled. This work was done, by day labour, at a cost of $2,017.

(C) Planh Roadivay.

In order to accommodate the traffic during the construction of the dyke, a plank

roadway was constructed, in eight days, alongside the dyke, for a length of G,500 feet.

This roadway is 16 feet wide and consists of 3-inch plank, laid lengthwise, on 8

by 4-inch sleepers laid 3 feet apart. Where necessary a wheel guard, 8 inches high,

was built on each side of the roadway. This roadway was widened to 24 feet at the

bends, and side ditches were provided. In order to prevent accident at the bridge

and at the bends this roadway was lighted at night.

Total expenditure, $14,924.32.

LA SALETTE.

La Salette, population 250, a village in Labelle county, is located on the lower

reach of the Lievre river, 18 miles above Buckingham.

Departmental dredge No. 102 worked in the boat channel (June 19-23) to ease

off the lower entrance and approach to float-landing; 600 yards, scow measure, clay

were removed to a grade depth of 10 feet.

During the period, June 30-July 29, the new boat channel on the west side of

the river was further improved, to a grade depth of 8 feet, to facilitate navigation

through the landslide which occurred some years ago; 9,540 yards clay, scow measure,

were removed, in cuts aggregating 1,049 lineal feet. From surveys made before and
after this work, the quantity of material removed, place measure, is 7,888 yards; the

expansion factor, therefore, is 21 per cent.

LAUZON.

Dredging.

Lauzon is situated in the County of Levis, on the south shore of the River St.

Lawrence, approximately 2 miles below Quebec.

In order to accommodate coal barges which formerly berthed in the entrance to the

dry dock, now militaril.y occupied, a basin 110 by 75 feat was dredged, to a depth of

6 feet below low-water level, on the west side of the west-entrance pier, between the

22nd and the 27th of October, 1915, the dredge Ottaiva removed, over an area of
approximately 8,500 square feet, 2,862 cubic yards, scow measurement, of mud, sand
and boulders.

LES EBOULEMENTS.

Les Eboulements is situated in the County of Charlevoix, on the north shore of
the River St. Lawrence, 66 miles below Quebec. Population, 2,500.

During the past season, a new movable slip was built and put in position, to
replace the old one which was so worn out as to have become dangerous. The hard-
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wood northeast corner of the headblock. which had been damaged and pushed out of

position by ice and boats was replaced, together with 600 square feet of 5-inch hard-

wood sheathing also pierced and damaged by ice. 25 vertical stringers were placed, to

consolidate the upper part of the wharf proper. Minor repairs were effected to the
building, the wharf flooring and the macadam.

Work done by day labour from 17th August to 14th October, 1915. Total expendi-

ture for fiscal year, $1,895.23.

LEVIS.

Deep Watei- Wharf.

Levis is situated in the County of Levis, on the south shore of the River St. Law-
rence, opposite Quebec. Population, 7,500.

During the past season La Cie Etienne Dussault completed their contract. This
involved, mainly, the erection of the balance of the concrete walls, backfilling and
macadam. Value of work done to completion of contract, $388,418.63, and total expen-
diture for fiscal year, $29,610.88.

l'islet.

The village of L'islet, in the county of the same name, is situated on the south

shore of the St. Lawrence, 50 miles below Quebec. It has a population of 2,500, in-

cluding village and parish.

Spring tides rise 21 feet, neaps 13 feet.

The sum of $81.95 was expended to make urgent, but temporary repairs, to the
flooring of the wharf. The work was done during the month of August.

LITTLE BONAVENTURE ISLAND.

Little Bonaveuture Island, County of Bouaventure, is situated on the north shore

of the Baie des Chaleurs, about 2i miles from the village of Bouaventure.

It is an important farming and fishing settlement, recently erected into a parish.

The breakwater, constructed there in 1911-12, is 188 feet long by 16 feet wide and
8-5 feet high.

The work done during the present fiscal year consisted in the construction of an
extension to the breakwater. This extension is 120 feet long by 15 feet wide and 9-5

feet high, and is completed with the exception of the flooring.

Expenditure for the fiscal year is $597.04.

LONGUEUIL.

Longucuil is a post town, in Ohambly-Verchcres county, on the south lino- division

of the Quebec, Montreal and Southern Railway. It contains 2 churches (Episcopal

and Roman Catholic), 8 stores, 7 hotels, 1 saw-mill, 1 stove factory, 1 branch bank,

and express and telegraph offices. The town has drainage system, 2 fine siiuarcs and

communication with Montreal by train, electric cars and ferry.

Population in 1914, 6,000.

During 1915, the department undertook three different dredging improvements,

at or near Longueuil.

(A) Canada Steamships.

The object of this dredging was to give a better access to wharf and channel, up-

stream and down-stream, for the new ferry-boat, drawing 9J feet at low speed and over

10 feet when in full motion.

The ferry traffic between Longueuil and Montreal is very heavy. During the last

five years, according to company's books, a total number of 2,918,677 passengers and
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312,194 teams were carried from oue shore to the other. This, represents an average of

nearly 600,000 passengers and over 63,000 teams per year. The ferry makes 70 trips

daily, from beginning of April to nearly the end of December.

From May 26 to September 17, departmental dredge No. 110 removed some 50,280

cubic yards, scow measurement, of clay, sand, boulders and hardpan, in making a 12-

foot channel and basin in the vicinity of Canada Steamship wharf. The number of

cubic yards, in situ, is about :]0,000. Hours of actual dredging, 630; cut, 12 to 40 feet;

face removed, 1 to 5 feet; distance advanced, 17,281 feet; dumping ground 3i miles

down-stream on the northwest shore of River St. Lawrence, or below Racine pier,

under the supervision of Montreal harbour commission.

Dimension of work accomplished, 1,500 feet long by 160, and 350 feet wide average,

opposite wharf, and clean a few ridges some 3,000 feet up-stream of wharf, the whole

to a depth of 12 feet clear at low-water level or 0-0 gauge.

The probable duration of the improvement will be over 40 years.

Since 1911, some dredging has been done by the departmental plants around the

Canada Steamships wharf and channel, to accommodate company's boat. The follow-

ing are the yearly quantities: In 1911, 10,782 cubic yards; in 1912, 18,832 cubic yards;

in 1913, 57,792 cubic yards; in 1914, 73,657 cubic yards. Total, 161,063.

(B) Longueuil Garage.

The object of this dredging is to facilitate the access to the Longueuil garage of

numerous gasolene launches and row boats, also to give a 3-foot channel to garage

marine railway.

Longueuil garage gives shelter to about 100 yachts and sailing boats, and employs

from 10 to 15 men yearly to repair and paint yachts. The garage has a good marine

railway, machine shop, etc. Dimensions of garage are 125 feet long, alongside Canada

Steamships' line approach, by 88 wide.

From November 10 to 17, 1915, departmental dredge No. 119, removed some 846

yards, scow measurement, of clay, sand and gravel, in making a channel alongside

Canada Steamship line. The number of yards, in situ, is 632.

The quantity place measurement corresponds with scow measurement, with an

expansion factor of 33J per cent. Hours of actual^ dredging, 37; cut, 18 to 20 feet;

face removed, 2i to 5J feet; distance advanced, 265 feet; dumping ground 3 J miles

down-stream on the northwest shore of River St. Lawrence below Racine pier.

Dimensions of work done, 1 cut 125 feet long, a^.ongside Canada Steamship line,

by 50 wide at bottom, the whole to a depth of 7 feet.

Owing to the fact that the site is well protected from storm, and absolutely no

current, the probable duration of improvement is forever.

To com])lete the dredging, as requested by the Longueuil garage, will require the

removal of 1,370 yards, place measurement, or 1,827 yards, scow measurement, with an'

expansion factor of 33J per cent, for conversion into scow measurement. Dimensions

of work to be done, 1 cut 370 feet long by 25 wide at bottom, to a depth of 3 feet clear

at low water.

The dredging must be performed with a gauge not less than 5 feet with side-

dumping scows, and a dredge of a light type will complete the work in a working week.

(0) Government Wharf.

The object of this dredging is to facilitate access to public wharf and basin to

the ferry-boat North plying between here and Maisonneuve, making a trip every 15

minutes, also to give better landing to boats and barges unloading lumber, sand and

stones.

The traific interested in this dredging is enormous, over 700 passengers, 80 vehicles

and 40 automobiles are carried from shore to shore by ferry-boat North every day,

besides 20 or 30 barges that unload here yearly.
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From IStli May to 25th, departmental dredge No. 110, removed some 3,280 yards,

scow measurement, of clay, sand and boulders, opposite wharf. The number of cubic

yards, in situ, is 2,460.

The quantity, place measurement, corresponds with scow measurement, with an

expansion factor of 33J per cent. Hours of actual dredging, 404 ; cut, 37 to 40 feet

;

face removed, 2 to 3 feet; distance advanced, 679 feet; dumping ground 3 miles down-

stream, on the northwest side of Eiver St. Lawrence, immediately below Racine pier.

Dimensions of work performed during 1915, one cut 650 feet long by 40 wide,

outer end of wharf, and some 300 feet northwest from face of wharf.

The probable duration of the improvement will be over 30 years.

During 1913, departmental dredge No 110 took out some 99,267 yards, scow

measurement, in making an up-stream channel, leading to basin alongside wharf.

During 1914, dredge No. 11.5 removed some 12,851 yards, scow measurement, and

the same year dredge No. 110 removed some 12.045 yards, scow measurement, in making

a 12-foot basin, up-stream of government wharf.

To complete, as originally proposed, will require the removal of 11,760 yards,

place measurement, or 15,680 yards, scow measurement, with an expansion factor of

33J per cent. Material, clay, sand and boulders. The dimensions of work to be done,

a 12-foot basin, 200 feet in front of wharf, and 650 feet out, by an average width of

320 feet.

Owing to the cleaning nature of the proposed dredging to complete a 12-foot basin,

will take about a working month to a dredge of a heavy type.

LOTBINIERE.

During the last fiscal year, the following repairs were performed, in connection

with government wharf and property at Lotbiniere.

The roadway, leading from public highway to south or shore-end of wharf-planking,

a distance of 353 feet, which was in a very bad condition, had to be levelled, raised

and rounded off from centre to sides, on a width of 18 feet, from end to end.

Some 155 cubic yards of stone, or IS scow loads were mixed with about one-half

the quantity of sand and laid over the roadway, from 2i feet thick, in middle, decreas-

ing to six inches on sides.

On east side of government service ground, the lot was fenced in, using for this

purpose 238 lineal feet of wire fencing, secured to new 6-inch-square cedar posts, with

addition of a 12 foot iron gateway; tie-posts and guard railings, for horses and cattle,

protected with flat-iron bars, were placed in premises.

Freight sheds were painted inside and outside, also waiting-room. A new landing

stairway was placed on outer end of west slope of wharf. Two broken, upright guard

fenders also renewed and a large boulder on east side of wharf, impeding approach,

was broken up and removed.

LOUISEVa,LE.

Louiseville is situated on the north shore of Lake St. Peter, 21 miles above Trois-

Rivieres.

The River du Loup (en haut) passes through the town and is navigable from its

outlet, for a distance of above 3J miles, to the government wharf at Louiseville for

boats, drawing 4 feet of water, during the low water season.

The population of the town of Louiseville, and five parishes interested in this

navigation, is 11,993.

Two wooden pavements were repaired during the last eight months, on an area

of 15 feet by 13 feet each. These pavements were located between the boat slips and

the shed.

The total expenditure was $39.60.
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MAGDALEN ISLANDS BREAKWATERS.

Hoxise Harbour.

The landing at House Harbour has been repaired. Piles have been driven along

the face and eight tiers of cross-ties and longitudinals replaced, the whole was duly

ballasted and floored at a cost of $800.

• GRINDSTONE.

An amount of $450 was spent to replace fenders alongside and construct a new slip.

Stone ballast has also been placed along side of roadway leading to wharf.

POINTE-A-ELIE.

The roadway leading to the Pointe-a-Elie wharf has been repaired at a cost of $500.

HOSPITAL BAT.

Hospital Bay is a fishing harbour on the northwest side of Grindstone island. The
first crib of a breakwater, 24 feet wide by 60 feet long, has been built and secured in

position and a new crib partly built.

Expenditure for the fiscal year is $2,500.

GROSSE ISLE.

Grosse Isle is the north-eastern end of the Magdalen islands group of islands in

the Gulf of St. Lawrence, some 70 miles west of Cape Breton. As the northeast coast

of the island is badly exposed, a brealiwater, to form a shelter for fishermen, was
decided upon. Two triangular isolated cribs 50 feet wide by 38 feet deep were built

and placed in position and a new crib started.

Expenditure for the fiscal year is $4,000.

MALBAIE.
"

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

Malbaie is a municipality situated on the north side of Malbaie bay ; some twenty
miles south of Gaspe Basin.

A breakn'ater, which will be used as a landing pier, was commenced in 1914 and
completed during the last six months.

Expenditure for fiscal year is $40,521.78.

MAGOG.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1910.)

Magog is situated at the north end of Lake Memphremagog, on the main line of

the Canadian Pacific Railway, from Montreal to St. John, N.B.
Work of repair was commenced on May 25 and completed May 26, and consisted

in driving three pile fenders, bolting same to the wharf and fixing the railing along
the landing stage on the north side of the wharf at a cost of $44.71.

Malbaie is situated in the County of Charlevoix, on the north shore of the River
St. Lawrence, 83 miles below Quebec. Population 3,400.

During the past season, the eastern half of the wharf proper, covering an area of

approximately 1,500 square yards, was raised with stone to the level of the western

half, which was finished last season, and covered, save a strip occupied by the Quebec
& Saguenay Railway tracks, with standard macadam. This necessitated the removal
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of a number of old floor-stringers and the use of over 800 lineal feet of 12 by 12-inch
timber for copings, and renewal of face timbers. Over 1,000 square feet of new
flooring were laid on the headblock. A sidewalk 6 feet wide and over 400 feet long,
made of 3-inch deals, resting on 10- by 10-inch stringers, were built from shore to
headblock. Minor repairs were effected to the building, railings and movable slip and
two depressions in the sandfill on western half of the wharf were levelled with stone
and gravel.

Work done, by day labour, from 1st June to 20th August, 1915. Total expenditure
for fiscal year, $3,860.03.

MARIA.

Protection Wall.

Maria, Bonaventure county, is situated on the north shore of the Bale des Chaleurs
about 10 miles from Carleton.

It is an important village of about 2,000 inhabitants. There is a station of the
Quebec Oriental Railway, a post and telegraph oiBce and several stores.

In 1912-13, in order to protect the road, alongside the beach, which was being
yearly eroded by the action of the sea, 460 feet of protection wall were built in brush-

work loaded with stone.

The work done during the present fiscal year, consisted in the continuation of the

construction of protection-walls. This work has been done in two parts; in the east-

erly part of the village of Maria T50 feet have been built to a height of 4-5 feet and
a width of 6 feet; in th^ westerly part 550 feet have been built to a height of 6-7 feet

and a width of 10 feet.

Expenditure for the fiscal year is $1,599.04.

MEOAXTIC.

Megantic is a town of 4,000 people, situated at the north elid of Lake Megantic

where it empties into the Chaudiere river. It is on the main line of the Canadian

Pacific Rail-iway from Montreal to St. John, N.B., TO miles from Sherbrooke and it is

the terminus of the Quebec-Megan tic Line of the Quebec Central Railway.

Work of repair was done on November 8 and 0. 1915, and consisted in renewing

one castiron mooring-post and regrading the approach at a cost of $12.

MOOSE BAY.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1913.)

iloose Bay is a small settlement r.bout middle way between Piopolis and Woburu
near the south-western end of Lake Megantic.

Work of repair was cormnenced on September 8 and completed September 24, 1915,

and consisted in repairing the wooden flooring on the headblock, removing from the

crib-approach the wooden flo.oring and replacing same by a stone and gravel road-bed

and in regrading with gravel, the stone-approach, at a cost of $176.57.

MISTASSmi.

Mistassini is situated on the river of the same name, which is one of the tributaries

of Lake St. John, and is navigable as far as Mistassini. Population about 800.

During the present fiscal year, the freight shed was repaired, the approach com-

pleted, and the lower slip of the wharf extended, at a cost of $()9'.).(;4.

This extension gives an area of 2.796 square feet, and consists in round timber

construction 7 feet front and widening to 36 feet at 20 feet back, the balance of the

construction is composed of piles driven into the bottom at every two feet, supporting

stringers, and a flooring of 3 inch deals.

, The work, which was carried out by day labour, was started July 13 and com-

pleted August 15.
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MONTEBELLO.

Montebello, in Labelle county, on the north shore of the Ottawa river, 41 miles

below Ottawa, is a station on the Canadian Pacific Railway and the centre of farming

and lumbering industries.

A jiublic wharf was built in 1911-12.

Necessary repairs to roadway were made in October, part of riprap wall being

rebuilt and some earth grading done. Other minor repairs to freight shed and flooring

were also made.

Expenditure during the fiscal year, $18.13.

MURRAY BAY.

Dredging.

During the past season, in order to accommodate steam-barges carrying wood pulp,

a basin was excavated to a depth of 15 feet below low-water level on the east side of

the wharf. Departmental dredge Ottawa, working at Malbaie between llth June and

2nd July, 1915, excavated 6,050 cubic yards, scow measurement, of sand and clay, over

an area of approximately 33,700 square feet.

NEW CARLISLE.

New Carlisle, the shire-town of the County of Bonaventure, is situated on the

north shore of the Bale des Chaleurs sixty-five miles from Campbellton, N.B.

There are three churches, two hotels, several stores, post, telegraph and telephone

offices. It is the terminus of the Quebec Oriental railway, and the starting point of

the Quebec and Western railway.

During the fiscal year 1915-16, work consisted in the rebuilding of a portion
of the face timber on the west side of the wharf; the slip was also repaired and
general repairs were made to the planking and sheathing of the wharf.

Expenditure for the fiscal year is $1,463.62.

NEWPORT.
«

The village of Newport, in the County of Gaspe, is situated at the mouth of the
river of the same name, on the north shore of the Bale des Chaleurs 88 miles east

of Campbellton, N.B., and 50 miles west of Caplan.
Spring tides rise 4J feet, neaps 2J feet. The population of the village is exten-

sively engaged in fishing. The top of the wharf damaged in the fall of 1914, had
to be rebuilt for a height of two feet and some 650 cubic yards of ballast had to be
placed in structure which was then floored and sheathed on the outside.

Expenditure for the fiscal year is $1,627.36.

NICOLET.

Nicolet is a thriving village on the south shore of the River St. Lawrence at the
foot of Lake St. Peter; it is on the line of the Quebec, Montreal and Southern Railway
and on the branch line of the Intercolonial Railway.

Authority was received to build a crib retaining-wall, immediately above the
upstream wharf, to protect the right of way. The work consisted in an open-faced
crib sheathed on the outside, with two-inch plank and resting on one row of piles,

145 feet long by 10 feet at the bottom, 8 at the top and 10 feet high, and the filling

of the back with earth to the level of the road, said work having been started on June 3
was completed on July 21, 1915, at a cost of $775.17.

The greatest part of the material was secured for this construction during the
fiscal year 1914-15.

19—15
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NICOLET.

Dredging.

At the beginning of August, 1915, the departmental dredge No. 106, attended

by tug Delisle, was ordered to Nicolet in order to clean the entrance of the channel

at the mouth of the river to the wharf. The water being low at that time of the

year, the material dredged could not be loaded on scows and it was decided to make
one cut of castover. The work commenced on the 13th August but had to be aban-
doned on the next day, the sand dredged was flowing in the cut nearly as fast as dug
out.

Only 429 cubic yards, approximately, were dredged and this work was abandoned
for the season.

'^ NOMININGUE.

Nominingue, on the shore of the lake of the same name, is a village in Labelle

county and a station on the Canadian Pacific railway, 124 miles northwest of Mont-
real. It is the centre of a farming district, with a population of about 600. '

In March, 1915, timber, stone and other materials were delivered for the public

wharf, which was built during the past season in Baie Richard. Access has been pro-

vided for a right-of-way by registered notarial act, executed by the owner of the pro-

perty for the life term of the public wharf structure. Construction proceeded from

May 1 to July 31. The structure consists of round-timber open-face cribwork landing-

head, 28 by 32 feet, sheeted on face, drawing 6 feet at L.W.L. of Lake Nominingue
and built to an elevation of 5 feet, approach 12 feet wide, 414 feet long, with 3-inch

flooring, 6 by 9 capping and 4 by 5 handrailing. The waiting-room, 10 by 12 feet,

together with capping and handrailing, received two coats of paint. The earth approach

is 12 feet wide and 50 feet long.

Expenditure during the fiscal year, $1,609.23.

NORWAY BAY.

Norway Bay, a small village and summer resort in Pontiac county, is located on

the north shore of Chats lake, an expansion of the Ottawa river, opposite Sand Point,

Ont, where the ferry-boat service connects with local Canadian Pacific Railway trains.

In 1909, a small temporary wharf was built at this place; in 1911-13, the existing

public wharf was built. This structure occupies a location which is exposed to ice-

shoves, etc., necessitating more or less regularly, repairs and improvements as well as

outlay on maintenance.

During the past year, temporary repairs consisted in placing a brace under one

of the pile-bents, at the ojsening of navigation, and repairing braces and waling, in

March, as well as cutting the ice to relieve the pressure on the wharf structure.

Expenditure during the fiscal year, $19.25.

OKA.

A post village on the Ottawa river, near its junction with the St. Lawrence, in

the County of Two Mountains, five miles distant (across the Ottawa) from Como, in

Vaudreuil county, a station on the Canadian Pacific Railway. It has two churches

(Roman Catholic and Methodist), two stores and one hotel, besides telegraph and

express ofliccs. Population in 1901, 600.

The object of this dredging was to facilitate the access to Mr. Geoflrion's boat-

house.

July 16, 1915, departmental dredge No JOG removed some 115 yards, scow measure-

ment, of clay, in making a 3-foot channel. The number of cubic yards in situ, as

determined by soundings which were taken December 1915, is 86.
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The quantity, place measurement, corresponds with scow measurement with an

expansion factor of 33i per cent. Hours actual work, 5; cut, 25 feet wide; face, 3-2;

distance advanced, 40; dumping ground within J mile, in lake of Two Mountains.

Dimensions of work done in 1915: one cut 40 feet long by 25 feet wide, average,

the whole to 3 feet below low water level.

Site of dredg-ing performed is 3,000 feet ui)-stream of village of Oka.

The probable duration of the improvements will be 10 years.

This is completed to the entire satisfaction of interested party.

PAPINEAUVILLE.

Papineauville, the shire-town of Labelle county, is located on the north shore of

the Ottawa river, 37 miles below Ottawa, and is a station on the Canadian Pacific

Railway.

In 1910, the Government acquired the old Chabot wharf and site, later erecting

a modern cribwork structure for the boat traffic of this locality. In October, 5 to 26,

the handrailing, 367 feet long, the capping, 590 feet long, and freight-shed of the

wharf were given two coats of paint, at a cost of $70. In March, minor repairs to the

shed and fenders were made.

Expenditure during the fiscal year, $98.64.

Dredging.

The departmental dredge No. 106 worked at Papineauville, May 10 to 18, to com-

plete the slip to the jackladder at the Papineauville Lumber Company's sawmill and

improved the approach to the company's wharf.

An area of some 6,900, superficial feet, was dredged to a grade depth of 6 feet

elevation 122.

1,248 yards, scow measure, clay were removed. Combining the work of two sea-

sons, surveys before and after carrying out the improvement, would make the quan-

tity of material removed, place measure, 3,570 cubic yards including 195 yards below

3ub-grade; the corresponding material removed in the scows was reported as 3,432

yards.

PASSE PIERRE.

Passe Pierre is situated on the north shore of River Saguenay some 6 miles above
its mouth.

During the present fiscal year, the sum of $198.50 was expended in removing some
boulders which were rendering the access impossible for schooners coming here to

load.

The work was carried out by day labour and was started July 18 and suspended
July 24.

PERCE.

Perce, in the county of Gaspe, is situated on the Gulf of St. Lawrence, 36 miles
from Gaspe Basin. The sheathing and fenders on the outside end of the pier for a

length of some 150 feet had to be replaced along inside face. The sub-structure was
repaired, with the assistance of a diver, with concrete in bags. The top structure

having been badly damaged by a heavy storm, temporary repairs were undertaken to

protect the shore end, and if possible, prevent further damages to the outside end.

Expenditure for the fiscal year is $1,303.11.

PERKINS' LANDING.

Perkins' Landing is situated on the west side of Lake Memphremagog, about 15
miles south of Magog, and 6 miles from Mansonville, the nearest railroad station.

19—Wh
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Work of repair was commenced August 3 and completed August 6, 1915, and
consist.ed in repairing the low-lauding stage situated at the west corner of the wharf
and in regrading the headblock and approach with gravel at a cost of $28.96.

PICHE POINT.

Piche Point, on the east shore of Lake Timiskaming, opposite Haileybury, Ont.,

is the landing for part of Guiges and other townships. This is a prosperous farming
district which supplies the mining region on the Ontario side, and contributes largely

to the Haileybury market and bulk-freight shipping at that point.

In 1908-9, a public wharf was built at Piche Point; in 1912-14. the wharf wa^
raised 3 feet, owing to storage development on Lake Timiskaming, and extended con-

siderably on account of the growing traffic.

During the past year, tiie ice-booms were removed, towed to Haileybury, repaired

and replaced in position at the close of navigation ; a heavy storm in the early fall

dislocated the south ice-breaker, and the materials had to be salvaged; the freight

shed-doors were repaired ; some planking was done to maintain traffic over the wharf-

flooring; saw-cuts were made in the ice to free the booms strung from the ice-breaker

to wharf and shore, and the heavy ice was chopped off bracing of approach when water

of Lake Timiskaming storage was rapidly drained.

Expenditure during the fiscal year, $198.92.

PIERREVILLE.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

Pierreville is a thriving village on the eastern side of the River St. Francis, 9

miles from its outlet and 28 miles east of Sorel.

Work of repair was commenced August 23 and completed August 31, and consisted

in resetting the west end of the v^iarf which had been raised at least two feet by the

ice in the spring.

The expenditure for the fiscal year is $192.11.
'

PIOPOLIS.

Piopolis is in Compton county on the west shore of Lake Megantic, and about 11

miles south of Megantic village, on the Canadian Pacific Eailway.

The wharf built in 1882-83, is a solid crib wharf filled with stone and topped

with gravel. Li 1897-98 the wharf was raised 5 feet and generally repaired.

rhiring Ma.y and June, 1906, extensive repairs were inidertaken; the headblock

was repaired from low-water level and enlarged 20 by 20 feet and the approach raised

2 feet.

During the present fiscal year, repairs were commenced September 27 and com-

pleted October 12, 1915, and consisted in renewing three tiers of the face timbers

around the headblock, repairing the sheathing and the railing on both sides of the

approach and repaving with gravel the approach and headblock.

During the fiscal year, the total expenditure was $295.07.

POIN'TE A COTE.

Bic, on the south shore of the St. Lawrence river, in the County of Rimouski, is

an important village and a favourite sunnner resort. The harbour ofiers a natural

shelter for vessels of small draught.

Spring tide rise 14 feet, neap tide 6-50 feet.

There are two wharfs at Bic; one called the old wharf, which i.* located on the

south of the harbour, and the Pointc a Cote wharf, located at the point of the same

name.
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The work done at Poiiite a Cote during the fiscal year 1915-16, consisted in the

clearing of accumulation of sand and gravel in the only opening left in approach from
Pointe a Cote to Isle au Massacre to enable small boats to pass through.

Expenditure for the fiscal year is $28.

POINTE A BROUSSEAU.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

Pointe a Brousseau is the west point of the municipality of Chlorydormes, 190

miles below Matane, on the St. Lawrence river. During the last six months, the crib

was launched, brought into position, secured, built and completed and the roadway
repaired, extended to main highway and floored for a length of 150 feet at outside end
adjoining pier. All the timber that was left at Pointe a Brousseau was barked, hewn
and placed on skids to keep it in good condition.

Expenditure for the fiscal year is $2,880.72.

POINTE A PIZEAU.

Two miles west of the city of Quebec, on the north shore of the St. Lawrence, a
high bluft", at an altitude of 200 feet, on which is located the church of Sillery, in the

village of Sillery, County of Quebec; the Pointe a Pizeau wharf is built on a beach
lot, once the property of the municipality of Sillery. In 1898, the municipality trans-

ferred to the Dominion Government both beach and water lot in front, also wharf
built on it at the time, such as it stood, on condition that the wharf should be enlarged,

repaired and thereafter kept in good repair; at the time of transfer it was stated that
the depth of water at outer end in low spring tides was 21 feet; whatever may be the
cause the present depth does not exceed 15 feet.

During fiscal years 1899 and 1900, certain repairs and additions were made to the

n'harf, in subsequent years additional repairs were made when needed, but for several

years the wharf was neglected and allowed to deteriorate; the slip pontoon is gone, side-

sheathing broken or gone in several places, allowed ballast to fall out through the wide
openings of 10 to 12 inches of the crib work; flooring and supporting ties collapsing;

stairs on west side for accommodation of small vessels and side-ladders gone.

During the fiscal year, the following repairs were performed and the structure

strenghtened against further casualties occurring until heavier repairs are made next

year.

The shore end, for a length of 165 feet, was thoroughly repaired by removing, on
east side, two decayed tiers of timber and replacing them by same quantity of 12 by 12

British Columbia pine, with new capping on top; new 3-inch sheathing of spruce was
placed on same length, 165 feet, of east elevation, and some of the old removed sheath-

ing was secured on the inside face timbers of same to keep gravel filling of roadway
in place.

On west side of same, inshore-end was a broken up portion of planking, 6 feet wide
by 160 feet in length (the remaining width of roadway being of stone, covered with
gravel and sand, 15 by 160 feet), the planking in question was renewed, including the

ties and stringers, with new timbers; on this same west side some 48 feet in length on
full height were temporarily sheathed over with old 3-inch spruce deals, to prevent
gravel and ballast from falling out. A permanent landing stair was erected at west
outer block on inner angular corner, dimensions 25 feet long, uprights of 6-inch square
pine, 4 feet apart, with 3-inch pine steps ; a ladder 24 feet long was placed on outer end
of block, and some planking on wharf, where dangerous, was removed and renewed.

POINTE AHX ESQUIMAUX.

Pointe aux Esquimaux, Saguenay county, is situated on the north shore of Gulf
St. Lawrence, at a distance of 425 miles from Quebec. Population, 800.
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During the present fiscal year, the sum of $42.60 was expended, to purchase deals

for urgent repairs to the approach of the wharf.

Work done 9th November.

POINTE AUX TREMBLES.

On a width of 7 and 8 feet along the middle portion of narrow section of wharf,

measuring 450 feet in length, instead of removing the original 4-inch planking alto-

gether, it was found better, and less expensive, to double it over with 3-inch good pine

deals securely mailed down with 6- and 7-inch wire nails. In many places, the top of

capping on same section was somewhat decayed and iron guard-rail loose; decayed

portions were renewed and a 3-inch pine deal laid over the whole capping on both sides,

well belted down; over this the foot plates of the iron posts of railing were secured

with stronger screw-bolts.

One section of roadway approach to wharf, which had to be cut down on side of

blufi, was hard to keep in order, the ditching being frequently filled up with earth and

sand washed down in heavy rains, flooding t.!ie road bed; to guard against this a drain

of 3-inch pine deals, over one hundred feet in length, was placed so as to receive and

divert from roadway all rainwater from above heights.

Some 36 loads of coarse gravel were carted onto the road at different points.

Combined waiting-room and freight shed, also whole capping, posts and railings were

painted anew.

About 50 cubic yards of broken up boulders, by dynamite blasting, were removed,

at lowest water from beach on both sides of wharf, they were dangerously impeding

approach to wharf.

POINTE CAVAGNOLE.

Pointe Cavagnole, known also as Pointe a Valors, County of Vaudreuil, is

situated on the south shore of Lake of Two Mountains, 4i miles west of the village

of Vaudreuil, which is the nearest railway station, and 2i miles east of Como.
This wharf rebuilt in 1901 consists of : (a) A close faced crib headbloek 75 by

25 feet and a stone approach 234 by IS feet. Minor repairs were done to the floor-

ing, cap-piece, fence and approach. This work was done by day labour at a cost of

$244.76.

POINTE CLAIRE.

Pointe Claire, an incorporated village in Jacques-Cartier county, situated on
Lake St. Louis, and 14 miles from Montreal.

On October 36, 1898, the Government entered into an agreement with the Grand
Trunk Railway Company of Canada, for a lease, for a period of 20 years, of the com-
pany wharf, which was a solid embankment of stone and earth, 1,000 feet long, of an

average width of 45 feet, situated at the foot of Grand Trunk Avenue.

In 1899, a close faced stone-filled headbloek, 121J by 24 by 16 feet, was built, at a

cost of $4,022.06.

During last fiscal year, part of the headbloek. 25 by 20 feet was razed down to

the water level, and rebuilt. This work was done by day labour at a cost of $799.46.

POINTE ST. PIERRE.

Pointe St. Pierre, County of Gaspe, is situated at the western entrance of Gaspe
bay, twenty-one miles from Gaspe Basin and fifteen miles from Perce.

The breakwater damaged in the fall of 1914, suffered heavily during the winter

and in the spring, probably with ice, part of the outside facework and sheathing

were carried away, causing most of the ballast to run out of the structure. The
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facework was repairerl, with tlie help of a diver, but only some 200 cubic yards of

ballast were placed in structure.

Expenditure for the fiscal year is $658.97.

PORT AU SAUMON.

Dredging.

Port au Saumon is situated in the County of CharlevoLx, on the River St. Law-

rence, approximately 91 miles below Quebec.

In order to- permit steam barges to load pulpwood, a basin, 250 by 450 feet,

was dredged at the point where the River au Saumon cuts low-tide level, to a depth

of 15 feet below low-water level. This work, which had been started in the fall of

1914, was resumed and completed this season. The departmental dredge Ottawa

removed, during three periods, from May 22 to June 11, the 5th to 29th July, and from

20th September to 12th October, 1915, over an area of approximately 112,500 square

feet, 59,791 cubic yards, scow measurement, of clay, sand and boulders.

Including 8,260 cubic yards, scow measurement, removed in the fall of 1914, the

total quantity dredged at Port au Saumon, in 1914 and 1915, amounts to 68,051 cubic

yards, scow measurement, or 49,630 yards, place measurement. Expansion factor 37

per cent.

POUPORE.

Located on lower reach of the Riviere du Lievre. The extensive landslide

which took place in 1903, below the lock and dam, choked the river for a distance of

over i mile, and considerable dredging has been required for a number of years to

improve the boat channel.

Departmental dredge No. 102 worked above the locks August 25-31, removing
1,298 yards, scow measure, clay, including some stone and logs, to a grade depth of

10 feet, making 377 lineal feet of cutting. At the lower lock entrance, the improve-

ment^August 13-24 and September 1 was two cuts wide, to a grade depth of 10 feet,

for a distance of 396 lineal feet. During this period, 2,340 yards, scow measure, clay,

including stone and stray logs, were removed. A new channel, located about mid-
stream was commenced at the upper end of the landslide. During the period Octo-
ber 12 to November 5, 6,705 yards, scow measure, clay, were removed to a grade depth
of 10 feet, in two cuts aggregating 816 lineal feet. From soundings taken during the
winter months, the quantity of material place measure removed in the new channel
is 7,016 yards. The Brazeau cut, A mile below the locks, was improved Septembor 2-

22. During this period, 4,515 yards scow measure clay, including some stone and
stray logs, were removed to grade depths of 9 and 10 feet in the old boat channel.

QUYON.

Quyon, a village in Pontiac county, on the Waltham Branch of the Canadian
Pacific Railway, is located on the north shore of the Ottawa river near the head of
Lake Deschenes.

In 1914, the wharf of the Upper Ottawa Improvement Co., was acquired by the
department and reconstructed. Dredging improvements have been carried on con-
currently with the construction of this wharf, and the roadway leading to the approach
has been improved since. Necessary improvements of the approach-roadway on St. Joiiii

street were made, October 7 to November 6, under an agreement with tho municin:il

council of Quyon, which body passed a resolution relieving the department from
any responsibility for possible damages to adjacent properties. The approach road-
way was widened to 16 feet and graded for a distance of 80 feet. Riprap slopewalling,
1-5 feet thick, 6 feet high, 80 feet long, and 1-5 feet thick, 8-5 feet high and 41 feet
long, also retaining wall, 3-5 feet thick, 4-5 feet high and 35 feet long, containing
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some 17 cords of stone, were built to protect cut and fill of approach. A 2-inch plank

sidewalk, 3 feet wide 84 feet lonsr, with handrailing-. was placed on west side of

approach. In !March, repairs and improvements included replacing upper corner fen-

ders; strengthening outer comer fender* with W. I. clamps; straightening- niggcr-

head, and minor repairs to capping and sheeting.

Expenditure during the fiscal year, $476.26.

WGAUD.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915).

Rigaud, a post village and seigniory in Yaudreuil county, on the Riviere

Graisse, 2 miles south of the quai de Rigaud, a port of call on the Ottawa river.

During last fiscal year, $313.34: were spent in completing the construction of the

shed and the new approach to the wharf.

RIMOUSKI.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

The town of Rimouski, chef-lieu of the county of the same name, is situated on

the south shore of the St. Lawrence river, 180 miles below Quebec : its population is

over 4,000.

During the fiscal year 1915-16, the work done consisted in the sinking of 600 feet

of caissons, and the beginning of the superstructure of the piers sunk in 1914-15.

Dredging w-as also done to the extent of 7,220 cubic yards, to clear the caisson's

berth and permit the sinking of the caissons.

Expenditure for the fiscal year is $50,000.

Repairs.

The work done at Rimouski wharf during the fiscal year 1915-16, consisted in the

building of two small piers on the west side of the wharf; a shed, office and workshop

were placed on these piers to avoid the annual payment of the rental of the ground

formerly occupied by these buildings; general repairs were also made to the wharf.

Expenditure for the fiscal year is $3,218.02.

RIVER L.\ PIPE.

River La Pipe is a small village situated on the north shore of Lake St. John, at

the mouth of the river of the same name, 7 miles north of La Grande Decharge.

Population about 8O0.

The sum of $61.40 was expended in renewing the roof of the freight shed and of

the waiting-room on the wharf.

The work was carried out by day labour and was started August 22 and completed

September 1.

RIVIERE AU KKXARn.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

Riviere au Renard is one of the most ancient settlements in the County of Gaspe.

It is the first important fishing station and business place met with proceeding from

Gaspe Basin along the south shore of the St. Lawrence. The jwpulation is estimated

at 1,700.

During the last fiscal year, the outside face of the pier was sheathed with piling

for a length of 140 feet and the inside face for a length of 90 feet. Two to four tiers

of face-timbers, on a length of 286 feet, were renewed togotlicr with part of the fioor

beams. Stone ballast, partly taken from alongside, was placed in the whole length,

from two to five feet deep in places.
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The flooring was renewed for a length of 163 feet and repaired for a length of one

hundred feet. A small shed 10 by 12J feet, built to store tools and materials, was com-

pleted and painted.

Expenditure for the fiscal year is $3,610.76.

RH'IERE BLANCHE.

Riviere Blanche, or St. Ulrie, in the County of Eimouski, is situated on the south

shore of the St. Lawrence river, 21 miles east of Metis and 9 miles west of Matane.

Eiviere Blanche is an important farming settlement. There are a big saw-mill

and a factory for prepared lumber, doors, sashes, etc.

The wharf and its approach is 440 feet in length by 20 feet in width, built on piers

of 20 by 20 feet, with a space of 25 feet between, and a T block 'of 300 feet in length

by 25 feet in width.

During the fiscal year 1915-16, the work done consisted in the temporary planking

of the roadway over the first opening of the wharf starting from the shore.

Expenditure for the fiscal year is $125.42.

^ RIVliiRF: BOI.S BLANC.

Dredging.

Riviere du Bois Blanc, County of Maskinonge, takes its rise in the paris,li of St.

Justin, flows through Maskinonge and empties into the north branch of Lake St. Peter.

The population interested is about 3,000.

This dredging was undertaken in order to remove logs, detritus, etc., which were

an impediment to the free run-off of the water, causing the water to flow through a

very rich patch of land, during the freshets.

Dredge P.W.D., No. 121f, started work on June 4 and discontinued on 26th, remov-
ing 1,973 cubic yards and opening a channel 230 feet in length, 26 feet wide, for a

4-foot depth; the mean depth of cut being 4-8 feet. Judging that a deeper dredge was
not effective, it was decided to have the balance of work continued by hand shovelling.

This kind of work was started on July 7. Labourers continued the operations by clean-

ing the shores and the bottom by hand shovelling. They removed 12,835 cubic yards
of material on a distance of 30,370 feet, maintaining a T^-idth varying from 3-5 to 6

feet on a grade of 1 inch per 100 feet. The mean depth of cut was 2-7.

The operations were completed on September 25, giving the best results.

The total yardage removed on the whole operation was 14,808 cubic yards, and
cost $3,919.66.

During 1914, the dredge P.W.D., No. 13Jf, removed 6.400 cubic yards ;it this site.

RIVIERE DU LIEVEE.

Obstructions interfering with navigation, betv,een Buckingham and Poupore, in

the Eiviere du Lievre, were removed by departmental dredge No. 102, at the folloudng

points.

Two miles above Buckingham, opposite Smith's point, October 2—8,351 yards,

scow measure, stone and gravel, to a grade depth of 9 feet.

At sand bar opposite Chas. Bigelow's farm, 6 miles above Buckingham, September

24 to October 1, 725 yards scowed away, in addition to 1,539 yards cast over of gravel

and logs, to a grade-depth of 9 feet.

Two miles below Poupore. opposite Jag. Bigelow's, July 31—August 1-, 1.860

yards, scow measure, clay and gravel, to a grade-depth of 9 feet.

RIVIERE DU LOUP (EN HAUT).

The Eiviere du Loup (en haut), which flows through the County of Maskinonge,

is divided into several tributaries. The main branch of the river taking its rise at the
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foot of the Laurentide, a distance of 7-i miles north, and empties into the St. Lawrence,

near Louiseville, 21 miles above Trois-Rivieres. This river is navigable for a distance

of about 3J miles from the outlet to the government wharf at Louiseville.

The population interested is about 11,993.

The dredging was performed at Tourville's mill, and at government wharf, where
sand bars were removed from August 25 to November 17, by the departmental dredge

P. W.D. No. 106. The quantity of material removed is 15,324 cubic yards. The depth

contemplated was seven feet; mean depth of face 2-6 feet.

At Tourville's miU a cut was opened on 530 feet in length, 40 in width, and
2,463 cubic yards of material were removed.

At the government wharf, a cut was opened 2,965 feet in leugtli, 40 in width, and

12,656 cubic yards of material were removed.

RniERE DU LOUP (EN BAS).

Riviere du Loup, or the town of Fraserville, is the chef-lieu of the County of

Temiscouata. It is situated on the south shore of the St. Lawrence, 114 miles beluw

Quebec.

Spring tides rise 19 feet, neaps 12 feet. During the present fiscal year the follow-

ing repairs were made.

The pavement was renewed, on a surface of 3,866 square feet, with spruce deals

3 inches thick ; five mooring-posts, which were weakened, were replaced with timber

20 inches square and 11 feet long.

The hardwood sheathing of the outer face, which had been carried away by ice, was

repaired with 25 pieces, 6 inches thick of a mean length of 25 feet, the timber used was
oak, and a fender, 8 inches by 6 inches, by 24 feet long, was also placed. In the spcuce

sheathing of the eastern face, 54 pieces, 4 inches thick, were replaced.

All the mooring-posts were painted and many other detail repairs were performed

on the wharf and to the building standing upon the head of the wharf. These works

were carried on, between 23rd July and 3l8t Augnst, at a cost of $585.20.

RnOERE GIR.VRD.

Riviere Girard, in the County of Temiscouata, is 132 miles below Quebec and

about IJ miles below Isle Verte church.

The small landing-pier built some ten years ago on the east bank of the mouth of

Riviere Girard, having been damaged by ice during spring freshets, was rebuilt on a

length of 79 feet and a height of 8 feet.

The top flooring and stringers which had been washed away by the current of the

river was again filled with earth and pieces of timber placed to protect the filling from

further disintegration. Work done during the months of July and August, at an

expenditure of $999.89.

RIVER JESUS.

Authorization was received to expend $2,000 to dredge a 3-foot channel for the

use of motor-boat in River Jesus from St. Eustache to Ste. Rose.

A scow was equipped with a derrick and a 1-cubic foot orange peel-bucket. The
hard gravel bottom of the river was loosened with dynamite and taken off with the

bucket. The result not being satisfactory the work is temporarily stopped.

This work was done by day labour at a cost of $648.49.

RniERE OUELLE.

The pier is situated at Pointe aux Orignaux,- 5 miles distant from the village of

River Ouelle, in the County of Kamouraska, on the south shore of the St. Lawrence,

opposite Murray Bay.
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During the present fiscal year, the following repairs and improvements were
executed.

The superstructiire, near the outer end, was renewed on a length of 140 feet by a

mean height of § feet; in order to replace the various members, the stone ballast had
to be taken out and replaced.

The flooring was renewed with spruce deals 3 inches thick on a length of 300 feet

by a width of 30 feet. The capping pieces 12 inches by 12 inches, 200 feet in length
were replaced, three mooring-posts were also renewed.

The northeast corner of the outer block, which is very much exposed to the action
of the ice, has been protected by placing six boiler plates 12 feet by 3 feet by § inches
thick. The railing on the east side of the wharf, damaged by ice during the winter
was renewed on a length of 110 feet, and a further length of 150 feet was repaired.

The hardwood sheathing of the outer face of the headblock was repaired and
thirty-six new pieces of red birch, 12 feet long and 5 inches thick, have been placed
to renew the pieces carried away by the ice.

A coal-shed, 47 feet long, 17 feet wide, strongly framed and thoroughly secured
to the structure of the wharf, was built and was ready for use on the first of August.
The capacity of the shed is about 400 tons.

To facilitate the coaling of the steamer Champlain, a new slip, 28 feet long, 9 feet
wide, 4i feet deep, was cut through the western end of the outer block.

Previously to the building of the shed, in order to secure a proper foundation for
the building, the surface of the spur was repaired and strengthened.

These works were done by day labour, between 14th June and 30th October, at a
cost of $4,486.16.

Rn'ER PETITE BERGERONNE.

Bergeronnes, Saguenay county, is situated on the river of the same name some
16 miles below Tadoussac. Its population is about 1,000.

In order to permit schooners engaged in the coasting trade to enter the Eiver
Petite Bergeronne, the sum of $498.71 was expended to continue the removal of
boulders in the river.

The work was carried out by day labour and was started July liand suspended
July 31.

RIVER SAINT CHARLES.

LocTcs and Dam.

On March 17, 1913, a contract was entered into with Messrs. Quinlan & Eobertson -

for the construction of locks and dam at the entrance of the River St. Charles, in the
city of Quebec, for the improvement of navigation. Work contracted for to be finished

by March 14, 191G.

The dam will extend across the river from the Louise embankment on the south
side, to the highest water line on the north side parallel to and west of Canadian
Northern Railway bridge. The total length will be 1,590 feet.

The dam construction consists in part of a solid concrete wall, 870 feet long and
30 feet high, founded 7 feet below low water spring tides, the upper surface will be
above H.W.S.T. Below and within its base there will be driven throughout, two
parallel linos of interlocked steel piles, -25 and 30 feet long, respectively. The north end
of the dam, for a length of 350 feet, consists of a line of 25 feet interlocked steel piles,

connected to the end of the concrete wall; their upper level being nearly on a level

with the top of the dam, these piles will be completely covered and the wall back-filled

with suitable materials.

Through the dam in the channel of the river, there will be two passages, each 65

feet wide, leading to the locks, and two sluiceways, each 53 feet wide, with suitable

gates for regulating the water level in the pool above the dam.
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The sluiceway will be extended to the east end of the locks between the north-lock

wall on one side and a retaining wall on the other.

Concrete piers on each side of those passages are arranged to support the future

bridge spans that will be required.

The double line of interlocking steel-foundation piles under the dam are continued

under the sluiceways and piers thence at right angles under the outer piers to connect

with the piles across the upper entrance of the lock>;.

The piers and sluiceway foundations will be on the same level as the dam, but iu

order to support the additional bridge loads, a sufficient number of round wooden piles

will be driven over the foundations, which will extend about 2 feet vertically into the

piers to form a bond.

The south end of the dam will terminate at the face line of the Louise embank-

ment where there will be a transverse cut-oS line of interlocking steel piles connecting

those under the concrete dam with the line of 20-foot piles crossing the river vmder

the mat as described below.

A concrete wall 150 feet long for an end eut-oS, built up to the level of the main
dam and connected with it, is carried along the south side of the mat, as far as its

outer line.

Two lines of steel piles for an additional cut-off pass through the wall and extend

behind it for 69 and 96 feet, respectively. These piles are a continuation of one line

under the dam and a line under the mat ; the lower ends being at the same level as the

former, the upper ends above high water. The mat will extend across the river between

the up-stream wall on the north side and the south cut-off wall. It will be of concrete

2 feet thick instead of clay 4 feet thick as originally intended and will be 150 feet wide.

« There will be two locks below the dam with chambers 450 feet long 65 feet wide

and a depth from coping to floor of 43 feet. The thickness of the lock floor will be 15

feet, the base being 35 feet below L.W.S.T. The lower entrance of the locks will be

658J feet east of the centre line of the dam, and at right angles at the end of the south

lock there will be a chamber built of concrete for a floating caisson to be used instead

of the outer gates first proposed, on account of economy and general convenience.

The walls of the locks will be of mass concrete with granite coping above H.W.S.

Tides. The floor throughout will be reinforced with steel rods and completely inclosed

by driving interlocked steel piles along all sides which will reach 25 feet below bottom

of floor. A guide pier 300 feet long will be built at both eiul< of the locks.

It is the intention to fill as much as possible any available space within the con-

tract limits, that will make useful ground, with materials excavated from the works.

Progress of work.

For tbe year 1913-14, the construction w-as entirely confined to the work at the

north end of the dam on the Limoilu side of the River St. Charles.

For the year 1914-15, the previous year's work at the north end of the dam was

continued to the sluiceway. The construction of the sluiceway platform and piers was

then commenced according to plans and specifications within one large cofferdam

built for the purpose, all of that work however was not finished by the end of the work-

ing season. The last operation was to drive the 20 foot interlocking stool pilor- at the

upper side of the mat above the dam for a distance of 225 feet southwards from the

line of the ui)-stream offset wall and 118 feet from and parallel to the centre line of

the dam.

Dam.

In 1915-16, the unfinished concrete work of the previous year, within the cofferdam

for the sluiceway platform, and piers on the north side of the lock entrance was first

taken in hand and finished as far as the limits of the cofferdam permitted. The coffer-

dam was then removed. The next section of pier No. 3, as far as the railway crib, was

sunk as a caisson on shoes with cutting edges, open pockets being left for clam-shell
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dredgin?. The pockets were finally filled with coiitTcte to conipleto the solid ])ier as

designed. The concrete dam was constructed to correct level on the Quebec side for

a distance of 400 feet and an extra 100 feet about 12 feet high above foundation level.

Interlocked steel piles were previously driven to grade and the upper edges were
cleared of any sand left by the dredges or otherwise by divers working ahead of the

concrete plant.

The concrete was deposited in heavy anchored forms instead of the cofferdam

method of construction adopted on the Limoilou side. On the Quebec side, the con-

crete cut-off wall and steel piling along the south side of the mat already described

were completed. The up-stream offset wall on the Limoilou side was eoippleted for a

length of 200 feet according to original design. The down-stream wall was finished

for a length of 232 feet according to original plans. The foundations for a length of

145 feet however were changed from the pile p'.atform design to concrete caisson, the

latter being considered more suitable to the conditions existing at that place. These
caissons are smik but the solid wall on the top could not be finished this year. The
remaining 200 feet of the wall as designed on the original plan has been abandoned
as unnecessary. Interlocking steel piles have been driven from the end of the wall

eastwards in the same line as far as the end of the locks, to hold the sluiceway paving

in position, interlocking steel piles have also been driven across the concrete paving
of the sluiceway and continued across the upper end of lock No. 2 and connected at

intersections with the line of steel piles under pier No. .3 which connect with the main
line previously driven under the dam. The 20 foot steel piles for the mat have been

driven fi'oni the cut-off wall on the Quebec side for a distil nee of 429 feet northwards.

The dredging for the mat above the dam on the Quebec side was commenced this year

and is nearly completed, and most of the material was deposited behind the dam.

Loclcs.

Dredging for the lock foundations and sluiceway was commenced this year and
about one third of the excavation has been done. The greater part of the dredged

material has been deposited behind the dam and offset walls and within the area to be

filled between the line of the Louise embankment and the south wall of the locks, on

the east side of the Canadian Northern Quebec railway. A concrete section contain-

ing mitre-sill platform for the upper end of lock No. 2 was sunk into the river bed by
the open pocket process for excavation, the pockets being finally filled with concrete.

The contractors made a sub-contract with the Megantic Granite Co.. for the cutting

and delivery of granite coping for the lock-walls, a considerable quantity of which has

been cut.

The progress made for this year has been quite satisfactory, and the plant equip-

ment amply suflieient for the work that could be accomplished within a working season.

The work cannot be completed by the date specified in the contract.

The expenditure for the fiscal year was $400,792.66.

niVER ST. I,OtIIS.

River St. Louis rises between the villages of Ste. Barbe and St. Stanislas, some
8 miles south of Valleyfield, and running east through the parishes of Cartier, St.

Louis de Gonzague and St. Etienne, flows into Lake St. Louis at Beauharnois, some
20 miles from starting point.

The object of this dredging is to minimize the floods caused every year during

freshets and after heavy rains, by increasing the flowing section of the river and
heightening its banks.

From May 10 to November 13, 1915, departmental dredge No. 101 continued the

deepening of river bed, started in 1904, and continued every year since, some 16,3&6

yards, place measurement, of clay and 2,400 cubic yards place measurement of rock
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and boulders were removed, making a total of 18,796 yards, in sHu, of material

deposited on both shores and levelled off. Hours of actual dredging, 1,283; cut,

40 feet wide average; face removed 5 feet; distance advanced, 2,498 feet.

Tiis work necessitated the building of a temporary dam so as to float the dredge,

the latter being 40 feet wide.

To date, dredging is completed up to 3,338 feet above Pont Rouge, or SJ miles from
starting point at Simon's bridge. To complete up to feeder canal, a length of over

2 miles, will take many years to a dredge of No. 101 type, as there is no data on

hand as to the quantity and kind of material yet to be removed.

Owing to current and site of river, the dredging, when completed, will last

forever.

During 1914, dredge No. 101 took out some 2,437 cubic yards place measure-

ment of clay, 442 of gravel and 2,903 of solid rock, making a total of 5,782 cubic

yards place measurement of material.

The sum of $9,000, is the annual expenses of dredge No. 101 including crew

and shore gangs.

RnER VERTE (WcSt).

River Verte, which flows through the parish of Isle Verte, in the County of

Temiscouata, empties into the St. Lawrence about | of a mile west of Isle Verte

church.

The dyke built along the west side of River Verte, near the highway bridge, as

a protection to the riparian properties, wa.s damaged by ice during last spring

freshets.

The sum of $500 was expended to make the necessary repairs which consisted in

replacing a length of nearly 200 feet of the iuclined apron and three rows of face

timbers.

The stone ballast carried away by the current of the river was replaced, with

also the stone backing on about the same length. A few repairs were also done on

the west shore dyke, which had also suffered some damage.

Work was done during the month of September.

ROBERVAIi.

The town of Roberval. Chicoutimi county, is the terminus of the Quebec and

Lake St. John railway, it is also the shire-town of the County of Lake St. John,

and the centre of navigatibu of the lake of the same name. Its populatioii is 3,000.

During the present fiscal year, the outer end of the wharf over a distance of

73 feet by 67 feet in width, which was partly rebuilt last year, was completed by

sheathing and flooring with 4-inch deals. A new freight shed and waiting room 60

feet by 25 feet was built, a moving slip 40 feet in length by 12 feet in width, operated

with a patent reading gear, had also been constructed, the railway trestle passing

alongside the wharf was repaired on a distance of 409 feet, these repairs consist

in the renewing of the cap-pieces, braces and stringers, ^British Columbia fir 12

inches square was employed. All stringers, cap-pieces, and uprights between the

trestle and the wharf were renewed, and covered with 4-inch deals; the old retain-

ing wall built with stone was taken down and replaced by a concrete one.

In order to protect the trestle at high water, 20 fenders 13 by 12 inch were

placed, these pieces were driven in general two and three feet and stand to the

height of the cap-pieces, they are braced by a cross-piece bolted to the log of the

trestle and the fender.
,

A 2'J-inch pipe was laid from the Main street to the centre of the wharf to be

used in case of fire and 100 feet of fire-hose was placed in small shed built for that

purpose.



REPOliT OF THE CHIEF EyGINEER 239

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

Two iron cranes were installed to facilitate the loading and unloading of heavy

cargo.

The work was carried out by day labour, and was started May 11 and completed

March 30, at a cost of $8,553.93.

ST. ADELAIDE DE PABOS.

The breakwater of St. Adelaide de Pabos, commenced in 18S8, was built for a

total length of 460 feet in an average depth of 4i feet of water at low water spring tides.

The last 160 feet was built by contract in 1913.

During the last six months, an approach of sixty feet of open-faced cribwork was

built, to connect the breakwater with roadway, and the hill was repaired.

Expenditure for the fiscal year ia $1,483.98.

ST. ALPHONSE DE BAGOTVILLE.

St. Alphonse, the terminus of the Roberval-Saguenay railway, is situated at th.?

head of Ha Ha bay, on the southern side of the Eiver Saguenay, some 66 miles fwm
its mouth. It is a stopping place of the Canada Steamship lines. Population about

1,500.

During the present fiscal year, the sum of $478.78 was expended in renewing the

flooring on the headblock of the wharf over a distance of 85 feet by 48 feet in width.

The work was carried out by day labour, was started June 9 and completed June 24.

ST. ANDRE.

The village of St. Andre, in the County of Kamouraska, is situated on the south

shore of the St. Lawrence, about 15 miles west of River du Loup, and 100 miles below

Quebec.

The place is somewhat frequented as a summer resort; it contains a foundry and

an impcirtant threshing-mill factory.

Spring tides rise 19 feet, neaps, 12 feet.

A sum of $978.10 was expended towards making repairs to the flooring of the

wharf, which was nearly renewed, on a length of 400 feet by a width of 25 feet.
^

About 200 feet of spruce 9 inches by 9 inches have been used to renew the stringers.

Besides the repair to the flooring, the sheathing which closes the openings between

the isolated blocks was repaired and many other minor works were also performed, such

as repairs to the old pavement upon the whole length of the wharf.

Work was done during the months of May, June and July.

ST. ANDREWS.

St. Andrews, Argenteuil county, is located on the North river 3^ miles from the

Ottawa river.

In 1911, a small cribwork wharf was built by contract, and subsequently improved.

During the past season, several leaky places in the storeho^ise were repaired ; the

stone and earth approach was repaired by building out the riprap walls and covering

with sods and gravel. The roadway between wharf and main road, for a distance of

some 100 feet was made wider by levelling off the adjacent ground.

Expenditure during fiscal year, $35.

STE. ANNE DE BEAITPRE.

Ste. Anne de Beaupre is situated in the County of Montmorency, on the north

shore of the River St. Lawrence, about 21 miles below Quebec. Population, 3,000.

In the course of last spring, part of the wharf, which is over 1,800 feet in length,

was completely destroyed by a storm. During the past season, the portions destroyed
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were rebuilt and the balance of the credits voted was used in temporary repairs to the

rest of the wharf. The work done was the building of new cribwork, flooring, 16-foot

trestlework, 2J:-foot breastwork, demolition of old cribs and old trestlework, general

temporary repairs and falseworks.

The work was performed by day labour between May 4 and October 7, 1915. Total

expenditure for fiscal year, $18,561.23.

STE. ANNE DE BELLEVUE.

Ste. Anne de Bellevue, a town in Jacques Cartier county, at the confluence of

the Rivers St. Lawrence and Ottawa, and on the Grand Trunk railway and Canadian

Pacific railway, 21 miles west of ^Montreal. It contains two churches (Kpisei )ial and

Roman Catholic), one convent, one college for the education of Rumau Catholic boys

and girls, one bank, two telegraph offices, five hotels, seven stores, two carriage factories

and the ilacDonald College of Agriculture. Population, 1,800.

The object of this dredging is to do away with present channel leading through

Baker's dam, which is the cause of serious delays to boats and especially tows going

up and down Ottawa river.

Baker's dam has to be rebuilt soon, both sides, on the whole length, and this

department is informed by the Railways and Canals that the reconstruction of said

dam will cost $200,000. The work is of a public nature and of the first importance in

the district.

From May 18 to November 6, departmental dredge No. 123 removed some 34,739

cubic yards, scow measurement, of clay, sand, boulders, hardpan and rock in making

a new 10-foot channel. The number of cubic yards, in situ, as determined by sound-

ings which have been taken in January, 1916, is 19,360 of ordinary material, 4,960

of rock, making a total of 24,320 cubic yards in situ.

The quantity, place measurement, corresponds with scow measurement, the ex-

pansion factor for ordinary material is 33J per cent and 80 per cent for rock. Hours
of actual dredging, 1,152^; cut, 10 to 45 feet wide; face removed 3 to 12 feet; dis-

tance, 8,412 feet; dumping ground within two miles, in a deep place, along He Perrot

islets, same 1,500 feet south of present channel.

Dimensions of work done during 1915 are as follows: 1 cut 150 feet wide at bot-

tom by 1,130 feet long, which embraces the cut 920 feet long by 45 feet wide, nuide in

1914.

'

Site of dredging extends below Ste. Anne's lock, from opposite the head of

Baker's dam, going south-eastward, and well protected from storms.

Owing to the fact that the site is well protected from storms, nearly no current,

and hard material, the probable duration of the improvements will be over 30 years.

During 1914, departmental dredge Xo. 13 worked from June 9 to 27, and No. 12S,

from July 20 to November 14, removed some 25,924 cubic yards, scow measurement,

in making an up-stream cut, 1,305 feet long by 45 feet wide, and a down-stream cut,

920 feet long by 45 wide.

To complete, as originally propo.scd, will require the removal of 16,440 cubic

yards, place measurement, of rock, and 82,990 cubic yards, place measurement, of

other material, with an expansion factor 80 per cent for rock and 33J \>ct cent for

ordinary material. Dimensions of work to bo done: 2,300 feet long average by 200

wide at bottom, the whole to 10-foot below extreme low-water level, corresponding to

9 feet on lower sill Ste. Anne's lock.

Since the dredging operations have been undertaken, 197 working days were spent

here, or Ih months.
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STE. AXNE DE CHICOLTIMI.

Ste. Anne, Chicoutimi county, is situated opposite the town of Chicoutimi, where
a ferry-boat makes a trip every half hour. It is an important farming place of

about 2,000 inhabitants.

During the present fiscal year, the wharf, which is 382 feet long by 25 feet wide,

with a headblock of 75 by 75 feet, has been repaired, 5 feet of the superstructure, over

a di-stance of 382 feet by 25 feet wide, required renewal. In order to facilitate the
execution of these repairs without interfering with traffic, which is very heavy en that

wharf, piles were driven 10 feet apart on both sides of the wliarf, then, the whole floor-

ing and stringers were taken off by .sections of 20 feet, in order to place a cap on pile

timbers, the stringers to receive flooring, etc., on the full length of the wharf. The
south side of the wharf was sheathed from the top to 2 feet below low water with 4-inch
deals, secured with 9-inch nails to the walings prepared for that purpose, the head-
block was levelled and sheathed, a new movable slip built, a slip 95 feet long by 10 feet

wide was also built, and freight shed and waiting-room painted.

The work was carried out by day labour. Work started ilay and was completed
September 11 at a cost of $10,255.94.

STE. .\N.\E DES MOXTS.

Ste. Anne des Monts is an important municipality fifty-four miles below Matane
on the shore of the St. Lawrence river.

During the course of last summer, a landing pier, commenced in 1914, was
extended for a length of 1,340 feet.

ST. ANTOIXE

St. Antoine is a post village and parish in Vercheres county, on River Richelieu,
7 miles from Contrecoeur station on the Montreal and Southern railway, and 15 miles
from St. Hilaire.

In order to protect the shore bank of the River Richelieu in front of the church
from spring freshets and the waves of the boats passing through the main channel, it

was decided to construct a dry-stone wall "00 feet long. 15 feet high, 8 feet wide at the
base and 3 feet at top.

The stone necessary for the construction of this wall was bought and delivered
on the site at a cost of $300.

ST. BARTHELEIII.

St. Barthelemi is a post village in Berthier county, the station being lA mile
distant, on the Canadian Pacific railway. 65 miles east of Montreal.

A protection dyke about 1,100 feet long was raised 3 feet on its entire length.

This work was done by da.v labour at a cost of $999.75.

ST. tllARLES.

St. Charles is a post village in St. llyacinthe county, on the River Richelieu, nine
miles from St. Hilaire station.

It contains one Roman Catholic church, express and telegraph f)flices, four stores,

one hotel, one branch bank, saw and grist mills. Population, HOO.

The public wharf built in 1908 consists of: (a) A pile headblock 137 by 24 feet;

(6) A crib approach 137 by 29 feet and (c) An earth approach 75 by 16 feet.

During June last, 1,500 square feet of the flooring was repaired by day labour at

a cost of $183.03.

19—16
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ST. DAMIEN.

St. Damien is a post village in Bertliier county, six miles from St. Gabriel tie

Brandon. Population 1,160.

In order to protect a rural bridge, two ice-breakers were built in Black river, eaeli

12 feet liigb, 6J by 20 feet at base and 14 by 3 feet at top, resting on a pile foundation.

This work was done by day labour at a cost of $800.08.

ST. DENIS.

St. Denis, a flourishing post village and parish of St. Hyaeinthe county, on the

River Richelieu, 18 miles from St. Hilaire station and 7 miles from Contrecxur on the

Montreal and Sorel railway.

The public wharf built in 1909 consists of: (a) A pile headblock 89 by .32 feet 5

inches with an extension 30 by 20 feet at the north end; (b) A stone approach 100 by
86 feet with sides riprapped and sloped 1 in 1; (c) A freight shed 31 by 24 feet, and
(d) A concrete sidewalk 4 by 100 feet.

During last fiscal year, 1,500 square feet of the flooring were renewed and minor

repairs were done to the stone riprap, cap-piece and shed by day labour at a cost of

$227.13.

St. Eloi, in the County of Temisi^ouata, lies on the south shore of the St. Lawrence,

17 miles below Riviere du Loup. It has a population of about 1,000 all engaged in

farming. The sea-grass industry is also carried on, the quaiitity of moss during last

season being over 6,000 tons.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 1916, the sum of $1,009.42 was expended

to complete the dredging of the channel leading from the wharf to the channel.

Advantage w'as taken of the bed of a small river, and a length of 500 feet by a

width of 20 feet and mean depth of 2 feet, was excavated; 1,000 cubic yards of earth

and about 100 cubic yards of stone were removed.

It was hand dredging, the material being loaded in scows at low tides and carried

away at high tides.

The dredging was performed to help the sea-moss industry, by allowing scows

engaged in that industry to land at the wharf during neap tides.

The work was commenced on July 1 and completed on August 31.

STE. EMILIE.
'

To enable residents of that end of parish, to have access over wharf to beach on

east side, and vice versa for residents of west end, a side slip was filled with stone

ballast and covered with 6-inch round cedar.

It was fomid necessary to cut out landing steps or small slip in east side of outer

block end, to facilitate approach to it in strong westerly winds; its dimensions are 12

feet long 10 feet wide and 5 feet high on face.

Some 150 yards of coarse gravel were spread over roadway crib-approach, rounding
off from middle to sides.

One upright guard-fender, 16 feet long and 8 by 10 inches dimensions, were
renewed with tamarac at outer end of wharf; some 25 broken deals were also replaced

with 3-inch spruce deals and 60 cubic yards of stone ballast were placed in shore slip

and alongside of wharf.

At close of navigation, wharf movable-fenders, posts, sheds and other materials

pertaining to wharf and liable to be carried away or injured by high water, ice, or

spring freshet? at opening of navigation this present spring, were removed and made
secure for winter.



REPORT OF THE fHIEF ESGISEER 243

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

STE. FELICITE.

Ste. Felicite, in the County of Eimouski, is situated on the south shore of the St.

Lawrence, about eleven miles east of Matane. It is a fanning and lumbering settle-

ment. There is a saw-mill and a butter factory.

In 1913-14, the Department built a wharf 540 feet in length by 22 and 30 feet in

width.

The work done during the last fiscal year, consisted in the construction of a rip-rap

stone protection alongside the road near the shore end of the wharf.

The repairing of the approach was also commenced.

Expenditure for the fiscal year is $199.75.

ST. FRANCOIS DU LAC.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

St. Francois du Lac is the county town of the County of Yamaska, situated on
the west side of the River St. Francis, 9 miles above its mouth where it empties into

Lake St. Peter.

Work of repair was commenced June 1 and carried on to June 25, 1915, and
consisted in re-setting the fence of both sides of the right-of-way, grading the road-

way, removing from the wharf sand and mud carried thereon by high water, repairing

the sheathing and the flooring of the wharf, and placing on the low level wharf the

freight shed which had been removed for the high water season.

"

The warehouse was again removed from the wharf the first days of February, 1916,

and carried to a safe place for the high water of the spring of 1916.

During the fiscal year the expenditure was $354.93.

ST. FULGENXE.

St. Fulgence, Chicoutimi county, is a farming and lumbering place of about
1,200 inhabitants, with a few saw-mills, situated some 9 miles below Chicoutimi
town, on the north shore of the Eiver Saguenay.

During the present fiscal year, the sum of $1,178.28 was expended in renewing
the flooring, stringers, corbels and about two courses of timbers over a distance of

245 feet.

The work was carried out by day labour, was started June 22 and completed
July 31.

Dredging.

In the summer 1912, a small channel, 30 feet in width, was started. This channel
was to enable gasolene launches plying daily between Chicoutimi and St. Fulgence
to get to the St. Fulgence wharf.

During the last fiscal year, the Government plant Steam Derrick was used to

complete this channel.

The work was started on May 18 and continued until 28th.

700 cubic yards were removed.

"

ST. GEDEOK.

St. Ged^ou is one of the most important villages ou Lake St. John. Population
1,500

During the present fiscal year, the sum of $498.53 was expended in blasting
some boulders in the vicinity of the wharf at St. Gedeon les Isles, these boulders
were a constant danger to navigation.

Work started March 1, suspended March 24, and was carried out by day labour.

19—16*
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(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

Ste. Genevieve is a post village and parish of Jacques-Cartier county, on

Biviere des Prairies. -

During last fiscal year, the flooring- of the approach on Ste. Genevieve side was

renewed for a width of 12- feet on its entire length at a cost of $796.75.

ST. GODEFROY.

St. Godefroy, in Bonaventure county, is a flourishing parish, having a population

of 2,500 partly engaged in the fishing industry. There is a considerable lumber trade

done at this place and farming is progressive.

The wharf built in 190-1^1905, was repaired during the fiscal year 1915-16. Part

of the planking was renewed, a portion of the cap piece was also replaced, some repairs

were also done to the sheatiug. The wharf was cleared of the gravel and sand left on

top during the storms of fall and winter of 191-1-15.

Expenditure for the fiscal year is $351.46.

ST. GREGOIRE.

St. Gregoire is situated in the County of Quebec, on the north shore of the River

St. Lawrence, about 9 miles below Quebec. Population 2,500.

During the past season, the breakwater was thoroughly repaired and the two

slips, placed at each end, rebuilt. This work involved the putting in position of 9,155

lineal feet of face timbers, longitudinals, cross-ties, floor and ballast stringers, copings

and 52 yards of ballast. One thousand one hundred and two square yards of 2- and

3-inch sheathing were renewed and all copings painted.

Work done by day labour from 31st May to 28th June, 1915.

Total expenditure for fiscal year $3,781.17.

ST. IGN.\CE DE L0Y0L.\.

St. Iguace de Loyola, a post village and parish in Eerthier county, au island on

the St. Lawrence river, '2J miles from Berthierville on the Canadian Pacific railway,

2 miles from Sorel on the opposite bank. Population, 1,031.

The dyke connecting lie St. Ignace with lie Madame, built in 1912, on a length

of 250 feet by a width of 18 feet at top, over a road leading to the village, having been

washed out on a length of 200 feet, authority was received to repair it. Accordingly

earth filling was done on a length of 200 feet by a mean height of five feet for a width

of fifteen at top and side slope of 2 to 3, ninety feet of which was covered with the

Decauville brick system.

The work was done by day labour at a cost of $73<).78.

ST. IKii.NEE.

St. Ireuee is situated iu the County of Charlevoix, on the north shore of the River

St. Lawrence 78 miles below Quebec. Population, l,8tM).

During the past season, approximately 8(H) square yards of flooring, including posts

and floor stringers, and in some parts longitudinals and cross-ties, were renewed at the

shore-end of the wharf. This work included the removal of old lumber. Over 1,000

lineal feet of 12 by 12-inch coping and 550 lineal feet of railing were placed. The

approach to the wharf on an area of 500 square yards was raised and levelled with

stone and earth-tilling and covered with gravel. 3 new oak f(>nders 26 feet long 12 liy

12-inch were put in position at the head-block, and 260 square feet of 5-inch hardwoo<l
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sheathing were rephieed. Tlie roof of the freight and paiwenger sherl and all railings

were painted and minor repairs effected to the shed and wharf steps.

Work done by day labour between 18th May and 6th December, 1915. Total

expenditure for fiscal year, $5,099.39.

Dredging.

During the past season, in order to enable Royal Mail steamers to safely berth at

low tide, the basin at the wharf was enlarged 200 feet west of the wharf over an area

of approximately 13,000 square feet and to a depth of 15 feet below low-water level.

Departmental dredge Ottawa, working at St. Irenee from 30th July until 1-ttb August,

1915, removed 5.082 cubic yards, scow measurement, or 3,750 yards, place measurement,

of sand and clay. Expansion factor, 33 per cent.

ST. JEAN, i.o.

St. Jean is situated on the south shore of the Island of Orleans, approximately IS

miles below Quebec. Population, 2,500.

During the past season, repairs were effected to face and corner of the wharf and
to the movable slip. 16 oak fenders 26 feet long and 12 by 12-ineh were put in posi-

tion, and 330 square feet of 6-inch oak sheathing were renewed. The movable slii)

was narrowed by 12 inches to insure its free action, and minor repairs were made to

the flooring of the wharf.

Work done by day labour between 10th August and Sth September, 1915.

Total expenditure for fiscal year, $1,486.09.

ST. JEAN DESCH.ULLOXS.

The whole deck tiniliers of wharf being in bad condition, were reinforced by laying

on top of old planking of 4- and 5-inch a new flooring of 3-inch pine deals, 11 inches

wide, from end to end of structure, well secured with 6-, 7-, 8- and 9-ineh wire nails;

the capping all around wharf was also raised with 3- by 11-inch pine deal covering to

keep the 3-inch level above flooring.

The east elevation of inshore approach at south end bad to be sheathed all over, to

keep out the refuse stuff washed underneath at high tides, causing decay of timbers.

Several fenders 15 to 16 feet long, damaged by dredging tugs, had to be renewed,

also mooring posts pulled out by same. All posts, long movable fenders (25 pieces),

extending 6 feet above wharf and capping, were painted.

As reported from year to year, the greatest trouble and expenditure in connection

with government works at Deschaillons are connected with maintenance and perma-
nency of the approaches between public highway down to edge of cliff and thence by

trestle work down to level of wharf.

When work was suspended in November, 1914, the portion of road on hill, between

railway track and trestle, was left in the best of condition, well drained, ditched,,

levelled, rounded off and would have been in same condition in spring of 1915 if,

before winter set in, the whole length and width of same had not been blocked up with

a full barge load of wrecked material, timber and deals, hauled up from the beach and
thrown on to the roadway and left there all winter.

In the spring, when freshets caused by rain and melting snows flooding the road-

way could not fin<l a free outlet down hill, the water scoured the who'.e roadbed under
the obstructing timbers on a length of 300 feet, washing out broken stone, gravel and
earth packed between trestle work resting against face and top of cliff, the latter being

a brick clay easily dissolved and disintegrated.

Besides involving an extra expenditure of $600 and considerable loss of time, the

damage done called for a good deal of extra work involving additional cribwork and
stone protection in and around protection wall and other cribs already built, along

foot of cliff.
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At close of navigation, wharf fenders, posts, sheds and all materials attached to

wharf and liable to be carried away by high water, ice or spring freshets, at opening of

navigation this coming spring, were removed and made secure for winter.

ST. JEAN PORT JOLI.

The village of St. Jean Port Joli, in the County of L'Islet, is situated on the

south shore of the St. Lawrence river, 60 miles below Quebec.

Spring tides rise 21 feet, neaps, 13 feet.

During the very severe storm that swept the lower St. Lawrence in the mouth of

December, 1914, the wharf underwent damages which should be repaired before the

oi)ening of navigation, and the sum of $994.75 was expended and the work was i>er-

formed during the months of April and May last, and consisted of the following:^

The pavement which had been carried away on a length of 192 feet by a width of

30 feet, was replaced with spruce deals 3 inches thick, on the east side of the wharf at

about middle length, four rows of face timbers, 92 feet long, were also replaced with

spruce 12 inches square. The spruce sheathing was renewed on the east side for a

length of 131 feet by a height of IT feet, and on the west side on a length of 24 feet,

with spruce deals, 3 inches thick.

The fence enclosing the government grounds near the inner end of the wharf was

completely renewed.

STE. JEANNE DE l'ILE PERROT.

He Perrot is situated in Lake St. Louis, between Beauharnois and Ste. Anne de

Bellevue, at the western extremity of the island of Montreal. It is about 8 miles long

and 4 miles wide. Canadian Pacific railway crosses the northern extremity of the

island, connecting Ste. Anne de Bellevue with Dorion and Vaudreuil. The village of

Ste. Anne is on the southern shore of the island, immediately opposite the town of

Beauharnois and about 3i miles east of Cascades point, at the eastern extremity of

Soulanges canal.

The object of this dredging is to give a swinging basin, downstream of present

wharf (built in 1915), in order that boats may take the range of the channel.

The traffic carried here consists of farm produce, apples, potatoes, etc.

SS. Benharnois making a few weekly trips from Beauharnois to Montreal will

call here. About 10 barges will be loaded yearly at wharf with hay, carrying 135 tons

each, and drawing from 6 to 7 feet. It is practically the only route to ship traffic in

summer, railways having no station on Tie Perrot.

From July 21 to August 5 departmental dredge Xo. 106,. and from September 15

to November 6, departmental dredge No. 110 removed some 6,855 yards, scow measure-

ment, of clay, boulders and some rock, in making a 6- to 7-foot channel leading to the

wharf.

Dredge No. 106 removed some 782 cubic yards, scow measurement. Hours of

actual dredging, 85; cut, from 8 to 30 feet wide; face removed 1' to 3' -8; distance

adviinccd 334 feet; dumping ground 4 mile downstream of present channel.

Dredge No. 119 removed some 6,073 yards, scow measurement. Hours of actual

dredging, 244^; cut, from 15 to 22 feet wide; face removed V to 8 feet; distance

advanced 1.887 feet; dumping ground i mile downstream.

The number of yards situ, as determined by soundings taken in January, 16, is

5,142. The quantity place measurement corresponds with the scow measurement with

nn expansion factor of 33J.

During the autumn of 1915, a sum of $06 was expended in blasting 300 feet, from

face of p'-esent wharf in channel, in order to facilitate the removal of big boulders

and a certain quantity of shale-rock.
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Dimensions of work done during 1915: a channel 385 feet long by an average of

100 wide, the whole to a depth of, owing to rocky bottom, 4i to 7 feet, at low water

level.

The site of dredging done is immediately in front of present wharf, or opposite

church.

Owing to the fact that the site of dredging done is well protected from storms,

and no cross-currents, the duration of dredging will be for ever.

During 1911, departmental dredge Challenge removed some 3,142 yards, scow

measurement, of clay and boulders.

To complete, as originally proposed will require the removal of 3,409 yards, place

measurement, or 4,545, scow measurement, of which 693 yards is probably solid rock.

The expansion factor of ordinary material is 33i per cent and 80 per cent for rock.

Dimensions of work to be done : a basin 80 feet along shore by 225 feet parallel with

the present channel, and the removal of a ridge of rock 100 by 100 feet average, the

whole to a depth of 7 feet.

Owing to local difficulties and blasting required to complete a 6- to 7-foot channel,

will take about 1 or 2 working months to a dredge of a light type.

ST. JEROME.

St. Jerome, Chicoutimi county, is situated on the west side of Lake St. John. Its

IKipulation is about 2,000, mostly engaged in farming. It is the most important

village of the region.

During the present fiscal year, the sum of '$99.78 was expended in removing the

freight shed and waiting room from the new extension, which was settling down, to

the older portion of the wharf.

The work was carried out by day labour, was started November 17 and completed

November 28.

ST. JOSEPH DE SOREL.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

St. Joseph de Sorel, a post village and parish in Eichelieu county, on the Eichelieu

and St. Lawrence rivers at the southwest end of Lake St. Peter.

{A) Ferry Approach.

In order to provide, during the spring season, a better landing for the people

using the ferry between Sorel and St. Joseph the approach to the ferry was raised 4

feet for a distance of 230 feet.

This work was done by day labour at a cost of $800.09.

(B) Wharf.

Minor repairs were done to the flooring of the public wharf by day labour at a

cost of $24.72.

ST. MAJORIQUE. '

(This work is described in tlie annual report for 1914.)

St. Majorique is a large municipality on the north side of the northwest arm of

Gaspe harbour at the mouth of the Dartmouth river.'

During the fiscal year 1915-16, one small wooden bridge 27 feet wide was built,

and another reinforced at a cost of $150.05.

ST. MARC.

St. Marc is a iJost village in Vercheres county, on the west shore of the Richelieu

river, 9 miles north of Belceil Station on the Grand Trunk railway, and 15 miles from

St. Hyacinthe.
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The public wharf. 2 miles above the villajrc. built in 1902, consists of: (a) A pile

head-block 86 feet by 32* feet with a concrete flooring; (h) A stone approach 40 by

45 feet, and (c) A store-house 15 by 22 feet 4 inches.

During last fiscal year, the concrete flooring was renewed and repairs were done

to the stone approach, the head-block and shed.

The work was done by day labour at a cost of $794.17.

.ST. MAiivin; RivEi:.

G-randes Piles lo La Tuque.

The St. Maurice river flows through the Laureutide mountains for a distance of

350 miles, and empties into the St. Lawrence river near Trois-Eivieres. There is a

portion of this river navigable for shallow-draught boats plying between Grandes Piles

and La Tuque.

The dredging has for object the maintenance of a -4-foot channel by cutting' bars

of alluvial sand, formed at curves, or where there are prominent enlargements of the

river bed. This dredging was performed continuously since 1899 by the departmental

dredge previously called St. Maurice Dredge, now Public Works Department No. 122.

During the last season, sand bars were cut at the following places:

Place.
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Middle Channel at Three Rivers.

The dredging was undertaken to facilitate the floating of logs to the sorting gaps

of Messrs. Dansereau and the Wayaganiaek Pulp and Paper Company, by cutting sand

bars covering clay and boulders stratum. Thi.s dredging was executed during the year

in the centre branch, ordinarily called the Middle channel, by dredge Capital, which

removed 10,222 cubic yards of material, representing 26 per cent of the work under

agreement with the department. Dimensions of work were 2,410 feet in length, 30 in

width and the mean depth of cut 3-4 feet.

The work was started on May fi and discontinued on 01st.

ST. MICHEL.

St. Michel, in the County of Bellechasse, lies on the south shore of the St.

Lawrence, 15 miles below Quebec.

Spring tides rise 21 feet, neaps, 13 feet.

During the last fiscal year, the following works were performed on the wharf, to

complete repairs undertaken three years ago. 40,000 feet B.M. of spruce deals, 3 inches

by 9 inches by 12 feet long, were used to renew the sheathing of the face timbers and

to repair the pavement ; a surface of 6,480 square feet of the face timber was sheathed

with spruce deals 3 inches thick, and 4,000 square feet of pavement were renewed, and

a middle pathway, 480 feet long 2 feet wide, was also constructed. Forty spruce fenders

10 inches by 8 inches, of a mean length of 20 feet, were replaced, together with an oak

fender 12 inches by 12 inches by 16 feet in length and one pine mooring-post 14 inches

by 14 inches by 12 feet long.

The stairway on the east side of the wharf was renewed with red pine, steps 6 inches

by 12 inches, and a railing 12 inches by 12 inches by 40 feet long. The shed standing

on the head of the wharf together with capping pieces and mooriug-posts were painted.

The head-block shewing signs of weakness, on account of the large slip cut through,

it was found expedient to place across the cribwork, 4 iron rods li inches in diameter,

53 feet long, with swivels, so as to bind the structure on both sides of the slip. These

works were done by day labour during the months of June, July and August, and the

expenditure was $2,499.93.

ST. MlfHEI, f)ES SAINTS.

St. Michel des Saints is a post village in Berthier county, 50 miles from St.

Gabriel de Brandon, a station on the Canadian Pacific railway.

Population, 1,000.

In order to protect a rural bridge over River Matawin, two ice-breakers were built,

each 19 by 8 feet at base, 15 by 3 feet at top and IH high, resting on piles sunk 24

feet deep.

This work was done by day labour at a cost of $1,501.83.

ST. (iMEIt.

St. Omer, County of Bonaventure, is situated on the north shore of the Baie des

Chaleurs, 42 miles east from Matapedia.

It is a prosperous parish with a population mostly composed of farmers. A pas-

senger boat plies twice a week between St. Omer, Dalhousie and Carleton.

During the fiscal year 1915-16, the work done consisted in the renewing of a

portion of the planking of the wharf. Other minor repairs were also done to the wharf.

Expenditure for the fiscal year is $294.06.
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ST. PAUL DE L'IlE AUX NOIX.

St. Paul de I'Ee aux Noix, formerly St. Valentin, is an island near the west shore
of the Richelieu river, in St. Johns county, near the southern houudary, some A miles
north of Lacolle or 12 miles south of St. Johns. Population 610.

The public wharf built in 1907 consists of: (a) A crib headlock 61 by 32 feet;

(6) A pile approach 191 J by 20 feet; (c) A stone and earth embankment 98 feet 5

inches by 25 feet with sloping- sides 1 in 1, and (d) A right of way 1,676 by 36 feet.

During last fiscal year, minor repairs were made to the fences bordering the right
of way, at a cost of $30.50.

ST. ROCH DES AULSAIES.

St. Roch des Aulnaics is situated on the south shore of the St. Lawrence, in the
County of L'Islet, 70 miles below Quebec. A few urgently needed repairs were per-

formed on the wharf by renewing two mojring-posts and making some repairs to the
flooring at an expenditure of $29.05.

ST. SIMEON.

St. Simeon is situated in the County of Charlevoix, on the north shore of the river

St. Lawrence, about 12 miles below Alalbuie. Population, 1,SU0.

During the past season, minor repairs were effected to the flooring of the wharf
and to the oil-storage shed.

Total expenditure for fiscal year, $28.75.

ST. VALIER

The village of St. Valier, in the County of Bellechasse, is on the south shore of

the St. Lawrence river, 21 miles below Quebec. Last winter, during an ice-shove at

about high-water mark, on the west side of the wharf, from the outer end for a length

of 100 feet, three rows of face timbers were broken and pushed inside leaving an open-

ing 3 by 100 feet; shoreward for a length of 150 feet, at the same height, one row an<l

sometimes two rows of face timber were broken in the same way. As there would

have been much danger that further damages would have likely been caused had the

wharf been allowed to pass the winter in this state, the sum of ?1,300 was authorized

to cover the cost of the necessary repairs; the outer end of the wharf was torn dcwn
on a length of 75 feet by a height of 5 feet and all broken timbers were replaced includ-

ing face timbers, cross-ties and vertical posts, and the remainder of {he openings caused

by the ice were closed by inserting two face timbers on a length of 100 feet. The super-

structure and flooring were raised and levelled upon a length of 75 feet on the whole

surface of the head of the wharf; other inside piec&s which were broken were also

renewed. The face timbers from the outer end were sheathed upon the whole height

of tlie wharf, 24 feet for a length of 100 feet with red birch G inches thick. The
flooring on the shore end of tlie wharf, which was in a very bad state, was renewed on

a length of 104 feet, by a width of 23 feet, ilany decased stringers were also replaced

and a length of 24 feet of cap-pieces were renewed. The earth approach of the shore

end which had been disintegrated by the waves, was replaced by a concrete wall 25 feet

long, 14 inches wide and 2 feet high, and the inside was filled with gravel. Two ladde-s

12 feet long carried awa.v by ice were replaced. These works were conunenced on 25th

September and completed on November IS. at a cost of $1.29S.9G.

SAULT AU MOITON".

Sault au Mouton is part of the parish of Mille Vaches. situated on the north shore

of River St. Lawrence, some 39 miles beloxv Tadoussac. There is a saw-mill belonging

to the Iberville Lumber Company, which gives employment to about 75 families. Tt

is one of the best lumbering places of the north shore.



REPORT OF THE CHIEF EyGIXEER 251

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

In order to facilitate the approach of scows used to load ocean steamers, the sum

of $595.99 was expended in removina: boulders.

The work was carried nut hy day labour, and was started September 30 and sus-

pended October 21.

SHIOAW.^KE.

Shigawake, on the north shore of the Baie des Chaleurs, in Bonaventure county,

is a post village about 2 miles east of St. Godfroy.

The total length of the wharf is 490 feet and 19 feet in height at the outer end,

with 5 feet of water at low-water spring tide.

The work done during the fiscal year 1915-16, consisted in the renewing of a por-

tion of the planking, and of the sheathing of the wharf; other minor repairs were also

made to the wharf.

Expenditure for the fiscal year is $199.69.

SQUATECK.

Some eighteen miles east of Lake Temiscouata, is situated Squateck settlement,

which, although quite new, is the centre of a flourishing agricultural centre.

The only means of transportation for the community is via Cabano and through

Lake Temiscouata.

The landing pier standing on the west shore of Lake Temiscouata, opposite Cabano.

was damaged last spring by ice, which had broken 3 face-timbers of the outer end and

some inside pieces, and the flooring upon a surface of 600 square feet.

During the month of September, the sum of $148.51 was expended to repair the

damages.

STRATFORD.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1914.)

Stratford Centre, a post village in Wolfe county, on the Maskinonge river, 6J miles

from Garthby station on the Quebec Central railway, with port on Lake Aylmer.
Work of repair was commenced July 1 and completed August 16, 1915, and con-

sisted in repairing in solid crib, 95 feet long, of the approach which had been destroyed

by ice, repairing part of the flooring and renewing the balance, renewing two tiers of

the headblock which had been broken by ice and laying a new coping around the

headblock and on both sides of the approach.

During the fiscal year, the expenditure was $2,496.15.

TICOHABE RTVER.

Ticouabe river is one of the tributaries of Lake St. John, and is one of the land-

ing places for the boat making trips between Roberval and Mistassini.

During the present fiscal year, the sum of $350.05 was expended in the construc-

tion of a spur dyke across a channel between a small island and the mainland, at the

mouth of Ticouabe and Mistassini rivers.

The object of this spur dyke is to prevent the sand carried by the Mistassini rivei

from filling in the dredging underway on the Ticouabe river.

The work was carried out by day labour, was started October 8 and completed

October 28.

Dredging.

In view of improving navigation, the dredge No. Ill was placed in commission
to dredge one cut, to 4 feet below low water.

The material was mostly castover. The work was started on June 9 and continued

until November 12.
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The material was mostly clay, but sand was discovered at many places. Xot much
fear can be entertained of refilling as the current is about nul in that river.

17,630 cubic yards were removed. It will take at least one more season before the

work can be completed.

TROIS L.\CS.

Trois Lacs is situated ou Lake Megantic, about 8 mileifrom the town of Megantie,

in the County of Beauce.

The wharf, wliich was flooded ever.v spring was raised 18 inches and thoroughly

repaired on its entire length. 362 square yards of spruce flooring were renewed,

together with 120 square yards of gravel surfacing. 2.000 lineal feet of 10 by 10-

inch copings, face timbers, longitudinals, cross-ties and floor stringers were used.

The railing was also repaired and 10 mooring-posts added.

Work done by day labour from 4th September to 13th October, 191.').

Total expenditure for fiscal year, $925.40.

TROIS-RIVIERES.

The city of Trois-Rivieres, on the northern bank of the St. Lawrence, is midway
between Montreal and Quebec. Population, 22,000.

A timber dock 650 feet in length, an ice-breaker, a railway embankment and an

earth filling are located in the western section of the harbour, opposite to the old wind-

mill. This work was started in 1910 and completed in 1914.

During the month of April, 1915, a wash-out occurred at a point between the first

and second crib from the western corner of the dock; this hole was rendering the

wharf useless and a mattress 4 feet in depth was placed in the bottom, covered with

291 cubic yards of stone and 1,600 cubic yards of earth, at, a total expenditure of

$1,975. This work was i>crformed under agreement between Mr. David Lariviere and

the department.

Two electric arc lamps were placed by the Xorth Shore Power Company, as an

aid to navigation at a cost of $200 per year, including power.

A wood pavement covering a portion of the embankment area, 900 feet by 18 feet

was built by day labour during September la.st, and cost $1,644.01.

Dredyivo-

Dredging was performed by departmental dredge P.W.D No. 116, in face of new

coal dock, looate<l near the old wind-mill about one mile above the centre of the city.

It consisted in removing a shoal formed b.v the s'.iding in of the wharf embankment,

on a distance of about 500 feet by 40 wide. The depth observed was 28 feet. The
work was commenced on June 12 and discontinued on 2S. 10,58(1 cubic yards were

removed.

V.\RKXN'KS.

Varenues is a post village and parish in Vercheres county, on the St. Lawrence

river, and a station on the Quebec, Mojitrcal and Southern railway, 14 miles northeast

of Montreal.

Every .year during high water period, tiie passage of large vessels cause waves to

erode the shore between Varennes and Vercheres. At places, slides over 100 feet wide

have occurred, and the public highway at different places has been partially carried

away.

Authority was received to repair two gaps of 115 feet and 100 feet long, respec-

tively, which were filled to a height of from 23 feet to 14 feet at an angle of 32 degrees

and one of the gaps, 115 feet long, was covered with the Decauville brick system.

The work was done by day labour at a cost of .$1,805.32.
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VALDREtll,.

Vaudreuil is a post village and parish in Vaudreuil county, on the Ottawa river,

with ]X)rt on the Lake of Two Mountains, and stations on the Canadian Pacific railway

and Grand Trunk railway. It is 24A miles from Montreal and is a favourite summer
resort for Montreal residents. Population of parish, 1,500.

The public wharf built in 1909 consists of: (a) A crib headbloek 65 by 23 feet;

(h) A crib and span approach 195* by 16 feet; (c) A crib and stone embankment 55

by 244 feet and (d) A freight shed" 16 by 20 feet.

During April last, minor repairs were made to the wharf at a cost of $49.95.

VERCHERE.S.

Vereheres, a post village in Vereheres county, on the St. Lawrence river and on the

Quebec, Montreal and Southern Railway, 21 miles from Montreal.

The public wharf built in 1905 consists of: (a) A pile headbloek 116 by 40 feet;

(6) A pile approach 136 by 29 feet, including an ice-breaker; (c) A shed 48 by 18 feet,

and (d) A stone approach 200 by 18 feet.

During last fiscal year, the sheathing of the front face, the whole of the flooring of

the headbloek and the approach were renewed; 85 piles were driven at the foot of the

southern side of the approach to prevent further sliding of the stone riprap.

This work was done by day labour at a cost of $2,198.75.

VERDUN.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915).

Verdun, an incorporated city in Jacques-Cartier county, lying to the southwest

of the city of Montreal, and separated from it by the tail-race of the Montreal water-

works and 1 mile from St. Paul station on the Grand Trunk railway.

Minor repairs were made to the wharf, by day labour, in May, at a cost of $82.03.

Dredgijig.

The object of this dredging was to give better access to the recently constructed

wharfs.

From July 29 to August 27, departmental dredge A'o. 121 removed some 3.068 cubic

yards, scow measurement, of clay, hardpan and big boulders in making a 5-to-6-foot

channel. The number of cubic yards, in situ, as determined by soundings taken in

January, 1916, is 2,302.

The quantity, place measurement, corresponds with scow measurement, with an
expansion factor of 33 J per cent. Hours of actual dredging, 201; cut, 15 to 25 feet;

face removed, 1 to 5 feet; distance advanced, 1,226 feet, dumping ground 1 mile, in a

deep place, close to Nun's island.

Dimensions of work done : a channel, 375 feet long by 75 feet wide at bottom, the

whole to a depth of 5 to 6 feet at low water.

The site of dredging performed is opposite Verdun dyke or immediately up-stream

of channel leading to Grand Trunk boat-house.

Dredging channel.

The object of this dredging is to facilitate the passage of ferryboat between

Dominion Government wharfs at La Tortue and Verdun, a distance of 3i miles.

Navigation opens between May 15 and 18, and closes between October 18 and 20.

The side-wheeler ferryboat St. Louis makes 4 regular trips daily from La Tortue

to Verdun and return, and about 80 special trips during the season, on market days.

Dimensions of ferryboat are as follows: 135 feet long, over all, 40 feet wide (deck),

by a maximum draught of 5| feet.
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The work is of a public nature, and of the first importance in the district.

The approximate yearly traffic, as given by Capt. MacLean, owner of ferryboat,

is as follows: 4,000 vehicles (double and sinc^le) loaded mostly with farm produce;
200 automobiles; general merchandise, 500 tons; passengers, 5,000; general freight,

4,500 tons; total ferry earnings: $6,150.00.

From September 2 to November 11, 1915, departmental dredge No. 121 removed
some 3,638 yards, scow measurement, of clay, boulders, and hardpan, in completing a

basin opposite wharf at Verdun and a cut, opposite, castover, to a depth of 7 feet.

The number of yards in situ is 2,722.

The quantity, place measurement, corresponds with scow measurement, with an
expansion factor of 33J per cent. Hours of actual dredging, 410J; cut, 12 to 25 feet;

face removed, 1 to 6^ feet; distance advanced, 4,226 feet; dumping ground i mile

downstream close to a shoal.

Dimensions of work done : cleaning of a swinging basin, immediately downstream

of wharf, 60 feet alongside wharf by 100 feet; 400 feet from wharf, the cleaning of

boulders and stones, on a length of 400 by 120 feet in width; opposite castover, left

years ago; a cut 300 feet long by 18 wide, the whole to a depth of 7 feet, for basin

below wharf at Verdun, and S feet for channel.

The site of dredging done and still to be done, is between Verdun and La Tortue,

in River St. Lawrence.

The probable duration of the improvement will be over 20 years.

During 1914, dredge No. 121 removed some 1,665 yards opposite wharf at Verdun.

To complete, as originally proposed, will require the removal of 11,000 yards,

place measurement, or 14,666 yards, scow measurement, with an expansion factor of

33J per cent. Dimensions of work to be done: a shoal 2,100 feet from Verdun wharf,

S50 feet long, by 110 wide; opposite castover, left years ago, or 1 mile from Verdun

wharf, on a length of 3S0 feet for the upstream side, by 200 for the downstream, by a

total width of 250 feet; 1,400 feet from castover 150 feet long by 50 wide; a basin

immediately downstream of La Tortue wharf, 110 feet alongside wharf approach, by

60 wide, along shore, and in front of same wharf cleaning of a few boulders, on an area

of 100 feet, the whole to a depth of 8 feet below extreme low-water level, for the

channel, and 7 feet clear for the basin.

Grand Trunk Boatimj Club.

The boat-house of the Grand Trunk brating club is situated on the northwest side

of River St. Lawrence, opposite Nun's island, near the north boundary line of the city

of Verdun, some IJ mile' upstream of Victoria bridge, on Montreal islaiul.

The object of this dredging is to facilitate access to the boating club's temporary

wharfs, and give an upstream channel for numerous gasolene launches drawing from

2 to 3 feet.

This boating club is probably the largest of its kind in Canada, having a registered

membership of over one thousand. The club's boat-houses shelter over 200 boats of

all kinds including motor-boats, sail-boats, canoes, row-boats, etc.

From the 7tii ifay to the 29th July, 1915, departmental dredge No. 121 removed

some 8,372 yard, scow measurement, of clay, sand, boulders and hardpan. The number
of yards, in situ, as determined by sounding taken in January, 1916, is 6,280.

The quantity, place measurement, corresponds with scow measurement, with an

expansion factor of 33J per cent.

Hours of actual dredging, .'jSfli; cut, 16 to 25 feet; face removed, 1 to 4 feet; dis-

tance advanced, 4.314 feet; dumping ground from i to 1 mile, alongside Price island

and Nun's island.

Dimensions of work done: a channel 1,250 feet long by 75 wid(; average at bottom,

to a depth of 6 to 7 feet below extreme low-water level.
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The site of dredging done starts at 1,600 feet upstream of club-house, or imme-
diately downstream of Verdun Municipality wliarfs, going in a southerly direction.

Owing to the fact that the site is well protected from storms, a good straight cur-

rent in the channel, and hard material on both sides, the duration of the improvement

will be for ever.

During 1914, dredge No. 121 removed some 14,900 yards, scow measurement, of

material, in making a channel 100 feet wide by 300 long, opposite the club house and

in front of same, removed a few ridges.

The work is completed, as priginally proposed.

VILLE ilARIE.

Ville ]\hirie is the seat of judicial district of Timiskaming. on the east shore of

Lake Timiskaming, and the centre of a prosperous farming district, which finds ready

market and shipping facilities at Haileybury, Ont., 14 miles distant. The traflie

passing over the public wharf is some 500 tons per month.

The public wharf acquired by the department in 1887 was reconstructed in 1906,

repaired and maintained until 1915, when all traffic was being handled at the new pile-

work dock built in 1913-14. Considerable dredging has been done in connection with

both wharfs, which are located J mile apart.

During the past year, repairs and improvements were made to the launch float

landing; pile bents at shore end of approach were relevelled; piles, braces and floor

stringers, forced or broken by ice and boats, were restored; minor repairs were made
to wheel-guard, hand-railing and doors of freight shed. When Lake Timiskaming

storage was drawn off in March, it was necessary to chop off 40-inch ice, which over-

strained the bracing system.

The old cribwork wharf (now abandoned) consists of an approach 350 feet long,

18 feet wide, and landing-head of 40 feet frontage, with slip, and 100 feet deep, but of

variable width, having been built out on either side from time to time by the naviga-

tion interests; the total frontage is about 200 feet.

The new pilework dock consists of a landing-head 145 feet square, drawing 10 feet

at minimum R.W.S. (elev. 581), and stands 11 feet above this level; a pilework

approach 32 feet wide, 408 feet long, built to break a short steep grade; warehouse 48

by 96 feet, with 16-foot walls; float landing for launches, 14 by 40 feet, is moored to

rear of wharf.

Expenditure during the fiscal year, .$374.75.

Dredging.

Departmental dredge No. 118 worked in the channel, turning basin and side slips

of new public wharf June 10—August 10 and September 30—October 2S, removing

19,641 yards clay, scow measure, to grade elevation 571. The outer channel has been

improved on a width of 85 feet, for a distance of 1,400 lineal feet, to the turning bar^in,

which widens from 100 to 300 feet in a distance of 300 feet to the wharf; the slips

extend 144 lineal feet for a width of 78 feet on either side of the wharf. From sun-eys

before and after the dredging of 1915, the quantity of material removed place measure
is 16,164 cubic yards; the expansion factor is, therefore, 21-5 per cent.

To complete this improvement to uniform grade, so as to afford a least depth of.

say, 10 feet, when Lake Timiskaming storage is at midstage elevation 581, in the fall

of the year, the following work is contemplated : Cut 1,400 lineal feet by 15 feet on
north side of outer channel ; widening of slips 12 feet to clear width of 90 feet, and
easing off, to improve the turning basin for the better accommodation of large boats;

for a distance of about 1,000 lineal feet beyond the end of dredging in outer channel.

the lake bottom varies from elevation 572 to 571, and, should low water condition-;

recur, it may be necessary to clear this section.
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OXTAKIO.

ARMITAOE LVXDrXO.

Armitage Landing, in Carleton county, is a landing on the south shore of the

Ottawa river, 3 miles from Dunrobiu and li miles from Breckenridge, on the

Waltham Branch of the Canadian Pacific Railway.

In 1914-15, a wharf was built at this point to meet local conditions, and a float-

ing landing provided for the use of launches and skiffs.

It was found necessary to improve and increase the shackles which secured the

floating landing to the cribwork landing-head ; during a severe storm in November,

the then existing shackles were broken and the float drifted away. Immediately

steps were taken and the float was returned to the wharf and placed in a more pro-

tected position, which made necessary certain alterations in the method of securing.

The required chain shackles have been delivered on the work and will be placed

immediately the river opens.

Expenditure during the fiscal year, $11. .50.

ARN PRIOR.

Aruprior, the principal town in South Renfrew, is located at the mouth of the

Madawaska, on the south shore of Chats lake, an expansion of the Ottawa river.

It is on the Canadian Pacific railway and Grand Trunk railway line* and a lum-

bering centre of some importance.

In 190S, the old town wharf was transferred to the Crown. The wharf was re-

constructed in 1909-11. !Minor repairs have been made since to the fenders and

waling. A cluster of lights was installed on the wharf in 1914 and maintained dur-

ing the open season.

In September, 7th to 13th, repairs were made to the corner of ice-breaker of

wharf, which had been partly broken and cracked by impact of boats and the ice,

also to low-level platform and four concrete cross-pieces in piers of wharf. The ice

was cut around the wharf in llarch.

Expenditure during the fiscal .vear, $131.26.

BAYFIELD.

Ba.>-field, in the County of Huron, is situated at the mouth of the Bayfield river,

which empties into Lake Huron. It is 10 mile.s from Clinton and 12 miles from

Goderich, the nearest stations on the Grand Trunk railway. Population, 600.

Work of repairs to the pier was commenced 12th May and completed 21st

December, and consisted in renewing, in concr^e, a section of the south pier 92

feet in length.

Authority was given to construct a gangway in the pier at a cost not to exceed

$50, and the work was duly performed.

Total e.xpenditure for fiscal year 1015-16 is $2,967.21.

BATH.

Bath, in the County of Lennox and Addington, is situated on the north shore

of the Bay of Qiiintt', four miles from Eriiesttown, the nearest station on the Grand
Trunk railway. Population, 500.
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Authority was given to have the R. Weddell Company perform certain dredg-

ing at this place at 35 cents per cubic yard, in situ. Work was commenced on l-ltli

July and completed on 11th August.
The dredge removed 5,02^!) cubic yards, in situ, of sand and gravel, in making a

channel at the mouth of the creek for a length of 300 feet, having a width of 100
feet at the outer end and 60 feet at the inner end, all to. a depth of 12 feet below
zero. The object of the work was to permit fif fishing craft gaining access to the

creek for protection in stormy weather.
'

Authority was also given for the removal of a further quantity of material, and
the work was duly performed by the R. Weddell Company, and consisted in the

removal of 3,577 cubic yards, in situ, of sand and gravel.

Total expenditure for fiscal year 1915-11!, $3,427.59.

BKAIMARIS.

Beaumaris, district of Muskoka, is a summer resort, population about 1,000,

situated on Tondron island, lake Muskoka, about 13 miles from Gravenhurst.
Repairs were made and completed on September 30, 1915, and consisted in repair-

ing the broken spots in the concrete deck, and of providing notices to be placed on the
wharf.

Total expenditure for fiscal year 1915-16, $23.57.

HEAVERTOX.

Beaverton, in the county of Ontario, is situated on the east shore of lake Simcoe
on the Grand Trunk and Canadian Northern railways, about 72 miles from Toronto,

Population, 2,500.

The work of cleaning and painting the railing on the wharf was duly performed
in August last and consisted in giving the railing a thorough cleaning and two coats

of paint.

Total expenditure for fi,scal year 1915-16 is $50.

HELI.EVILLE.

Belleville, in the county of Hastings, is situated at the nioutli of the iloira river,

which empties into the bay of Quinte. Population, 11,000.

Contract plans and specifications were prepared and tenders called for the con-

struction of a warehouse. The work has recently been awarded to Messrs. Conroy &
Hickey for the sum of $4,700, and will commence almost immediately.

The work of installing a lighting sy.stem on the wharf consists in providing and
erecting standards, at 80 feet centres, and the installation was completed in February,
1910.

A walk was constructed and completed on 26th August at 15 cents per square foot,

and consisted in the construction of a concrete walk, 210 feet in length and 8 feet in

width, on the gravelled top of the stone approach to the wharf.

Total expenditure for the fiscal year 1915-16 is $1,347.61.

Dredging.

Authority was given to have the Randolph Macdonald Company perform cer-
tain dredging at 25 cents i)er cubic yard, in situ; the authorized quantity being
19,900 cubic yards place measurement.

Work was commenced on 13th Sei)tember and was completed on 20th October
when the dredge removed 19,132 cubic yards, /« situ, of mud, gravel and clay, mixed
with sawdust, in making a channel, 120 feet wide and about 1,(K)0 feet long, to a
depth of 12 feet below zero, from the new wharf to deep water, in order to provide

19—17
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accommodation for steamers arriving from or departing to the east. Another area

of varying width and about 800 feet long was dredged to the same depth and con-

nected in an easterly and westerly direction, the channel above referred to, with

dredging previously performed.

Total expenditure for the fiscal year, 1915-lG. $4,897.

BENSFORT.

Bensfort, in the county of Peterborough, is situated on the Otonabee river about

14 miles south of Peterborough. It is a rural community.

Work of repair, by day labour, was commenced on 14th June and was completed

on 30th June. It consisted in the renewal of the capping timbers and decking

throughout the entire wharf.

Total expenditure for fiscal year 1915-16 is $246.20.

BIG CHAUDIERE DAM.

On the French river, 12 miles from its source on lake Nipissing, 30 miles frorn

Sturgeon Falls, 35 miles from Xorth Bay, and 43 miles from Callander, the latter

being the port best adapted for the handling of materials, freights, etc.

As two channels of the river had to be blocked, two dams were built, one con-

sisting of two gates and the other one gate. The main dam consisted of two concrete

abutments 40 feet long, 18 feet high and 5 feet wide on the coping, and one pier

40 feet long, 18 feet high and 12i feet wide. The single gate dam consisted of two

abutments, 21 feet long and 23 feet high. The clear distance between abutments and

piers being 40 feet.

The contract for the work was let to Jennings & Ross, of Toronto. Owing to

the change in location, all materials and plant had to be portaged over the cofferdam.

The main dam was finished first, then the single gate was finished.

The object of the work is to regulate the level of lake M'ipissing. Work com-

menced May 10, and was completed October 27, 1915.

Total expenditure of work to date is $31,869.65.

BLANCHE RITOR, SOUTH BR.ANCH.

The south branch of Blanche river flows southeasterly above Charlton, Ont., which

is the terminus of a spur line on the Timiskaming & Northern Ontario railway and

at one time a transfer point for some of the traffic in the Elk Lake and Gowganda

mineral districts. At present, there is an active development of lumbdring and farming

resources.

Since 1907, considerable work has been done to improve navigation, for a distance

of 36 miles above Charlton, through a chain of lakes in the narrows and river stretches,

etc. In the fall of 1914, the floating plant could not be moved down from the head-

waters.

In April, 1915, the floating camps were moved down the river to the head of Kushog

lake; later, the river was examined for log obstructions and the camps inspected at the

end of the fiscal year.

Expenditure during the fiscal year, $144.

- BLIND RTVER. -

Blind River is a town of about 2,500 in population, situated on tlic north shore of

the north channel of lake Huron, on the linn of the Canadian Pacific railway, about

75 miles easterly from Sault Ste. Marie and Sudbury.

Work of repair was commenced 22nd IMay and was completed 11th Xovemhcr,

1915. It consisted in laying a new plank roadway, 14 feet wide, on top of the old
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planking on the approach and part of the main wharf, and replacing a few badly decayed
timbers in the framework of the superstructure. The pilework approach is 450 feet

long and the main wharf is 234 feet long, the whole being in the shape of the letter

"L". The total length of new roadway, 14 feet in width, constructed this season, is

about 860 feet and it extends the whole length of the approach and all around the

warehouse, the latter being 40 feet wide by 140 feet long.

The expenditure for the fiscal year is $983.77.

BONGARDS.

Bongards, in Prince Edward county, is situated on the bay of Quinte about 10

miles cast from Picton. It is a rural community with a population of 200 within a

radius of 4 miles. The existing wharf is privately owned but used by the public.

Authority was given to have the R. Weddell Company remove 4,500 cubic yards,

in situ, at 28 cents per cubic yard.

Work was commenced on 16th August and was completed on 21st, when the dredge

removed 2,566 cubic yards, in situ, of mud, clay and loose rock, forming a basin in front

of and alongside of Bongards wharf. Tlie basin is 320 feet long, varying in width

from 30 feet at the ends to 80 feet on either side of the wharf, all to a depth of 12 feet.

Total expenditure for the fiscal year 1915-16, $741.44.

BOWJrANMIJ.E.

Bowmanville, in the county of Durham, is situated on the north shore of lake

Ontario about 40 miles east of Toronto. It is a privately-owned harbour. Bowman-
ville has a number of manufactories and is a growing town located on the Grand
Trunk, Canadian Pacific and Canadian Northern railways. Population, 4,000.

Authority was given to have departmental dredge No. 105 remove approxi-

mately 1,300 cubic yards, scow measurement, class " B " material, in improving,

between the piers, the main entrance channel to the harbour. Work was commenced
on 10th May and was completed on 6th July.

It was subsequently decided to have the dredge continue work of improving the

channel and resulted in the removal of 22,988 cubic yards, scow measurement' of

sand and mud. The navigablo channel between the entrance piers was dredged

to a width of 100 feet on the bottom, for a length of 1,300 feet, and from the piers

outwardly into the lake for a length of 250 feet, varying in width from 100 feet at

inner end to 210 feet at outer end, all to a depth of 14 feet below zero.

BRIGHTON.

Brighton, in the county of Northumberland, is situated on Presqu'ile bay, lake
Ontario, at western entrance to Murray canal. It is 24 miles east of Cobourg and
20 miles west of Belleville and on the Canadian, Pacific, Canadian Northern and
Grand Trunk railways.

Authority was given to tear down the old warehouse on the existing wharf as
same was in a most dilapidated condition, and the work was performed in June,
1915. Expenditure for fiscal year 1915-16 is $10.80.

BRUCE MINES.

Dredging.

This place has a population of about 600, and is situated on the Canadian
Pacific railway, about 40 miles easterly from Rault Ste. iMarie, on the north shore of
lake Huron. It has a daily steamboat service to Sault Ste. Marie by two

19—I7i
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steamboats, and is a regular port of call for steamship lines routeing through the

north channel of lake Huron. The water-borne traffic consists of general merchan-

dise, farm implements, general farm produce, live stock and lumber.

Lumber is exported in moderate quantities and farm produce in fairly large

quantities. The principal industry of the place is the Martin International Trap
Rock Compan.v, which has a capital invested in plant of upwards of $500,(><X). but

owing to unsettled finances during the past two years, it is now only operating on a

small scale. The copper mine situated in the town, which formerly employed some
200 men, is again in profitable operation, owing to the present high price of copper.

The object of the dredging was to deepen the steamboat channel approaching

the government wharf, and provide a turning basin, each to 16 feet in depth.

The channel is fairly well sheltered from storms except from the southeast,

from which direction waves and shore currents will cause some refilling, but it is

not anticipated that redredging will be necessary for at least ten years.

1913.

In the year 1913, a contract was awarded to the Soo Dredging & Construction

Company, Limited, of Sault Ste. Marie, for the removal of 17,600 cubic yards,

place measurement, of clay and silt, at the unit price of 32 cents per cubic yard.

During that sea.son, 16,971 cubic yards, place measurement, of cla.v and silt were
removed, for which the contractors were paid $5,430.72.

1914.

During the season of 1914, it was found that the channel 75 feet wide, and turn-

ing basin 200 feet wide, as dredged the previous season, was not large enough to

accommodate the boats calling, therefore, a second contract was entered into with
the Soo Dredging & Construction Co., Ltd., of Sault Ste. Marie, Ont., for the

removal of a further 45,000 cubic yards, i)lace measurement, of silt and cla.v, at a

unit price of ISA cents per cubic yard, place measurement, which provided for an
approaching channel 150 feet wide and a turning basin 3.50 feet wide, each 16 feet

in de])th below standard low-water level. No work was done nor expenditure incurred

in 1914.

Dredging was commenced on Ma.v 10, 1915, and completed on June UK during
which period the channel and turning basin were completed according to the plans and
contract, and 45,037 cubic yards, place measurement, of silt and cla.v were removed,

for which the contractors were paid $6,980.74.

The expenditure for the fiscal year 1915-16, was $7,630.!l4.

BURLINGTON.

Burlington, in the county of Halton, is situated near the westerly extremity of

lake Ontario, about ,30 miles west of Toronto, on the (Jrand Trunk and Canadian
Pacific railways. Population, 2,100.

The construction of a revetment wall, under contract with Mr. D. G. Stewart of

Ottawa, was under way when a change in the location of the work was authorized at

schedule rates, and an extension of time to the end of this season was granted for the

completion of the work.

A change was also authorized in the location of the westerly end of the wall: the

placing of additional talus and a change in the location of the cross-cribs to inside

instead of outside of wall.

Work was resumed in May and closed for season in November, and consisted in

the construction of a sea wall, having a length of 1,831 feet and a width of 14 feet, and,

with the exception of placing ;iO cubic yards of mass concrete, is entirely conii)lctcd.

There also remains to be done the placing of the stone talus on the outside of the wall.

Total expenditure for the fiscal year lfll5-16 is $61,398.79.
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BURLINGTON CHANNEL.

Burlington channt'l, ill the county of Wentworth, is simply a cut through a low-

lying' piece of land known as Burlington beach, whereby vessels are enabled to reach

the wharfs at the city of Hamilton.

A swing bridge is maintained across this channel for highway traffic for the cars

of the radial railway between Hamilton and Oakvllle. This channel has a width of

120 feet, protected on either side by piers.

The bridge was opened for navigation on the Srd April, and on the 20th December

the lights weTe put out and navigation closed for the season.

Authority was given for placing a new snubbing post in the south pier, and work
was duly performed in July, 1915.

Work of repair by day labour to south pier was commenced 5th and completed 8th

August last, and consisted in renewing the decking where urgently reijuired, and a

lighting system was provided from the travelled road to the south pier, and standards

for same were erected by the Hamilton Cataract Company. This work was completed

in May last and arrangements were entered into with the Hamilton Cataract Company
to provide the necessary current each season.

Total expenditure for fiscal year 1915-16 is $3,725.14.

Dredging.

Instructions were issued to have departmental dredge No. 117 remove 16,100

cubic yards, in situ, from this channel and the approaches thereto. This work was
rendered necessary by reason of shoaling having taken place, and it was decided to

clean out the channel between the piers, to a depth of 18 feet, and the approach from
the lake to 20 feet below low water.

The dredge commenced work on 4th November and suspended for the season

November 10, on account of weather conditions, and before the whole two areas

were covered. It is intended that the dredge will return next season to complete the
work.

The material removed was 7,116 cubic .yards of sand, scow measurement, from
between the piers, for an extreme length of 620 feet, and an irregular width varying
up to 100 feet.

CACHK BAY.

Located 26 miles west of North Bay, on the Canadian Pacific railway, on the north
shore of lake Nipissing and on an arm of that lake called McLeod's or Cache bay.

Population, 1,000.

The departmental dredge No 112 worked from May 18 to October 33. During
that period, the cut to the government wharf, which was started in 1913-14, was com-
pleted. The work performed consisted of a single cut, 5,687 feet long, with a bottom
width of 30 feet.

52,130 yards of clay, scow measure, were removed and spoiled in deep water about
5 miles distant.

From surveys before and after excavation, the quantities removed, place measure,
were 43,551 yards. The expansion factor, therefore, is 19-6 per cent.

The quantities removed below sub-grade, elevation 6300, are 3,026 yards, place
measure. The large quantities in this respect are due to low-water conditions on lake
Nipissing.

COBOURC.

(This work is described in the annual report for 191.">.)

Cobourg, in the county of Northumberland, is situated on lake Ontario, 73 miles
east of Toronto, on the Orand Trunk, Canadian Pacific and Canadian Northern rail-
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ways. It has a number of industries and is a thriving town of 5,300 population.

The sum of $10,000 was authorized for the reconstruction of tlie centre pier at

this place, and on the 6th April, 1914, a contract for this work was awarded to

Randolph Macdonald Co. for approximately .$27,334.95, unit rates.

Work of reconstruction of the centre pier was resumed on 19th April and com-

pleted on 4th September.

Work of repair to the shore end of the centre pier was duly performed and con-

sisted in the entire removal of 1S9 feet of the pier and the renewal, in concrete, of the

superstructure for a length of 631 feet and a width varying from 18 to 51 feet.

Authority was given to make improvements to the east pier at this place, the work

to be done by day labour, and the work to be done this season was locat-ed at a section,

320 feet long, on the east side of the east pier.

The construction work was commenced 25th May and was completed 30th

November, 1915. .

The work consisted in renewing iu concrete the easterly side of the east pier for a

length of 321i feet with a width of 13i feet, complete with waliugs, etc. ; also placing

& new pine floor in the lighthouse, 26 feet by 26 feet, and placing new posts and sheeting

in same where required. The warehouse foundation was renewed and new doors, joists

and sheeting provided, also clay, sand and stone-filling was placed from the north end

of warehouse for a distance of 90 feet, a width of 22 feet and a depth of 5 feet.

New decking, cross-ties and stringers were placed on the westerly side of the east

pier for a length of 205 feet and a width of 14 feet; also some 60 feet of new pipe

railings was placed in position.

Total expenditure for fiscal year 1915-16 is $23,656.13.

Dredging.

Authority was given to have the R. Weddell Company remove 24,000 cubic yards,

in situ, at 20 cents per cubic yard.

Work was commenced on 13th October and was suspended for the season on 24th

November. It consisted in clearing up, to a depth of 18 feet below low water, the

point of the shoal area which extended to the east in the main entrance basin in the

harbour, so as to provide the above depth between the east pier and the line joining the

light on the outer end of the Langevin pier and the light on the outer end of the Grand
Trunk Railway ferry-slip.

The area is not entirely down to grade, as work had to be suspended owing to

rough weather. It is proposed to complete this work during the coming season.

In doing this work, the dredge removed 12,388 cubic yards of mud, clay and a small

quantity of stone and old timber.

Total expenditure for the fiscal year, 1915-16, $2,637.05.

colpoy's bay.

Colpoy's Bay, in county of Bruce, is situated on the west side of Colpoy's bay, an
arm of the Georgian bay, about 3 miles from Wiarton. Population, 100.

Work of repair, by day labour, was commenced on 18th September and completed

on 31st December, 1915, and consisted in tearing down the old superstructure for a

length of 40 feet, also the placing of new substructure for the extension, 24 feet by 30

feet, and filling same with stone.

Total expenditure for fiscal year 1915-16 is $2,726.32.

CR4IGIE LEA.

Craigie Lea, district of Muskoka, is situated on lake Joseph and is a port of call

on the steamboat route by boats operated by the Muskoka Lakes Navigation Company,
who have their headquarters at Gravenhurst.
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Work of repair was begun May 1, and completed June 15, 1915, and consisted in

completing portions of the new wharf, which were unfinished at the end of the fiscal

year 1914-15.

Total expenditure for fiscal year 1915-16, $116.45.

DOE LAKE.

Doe lake, district of Parry Sound, is situated 2A miles southeast of the village of

Sprucedale, a station of the Grand Trunk Railway system, Ottawa-Parry Sound
division. The poulation of Sprucedale is 250.

Doe lake is connected with a chain of lakes all of which empty into the south
branch of the Magnetawan river. This chain of lakes forms a navigable route of ten

miles in length connecting with Sprucedale and with a summer resort named Katrine,

the latter being adjacent to the Toronto-North Bay Division of the Grand Trunk Rail-

way system in the township of Armour.
At the end of the fiscal year 1914-15, the two new wharfs on Doe lake were com-

pleted, with the exception of gravelling of the approaches.

Work was begun June 1, 1915, and the unfinished portion of the approaches was
completed June 15, 1915.

Total expenditure for fiscal year 1915-16, $110.

DYER BAY.

Dyer Bay, in the county of Bruce, is situated on the east shore of the Bruce
peninsula 16 miles from Lion's Head. Population, 200.

On 2l8t April last, the sum of $1,500 was authorized for wharf repairs, by day
labour, at this place, and on 7th December last, a further sum of $200 was authorized

for this work.

Work of repair, by day labour, was commenced on 1st July and was completed
on 31st December, and consisted in repairing the cribs and filling in certain spaces

with cribwork.

Total expenditure for fiscal year 1915-16 is $1,560.72.

ELK LAKE.

Elk lake, Nipissing district, a mining town in Northern Ontario, is the ter-

minus of the branch of the T. & N. O. railway bearing the same name, and is

situated on the Montreal river, 53 miles above Latchford.

In 1909, a rough cribwork wharf was built and taken over by the department,

together with a pilework extension subsequently added.

The south portion of the original structure was reconstructed between August

2-6 and September 26. Sections, 16 by 227 feet, and 23 by 30 feet, were covered with

6 by 8-inch hemlock, which the department had on hand at another point, cribs

were rebuilt and new round timber stringers provided where necessary. The slip

was improved and a handrailing was erected along the Pine street approach.

Expenditure during fiscal year, $570.52.

FITZROY HARBOUR.

Fitzroy Harbour, a village in Carleton county, is located on the south shore of

the Ottawa river, below Chats falls. It is at the head of navigation on Chats lake,

and now has a flag station on the new Canadian Northern railway.

In 1914, a public wharf was built by contract, and dredging improvements have

since been completed.

Owing to the fact that this structure is located at the foot of a steep clay hill,

heavy cuts and fills were necessarj'. The action of the elements caused scouring in

the former and natural settlement occurred in the latter.
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In order to check the erosion, etc., the following repairs and improvements were

effected September 28 to October 16 : a stone protection wall 45 feet long, 8 feet

high and 2i feet wide at bottom and 1 foot at top, was built and backfilled with

earth; an area of 1,680 square feet, backfill on landing-head, was regraded. where

necessary, with gravel; a ditch 210 feet long by 3 feet wide was trimmed and paved

with cobble stones; a new ditch, 1 foot by 2 feet by 140 feet, was cut, and an area

of 2,550 square feet of side hill was trimmed and graded.

Expenditure during the fiscal year, $166.64.

Dredging.

Dredge Xo. 108 worked from ila.v 19 to October 28, whole season, 20,557 yards,

scow measure, of sand, gravel, clay and boulders excavated. 502 cubic yards of this

material was overcast and 25 cubic yards afterwards scowed away.

The proposed channel at this point, having a total length of about \ mile, to be

improved 60 feet wide on tangents, 90 feet on curves and a turning basin at govern-

,ment wharf, tapering from 60 to 225 fe*t in width, was completed to grade 9 feet below

L.W.L. 1890. Of this, a portion, 380 feet long by 70 wide, was dredged in 1914-15.

In addition to the above, a tapering cut was made at the entrance to the channel at the

Upper Ottawa Improvement Company's wharf, to facilitate approaching and departing

from that wharf.

On completion of dredging, a thorough sweej) of the cuts was made and it was left

in good condition, onl.v ver,y few scatt-ered boulders shoaling to, say, one foot above

grade, which could not be economically located and removed, remained in the channel.

Inasmuch as the water surface, during the navigation season, is not expected to

recede below elevation 190, owing to Upper Ottawa River storage there is a least depth

of 9 feet in the improved boat channel to the public wharf at Fitzroy harbour

FORT WILLIAM. -

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

Fort William, district of Thunder Bay, a city of 22,000 people, is situated at tho

mouth of the Kaministikwia river near tlie north west end of lake Superior.

The harbour consists of 1302 miles of navigable channels in the Kaministikwia,

McKellar and Mission rivers, which, for the most part, have been dredged to a depth

of 25 feet below L.W.L., and for an average width of 500 feet. The harbour frontage

available for lockage amounts to 22-20 miles, of which 7-57 miles have already beeu
built up.

Mission River Revetment Wall.

Authority was received extending contract with the Thunder Bay Contracting

Co. Ltd., for the con.struction and completion of 2,300 lineal feet of revetment wall

adjacent to the entrance channel of the Mission river, the estimated cost, iiu-luiling

inspection, being $305,000. On April 20 last, authority was received to proceed with

this work. The substructure consists of stone-filled timber cribs 122-5 feet long, 2S

feet wide, 26 feet 8 inches deep, extending to a depth of 6 inches below L.W.L. Tlie

superstructure consists of mass concrete 5-5 feet above L.W.L., and 11 feet wide, rest-

ing on concrete footing blocks placed along the outer face of cribwork. On June 18,

authority was received: (1) To substitute stone riprap for earth filling in rear of wall.

(2) To fill cribs entirely with stone, instead of with earth and stone. (3) To sheet the

inside face of rear walls of cribs, in order to retain the filling, nil to bo done at the

pro rata prices included in contract, at an estimated additional co.st of $38,225.90.

On June 30, authority was received confirming the pro rata prices for above works,

and authorizing the dredging of crib-seats to be done under separate contract with tlu

Great Lakes Dredging Company, Ltd. On July 20, orders were received to stop all

work, as soon as the cribs, already sunk, were suflicicntly ballasted to prevent their
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being damaged by storm. Tenders were asked for and, on Augu.<t 7, notice was received'

that the tender of the Thunder Bay Contracting Company Limited had been accepted

at an approximate expenditure of $342,412.42, the work to include dredging. On
August 19 and September 10, autliority was received to place the two outer cribs, to

be constructed this season, on a pile foundation, the piling to be driven under clause

.30 of contract, at an estimated cost of $4,738.80. Operations were commenced May 6

and completed October 20. On October 17, settlement occurred in the wall extending

from the inner end of the cribs placed on piles over the five cribs to the west of same.

This settlement was due to soft bottom. On November 7, owing to an exceptionally

heavy storm, the crib at extreme outer end of wall, which had been placed on a pile

foundation, was damaged. On the 29th instant, the contractors were notified to rectify,

at their own cost and expense, the five cribs that had settled on October 18 last.

Dredging.

Xos. 7339, 7170 and 10831, by the Great Lakes Dredging Co., Limited.

Dredging was performed in this harbour during the present season under contracts

Contract 7339.

Dredging under this contract, which consists in widening and deepening the

Kaministikwia and Mission rivers, was performed by dredges No. 5, No. 6, No. 8,

Prank and Dominion, from May 10 to June 4, and from July 17 to November 25 last,

when it was closed down.

The total quantity removed, under this contract for the current fi.scal year, is

1,701,744 cubic yards, scow measurement, consisting almost entirely of class " B

"

material. The quantities moved per dredge are as follows :

—

Scow Measurement.

^dge No, 5
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Shoals in the river were removed over a considerable area extending from the
ITission to the McKellar river, where the quantity dredged was 57,946 yards, and from
the McKellar river, particularly along the southerly half of the Kaministikwia river,

to Canadian Pacific Eailwny slip No. 1 the quantity removed being 147,892 yards.

A quantit.v of 28.228 yards was dredged in removing certain shoal spots above 21

feet in the northerly half, or old portion, of the present entrance channel to this river.

In addition, small shoals were removed fronting the Western terminal elevator.

Fort William elevator, Empire elevator and elevator " E," the quantities removed
being 1,199, 570, 5,590 and 150 cubic yards, respectively, or a total of 7,509 yards.

The total quantity removed in widening and deepening under this contract, in the

Kaministikwia river alone, during the present season, amounted to 1,361.697 cubic

yards, scow measurement.

Mission River.
.

Widening along the south side of the Mission river, extending from its confluence

with the Kaministikwia to a point opposite the easterly limit of lot 5, island No. 2, was
practically completed this season, the quantity removed being 180,808 yards.

Deepening was performed in this river from the Fort William coal dock to the

easterly limit of Grand Trunk Pacific slip No. 3, the quantity removed being 48,058

yards.

Widening and a small amount of deepening was performed along the north side

of this river opposite the Grand Trunk Pacific tui'uing basin, the quantity dredged

being 99,159 yards.

Certain shoal spots in the Mission river entrance chanuel were removed, the

quantity dredged being 12,022 yards.

The total quantity removed in widening and deepening this river alone, under the

above contract this season, is 340,047 cubic yards, scow measurement.

In connection with this contract, it might be stated that prior to the current fiscal

year a total quantity of 11,232,321 cubic yards, scow measurement, had been dredged at

a total cost of $1,856,586,05, so that the total quantity removed to date under this con-

tract is 12,934,065 cubic yards, and the total expenditure $2,122,595.56.

Of the total quantity of 3,882,025 yards which was authorized on July 14, last, for

removal under this contract, the balance to be dredged at the end of the current fi.scal

year, is 2,522,037 yards, of which 1,493,819 yards is to be dredged in connection with

the extension authorized to the West Fort turning basin.

The unit prices governing in this contract are as follows:

—

Widening.—Rock, $2.40 per cubic yard, scow measurement; all other material,

lOj cents.

Deepening.—Rock, $2.85 per cubic yard, scow measurement ; all other materials,

224 cents.

Extra haul.—1 cent per cubic yard per mile over 3J miles.

Contract 7170.

Dredging under this contract, which provides for tlie excavation of Grand Trunk
Pacific slip No. 2 to a depth of 25 feet below L. W. L., was performed by dredges
Frank, No. 6 and Dominion, at various times during the season. Operations com-
menced on July 26, wlien dredge Frank started work, and closed down on December 4,

last.
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The total quantity removed was 342,051 yards consisting almost entirely of class

"B" material. The quantities moved per dredge are as follows:

—

Scow Measurement.

Dredge iVo. 6 cubicyarda. 3ii,735

Frank " 271,036
" Dominion " 38,280

Total 342,051

In connection with this contract, it might be stated that prior to the current fiscal

year a total quantity of 6,782,197 yards had been dredged, at a total cost of $1,458,682.13,

so that the total quantity removed to date under this contract is 7,124,248 yards, and

the total expenditure is $1,515,089.16. Of the quantity authorized under this contract,

there yet remains for removal a balance of 12,415 cubic yards, scow measurement,

which authority can well be utilized in removing shoals over the area covered under
this contract.

The unit prices governing in this contract are as follows: Rock, $2.85 per cubic

yard, scow measurement; other materials, 16 cents; extra haul, 1 cent per cubic yard

per mile over 3J miles.

Total expenditure for the current fiscal year under this contract, $56,407.03.

Contract 10831.

Dredging under this contract, which provided for the widening of the present

entrance channel of the Kaministikwia river from 300 feet to 600 feet, with a depth

of 25 feet, was performed between June 5 and July 16, and from September 7 to

October 11, dredges No. 6, No. S and Dominion being engaged during the former

period, and dredges No. 6, No. 8, Frank, and Dominion being engaged during the

latter period.

Tha total quantity removed under this contract, which was completed on
October 11, was 742,202 yards, scow measurement, consisting of class " B " material,

or 635,198-3 yards, place measurement, the contract being based on the latter method
of payment.

The quantities dredged by the above dredges in this work were as follows

:

Scow Measurement.
Dredge No. 6 cubic yards. 116,749

No. S " 194,000
Frank '•

41,878
Dominion " 3S9.575

Total 742,202

The area dredged averaged slightly over a mile in length, and was 300 feet

wide, and on completion of this work it was found by sweeping that a full depth of

25 feet below L. W. L. had been obtained.

The unit price governing in this contract was as follows: Place measurement,
sand and clay, per yard, 25 cents.

The total expenditure for this contract was $158,799.58.

Synopsis of quantities of material removed by the various dredges, operating

in this district on the above contracts, for the current fiscal year:

—

Scow Measurement.
Dredge No. S cubic yards.

No. 6
No. R

Frank "

" Dominion *'

Total... .!

392,034
385,217
596,988
417,927
993,831
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Synopsis of quantities removed by dredging under the above contracts in ac-

cordance with the respective locations of areas dredged:

—

Kaministikwia River.

Scow Measurement.

Above Canadian Northern Railway coal dock cubic yards. 276,407
West Fort turning basin " 321,ISl
Grand Trunk Pacific basin to Canadian Northern

Railway coal dock " 2S5.944
Grand Trunk Pacific bridge to Imperial Oil Company. " 184,104
City water mains crossing " 23.S27
Elevator "D" to Mission river " 29,159
Mission river to McKellar river " 57,9 46
McKellar river to Canadian Pacific Railway slip No. 1. " 147,392
Northerly half of entrance channel " 2S.22S
Western terminal elevator " 1.199
Fort William elevator " 570
Empire elevator " 5,590
Widening entrance channel.. ; " 742.202
Elevator " E " " 150

Total 2,103.899

Mission liiver.

From Kaministikwia river to point opposite easterly limit, lot 5. ISO,SOS

Fort William coal dock to Grand Trunk Pacific slip No. 3 4S,05S
Entrance channel. .„. 12,022

Grand Trunk Pacific slip No. 2 342,051
Opposite Grand Trunk Pacific basin 39.159

Total 682,098

Grand total quantity of materials moved under dredging contracts for season,

2,785,997 cubic .yards, scow measurement.
As a result of the soundings taken, the following governiug depths below

L.W.L. are found to obtain in the various portions of the harbour, viz :

—

Kaminiftikwia river.—Southerly half of the entrance channel, limiting depth '2i-6

feet, general depth 27-0 feet; northerly half of entrance channel, limiting depth

200 feet, general depth 23-0 feet; from Empire elevat<ir t« Canadian Pacific rail-

way bridge, limiting depth 20 o feet, general depth 230 feet; from

Canadian Pacific railway bridge to Mission river, limiting depth 20-6

feet, general depth 21-5 feet, from Mission river to bend in river above elevator.

"D" where city mains cross river, limiting depth 220 feet, and general dci)th 2.50

feet; at water works crossing of river, limiting depth Ifll? feet, general dcjith for a

chainiel width of 17.5 feet, 230 feet; from water works crossing to (irand Trunk
Pacific bridge, limiting depth 2.")0 feet, except for one comparatively small slioal

on south shore over which the water is .198 feet deep; from Grand Trunk Pacific

bridge to upper end of Canadian Xorthern railwa.v coal dock, limiting depth. 23-7

feet, except for channel through bridge where limiting depth is 19-9 feet, general

depth over this area 2.50 feet; from Canadian Northern railway coal dock to Black's

elevator over West Fort turning basin, limiting depth 22 1 feet, although general

depth is slightly over 25-0 feet; limiting de])th over area extended in West Fort

turning basin during the past .season is 18 feet.

Afvision river.—Southerly half of entrance channel, limiting depth 20-4 feet;

northerly half of entrance channel, limiting depth 19 feet; general depth over

entrance channel, 23-0 feet; from entrance channel to confluence with the Kaminis-

tikwia river, limiting depth along southernly half of river 23-0 feet, except for n small

shoal 21 feet deep near said confiucnce; along northerly half of river, limiting ileptli

21-9 feet. The general depth in the Mission river is between 24 and 30 feet, fIrand

Trunk Parifir turniny basin: limiting depth 191 feet over small shoal near southerly
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limit of .basin, general depth 240 to 28 feet. Grand Trxml- Pacific slip No. 1: limitinf?

depth 21-6 feet, general depth 24-0 feet. Grand Trunk Pacific slip No. 2: limiting

depth 23-4 feet, general depth 24-0 feet. Grand Tnink Pacific slip No. 3: limiting

depth 22-4 feet, general depth 23-6 feet.

McKellar river.—Limiting depth 23-9 feet, general depth 260 to 27-0 feet.

From the above .statement it will be seen that a considerable amount of deepening

is still required to be done in the local harbour, and particularly does this conclusion

apply to the entrance channel of the Tvaministikwia and Mission rivers, which should

both be deepened to 2.5-0 feet below L.W.L. during the coming season in order to

provide for safe navigation. In addition, the removal of various shoal areas, particu-

larly in the Kaministikwia river between the Empire elevator and the Mission river,

should be attended to. Practically all widening that is necessary in this harbour has

been attended to, with the exception of (1) The removal of a certain area of land in

the Jlission river opposite Grand Trunk Pacific slip Xo. 3, at present occupied as a

service ground by the Thunder Bay Contracting Co., Limited, in connection with

their construction contracts with this Department. (2) The removal of a small portion

of land in the Kaministikwia river where the city water mains cross, and (3) The
removal of about fourteen acres of land in connection with the authorized extension

to the West Fort turning basin. The first and third of these items should be proceeded

with during the coming season, but it will be impossible to attend to the second item

until the city of Fort William lowers the water mains referred to or otherwise alters

their location.

With regard to the dumping grounds, a change was made during last October

whereby a saving in haul, for all material brought down by the Mission river, of one
mile has been effected. A considerable saving will likewise result from the fact that

during the past winter, new dumping grounds have been located for material to be

dredged in the lower half of the Kaministikwia river. As regards the probable dura-

tion of the improvements effected, continuous work will likely be necessary to keep
the dredged areas to proper grade.

FREDDY CHANNEL.

Freddy channel divides the mainland and Portage island and is located in the
township of Gib.son. Muskoka district, about 10 miles by boat from Midland.

The surroundings consist of many islands, occupied by tourist cottages and summer
hotels, which are accessible to the main steamboat channel between Penetanguishene
and Parry Sound. One of the large summer resorts in the vicinity is Go-Home-bay.

The object of the dredging is to deepen the channel by the removal of sand, clay
and rock, which, on completion, will afford safe navigation for snpiily boats and motor
launches.

The channel is well sheltered from storms, but the water level is subject to

variation in elevation caused by adverse winds.

In the year 1915, an agreement was entered into with the Penetanguishene
Dredging Company, Limited, for the removal of 4,200 cubic yards, place measurement,
of mud and sand, at a unit price of 40 cents per cubic yard. The work done covered
shoal No. 1, 409 feet in length and .50 feet in width, and dredged to a depth of 9 feet

below zero of Georgian Bay elevation 580-0. On completion of shoal No. 1, the dredge
outfit was removed to Penetanguishene, consequently the whole amount contracted for

was not removed. For the work done, the contractors were paid $1,044, balance due
them $116.

The work was commenced September 14, and continued up to October 8, 1915, when
whole plant was removed to Penetanguishene to begin dredging at that place.

The expenditure for the fiscal year 1915-16, was $1,122.
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Gananoque, county of Leeds, on the river St. Lawrence, population, 3,500, is a

manufacturing centre.

The improvements to wharf built during 1913-14, consisted of building a floating

platform for landing small boats, re-erection of light standards and lights, building

of sidewalk and fence, close-sheeting all around wharf, painting over all faces, heavy
rock fill at juncture of wharf and shore to form breakwater to prevent scour, and a

few minor repairs.

Work was executed April 1 to December 15, 1915.

Expenditure, $1,462.

Dredging Middle Channel^ through the Thousand Islands.

The work consisted of sweeping the middle channel in certain parts to a depth

of 18 feet below extreme low water or elevation 225-0.

Parts swept were from " The Punts " to the foot of Camelot island passing

around the head of Whitewaist island; a portion of the channel northwest of foot of

Wallace island, locating a small shoal; from a point oS Prince Regent island

(Gananoque harbour light) to a point opposite Grand View park ; locating the shoal

across from Eoekport, northwest of Yeo Island; shoals off Whiskey island and shoals

off Slim islajid, east of Grenadier light. A 300-foot sweep, 19 feet deep, was towed
down stream by two row boats, speed limited to keep weights nearly perpendicular.

Work was done from August 1 to September 4, 1915.

Expenditure. $742.

GOAT ISLAND.

Dredging.

Goat island is the terminal port of the Algoraa Eastern railway situated opposite

the town of Little Current, on the narrow strait connecting Georgian bay and the

north channel of lake Huron, known as the Little Current channel. This railway

was completed in 1913, and extends inland to Sudbury, a distance of 80 miles, passing

through timbered and mineral land which promises to be much developed thereljy.

The traffic ottering at present consists principally of coal, of which immense quan-

tities are required in connection with the reduction of nickel at Copper CHIT, and for

other industries at Sudbury, Espanola, Victoria Mines, etc. It seems to be of supe-

rior strategic location for the economic importation of coal to supply the Canadian

Pacific railway and Canadian Nortliern railway in tlie Sudbury district. The terminal

consists of tracks and switching-yard layout, with a capacity of about 400 cars, engine-

house, coal chute, repair shop, water works, etc., a coal wharf and storage ground for

75,000 tons of coal, over which there is a large coal hoist, with a capacity of about

200 tons per hour, and a commercial wharf for the handling of package freight. These

wharves arc, respectively, G80 feet and 400 feet long, constructed parallod with the

chaimel and in line with each other, and as traffic warrants the company proposes to

fill in the intervening space of 700 feet, thus making a wharf frontage 1,780 feet long.

During the navigation season of 1915, about 200,000 tons of coal also a considerable

quantity of package freight were handled over these wharfs.

Little Current is the most important town on the Manitoulin island, and has a

population of about 1,000. There is much activity at this point, as boats which
ply between Georgian bay and the north channel of lake ITiiron are continually

passing, and moat of them make it a port of call.

The object of the work is to provide an approach to tlie wharfs of the Algoma
Eastern Railway Company, for deep-draught vessels and to widen the through
channel. When the whole of the improvements proposed to this channel arc com-
pleted, it is expected nearly nil boats, including the large freighters plying between
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lake Superior and Georgian bay ports, will adopt this route, which is practically the

same length, but much more protected than the open lake Huron route. The work
performed under this contract is of a .semi-private nature, as its immediate urgency

was to provide approaches to the Algoma Eastern railway terminals, but it is at the

same time, exclusive of the interest of the railway, an important improvement for

the general navigation of the channel.

1913

On September 2, 191.3, a contract was entered into with The Soo Dredging &
Construction Co., Ltd., of Sault Ste. Marie, Ont., for the dredging of 23,500 cubic

yards, place measurement, of rock, to a depth of 22 feet below standard low-water

level, at a unit price of $2.90, per cubic yard, to be completed by the 15th of December.
1913. Work was commenced on September 1, and was closed for -the season on December
15, 1913. The area under contract consisted of a section lying in front of the Algoma
Eastern railway Company's coal wharf, 400 feet in length with an average width of

150 feet. During the season, 19,'867 cubic yards, place measurement, of rock, were
removed, and of this quantity 17,8831 cubic yards were scowed away a distance of

about two miles, and 1,9835 cubic yards were cast over the wharf to form filling behind.

Estimates were returned in favour of the contractors for the performance of this work
amounting to $57,019.30, and the total expenditure for the fiscal year of 1913-11: was
$58,613.82.

1914

Instructions were issued that an Order in Council had been passed, granting an
extension of the contract to December 15, 1914, and authorizing the expenditure of

•$50,000, which had been voted by the previoiis Parliament for dredging at this place.

Accordingly, additional work was laid out, consisting of an area 100 feet in length
on the west side and an area 390 feet in length on the east side of and adjoining the
previous year's work.

On September 27, that an Order in Council had been passed on the 11th of
September, 1914, granting authority for the removal of an additional 17,240 cubic
yards, place measurement, but it was provided as a condition to the acceptance of
this additional work that the contractors await payment therefor until Parliament
provided the necessary funds at its next session. The area laid out to be dredged in

connection with this last authorization consisted of a section 430 feet in length, lying
in front of the Commercial wharf, and 14,597 cubic yards, place measurement, were
removed from it. In each of the several areas referred to. the length is measured
easterly and westerly along the line of the v>-harfs, and the width is variable, extending
southerly from the line of the faces of the wharfs to the 22-foot contour line.

Work was commenced for the season of 1914, on 19th June, and was suspended
on December 15, 1914.

During the season, 29,782 cubic yards, place measurement, of limestone roek were
removed, of which 27.935 cubic yards were scowed away a distance of about two miles,

and 1,847 cubic yards were east over into the filling behind the Commercial wharf.

For the performance of this work progress estimates were returned in favour of the

contractors amounting to $85,813.70, and the total expenditure for the fiscal year of

1914-15 was $89,297.06.

1915.

Instructions were received that an Order in Council had been passed on the 4th

of May, granting authority to further extend this contract (No. 9589) with the Soo
Dredging & Construction Company, Ltd.. and that the work involved in this authoriza-

tion comprised the removal of a quantity not to exceed 21,132 cubic yards, place

measurement, of rock, and 1,910 cubic yards, place measurements, of clay, gravel, hard-

pan and other materials, at the contract unit rates of payment of $2.90 and 30 cents



272 DEPARTllEXT OF Pl'BLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

per cubic yard, place measurement, respectively. An area was laid out 2,500 feet

in length, extending from the westerly end of the Algoma Eastern Railway Company's

terminal wharfs easterly to the swing bridge, across the Little Current channel, includ-

ing all the previous areas covered, and additional areas to cover the whole of the

original scheme of improvement asked by the railway company.

Work was commenced for the season on May 19, and was completed on 3rd

September, 1915, during which period 20,897-2 cubic yards, place measurement, of

rock and 1,810 cubic yards, place measurement, of clay, gravel, hardpan, etc., were

removed. The cost of the season's work was $63,661.19.

The whole area was carefully sounded and proved by sweeping to be properly com-

pleted to grade depth.

The total expenditure, from the commencement of this work. in 1913, to its com-

pletion, is $211,572.07.

GODERICH.

Goderich, in the county of Huron, is situated at the mouth of the Maitland river

which empties into Lake Huron 133 miles north-west of Toronto on the Canadian

Pacific and Grand Trunk railways. Population, 4,500.

Work on the extension of the southwest breakwater was resumed in April and

closed for the season in November.

Up to date, berths have been dredged, five caissons placed, the superstructure con-

structed and riprap placed, also three caissons constructed ready to be sunk in position.

Work of renewal of the north pier, south pier and river breakwater was eoninieneed

on 11th May atid was completed on 31st !March, 1916, and consists of the renewing of

the decking on the north and south piers and river breakwater and the i)laeiug of

twelve new reinforced concrete mooring-posts.

Total expenditure for the fiscal year 1915-16 is $224,824.12.

Dredging.

Authority was given to have Messrs. Jennings & Ross resume work on the contract

awarded to them on 1st June, 1914, for the removal of 14S.700 cubic yards, scow

measurement, at 16 cents per cubic yard: the <iuantity to be excavated this season

being 55,021 cubic yards.

Work was resumed on 27th April and was completed on 28th August.

The dredging consisted in cleaning up the channel between piers to a depth of

21 feet, and the outer entrance of the harbour to a depth of 22 feet. Work was carried

on over an area 2.000 feet in length, varying in width from 100 feet between channel

piers to 400 feet in the outer entrance channel, 1,080 feet of this length being to a

depth of 21 feet and the remaining 920 to 22 feet below zero.

In doing this work this season, 50,268 cubic .yards scow measurement, of baril

pan, boulders, gravel and day were removed.

GR.\ND BK.ND.

Grand Bend, Lambton county, is a village situated on the easterly shore of lalre

Huron, at the mouth of the Sauble river, about 13 miles from Parkhill, the latter place

being the nearest railway station. It is also 15 miles from Exeter, and about 30 miles

south of Goderich.

Work of repair by day labour was commenced May 10 and was completetl August

31, and consisted in the reconstruction from water level of the outer 32 feet of north

pier; the filling up with stone of the outer 140 feet of north pier; the placing in posi-

tion of 3, l.i-inch tie-rods 23 feet long to strengthen the structure where same had

bulged, and the placing of 15 cords of stone in the south guard pier.

Total expenditure for fiscal .vcar 1915-16 is $I.(19M.26.
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HAILEYBURY.

Haileybury, on the west shore of lake Timiskaming, Nipissing district, is the chief

port on the line of the Timiskaming and Northern Ontario railway, and 5 miles from

Cobalt, the heart of an important mineral district.

The construction of a public wharf at this place was started in 1901 and continued

intermittently until 1910, when it became necessary to undertake the extension and

raising of the dock. During the past two years, a market dock and a railway dock have

also been built. For a number of years, dredging improvements have been carried on.

During the past year, certain repairs were made to the main shed and flooring of

same. The extensive back fill from the market dock to the market building and around

to Farr avenue was completed and the market dock was finished. The railway dock, a

cribwork structure, 249 lineal feet was built and the railway siding completed.

Expenditure during the fiscal year, $9,994.43.

Dredging.

Departmental dredge No. 118 worked from August 11 to September 28. During
this period, the inner portion of the harbour, opi^osite the market wharf, was dredged

to grade elevation 572, and a cut was made to bed rock, at elevation 574, immediately

along the front of the market wharf and a part of the new railway wharf. The
material excavated consisted of 4,826 yards of clay, scow measurement, and 1,521 yards

rock and hardpan; 913 yards of the latter being overcast, owing to low stage of the

lake, and to assist ballasting of cribwork.

Shipyard.

The Haileybury shipyard, located 2 miles north of Haileybury harbour, on lake

Timiskaming, has been in use since 1910. The dredging plant and construction plant

on these waters are hauled out on two sets of shipways and overhauled yearly. A pub-

lic highway, electric car service and Timiskaming and Northern Ontario railway spur

afford easy access to this property.

During the past year, the tools and floating plant for construction, by day labour,

on lake Timiskaming and other points in the district were kept in repair and stored

at the yard; cost of upkeep is included in the outlay for each work. Eepairs were made

to the coal trestle, shipways, trucks and capstans.

The two dump scows attached to Public Works dredge No. 118 were hauled on

ways and repaired in the spring; further repairs were made in August and September.

Public Works tug Dora was overhauled, repaired and improved. Four carloads of coal

were unloaded on private siding, hauled and transferred to storage bins on the service

dock at the shipyard. The floating plant required considerable attention during the

winter months.

The heavy ice had to be chopped down from braces of dock when lake Timiskaming

storage was drawn down.

The shipways are 15 feet wide, 395 feet long, and 10 feet wide and 316 feet long,

respectively. The pilework service dock measures 25 by 100 feet; it has coal bins, at

the shore end, with a capacity of 100 tons; the pilework coal trestle, 300 feet long, is

built for 1-ton dump cars, operating by gravity. A shed, 22 feet wide and 100 long,

accommodates the lumber stock and carpenter shop; other small sheds are used for

the smithy, oil storage, etc. A building 65 by 20 feet is used for the ofiice, living

quarters and additional storage.

Expenditure during the fiscal year, $3,285.02.

Dredging.

Departmental dredge No. 118 worked at the shipyard October 30—November

3rd, improving the basin near the shipways to give more space in winter berths for

floating plant when lake Timiskaming storage basin is at low level.

19—18
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Y22 yards clay, scow measure, were removed in 255 lineal feet of cutting. From
surveys, before and after dredging, the corresponding place measure is, very roughly,

545 yards, from which the expansion factor is 32 per cent.

HAMILTON.

Hamilton, in the coimty of Wentworth, is situated on Burlington hay, an inset

at the westerly extremity of lake Ontario and is a station on the Grand Trunk and

Canadian Pacific railways. Population, 100,000.

On 21st April, 1915, the sum of $60,000 was authorized for harbour improve-

ments at this place.

On the 10th March, 1913, a contract for wharf construction and dredging was

awarded to Messrs. J. W. Hennessy, W. H. Poupore, W. H. Dwyer and John Taylor

(Ottawa Contractors), for the sum of approximately $178,000, unit rates.

Work on the retaining wall was resumed in April and was completed 31st

December, 1915.

The following extras were authorized in connection with this work: Extension,

of time for completion to 11th November, 1915,—increase in length of wooden piles

where required;—substitution of Lackawanna for Hunter steel piling,—increasing

length of every 10th steel pile to 40 feet at 4-6 cents per lb.,—reinforcing of revet-

ment wall at approximately $6,400, or cost, plus 10 per cent,—repairs to revetment

wall at $750, being cost, plus 10 per cent,—sheet piling, anchor blocks, etc., at foot

of Wellington street at $1,300, and increasing every 5th steel pile to 40 feet.

The work consisted in the construction of a wharf or retaining wall 1,566 feet

in length, composed of wooden and steel piling substructure, and concrete super-

structure having a width of 10 feet; also the dredging of certain areas to a depth of

16 and 17 feet, respectively.

The construction of a line of piling 60 feet long anchored at the back and pro-

tected by stone talus in front is also completed.

Total expenditure for fiscal year 1915-16 is $18,507.84.

Dredging.

Authority was given to have departmental dredge No. 117 resume the work of

widening and deepening the channel at the Oliver Plow Works.

The dredge started on 17th May and stopped for the season on 3rd November.

after having removed 229,058 cubic yards, scow measurement. The removal of this

material resulted in the widening of the channel in front of the Oliver Plow works,

from 325 feet to 610 feet, for a length of 1,770 feet, and to a depth varying from 19

to 20 feet below zero, also the widening of the channel leading to the International

Harvester Company, from 200 feet to 320 feet, for a length of 1,700 feet, and to a

depth varying from 19 to 20 feet below zero.

Authority was also given to have departmental dredge No. 117 remove material

at Brown's wharf, Wabasa park, in order to facilitate the landing of the ferry at that

place. The dredge worked from 10th to 17th June, removing 12,169 cubic yards, scow

measurement, from an irregular area about the outer end of the wharf. The maximum
length of this area is 290 feet and the maximum width 100 feet, all to a depth of 16

feet below zero.

Some old piling at the foot of Hughson street was removed; this piling was out

in the bay in front of the Hamilton Rowing Club and was a serious menace to the

safety of small craft. Arrangements were entered into with Mr. D. G. Stewart, who
duly performed the work in September last at a cost of $700, when twenty-one piles

were removed also three piles of stone surrounded by old cribs and two long cribs one

foot wide and two feet high, all to a depth of 8 feet below zero.
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HAWKESBURY.

Hawkesbury, population, 4,500, is located on the south shore of the Ottawa river,

about 58 miles below the city of Ottawa.

In order to restore the navigable channel to the town wharf, known as Higgin-

son's wharf, it became necessary to remove waste pulp which has accumulated in the

past 14 years in the bay, between the Kiordon pulp mills and Cobb's Tail island.

Departmental dredge No. 103 operated from June 19 to November 12, under an agree-

ment with the Eiordon Pulp and Paper Co., Ltd. During this period, the total yard-

age removed was 61,497, including lOi per cent of clay, sand, gravel, boulders and
ftray logs. 55,043 yards waste pulp were removed, and 5,881 lineal feet of single cut

to a grade of 10 feet was accomplished. Owing to the nature of the material, the

quantity of waste pulp removed, place measure, is indeterminate. Soundings taken
in March, 1916, show that the work, while incomplete, is of material advantage.

To complete the improvement, a channel J mile long from 100 to 140 feet wide, to

the town wharf, with a least depth of 10 feet grade elevation 118, is required. The
apparent material to be removed, allowing 1 foot for sub-grade, includes 77,000 yards

waste pulp, 24,000 sand and gravel, 3,000 clay and 3,000 yards hardpan and boulders.

HILTON.

Hilton is a village situated on the northerly side of St. Joseph island, in the north
channel of lake Huron, and is distant about 35 miles southeasterly from Sault Ste.

Marie, containing a population of about 200 people.

Work of repair was commenced 4th August. The work performed consisted of the
construction of a retaining wall along the southeast side of the inner portion of the
wharf, composed of stone-filled cribwork 81 feet long by 14 feet wide, with a total depth
of 13 feet, and the filling in with stones and gravel of the area between this and the
northwesterly side of the wharf, and in the rear of the newer cribwork and concrete
landing place. This area is about 80 feet square, and the depth of filling averages
about 10 feet. It was formerly filled with lough open cribwork.

The expenditure for the fiscal year is $2,497.46.

HOLLAND RIVER.

Holland river forms the boundary between the township of W. Gwillimbury, in
Simcoe county, and East Gwillimbury and King, in York coxmty, but the village of

that name is about 2i miles east of the river in York county and 6 miles south of
Cook's bay, which is the south arm of lake Simcoe. Population, 450.

The work of making repairs by day labour was duly performed on 15th November,
and consisted in properly securing the decking timbers on the wharf.

Total expenditure for fiscal year 1915-16 is $4.95.

HONEY HARBOUR.

Deer Island.
t

Deer Island channel divides Deer island and the mainland, and is located on lot

No. 15 in the township of Baxter, Muskoka district, about 13 miles by boat from Mid-
land and Penetanguishene, and 16 miles westerly from Bala station, on the Canadian
Northern and Canadian Pacific railways.

The immediate vicinity is surrounded by summer cottages and hotels, which are
reached by motor boats from the main steamboat channel between Penetanguishene
and Pariy Sound, distant about three-fourth of a mile to the east. The population
consists entirely of summer tourists.

The object of the dredging was to deepen the channel by the removal of two rock
shoals, thus affording safe navigation for motor launches and small supply boats.

19—ISi
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The eliannel is well sheltered from storms, but the water is subject to rapid rise

and fall oceasioued by winds from the west and northwest.

In the year 1915, an agreement was entered into and this work awarded to

Messrs. Morgan & Toole, of Midland, for the removal of 486 cubic yards, place measure-

ment, of rock, at a unit price of $6.25 per cubic yard, from the two shoals, the dinaen-

sions of which, collectively, are 165 feet in length, 30 feet in width and dredged to a

depth of 5 feet below Georgian bay zero elevation 380-0. For this work, the con-

tractors were paid the sum of $3,037.50.

The work was commenced on July 15, and completed November 12, 1915, during

which period the channel was completed according to the plans and contract.

A special feature in the carrying on of the work was that a dam was built across

the channel each end of the shoals, and after area inside was pumped out, the rock

was removed by hoist and deposited on the shore well back from the sides of the

channel.

The expenditure for the fiscal year 1915-16 was $3,037.50.

Duff's Channel. •

Duff's channel divides island No. 136 and the mainland, and is located in the

township of Baxter, district of Muskoka. distant three-fourth mile south of the main

steamboat channel, Penetangiiishene to Parry Sound, and half mile south of the South

Honey harbour channel and 12 miles from Midland.

The surrounding shores are largely occupied by summer hotels and cottages and

are accessible from the steamboat channel by motor launches. The population con-

sists entirely of summer tourists.

The object of the dredging was to deepen the channel by the removal of sand,

which has slipped in from the overcast work done in the year 1913, thus affording

safe navigation for large supply boats and motor launches.

The channel is well sheltered from storms, but the water level is subject to varia-

tion in elevation caused by adverse winds.

In the year 1915, an agreement was entered into with the Penetanguishene

Dredging Co., Ltd., of Penetanguishene, Ont., for the removal of 1,043 cubic yards,

place measurement, of mud and sand at a unit price of 70 cents per cubic yard, the

work covering scattered deposits in a channel 1,300 feet in length, 50 feet in width,

and securing a depth of 8 feet below zero of Georgian bay elevation of 580-0, for

which the contractors were paid $730.10.

The work was commenced September 2, and completed on September 14, 1915,

during which period the channel was completed according to the plans and the

agreement.

The expenditure for the fiscal year 1915-16 was $772.60.

JUNIPER ISLAND.

(This work is decribed in the annual report for 1915.)

Juniper island, in the countj' of Peterborough, is located in Stoney lake, and is

the distributing centre for supplies for tourists and cottagers using the cast part of

Stoney lake as a summer resort. It has a post-office, store and pavilion, and is on the

Trent Valley canal system.

On 27th September last, the sum of $285 was aut^iorized for the construction, by

day labour, of anchor piers for the floating whar^'es at this place; on 25th November.

1915, a further sum of $75 was authorized for this work.

Work of improvement was commenced on 19th October and was completed on

12th November, and consisted in the construction of 4 anchor piers, 9 feet high, having

a width at base of 8 feet, and at top of 2 feet by 4 feet. The floating piers were anchored

to same during.the winter months.

Total expenditure for fiscal year 1915-16 is $363.77.
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KACAWONG.

Kagawong is a village of 200, situated on the north shore of Manitouliu island,

about 12 miles easterly from Gore Bay.

Work of repair was commenced 20th May and it was completed 22nd June, 1915.

The work consisted of replacing the worst of the decayed planking and stringers

on the portions most used, having a total area of about 4,600 square feet.

The expenditure for the fiscal year is $203.31.

KENSINGTON.

Kensington is a summer resort, situated about 3 miles southerly from the Cana-
dian Pacific Eailway station of Desbarats and about 30 miles easterly from Sault Ste.

Marie, on the north channel of Lake Hnron.
Work of repair was eommeneed 11th September and was completed 24th Septem-

ber, 1915.

The work consisted of the renewing of the planking and timbers, where badly

decayed and missing, over an area of about 14 feet by 50 feet.

The expenditure for the fiscal year is $192.73.

KINCARDINE.

Kincardine, in the county of Bruce, is situated on the east shore of lake Huron,
100 miles north of London and 160 miles west of Toronto, on the Grand Trunk
railway. It has steamship connections with Cleveland and Sault Ste. Marie, and
has some important industries. It is located in a fine agricultural section and has

a population of 2,500.

Authority was given to have the Marlton Dredging Company remove shoals in

the inner harbour and between the piers, at the rate of 35 cents per cubic yajd,

scow measurement; the estimated quantity being 6,500 cubic yards.

Work was commenced on 25th June and was completed on 2nd July, when a

shoal 150 feet in length and 50 feet in width, between the entrance piers, was re-

moved to a depth of 16 feet below zero ; another shoal 390 feet by 28 feet in the

inner harbour was removed to a depth of 16 feet below zero; thereby permitting the

fishing fleet to proceed directly to the east wharf.

In doing this work, 6,511 cubic yards of blue clay were removed.

Total expenditure for the fiscal year 1915-16 was $2,302.32.

KINGSTON.

Combined roadway and wharf across the Cataraqui river.

The city of Kingston, Frontonac county, on lake Ontario, is an educational and
manufacturing centre,, with a good harbour and shipping facilities; population. 19,000.

Construction of a combined roadwa.y and wharf across the Cataraqui river was
built by the Thunder Bay Contracting Company, who succeeded Fallon Bros, as con-

tractors.

The work done during the fiscal year 1915-16 is as follows:—Removal of timber
superstructure of existing bridge; removal of crib piers, dredging, etc.

The development of the inner harbour in the Cataraqui river is urgently required
for transhipping grain and freight. To provide bridges, roadway and sidewalk
for vehicular and pedestrian traffic from Barriefield and country east of Cataraqui
river to Kingston.

Work was done April 1, 1915, to March 31, 1916.

Total expenditure 1915-16, $101,762.75.
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Highway hridges.

East end bridge.—The erection in place of all structural steel for 208 feet fixed-

span bridge, flooring, etc.

West end bridge.—Erection in place of all structural steel for one 164 feet 2-incli

fixed-span bridge, flooring, and erection of all structural steel band railing' for above

bridges.

The object of the work is in accordance with plan for general improvement of

Kingston harbour, to provide highway for vehicular and pedestrian trafiic between

Barriefield and adjacent country and city of Kingston.

Work was done May 22 to December -30, 1915.

Expenditure, $35,720.

College Wharf. j

Eepairs to Eoyal Military College wharf. The location of the work is in !f^avy

bay, Kingston harbour, near mouth of Cataraqui river.

Construction of a small crib retaining wall, 60-foot continuation of the retaining

wall built during fiscal year 1914-15, was built by day labour.

Work was done from February 16 to March 15, 1916, expenditure, $422.08.

DreAging.

Dredging in Anglin's bay and Cataraqui river, on the inside of the new combined

roadway and wharf, was completed as follows:

—

1. Bay Street Slip.—An area, 190 by 25 feet, was cleaned out in order to conform

with other dredging done adjacent, and provide suflicient depth of water to allow

vessels to dock at Anglin and Company's wharf.

Sanitary reasons also made this dredging necessary as sewage is emptied into this

slip at the end of Bay street.

Dredging in this slip was to elevation 229.

2. King Street Slip.—An area, 36 by 30 feet, was dredged in conformity with

adjacent dredging which would provide sufiicient depth of water to allow vessels to

dock at Frontenac Limiber and Coal Company's wharf.

Kingston city engineer made application to have this work done for sanitary

reasons. Sewage having accumulated entering by way of a sewer at the end of King

street.

Dredging in this slip was to elevation 229.

3. Canadian Pacific Eailway Dock.—An area, 260 by 40 feet, beside the Canadian

Pacific Kailway dock was dredged in order to give sufiicient depth for vessels drawing

14 feet of water to dock at this wharf, many cargoes of coal being unloaded here.

4. Main Channel.—This work consisted of cleaning out a channel, 940 by 82J feet

(average), extending from Anglin and Company's wharf through Anglin's bay to a

point in the Cataraqui river to meet the dredging done in connection with the com-

bined roadway and wharf, thus completing a channel providing sufficient depth of water

for vessels with a draught of 14 feet destined to dock at any of the various wharfs in

Anglin's bay.

13,738 yards, place measurement, of clay and silt were removed, at a cost ot

$2,953.24. Work was done between 21st July and 27th August, 1915.

KINGSVILLE.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

Kiugsville is a thriving town, situated on the north .shore of lake Erie, in the

county of Essex, about 25 miles east of the mouth or the Detroit river, and on the lino

of the Pere Marquette Eailway.

Eepairs performed during the last fiscal year consisted of the following:

—

East Pier.—The placing of waling on west side of east pier for a distance of 150

feet from outer end, for which material was on hand, also placing section of lower
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waling across end of structure; the driving and straightening of 2 loose pieces of sheet

I piling in outer end of east pier, and the repairing of decking where required with

3-inch white oak.

West Pier.—The construction of a walk 4 planks wide, using 3 by 10 hemlock,

and the redecking of the outer end of this pier; the painting of the roof of warehouse
with one coat of paint, and the installing of dry earth closet in warehouse.

Expenditure during past fiscal year was $1,465.69.

Dredging.

Authority was given to excavate 7,540 cubic yards, scow measurement, in remov-

ing shoal at entrance of this harbour. Operations were commenced on July 16 and

continued until August 17. The object of this work was to remove an area at outer

entrance to harbour so as to afford a draught of 16 feet."

The dimensions of the work accomplished are, length 240 feet, width 134, and
depth 16 feet below L.W.L. The material removed was sand with a trace of clay. The
quantity of material removed was 5,148 cubic yards, place, or 6,694 cubic yards, scow
measurement, giving an expansion factor of 30 per cent.

Work was performed by government dredge No. llJf. Owing to the fact that there

is a considerable wash of sand along the north shore of lake Erie, it will probably be

necessary to redredge this entrance channel within three years.

LAKEFIELD.

Lakefield, in the county of Peterboro, is on the Otonabee river and Trent Valley

canal system, 10 miles west of the city of Peterboro. It is a terminal of the Grand
Trunk railway and a line of steamers traversing the Kawartha lakes starts from this

place, by means of which about 30,000 tourists and travellers are distributed during

the summer. Population, 1,500.

Work on landing stage and shelter was commenced on 19th June and was com-

pleted 5th August and consisted in constructing a concrete landing-stage or walk,

126 feet in length, varying in width from 10 to 60 feet ; also a walk 175 feet long by

4 feet wide, and a shelter 12 feet by 30 feet.

Total expenditure for fiscal year 1915-16 is $715.51.

LEAMINGTON.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

Leamington is a prosperous town, situated on the north shore of lake Erie, in

the county of Essex, about 37 miles from the city of Windsor, on the lines of the

Pere Marquette and Michigan Central railways.

Work of repair to piers was commenced May 3 and was completed September

13, and the work consisted in the reconstruction of the defective section of land-

ing-pier for a length of 569-5 feet, extending from inner end of crib work north to

the last new pile bent furthest out from shore; the reconstruction consists of pile

bents, 4 piles per bent, at 8-5 feet centres, the piles being 30 to 35 feet long, cap
timbers 20 feet long, stringers, 10 rows, 6 inches by 12 inches by 18 feet.

The pile bents were sway braced with 4 by 10 by 16 timber. Guard rails were
placed on decking of 4 by 8 and in lengths varying from 12 to 14 feet, all good deck-
ing to be relaid.

Total expenditure for fiscal year was $6,756.47.

LEITH.

Leith, in the county of Grey, is on the southeast shore of Owen sound, about
6 miles northeast of the city of Owen Sound.
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The existing wharf property has been conveyed to the Crown by the late owner,
Captain John Ainslee.

Contract plans and specifications for reconstruction of wharf were prepared,
but no work has been done to date.

LITTLE DETROIT.

This is a point on the steamboat route known as the Whale Back channel of lake

Huron, which is now used mostly by lumber barges and tugs hauling rafts of logs

from ports and rivers between Blind river and Spanish river, Ontario, routeing easterly

into the Little Current channel and into Georgian bay, and is used by some of the

local passenger boats. It is a narrow passage between the easterly end of Aird island

and the mainland, within a mile of the post office of Spanish ilills, where a large

lumber mill belonging to -the Spanish Eiver Lumber Company is located, and is dis-

tant westerly about 24: miles from Little Current. There are no means of establishing

the volmne of trade passing through this channel, but it obviously consists of many
millions of feet, board measure, of lumber, hundreds of thousands of logs, and a large

tonnage of package freight.

The channel is narrow and strong currents are developed through it during stormy
weather, making it difficult at such times to handle boats with proper safety, particu-

larly as a rocky shoal ijrojects into the waterway from its southerly side. The object

of the work is to make the channel 100 feet wide by 18 feet deep by the removal of a

portion of this shoal, thereby improving conditions of navigation at least 100 per cent.

1913.—On the 16th of October, 1913, an Order in Coimcil was passed authorizing

the acceptance of the offer of the Canadian Dredging Company, Limited, of Midland,
Ontario, for the dredging of 1,100 cubic yards, place measurement, of rock, at the imit

price of $.5.40 per cubic yard, but, owing to the lateness of the season when the authority

was given, work was not started and no expenditure was incurred.

1914.—During the winter of 1913-14, a more extensive and thorough survey of

this channel was made, and it was found, in order to provide proper improvements, that

4,000 cubic yards, place measurement, of ledge rock, would have to be excavated. Ten-
ders were called on August 1, 1914, an Order in Council was passed authorizing the

acceptance of the tender of the C. S. Boone, Dredging and Construction Company,
Limited, of Toronto, for the removal of 4,000 cubic yards, place measurement, of rock,

at the unit price of $3 per cubic yard, and on the 4tji of November, authority was
given to commence the work, but as the season was so far advanced, the contractors

obtained permission to delay its commencement until the following season, and, there-

fore, no expenditure was- incurred.

1915.—Instructions were given that the work sliould be commenced, and that it

was to be completed by September 1. Later, the contractors reported that satisfactory

progress could not be made until after the logging season was over, and on their assur-

ance to complete tJieir cgntract before its expiration on the 15th of December, per-

mission was given them to delay commencement until September 1. Work was com-
menced on September 23, and suspended November 30, and during which period 2,.'')00

cubic j'ards, place measurement, of rock, were removed.

The expenditure for the season was, $8,106.92.

LITTLE GRASSY RIVER.

Lalce of the Woods.

The Little Grassy river is a small river, running northwesterly into the southeast

corner of the lake of the Woods. There is a scattered settlement of some three or four

hundred people within a radius of three miles.

The traffic on the river consists of several tugs owned by lumber companies and
drawing up to nine feet. One passenger steamer, draught Tj feet, calls at intervals.
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Some settlers' supplies are brought iu and some logs and ties, etc., are rafted out.

The season of navigation lasts from June to October. A good road to the town of

Sloemans, on the Canadian Northern railway, 17 miles distant, is the other means of

communication.

The work is of a public nature and will considerably aid the settlement of the

district, when completed. It will also enable tugs, etc., drawing up to nine feet of

water, to enter the river from the lake of the Woods. The river is navigable for this

class of vessel for about three miles from its mouth.

Early in 1914, an examination was made, soundings and borings taken, and a

report was sent in.

The proposed work consists of dredging a channel 3,000 feet long, 100 wide and

11 feet deep, through a shoal area at the mouth of the river.

Authority was received that the Eainy Eiver Dredging Company remove 10,000

cubic j-ards, place measurement, class B material, but as this was not sufficient to

cover all the dredging proposed, instructions were given to lay out the work iu such

a way that the maximum possible benefit might be obtained from the removal of the

authorized quantity.

Work on this contract commenced June 30, 1915. Beginning at the shore of

easterly end, a channel, having a length of 475 feet, a bottom width of 85 and a deptb

of 11 feet below zero of gauge, or 1,058-8 M.S.L., was dredged partly through the shoal,

9,858 cubic yards, place measurement, of silt,' sand and clay, were removed at a unit

price of 45 cents. The returns amounted to 10,700 yards, scow measurement, which

gives an expansion factor of 11-7 per cent.

This work closed down July 19, 1915 ; one dipper dredge. Moose, and two scows

being employed. The soundings taken during March 1916, on the ice over the area

dredged, show that very little filling in has taken place. The work proposed for the

fiscal year 1916-17, consists in completing the channel already commenced.
Total expenditure, fiscal year ending March 31, 1916, was $4,555.50.

l'orignal.

L'Orignal, a village in Prescott county, is located on the south shore of the Ottawa,

54 miles below Ottawa, and is a station on the Canadian Northern railway.

The original public wharf at L'Orignal was built in 1841, and considerably

extended in 1876, by the municipality and provincial Government grants. The super-

structure was carried away by ice in 1884, rebuilt by this department, and in 1896-97

the approach had to be rebuilt of pilework, while the landing-head had to be recon-

structed. Extensive repairs have been necessary on this structure from time to time.

Repairs and improvements were made, July 13 to August 14, as follows: The
approach flooring was covered with 3-inch planking, on a length of 644 feet by 12 feet

in width; areas 12 to 36 feet by 24 feet, and 36 feet by 32 feet, at outer end, were also

planked; floor was renewed on slip from high level to low-level landing ; the east portion

of the high-level platform, 31 by 35 feet, which had been damaged by flre in August,

1914, was restored with two new tiers of 10 by 10 timber, new capping and mooring-

posts, and 12 inches of earth topping on the ballast stone; repairs were also made to

railing, waling and fenders, and the freight shed received one coat of paint and had
its roof and doors repaired.

Expenditure during the fiscal year, $990.78.

I.ORRAIX.

Lorrain, in Nipissing district, is located on the west shore of lake Timiskam-
ing. some 10 miles south of Haileybury,- and is an outlet for a growing farming
district.
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A small public wharf was built in 1914 and some dredging improvements were

carried out.

During the past year, repairs were made to the sheeting, fenders and wharf

capping; the riprap of the approaches was built up, and some gravelling was done.

Expenditure during the fiscal year, $50.

Dredging.

It was found necessary to improve the approaches to the wharf for navigation

under relatively low water conditions.

Departmental dredge i\^o. 118 worked from May 27 to June 9, removing 2,479

yards clay, scow measure, to grade elevation 572, making an approach basin in front

of the wharf about 125 feet long along the wharf.

MADAWASKA RIVER.

The lladawaska river, in South Renfrew- county, flows in an easterly direction

into the Ottawa river, at Arnprior, and affords a 30-mile stretch of navigation, from

Barry's bay, for boats of shallow draught, which handle traffic of Combermere and

other points.

In 1913, a small sand-pimiping plant was built at Barry's bay for the purpose

of improving the boat channel across the extensive sand bar at the foot of

Kaminiskeg lake.

During the past season, work on this improvement consisted of completing a

straightening cut 1,600 feet long, 22 feet wide, to a minimum depth of 5 feet at

low-water level.

Expenditure during the fiscal year, $2,302.24.

MAGNETAWAN.

Magnetawan, district of Parry Sound, is a village situated on the Magnetawan

river, 18 miles from Burk's Falls, the latter a station on the Toronto-North Bay
Division of the Grand Trunk railway system. The population of Magnetawan is

about 200.

Work was begun November 1, 1915, and completed November 16, 1915, and con-

sisted in improving the approach to the warehouse and erecting a chimney in the

warehouse to admit of same being heated during the cold weather prior to closing

of navigation.

Total expenditure for fiscal year 1915-16, $139.75.

MICHIPICOTKN.

Dredging.

Michipicoten harbour, is situated about 120 miles north by west from Sault Stc.

Marie, on the extreme northeasterly corner of lake Superior, and is the terminal port

of the lake Superior Branch of the Algoma Central railway, with a population of about

100. It is the most important shipping point on the north shore of lake Superior

between Sault Ste. Marie and Port Arthur, and the principal trade consists of the

importation of coal to the extent of 150,000 tons for use at the Helen and Magpie iron

mines, which are situated about 20 miles inland, and the exportation of iron ore to the

extent of about 400,000 tons, having a total value of about $2,000,000, according to the

information supplied by the management of the railway.

Considerable trouble having been experienced in approaching the ore dock and

coal dock with the large steam barges carrying coal and ore, on account of shoal water,

the department decided to-perform the necessary dredging to relieve the difficulty,

which was done by the departmental dredge Industry No. 109.

I
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Work was commenced on August 30, 1915, and completed September 2, during
which period 8,607 cubic yards, scow measurement, of clay, sand, coal and iron ore

were removed.

The railway company proposes to construct a new ore dock of modern design and
large capacity at this place, and having petitioned the Government to perform the

necessary dredging to enable boats of 24 feet draught to approach and turn about it, a

rather extensive survey, with soundings and borings, was made during the summer and
fall at a cost of $900.G1.

illDLAND.

New Coal Dock.

This work is located within the limits of the town of Midland, township of Tay,
county of Sinicoe. The surroundings consist of numerous saw-mill!s, coal wharves.
etc., all of which are reached by sidings from the tracks of the Midland Division of the

Grand Trunk Railway system.

The object of the dredging was to deepen the harbour by the removal of sand and
mud in front of the new coal wharf built by Mr. James Playfair. The completed
work enabled boats, dj'awing -AO feet of water, when loaded, to tie up to the wharf. The
wharf is well sheltered from storms, but water level is subject to variation in elevation

by adverse winds.

In the year 1915, an agreement was entered into with the Canadian Dredging Com-
pany, Limited, of Midland, for the removal of 2,800 cubic yards, place measurement, of

mill refuse and clay at a unit price of 25 cents per cubic yard. The work done covers

an area of 25,700 square feet in front of coal dock and to a depth of 23 feet below zero

of Georgian bay gauge, elevation 580-0 for which the contractors were paid $700. The
work was commenced May 25, and completed on May 31, 1915, during which period the

area was completed according to the plans and the agreement.

The total expenditure for the fiscal year 1915-16 was $700.

MINAKI.

Minaki, District of Thunder Bay and Rainy River, is situated on Gun and Sand
lakes, which are two wider stretches of the Winnipeg river. It is on the Transcon-
tinental railway, 115 miles east of Winnipeg, and some 20 miles north of Kenora,
on the Canadian Pacific railway, with which it is connected by a steamer service via

the Winnipeg river.

A wharf was built of the crib-and-span type, with round timber cribs

stone-ballasted. The main part consists of six cribs 12 feet by ,16 feet, and
is 214 feet long and 16 feet wide. An " L " on the outer end, 54 feet long and 16
feet wide, is supported by two cribs 16 feet by 16 feet, and 16 feet by 18 feet, respect-

ively. There is a parcel room and shelter 32 feet by 8 feet on the " L ". The depth of

water varies from 4 feet to 14 feet.

The whole structure is built of first-class material in a workmanlike and substan-
tial manner and is equipped with all necessary fenders, lighting posts and mooring
cleats.

Work was commenced 15th June and completed August 21. 1915, the total cost

being $3,945.58.

,
MONTRE.AL RIVER.

The scheme for improving the Montreal river, between Latchford dam and
Mountain chute, so as to make the whole distance. 41 miles, navigable, included the
excavation of channels through Flat rapids and Pork rapids.

The improvement at Flat rapids was carried out by hand-excavation and blasting
in 1910-12-13; the upper roach, 3 miles in length, was lowered from one to two feet,
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necessitating the improvement of certain shoal points, and a boat channel for 6-foot

navigation was obtained.

The improvement at Pork rapids was commenced in 1912, and completed during
the past season, by means of a floating excavating plant, built at Latchford, January
6 to March 22, and July 5 to August 9.

During the period August 10 to October 23, 2,350 cubic yards sand, gravel, clay
and boulders were overcast from two cuts, 420 feet and 220 feet long, respectively,

50 feet wide, and carried to grade elevation 9020 (E.W.S. elevation 908-5), at a cost

of $2,128.51. The plant was hauled out at Latoiiford on November 22, and certain

necessary repairs were made.
During the season, it was found necessary to grade or re-locate certain roadways,

and improve property affected by backwater from the regulation dam at Latchford,
at an aggregate cost of $505.58. ,

NEWCASTLE.

Newcastle, in the countj' of Durham, is situated on the north shore of lake

Ontario, about 47 miles east of Toronto. It is a privately owned harboiir. New-
castle is a station on the Grand Trunk and Canadian Pacific railways. Population,

800.

Instructions were issued to have the departmental dredge Xo. 105 do some

dredging at this place; the estimated quantity being 3,000 cubic yards.

Work was commenced on 7th and was completed on 14th July, when the dredge

removed- 3,766 cubic yards, scow measurement, of sand and boulders from the

wrecked headblock of the east pier, in order to facilitate the unloading of coal

vessels. A cutting, 290 feet in length by 45 feet in width, was made immediately to

the west of the east pier, all to a depth of 12 feet below zero.

XEW USKEARD.

New Liskeard, a station on the Timiskamiug and Northern Ontario railway,

is located on the northwest shore of lake Timiskaming. There is a railway spur

to the public dock and a double siding is under construction. The water-borne

traffic is some 650 tons per month.
In 1911, the old wharf and site of the Timiskaming Navigation Co. was

acquired, together with other property for right-of-way required, and a public wharf
was built at this place in 1913. The structure has been improved since, kept in

repair and a pilework breakwater built in connection, together with dredging which

has been carried on from year to year.

During the pa.st year, the shore end of the earthfill approach, which had originally

been built low to connect with the streets, was graded up to the elevation of the

dock ; the stone riprap walls at the outer end of approacli were improved and
lengthened, owing to the eroding action of high water: the flooring of the approach
was raised to permit placing of heavy riprap at the end of the railway ballast fill

;

two of the three slips were lowered and lengthened; the ice which formed at regulated

water surface in the fall exerted a great strain on the braces, from which it had to be
cut in the spring under much lower water conditions.

Expenditure during the fiscal year, $570.5o.

NORTH n\v.

North Bay, a town in the District of !Nipissing, is situated on the north shore

of lake Nipissing. It is a divisional point on the main line of the Canadian Pacific

railway, a terminus of the Grand Trunk railway and Timiskaming and Northern
Ontario railway and a station on the Canadian Northern railway.

The public wharf, built at this place in 1899, has necessitated heavy repairs

from time to time.
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A severe storm occurred on lake Nipissing July 5, tearing off about 500 lineal

feet oT 10 by 10 capping, several 12 by 13 crib timbers and breaking planks in the

landing-head floor.

During the period, July 15 to August 7. repairs consisted in salvaging and re-

placing timbers removed by storm and relaying 500 lineal feet of 10 by 10 capping.

Limited general repairs, such as renewing sheeting and electric wire standards,

where necessary, also bracing piles under the freight shed, were made.

Expenditure during the fiscal year is $293.03.

OAKVILLE.

Oakville, in the county of Halton, is on the north shore of lake Ontario, 29 miles

southwest of Toronto, on the Grand Trunk railway. It has several mills, factories and

a ship yard. Population, 2,000.

Work of repair to the piers was commenced on 9th August and was completed on

30th September, 1915, and consisted in renewing the top course of timber on the east

pier for a length of 645J feet, renewing sheeting on " L " for a length of 130 feet, and

placing new cross ties, stringers, planking and stone filling for 60J feet of " L." Sheet-

ing 2 sides of lighthouse 5 feet in height, and giving warehouse, 40 feet 7 inches by 20

feet 3 inches, one coat of paint, re-shingling roof and placing new studding and clap-

boarding on the southeast face of warehouse for a height of C feet.

Total expenditure for the fiscal year 1915-16 is $1,500.03.

OWEN SOUND.

Owen Sound, in the county of Grey, is situated on Owen sound, an arm of

Georgian bay, and at the mouth of the Sydenham river, 123 miles northwest of Toronto,

on the Canadian Pacific and Grand Trunk railways.

Owen Sound has a fine, well protected harbour, 12 miles long, navigable for the

largest vessels. It has a number of industries. Population, 12,500.

Owing to shallow water, it was found necessary to do certain dredging in ordei

to permit of boats landing at McLauchlan's wharf, the estimated yardage being 3,000,

in situ. Arrangements for carrying on the work at 30 per cent per cubic yard, were

made with Mr. John E. Eussell, but after working on the 9th and 10th September,

operations were discontinued owing to their inability to anchor the dredge in the soft

material. 307 cubic yards were removed.

Authority was given to have Mr. Russell remove 5,400 cubic yards at 30 cents per

yard, scow measurement, adjacent to the dock of the Union Cement Company. The

area removed was 280 feet by 120 feet, to the east of the dock, and an area 380 feet long

by 30 feet wide, extending northeasterly from the dock area, all to a depth of 16 feet

below zero. The removal of this material made possible the landing of fully loaded

boats at the docks of the Union Cement Company.
Work was commenced on 5th and completed 13th October when 5,435 cubic yards,

scow measurement, of sand, mud and coarse gravel were removed.

PARRY SOUND.

Parry Sound, District of Parry Sound, is a town situated on the east shore of the

Georgian bay. Population, 3,500.

Work was begun August 7, 1915, and completed September 30, 1915, and consisted

in renewing the deck of the wharf and building a proper landing to accommodate

launches and other small boats.

Total expenditure for fiscal year 1915-16, $767.33.
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PELEE ISLAND.

Pelee Island is situated at the western end of lake Erie, in lat. 41° 46' N. long.

28° 45' W., about 35 miles southeast from the mouth of the Detroit river and 16 miles

south of the town of Kingsville, Essex county. Population of the island about 650.

The work of repair of the north dock, performed between May 3, 1915, and March

31, 1916, consisted of the following : Renewing of decking over section of dock, 12 by 42,

on east side of warehouse, renewing defective decking and face timbers at outer end

cf dock, repairing of roadway on dock and approach to same, and levelling up and

resurfacing with gravel.

The work on the west dock, performed between June 4. 1915, and January 24, 1916,

consisted of the following : One section of decking, 40 by 50 at outer end of dock, was

renewed ; ten new face timbers were renewed, and two new piles were placed in position.

Expenditure for fiscal year 1915-16 was $1,456.99.

PENETANGinSHENE.

The harbour of Penetanguishene is located on a part of the Georgian bay in

the township of Tay, county of Simcoe, with a population of about 3,000. There are

saw-mills, box factories, stove foundry, large tannery, fibre-board factory and boat

builder, all located within the limits of the town. The Beardmore Company and other

tanners ship large quantities of tan-bark by rail from this place. The Grand Trunk

Railway system have a terminus here, which is distant by rail about 120 miles from

Toronto.

The object of the dredging was to deepen the harbour in front of the Espl.inaJe,

forming a turning basin for large passenger boats. The harbour is well sheltered from

storms, but the water level is subject to rapid rise and fall, occasioned by adverse

winds.

In the year 1915, an agreement was entered into with the Penetanguishene Dredg-

ing Co., Limited, for the removal of 18,500 cubic yards, place measurement, of sand

and soft clay, at a Tmit price of 24 cents per cubic yard. Of this amount, 17,300 cubic

yards were removed, for which the contractors were paid $4,152.

The work was commenced October 13, and completed December 10, 1915, ticccrd-

ing to the plans and the agreement.

The expenditure for the fiscal year 1915-16 was SH.SlS.eO.

PETAW.\WA.

Petawawa, a village in North Renfrew county, is located on the Ottawa river,

at the mouth of the Petawawa river, 10 miles west of Pembroke.

In 1905, a public wharf was built at this place but owing to the growth of a sand

bar interfering with logging operations in the vicinity of the wharf, it became neces-

sary to remodel the latter in 1912.

During the month of March, minor repairs were made, consisting in setting back

and strutting pile-beads which had been shoved in by steamboats; replacing certain

floor stringers and planking, as well as levelling up some of the pile bents.

Expenditure during the fiscal year, $100.50.

PETEBBOROUOII.

Peterborough, in .the county of Peterborough, is situated on the Otonabee river

and Trent Valley canal system, and has a population of 17,000.

Authority was received to provide facilities for the supply of water, for drinking

and sanitary purposes, in the pavilion on George street wharf at this place, and the

work was performed in .lune at a cost of $16.20.
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PICNIC ISLAND.

Picnic island, lies to the north of Manitoulin island in the district of Algoma,

about IJ miles west of the town of Little Current, on the main steamship channel

through the north channel of lake Huron. Two large saw-mills are located on it,

and the shipping consists wholly of lumber, amounting to some forty million feet,

board measure, per year, valued at about $100,000. The population varies from

50 to 300, dependent upon the operation of the mills. The present dredging, how-

ever, is not in consequence of any interests connected with Picnic island, and is so

named merely on account of its proximity.

The object of the work is to improve the general trade route of the north channel

of lake Huron, to permit it to be navigated by the large lake freighters. The opera-

tion of the channel opposite Picnic island which is being improved is about 5,000

feet long by 300 feet wide, and the grade depth is 22 feet below standard low-water

level. All the work done under this contract will be of a permanent nature, and
there will be no refilling, nor will any charge for maintenance and redredging be neces-

saiy. The Department of Marine and Fisheries has issued a "Notice to Mariners,"

giving instructions for the navigation of the portion of the dredged channel now
completed, and the necessary spar buoys have been placed in position.

Authority was given 19th April, 1915, to proceed with this contract dredging

at the unit price of $1.70 per cubic yard, scow measurement, and accordingly work
was commenced on May 10, and continued until October 15, during which

period 30,005 cubic yards, scow measurement, were removed, but as recent soundings

disclosed the fact that much excess sub-grade dredging had been performed, returns,

totalling 13,313 cubic yards, were withheld from payment, and the balance, 16,692

cubic yards, were returned in favour of the contractors for payment, amounting to

$28,376. iO. The whole of the areas previously covered by the dipper

dredges are now in a completed condition, including a through channel

which will be i^roperly marked by the Marine Department with epar buoys

having a minimum width of 200 feet. The portion of the area under contract still

incomplete, is relatively small, and will be completed during the summer of 1916.

The expenditure for the fiscal year 1914-15, was $31,697.28.

A summary of the estimates returned in favour of the C. S. Boone Dredging

& Construction Company, Limited is as follows :

—

Fiscal year 1910-11 .... 28,350 cu. yd. @ 1.75.

.

Fiscal year 1911-12 .... 37,460
" @ 1.75. ,

Fiscal year 1912-13 .... 60,093-6 " @ 1.70.

,

Fiscal year 1913-14 .... 56,495-4 " @ 1.70. ,

Fiscal year 1914-15 .... 45,903 " @ 1.70.

.

Fiscal year 1915-16 .... 16,692
" @ 1.70.

,

$ 49,612 51

65,555 70

102,159 12

96,042 18

78,035 10

28,376 40

Total 244,994-0 " $419,781 01

PLEASANT POINT.

Pleasant Point, in the county of Victoria, is a summer resort on Sturgeon lake, on
the Trent Valley canal system, and has a summer population of about 350.

Work of repair, by day labour, was commenced 2nd July and was completed 31st

August, and consisted in the construction of an extension to the existing wharf, 60 feet

by 12 feet, built by the Department of Railways and Canals; also renewing the deck-

ing, deck stringers and waling of the existing structure, where required.

Total expenditure for fiscal year 1915-16 is $1,384.42.
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POINT EDWARD.

On the 27th April, 1910, Order in Council was passed granting the Cadwell Sand
and Gravel Company, of Windsor, Ontario, the exclusive privilege of dredging the

material required to be removed, in order to maintain a depth of at least 21 feet of

water opposite the docks at Point Edward, on condition that the said mentioned com-

pany be allowed to dispose of the material for its own purpose.

This agreement having lapsed, was renewed for one year on April 15, 1915, and in

connection therewith there was removed 43,760 cubic yards, from April 1 to December
9.

The object of doing this work is to maintain a draught, not exceeding 23 feet, over

a certain section of the St. Clair river in front of Point Edward, where considerable

shoaling annually takes place from sand deposit brought down by the current from

lake Huron.
The dimen'sions of the area covered by the Cadwell Sand Company during the

past season were, length, 3,000 and width 170 feet. -i

The material removed is entirely sand and gravel. The quantity of material

removed during the past year was 43,760 cubic yards, scow measurement. No computa-

tion was made in so far as ascertaining place measurement quantity of this area

covered.

As this work has had to be maintained for a period of five years in order to keep

down tlie formation of the bar at Point Edward, the necessity is apparent, whereby,

either this present plan of dealing with this) matter will have to be extended, or other

provision will have to be made for the operation of dredging plant as was done prior

to the commencement of this agreement.

POnT ARTHUR.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915).

Port Arthur, district of Thunder Bay and Rainy River, with a- population of

20,000, has a fine natural location on the shore of Thunder bay, near the northwestern

end of lake Superior.

Bare Foint.

The breakwater at Bare jjoint. Port Arthur, is of tbu rubble mound type, and is

constructed of two classes of stone, viz. : a core of quarry run and a covering course ol

large rubble stone, weighing from 4 to 10 tons and upward. It starts at Bare point

near the north end of the harbour and runs in a southerly direction towards the main
or central part. The depth of water in which it is built varies from 10 to 30 feet, and
the bottom consists of sand and extremely soft blue clay.

Operations to complete were resumed May 25, 1915, and the remaining work
accomplished. The stone was brought to the work, from the quarry, by train,, an
average haul of 1 mile, and was unloaded and placed in position by a scow-derrick

anchored alongside. Practically no settlement took place during 1915 and this diflS-

culty appears to have been finally overcome.

This breakwater, as completed, has an approximate length of 3,300 feet, an average
width of approximately 28 feet, and a height, above water level at zero of gauge of
601-86 M.S.L., of 8 feet. The side slopes approximate lA liorizontal to 1 vertical.

Operations were suspended October 5, 1915. A careful final inspection was then
made and the contract accepted as completed. Total expenditure, fiscal year March
31, 1916, is $91,018.61.

New Breakwater.

The -second extension to the new breakwater is a southerly extension, on the same
centre line, of the first extension, constructed in 1913. An entrance, 375 feet wide,

and known as the south entrance, has been left between the two extensions to give

access to the south part of the harbour.
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During 1914, the pile foundation was driven and cut and all the cribs were built,

seven of them being set in place, filled and partially riprapped. Three cribs were
also covered with the concrete superstructure. Work was recommenced this season

April 27 and was completed October 5, 1915. During this time, the remaining nine-

teen cribs were set in place and filled, the superstructure completed and the whole
riprapped. This breakwater presents a good appearance and , has been well built

throughout of the best material.

Total expenditure, fiscal year ending March 31, 1916, is $258,366.34.

Dredging.

To afford proper facilities for traffic, a general plan of improvement and
enlargement has been laid down, outlined to meet both present and future needs.

This ijlan really provides for a large inner harbour, dredged throughout to a depth
of 25 feet, and protected by breakwaters ; the work to be carried out systematically,

as occasion demands.

In accordance with this plan, a contract was let early in the summer of 191?.. to

W. E. Phin, Esq., Hamilton, Out., which provided for the removal of 942,000 cubic

yards, scow measurement, of class B material, in the main harbour, at a unit price of

13 cents.

In 1913, the southern half of the main harbour south was widened to 1,225 feet;

a triangular piece, 2,300 feet long, with a base of 490 feet, was dredged at the south

end of the main harbour south, to give access to the new Government elevator and

the Davidson and Smith elevator. 528,794 cubic yards, scow measurement, were

removed.

In 1914, the main harbour south was widened to an average width of 1,450 feet

throughout its entire length, a distance of 4,700 feet. The main harbour centre was
enlarged at its northwest part, and King's channel was straightened at its north-

western end by dredging a cut of 1,200 feet long and 45 feet wide, in addition,

re-dredging was done in the slips at King's elevator, the Canadian Northern elevator

"A," the joint slip between the Davidson and Smith elevator, the Government eleva-

tor, and along the face of the C. N. Ry., coal and ore dock.

The total quantity removed in 1914 was 416,410 cubic yards, scow measurement,
class B material. The removal, prior to December 15, 1916, of 1,095,000 cubic j'ards,

scow measurement, class B material, from the main harbour, under contract No. 9490

extended, W. E. Phin, contractor, was authorized on April 14 and 23, respectively.

Work started May 8, 1915, and the main harbour south was widened from an
average width of 1,450 feet to a width of 1,825 feet, on an average length of 4,020 feet.

In the main harbour centre, a triangular piece at the south end of the old break-

water was dredged. The depth dredged in area " B " was 25 feet, 1 foot for sub-grade.

The quantity excavated was 413,726 cubic yards, scow measurement, class B material.

The place measurement quantity computed from soundings is 374,091 yards, giving an
expansion factor of 10-5 per cent.

T.!ie main harbour south was also lengthened by dredging a rectangular piece hav-
ing a length of 2,150 feet and an average width of 372 feet. The depth dredged was
25 feet, and 1 foot for sub-grade. The quantity removed was 185,243 yards, scow
measurement. The place measurement quantity is 160,175 yards, giving an expansion
factor of 15-6 per cent. In addition, some shoal places in the main harbour south
were re-dredged, and 12,760 yards, scow measurement, were removed.

All depths mentioned refer to zero of the Public Works Department staff gauge,
which is 601-86 M.S.L. The water during the navigation season is practically always
above this zero level.

All material removed was of class B, consisting of sand and clay, in varying pro-

portions, and easily handled. Only one dredge, the Kennaquliair, was employed dur-

19—19
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ingr 1915. The average haul was approximately 2 miles and the protection from storms

was good.

Work was closed for the season on December 8, 1915, and 611,729 yards, scow

measurement, class B material, were removed. During the winter 1915-16, the neces-

sary soundings were taken, on the ice, over the areas dredged; the work being found

atisfactory. There were no special features in connection with this work, and its close

proximity to other points where work was being carried on, rendered close super-

vision easy.

Total expenditure, fiscal year ending March 31, 1916, is $80,460.27.

PORT BRUCE.

Port Bruce is a village situated at the mouth of Cat Fish creek, in the county of

Elgin, on the north shore of lake Erie, about 10 miles east of Port Stanley and 10

miles south of Aylmer, the nearest railway connection. Population, about 150.

Repairs on piers, by day labour were commenced May 25 and were comijleted June

20, and consisted of the following: On section of west pier 200 feet long and crib-

work portion of same, decking was placed for a width of 10 feet including the renewal

of three 12 by 12 cross-ties and 200 lineal feet of 10 by 10 top-face timbers; the con-

tinuation of the reconstruction of the west pier on the old pile foundation for a length

of 60 feet ; the renewal of approximately 50 feet of west pier at north end, consisting in

the renewal of defective face timbers and levelling up same, approximately 75 feet of

decking was repaired; a small tool-house was built for storing the Government tools,

etc., and a considerable quantity of gravel filling was placed in outer end of west pier.

• Total expenditure for fiscal year 1915-16 was $984.83.

POET BURWELL.

The village of Port Burwell is situated at the mouth of Otter creek on the north

shore of lake Erie, 22 miles east of Port Stanley.

Repairs to piers were commenced, by day labour, May 10 and closed down March
31. Tlie work performed consisted of the following:

—

East Pier.—At inner end of east pier near shore, 85 feet of decking was renewed,

including defective top face timbers, stringers and decking.

West Pier.—Check water between the south end of the west pier and north end of

west breakwater, being 114 feet of pile work, was reconstructed ; gap between cribwork

at south end of west- pier was closed with 8 by 10 by 30 beech sheet piling and the

same was fastened securely to pier to stop sand wasiiing into channel; 300 feet of deck-

ing was renewed including 3 top face timbers on channel side of pier, defective cross-

ties, stringers and decking; 290 feet of pile wall north of cribwork, opposite the ferry

slip, was constructed; 30 feet of defective decking north of check water was renewed,

and floating pile driver was hauled out of water on completion of season's work and

thoroughly caulked.

.Expenditure during the past fiscal year amounted to $9,297.20.

Dredging.

During the past season, the government dredge Sir Richard worked in Port Bur-

well harbour. Work was commenced on September 29 and continued until Novem-
ber 3, when owing to a bad break down of plant, operations ceased in this port.

During tie period of operations, dredge Sir Richard removed 13,250 cubic yards,

scow measurement, or 7,131 cubic yards, place, an expansion factor of 85-9 per cent.

The area covered was a shoal area in inner turning basin and covered a width of 145

feet, length 700 and the whole area was dredged to a depth of 20 feet below L.W.L.



REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXGINEEE 291

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

Tlie material removed was mostly sand with a slight portion of clay. This work was
all done by Government dredge No. ISO.

The length of time that this improvement will last will altogetier depend on the
storms that take place in lake Erie as a considerable amount of drifting sand is moved
by these storms; most likely this section will have to be dredged again within three

years.

roItT ELGIN.

Port Elgin, in the county of Bruce, is situated on the east shore of lake Huron,
and is a station on the Grand Trunk railway. It has some industries and is a summer
resort. Population, 1,200.

Authority was given to have the Marlton Dredging Company remove 6,918 cubic

yards, scow measurement, at 38 cents per cubic yard. Work was commenced on 3rd

and was completed on 15t'h July, when the dredge removed 6,937i cubic yards, scow
measurement, of sand from a shoal area on the range line leading to the landing wharf.

The total length of cut was 400 feet with a width of 48 feet for about half its length

and 20 feet for the remainder, all to a depth of 14 feet below zero.

Total expenditure for the fiscal year 191.5-16, $2,683.67.

PORT HOPE.

Port Hope, in the county of Durham, is situated on the north shore of lake

Ontario, 63 miles east of Toronto, on the Grand Trunk, Canadian Pacific and
Canadian Northern railways. There are many important industries at this place.

Population, 5,000.

Work on the revetment wall was Resumed in April and completed on 24th
November, and consisted in the construction of a wall 645 feet in length, having
cribwork substructure and concrete superstructure, with a width at the base of 16 feet

and at the top of 5 feet.

Total expenditure for fiscal year 1915-16 is $38,276.73.

Dredging.

Authority was given to htive the shoal area at the outer entrance to the harbour
removed, and a contract involving the dredging of 17,580 cubic yards, in situ, was
awarded to the Canadian Dredging Company, at 24 cents per cubic yard, place measure-
ment.

A further authorization was subsequently made, which called for the removal
of 5,500 cubic yards of material, overlying rock alongside the coal docks in the inner
liarbour. Work commenced on 7th June and. was completed on 5th August.

The shoal area removed at the entrance to the harbour was 100 feet in length
inside of the entrance piers, extending on both east and west sides to within 10 feet

of the structures; also a fan-shaped area, 400 feet in length, varying in width from
100 feet at the piers to 300 feet at the lake end, all to a depth of 18 feet below zero,

and dredging to the rock surface over an area 200 feet square at the northeast angle
of the west harbour, with an area 200 feet by 50 forming part of approach channel,

to a depth of 11 feet below zero. In doing this work, the dredge removed 17,982 cubic
yards of light sand and mud.

Total expenditure for the fiscal year 1915-16, $4,592.06.

PORTLAND.

The village of Portland on Big Eideau lake, Leeds county, has a population of

300.

The construction of timber cribwork wharf was completed. Tie approach to the

wharf begins at 10 feet north of the street line and continues 184 feet, thence makes a
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left turn of 115, and continues 35 feet. From the street end of the approach to the

turn, there is a slope of 1.11 per cent. A stone fill at the end of the approach proper

continues back intersecting the level of the street. The approach consists of 3-pile

bents spaced 15-foot centres and braced.

The crib is 80 feet by 18 feet and averages 18 feet in depth. It is placed at the

end of the approach and continuing in the same direction. It is divided into 8 by 9

feet pockets, alternate pockets being floored. These wqre filled with stone to within

one foot of the deck which is of 3-iuch iiemlock. The timber used was 10 by 10 hem-
,

lock cross-ties, longitudinal timbers and uprights bolted with J-inch round iron. Six

rock elm snubbing posts, firmly bolted to the uprights, were supplied, 3 pile clusters

banded were driven at three corners of the crib and at the outside turn in the

approach. Some difficulty was experienced in clearing the crib site of old timbers.

Tiie crib at the outer end averages 20 feet in depth and at the inner end 16 feet. It

sank through 5 to 6 feet of silt before its final settlement on hard clay.

The elevation of the crib deck was 97-60, the H.W.S. being 97-0 and the L.W.S.
91-5. Elevation being referred to the top of a survey monument placed between water

lots Xo. 2 and No. 3, on the north boundary of Water street. It was assumed to be

elevation 100 00.

On the outer end of the crib a 40-foot rain and sun shelter was built. An addi-

tional pier, 96 feet by 8 feet, with centre line beginning at 1-42 feet from the street

line, and making an angle of 90 with the approach, was built on the outside edge of a

shoal. It consisted of 5 piers spaced 22-foot centres and bridged. The deck elevation

was 96 00 being lower than the main crib to accommodate small craft. The work
began on March 4, with the construction of a pile driver, and was completed on June

1, 1915.

Expenditure, 1915-16, $2,300.51, and the total cost is $6,254.36.

PORT M.UTLAND.

Port Maitland is situated at the mouth of the <jrand river, in the township of

Sherbrooke, in the county of Haldiniand, 20 miles southeast of Cayuga and 4 miles

southeast of Dunnville, the nearest railway and banking point. Population, 100.

Authority was given to dredge outer area of the Grand river and the channel of

the river from lake Erie to the City of Dunnville, with the object of improving this

stream so as to permit of the utilization of this river by the Toronto, Hamilton and
Buffalo Kailway Company in connection wifch their ear ferry business. Work com-
menced September 1, and dredge No. lH worked 5J hours, when work was stopped.

In this time 300 cubic yards of clay and gravel were removed.

PORT PERRV.

Port Perry, in the county of Ontario, is on the west shore of lake Seugog, on the

Grand Trunk railway, 16 miles north of Whitby and 25 miles south of Lindsay. Popu-
lation, 1,200.

Work to complete the wharf was resumed on 1st May and completed on 30th Sep-

tember, and consisted in the construction of a wharf having cribwork substructure

and concrete superstructure, 180 feet long by 20 feet wide, having a hcadlock 30

feet by 35 feet, also a warehouse 30 feet by 15 feet.

Total expenditure for fiscal year 1915-16 is $4,984.70.

PORT ROWAX.

Port Rowan, in the county of Norfolk, is situated on the north shore of lake Erie,

in the inner bay of Long point, and is 21 miles from the town of Simcoe. Population,

about 1,000.

The work on repairs to piers was commenced October 21 and completed November
30, and consisted in filling in an old culvert that formerly existed in the roadway
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approach which has since become obsolete, and levelling up and surfacing the road-
way approach where necessary.

Expenditure during fiscal year was $.500.

PORT STANLEY. ^

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915:)

Port Stanley is an important harbour of refuge on the north shore of lake Erie,

at the mouth of Kettle creek, in the county of Elgin, 8i miles by rail, south of the
city of St. Thomas, and 23i miles soutli of the city of London.

Work commenced on a concrete warehouse, 195 by 30 feet, on 11th March, and the

same was completed on June 4, at a cost of $11,763.86. Work of repair to piers com-
menced April 28 and was completed August 25, and consisted of the following: 115
feet of west pier northerly from north end of ferry slip, which was partially recon-

structed last year, was completed; 3 cast-iron mooring-posts were placed in front of

warehouse; 6 white oak fender-piles were driven on channel side of east pier, and
defective decking was renewed north of the elevator.

Total expenditure on above work for fiscal year was $496.81.

Groynes.

Work of repair on groynes commenced June 1 and was completed on 10th. and
consisted in filling of the groyne with some 50 yards of stone from the east pier.

Expenditure during fiscal year was $123.13.

Dredgiyrg.

A total of 50,000 yards was authorized to be removed in connection with dredging
at Port Stanley. The government dredge No. 120 was engaged in deepening this

harbour from June 24 to September 24. The objects of this work were :

—

1. The deepening of area in inner harbour, extending from road bridge out to 350
feet south of elevator, the length of this work being 1,170 feet, width 105, and mean
average depth before dredging 16-2 feet, dredged to 18 feet below L.W.L.

2. Dredging between breakwaters outside east pier. Length 800 feet, width 85,
and mean average depth before dredging 19-3 feet, dredging to 21 feet below L.W.L.

3. Dredging area outside west breakwater, length 410 feet, average width 140.

and mean average depth before dredging 19-1 feet, dredged to 22 feet below L.W.L.
The amount of material removed, scow measurement, was 34,444 cubic yards,

and the excavation, as shown on cross-section for place, was 20,373 -yards, or an
expansion factor of 68-9 per cent. This work will probably last three years before
redredging is required.

PROVIDKXCE a\Y. '

Providence Bay is situated on the south shore of Manitoulin island, lake Huron,
about 25 miles southeasterly from Gore Bay, and has the only harbour along the
coast. The population numbers about 300, engaged in agriculture and fishing.

Work of repair was commenced 1st May and was completed 24th July, 1915. The
work consisted of driving a line, 168 feet long, of round close piling along the westerly
face of the wharf to protect the latter from heavy seas, and the deck of the wharf over
a length of 160 feet by a width of 20 feet, which was damaged by a storm in the fall

of 1914, was relaid, a considerable portion of it being with new planking and timber.
The expenditure for the fiscal year is $3,127.81.

QUEBEC IIARHOUI), MICillPICOTEN ISLAND.

Quebec harbour, district of Thunder Bay and Rainy River, is situated on the
south side of Michipicoten island, lake Superior, approximately 120 miles northwest
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from Sault Ste. Marie, and 180 miles southeast of Port Arthur. It is closely adjacent

to the steamer route between these places. As it is well protected and contains a large

area of deep water, it was recognized that it would be a valuable and much needed

harbour of refuge, for even the largest vessels, could a safe and easy entrance be

assured.

To obtain this result, it was necessary to dredge a channel through a shoal

immediately inside the entrance and this work was placed on the programme of

the departmental dredge Industry, No. 109, for the season 1915.

The dredge commenced work on July 15, 1915, and a channel was dredged, 400

feet long and 275 feet wide, to a minimum depth of 21 feet below zero of gauge,

or 601-86 M.S.L. It was the intention to leave a uniform depth of 25 feet, but this

could not be done as solid rock was encountered at the southeastern end of the cut.

60,232 yards, scow measurement, of sand, clay, hardpan and boulders were removed.

The place measurement quantity obtained from soundings is 41,388 yards, giving

an expansion factor of 45-5 per cent. Two scows were employed, and the haul was

approximately 1 mile. The work was completed August 26, 1915.

Richard's landing.

Richard's Landing is a village of about 400 inhabitants, situated on the northwest

side of St. Joseph's island, in the St. Mary's river, on the steamboat route from

Sault Ste. Marie to Blind Eiver, Little Current, etc., and about 35 miles easterly

from the former.

Work was commenced 1st July and completed 17th September, 1915, and consisted

in the construction of a specially designed w-arehouse of attractive appearance, 50 feet

long by 22 feet wide, containing a waiting-room, office, express and baggage-room

and a general warehouse-room, the latter having a concrete floor; an area of 550

square feet, adjoining the warehouse on its easterly and southerly sidas, was finished

off as a concrete platform, and two other buildings belonging to the wharf property

were renovated and painted.

The expenditure for the fiscal year is $1,993.97.

RIVER THAMES.

The river Thames tlows through the city of Chatham and 18J miles west of th?

latter place it empties into lal.e St. Ciair. At its mouth, a channel, 8,100 feet in

length, has lo.be maintained in order io reach deep water in the lake.

Removal of Obstructions.

Operations commenced May 10 and were completed December 10. The work in

connection with this covered an area from Chatham to the mouth of the river, and

consisted principally in the removal of 7,190 feet oak, 3,098 feet of elm, 621 feet

maple, 892 feet sycamore, 183 feet beech and 36 feet of hickory. All saleable logs

were sold and the amount realized, $156.15, was placed to the credit of this work.

Protection Work.

This work consisted in the continuation of the construction of close-faced 8 by

8 sheet piling at a bad bend in the river fronting the public general hospital, the

piling being 18 feet in length with 2 front walings 6 by 8 in size, and the whole of

the sheeting being secured in position by means of 1-incli tie-rods placed at 10-foot

centres extending from pile wall to white oak anchor piles, 12 feet long, driven in

rear of sheeting. The work constructed covered a length of 150 feet. An agreement

was made for the driving of this sheet piling with James E. Doyle of Chatham, at

the rate of $15 per day. Work was commenced November 8 and was completed

November 30.
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Ice Breaking.

An agreement was made with Capt. J. S. ilcQueen, of Amherstburg, to lay up
kis tug LeRoy Brook at the mouth of the Thames river for the sum of $500, and to
perform required work of ice breaking at the following price: $7 per hour to be paid
him for each hour that he is engaged in breaking ice, that he is to be allowed 12
hours' work, at $7 per hour, for dismantling his machinery at the mouth of the river

after arriving there, and twelve hours' work, at $7 per hour, for getting his boat into'

condition when called upon to start the ice breaking.

Operations commenced January 11 and continued until January 14, resumed
again on February 6, again resumed on March 26, and was completed and all ice

removed from the river on March 31.

Total expenditure for the fiscal year for all the above works is $6,211.73.

ROCHES POINT.

Roches Point, in the county of York, is situated on Cook's bay, an arm of lake

Simcoe. It is a popular summer resort, the nearest railway station being about 4 miles
distant.

Work of repair, by day labour, was commenced 3rd July and was completed 24th
August, and consisted in levelling up the wharf, renewing the talus and decking and
making such general repairs to the structure as were required.

Total expenditure for fiscal year 1915-16 is $882.03.

RONDEAU.

Eondeau is an important harbour of refuge and a jwrt of entry, situated on
Pointe Aux Pines, about 19 miles south of the City of Chatham and 45 miles west of

Port Stanley.

Work of repair, by day labour, was commenced April 16 and completed .October

26, and consisted in the following:

—

West Pier.—Eepairs and renewal to decking and stringers at different portions of

same with 3-inei decking, 16 feet long, total area about 250 by 16 feet; placing of new
"waling, 6 by 8 in size, on west side of west pier, for full length of sheet piling

;
plac-

ing of 2 new mooring-posts
;
pljacing of 100 lineal feet of 4 by 8 guard rail, and owing

to loss of filling out of crib it was necessary to plank a section of inside of crib, for a
length of 35 feet, and to fiU the same with stone.

East Pier.—^Repairing decking in different portions of pier, covering a total area

of 125 by 16 feet, and replacing of 3 sheet piles at outer end of pier.

General.—Moving office formerly occupied .by resident engineer, which was about
'200 yprds west of pier, up to and adjacent to the present office pn west pier, to be used
as a tool-house. < i

Expenditure during fiscal year was $2,499.29.

Dredging. .

Under authority, work was performed in dredging the harbour of Rondeau
between May 28 and June 19. The object of tiie work was to remove the shoal area

to facilitate the operations of the car ferry in the turning b(asin section, car-ferry slip

section and the lake Erie ferry-slip section.

Government dredge Sir Eichard, No. 120, was engaged in doing this work and the

work covered by this dredge was :

—

1. Lake Erie ferry-slip section, length 300 feet, average width 30, and mean aver-

age depth before dredging 14. 6 feet, dredged to 18 feet below L.W.L.
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2. Car-ferry-slip section, length 275 feet, width 120, and average depth before

dredging 12-9 feet, dredged to 18 feet below L.W.L.

3. Turning basin section, lengti 275 feet, width 60, and average depth before

dredging 16-8 feet, dredged to 18 feet below L.W.L.

The material removed was nearly all sand, with a small portion of clay. The
amoimt of material removed was 10,926 cubic yards, place, or 12,230 cubic yards, scow

measure, giving an expansion factor of 11-9 per cent. This work will probably last

about 3 years before it has to be redredged, as a considerable amount of drift sand is

moved by storms in this looality.

ST. JOHN CREEK.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

St. John creek, in the county of Ontario, flows through the township of Kama,
rising in St. John's lake and emptying into the Black river. On this creek a stoplog

dam, for the regulation of the water level, was constructed. Work of improvement

was carried on from 10th to 23rd May, and consisted in providing and placing the

winches in position.

Total expenditure for the fiscal year 1915-16 is $277.95.

SAKD POIN'T.

Sand Point, a station on the main line of the Canadian Pacitic railway, is situated

on Chats lake, in the county of Kenfrew.

The public wharf, built in 1908, underwent extensive repairs and improvementR

in 1914. On account of the great number of pedestrians using this wharf, it was

considered necessary to lay a narrow concrete walk along its entire length, and

smooth off the broken stone backfill after it had thoroughly settled and packed.

During the period, September 23 to October 14, 283 lineal feet of 6-inch concrete

walk, 2 and 3 feet wide, was laid, and 5,820 square feet of backfill on approach and

landing-head was levelled and smoothed off.

Expenditure during the fiscal year, $156.68.

Under authority, twenty days' dredging was authorized at Sarnia, work to be

done by government dredge Ontario, No. llJf. The object of the work was the dredging

of a channel from deep water of Sarnia bay up to off the Cleveland, Sarnia Saw Mill

Company's dock. The dredge was emi^loyed from May 27 to July 8.
,

The work carried on covered a length of 1,100 feet, average width 45 feet, and

mean average depth before dredging 6-8 feet; area dredged to 12 feet below L.W.L.

The amount of material removed, place measurement, was 13,625 cubic yards,

or scow measurement, 14,534 yards; an expansion factor of 6-1 per cent. The material

removed was sand, silt and a certain amount of debris.

In regard to the length of time that this dredging would probably last, I bog to

say that the fact that the Cleveland, Sarnia Saw Mill Company utilize this area

for the purpose of dumping their carloads of logs, in consequence the churning of the

water by this means has a great tendency to break down the banks adjacent thereto

and to cause a great amount of filling in of the dredged area. The question as to

how long the dredging will last in this locality is a problematical one.

SAUOEEN RO'EK.

Saugeen river, in the county of Bruce, flows into lake Hu(on at Southampton,

about 32 miles north of Walkerton and 31 miles south from Kincardine. It is an

important fishing station.
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Work of repair, by day labour, was commenced on 26th and completed on 29tli

July, and consisted in placing stone filling and gravel top dressing in the wharf.

TotaJ expenditure for fiscal year 1915-16, is $21.25.

iSAULT STE. MARIE.

Sault Ste. Marie, including the contiguous town of Steelton, has a population

of some 20,000, and is situated on the St. Mary's river, opposite the St. Mary's falls,

and is one of the oldest communities in Canada, having been founded by Fr. Jogues,

in the year 1642. The Lake Superior Corporation's steel plant is the most import-

ant industry, representing an investment of upwards of $50,000,000.

Work or repair was commenced on the wharf 17th May and was completed 30th

September, 1915. The work consisted in entirely renewing the concrete face-wall of

the wharf, in places where it was badly damaged and in a dangerous condition. This
wall is 6 feet high by 4 feet thick, and a total length of 250 feet was blasted out and
renewed with fresh concrete, in workmanlike and permanent manner. Repairs were

made where necessary to the concrete floor of the warehouse, and concrete decking

outside the warehouse where necessary, having an area of 2,022 square feet.

The expenditure for the fiscal year is $4,997.20.

JJredging.

An extensive scheme of improvements to the harbour was commenced in the year
1913 and completed in 1915. Two contracts were entered into with The Soo Dredg-
ing and Construction Company, Limited, of Sault Ste. Marie, Ont., for the perform-

ance of dredging as follows:

—

First.—The dredging of a portion of the ship channel of the St. Mary's river

approaching the Canadian lock, under contract No. 8960, dated July 31, 1912, which
provides for the removal of rock, at the unit price of $3.47, and 92 cents per cubic

yard for all other materials, on a place measurement basis of payment, respectively.

Second.—Under an extension of contract No. 8960, the excavation of a slip

between the Algoma Central Railway Company's coal wharf and the New Ontario
Dock and Coal Company's wharf, at the unit prices of ,$3.47 per cubic yard, for rock,

and 50 cents per cubic yard for all other materials, on a place measurement basis of

payment, respectively.

Third.—Under contract No. 9065, dated October 14, 1912, the excavation of a

slip on the easterly side of the New Ontario Dock and Coal' Company's- wharf, and
the excavation of a slip on the easterly side of the International Transit Company's
ferry wharf, at the unit prices of $3.47 per cubic yard for rock, and 92 cents per cubic
yard for all other materials, on a ijlace measurement basis of payment, respectively.

In the year 1915, several smaller items of dredging were undertaken and com-
pleted as follows : Improving the approach to the Lake Superior Paper Company's
wharf by the Algoma Dredging Company, Limited, of Sault Ste. Marie; cleaning the
area between the Algoma Central Railway Company's coal wharf and the ship channel
of boulders, b.y the Soo Dredging and Construction Company, Limited, of Sault
Ste. Marie; cleaning an area lying in front of the government wharf and ferrj-

wharf of loose rock, to the standard grade level, by the Soo Dredg'ing and Construction
Company, Limited, of Sault Ste. Marie; dredging an approach and turning basin
to the Imperial Oil Company's wharf by the government dredge Industry, No. 109;
dredging an approach to the wharf of I. J. Downey & Son, by the government dredge
Industry, No. 109; dredging to widen the slip at the International Transit Company's
ferry wharf, by the government dredge Industry, No. 109; widening and extending
the approach to the Lake Superior Paper Company's wharf by the government dredge
Industry, No. 109.
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Main Ship Channel.

The particular object of the contract to improve the main ship channel was to

remove that part of the rock shoal which extended into the river beyond a line joining

the outer end of the government ferry and New Ontario Dock and Coal Company's
wharves, thus greatly widening the channel approaching the Canadian lock, and inci-

dentally providing improved approaches to these wharves. Its length is about 4,000

feet, extending from the New Ontario dock to east of the goverhment wharf, but the

width is variable on account of the irregular contour of the shoal, and would average

about 200 feet. The grade depth is 21-5 feet below the datum level of 5S2-37 feet

above mean sea-level, which is the standard improvement plane adopted for improv-

ments in the river at Sault Ste. Marie. The dredging performed in 1915, consisted

principally of cleaning up, by the aid of a derrick scow and diver, the more or less

scattered pieces of blasted rock not previously removed by the dredges. Work was
commenced on May 1, and was completed on 30th September, during which period

1,012 cubic yards, place measurement, of rock and 324 cubic yards of boulders were

removed, for which a final estimate was returned in favoiir of the contractors,, amount-

ing to $4,635.92. The contract is now completed, and has been carefully swept and

proved to grade, under the personal direction of the assistant engineer in charge.

The expenditure for the fiscal year 1915-16 was $8,305.96.

The total area covered by this work is a little over 12 acres, and the total quanti-

ties of materials excavated are: 84,238 cubic yards, place measurement, of rock, 324

cubic yards, place measurement of boulders, and 16,507 cubic yards, place measurement,

of stones, small boulders and mud, total, 101,069, for which the contractors have been

paid a total of $308,616.58.

Algoma Central Railway Slip.

The object of this work was to excavate a slip, or mooring-berth, between the coal

wharf built by the Algoma Central Kailway Company and the wharf of the ,New
Ontario Dock and Coal Company, to enable large vessels to unload at either of these

wharves. The area covered was 140 feet wide by 800 feet long, and tiie grade depth is

21i feet below the standard improvement plane at Sault Ste. Marie. Dredging was

commenced for the season of 1915 on April 16, and was completed on April 24, during

which period 68 cubic yards of rock and 123 cubic yards of mud and other materials

were removed, for which a final estimate was returned in favour of the contractors,

amounting to $297.46. The whole area covered by this authority was carefull,y proved,

by " sweeping," to be cleaned to the grade level. The total quantities of materials

returned on estimates for this work arc 5,451 cubic yards of rock and 22,227 cubic

yards of stones, boulders and mud, representing a total expenditure of $30,028.47.

New Ontario Dock Slip and Ferry Dock Slip.

A contract was entered into with the Soo Dredging and Construction Company,
Limited, on October 14, 1912, for the excavation of a slip, 520 feet long by 75 feet

wide, to a depth of 21* feet below low water level, to enable coal barges and other

large vessels to moor alongside the east side of the New Ontario Dock and Coal

Company's wharf. This company handles, over this wharf, some 35,000 tons of coal

per annum. To excavate a slip, 300 feet long by 60 feet wide, to a grade depth of

21J feet below low-water level, along the east side of the International Transit

Company's ferry-wharf. The unit contract prices were $3,47 per cubic yard for rock,

and 92 cents per cubic yard for all other materials, place measurement, respectively.

The final estimate for this contract including both slips was passed in .January,

1916, in which 655 cubic yards of rock, and 308 cubic yards of other materials, were
returned for payment, amounting to $2,556,21, of which 315 cubic yards of rock,

lepresenting $1,093.05, should be charged against the Now Ontario dock felip. The
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total quantities included in the final estimate, taken from the New Ontario dock slip

are 5,430 cubic yards of rock, and 11,2S9 cubic yards___ of boulders, clay, stones and

mud, place measurement, respectively, representing an amount paid to the contractors

of $29,227.98.

Ferry Dock Slip.

Dredging was commenced on April 14, 1915, and was completed on April 20,

during which period 340 cubic yards of rock, and 353 cubic yards of small boulders,

clay, etc., were removed.

The total quantities dredged from this slip are: 5,170 cubic yards of rock, and
4,129 cubic yards of small boulders, clay and stones, etc., representing, at the unit

contract prices, an amount paid to the contractors of $21,738.58.

The total quantities of materials removed from these two slips from the com-
mencement to the completion of the contract are: 10,600 cubic yards of rock, and
15,418 cubic yards of small boulders, stones, clay, etc., representing a total amount
paid to the contractors of $50,966.56.

Lake Superior Paper Company's Slip.

The object of this work was to widen the channel approaching the Lake Superior

Paper Company's wharf to a minimum width of 180 feet, to enable vessels of 16 to 17-

feet draught to take on cargoes of manufactured pulp and paper. The area dredged is

about 6IJ0 feet long, and varies from 20 to 100 feet wide, and was deepened to 17J
feet below the standard improvement plane at Sault Ste. Marie. This Company has

a large plant employing some 1,500 men and manufactures about 500 tons of newspaper
per day, which, during the navigation season, is mostly shipped by water.

Instructions were given in June, 1915, to commence dredging in the approach and
alongside the Lake Superior Paper Company's wharf, in accordance with the agreement
of the Algoma Dredging Company, Ltd., to remove a quantity not to exceed 10,000

cubic yards, place measurement, of class " B " material, consisting of small boidders,

clay, etc., at the unit prices of 48J cents per cubic yard, place measureijient, and $3.50

per cubic yard, place measurement, for rock. Work was accordingly commenced on 28th

June and completed on 27th August, during which period 8,636 cubic yards of small

boulders, clay and mud, and 79 cubic yards of boulders, containing over 2 cubic yards

each and, therefore, classified as rock, were removed, for which estimates were returned

in favour of the Algoma Dredging Company, Limited, amounting to $4,464.96.

The total expenditure for the fiscal year 1915-16 was $4,674.96.

Frvni A. C. R. Dock.

Several complaints having been made by the Canada Steamship Lines regarding

boulders which two or three of their vessels had struck, lying in front of the Algoma
Central Railway Company's coal wharf, and an examination having proved the pres-

ence of a considerable number of these boulders having only about 17 feet of water

over them, lying in such a position as to be a menace to navigation, the department

authorized the acceptance of the Soo Dredging and Construction Company's offer to

remove them by the employment of a derrick-scow and diving outfit, at the unit price

of 75 cents per cubic yard, scow measurement.

Instructions were issued 24th July, 1915, to remove not more than 2,000 cubic

yards, and work was commenced on 11th August and completed on 16th August, dur-

ing which period 1,812 cubic yards of small boulders and mud were removed, repre-

senting the sum paid to the contractors of $1,359. The area covered was about 500

feet in length by an average width of about 80 feet, and it was proved, by " sweep-

ing," to be cleaned free of obstructions to the grade depth of 21i feet below the

standard improvement plane.
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Obstructions on River Bed in bront of Government Wharf,

Incidentally to the sweeping and cleaning of the area of the dredging being per-

formed by The Soo Dredging and Construction Co., Ltd., under contract No. 8960,

it was found that many boulders and pieces of rock littered the bed of the river out-

side this area and extending to the International boundary, and in many spots rocks

having less than 19 feet of water over them, were located. The area which was
"swept," to determine the extent of these shoal spots, is about 4,000 feet long by an

average width of about 800 feet, lying between East street, produced, and Simpson

street, produced, and in large part within the ordinary courses of navigation by deep-

draught vessels.

It was decided to undertake the cleaning up of this area to the standard grade

level, and instructions were issued 8th November, 1915, to hire the derrick-scow and

sweeping plant, including diver and crew, of The Soo Dredging and Construction

Co., at the rate of $75 per day, for a period not to exceed 30 days, in order to obtain

as mucli improvement as possible before the close of the season.

Work was commenced on November 10, 1915, and was suspended for the season,

owing to stormy weather, on 18th November, 1915, during which period 117 cubic

yards, scow measurement, of boulders and large pieces of blasted rock were removed

from the area represented by the west side of Gouin street, produced, and the line of

the Sault Ste. Marie Coal and Wood Company's wharf, produced, which passes

the west end of the government wharf, and is approximately 550 feet long by an
average of about 680 feet in width. The Soo Dredging and Construction Company,
Limited, were paid for 7-85 days' hire of the plant, or $588.75.

The Imperial Oil Company's Wharf.

Application having been made by the Imperial Oil Company for dredging to be
performed in order that their large oil-carrying boats might land and turn at their

wharf, which is a part of their large distributing plant for this district, the depart-

ment decided to do the work with the departmental dredge Industry, No. 109. Work
was commenced by the Industry on May 10, and suspended on June 29, during which
time 28,770 cubic yards, scow measurement, estimated at 28,000 cubic yards, place

measurement, were removed and scowed away to the dumping-ground near Topsail

island, li miles distant from the work. The area dredged consisted of a slip along-

side the wharf, 80 feet wide by 180 feet long, and a turning basin, 480 feet wide by
about 500 feet long, and the grade depth was 21J feet below the standard improve-

ment plane. The inner end of the slip was not completed, however, to grade, as rock

was encountered.

In the operation of proving the completeness of the work by " sweeping " it was
found that a number of boulders remained, projecting above grade, and as it wo\ild

be difficult and expensive for the Industry to remove them, it was considered much
more economical to have this done by the special plant equipped for this purpose

owned by The Soo Dredging and Construction Co., Ltd., and therefore, instructions

were issued 2nd July, 1916, to hire this plant including diver and all working
expenses, at the price of $75 per day, for a period not to exceed 15 days. It was
further stipulated that this authorization also covered the removal of boulders at

Downeys slip. Work was commeufcd on 24th September and completed on 12th

October, during which period 355 cubic yards, scow measurement, of stones and boul-

ders were removed, and an account was returned in favour of The Soo Dredging

and Construction Company. Limited, for $900, representing 12 days' hire.

/-. /. Downey and Son's Wharf.

Messrs. L. J. Downey and Son, dealers in coal, cement and builders' supplies,

having made representations to the department that they were debarred by the posi-
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tion of the harbour heacUine from extending and completing their wharf to the edgo
of the deep water channel, notwithstanding that this work had been much desired by
them, and in fact they had practically concluded a contract for its construction at

tlie time the restrictions imposed by the establishment of the harbour headline were
brought to their attention. They, therefore, petitioned the department to perform
a small amount of dredging to enable coal barges and package freight boats to approach
and moor to their present wharf.

The department therefore authorized improvements to be made by the goveru-

mciit dredge Industry, No. 109, for their relief, and instructions were given 5th June.

1915, for the removal of 1,200 cubic yards of sand, stones and boulders, and dredging

an aijproach'to and slip alongside of Messrs. Downey and Son's wharf, the approach

to have a width on the channel line of 100 feet, gradually decreasing over a leng'th

of 80 feet, to make a bell-shaped mouth to the slip, which latter was to ]je 40 feet

wide by 100 long, and the grade depth was to be 15 feet below zero, or to rock in case

the J'ock projected above the grade depth. Work was commenced on June 30, and
e.-impletod on July 2, 1915, during which time 1,503 cubic yards, scow measurement,
or 70!) cubic yards, place measurement, of sand and boulders, were removed, including

some 44 cubic yards shoved outside the lines of the work, but not scowed away.

Iji order to clean the bottom of the scattered stones and boulders which the dredge

missed picking up, and to save the high expense involved in requiring the Industry
to remove them, the sweeping plant and derrick-scow of The Soo Dredging and Con-
struction Company, Limited, was hired to do the work. The derrick-scow com-
menced work on the 2nd and completed it on the 5th August, 1915, during which
time 07 cubic yards of boulders, sand, etc., were removed, for which an account was
paid to the company amounting to $217, representing 31 hours' time at $7 per hour.

Widening Ferry Wharf Slip.

The International Transit Company having petitioned for further dredging, to

widen the slip alongside their ferry wharf, to enable the ferryboat to be handled- with
a greater degree of safety, authority was given to have the improvements performed
by the departmental dredge Industry, No. 109. Work was commenced on July 3,

1915, and completed on 5th, during which time 1,270 cubic yards, scow measurement,
of small boulders, clay and mud, and some ledge rock, were removed and scowed away
about two miles to the dumping-ground, and 238 cubic yards were shoved outside
of the lines of the work but not removed. The area covered extends from the edge
of the ship channel shorewards, a distance of 100 feet and is 40 feet wide, and the

depth made averages about 20 feet. The intention was to make a minimum depth
of 10 feet, or to dredge as nearly as possible, consistent with the character of the bed
rock, to a standard grade level of 21J feet below the improvement plane. It was
known that the rock bottom, which is a red sandstone, was considerably above this

grade level, and it is interesting to note that the Industry removed considerable of it

without undue effort.

Lahe Superior Paper Company's Slip.

The Lake Superior Paper Company, in their letter of July 2, 1915, while express-
ing appreciation of the dredging already performed in their slip by the department,
asked that their original proposal be extended, to cover an additional area, as it was
found their vessels had much difficulty in leaving their wharf, owing to the insuffi-

ciency of tui'uiug basin and the narrowness of the approaching channel. The
department having decided to make the improvements asked for, instructions were
given to have it performed by the departmental dredge Industry, No. 109, which
would soon be available. It was commenced on September 9, and completed on 25th,
1915, to a grade depth of 171 feet below the standard improvement plane, and 11,()32
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cubic yards, scow measurement, were removed and scowed to the dumping-grounds,

about 2-7 miles away.

It is almost invariably found tbat it is practically impossible for a dipper dredge

to perform its work in sucb a manner as to leave a clean and completed bottom,,

unless excessive depths are made, which, of course, is not an economical practice, in

view of the fact that the stones, boulders or broken rock, which are usually the

materials remaining above grade in the areas covered previously by the dredge, can

be picked up and removed with relative small expense. It is the ciistom, therefore,

to follow this latter method, and such a plant consists of a derrick-scow provided

with a diver and diving apparatus, and under which is hung by chains or wire ropes-

a heavy bar of iron at the proper grade level. This outfit is usually operated by

moving it slowly back and forth across the dredged area, and when a " strike " occurs,

the diver goes down and directs the removal of the obstruction by a clam shell bucket

if the material is a heap or ridge of small material, or by chains if it be a large

boulder. The department not having such an outfit in connection with the dredge

Industry, instructions were issued 6th October, 1915, to hire the one belonging to the

Soo Dredging and Construction Company, at $75 per day, to clean up this dredging.

The derrick-scow commenced work on October 15, and completed it on October 20,

1915, during which time 110 cubic yards of stones and boulders were removed, and

for which an account was paid to the company, amounting to $300, representing four

days' hire

SHAKTT BAY.

Shanty Bay, in the county of Simcoe, is situated on Kempenfeldt bay, an ana of

lake Simcoe, 7 miles east of Barrie. Population, 100. It is a farmiu-j centre and a

summer resort.

Authority was received to place a life chain on the new wharf at this place; the

work was completed in November, and consisted iu placing 180 feet of J-inch coil

chain along the face of the wharf, and providing lamp posts.

Total eojpenditure for fiscal year 1915-16 is $32.93.

Dredging.

Authority was given to have Messrs. Conroy Bros, remove the necessary

material to permit of lake steamers landing at the dock; the estimated quantity being

1,650 cubic yards, in situ, and the price 50 cents per cubic yard. Work was com-

menced on 7th and was completed on 25th May, when an area was dredged on the east

side of the wharf, 50 feet by 75 feet, all to a depth, of 8 feet 6 inches/ below zero. In

doing this work somel,645-7 cubic yards of gravel and boulders were removed.

Total expenditure for fiscal year 1915-10 was $804.25.

SILVER CENTRE.

Silver Centre is a landing on the west shore of lake Timiskaming, Nipissing dis-

trict, 22 miles south of Haileybury, and is the shipping point for the mining section

of South Lorrain.

In 190S, construction was commenced on the public wharf, to accommodate traffic

at this point. In 1913 the wharf was raise^d 3 feet, and a larger freight shed built at

the same time. The wharf is accessible from Government road on the north and

another road to the south.

During the past year, it was necessary to replace the ice-boom between the small

pilework ice-breakers and wharf, a portion of which had been carried away by the

spring ice-shove. Ninety lineal feet of 2-ply ice-boom, with bolted rods, cross-pieces,

connecting chains and ring bolts, was built in two sections, and securely placed iu

position to protect the wharf.

Expenditure during the fiscal year, $200.
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STURGEON FALLS.

Sturgeon Falls, a town in Nipissing district, is on tlie main line of tlia Canadian
Pacific raihvay, 24 miJrs w&st of North Bay. It is situated on the Sturgeon river,

four miles above its mouth. ,

A public wharf was built in 1903-4, the town providing the site and right-of-way

(Wharf lane). The wharf was repaired in 1907, raised 2 feet and improved in 1911-

13 and extended in 1915-16.

Work on the extension was completed June 14 to July 24, and consisted of:

Levelling up of cribwork landing face, placing of uiggerheads, fenders and capping;

building of freight shed, 16 by 24 feet, with matched lumber walls and corrugated

iron roof, on short cedar piles. In addition, a roadway, 12 feet wide by 325 feet long,

leading to King street, was graded in the side hill, the material excavated, some
1,400 cubic yards, being deposited behind the cribwork landing face, and graded to

the elevation of the deck, 646 0. The roadway was provided with 6-inch to 12-inch

wearing surface of broken brick, etc.

Exi>enditure during the fiscal year, $1,108.39.

Dr&dging.

The departmental dredge No. 112 worked at the entrance of the dredged channel
at the mouth of the Sturgeon river, 4 miles below the town, October 27 and 28, mak-
ing a berth for the gas buoy. The work performed consisted of a single cut 90 feet

long to grade 622. Quantities removed, 900 yards, scow measure, sand and clay.

From November 1 to 5, the plant worked in the bay near the government wharf,

removing a bar which had formed in the boat channel. A single cut was made 35 by
185 feet, dredged to grade 628 0. Quantities 2,160 yards, scow measure, of silt.

SYDENHAM RIVER.

The Sydenham river runs through the townships of Brooke, Euphemia, Dawn,
gore of Camden and gore of Chatham, and joins the Chenal Ecarte about 2J miles
west of the town of Wallaceburg. From Wallaceburg down it is a large deep, navi-

gable stream; above the town it divides into two branches, the north branch runs to

Wilkesport, 14 miles, and the east branch to beyond Dresden, 15 miles away.
Authority was given for removal of obstructions in the east branch of the river,

by day labour. Work was commenced May 10, was completed June 30, and consisted in

the removal of logs, snags, etc., between Dresden and Tupperville, and in the perform-

ance of this work, 416 pieces of debris were removed.

Expenditure during the fiscal year 1915-16 was $300.

THESSALON.

Thessalon is a town of some 1,400 in population, situated on the north shore of

the north channel of lake Huron, and on the Soo line branch of the Canadian Pacific

railway, about 50 miles east of Sault Ste. Marie.

Work of completing the concrete superstructure of the wharf was commenced
3rd May and was completed 31st July, 1915, and consisted in removing the old

decayed superstructure of timber and replacing it with concrete and stone filling.

During 1914, the inner portion of the wharf, 22 feet by 175 feet long, was repaired

in this way, and this season, the remaining outer portion, 150 feet by 30 feet, was
completed.

The expenditure for the fiscal year is $5,082.52.
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THORNBURY.

Thornbury, iu the county of Grey, is situated at the mouth of the Beaver river,

which empties into the Georgian bay. Population,. 1,200.

Work of repair, by day labour, was commenced 9th and completed on 31st July,

and consisted in renewing, where required, the decking on the wharf at the chemical

works.

Total expenditure for fiscal year 1915-16 is $301.68.

TOnOXTO.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

Toronto, county of York, is a city of some 445,000 inhabitants, situated on the

north shore of lake Ontario.

During June, 1915, a board was appointedto investigate condition of the work as

performed by the Canadian Stewart Co., Ltd., and to make a further report upon how
this work might be placed in proper condition. The first report was made by this

board during July, and as a result a change was made in the staff supervising the

work, and the second report of the board was made during October, in which it was
recommended that the contractors be required to place the work in accordance with

certain plans submitted by the board. As a result of the board's reports and recom-

mendations, the Canadian Stewart Co., Ltd., agreed to place their work in such

condition that it is in accordance with the rectification plans, as submitted by the

board, without any extra payment by the department. The preparations were made
during the winter, by the contractors, for prosecuting the rectification work during

the next season.

Eepairs.

The harbour is formed by a low-lying piece of land, now an island but formerly

a peninsula. There are three entrances to the harbour through the island, namely,

the eastern, the western and the old western, all of which are protected by piers.

The sum of $4,500 was authorized to be expended, by day labour, for the protec-

tion of the island breakwater; work was commenced 2Sth April and was completed

5th August, and consisted in placing large stone where required.

The sum of $250 was authorized for the renewal of the life-chain on the piers of

the new western channel. This work was duly performed in August last. Eepairs

and improvements to the derrick-scow belonging to our plant were duly ijcrfornicd, and

consisted in renewing the scow, where required, and placing and securing the

machinery.

Total expenditure for the fiscal year 1915-16 is $5,551.98.

Dredfjing.

Authority was given to remove 122,350 cubic yards from the channel and approach

from the lake thereto, at the eastern gap or channel, a contract for same haviug been
awarded the K. Wcddell Company at a rate of 11 cents per cubic yard. Work was
commenced on 15th July, but on account of weather conditions operations were dis-

continued on 10th November. The approach from the lake was dredged for 1,000

feet in length by 300 in width, to a depth of 24 feet below low water, and between the

piers the channel was cleaned out to a depth of 18 feet below low water, for a lengtli of

1.480 feet by 200 feet width.

TRENT BRIDGE.

Trent Bridge, in the county of Northumberland, is situated on the Trent Valley

canal system about 2 miles from Havelock on the Canadian Pacific railway. Popula-

tion, 1,000.
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Work on the completion of the wharf, by day labour, was resumed 28th July and
was completed 11th September, and consisted in launching the crib, landing same in
position and placing the concrete block and mass concrete of the superstructure. The
wharf is 100 feet long by 20 feet wide.

Total expenditure for fiscal year 1915-16 is $2,195.75.

TRENTON.

Trenton, in the County of Ilasting-s, is situated on the Bay of Quinte, at the mouth
of the Trent river, 100 miles east of Toronto. It is the southern terminus of the Trent
canal and a station on the Grand Trunin, Canadian Pacific and Canadian Northern
railways, and is a port of call for vessels plying on Lake Ontario. Trenton has many
industries. Population, 5,000.

Instructions were issued to sweep the entrance channel to Trenton harbour, which
had been completed last year, and a sum of $700 was authorized for this purpose.

Tiiis work was duly performed in June, and it revealed the fact that the work had
been satisfactorily completed.

Authority was given for the removal of some 45 cubic yards of rock at the wharf
of the Cold Storage Company. Negotiations" were entered into with the R. Weddell
Company to perform this work, but up to date no decision has been reached. The
^vork being so close to the structure, it is highly dangerous and liable, diiring blasting

operations, to detrimentally affect the wharf.

Total expenditure for fiscal year 1915-16, $700.

WELLINGTON.

Wellington, in the County of Prince Edward, is situated on West lake, an arm
of Lake Ontario, and is on the Canadian Northern railway, about 9 miles west of

Picton and 17 miles south of Trenton. It is a popular summer resort and is located
in a fine agricultural section. Population, 700.

Work on the wharf, commenced last year, was resumed in April, completed on
11th September, and consisted in the construction of a line of close sheet-piling, 400
feet long on the east side; a line of some 200 feet long on the southwest side of the

turning basin, and a breakwater running in a southerly direction, 1,000 feet long,

composed of pile cribwork; a wharf of cribs and spaces with a pile approach, 250
feet long, and the dredging of a channel to a depth of 12 feet.

Authority was received to construct tlie wharf of cribwork, 250 feet long, instead
of it being piling, as originally designed, same to be done at unit rates and amounting
to, approximately, $7,058.50, also to cut off ends of 170 bolts at cost plus 10 per cent,

or approximately $40. This was duly performed.

Total expenditure for fiscal year 1915-16 is $44,565.57.

WENDOVER.

Wendover is a post-settlement in Prescott coimty, located at the mouth of tht
South Nation river, 31i miles below Ottawa. It is a station on the Canadian Northern
railway, 24 miles from Hawkesbury.

In 1901, the department commenced construction of a public wharf for the traffic

of Wendover and siurounding country. In July, 1 to 17, a new 3-inch flooring was
placed on low-level landing, 36 by 30 feet ; the slip of same landing was lowered from
elevation, plus 7-5 to elevation, plus 4 above ordinary low water, to facilitate handling
of heavy freight, and minor repairs were made to waling and approach flooring system.

Expenditure during the fiscal year, $192.39.

19—20
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WINDSOR.

The city of Windsor is situated on the Detroit river, iu the County of Essex

and is a terminus, in Canada, of the Grand Trunk, Canadian Pacific, Michigan
Central and Pere Marquette railways. It is a thriving and prosperous city, with a

population of about 25,000.

Work of improvement on the landing dock was commenced May 12, was completed
February 3, 1916, and consisted of the following: The dismantling of two clusters of

fender piles in front of the down-stream end of warehouse, the pulling of these piles

and redriving them in the new location, replacing and rebolting up these clusters as

formerly constructed; the construction of four sets of steps in rear of dock to

facilitate the traffic to and from the dock; all clusters of fender piles, of which
there were 18, were faced with white oak sheeting, 4 inches thid£, to protect dockage

of boats; four rows of longitudinal sheeting, consisting of 3 by 10 hemlock, was
placed along the foundation piles of the boathouse; three slipways were cut in the

concrete dock to facilitate the loading and unloading of freight ; a timber runway
was built to facilitate the handling of traction engines and automobiles in loading and
unloading; small repairs were made to boathouse; all fender piles in front of boat-

house and sheeting on same were given two coats of paint, and a set of steps were

built leading from the rear of boathouse to Sandwich street.

Expenditure during the fiscal year 1915-16 was $1,427.62.

MANITOBA.

.\NDERSOXS.

To enable settlers at the south of Big island to transport their farm produce,

agricultural machinery, etc., by water to and from the newly established terminus of

the Canadian Pacific railway at Icelandic river, a channel was dredged by P. W. D.

Ko. 20Jtj from deep water in Icelandic bay to an old wharf on Big island, at Andersons,

Selkirk county.

The channel, as completed, has a length of 769 feet, a width on bottom of 40,

and carries a depth of 6 feet below low water. It was necessary to cast over the

material, which will in time require further dredging owing to filling in.

Operations were carried on between July 26 and August 2, 1915. The quantity

removed being 5,275 cubic yards, place measurement, of clay. Only one cut was
necessary and the work was 'done at a cost of 11-6 cents per cubic yard.

Total expenditure, $611.38.

CRESCENT ISL.\ND.

The work at Crescent island, Selkirk county, was for the purpose of improving

the navigable channel in the Red river, and increasing the sectional area of the river

for the purpose of lessening the liability of the spring run of ice, jamming and
flooding Selkirk. Further dredging is proposed for the ensuing fiscal year.

P. W. D. Xo. 202, worked October 26 to 30, 1915, removing 2..">9(; cubic yards, at

a cost of $473.16, averaging 18-2 cents per cubic yard. P. W. D. Xo. 205, worked
July 9 to 24, and October 11 to 29, removing 24,832 cubic yards, at a cost of

$2,982.99, averaging 12 cents per cubic yard.

The total cost of work done was $3,456.15, and quantity 27,428 cubic yards,

averaging 12.6 cents per cubic yard. The dimensions of work by dredge Xo. 201

was 2,136 by 40 feet, and by dredge Xo. 202, 352 by 40 feet. The depth of water
provided at low wat^r was 9 feet.
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GIMLI.

Gimli, Selkirk county, is on tlip west side of Lake Winnipeg, and is reached by

steamers from Selkirk and Winnipeg. The Canadian Pacific railway station is about

three-quarters of a mile back from the wharf.

P. W. D. No. 201). worked between August 2 and August 26, 1015, and cleaned out.

to a deijtli of 11 feet below low water, the refuge basin, 120 feet wide and 250 to 300

feet long, inside the outer leg of the government pier. The berths along the pier on

the two legs next the shore were also cleaned out to the same grade, and provided

additional berthing room, 40 feet wide, on a length of 290 feet. In doing this work,

7,500 cubic yards, scow measurement, of clay and rock were removed, at a cost of 23

cents per cubic yard.

Total expenditure, $1,725.42. It is expected that in time the area dredged will

fill in, by sand washed in under the influence of southerly winds, against which there

is no iwotecting pier.

HNAUSA.

For the purpose of providing deeper water for boats calling at Hnausa, Selkirk

county, P.W.D. No. 203 worked from June 28 to July 10, 1015, deepening the approa<'h

and berth on the south side of the government pier.

One cut was all that was necessary; length 260 feet and width 40, and the depth

of water provided at low water was 9 feet. In order to provide a place of safety for

the dredge, an area, 110 by 40 feet, was dredged inside the " L," on the north side of

the wharf. The total quantity removed was 2,179 cubic yards, scow measurement,
.vhich was dumped at a distance of one mile.

The cost was 37-3 cents per cubic yard, total expenditure, $813.35.

HOWARDVILLE.

Howardville is in section 24, township 24, range 4, east of principal meridian,
Selkirk county.

It was necessary to provide an approach and harbour to enable the settlement to

receive supplies and ship farm products, lumber, etc.

P. W. I). No. 203, worked from August 16 to Septeriiber 8, 1915, making one cut,

2,120 feet long and 40 feet wide. The total quantity removed was 10,826 cubic yards,

scow measurement, consisting of hard clay. The material was scowed an average

distance of IJ miles. Depth of water provided at low water was 5 feet. The cut will

in time collect sediment. The average cost per cubic yard was 21-3 cents, and the

total expenditure was $2,300.86.

ICELANDIC RIVER.

The work at this place was for the purpose of providing a navigable channel

between Icelandic river and Icelandic bay, Selkirk county, an arm of Lake Winnipeg.
The government wharf is nearly four miles up the river. It was built a number of

years ago.

During 1914, the Canadian Pacific railway extended the Gimli branch, and the

present terminus is about a quarter of a mile from the wharf, but on the opposite-

side of the river. The dredged channel will collect sediment, and maintenance
dredging will have to be done.

P. W. D. No. 303, worked from July 12 to August 14, 1915, removing 6,962 cubic
yards, at 27.2 cents per cubic yard, amounting to $1,892.86.

P. W. D. No. 204, worked from August 27 to October 2, 1915, removing 10,148
cubic yards, at 22-5 cents per cubic yard, amounting to $2,282.37.

19—20J '
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The total quantity removed was 17,110 cubic yards, average cost 24-4 cents per

cubic yard, and the total expenditure $4,175.23. These dredges worked on one
continuous cut, total length 3,170 feet and width 40 feet. The material was hard clay

in the bottom, soft clay on top. Average distance scowed, 2 miles.

KILDONAN.

This work was done during April and May, in conjunction with the Canadian
Pacific railway, at a point where the Bergen cut-off crosses the Red river.

The object was to ascertain the cause of the short pier of the bridge sliding and
incidentally collect evidence disproving that it had been caused by lowering the

regulated water in the river. Ten holes were sunk with a diamond drill; in each case

the holes were carried to bedrock and account was kept of the different materials to

that level. These holes varied in length from 38-4 feet up to 72 feet in depth, with an
average depth of 61 feet. Wash borings were made through the softer materials.

A large bed of sand was found which would act as a storage reservoir, from which
it was concluded that this water flowed into the surrounding clay and saturated it

to such an extent that it no longer provided sufficient bearing power to sustain the pier.

PINE CREEK.

Pine Creek is on the west shore of Lake Winnipcgosis, Dauj>Jiin county. The
trade at this point is by water with the supply point Winnipcgosis, a terminus on the

Canadian Northern railway.

For the purpose of improving the navigable channel P. W. D., No. 210, worked

from August 9 to 16, 1915, making a cut 1,309 feet long by 25 wide, at the mouth
of the creek, removing 3,254 cubic yards, place measurement, clay, sand and stones.

This was cast over. Average depth of water provided at low water, 6 feet. Further
maintenance dredging will be required. The average cost of the work was 19-8 cents

per cubic yard, and the total cost was $642.73. This amount includes $72.48 for rental

of a tug, as the government tug could not safely handle the dredge on the tow to

Pine Creek.

RED RIVER.

New Entrance Channel.

At the end of the fiscal year 1914-15, protection work on both sides of the channel

was constructed outward in the lake to Sta. 28-00, with additional shore work on the

west bank of the new cut, to protect the bank from the action of the waves during

storms.

During 1915-16, work was carried on throughout the winter and finished at the

end of February, completing sheet-piling on either sides of the channel, placing stone

ballast within the completed work and changing class A into class B work, as this class

of work appears to be the only kind to withstand the action of the waves. Work began

in t!ie fall of 1914, as soon as the ice was strong enough to work upon, and continued

until the end of February, 1916, when the work was completed.

Following is a synopsis of work performed :

—

On the east side of the cliannol, soutlierly to bank, 620 feet was changed to class

B; a distance of 500 feet, class B work was sheet-piled on clumnel side; 600 feet was
sheet-piled on outer side, making the work class B sheet-piled on both sides to end

of work.

On the west side, southerly along back of new cut, a distance of 385 feet was sheet-

piled; for a further distance of -l.'iO feet southerly the existing work was straightened

and anchored to anchor piles; work was changed into class B for ISO feet, and sheet-

piled on outer side, also 140 feet, 390 feet, 460 feet, and 477 feet wa.s sheet-piled on
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outer side, braced and bolted, completing the stueture. In changing clasa A work to

class B work, the necessary tamarack piles were driven, and before sheet-piling, a wale

8 by 12 inches was screw-bolted to the piles.

Nine hundred cords of stone were purchased and delivered on site of work during

the summer of 1915, when material could be obtained and delivered cheaper than in

winter. The stone was placed in the protection piers during the winter. The work

is now ballasted from end to end on both sides of the channel. At the shore end of

the work on each side, a short wing-dam was constructed into the channel to prevent

erosion by waves from the lake.

A wharf, 20 by 60 feet, was constructed on the west side of the new cut just south

of the old wharf, which had been in a bad state of repair.

Expenditure for the fiscal year is $29,915.43.

Middle Ground Dredging.

The work at this place was for the purpose of improving the navigable channel

in the Red river, north of Sugar island, and increasing the sectional area of the river,

for the purpose of lessening the liability of the spring run of ice, jamming and flood-

ing Selkirk and vicinity.

P.W.D. No. 201 worked August 16 to October 25, and October 29-30, removing

95,311 cubic yards, at a cost of 5.4 cents per cubic yard, amounting to $5,161.58.

P.W.D. No. 202 also worked from October 14 to 26, removing 7,729 cubic yards,

at a cost of 16-5 cents per cubic yard, amounting to $1,271.75.

The total expenditure by the two dredges-was $6,433.33, averaging 6-2 cents pet

cubic yard. Total quantity, 103,040 cubic yards. P.W.D. No. 201 made one cut 3,14a

by 100 feet, and P.W.D. No. 202 one cut, 1,310 by 40 feet.

The quantities given above for P.W.D. No. 201 are place measurements, and the

material was discharged near the shore; those for dredge No. 202 are scow measure-

ments, and the material was towed half a mile. The material was sand, clay and
gravel. The depth provided at low water was 9 feet. These cuts may fill in by river

sediment.

New Channel.

The work at this place was for the purpose of deepening and maintaining the new
navigable channel between the Red river and Lake Winnipeg. This channel carries

all the tonnage passing between Winnipeg, Selkirk and other Red river points^ and
all points on l^ake Winnipeg. It is anticipated this channel will collect river sediment

and sand drifting on the lake bottom. Further maintenance dredging will be required.

The following departmental dredges were employed in the work :

—

No. 201, M?iy 1 to August 12, and October 26 to 28, removing 80,730 cubic yards

at a cost of 6.1 cents per yard, amounting to $4,821.78.

No. 202 removed 8,673 cubic yards, at a cost of 27-8 cents per yard, amounting to

$2,410.41, and No. 20^ removed 7,980 cubic yards, at a cost of 22-8 cents per cubic
yard, amounting to $1,820.46. Total quantity removed, 97,383 cubic yards.

The total expenditure of the three dredges was $9,152.65, averaging 9-4 cents per

cubic yard. The above quantities for dredge No. 201 are place measurements, those

for No. 202 and No. 20^ are scow measurements.
The material dredged by No. 201 was discharged back of the protection work, or

at a considerable distance from the cut. The quantities given for the other dredges
were scowed one to one and a half miles.

The areas dredged are as follows: P.W.D. No. 201, 270 by 40 feet, 395 by 70 feet,

222 by 140 feet, 1,964 by 150 feet. P.W.D. No. 202, 857 by 40 feet, and P.W.D. No.

201,, 538 by 40 feet.

The dredging by P.W.D. No. 202 and SOi- was for the piiiTwse of easing the' curve
in passing from centre channel to the new channel.
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The depth provided throughout at low water was 10 feet. The work will require

maintenance dredging. The cuts north of the protection will be filled by river sedi-

ment and drifting lake sand.

ST. ANDREWS DAM.

This work of grading the banks was an extension of that done iu the previous

fiscal year.

Great difficulty was experienced with slides, as the material of the bank is the

clay from the excavation of the canal approach, and was affected by ground water.

Test holes were sunk back of the top of the slope, and away from the river, which

showed the location and depth of the percolating water. A stone drain was put in

at the crest of the slope to collect this water, and seven lateral drains down the slope

were used to carry it to a drain at foot of the slope, and from there to the river.

At the same time, the grading was proceeded with, and a set of concrete steps

were built. Owing to the start of the work being delayed, it was impossible to com-

plete it.

Expenditure for fiscal year is $5,382.

Dredging.

The work at this place was for the purpose of diverting the water below the dam
from the navigable approach to the lock. It provided more room for the water to get

away from the lower part of the dam. Further work is to be done during the ensuing

fiscal year.

The work was done by the following departmental dredges :

—

No. 202 worked June 5 to 9, removing 295 cubic yards, at a cost of $354.95, equal

to $1-203 per cubic yard.

Dredge No. 205 worked June 26 to October 9, removing 19,774 cubic yards, at

a cost of $5,142.33, equal to 26 cents per cubic yard. The total cost of the work, by the

two dredges, was $5,497.28, averaging 27-5 cents per cubic yard.

The outside dimensions of the dredging are 800 by 160 feet, and the actual area

101,524 square feet. Total quantity removed by both dredges, 20,069 cubic yards.

The quantities are scow measurements, and the material- was towed from half a mile

to six miles. Scows containing a large portion of the rock deposited it near the

regulated shore line above the lock, where it could be obtained at low water for bank

protection. A large quantity was used for the rock drains in the banks north of

the bridge on the west side.

The depth provided at low water was 7 feet.

SELKIRK.

The Selkirk wharf, from the new portion near the marine railway to the south

end, was redecked; a new curb and wale were also placed on the wharf; an extension

about 60 feet long, for the purpose of better protection from ice flows, was built across

the end of Manitoba avenue, and the decking was coated with carbolineum avcnarius.

Expenditure for the fiscal fiscal year was $4,756.48.

Dredging.

Owing to the very low water, it was found necessary to deepen the berths at the

wharf. For this purpose P. W.D. No. 201^ worked from May 31 to June 17, removing

8,640 cubic yards clay, scow measurement, at a cost of $1,902.09, averaging 22 cents

per yard. The material was scowed a mile, and the average depth of water provided

9 feet. The area dredged was in two cuts totalling 1,452 by 40 feet. It is not expected

much river sediment will be deposited at this place.
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SELKIRK SLOUGH.

The work at this place was for the purpose of providing deeper water between the

government shipyard and the Red river. It also accommodates numerous shipowners

who have properties along the slough, and forms a safe winter harbour for nearly all

the boats on Lake Winnipeg and the Red river. A siding of the Canadian Pacific

railway extends for half a mile along the west bank.

Owing to the washing down of the bank by passing steamers it will be necessary

to do further dredging.

The work was done by Public Works dredges as follows :

—

Dredge No. 202 worked June 10 to 26, removing 8,201 cubic yards, at 21.3 cents

per cubic yard, amounting to $1,745.02. Dredge No. 20U worked May 11 to 29, remov-

ing 14,520 cubic yards, at 20-5 cents per cubic yard, amounting to $2,975.39. The
totals for the above are 22,721 cubic yards, at a cost of $4,720.41, averaging 20-8 cents

per yard. The material was clay, scow measurement, and towed IJ miles.

The area dredged was: by P. W. D. No. 202, 1,390 by 40 feet, and by P. W. D.

No. 20^, 1,392 by 40 feet. The depth of 9 feet was provided at low water.

SX.\KE ISLAND.

The Dominion Government fish hatchery for Lake Winnipegosis is on Snake
island, Dauphin county. The first fresh-water supply pipe for the hatchery was placed

on a pier.

At the time of the year when fresh water was most essential, ice shoves frequently

moved the pier and broke the suction pipe. It was also found necessary to have a

harbour of refuge for the hatchery boats used for gathering spawn and communicating
with Winnipegosis. For these reasons, it was decided to provide a north entrance

to the existing lagoon on the island, and deepen the south entrance and the channel

through the lagoon. The water in Lake Winnipegosis has been falling annually,

calling for dredging not anticipated.

Dredge No. 210 worked from August 25 to September 17, 1915, removing 5,914

cubic yards, scow measurement, clay, sand, hardpan and boulders. The material was
scowed half a mile. The depth of water provided throughout the lagoon was 6J feet.

Further maintenance dredging will be necessary.

The length of cuts total 2,119 lineal feet, averaging about 20 feet in width.

The work cost 30.9 cents per cubic yard. Total expenditure, $1,826.24.

The suction pipe from the hatchery now enters the lagoon near the north entrance.

SPRUCE ISLAND.

Owing to the low stage of water in Lake Winnipegosis fishing boats and tugs

could not reach the wharf on Spruce island, Dauphin county.

P.W.D. No. 210 worked from August 17 to 20, 1915. One cut, 300 feet long by 30
wide, was made at the outer end of the wharf, and another cut, 270 feet long by 25

wide, was made near the shore end of the wharf. The depth of water provided at the

first cut was 8 feet and the latter 5 feet.

The total quantity removed was 1,010 cubic yards, scow measurement, soft clay.

It was scowed a quarter of a mile. This work cost 28.4 cents per cubic yard. Total

expenditure, $286.58.

STURGEON BAY.

Survey.

A survey to establish a navigable route from Dauphin river to Outer Sturgeon
island. Lake Winnipeg, was started May 13, and field work was finished July 28.

1915.
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This survey was made for tlie Department of Naval Service, and was to establish

a safe route from existing routes in Lake Winnipeg to the new tish hatoherj- at the

mouth of Dauphin river.

Exploration of the route from the Outer Sturgeon island eastwardly was also made.

A tug was sailed over the course easterly from the southwesterly point of Outer

Sturgeon island, passing north of McBeth point, south of Nut island, tying into the

main route between the north and south ends of the lake, at a point about two miles

northeast of Egg island.

No surveying was done on this route but, from soundings and observations made,

the following information was recorded:

—

,

The water between Outer Sturgeon and Xut island is over .30 feet. Bottom
indications show gravel and hard sand within half a mile approximately of McBeth
point, which is made up of sand. A depth of 62 feet was found between Nut island

and Stone point, the depth averaging from 15 to 30 feet; bottom indications show

small boulders and rock. OfE the southwesterly point of Nut island, there is a reef

which runs in a southerly direction for 700 feet. From Stony point to the main

route, the depth is over 30 feet; indications of bottom show gravel, small boulders

and hard sand. Within thre^-quarters of a mile ofE the southwesterly point of

Dowling reef the water was 30 feet.

It is thought a safe sailing route could be established by making a suitable survey,

and if necessary placing a few buoys at dangerous points.

The cost of the survey was $6,697.72.

THE FORKS.

For the purpose of deepening the navigable channel for motor boats entering the

west channel at the Forks of the Red river, Selkirk county, a cut was made through

the bar of river sediment lying across the entrance.

P. W. D. ^^o. 201 worked from August 13 to 16, 1915, making a cut, 380 feet long,

110 wide, and a depth of 5 feet at low water.

The quantity dredged was 4,643 cubic yards of sand, place measurement. The
material was discharged by the suction dredge at a point near the shore. The work

cost 5-8 cents per cubic yard, making a total expenditure of $271.08. This cut will

fill in by river sediment.

WINNIPEG.

The Rover Avenue wharf was completed during the year. No work has been done

on the proposed wharf at Notre Dame avenue.

Construction work on the Rover Avenue wharf commenced April 26, and was

suspended October 14. At this time, the water, owing to St. Andrews dam, was too

high to permit the lower end of the cross-braces being bolted. It was also desirable

to permit the newly made embankments, forming part of the road approaches, time to

settle. Work was resumed October 16 and finished October 30.

The wharf is: length over shear or ice deflector at upper end, 380 feet 4 inches,

width 30 feet 4 inches; is of pile-bents braced and capped, upon which are laid

stringers, and a four-inch floor protected witii curb; the front piles are protected

with fenders and ice bars, all timber was treated with carholineum avenartus.

There are two incline road approaches on about 5 per cent grades, leading from

Rover avenue to the centre of the wharf. These are formed by excavated material

from the bank being cast over, forming an embankment on the outside. The width

of the roadway is 15 feet, and is covered with broken limestone, gravel and sand,

with this is mixed some clay for binder, and the whole rolled with a steam roller.

Expenditure for the fiscal year was $14,729.67.



. REPORT OF THE CBIEF ENGINEER 313

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

Dredging.

Work was done at Eover Avenue wharf, and in the navigable channel at the

Canadian Pacific railway and National Transcontinental Railway bridges. Further

work will be required at Eover Avenue wharf, and the channel at the railway bridges

will in time collect sediment.

At the Canadian Pacific Railway bridge, the point at the south entrance was
dredged to enable steamers to make the passageway when the bridge was open. Great

difiiculty from current and wind is experienced at this place.

At the National Transcontinental Railway bridge the operations were conducted

to remove obstructions under the bridge. All the work was done by dredge No. 205

between May 7 and July 9.

The quantity removed was : Rover Avenue wharf, 11,252 cubic yards ; Canadian
Pacific Railway bridge, 17,363 cubic yards; National Transcontinental railway, 10,923

cubic yards; total, 39,538 yards. Cost, $5,204.73, averaging 13-1 cents per cubic

yard.

The material was sand, clay and piles, scow measurements. Length of tow, one
mile.

Dimensions of area dredged : Rover Avenue wharf, 897 by 40 feet ; Canadian
Pacific Railway bridge, 1,042 by 40, and National Transcontinental Railway bridge,

1,014 by 40 feet.

WINNIPEG BEACH.

The government pier at Winnipeg beach, Selkirk county, was built some years

ago, chiefly to form a harbour of refuge. It is exposed to drifting sand, and it was
necessary to deepen the approach, berth, and turning basin, at the south side of the
government pier. Further maintenance and dredging will be required.

P. W. D. No. 20k worked from June 26 to July 24, 1915, clearing to a depth of 7

feet at low water, a basin about 290 feet long by 120 wide. The approach channel
dredged is 850 feet long and 40 wide.

The total quantity removed was 9,297 cubic yards, hard clay, sand and rock.

This was scowed a distance of half a mile. The cost of the work averages 21 cents

per cubic yard.

Total expenditure, $1,956.38.

WINNIPEGOSIS.

Winnipegosis, Dauphin county, is near the mouth of Mossy river, and the
terminus of the Canadian Northern railway. The port is the distributing point for all

points on Lake Winnipegosis.

Owing to the falling water in the lake, unforeseen dredging was neces.sary. The
old channel did not reach to deep water and another leg, bending about 45 degrees to
the left or north, for a distance of 675 feet, was necessary. Dredging was also required
to deepen or maintain the old channel, also at a few points in Mossy river in front
of the town. Depth of water provided at low water was 8 feet. Further maintenance
dredging will be required.

P. W. D. No. 201 worked from May 12 to August 7, Aug-ust 21 to August 24. and
September 17 to October 26, 1915. The total length of cuts made was 11,559 lineal
feet, width 25 feet. Quantity removed, 27,193 cubic yards, scow measurement,
consisting of clay, stones and liardpan. Cost of work 30-3 cents per cubic yard.
Total expenditure, $8,223.17.

During dredging operations, it was found that two areas in the Mossy river could
not be moved by the dredge. These consist of solid rock, boulders and hardpan.
Areas 40 by 50 feet and 60 by 60 feet. The Wasted material will be dredged during
the ensuing season.
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A survey, with soundings, of the channel at the mouth of the river was made
to determine the result of the season's dredging operations, and to provide data for

next year's dredging. Owing to the unusual low stage of the water in Lake Winni-

pegosis, the past two years, a great deal of unforeseen dredging has been necessary,

hence the necessity of a close survey of the channel and approach of same in the

lake. The result of the survey showed the channel to be in a very satisfactory condi-

tion.

The interested shipping companies at Winnipegosis are well pleased with the

result of the season's work.

SASKATCHEWAN.

BIG sroXE KIVER.

An expenditure of $150 was authorized January 26, 1916, for the purpose of

blasting and removing a number of large boulders, in the rapids of the Big Stone

river, for improvements to navigation. This work was begun February 15, and ended

February 28; 30 cubic yards of boulders were blasted and removed from the channel.

Expenditure to date, $143.65.

CUMBERL.\ND HOUSE.

In dredging at the outlet of the Big Stone river from Cumberland lake a number
of large boulders were found in such a position that they interfered with navigation.

As these could not be removed by dredging, it was necessary to blast them out.

An allowance of $600 was authorized for this work, under date December 18,

1915, and work was started on January 10 and completed on March 1, on which date

all boulders in the channel were removed. A total of 197 cubic yards of boulders was
blasted, at a cost of $16-1.63.

CUMBERL.\XD LAKE.

The dredging of a channel across the flats, at tihe easterly end of Cumberland lake

to deep water, was recommended to enable steamboats to navigate across the easterly

end of the lake, from which point the recently discovered gold fields at Beaver lake

can be reached. A survey of this part of the lake was made in July, 1913, and it was
decided to dredge a channel 100 feet wide, extending out into the lake approximately

8,600 feet, necessitating the removal of 50,000 cubic yards of clay. In the summer of

1915, a new low-water level was establisiied, necessitating the lowering of the bottom
of the channel one foot, which would increase the total cubic yards to be moved to

152,s5n. Dredging was started on Jlay 26, 1915, after P.W.D. No. 20S and tug Le
Pas had undergone the usual annual repairs, and was continued until July 5, when
work had to be suspended owing to an unusual high stage of the lake which disabled

the dredging plant temporarily. Tiie flood waters having subsided on August 10,

dredging was resumed on that date and carried on continuously until October 4, 1915,

when operations ceased for the season, and dredge No. 208 and scows were put into

winter quarters, in the new berth on the west shore of Big Stone river, and the tug

Le Pas was pulled out and blocked up on the opposite shore for overhauling and
repairs to be made next spring. The area dredged during the season extends from the

westerly side of tie channel in the lake, about 1,385 feet distant. One full width cut

and part of a second cut were made in this area. Another cut 350 feet long was made
about 500 feet below the ferry, to remove boulders which obstructed the channel. The
material removed during the season which consisted of clay, mud, hardpan and boul-

ders was towed from one to five miles and amounted to 20,790 cubic yards, scow

measurement. The cost of the work was $10,507.99 or 50J cents per cubic yard. The
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high cost is explained by an amount of $1,030 paid out for cordwood, in March, to be

used during the season of 1916-17, and by the loss of 32 days, caused by the extreme

high water, when the dredge was idle.

The total yardage moved to date is as follows: In 1914-15, 14,306; in 1915-16,

20,790; total, 35,096 cubic yards, scow measurement. It has not been possible up to

date to ascertain the expansion factor but it will be in the vicinity of 20 per cent.

CRAVEX DAM.

A small leak, which appeared near the centre of the dam in the early spring, was
effectively stopped with clay and gravel ; boulders were removed from the southern end
of the new dam in order to form a small channel to allow fish to ascend to the reach

above the old dam; brushwood was placed along the bank of t.!ie river at the southern

end of the new dam where considerable erosion and caving in had taken place in recent

years ; this was necessary in order to prevent further damage to private property. The
approach to the dam, on this side of the river, has been washed away ; the water flow-

ing past the end of the dam is responsible for the erosion of the river bank at this

point.

Expenditure during the fiscal year 1915-16 is $243.45.

NORTH SASK.\TCHEWAN RFVER SURVEY.

Field work in connection with the survey of the Lower Saskatchewan river was
resumed on June 11 last, by the transit, level, and sounding party in charge of

assistant P. H. Smith. The party continued the survey from Rabbit point on Cedar
lake, where work was stopped in October, 1914, to the western end of the Hudson's
Bay Company's tramway at the head of Grand rapids, where a connection was made
with the Manitoba hydrographic survey's traverse of the Lower Saskatchewan, made in

1912. It was not considered necessary to carry on our surveys beyond this point,

as data furnished by the Manitoba hydrographic survey covering the Grand rapids

is complete and sufficient for our purpose:

About 30 miles of chained traverse was run during the season; duplicate or

cheek levels were carried along the traverse as in previous years. Bench-marks were
- established at convenient points, these being, approximately, one mile apart. A stadia

survey of both shores of Cedar lake, from Rabbit point to " The Narrows," and of the
river to Cross lake, was made. The stadia work was resumed on the east side of

Cross lake and carried to the head of Grand rapids. Two large bays in Cedar lake,

and the North and South bays in Cross lake, were left unsurveyed, the chain traverse

having been carried across these bays by triangulation. Stadia traverses were also

made of all islands in the vicinity of the main traverse. Points on these islands

were fixed by triangulation.

Cedar lake, east of Rabbit point. Cross lake, and the intervening stretch of river

to Grand rapids, were sounded, ranges in Cedar lake and Cross lake being about 1,000

feet apart, while on the river proper they were run closer together, being about 500

feet apart. Five rapids occur below Cedar lake, viz : Flying post, Demi charge. Cross

Lake rapids. Red rock and Grand rapids. All of these were sounded except Grand
rapids, which do not require sounding as it is proposed to improve the river at this

point by means of locks and dams.

Field work was completed on October 9, and the transit and sounding party

paid off on that date. The launch Lafleur was used during the season for carrying

supplies, correspondence, etc., to the party. It is now in winter quarters at Le Pas,

Man.
The calculation of field notes and preparation of plans of last season's surveys

were attended to by the office staff during the winter months. Plans of the survey

of the entire Saskatchewan river from Edmonton to Lake Winnipeg, drawn to a scale
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of 500 feet to an incli, are now completed. Keduced copies of these plans, to a scale

of 2,000 feet to an inch, are being prepared for publication. It is expected a number

of these reduced plans, of -which there will be 59, will be ready for photo-lithographing

in the course of the coming summer.

Hydraulic Party.—Surveys of reservoir sites in the mountains, in connection

with the investigation for flood control, were continued this past season, by the

hydraulic party in charge of Mr. A. M. Kirkpatriek. Three proposed sites were

surveyed, and maximum storage capacities at each site obtained, the location, height

of dams, with capacities follow:

—

Maximum
Location. Height of Dam. Capacity.

Feet. Acre Feet.

Brazeau river 100 44.701
Baptiste river 89 41,202
Glacier lake 74 54,477

Discharge measurements of the following streams were also made at stations

occupied in 1913 and 1914: Baptiste river, Brazeau river, Nordegg river and Glacier

river.

Owing to the difficulty of travel in the mountains and to the limited supplies

carried by pack trains, only a few of the tributaries of the Saskatchewan could be

examined for possible dam sites, during the summer months. Favourable locations

for dams are known to exist on the South Ram and North Ram rivers. Wapiti river.

South branch of the Brazeau river, Brazeau lake and on the Saskatchewan river below

Windy Point. A survey of these sites should be made in 1916 in connection with flow

measurements. These should be carried on continuously until discharge curves for all

of the principal streams in the mountains have been secured.

Gauges.—Daily readings of water gauges were taken at Edmonton, Prince Albert,

Le Pas and Chemahawin during the past season. Hourly readings of the gauge at

Prince Albert were taken during the flood of July last. This flood is the highest

known of which any record has been taken.

PRINCE ALBERT.

This work was started in 1913, for the protection of the river bank along the

city park on Eiver street. Prince Albert, extending from the government wharf

westward to the Canadian Northern Railway bridge, a distance of 2,273 feet. Pile

driving started May 19, 1915, on the uncompleted section, a distance of 586 feet, and

was finished July 5, during which time 835 piles were driven. The capping, bracing

of the piles and placing of the top and lower wales has been completed. Brush has been

laid inside and outside the work and, during the winter, rock has been hauled and

placed inside and outside the structure, as called for in the plan. The structure is

now completed and will be of great benefit to the water front.

Expenditure to March 31, $8,974.33.

\

S.\SKATCHEWAK RIVER.

Large boulders obstructing the navigable channel of the Saskatchewan river,

between the Canadian Northern Railway bridge at Prince Albert and the saw-mill

of the Prince Albert Lumber Company, located some two miles below the bridge, were

removed.

Owing to the high stage of the water during the summer months, work was not

begun until October 18, the derrick scow and steam pile-driver scow, being no longer

required for bank protection, were made use of for boulder removal. A total of 88
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cubic yards of boulders were removed to December 31, on -which date work was
discontinued, the river being frozen over. The boulders were piled on the shore at

convenient points and were used during the winter for the bank protection work.
Expenditure to March 31, $476.74.

ALBERTA.

GROUARD.

The dredge operating under this appropriation was moved from Lesser Slave
liver to the vicinity of Grouard, at the west end of Lesser Slave lake, in September,
1911. Work was carried on during the remainder of that season, and has been
carried on each successive season up to the 17th of August last, when work was
stopped, owing to the completion of the channel. The dredge was then dismantled,
all the gear being stored at Grouard; the dredge hull is in shallow water at Grouard,
and is of very little use, as its timbers have become rotten during the past several
years.

The dredge used there was of the orange-peel type, with a 21 cubic foot bucket.
No tugs or scows have been employed on the work, all the material being sidecast.

All of the excavation has been in gumbo or very stiff clay. Considerable trouble has
been experienced, however, with two sandbars near the mouth of the Buffalo river.

At this point the channel is exposed to the wave action of the lake as well as the
current from the river. Consequently the material here has refilled a good deal in the
excavation.

The object of this work was to provide a navigable waterway, from deep water in
the Lesser Slave lake to the town of Grouard. The width of channel, as already
excavated, varies from 35 to 40 feet at low-water level. The depth is approximately

4i feet below low water. This channel, as excavated, extends from deep water in
the lake to Grouard.

When this work was first laid out, it was proposed to make a channel, having a
bottom width of 50 feet on tangent, and 60 feet on curves, with a depth of 4i feet at
low water. There has already been excavated a channel, having a width of 35 to 40
feet, and a depth of 4J feet at low water. All material was sidecast. A small turning
ibasin, having a width of 46 feet and a length of 400 feet, has been excavated at

Grouard, at the terminus of this work. Since the coming of the railroad into this

.country, navigation has not iilayed the important part it did in past years, and the
channel having the width and depth already completed, is believed to be sufficient for

present and future needs.

The nature of material removed during the past season has been gumbo or stiff

.clay. Some boulders were also encountered in the cuts. The quantity of material
removed during the past fiscal year, place measurement, was 12,936 cubic yards.

Work was done by the departmental dredge No. 206. The total expenditure was
.$3,201.03. This included all repairs, in addition to operating expenses. On this

basin, the cost, per cubic yard, amounts to 24-9 cents. Work started on June 12 last,

and the work having been completed at Grouard, dredging was stopped on August 17
last, and the plant laid up.

Work was also done on a channel to the temporary landing place, where boats
landed passengers and freight when the water was too high to permit of them
proceeding up to the town. This work was done before the regular channel was
excavated past this point. In addition to this work, sand and gravel bars had been
.excavated several times. Further than this, several weeks were spent in dredging a
channel through the sandbar west of the government bridge off Stoney point, to
permit of boats approaching the landing farther up the Buffalo river. About 450
feet of temporary channel was dug east of the government bridge, to allow boats to

approach the banks close to the town.
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STURGEON RIVER.

Improvements carried out during the past fiscal year consisted in completinp; a

channel through a sandbar in Lac Ste. Anne, near the point where the same drains

into Sturgeon river. This work was partially done during the previous fiscal year,

but owing to the rise of water in the lake it could not be completed at that time.

Further than this, there was considerable clearing out of this river east of the lake,

in the nature of growth of weeds, etc., which retarded the flow of water and at a

point about three miles east of the lake, a number of rocks were cleared out of the

channel.

The object in doing this work was to increase the flow of water out of Lac Ste.

Anne, in order that certain haylands bordering on the lake and river may be made
available for use. The above work was commenced May 11 and was completed 26th

June, when all the work was done that could be advantageously accomplished.

Out of the total appropriation for the work, there was expended, diiring the past

fiscal >ear, the sum of $1,.533.17.

BRITISH COLUMBIA.

AINSWORTH.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

Authority was granted during the year 1915-16 to. complete the wharf, under

construction by this department, at Ainsworti. The work done consisted of the

rem jval of a rock reef to accommodate deeper draught vessels, removal of extra rock

at lower end of wharf to provide turning place for teams, the completion of the

approach and construction of movable freight shed 12 by 24 feet. The total expendi-

ture involved amounted to $3,055.59.

ARROWHEAD.

To relieve conditions caused by floe-ice piling up around the Arrowhead wharf,

it was decided to clean out the back channel of the Columbia river at this point, and

by dredging, divert enough of the current to carry this ice to the main lake instead

of the northeast arm.

Two cuts were made during the past season; on April 20, 1915, the departmental

dredge Sheldral-e commenced work in the upper cut at the head of the back channel,

and closed down owing to high water June 12, 1915. A cut, 1,875 feet long and 75

feet wide, was dredged, with a minimum depth of 7 feet at low-water stage, and

15,350 yards of material, sand, gravel, brush and snags were removed; the second

or lower cut at the foot of the back channel was commenced September 20, and

completed October 26, 1915. The object of this cut was to enable the dredge to get

to the head of the channel and insure a means of transporting supplies, but owing to

scarcity of water and storm conditions, it was found necessary to discontinue work.

A cut, 1,500 feet long and 75 feet wide, was made, with a minimum depth of 6 feet

at low water, and 14,450 cubic yards material, chiefly sand, were removed: all this

material was overcast.

Total cost of work for both cuts, entailing the removal of 29,800 cubic yards of

material, was $4,842.60.

DANFIELD.

Banfield is a cable and life-saving station, situated on Barclay sound, about 100
miles northwest of Victoria.
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The wharf here is supported on reinforced concrete columns, and the furnishing

of sufficient bracing and fenders, to adequately protect the above columns from shock,

was necessary. This work was carried out between September 7 and September 23,

1915, at a total cost of $1,099.95. Twenty-four creosoted piles were included in the

above repairs.

BLUBHER B.\Y.

Blubber Bay is a small town on the north end of Texada island, Comox-Atlin
district, with a population of about one hundred, and a contiguous farm population

of about one hundred or two hundred in all. A large limekiln is in operation,

belonging to the Pacific Lime Company, with an output, in 1912, of 83,000 barrels of

lime, valued at $88,000. The company's present intention is to add another unit to

their plant and increase the output 50 per cent.

The work consisted of dredging in front of the company's wharf, with an average

length of 500 feet, and an average width of 30. The dredging was done to 15 feet below

L.W.O.S.T., at the inner end, ranging to 25 feet at the outer end of wharf, to

accommodate boats using the wharf. The total quantity dredged was 6,270 cubic yards,

place measurement, or 6,540 yards, scow measurement, as reported by dredge, the

materials being sand, clay, gravel and silt. This work was performed by the dredge

Ajax, between September 10 and 14, 1915. This dredging is expected to be permanent.

BURTON.

A movable freight shed, 12 by 16 feet, was constructed on this wharf, at a cbst of

$131.97.
' C.\MPBELL RIVER.

Campbell Eiver is an important logging, fishing and tourist centre, having a post
office and government telegraph, and is situated on the Strait of Georgia, 175 miles
northwest of Victoria. It is also the main jwint of entrance to Strathcona park.

The Canadian Pacific Railway and Union Steamship Company's boats make regular

calls.

Owing to the destructive action of teredo, and as the result of a heavy concussion
by the Union Steamship Company's boat loosening the piling, extensive repairs to the

wharf and approach were made necessary, and included 4,617 lineal feet of creosoted

piling in wharf and approach to replace the worm-eaten piling, renewal of 25 fender
piles and portions of guard-rail and decking, 4 cast-iron mooring cleats, new float,

39 feet 6 inches by 17 feet, and gangway, 36 feet .by 4 feet, the existing fixed slip was
also replaced by a movable one having an increased length of about 10 feet. The
work was commenced May 10 and completed June 5, 1915, and was carried out, by
contract, by Messrs. James MacDonald and Company, for the sum of $5,050. Subse-
quent minor repairs brought the total expenditure to $5,102.33.

CAPILAKO.

The Capilano is a mountain stream, having its source in the Howe Sound
mountains. It flows in a southwesterly direction, and enters the First Narrows of
Burrard inlet through three distinct branches. Owing to the high elevation of its

source and the precipitous nature of its descent down the mountains, the freshets

are sudden and destructive.

The work that has already been done consists of three loose rock and riprap
submerged dykes, which confine.the main body of the water to the desired channel,
but are built low enough to allow of flood waters being checked and carried off farther
downstream. The work performed this year was the removing of driftwood, which
had collected on the spillways, and the replacing of stones, which had been washed out
in consequence of the driftwood deflecting the current from the spillways. This work
was done between September 7 and 22, 1915. The total cost of repairs was $297.
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CEDAR CREEK.

Cedar Creek, on tHe west side of Kootenay lake, one mile north of Ainswortli, is

•the tramway terminus for a number of mines operated by the Consolidated Mining

and Smelting Company and the Silver Hoard Mining Company.

These companies have extensive ore bunkers at Cedar Creek, and owing to the

-fact that material from the rock cut on the Provincial Government road slipped into

the channel, it was impossible for barges to be berthed alongside the ore pockets.

On October 28, 1915, the departmental dredge Bittern began the removal of this

material, and completed the work on November 2. The material moved, gravel,

clay and rocks, amounted to 400 cubic yards, at a cost of $314.04.

This work was necessitated by the construction of a road through rock, above

the bunkers. The channel is otherwise permanent.

CHILLnV.iCK.—JUNTO LANDING.

Extension to wharf; a new slip was built. Work was done October 21 to 23, 1915.

CLAYOQUOT.

Clayoquot is a post office and steamboat landing, on Stubbs island in Clayoquot

sound, 54 miles from Alberni and 151 miles from Victoria, from whence there is

a weekly steamboat service via the west coast route. The population in the vicinity

consists of about 325 whites and 350 Indians. Industries are chiefly mining and

logging, and there is a government life-boat station adjacent, also mineral recording

office, post office and government telegraph.

The Provincial Government wharf having reached such a state of decay as to

necessitate its removal, arrangements were made for its transfer to the Dominion
Government. It was reconstructed as follows : Wharf, 100 by 40 feet, approach,

325 by 14 feet, 3-foot 3-inch handrail along approach, float, 30 by 20 feet, gangway,

.36 by 4 feet, and freight shed, 12 by 20 feet ; 32 creosoted piles were used in the wharf-

head.

The work of reconstruction was carried out by day labour and was commenced
July 5, but was not finally completed until December 31, 1915, considerable delay

being caused by bad weather. The total amount expended was $4,156.35.

COLUMBIA Hn-ER.—ABOVE GOLDEN.

Owing to the construction of the Kootenay Central railway, and the fact that

logging operations were at a standstill, there was practically no navigation on the

Upper Columbia river during the season 1915-16. Consequently the snaghoSit Muskraf
did not operate, but was tied up at Golden in charge of a watchman.

AT REVELSTOKE.

During the winter 1914-15, a section of the bank protection mattress, approxi-

mately 125 feet long and 20 feet wide, below the Revelstoke wharf, was undermined
and slipped, leaving a portion of the bank exposed to erosion by high water.
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A bad break in a storm sewer, paralleling the river bank above Revelstoke wharf,

washed out the portion of the river bank immediately adjoining the protection

cribwork at that i^lace. As, during high water, the river was liable to cut in behind

this crib at the washout, it was deemed advisable to extend the crib a distance of

92 feet.

Authority for the two above-mentioned work was received, and the works were

completed by March 31, 1916, at a cost of $1,240.56.

Narrows.

Owing to the action of the current on a high gravel bank, approximately 1,900

feet long and 25 feet high, on the east side of the Columbia river below Burton, bars

were formed in the slack water at the head of Lower Arrow lake, necessitating

considerable dredging. As no permanent improvement could be effected by this means,

authority was granted to expend the sum of $9,000 to protect this bank from the

eroding action of the current. Work commenced December 1, 1915, and was completed

January 31, 1916, at a cost of $7,599.37.

The work consists of a brush and rock mattress, the upper portion 325 feet long

and averaging 20 feet wide, and the lower portion 975 feet long and averaging 65

feet wide. This mattress forms part of the scheme for bank protection already

outlined.

Rohert's Shoal.

Launch owners experienced difficulty, due to large rocks and boulders, in navigat-

ing the channel on the north side of Robert's shoal, about two miles east of Nelson,

on west arm of Kootenay lake. These obstructions were removed at a cost of $79.

Dredging.

The portion of the Columbia river between the Upper and Lower Arrow lake is

known as the Narrows and is about 20 miles in length. During the season 1915-16,

the departmental dredge Sheldrake has been employed the greater portion of the time

in dredging the various bars and shallows to keep year-round navigation in the

Narrows.

C0URTEN.1Y RIVER.

The Courtenay river runs in a southeasterly direction into Comox harbour.

Courtenay, near its mouth, is the principal town of the Comox valley, which is about

6 miles wide and 40 miles long, and is adapted to fanning, dairying, fruit growing and
poultry raising. There are two banks, two hotels, saw-mill, creamery and good stores

and the E. & N. Railway has its northerly terminus here. The river is navigable

to Courtenay for small boats when the tide is on. The population of the valley is

about 4,000, and of Courtenay, 750.

Erosion of the left bank of the Courtenay river having taken place opposite the

present main channel and below the existing timbering, owing to the change of the

original course of the river channel, the lower part of the town was rendered liable

to flood. To prevent this, 617 feet of timber protection was constructed by day labour.

This work was commenced June 25 and completed July 17, 1915, the total expenditure

being $1,971.99.

^ Dredging.

The dredging carried out had for its object the improving and straightening of

the boat channel across the tidal flats, between Comox harbour and the mouth of the

Courtenay river, to enable small steamers of about one hundred tons burden to reach

Courtenay at about half tide, and involved the removal of 111,013 cubic yards of

19—21
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material, place measurement. A channel, 2,806 feet long and 100 feet wide, having a

depth of ahout 8 feet at low tide, was dredged during 1914, and the departmental

hydraulic dredge King Edward proceeded to Courtenay to continue this channel

towards the river mouth, and worked from July 29 until September 27, 1915, removing
60,000 cubic yards of silt and gravel, which latterly became of increasing hardness

and was finally the cause of the removal of the dredge for repairs, owing to the

breakage of the pump.
Length of channel dredged, 2,070 feet, width 100 to 110 feet, average depth of

cut 7-5 feet, and average depth of water obtained 7-66 feet at low water. Owing to the

silting up of the channel dredged in 1914, it was not possible to begin at the point

where the dredge had previously ceased work and it was necessary to conunence about

975 feet lower down the channel in order to provide the necessary flotation, of about

8 feet at low water, for the dredge. For this reason, there should be no interference

with navigation due to silting up in the channel dredged for some considerable time.

The cost of the above work was $10,986.19, being at the rate of 18-3 cents per

cubic yard.

Further improvement is required immediately below the river mouth, and the

removal of boulders between the river mouth and Courtenay.

DIGNAjr's BAT, G-\BR10LA ISLAKD.

Dignau's bay is situated at the south end of Gabriola island in the gulf of
Georgia, and is about 12 miles from ISTanaimo. Gabriola island is a farming com-
munity and has telephone connection with Vancouver. There are mails four times a

week. Population in the vicinity, about 50.

The work, which was done by day labour, consisted of doubling the existing float

in size, making it 50 by 40 feet, instead of 25 by 40 feet as before. Construction was
commenced June 24 and was completed July 20, 1915. The total expenditure was

$390.02.

EBURNE.

Eburne is situated on the north arm of the Fraser river about 9J miles west of

New Westminster, and 5 miles south of Vancouver. There are several lumber mills

and canneries situated here. The British Columbia Electric Railway's New West-

minster-Vancouver interurban line passes tlirough Eburne, and it is a junction for

Steveston.

Authority was granted on April 27, 1015. to proceed with the construction

of a wharf at this place, by day labour, and on May 21, 1915, work was started and

completed on June 30, 1915. The wharf is of a pile-bent and timber-decking

construction, 100 by 64 feet, with a pile-bent approach, 90 by 20 feet, and a float, 50

by 10 feet, let into the west corner, a gangway, 6 by 28 feet, leading on to the float

from the wharf, A shed, 20 by 40 feet, is built on the main wharf.

The total expenditure was $2,786,30.

FR.\SER RH'ER,

The work being undertaken at the mouth of the north arm of the Fraser river

has for its object the making and maintaining of a navigable channel through the

sandheads at the mouth. The complete scheme embraces the dredging of a channel,

22,000 feet long, .300 feet wide and 10 feet at L.W.O.S.T,, and the construction of a

bulkhead and mattress jetty, 22,300 feet long, paralleling the dredged channel on the

south side. The above work necossitates the removal of some 3,000,000 cubic yards

of sand, and the emplacement in the jetty of the following quantities of materials:

5,502 fir piles, 640,465 feet b,m, rough lumber, 126,219 cubic yards mattressing, 24,083
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cubic yards loose brush, and 186,820 tons rock. Of this the following materials were

placed in the last fiscal year, 1914-15: 5,062 fir piles, 598,000 feet b.m. rough lumber,

100,500 cubic yards mattressing, 20,600 yards loose brush, and 106,310 tons rock.

During this fiscal year, the jetty construction has been completed when the

following materials were placed : 440 fir piles, 42^65 feet b.m. rough lumber, 25,719

cubic yards mattressing, 3,483 yards loose brush, and 80,510 tons rock.

The work is being performed, under contract, by the Pacific Dredging Company,

of Vancouver, B.C. During this fiscal year, 1,639,633 cubic yards of material have

been removed from the cut, making a total of 2,280,506 yards, removed to March 31,

1916, or 76 per cent of the total material to be dredged.

The total expenditure is $279,657.95 for this fiscal year.

Sandheads.

The Fraser river sandheads extend from Steveston west about 5i miles to deep

water in the gulf of Georgia. These sandheads are bars at low water, except where
the channel passes through them. Several years ago, this channel showed a tendency

to cut a straight course through the bar to the north of the old channel, and the natural

tendency of the river, materially assisted by dredging, has resulted in the production

of the main ship channel at this place. This channel is maintaining a minimum
depth of 17 feet, and it is to maintain or increase this depth and straighten out the

channel that the work is being done at this place.

The departmental dredges No. 303 and King Edward have been employed during
this year, maintaining and improving the channel paralleling the jetty now being

constructed over the sandheads. The following tables show the work done by each

dredge at this point:

—

Dredge No. 303.

Intervals of Dredge.

September 1 to 13, 1915
September 20 to October 8, 1915
December 3 to 24, 1915
Jannarv 5 to 7, 1916
February 22 to March 31 , 191G

Cubic yards,
hopper m's'm't.

53,600
61,600
105,600
5(!,000

192,800

469,600

Material.

Sand and clav.

Dredge King Edward.

October 12 to November 23, 1915. 20,915 Sand and clay.

This shows a total of 490,515 cubic yards removed from the channel during this

fiscal year.

On the whole, the dredged channel appears to be maintaining the depth dredged,

alternate scouring and filling in of the bottom taking place at different stages of the

height of water in the Fraser river.

The Marine and Naval Departments are kept informed of any change iu the
channel and the lights and buoys are attended to from this office.

19—21i
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Woodwards Landing.

Woodwards Landing, Xew Westminster district, is a Provincial Government

ferry landing on the north hank of the river about 12 miles below Kew Westminster.

This ferry plys between Woodwards and Ladner, doing a large business in the

transporting of farmers and their stock and produce to the markets in Vancouver

and New Westminster. The water at the landing became too shoal for the ferry boat

to land at low water, and authority was granted to have the dredge King Edwwrd

remove the shoal, which she did ou June 17, 1915, removing 600 yards of sand in

front of and under the landing float.

North Arm—South Branch.

The south branch is that portion of the north arm running from Eburne south

and southwest of the gulf of Georgia. The object of the work is to provide a channel

with a depth of 10 feet at L.W.O.S.T., connecting with the channel dredged by the

department, in front of Eburne, in 1911.

The whole work consists of a channel 7,500 feet long and 150 wide, the total

material to be removed being 270,800 cubic yards of sand and silt, in place.

Authority being granted for this work the dredge King Edward started operations

on January 3, 1916, and continued to March 20, the work being stopped between

January 10 and February 14, owing to ice on the river. During the period of

dredging, 101,790 cubic yards were removed, the length of cut completed being 3,700

feet, leaving 169,000 yards and 3,800 feet still to be completed. As the work consists

of two sections, it may be said that the s^ork performed has been done in the long

cut nearest Eburne, and there requires to be dredged, of this cut, a distance of 2,000

feet, to connect with channel in north arm at Eburne. It is expected that this work

will be permanent.

GAMBIER ISLAND.

Gambler island is situated in Howe Sound, about 20 miles northwest of Vancouver.

A landing was built which consists of a float, 16 by 32 feet, of 5 cedar logs, 6 cross-

timbers 8 by 10 inclies, fastened to logs by drift-bolts, and flooring of 2-inch by

12-inch plank spiked to cross-ties, with 6 by 6-inch guard rail all round. This float

is anchored by a 2-ton rock connected with chain. An approach of cedar logs, 6 feet

wide and 208 feet long, with 6 by 8-inch cross-ties and 2 by 12-inch planking, leads

from the shore to he float.

This work was performed, under agreement, by James Brooks, for a lump sum
of $200.

Work was commenced on July 18, and completed on August 3, 1915.

GLEN VALLEY.

Glen valley. New Westminster district, is a settlement on the south bank of the

Frascr river, about 22 miles above New Westminster. A government wharf is

situated at this point for the shipment of farm produce and supplies. A large sandbar'

had formed to the east of the wharf, gradually extending west along the front, making

it difficult for river steamers to land at low water. It was the removal of this bar

that was done by the departmental dredge King Edward, between the dates of April

6 and 15, 1915.

The cut has an average length of 450 feet, and an average width of 100. The

total material removed was 22,118 cubic yards, sand and silt, in place. The dredging

was done to 8 feet below L.W.O.S.T., and it is expected that no further dredging will

be required for some time to come.
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GOOSE BAY.

Goose bay is on Observatory inlet, Comox-Atlin county, near the entrance of

Hastings and Alice arms. In 1912, a pile-wharf, 40 by 60, was constructed by the

department. By use and the action of sea lice, the sway bracing and several fender-

piles had become so eaten away as to require repairs. Work of repair consisted of

renewing the sway bracing and the driving of eight new fender-piles, which was done

at an expenditure of $1,495.20.

GOWER POINT.

Gower point is situated about 20 miles northwest of Vancouver, on the western

side of Howe sound. A government float was built there in 1913-14, and this float

was removed, during the winter of 1914-15, to a safe anchorage for security against

storms which prevail in that district. An expenditure of $137.43 was made in

replacing the float and making a few necessary repairs.

Work was commenced on May Y and completed on May 10, 1915.

Graham's landing.

During the season 1914-15, the departmental dredge Sheldrake was employed
at various times in improving the crossing at Graham's Landing. To March 31,

1915, a channel, 2,977 feet long and 150 feet wide, with a minimum depth of 8 feet

at low water, was excavated and 79,400 cubic yards material removed.

Operations were continued at this point from April 1 to April 19, 1915, and the

cut completed. During this period, 9,400 cubic yards material were removed, an
admixture of sand and clay, chiefly sand, and a cut 1,150 feet long and 75 feet wide,

made with a minimum depth of 8 feet at low water, at a cost of $968.53. All material
overcast.

The obstructions and the duration of the improvement is expected to be, approxi-
mately, six years, when silting will probably necessitate further dredging.

HALCYON.

Halcyon, on the east side of the Upper Arrow lake, about 12 miles south of
Arrowhead, is a large sanitarium and summer resort. It is also the transfer point for

settlers and lumbermen in the vicinity, and is a port of call for all steamers operating

on this lake, both on the up and down trip.

Work on the construction of a wharf was started August 2 and was completed
August 26, 1915, at a cost of $2,180.31.

The wharf is a floating structure, 20 feet by 91 feet, with a floating approach

12 by 166 feet. The main float is held in place by pile dolphins and the floating

approach by a series of single piles. As this wharf replaced an old float previously

used at this point, it was only necessary to construct 27 feet of new approach, as by
the addition of some new float-timber the old approach was rendered serviceable. A
shed, 8 feet by 16 feet, was constructed on this wharf.

HARDY BAY.

Hardy bay is situated at the northern end of Vancouver island, about 250 miles
northwest of Victoria. There is a settlement and government wharf and lumber
mill at Port Hardy, which is the centre of the neighbouring community.

Almost the whole of the piling in the wharfhead having suffered badly from teredo
attack, it was necessary to practically rebuild this portion of the wharf, 100 by 40
feet. The work was carried out by Messrs. James MacDonald and Company, under
contract, for the sum of $1,900, and was commenced August 24 and completed
September 4, 1915.
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KAMLOOPS.

A shelter shed was erected on the Kamloops wharf, by day labour. Work com-
menced August 2 and terminated August 6, and the total cost of structure, including

painting, amounted to $242.03.

KELOWNA.

The Heron was moved from Summerland to Kelowna, where she was engaged
in deepening the slip at the Canadian Pacific Railway Company's transfer wharf,
until March 27. The quantity of material handled was 1,407 cubic yards of sand.

KDJCOLITH.

Kincolith is an Indian village, at the mouth of the Naas river, where it empties

into Observatory inlet. The wharf had been damaged by storms in such a manner
that the renewal of the sway-bracing, the driving of a few fender-piles, and some
additional brace-piles were required. EejJairs were immediately put in hand and
completed, at an expenditure of $600.

LANGLEY.

Langley, twenty new fender and bearing-piles in slip. Replankiug part of wharf

and slip.

Work was done September 1 to 14, 1915.

MCADAMS.

Renewing six fender-piles, planks, guard-rail, and hand-rail. Work was done

October 21 to 23, 1915.

Mcdonald's.

McDonald's, population, approximately 200, is a fruit-growing settlement on the

west arm of Kootenay lake, about 7 miles east of Nelson.

Construction of this wharf was commenced July 10 and was completed August

10, 1915, at a total cost of $4,505.96. The wharf is a floating structure, 40 by 80 feet,

with a floating approach, 16 by 256 feet. The main float is held in place by pile

dolphins, and the approach by single piles, spaced 16 feet centre to centre. A shed,

12 by 16 feet, was constructed on the wharf.

maples.

Maples is a small farming community at the south end of Gabriola island, about

8 miles distant from Nanaimo. A triangular addition, 20 by 13 by 23 feet, was

constructed at the intersection of the approach and the wharf, to enable settlers to

turn teams when leaving the wharf. This was carried out, by day labour, between

July 13 and July 20, 1915. The total cost of the work was $185.30.

MASSETT (new).

JMassett is situated on Massett inlet, Graham island, the most northerly of the

Queen Charlotte islands. These islands are situated about one hundred miles off the

coast of British Columbia, in the Pacific ocean. The wharf at this point had V)ccomc,

through the action of teredos, damaged in such a manner as to require the renewal

ot a few fender-piles, together with some additional sway bracing. Repairs were put

iin hand and completed at an expenditure of $999.47.
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MASSETT (old).

Massett is one of the oldest Indian villages in the Queen Charlotte islands, being

located on Massett inlet near the north coast of Graham island. The wharf at this

point had become so damaged by the action of teredos as to require re-building, and

was renewed in creosoted material, which will render it immune from the attack of

the teredos for a long period of time, probably fifteen years. The total expenditure

necessary to complete the work was $4,6'S9.41.

MATSQUI.

Eenewiug thirteen fender and bearing piles and repairing damaged slip. Work
was done November 15 to November 19, 1915.

NAAS RIVER.

From April 10 until September 30, 1915, the snag boat Naas worked every day

possible on the river, dragging for snags.

During the season there were no events worthy of special notice, beyond the fact

that the season was short and one of extremely heavy tides and storms, which rendered

the number of snags coming down the river much smaller than usual. The previous

year shows one hundred snags secured and destroyed, while this year there were only

forty-three.

NANAIMO HARBOUR.

Nanaimo is on the eastern coast of Vancouver island. There are large wharfs in

tl'e harbour, used for shipping coal, the main export of the port, and many steamers

call for bunker coal. Two channels connect the harbour entrance with the coal wharfs.

They are on the north and south sides of the middle bank, in the centre of the harbour,

respectively.

During 1914, rock was removed by the departmental plant from the north channel

and from Nicol rock. The area fronting the loading wharfs and the south channel

was improved by the removal of gravel and sand, giving a width in the latter of 400

to 500 feet between 30-foot contours. It may be stated that steamers of large size now
go to Nanaimo harbour for coal.

The work carried out during the past year has been the further crushing of rock

by the Lobnitz rock breaker No. 2, and its removal by the departmental dredge Ajax.

Blasting in the harbour is not desirable on account of the colliery workings under the

harbour bottom. The work of the Lobnitz rock breaker has been confined, as before,

to the large area of rock fronting the Western Fuel Company's ballast and loading

wharfs, known as Nicol rock, and on the three large areas of rock in the north

channel, where the object in view is a minimum width of 400 feet, dredged to 30 feet

at low water, the same depth being required at Nicol rock. At the commencement of

the above work in 1914, the estimated quantities < f rock to be removed to the above

depths were as follows:

—

Cubic yards,

place measurement.

Nicol rock 22,259

Block II / . . 3,942

Block I 799

Block J 16,100

Total • 43,160
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The Lobnitz rock breaker was engaged on this -work the whole of the year, and

the departmental dredge Ajax worked on the following dates, in order to remove the

material broken :—August 11-September 7, and September 15 to 23, 1915, and February

15 to March 8, 1916.

During the year the following amounts of rock, hard sandstone, have been

removed :

—

• Cubic yards,

scow measurement.

Xicol rock 8,180

Block H (north end of middle bank) 2,050

Block I (south end of Satellite reef) 550

Block J (south end of Satellite reef) 320

11,100

The estimated quantity of rock broken during the above period was 14,458 cubic

yards, place measurement.

Block I is now practically completed to grade. 2,800 cubic yards of boulders,

haidpan, and gravel, overlying rock, were cleared from Block J, and the breaking of

rock commenced. 1,000 cubic yards of silt and coal were removed adjoining the

Western Fuel Company's loading chutes, giving 30 feet at low water and a mooring

basin, 300 by 100 feet, was dredged to 20 feet below low water, fronting the Vancouver
Nanaimo Coal Company's wharf, 7,200 cubic yards of sand and silt being removed,

together with 1,650 cubic yards of hardpan and mud from Xicol rock, these being scow

measurement quantities.

The total quantity of material de?lt with by the Ajax was as follows :

—

Cubic yards,

scow measurement.

Eoek 11,100

Gravel, hardpan, silt and sand 12,650

23.750

It is proposed to continue the removal of rock, at the above points, during the

coming .year.

NEWPORT.

Newport is situated at the head of Howe Sound, about 40 miles from Vancouver,

and the terminus of the Pacific Groat Eastern railway. The wharf was rebuilt in

the year 1913-14. The e.xpenditure of $265.63 was incurred in constructing steps along

the side of the wharf, to serve as a landing for small boats, and a handrail along each

side of the approach, the work being done by day labour.

Work was commenced on July 2, and completed on July 10.

NEW WESTMINSTER.

The work here consists of repairs to the departmental wharf at New Westminster.
This wharf was in very bad repair and in a dangerous condition on the inner end,

necessitating the strengthening of caps and the renewal of stringers, joists, and deck-

ing on approach and 45 feet of wharf. Several planks and joists were replaced along
the remainder of the wharf. An addition, 80 by 120 feet, was built to allow the snag
boat Samson to dock on the up-river eide. This addition consists of piles, at 10 feet

centres, capped with 10 by 12-inch caps, with a decking between planked with 3 by
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12-inch planking. A slip, 10 by 30 feet, is provided at the outer end, and the slip on

the up-river side enlarged to 20 by 30 feet. The tide gauge and house were moved
nearer the front of the wharf, on account of shoaling where it was situated before.

The Work w.as performed between July 5 and August 31, and between September
27 and October 2, 1915, by day labour, with the departmental plant. The total

expenditure was $3,492.69.

Dredging.

The only dredging done in this vicinity during this fiscal year was performed for

the corporation of the city of New Westminster. The work consisted of the dredging

of sand from Annieville bar, in the Fraser river, and the depositing of the material

behind the bulkhead of the new city market wharf, at an agreed price of 5J cents per

yard, hopper measurement.

In the intervals between July 15 and 30, August 24 and 31, October 12 and
November 12, 1915, 228,000 cubic yards of sand were placed behind the bulkhead by
the dredge No. 303.

NICOMEN SLOUGH.

This expenditure was made for the placing of a fence around No. 2 dam, Nicomen
slough, to prevent damage being done to the dam by cattle straying thereon. The
fencing consists of 330 feet of Ideal fencing, and 1,650 feet of Frost fencing. The
total expenditure was $287.50.

NICOMEN.

Nicomen island, New Westminster district, is situated on the Fraser river about
86 miles east of the city of New Westminster. The island has an area of about 6,750

acres of valuable farm land. The main channel of the river is very rapidly eroding

the southern bank of the island, by reason of the extensive bar that has formed on
the opposite bank, which diverts the strong current of the river towards the island.

This dredging is part of a scheme to divert the water from the Nicomen island

bank and lead it through the bar on the southern bank of the river. In order to

accomplish this diversion, a channel, some 5,500 feet long and 150 wide, is being
dredged. Part; of this channel, to 8 feet at L.W.O.S.T., was dredged by the depart-

mental dredge King Edward during the year 1914-15, but owing to the removal of the

balance proving too difficult for the King Edward, an agreement was entered into

with Messrs. Moore & Pethick, of Victoria, to remove the material to low-water level,

amounting to 245,000 cubic yards, sand and gravel, with teams, donkey engines and
scrapers, the price being 15 cents per cubic yard.

During this year, there were removed 206,917 yards, leaving a balance of 38,083

yet to be removed. The length of cut is approximately 2,400 feet, but the bottom width
is less than the 150 feet intended, owing to the system of excavation. Estimates in

favour of the contractors, to the gross amount of $31,037.55, were forwarded to Ottawa
for payment.

OKANAGAN RIVER.

Work on this service began on May 15, and consisted of repairs to existing

and construction of new bank protection work, and in removing material deposited

on the banks by departmental dredge Heron.

About 1,200 feet north of Beaver creek, double piling, with brush and gravel back-

filling was constructed for a distance of 450 feet. At the bend of river, opposite

Beaver creek, repairs were made for a distance of 150 feet. Protection work No. 2,

on east bank, was rebrushed and gravel back-filled for a distance of 267 feet; and from
this point to Fairview bridge, a distance of 349 feet, double piling, with brush and
gravel back-fill, was constructed, and a flume, 23 feet long, laid near Fairview bridge,

to carry off surface water from roadway south of Fairview bridge. On east bank of

river, protection work No. 3 was rebrushed and back-filled for a distance of 330 feet.
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At the mouth of Beaver creek, a dam was constructed to overcome trouble experi-

enced in previous years through the flood waters of the creek silting up and blocking

the channel of Okanagan river, and scouring the opposite bank. The dam consists of

of single piling, 4-foot centres, with a backing of 3- by 12-iuch plank and 9- by 12-inch

caps and girts, drift-bolted together; the length of dam being 145 feet, all brushed and
back-filled; a fish ladder being inserted near centre of dam. Adjoining the dam, 35

extra piles were driven and bolted to old protection work No. 1.

The work during the year lay mostly between the Kettle Valley Eailway and the

Fairview bridges; the channel being considerably straightened, and the protection

work placed at points necessary to prevent erosion by high water and wash from power

boats.

Work on this service terminated on the 15th November, the total expenditure

being $4,994.83.

As the result of dredging and protection work on the Okanagan river, done during

the last several years, power boats are now running between the Upper and Lower
Okanagan lakes, a regular service being maintained from ilay 1 to November 30,

between Okanagan Falls and Penticton.

Dredging.

The departmental dredge Heron has been employed on the Okanagan lake and
river system since the spring of 1909, in opening up a navigable chaimel between the

Upper and Lower Okanagan lakes, by dredging out a channel in the Okanagan river,

on a uniform grade line, to a depth of not less than 4 feet at low water and having a

width of not less than 40 feet. This has already been partially effected, so that during

last season an uninterrupted daily boat service between the two lakes was maintained,

and as far south as Okanagan FaUs, at the lower end of Lower Okanagan lake.

In addition to the regular work on the Okanagan river, dredging at various

wharfs on the upper lake was done, and for several years during which the Heron was

a combination dredge and pile driver she was employed in protection work along the

river banks and in repairing and extending -wharfs at various landings on the upper

lake.

During the past year, the general work was between the upper lake to more than

half-way down the Okanagan river, and at the Canadian Pacific Railway wharfs at

Summerland, Kelowna and Okanagan Landing.

OK.\NAGAX L.\XDING.

The dredge was ihoved from Kelowna to Okanagan Landing and engaged in

deepening the channel alongside the Canadian Pacific Railway Company's general

wharf, from March 27 to 31. During this time, 474 cubic yards of mud and clay

was overcast, bucket measurement, the place moasurenient being the same; leaving

to be completed the balance of 2,084 cubic yards, place measurement, which was

being proceeded with into next fiscal year.

PITT LAKE FLOAT.

Driving and capping boom piles and raising approach to float. Work was done

September 20 to 24. 1915.

PORT ALBERNL

Port Alberni is an important point on the west coast of Vancouver island, about

135 miles from Victoria. It is situated on a good deep harbour at the head of the

Alberni can il, a natural inlet which communicates directly with the open Pacific.

The city is the western terminus of the Canadian Pacific Railway Company's island

division and the company's steamship makes regular calls. The Canadian Northern
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Pacific railway, now under construction, will also pass through the town. The chief

resources of the district are lumbering, farming, and fishing. Coal has also been

discovered under the town. A post office and high school were erected during 1915.

An agreement was entered into between the Department and the Corporation of

the City of Port Alberni by which the latter agreed to pay one-half the cost of a

wharf, etc., at the end of Argyle street, which was constructed, under contract with

Mr. R. H. Wood & Son, as follows:—Wharf having a frontage of 75 feet and an

average width of 56 feet, approach, 329 by 16 feet, float, 50 by 25 feet, gangway, 36

by 4 feet, and shed, 21 by 16 feet, also breakwater for float 76 feet long. Seventy-six

creosoted piles were delivered on the site by the department in August, 1915, but con-

struction was not commenced imtil November "8, the wharf being completed December

25, 1915.

Authorization was granted on March 7, 1916, for the installation of lighting and

water system at the initial cost to the department. It was agreed by the corporation

of the city of Port Alberni that the future maintenance and cost of all electric power

and water used should be borne by them. The amount expended by the department

was $2,498.93.

PORT CLEMENTS.

Port Clements is at the head of Massett inlet, on Graham island. Queen Charlotte

islands, and is the centre of a timber country, which produces a very large proportion

of the clear spruce used for the construction of aeroplanes for the present war. In

3913, the Department built a wharf which had become so badly damaged by the action

of teredos that it was in danger of falling down. Authority was given to make
temporary repairs. In order to facilitate the completion of this work, arrangements

were made with Mr. W. L. Barton, who agreed to make the wharf secure until an

additional appropriation could be secured. The work done by him cost greatly in

excess of the amount of $500 which he was paid.

POWELL RIVER.

Powell River is a town with a population of about 2,000, situated on the mainland

of British Columbia, 80 miles northwest of Vancouver city. A large paper mill is

located there, with an annual output of about 75,000 tons' of news print paper. The
total tonnage using the harbour is about 370,000 tons per year.

The harbour is protected from southeast winds by a breakwater built in 1911-12

by the Powell River Paper Company, and purchased by the department in that year.

Heavy seas from the southeast, breaking over the work, caused breaches in the break-

water, and it was in the repair of these breaches and to maintain the IJ to 1 slope on

the southeast side that the expenditure of $4,931.72 was incurred.

The work was performed by James McDonald & Company, under agreement, for

$1.60 per ton for rock in place. 3,033 tons of rock were placed in the breaches and in

levelling a footing. Work was commenced on July 13, and completed on August 22,

1915, at a total cost of $4,931.72.

PROCTOR NARROWS.

The west arm of Kootenay lake converges at a point about one mile west of the

outlet of the main lake, to form Proctor narrows. Navigation at this point was very

difficult, especially for launches, due to a current of 8 to 9 miles per hour, cross-

currents, eddies and whirlpools. The departmental dredge Bittern was operating at

this place April 1, 1915, and continued until forced to close down for the high-water

season, June 29. Work was resumed August 17, and proceeded with iintil October

27, 1915, when the dredge was moved to Cedar creek. Dredging again commenced at

the narrows on November 3, 1915, and was discontinued January 20, 1916.
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During the season 1915-16, two cuts were made on opposite sides of the channel.

The cut on the north side, 311 feet long and averaging 60 feet wide, gives a depth of

water, at the low-water stage, of 2 feet. The material moved, sand, gravel and large

boulders, amounted to 6,885 cubic yards, scow measurement. The cut on the south

side of the channel, 1,200 feet in length and averaging 50 feet in width, gives a depth

of water, at low water, of 12 feet. The material removed, sand, gravel and boulders,

amounted to 33,480 cubic yards, scow measurement; expansion factor is 15 per cent.

The yardage at Proctor narrows removed during the season, 40,365 cubic yards,

handled by dump scow, cost $15,379.26.

The improvement made here is of a permanent nature, reducing the current to

4 to 5 miles per hour, and it will doubtless have an effect on the high water stage at

the narrows.

QUATSINO.

Quatsino is a settlement on Quatsino sound, at the north end of Vancouver

island, 250 miles from Victoria. There is a pulp miU and government telegraph

station, jwst oflBce and school. It is a regular point of call of the Canadian Pacific

Railway west coast steamship service.

For the convenience of launches, etc., a float, 20 by 30 feet, and gangway, 30 by 5

feet, were constructed adjoining the wharf. The work was performed«in the interval

of June 14 to July 10, 1915. The total cost of the work, which was done by day labour,

was $432.25.

QUEEN CHARLOTTE CITY.

Queen Charlotte city is a settlement on Skidegate inlet, which is between Graham
and Foresby islands, two of the Queen Charlotte islands, which are located about one

hundred miles in the Pacific ocean, off the coast of British Columbia. The wharf at

this point had become damaged by the action of teredos, and quite unsafe for vessels

to tie up. From botTi an engineering and navigation standpoint the location of

the original wharf was very poor and not economical; in the re-construction, the old

wharf was pulled down and such material as was fit for use was put into the new
wharf, the location of which is about four hundred (400) feet east of the old one.

The new location is much more satisfactory to shipping, and far less expensive in

construction than the old location. The wharf was renewed with creosoted material,

the deck and freight shed being those of the old wharf. The expenditure necessary

to complete this renewal being $5,699.49.

REFUGE BAY.

Kefuge bay is situated on the north coast of Porcher island, about twenty-six

miles southwesterly from Prince Rupert, and is one of the numerous islands along

the westerly coast of British Columbia. The wharf, which was built in 1912, had

been so damaged by the action of teredos that it completely collapsed, and the sum
of $3,000, for renewal, was authorized. A large portion of the material in the old

wharf was used in the re-construction, the piles being renewed with creosoted

material and the old freight shed replaced, making a very satisfactory piece of work,

and one which will not require further attention for probably ten years.

BOYSTON (or hoy's beach.)

Royston is a flag station on the E. &,. N. railway, 130 miles northwest of Vic-

toria, the Cumberland coal mines being about 7 miles distant. There is no organized

community at the landing, but about 200 people are engaged in fanning in the

vicinity.
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Six fender-piles and one bearing-pile were renewed in the wharf head, new deck-

ing On floor of freight shed, and landing steps leading to low water at the back of

the wharf, these, owing to the exposed position of the wharf, were more applicable

than the provision of a float and gangway as originally intended, as the latter would
bo difficult to secure during gales. The work was carried out during the month of

October, 1915, at a cost of $200.

SAANICHTON.

Saanichton is a post office and centre of a farming community, supplying produce

for the Victoria market, 10 miles distant, and is on the Victoria and Sidney railway.

The population is about 150.

A float, 20 by 35 feet, and gangway, 6 by 30 feet, were constructed at the south

end of the wharf, for the convenience of the settlers on the adjacent islands. The
work was commenced at the beginning of May and completed on May 17, 1916. The
total amount expended was $358.35.

SALMOX ARM.

On November 4, the Pelican moved from Seymour Ann to the Salmon Arm
city wharf and commenced work. On December 2, work was closed down for the

season, the Pelican being towed to Chase, where she arrived on December 4 at noon,

and the dredge laid up for the winter.

Whilst at Salmon Arm, 2,186 cubic yards was overcast at the outer end of the

long cut, leading from deep water to the wliarf, leaving 20.264 yards to move before

this work is completed as authorized.

SEASIDE PARK.

Seaside park is a summer resort situated on the west shore of Howe sound,

about 25 miles from Vancouver.

Authority being granted to build a float at this point, a contract was entered into

with James McDonald & Co., on unit prices of $30 per pile, for creosoted piles, $10
per pile for fir piles, $30 per M for lumber, in place, and 12 cents per pound for iron,

ncluding hinges, etc. The work was commenced on June 9 and completed on June
28. 1915.

This work consists of a float, 40 by 60 feet, of cedar logs, with deck of 6- by 8-inch

cross-ties, and 2- by 12-inch planking, and 6- by 6-inch guard rail all around. The
float is held in place by 4 dolphins, braced and tied together with wire cable. A shed,

12 by 16 feet, is built on the float. A gangway, 32 feet long and 4 wide, leads from
the approach to the float. A pile-bent approach, 444 feet long and 8 feet wide, leads

from the shore. This approach is built up of 10- by 12-inch caps, three 6- by 11-inch

stringers, 3- by 12-inch planking, with a 6- by 6-inch guardrail and handrail on each

side. The centre piles of the approach are braced.

The expenditure was $2,982.90.

SEYMOUR ARM.

On October 20, the Pelican left Wilcox's Landing and arrived at Seymour
Arm on October 21, commencing work on the 22nd. The material encountered

being soft gray sand, 2,878 cubic yards of material were overcast; by actual survey,

2,463 cubic yards were overcast, single handled, and 342 cubic yards, double .handled,

a total of 2,805 cubic yards. The work was completed on November 3, the total cost

being $315.06 and the approximate average cost about llj cents per cubic yard.
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SHUSHARTIE BAY.

Shushartie h&y is a regular point of call for the Union Steamship Company,
i"nd is situated -at the north end of Vancouver island, the wharf serving a scattered

farming and lumbering community of about 200 people. The Goletas Fishing Com-
pany have a salmon cannery here.

The renewal of 32 bearing piles was made necessary, owing to the attack of the

teredo; this work was commenced on August 21 and completed August 25, 1915, and
the amount expended was $600.

SICAMORE.

Work was commenced re-dredging a cut, where much of the material previously

dredged had washed back into cut ; 5,905 cubic yards of sand were handled. This work
was completed on August 30. On August 31 the Pelican was towed to Wilcox's

Landing at Salmon Arm.

SIDNEY.

Sidney is a town at the terminus of the Victoria & Sidney Ea'lway (G.N Ky.),

having a population of about 300, and is 17 miles from Victoria. The Great Northern

Eailway have car ferry connection with the mainland here. Sidney has three churches,

a public school and a large sawmill, also telephone comniunication, and malls daily.

The industries are fishing, lumber and agriculture.

Authorization was granted for the renewal of 13 fender and 13 bearing piles,

and repairs to 4 concrete piers in the Marine and Fisheries wharf, to which extensive

repairs are required and which was closed to traffic in consequence. This work was

done in the interval ilareh 13 to 28, 1916, and enabled temporary repairs to be carried

out pending the granting of a further appropriation to complete the necessary repairs

r.Tid renewals required.

SKEENA RIVER.

Operations on the Skeena river wore resumed on April 12 and continued until

October 11. 1915, when the snag boat Ci/gnet was laid up on the beach at Digby island

and placed in charge of a watchman, after her boilers had been washed and the

machinery made ship-shape for the winter.

The total expense for operation and maintenance during the season was $10,763.54.

During the season, five hundred and forty-one (541) snags were secured and
destroyed, against four hundred and forty-seven (447) last year. The cost per snag

therefore this year was $10.88, against $24.23 the previous year, or a decrease in cost

per snag secured, $4.35, with a lessened total operation cost of $78.94.

SKIDEOATE.

Skidegate is an Indian village on Skidegatc inlet, between Graham and Moresby

islands, two of the Quecji Charlotte islands which are situated about one hundred miles

off the west coast of British Cohimbia, in the Pacific ocean. The wharf, at this point,

having become so damaged by teredos as to render it practically useless, it was

neces.sary to renew same. The location of this wharf, in renewal, was changed slightly,

to make a small improvement in the approach, and to render it a little cheaper in con-

.struetion. The deck and freight house in the original wharf were used in making
repairs. The piling was renewed with creosoted material, and the expenditure in

making the necessary improvements was $6;803.3S.
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SOMAS RH'ER.

The removal of twenty snags which were lying in the channel dredged by depart-

mental dredge Mastodon,, in the Somas river, between Port Albemi and Albemi,

during the fiscal year 1911-12, was authorized, these being a source of danger to navi-

gation between the above points. The work was carried out by contract, at a cost of

$400, and was commenced October 14 and completed November 23, 1915.

SOUTH THOMPSON EHER.

The departmental dredge Pelican is employed on the South Thompson river

system, between the city of Kamloops and the Shuswap lakes, in a section of an

extended waterway, navigable at ordinary stage, from Savona at the westerly end of

Kamloops lake, to all points on the Shuswap river as far as Enderby. The range

between high and low water varies from 11 feet in the Shuswap lakes to 25 feet in

Kamloops lake, but there is no certainty of average high water from year to year,

variation in either direction depending on possible consistent differences from normal

temperature during the season of rise.

Dredging has been performed in the Little river and the South Thompson river

at various times and places, with a view of at first rapidly opening the river for light-

draught boats, at less than middle stage, and this end accomplished, work has been

continued in the same and other places to enlarge and deepen the temporary channel

and to improve the whole distance both as regards current and depth, which latter it

is intended to increase to a minimum of 4 feet at low water.

During the fiscal year 1915-16, the operations of the dredge Pelican were con-

fined to increasing the depth and width, and in straightening cuts made in former

yeare through bars in the South Thompson river, in the vicinity of Shuswap, and at

landings at several points on Shuswap lake.

SPILLER RRER.

Spiller river is located on the east coast of Porcher island, one of the numerous
inlands along the westerly coast of British Columbia, and is about thirty miles in a

southwesterly direction from Prince Rupert. The wharf which was built in 1912 had
become so damaged by the action of teredos as to have completely collapsed.

Authority was received to renew the wharf, and part of the material in the old wharf
was used and the wharf renewed with creosoted piles in a most satisfactory manner.
It is now in such a condition that it probably requires no further repairs for ten

or fifteen years. The expenditure necessary to complete this wharf wa^ $3,918..34.

SQUAMISII RIVER.

The Squamish river flows through the town of Newport into the head of Howe
sound. A considerable logging business is engaged in along its banks and the logs

are floated down to the mouth. Some of those logs and the drift brought down in

freshets collect in jams and obstruct the free passage of the water, thus endangering
the low-lying lands around the mouth, which are liable to flood. This expenditure of

$903.15 was incurred in the removal of these obstructions from the main channel of

the river, the work being carried out by day labour.

Work was started on May 25, and completed about July 31, 1915, the total ex-

penditure being $903.15.

STAVE RIVF.n.

Stave river enters the Fraser river about 25 miles above New Westminster, on
the north bank. Extensive logging operations are carried on at Stave lake, and about
30,000,000 feet of logs are put into the water each year, to bo floated down the river.
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thence into the Fraser. The work done was the deepening of the river at the end of

ji log roll, used by the Western Canada Power Company, to dump logs from a railway

from the logging camps.

It being impossible to get a dredge into Stave river, owing to the fixed bridge of

the Canadian Pacific Railway Company at its mouth, the work had perforce to be
done with a scraper and donkey engine, by day labour. This necessitated the purchase
of a scraper, blocks, cables, etc.

The cut has an average length of 260 feet, an average width of 130, and is

dredged to 6 feet below assumed low water at this point. The amount of material

removed was 3,'824 cubic yards, in place, of sand and debris. Work was started on

October 4 and completed on November 30, 1915.

Tlie dredging is probably all that will be required for some time to come.

STEVESTON.

The work being done at the mouth of the main branch of the Fraser river has

for its object the confining of the waters passing over the sandheads to a defined

channel, which is being dredged parallel to the training piers. The proposed jetty

on the north side of the channel is 27,000 feet long. Of the total length there was
completed by March 31, 9,200 lineal feet, including 0,900 lineal feet, the first unit.

The work done during the fiscal year 1915-16, is the building of the second unit

of this jetty with a length of 7,100 feet. The contract for the construction of this

second unit was let to The Marsh, Hutton, Powers Company, of New Westminster,

and work was begun on June 18, 1915. The work consists of a brush mattress and
rock mound which is made up of the following materials, the quantities being

approximate: brush mattresses, 120,262 cubic yards; lumber, 426,000 feet B.M.,

large rock, 48,350 tons; small rock, 77,800 tons.

Of this, the following materials have been placed up to March 31, 1916: Brush in

mattresses, 106,300 cubic yards; lumber, 34,300 feet B.M.; large rock, 22,500 tons;

small rock, 71,183 tons; 5,700 lineal feet of apron mattress, and 4,800 lineal feet of

upper mattress has been completed, and rock has been laid for a distance of 2,.300

lineal feel.

The total expenditure on this work to March 31, 1916, is $285,859.86.

Dredging.

Steveston, New Westminster district, is situated at the mouth of the Fraser river,

about 17 miles from New Westminster, and is the centre of the salmon fishing and
canning industry on the Fraser river.

Authority being granted to do certain dredging in a channel of the river, which

fronts on ten or more canneries, and which is used by numerous fishing boats and
shipping steamers, work was started on June 17 and completed on July 15, 1915,

by the departmental dredge King Edivard.

The completed cut is 1,750 feet long, with a minimum width of 150, to 8 feet

below low water at this point. The material is sand and silt, the total amount removed
being 66,740 cubic yards, including 2,310 yards below subgrade, place measurement.

Dredging was done here in 1913-14, and it is probable that shoaling will again

take place, necessitating further dredging in two or three years. If the cut were con-

tinued east to deep water it is probable that the action of the water would keep the

channel scoured out. An additional 1,000 feet would bo required to accomplish this.

Dredge captain's returns make quantity removed at this place 99,715 cubic yards,

which shows that a considerable amount of filling-in occurred during progress of work.
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STIKIXE RIVER.

Stikiue river is in northern British Columbia and flows in a southvresterly direc-

tion and empties into the Pacific ocean at Wrangell, Alaska; the first thirty-five miles,

proceeding- up-stream from its mouth, is in American territory, but the balance, one

hundred and thirty miles, to Telegraph Creek, the head of navigation, is in British

Columbia. The river is the main artery of travel and trade between thn coast and the

fur and mining district of northern British Columbia. This river had become

dangerous to navigation through trees having been washed into it and jammed on

certain bars. To render the improvements thorough it is necessary to work during

the winter, late fall and early spring, or during the low stage of water. In the fall of

1915, a few of the most dangerous points where snags and trees had jammed were

attacked. During the winter, our endeavours have been expended on a particularly

dangerous rapid known as Glenora riifle, at which point several large boulders have

been blasted out and a certain dangerous point removed; this work is still in progress.

During the coming year, there will be eight freight and passenger boats plying on the

river, owing to the discovery of veiy valuable mines and what is expected to be a

large placer deposit above the botindary at Telegraph Creek. The work undertaken is

of inestimable benefit to traders, trappers, prospectors and the public generally along

this river. The total expenditure to the end of the fiscal year is $5,611.02.

SQMMERL.'VXD.

The dredge Heron commenced dredging alongside the Canadian Pacific Eailway

Company's transfer slip. Work was continued until 5th February, when it was

suspended owing to severity of weather until 6th March, when work was resumed

and continued until 17th March, when, being completed, the dredge was moved to

Kelowna. A total of 1,996 cubic yards was handled at Summorland, of which 848

yards was single-handled and 1,11'3 yards double-handled.

T.A,MBOLIXE SLOUGH.

Tamboline slough, New Westminster district, runs from north to south through

Westham island, from the Fraser river to the sandheads at the mouth of Canoe pass.

It is at the south end of the slough that dredging was done this year by the dredge

King Edward to allow small freight boats to run up the slough to collect grain, hay

and other farm produce.

On their own responsibilit.v, the Navigation Dredging Company, of Vancouver,

dredged here in 1914-15. They cut 1,050 feet, 80 feet wide, to 7 feet at L.W.O.S.T.,

removing about 19,478 cubic yards of silt and sand, place measurement. This depth

of 7 feet was not maintained as the material partly slipped and partly blew back into

the cut, being deposited along the edges of the cut itself.

On April 26, 1915, the King Edward started work and completed the cut to the

bridge over the slough on 10th June, 1915.

The cut has a length of 3,200 feet, the width varying from 85 to 130 feet ; the

total amount of material removed being 123,660 cubic yards sand, in place. The
material was pumped behind the bulklaead at the bridge, filling up the slough behind,

and on the banks of the slough strengthening the dykes. It is expected that this work
is of a permanent nature.

The dredge captain's returns show a quantity of 128,510 cubic yards removed.

TIIOJIPSOX Rn-ER.

During the past fiscal year, a cut was lengthened 188 feet, by 45 feet in width,

by 5 feet in depth, 940 cubic yards, by bucket measurement, of sand and gravel being

overcast and dumped on side of cut, the place measurement being practically the same

19—22
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This work being completed, the dredge was then moved to Cobiiru's bar; this cut,

first dredged during fiscal year 1914-15, was widened by 45 feet, for a distance of 804

feet, average depth of face being 3 feet, 400 cubic yards of clay and gravel being

single-handled, and 3,220 yards double-handled; the place measurement being the same.

This work commenced on 9th April and was completed on 26th May.
On the 27th May, the Pelican returned to Chase for repairs, leaving there on 2nd

August for Sioamous, where she arrived on 3rd August.

TWO BEACON BAR.

The departmental dredge Sheldrake commenced operations at the lower end of

Two Beacon bar ou October 27, 1915, and continued till ice conditions forced the

dredge to tie up on January 11, 1916. Work was resumed March 6 and completed

March 31, 1916. During these two periods, a cut, 3,600 feet long and 75 feet wide,

was made through sand and clay, and 48,850 yards of material were removed, all over-

east; expansion factor is 15 per cent.

This cut gives an all-year channel for steamers with a minimum depth of eight

feet at low water.

The total cost of work was $5,865.94.

UNION BAY.

Union Bay is an important community having a post and custom oifice, also

government telegraph and telephone, and is situated on Baynes sound, 50 miles north-

west of Kanaimo, and 7 miles from the Cumberland mines, for which it is the point of

shipment. Mail 5 times weekly.

The work carried out consisted of the renewal of 29 fender-piles at the front of

the wharf, also 4 braces and two bearing-piles in wharf and approach respectively.

Construction was commenced about the beginning of August and completed August

25, 1915, at a total cost of $510. The work was carried out, by contract, by Messrs.

James MacDonald & Company.
Additional repairs to above wharf and approach were subsequently found to be

necessary, 27 piles, also 3 fender and 5 brace-piles in the latter were renewed, also 3
*

fender and 5 brace-piles in the wharf head, together with other minor repairs. These

repairs \*ere also done by contract by the above firm and were commenced about the

beginning of October and completed October 23, 1915. The sum of $550 was expended.

UPPER ERASER AND TRIBUTARIES.

Two parties were formed, one to operate on the Tachi river and the other on the

Stuart river.

The Tachi river party left Vanderhoof on August 31, and arrived at Port St.

James on Septemb r 1; the Stuart river party leaving two days later and arriving

on 3rd. Two boats were built, one for each party; and on September 7, both

parties left for the points to which they were, resi)ectivoly, assigned for work.

The work on the Tachi river was a continuation of that done during the autumn
of 1914, and consisted of removing boulders of various sizes from a located channel,

for the purpose of enabling power boats to ascend the river from Stuart lake to Trem-
bleur lake, thence by the Middle river to Tacla lake. There is now a fairly good
channel throughout tliis whole distance, and it is hoped that a further small expendi-

ture, during the autumn of 1910, will complete this work so that ordinary river steam-

boats can operate at any stage of water.

Work on the Stuart river was done throughout its whole length from Stuart lake

to the mouth at Nechaco river, a distance of approximately 75 miles. A fairly good
channel has been provided for power boats from the head of Chinlac rapids to Stuart
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lake, aud a passage opened through these rapids by which a steamboat can pass with

comparative safety during a fair stage of water.

Regarding the head of Chinlac rapids as one terminal, and the head of Tacla lake ,

es the other, there is now a fair water route open through the Stuart lake district for

a distance of 195 miles, made up as follows :

—

Stuart river 75 miles.

Stuart lake • 26 "

Tachi river 13 "

Trembleur lake 8 "

Middle river 23 "

Tacla lake 50 "

Total 195 "

On 30th November, work terminated, tools and camp outfit being stored, part at

Fort St. James and the balance in a cabin on the Stuart river.

The total expenditure on this service amounted to $12,462.11, about evenly divided

between the two works, Tachi and Stuart.

VALDES ISLAND.

Authorization was granted for the construction of a landing at the north end of

Valdes island about 14 miles from Nanaimo, and completed as follows : Float, 24
feet 5 inches by 16 feet 4 inches; approach, 25 feet by 4J feet, and gangway, 26 by

2J feet, together with reinforced concrete piers at head of gangway. Construction was
commenced August 5, aud completed September 11, 1915, at a total cost of $399.30.

VANCOUVER.

This wharf is fully described in annual report for 1915.

Work was commenced on October 1, 1913, and completed on October 31, 1915.

The iinal estimate, amounting to $1,748,498.73, was forwarded to Ottawa for

payment, of which amount $5,362.61 was for extras. Inspection expenses, amounting
to $5,594.34, were paid from this office, making a total expenditure for the year of

$773,837.37.

The extras included $1,484.78 for bulkhead on the west side of the backfill, and
$2,458.17 was expended for floating logs instead of lower waling.

The other item for extras amounted to $1,419.70, for a floating wharf for small

boats to land at. This float is built of cedar logs, cross-ties and planking, with a gang-
way 44 feet long and 6 feet wide, leading from the wharf level to the float, hinged to

a concrete block sunk in the ground.

Small wharf.

Authority was received on January 26 to enter into an agreement with Messrs.

Snider Bros. & Brethour for the construction of a wharf in front of the immigration
building, for the sum of $4,549.

The wharf, as built, consists of a pile-bent and timber-decking wharf, 30 feet

wi3e' and 240 feet long, extending the whole length of the detention shed.

There is an approach, 14 feet wide, on the east side and on the west side

of the wharf, and a float, 12 feet by 30 feet, let in the northeast comer. Creosoted
piling was used for both main piles and bearing piles.

Work on this wharf was commenced March 11 and completed April 7.

19—22i
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VASCOUVER.

Dredging.

First Narroii's.—lhe entrance to Burrard inlet from the sea is througli n con-

tracted channel known as the First Narrows. This channel is of varying width, the

least being opposite Prospect point, where it was originally 450 feet, between 30-foot

contours. The work being done at this time has for its object the widening of this

channel to 1,200 feet, and deepening it to 35 feet below L.W.O.S.T. This work is

being performed by the departmental ladder dredge Mastodon, working day and night

shifts. The following table gives the details of the work :

—

Dates between which work was performed.
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On March 3, 1913, a contract was awarded to the Pacific Dredging Company, of

Vaucouver, to remove 3,300,000 cubic yards of various materials at a flat rate of 21

cents per cubic yard, place measurement. A further amount of 542,000 yards was

authorized on December 24, 1913. This material was taken out of the turning basin

at the inner end of the cut. This makes a total of 3,842,000 yards authorized to be

removed from False creek. Of this amount there has been removed up to March 31,

1916, 3,236,451 cubic yards. Tip to March 3, 1915, there had been removed 1,846,281

yards, showing that 1,330,170 yards clay, sand, gravel, shells and boulders have been

removed during 1915-16. It is not possible to give the dimensions of the dredging

done this year, as operations have been carried on over so many parts of the channel

and over areas already partly dredged. The total amount remaining to be done after

March 31, 1916, according to amount removed to that date, and amount authorized,

is 605,549 cubic yards.

Estimates to the gross amount of $679,654.71, in favour of the contractors, have

been forwarded to Ottawa for payment.

VICTORIA.

The Dominion Government wharf is used by boats belonging to the Public Works
and Marine and Fisheries Departments, when loading supplies in connection with

dredging operations and the lighting and buoying of the coasts.

Fifteen fender-piles were renewed including 4-pile corner dolphin, also 5 creosoted

fender-piles were drawn and re-driven together with renewal of chocks. The work was
commenced at the beginning of August and completed August 17, 1915, at a total cost

of $185.

Breal-ivater.

The breakwater at Ogden Point, 2,500 feet long, is practically complete.

The core stone was completed during the fiscal year 1914-15; the grand total

being 241,925 tons.

The mound is complete to the beginning of the second curve, and from there is

nearly completed up to low-water mark to outer end. The rubble stone placed in the

mound, during the fiscal year, was 237,861 tons.

The granite has been laid under water to the end of the second curve, and above
low water, the course, except the top one, have been completed to within 100 feet of the
beginning of the second curve. The bottom course has been eliminated from the

beginning of the second curve; quantity laid, during the fiscal year was 79,918 tons.

The mass concrete blocks, up to elevation 21 to end of the middle tangent and
the middle block of the second 'curve have been completed, making a total length of

1,804 feet. Extra concrete, due to settlement of blocks, has been added to the extent

of 140 cubic yards ; 24 feet of joining wall was built on the end of the breakwater last

fiscal year; the quantity during the fiscal year amounted to 3,405 cubic yards and the
total of 1.3.5 concrete was 14,031 yards.

Practically all excavation was completed during the past fiscal year 1914-15, none
being done this year. The small portion that remains to be done is in the vicinity of
the joining -svall. The total rock excavation, to date, is 54,647 cubic yards. The expend-
iture for the fiscal year is $635,472.73.

Wharf.

' The total amount of earth excavation allowed is 45,228 cubic yards.

The total amount of rock excavation allowed is 12,000 cubic yards.

The mound is practically complete, the quantity deposited during the fiscal year
being 36,524 tons.

Gravel has been deposited for crib-beds over the greater part of the surface of the
rubble mound. A length of 1,890 feet has been levelled off ready to receive cribs; this
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material wLen deposited is classified as rubble and paid as such. When levelled off it

is deducted from tlie rubble quantities and paid for as broken stone to the depth of

one foot, balance is paid for as rubble. The quantity of broken stone deposited during

the year amounts to 1,778 cubic yards.

Two 80-foot cribs were sunk on bulkhead east side of pier 2-, and seven were sunk on
east side of the pier, three 80-foot cribs and one 90-foot crib were sunk on west side of

pier 2. Four 80-foot cribs were sunk on bulkhead between piers Nos. 2 and 3, and one
80-foot crib on east side of pier 3, making a total of eighteen cribs sunk during this

Si'eal year. Two 80-foot cribs having been sunk during the fiscal year 1914-15, making
a total of twenty cribs sunk to March 31, 1916, and one afloat ready to sink.

Total concrete in eighteen cribs sunk, 1915-16, including 50 per cent of one crib

launched, but not sunk, is 22,498-11 cubic yards.

Reinforcing steel in cribs amounts to 1,573,761 tons.

The amount of filling placed in cribs for 1915-16, was 16,988 cubic yards, which
amounts to about 30 per cent of the required amount for cribs that are sunk in position.

The backfill has been placed in the piers nearly up to the 35-foot level, and practic-

ally none has been placed between the bulkheads and shore, the quantity placed is

83,534 cubic yards.

Dredging.

The dredging carried out during the past year had as its' object improvements to

the entrance to the harbour, by the removal of rock and silt, near Shoal point and of

the channel to James bay, especially by the removal of rock in the vicinity of Pelly

island and Songhees point. The navigable area is being gradually increased year by
year and the required depth of 20 feet below low water over areas already covered,

is being maintained. The following plant has assisted in the work done: Dredges
Ajax, MudlarJc, Victoria, Lohnitz rock breaker No. 1, and drill plants Nos. 1 and 2.

During the year, the dredge Ajax was absent, at Nanaimo, on two occasions, about

twelve weeks in all, while the dredge MudlarJc became submerged and lost, approxi-

mately, six weeks' work for this reason.

The turning basin outside the outer wharfs was increased by an additional area

of 4i acres, dredged to 30 feet below low water, to facilitate ocean-going vessels when
backing and turning when leaving the outer wharfs. Dredging was also undertaken

in the dock, at the outer wharfs, in order to provide the required grade of 30 feet

below low water where silting had taken place.

Silting having taken place in the channel between Shoal point and Work
island, near the entrance to the inner harbour, it was necessary to re-dredge this area,

which at the end of the fiscal year was practically all to grade, while an additional

width of 70 feet was provided on the easterly side of the channel between the outer

wharfs and Shoal point. Off Shoal point an additional width of 130 feet has been pro-

vided by the removal of rock and the subsequent removal of sand, etc., made accessible

thereby, which gives a much easier entrance to vessels rounding this point, and which
is much appreciated by mariners. As this portion of the harbour is exposed to southeast

winds, works can only be undertaken under favourable weather conditions, and it is

frequently necessary for the dredges to leave for a more sheltered part of the harbour,

when working in this vicinity. Great improvement has been effected by the removal
of rock adjacent to Pelly island. Princess rock having been cut back approximately

120 feet, to a depth of 18 feet at low water, and Platform rock has been almost totally

removed. At the beginning ol 1914, this rock was dry at low water and is now, with
minor exceptions, to the required grade of 20 feet below low water. The beacon marking
the channel at this point has been moved 250 feet west and 100 feet north of its posi-

tion one year ago, with the result that vessels are now enabled for the first time in the

navigation of the harbour to take an approximately straight course between Laurel

point and the bend in the channel at Shoal point.
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An additional average width of Y5 feet dredged to grade was provided in the

narrowest part of the channel on its northerly side, between Soughees and Laurel
points; the removal of rock, and also of clay and hardpan, in order to render further

rock available for removal, is in progress on the easterly side of Songhees point and
in the direction of the Eastern & Northern Kailway bridge. Additional width here will

bf of considerable benefit to the Canadian Pacific Railway Company's boats when
backing and turning at this point after leaving their dock.

Additional facilities have been provided for Government vessels by the provision

of a mooring basin, dredged to IS feet at low water, adjoining the Government wharf.

On the west side of the upper harbour, between Hope and Ellice points, an addi-

tional width of 130 feet has been provided, dredged to grade, also a considerable

addition to the navigable area of the channel between the Victoria machinery depot
and Rock Bay bridge. The only obstacle remaining in the upper harbour is Turpel
rock, in its centre, but there is a channel on either side of this rock, and its removal is

not as urgently required as that of rock in other parts of the harbour.

A channel 70 feet wide, and varying from 5 to 2 feet at low water, was dredged in

Rock bay leading from the upper harbour, in order to provide a channel, navigable for
fecows, to the wharfs at the south-easterly end of the bay. This work was undertaken
by the orange peel bucket dredge Victoria, as was also a channel to the city asphalt
plant, YO feet in width, and having a depth of 5 feet at low water, except at its upper
end where the nature of the material did not allow. This was provided in order to

give facilities for transportation of road-making material, by scows, to this point.

Summary of material removed from Victoria harbour during the year :

—

Cubic yards.

Rock.

Shoal point 2,985

North side of channel in vicinity of Pelly island and

Songhees point 33,435

At pier sites, Ogden point, testing nature of material. ... 30

Cubic yards.

Hardpan, clay and silt.

To SO feet lelow L.W.L.—

Outer wharfs and turning basin adjacent 44,955

ToW feet lelow L.W.L.—

Improvements to and widening of channel between entrance

to harbour and Songhees point 85,020

West side of channel between Songhees point and Eastern &
Northern Railway bridge 86,565

Mooring basin at Dominion Government wharf 2,500

Tipper harbour—west side 31,900

Upper harbour—between Victoria machinery depot and
Rock bay 51,490

Tc 6 feet lelow L.W.I

Rock bay 22,6Y6
Channel to city asphalt plant 12,896

At pier sites, Ogden point, testing nature of material. . . . 390

Total excavation during the year, scow measurement. . . . 374,882
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The quantities of rock to be credited to the drill plants and rockbreakor are as

follows :

—

Lobnitz roekbreaker iVo. 1 18,1 95 cubic yards.

Brill plant No.l 9.420

Drill plant No. 2 8,805
"

36.420
"

Testing bottom on new pier's site 30 "

36,450

The excavated material was removed as follow^

By dredge Ajar. . .

Mndlarh.
"

Victoria

.

Rock.

33,385

3.065
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widened to 40 feet, with a slip, 10 by 20 feet, at the outer end. The decking con-

sists of 8 by 11 stringers, 4 by 10 joists, 10 by 12 caps and 3 by 12 planking.

The work was performed by the Fraser River Pile-Driving Company, under

agreement, at $16.20 per thousand feet, B.M., for lumber, including all iron for fas-

tening and paint for handrail, and $5.30 per pile for driving, the department supply-

ing all material.

Work was commenced May 21 and completed July 28, lOl.'i, and was completed

at a total cost of $10,157.34.

WHONNOCK.

Four new fender piles, chocks and braces and replacing old planks in wharf.

Work was done September 15 to 17.

Wilcox's landing, s.^lmon arm.

Dredging.

The material removed consisted of a stiff blue clay, very difficult to handle, and

as the dipper could not be made to penetrate more than a few inches at a time, pro-

gress was consequently slow; 5,542 cubic yards of material were overcast; by actual

place measurement the cut made was 848 feet in length, by 37-5 feet avel'age width, by

3-61 feet average depth; the amount of material removed being 4,251 cubic yards,

single-handed. The work was completed on October 19; the total cost of the work
being $1,138.36, and the approximate cost per cubic yard 26-73 cents.

WILLIA5I HEAD, QUARAXTIXE STATION.

William Head is a quarantine station on the Juan de Fuca strait, 10 miles by

water from Victoria, where ocean-going steamers report before proceeding to Victoria

and Vancouver.

The following improvements aiid repairs were performed during the fiscal year

ending March, 1916

:

Coal wharf.—Indication showed that additional support was required in order

to carry the weight of the coal stored in the coal shed, the latter was therefore removed
and three new bents were added between the existing bents, consisting of 6 creosoted

piles, with 12- by 12-inch caps, the stringers, posts and decking were renewed and the

shed replaced and repaired. The approach to the coal wharf was repaired and the slip

practically rebuilt. Ten fender piles were renewed at the front and five at the side of

the wharf, together with the necessary chocks. Two new dolphins, consisting of 6

creosoted piles, were driven at the side of the coal wharf and the three existing ones

removed. The dolphin near the front of the coal wharf was reinforced with 6 new
creosoted piles.

Main wharf.—Six new fender-piles were driven in front of the main wharf and
cabled together in clusters of 5 piles each. One bent of the northerly approach to the
main wharf was renewed and the inclined approach to the float was repaired and raised

2 feet at its lower end.

Engineer's tool shed.—A new shed, 15 by 20 feet, was built on the approach to the

coal wharf, fitted with benches and lockers. The exterior was 1 by 6 rustic, with
shingled roof, and painted to conform with the other buildings upon the wharf.

Cribwork.—Seventy feet of log cribwork was built at H.W.M., in continuation of

the existing cribwork at the rear of the main wharf, to prevent erosion. The cribwork
was double, tied in with 6 by 8 stringers and drifted with | drift iron. The filling was
of rock and gravel. Some odd time was also spent in improving the road to the station.

The work was carried out by day labour, and was commenced June 22 and completed
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September 30, 1915, with the exception of the repairs to the approach to the main
wharf, which were done during December, 1915. The total amount expended was
$2,872.91.

\ r

DEEDGING OPEEATIONS.

The detail description of work done by the different dredges will ie found under

the name of the place, in the body of the report.

Where dredging is described and classified as "A" or " B," the explanation is:

—

Class A.—Solid rock requiring drilling and blasting, and boulders containing two

cubic yards or more.

Class B.—Loose or shale rock, silt, sand, quicksand, mud, shingle, gravel, clay,

clay and sand, giunbo, boulders, hardpan or material of any kind whatsoever except

that specified under class A.

The following tables cover the work done by each particular government dredge

and the classification of expenses, under the different headings, wiU be readily under-

stood by the following definitions:

—

Wages.—Comprise the pay-roll from the day the plant starts work in the spring until

the last day of operation in the fall. This includes the regular crew as well as extra

help employed during the above time. In British Columbia, where season differs from

other provinces, " wages " wiU consist of pay-rolls for all time plant is in operation,

except when laid up during rainy season or for special repairs. (See definition under

Repairs.)

Fuel.—All expenditure incurred for the purchase of coal, wood or fuel-oil used

under boilers.

Waier.—Cost of providing suitable water for boiler and other purposes, when

necessary.

Subsistence.—^Includes everything that goes to board of crew, such as cost of pro'

visions purchased for allowance made for board of crew, also ice, laundry, fuel used

in cooking; galley and dining room equipment.

Wharfage.—Consists of charges for wharfage as well as harbour dues, if any.

Pilotage.—Payment for services of special pilots including their travelling

expenses.

Stores, Machinery.—Stock of valves; pipe and pipe fittings; chain; hose; hard-

ware; waste; oils, grease; packing; tools; bolts; iron; wire and manila rope, etc.

General.—Stock of brooms, brushes, paint, paint oils and varnishes, etc.

Repairs.—The cost of keeping the plant in an efficient state of repair consists of :

—

Labour.—The wages paid from the date operations are discontinued in the fall

until resumed in the spring; also wages paid while the plant may be laid up for repairs

during the working season, the latter being the proportion of the pay-roll which tlie

total time lost due to repairs bears to the total possible working time.

Materials.—Supplies and parts purchased and used in making repairs; accounts

for outside labour and materials employed in making repairs; subsistence, fuel, water,

wharfage, pilotage, towage and contingencies during the period plant is laid up in

winter quarters or is under repairs.

Rented Tugs.—All payments made in connection with any tugs not the property

of the department.
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Contingencies.—To consist of all small items of expense not otherwise classified,

sucli as railway fares and travelling expenses, freight and express charges, drayage,

telegrams, etc.

In the following tables, the work done by each particular Government dredge is

for the period embraced in the calendar year; as a consequence the cost of work at

any locality will probably not agree with the cost shown in the Accountant's report

as the latter statement gives the cost of work at the locality based on the esrpenditure

during the fiscal year.



348 DEPABTMEXT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

z

a

fc. g
O o

K -=

Z "

> s

§^
ft. s

5 B

E S

0) 3

1- o

d
Z
Q

o
Q

^ W3

C OCSO

1 = P

15

O ^3 eo^o

>= 2

O -^ "C —

3 at! 03: O C2

O 00—• 00lOOOOCO



REPORT OF THE CHIEF ENGINEER 349

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19



350 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

O o

« g

S 5

i



REPORT OF THE CHIEF ENGINEER
SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

351



352 DEPARTMEXT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

Z

o

11
o s

O
Q

1



REPORT OF THE CHIEF ENGINEER 353

SfSSTDNAL PAPER No. 19



354 DEPARTMEXT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

Eh

o
O

<
>
O

b.

O

>
o
«
a.

o
a



REPOIiT OF THE CHIEF ENGINEER 355

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19



356 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917



\

REPORT OF THE CHIEF ENGINEER 357

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19



358 DEPARTMBINT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

o
CO

>
O
z
b
O

o
t—l>
o
(1,

Q
2

a
Q
H
«

Si



REPORT OF TEE CHIEF ENGINEER 359

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

£3.

31

•9 S

«. =1

» ".

3S ^ M

S5

3 .

.S

8

E-S

o ^



360 DEPARTMKST OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. '1917

C
H
H
O
Z .

o s i
!^ fc, ^

2S o =

P > ^
K Q S

< £ <

fa B 5

O H °

o
Q



REPORT OF THE CHIEF EyGINEEB 361

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

o c> n- c i~
CO CC ^^
OS in tcec

oa

1 =

tn ^ OS 00 c*i

w t- CI o —

3 ©

O t^ N O CC

«0 "«'t~-CO
OOO W2 M

W^Q

COCO

eo cc ec C'^

.-^'

(22 £2

OP3(i.O

a o

X to

3^-J

c ooo
^CO CiO

Is
—"3

5 =i - -

> tj o
O o o

© ^ > o
a "So©

>- a -

« S£2

o nunO

3 3

= t!J3

to

SO

c o

ajg.

S

Slit
k. i_ a o



362 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

Q
Z
3

Q

<

O
z
5
d,

b
o
W So =

g-
. S

< <

H g
H

o a

S
°

^ i

S Q

Z

Q

Q



REPORT OF TEE CHIEF ENGmEER 363

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

23

- ift O C-J C5 t^ 'O o
Wco-fOiOCO^O
CIO -^ccco ^ —

•

M Cl «3 Oi C'l CJ CjO 00

« c> -rf « —. s to
,- -^j" eo c-j >o 03 CO

ec-^ -' to oi oi CI
C^ CO ^H cs cs c-i

"t-lOOCM«OCO
O) o -^ — t— r- cc

^^ <N 00 •-• M CO CO

HOOOOO

O-H—.cmci—"O
00 C-l -^ 00 o O —I

5
I

a>4

eo^Hoo ^©a to o^ I^ C*» aoO Oi -^
* -O CO 00^ '^ CO CO "

ooo o ooo

— :3

OS O
=a

o

CO «0 CD -a' CD (O -^

-''^CJO-i'eOOit'.
CO* Oi O 00 t^ -*<

coo ^"* Tj< -.JH

•^5

Oo

CI d e; Oi CJ 05 3sO O w o o o o
lO »0 lO "O lO "O lO

•« m o o o o o
c-i r~ c lo lo lO lO^ f- =^ eo ei PS iM

« o " o S a •

S22S22S
0) o o £> <D a> a>

.*:> +^ ^ *^ *:> 4^ tj
_o _o^ _o _o _o _o

n s] g3 9] o3 0] c4
jd J3 j=I^ jq J3 jqOOOOOQO

:£.a a §

«

a iS '^S^ j4

a B a £ 2
rt OJ 5J ^ .

3 3 3 3_2 3 o

£-(i0C01'OMCJC0

3 g-g-o o 55

a-fg-g'oo E
•g.gcoigo2Q

2222222 «
«J .»J «^ *:> *^ *:. «j
_o _o _o _o _o _o _o

0] O n oi c] SI cd
jj ja j3 j=3 _a ja j=iOOOOQOO

«coe»'*o

t^o

2§1

£-9^S

^ o ?* S—

3 c a ~ a
o g o = a

<i <
CO t^ C") M OO O r^
t-^ -r r^ •-< o; ei

'.a

,« S o o 2 a • .0

2222222
ffl © 3J © O flj 4)

_0_0_0 O O O O

sJ 03 rt d 0] 03 o]
-jajn-ajqjg-aja
oouoouo

am

-S3
O (3

-So

*Q

2 M
E.s

^£

" a

S a

O 3
atz;

^-2

o-i?

sa

- b/l

11

2§

MSI
o_-

11

.a.a

ffi o «^ o a ca .

2222222
c £ 9 ^ s o o

^_o_o_o_o_o O

a a a a a a a
j:3 .c j3 .^ ..a j:} .£]OOOOOOO

•§2

O pea



364 DEPARTMENT OF PVBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

g^

(1. g
. <



REPORT OF THE CHIEF EyOINEER 365

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19



366 DEPARTilEXT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V^ A. 1917"

o

m
2
P .

rt 2
n s

Z .
a

O s

b>- y a

ft •^

o

Z 2

O
Q

xarS ooc 00

CO c oc
'rr> O •-_ Cs CO

c-v eaoo

cc » £ bC ^
.55



REPORT OF THE CHIEF ENGINEER 367

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19



368 DEPARTMEyr OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

CO

Z
»

s:

^ s

z s

o "

H 2

s °

(^ s

^- ^

Z o
at

q ^.

^ k
PL, Q

O
Q

SI

2d2

— as — ec -^

O «

t—C^-^Ci

M >-,_i O O O 00

. CJ ra o OCR--M M u~ — S-3 CO

O C3

r~m *n -^

o c^ cseo

Ci lO CO

00 M« O

o c< cj ^

o »n — -

d-iooeo
to so — CO
OS-.

g.2

If

II

i

5.= S =

;ll
3— e

pi
.5 i -

N i^t— eo O —

'

tpoco c^ ocs
to«sb- r^—

w

Pi ipi N —

t^ca <

ss



REPORT OF THE CHIEF ENGINEER 369

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19



370 DEPARTMEyT OF PVBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

O

2

S3
U
z
>
oa

a
sj

3



REPORT OF THE CHIEF E\OiyEER 371

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19



372 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

E-
O
O
in

<>
O
z

O =

B §O S
£ >•

> »
C B
(S 5
(S< E-

• a °

S 5

O
&

K
C
Q



REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXGIYEER 373

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

-r 00 !»

CJ M »0

OO MOi

o; c -*•

«oo — i^— r-

M

2 «= c —

w ec c-i -^

"e p o



374 DEPARTME-NT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

s



REPORT OF THE CHIEF ENGIXEEB 375

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

15

1
o



376 DEPARTMEyT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917.

o
o
to

<

7" E

I. s

a

a

a



REPORT OF THE CHIEF ENGINEER sr?

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19



378 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917:

O
O
so

<
>
O
z
t.

o

5

>
o
«

« 5- S
S S

•o S

O Q

C

c

5

1



REPOliT OF THE CHIEF ESGl^'EER 379

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19



380 DEPARTilEyr OF Pl'BLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917*

o
o

o
z
n

<
o
CQ

a
a
O"

b
O

O

>

o
a
«
Q

1



REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXGIXEER 381

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

^1

s =

l^cO C^ "5 O W
« o 005 — -g;X ffi r- — 30

I- lO 00 t^ (O

c; c-i ;c r- ^
. Cl -"S- = »o to

2 1- — O Ci —
- «) t- re ^o ^

C^l -"»• — — 00

» -c=^

• es CO —' « O* ^' CO M t- w

^^f ro-** t^^m — t^t^co

W CI CO -tf C^ 00— CO (O ^ O
,- — M»00"^



382 DEPARTMEXT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

a
3
O"

b
O
a
o
z
>
o
a

2 =
. e

^^. S

a °
o
Q

1



REPORT OF THE CHIEF ENOINEER 383

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

't'E

I

ill

% %

s
=J o
5W

'm S

§> .

K
i
O .2

!-0 So.

S

1 =

Si

a o

T3 cs

a s

e O



384 DEPARTJIEyr OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

o

o

I:
> S
O H
g °

Q

O
Q

1



REPORT OF THE CHIEF ENGINEER 385

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19



386 DEPARTMEXT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

z
o
Q

<
p

a 5
= I

O H
Z Q

d

o
Q

P



REPORT OF THE CHIEF EVGINEER 387

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

I



388 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

E-

O 2

§ s

& z

Q

o
Q

c

1



REPORT OF THE CHIEF ENGINEER 389

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19



390 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

K
n
a
<y

o
a
o
z

s 3
== i

1



REPORT OF TEE CHIEF EyOINEER 391

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

M M WO-^

:s 00-- o o

3S >i M

g|2i

-« «0 IQ Ci T

iM — —i lO

— C) C^ CC SI

1



392 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917-

a
z
<

o

o

o
z.

z

B
O
to

a

z

Q

O
a



REPORT OF TEE CHIEF ENGINEER 393

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

»



394 DEPARTMEy'T OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917<

<
(-

z
o
b.

O

^ gCD J

Q ;
z 5
- F-

=. s
2 *'^ o

I §
s

a a

c

a

1



REPORT OF THE CHIEF ENGINEER

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

395

^ M O ?0 M •*< O
es oo — eoo -^

^•V O « O lOTO
M ^ ^« ^
a= -^ O « O c*3

S •-" Cl M
- O OC CO

c 5f

n lo 40 o o o c

^ OS ;o fC Cl c c^

^ -tr M >C -^ W M

^ -ni cc Ci — C e^
_» X 3C lO SC C o

^ —' t» CI lO t~ t^C X TJH -M M O

J3 C
3 O

ssg ^5 r>- CO -*<

_ m re ic o CO N2 e»3 to <D Cvj m to

^ f^oo oo r- lO o
OJ to r- -— r- 1~

" M cc ci o ^ r-
cx) ;c CO t- M 00^«0 C4 —• 0O-^C4

: o

- - - - M 4)

u ;- t- i.*^ so a o o ,, .=

wodoicd §.H

K<Q

3=3^ oo

t^t* aot~
•.O W3 "5 «3

_ 3
c3 O

^ 3

Jx-a

0"5
2:

I~- lO w «o

00 «^" -J"

a a
s ° s

_d Ml -

o _j
"^ S fe i- -

;

o 2 Q o o g-o^

HO

2«|

M» O -1< — o o •-

U t- 1-. ^
a a o ©

trie so §

- o
: :0

"S :|

(^ I. I, I, Ml £
a o a o ,, .-

:5S!:5^ S.2-

i
B o

. o
S|

O u

^1

If
a o
3 B

*3 ei

d ;

bS.-

3 S

- . . . t* tj

1^ », f^ i-'^ 5

i£

Q a

2 g.



1

396 DEPARTUZyT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

cs

z

o £

< s

Z

=?
P.

=^ Q

a
a



HEPrtRT OF THE CHIEF EXGINEER 397

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19



398 DEPARTMEyr OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

o

a
o
z
>
o

z

< 1.

si

o
Q



KEI'ORT OF THE CHIEF EXGINEER 399

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

c
S



400 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. -1917

H
O

o
S
<

o

O

o

>
o

<

<

e

K
O
O



REPORT OF THE CHIEF ENGIA'EER 401

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19



402 DEPAnTilEST OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

z
o
fc.

o

o g

2 i

o
S

Z
o

(1^

Q

1



REPORT OF THE CHIEF ENGINEER 403

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19



404 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

w to

2 i
> s

2 S

z. a

a I

Q

t



REPORT OF TEE CHIEF ENGINEER 405

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

-s

.S3

^ d ut ro r- O *i «
eg c: C — C "M O^ c; <c »: cz c-\ ro •»•_

Ih

••sSSS;^;

r oc -f ec — M lO

00 M iC O O CC ..*<

»00— -H

O U b.

K<0

OM ffl M OC <0
; — C C'J — CO

CO -^ ff^ Oi 00 O eo

rC SO-^ 00 M CO

O * (C «C (C O
CO »dO CC' Ci CS^ CO »C CO -W •««•

^Z> — — C^T- — —

>

I

3^

OS

» «— *->c

^ OCl o f C^ M
00« CO
"Tf <E GO

* I'l ill ^
"£ b""* c'5 d'>

a a c B o c s
cS d c3 oS O 03 ca

l"eo looot^

^x.^>gxxOO

^'1 g fe g

= ^•5 -SSI

pas
O

m

SO

« St: g o «) „
*J ^.-H r^,C K.S
t h £t: p >
rt 3 -— cfl t. ©

•g.s

o—C O
SP3

= So

Caw

* MS

H « ©

• ° *

S.S§

g|g

IS 3

S o
c « 5C 35 ^«— a

mm..
O O ® al

>.'3
oi"5

5 b.S 3 !s 5
S t. o ® * m

t ^" c'S o'>

'-III
ui "^ CO

Ills

m I- -»^^

C 2 © B]

£ c S §

8 3=^"

e t: ^.^
.- S3 D. u

' '3.-;" .-

OS'S a

g-o a

£ o 2 =

"-3 s



406 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

O
m
m

a
b
O .

Q

o
Q

p

•3

1



liEPOIir OF Tin: CTJIEF EyaiNEER 407

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19



408 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

z
o

O
a
u
z

-< s

Eh

6 o

^ 2

a ^
. a

o
Q

1



REPORT OF THE CHIEF ENGINEER 409

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19



410 DEPARTMENT OF Pl'BLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

L. S

00 W

B
s

ii

tf K X M U

« >.-c
o—

^

$
eta.

3,086

65

1.110

27



REPORT OF TEE CHIEF ENGINEER 411

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19



412 DEPARTMEyr OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917.

«
a
c

O
a
o
z

§

3 ^

a <
s ^
o s

S i

d a

. u
Q Q

c^

a'
C3
Q

3
^



REPORT OF THE CHIEF EyGIXEER 413

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

^1

61

KH

S

SJ O) C-1 Ol —

'

OC — 'J" Oi

w c^ ^i .^ ci

. :8

^ o OO—

I

* -oo

Ol QO *0 C^

Wu5 OM O

f sob- OS 00M CD ^M
^<MXOO.-H

OS

?*^ : o

' S £: 3
; S S ®
5 Ml ^
:^ 3 ® S

a;2

_5^ o

'sS

•9 .

og

z

^ms^m

=' S S
e3 O a
O.J3 a.

is- 3

.agg o

E-2-

: a : -
: g -t; : o

oj 2 r"^ B ^ _

•OiOt^—

I

3 3

SQ

E

2 = fc =
5 S S i

a: 3

d 3 fc 3
is 5 S I

.i3 k.

02

.9 2

II

2'5

E =



414 DEPARTiJEyT OF PCBUC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

CO»Cfr-

S

o

o
z
>
Q
Ch S

X Q
P 5

§ s

6 3
•^ S

u
a Q

w
o
Q

!:-i

I



h'Fl-Oh'T OF THE CHIEF EXGIXEER 415

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

I



416 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

o
H
B

o

>
o
a
A.

S
H

OJ

00

H
o
Q

1-



REPORT OF THE CHIEF ENGINEER 417

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19



418 DBPARTMEXT OF PTBLir TTOTfS'.s'

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

o
a
m

o
z

§

<!

w 2

Q

b

a
o
Q
I

1



REPORT OF THE CTIIEF EyCjiyEER 419

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

\



420 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V,'A. 1917.

o



REPORT OF TEE CHIEF ENOn^EER 421

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19



422 DEPARTMEXT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917:

2 5

^



REPORT OF THE CHIEF ENGI2fEER 423

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

I



424 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917:

CO

o
a
o
z
>
o
«

H
a

•3

1



REPORT OF THE CHIEF ENGINEER 425

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19



426 DEPARTMEXT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

o
a
s
<y

b,
O

o
g
>
o
a

Z
O

S
o
E-

E
S

« X CI

OOOM
eo — i-o
C4 M

3

M

s

s
5

=_1
l|i

I si
^3 a.

:gEEgS

"ill

OC^H E-SO

1,589

(15

110

01



REPORT OF THE CHIEF EyGINEER 427

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19



428 DEPARTMEXT OF PUBLIC TrOi?£S

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

<

p

s
<
s

O

S I

§1

Z o

< a

a

a

a



REPORT OF THE CHIEF ENGINEER 429

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

O

I
D
s



430
DEPARTMEST OF PCBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

• -^ c U t-

-^ S § o "=•
:— 5 ffl U "^ M

U 3hh O ^ O .

e c ^ c gis .

§"- £ a o ft

-C M c bo a o
.^_^ o_c> c " g

: > j,Z.»s 0-- c-o5

T? S o ti © P-ex o£» oi > > > >:V, —

-gj; hj:- ---=^ £.- a 2

£ Q^ >>bl tL*: ^«3
S S*^ 3 3 O O W
5.5^-<<:ooo

-goo ^.M'S^J.i



REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXGINEER 431

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

B <o

r 1 S

Kf-

s.

^ c-i —• «) M e^ -^

C-» — CI CO CC —

•

MC-l>nf0^tDXcO

P >0 O C) —

H O « t— t^ Ul O
- 00 oo M CO CI -^
-I — wca —

w eooctococioic-o
« Tf.— — tor~ooooi

~~ — C^ ci ro —^

&5<^

r c, o Oi

T: L. jnJi >^ >^

13

Is

es o cc ac c -«' C) o
— c^ CO o d o — —

oo o oo o

3 c in lo ci-
) c o o o *
- CO C-I C^ -H

-- 05 M 5ff CO 05 »^ i-» to e-1 r~ c>i OS

W — O QO t— (M

^ >% S^"" >% >i >, >i >^

ao5 oouuo

fc« 0) O 0)
c c c
3 3 3=1 ^ 3 3 S) O O

~f.x

jog

"r c a; aj

:S-5.>>.>

C O SJ CJ

I
"

.:5 3
HO

O <-• t- ^ i4< "3 CC

OQ

c be

O.Si

S- = O C c I :

— r.

-

C Om Swi-i^i^



432 DEPARTMEXT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

I

<
o

s
<

o

>
o

z
IS
o

o
Q

K

1



REPORT OF THE CHIEF EyOlXEER 433

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

o

s

u
X
>
o
Pi

> X

a
w

Q O

a
o
a

n

•a



434 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

K I



REPORT OF THE CHIEF ENGINEER 435

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

o



436 DEPARTMEKT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

O

S
s

21

O Q
K z

(-
. u
O Q

(Li

W
O
a
K
OS

n

58'

3 SZ-Z^

t~M -00

I— ^ -M

oo

>^2

O

mu3
St-

•si I

^1

1 :|2i

H HBO

— 00

CoeOCfl OS

OO

J -III

S e3 « P a*

s 5 E a -as- o § g o

—-Cst^ »«^

.« fca: o

^ ti 61 (i-- -
M ^ £ g.« (S

'Bc'S'Et; -a

"= I =^ 3

U.-0 .2 a 1.

OS

* 5 S"^"^ O 3 O Q)

.^J: 3 3 9 O;^

Sa a ai bi A •» A ^^ ^ -i^ O
•e-e-e-e-e-e-ff*!! i3 = 333333 .^ .^ ,-



REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXGIXEER 437

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19
,,

I



438 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

(5S

W
s
<!

ft
O

Q S

H
O
o

'3

o
H



JiEPORT OF TEE CBIEF ENGINEER 439

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

[

I



440 DEPARTMEyT OF PrBLIC TTORffS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917i

Z
<

a
a
o
E-

u
z
>
o
IS
PL,

Q c

u

o
Q
ta
si

Q

3
o



TtEPORT OF THE CHIEF EyGINEER 441

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19 '

»



442 DEPARTMEXT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 191A



REPORT OF THE CHIEF ENGINEER 443

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19



444 DEPARTilEXT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

O

o

O
z

§ 5 H
6< "S 9

o " s

Q

a
o
Q



REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXGIXEER 445

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

I



446 DEPARTMEXT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917^

7.

.J
O
O

B
fe.

O

2 =-

> £ s
c C c
=s = ^
fc O Q

r- ^ <

b " S
Z o 2

•J g ;
r: OT ^
2 '^ •"
IS o
fa 00

H
O
Q

^



REPORT OF THE CHIEF ENGINEER 447

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

I



448 DEPARTMEXT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

C3

S

O
o

s

a
o
z

S £? H

il!

Q 2 g

O
Q



REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXGINBER

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19



450 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

I

I—

I

a
S
t>

o
o

2 -2 ~

J2 ^ cj ^ ej *. o
2""-"* 3^.i"

2 o" o^; d';

e n n ^ c. c —

^

&a

S^

Is s§

" s

!^



REPORT OF THE CHIEF ENGINEER 451

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19



452 DEPA.RTUEVT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

a
S
D
o
o
a

a:
01

2 - S
>

0.

o
Q

tn 05 ^

a<'

w
O
a



REPORT OF TBE CHIEF ENOINEER 463

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19



454 DEPARTMENT OF POBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

a
S

o
o
wm
F-

»

o
m
o
z
t—

c

>
o

D
&

w"
O
Q

Q

Q S



REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXGINEER 455

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19-

I



456 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917



REPORT OF THE CHIEF ENGINEER 457

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

~ t^ 'a 'r en t-

OrCi-^T-mC

U CO OM OS O —

'

3

8^g

=^5

Weo-M-^ —oo

C) ^ 05 to ^ lO
^ «C O -^ i-" CSl Oi

^ a
mOiift CO COM

a -a* o r- «? CI

-I --00i«O«
JH OS * t- C» -<*•

§^
.

c a ^

5o
•a >>-a >.

xOccO

E

* 3 3 O O

S :

23

•S *J*J ® '^ eJ

^-; 3 o oQ

^ ^ MbcS ^*J_5 3 3 O O

o S a

la^^

Q ai ? X GO

C be

I"

m -cocoooa

lO

tort.'.'.

Wharf



458 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

P
J
o
o
»
CO

o

o
g
>
o
a.

<: J
5 "
o s

Q

o
Q



REPORT OF TEE CHIEF EflOmEER 459

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19



460 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

a
S
D
O
O

m



REPORT OF THE CHIEF ENGINEER 461

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19



462 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

m
S
t>
ij
o
o

B
fa
O

O
g
>
o
0.

il

o
o
«
M
H
i-i

Z
B3
O
,-!

Q
&

W
C5

Q

K
Q



REPORT OF TEE CHIEF EXGINEER 463

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

3
O

t



464 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

p
o
o
ts
00

C5

b
o
w
o
g
o
Hi

Z

o
g
13

o

o

Hi

c
Q



REPORT OF TEE CHIEF ENGINEER 465

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19



466 DEPARTMEyT OF PVIiLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

CONTEACT DREDGING, 1915-16.

Bfacon Bar, St. John Harbour, N.B.—Under contract No. 7304, extension, with Mari-

time Dredging and Construction Co. Dredges Cynthia and St. John.

Quantity removed: 108,344-5 cubic yards, scow measurement, at 34 cents per cubic

yard. Class B, clay, sand and gravel.

Amount passed for payment, $36,837.13; inspection, $3,712.66; total expenditure,

$40,549.79.

Work commenced: April 1; completed, May 10, 1915.

Object of work : Completion of harbour improvements ; shelter basin at wharves and
berths.

Note.—Deduction for dredging below grade, $43,840.46, made from final estimate.

Bathurst, N.B.—Under contract No. 10158, with Northern Dredging & Consti"uction

Co. Dredges Uayward, Invader and Gray Loggie.

Quantity removed : 361,576 cubic yards, place measurement, at 30 cents per cubic yard.

Class B, sand, mud and gravel.

Amount ' passed for payment, $117,105.07 ; inspection, $3,894.80 ; total exjienditure,

$120,999.87.

Work commenced : !May 15 ; suspended for season, December 11, 1915.

Object of work: Dredging inner entrance channel, 200 feet wide to 17 feet low water.

Beauport, Que. (Channel to Wharf).—Under contract No. 10231, extension, with W.
J. Poupore Co. Dredge Duke of Yorlc.

Quantity removed: 25,983 cubic yards, place measurerffent, at 30 cents per cubic yard.

Class B, mud, sand and boulders.

Amount passed for payment, $7,794.90; inspection, $775.65; total expenditure, $8,570.55.

Work commenced: May 11; completed, October 21, 1015.

Object of work : To dredge basin at mouth of river to 4 feet low water.

Bruce Mines, Ont.—Under contract No. 10443, with Soo Dredging & Construction Co.

Dredge No. 3.

Quantity removed: 45,037 cubic yards, place measurement, at 15J cents per cubic yard.

Class B, mud and clay.

Amount passed for payment, $6,980.74; inspection, $650.20; total expenditure, $7,630.94.

Work commenced: May 10; completed, June 10, 1915.

Object of work: Dredging channel 2,400 by 150 feet to 16 feet deep.

Buctouche, N.B.—Under contract No. 10806, with Felix Michaud. Dredge Excavator.

Quantity removed: 15,115-4 cubic yards, scow measurement, at 36 cents per cubic yard.

Class B, sand and clay.

Amoimt passed for payment, $5,401.17; inspection, $327.26; total expenditure, $5,728.43.

Work commenced: July 13; completed, November 24, 1915.

Object of work: To maintain a channel by redredgiiig, 40 feet wide through the canal

1,100 feet long, built through Buctouche Beach and by giving this route, to

shorten by 14 miles the distance to Buctouche harbour from fishing grounds, and
to provide shelter for fishing vessels.

Bath, Ont.—Under agreement with R. Weddell & Co. Dredge Togo.

Quantity removed: 9,506 cubic yards, place measurement, at 35 cents poi' cubic yard.

Class B, mud, gravel and rock.

Amount passed for payment, $3,327.10; inspection, $100.49; total expenditure, $3,427.59.
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Work eonimeiiecd : July 14; completed, Au^st 9, 1915.

Object of work : To provide basin in which boats may lie while taking on fi.-^li and

farm produce.

Bonzards, Out.—Under agreement 14, with E. Weddell Co. Dredge Togo.

(JuaTitity removetl: O.-Wfi cubic yards, place meaBurement, at 35 cents per cuhic yard.

f'lass Jj, mud, gravel aiid rock.

Amount pas.scd for payment, $718.48; inspection, $22.96; total expenditure, $741.44.

Work commenced: August 16; completed, August 21, 1915.

Object of work : To facilitate shipping by providing a draught of 10 feet for vessels.

Belleville, Out.—Under agreement 49, with Randolph McDonald Co. Dredge No. 10.

Quantity removed: 19,132 cubic yards, place measurement, at 26 cents per cubic yard.

Class B, mud, gravel and sawdust.

Amount passed for payment. $4,783; inspection, $114; total expenditure, $4,897.

Work commenced : September 13 ; completed, October 20, 1915.

Object of work : To improve approach to new Government wharf.

Charlottetown (Marine Slip, Soulhporl), P.E.I.—Under contract No. 10015, with V.

T. Bartram. Dredge E. Hale No. 1.

Quantity removed: 42,217-4 cubic yards, place measurement, at 28 cents per cubic yard.

Class B, mud and sand (of which 851-4 cubic yards castover, at 18% cents).

Amount i^assed for payment, $12,120.19; inspection, $313.57; total expenditure,

$12,433.76.

Work commenced : April 20 ; suspended for season, July 31, 1915.

Object of work : To complete the dredging of an entrance slip and foundation for

marine railway, outer 520 feet being from 200 feet wide, inner end to about 400
feet wide up to 25i deep.

Charlottetown (Roclnj Point), P.^"./.—Under contract No. 10730, with V. T. Bartram.

Dredge E. Hale No. 1.

Quantity removed: 60,432-7 cubic yards, scow measurement, at 16-95 cents per cubic

yard. Class B, mud and clay (of which 821-8 cubic yards castover, at 11-3 cents

per yard, place).

Amount x^assed for payment, $10,084.65 ; inspection, $634.35 ; total expenditure,

$10,719.

Work commenced : August 2 ; completed, December 2, 1915.

Object of work: Dredging channel from deep water in West river to head of ferry

wharf; also, dredging of ferry berth and berths 200 by 60 feet on sides of guide
piers.

Chipman, N.B.—Under agreement with New Brunswick Construction Co. Dredge
New Brunswicl- No. 1.

Quantity removed: 9,933-8 cubic yards, scow measurement, at 27A cents per cubic yard.

Cla.ss B, sand, mud, rocks and bark.

Amount passed for payment, $2,731.79; inspection, $42; total expenditure, $2,773.79.

Work commenced : June 24 ; completed, July 8, 1915.

Object of work : Cleaning up of material silted into basin and channel leading to basin

at wharf that vessels may have former facilities in approaching and leaving wharf.

Cohourg, Out.—Under agreement with R. Weddell Co. Dredge Togo.

Quantity removed: 12,388 cubic yards, place measurement, at 20 cents per cubic yard.

Class B, sand.

Amount passed for payment, $2,477.60 ; inspection, $159.45 ; total expenditure, $2,637.05.

Work commenced : October 13 ; suspended for season, November 24, 1915.

Object of work : Improvement of navigation in Cobourg harbour.

19—30i
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Dartmouth, N.S.—Under agreement with Nova Scotia Dredging Co.

Amount passed for payment, $297.02, to pay drawback of 1914.

Douglas Harbour, N.B.—Under agreement with St. John Eiver Dredging & Construc-

tion Co. Dredge Tantawanta.

Quantity removed: 5,288 cubic yards, place measurement, at 35 cents per cubic yard.

Class B, sand, mud and clay.

Amount passed for payment, $1,850.80; inspection, $21; total expenditure, $1,871.80.

Work commenced: June 3, completed June 10, 1915.

Object of work : Provision of basin at Government wharf.

Douglastown, N.B.—Under agreement with F. A. Fowlie. Dredge Fowlie.

Quantity removed: 8,501 cubic yards, scow measurement, at 35 cents per cubic yard.

Class B, mud and clay.

Amount passed for payment, $2,975.35; inspection, $11C; total expenditure, $3,091.35.

Work commenced : July 13 ; completed, August 26, 1915.

Object of work : To provide berth in front of Miramichi Lumber Company's mill wharf.

Deer Island, Honey Harbour, Ont.—Under agreement 41, with JMorgan & Toole.

Dredge DriUboat.

Quantity removed : 486 cubic yards, place measurement, at $6.25 per cubic yard.

Class A, rock. ^
Amount passed for payment, $3,037.50.

Work commenced : August 11 ; completed, October 31, 1915.

Duff's Channel, Honey Harbour, Ont.—Under agreement 44, with Penetang Dredging

Co.

Quantity removed: 1,043 cubic yards, place measurement, at 70 cents per cubic yard.

Class, clay, sand and stone.

Amount passed for payment, $730.10; inspection, $42.50; total expenditure, $772.60.

Work cormnenced: September 2; completed, September 12, 1915.

Foul Ground, N.B. (St. John Harbour).—Under contract No. 9426, completion, with

Maritime Dredging & Construction Co.

Removal of boulders, $706; amount passed for payment balance on final estimate,

$41.74; total oxpenditiu-e, $747.74.

Work commenced: July 28; completed, October 6, 1915.

False GreeTc, B.C.—2-47—Under contract No. 9493, with Pacific Dredging Co. Dredges

Robson No. 1 and Pugct Sound.

Quantity removed: 1,390,170 cubic yards, place measurement, at 21 cents per cubic yard.

Class B.

Amount passed for payment, $291,935.70; inspection, $10,707.22; total expenditure,

$302,642.92.

Work commenced: April 1, 1915; suspended for season, March 31, 1916.

Object of work: Providing channel 350 feet wide, from deep water in harbour to

Columbia street, and turning basin above Connaught bridge to 20 feet deep.

Fort William, On*.—16—Under contract No. 7339, with Great Lakes Dredging Co.

Dredges No. 5, No. 8, No. 6, Dominion and Frank.

Quantity removed: 1,701,744 cubic yards, scow measurement, at lOJ and 22i cents per

cubic yard. Class, sand, clay and hard-pan.

Amount passed for payment, $266,009.01, including extra haul; inspection, $4,791.25;

total expenditure, $270,800.26.

Work commenced May 10, 1915; suspended for season, November 25, 1915.

Object of work: Widening Kaministiqiiia and Mission rivers.
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Fort William, Kaministiquia River, Ont.—17—Under contract No. 10831, with Great

Lakes Dredging Company. Dredges No. 8, No. 6, Dominion and Frank.

Quantity removed: 63.5,108-3 cubic yards, place measurement, at 25 cents pre cubic

yard. Class, sand and clay.

Amount passed for payment, $158,799.58; inspection, all inspection on Fort William

contracts entered under 7339; total expenditure, $158,799'.58.

Work commenced: June 5; completed, October 11, 1915.

Object of work: Widening entrance of Kaministiquia river.

Fort William, Ont.—18—Under contract No. 7170, with Great Lakes Dredgnig Co.

Dredges Frank, No. 6 and Dominion.

Quantity removed: 342,051 cubic yards, scow measurement, at 16 cents per yard.

Class scow (21.44 cubic yards rock, at $2.85, included), sand, clay, hardpau and

rock. ,

Amount passed for payment, $56,407.03; inspection included with contract 7339; total

expenditure, $56,407.03.

Work commenced: July 26; suspended for season, December 4, 1915.

Object of work: Excavation of G. T. R. slip No. 2 to a depth of 25 feet.

Freddy Channel, Ont.—Under agreement with Penetanguishene Dredging Co. Dredge

Tlackett.

Quantity removed: 2,900 cubic yards, place measurement, at 40 cents per yard. Class

B, hardpan, mud and sand.

Amount passed for payment, $1,160; inspection, $78; total expenditure, $1,238.

Work commenced: September 14; suspended for season, October 8, 1915.

Object of work: To provide a minimum width of 20 to 40 feet and depths of 10 feet

through shoal obstructing passage of vessels through Freddy channel.

Goderich, Ont.—Under contract No. 10179, ext(?nsion, with Jennings & Ross. Dredges

Goderich and Menesetung.

Quantity removed: 50,268 cubic yards, scow measurement, at 16 cents per cubic yard.

Class B, clay, mud, sand, gravel and hardpan.

Amount passed for payment, $8,042.88; inspection, $558.94; total expenditure, $8,601.82.

Work commenced May 6; completed, August 28, 1915.

Object of work : Comijletion of entrance to harbour to 22 feet.

Grimross Canal, N.B.—Under agreement with New Brunswick Construction Co.

Dredge New Brunswick No. 1.

Qunatity removed: 4,946-6 cubic yards, place measurement, at 21J cents per yard.

Class B, clay.

Amount passed for payment, $1,063.52; inspection, $28.28; total expenditure, $1,091.80.

Work commenced: June 9; completed, June 16, 1915.

Object of work : To complete depth of 11 feet at low water, minimum width of 150 feet

in removal of shoal areas which exist along both sides of the cut.

Grand Lake, N.B.—Under contract No. 10889, with L. W. Nickerson. Dredges New
Bnmsivich No. 1 and Tantawanta.

Quantity removed: 53,649-6 cubic yards, place measurement, at 14i cents per yard.

Class B, mud, clay and sawdust.

Amount passed for payment, $7,785.72; inspection, $195.51; total expenditure, $7,981.23.

Work commenced September 0; suspended for season, November 17, 1915.

Object of work: To dredge a channel at entrance to Grand Lake.

Honey Harhour Cut.—See Deer Island and Duff's Channel.

Kincardine, Ont.—34—Under agreement with Marlton Dredging Co. Dredge Mene-
setung.

Quantity removed: 6,511 cubic yards, scow measurement, at 35 cents per yard. Class
B, gravel, sand and silt.
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Amoimt passed for payment, $2,278.85; inspection, $23.49; total expenditure, $2,302.34.

Work commenced : June 25 ; completed July 1, 1915.

Object of work : Dredging of shoal in channel between piers, also removal of portion

of shoaljn inner harbour basin.

Kingston (Anglin's Bay), Ont.—28—Under agreement with Thunder Bay Construc-
tion Co. Dredge No. 5.

Quantity removed: 13,736 cubic yard,*:, place measurement, at 21i cents per yard.

Class B, mud.
Amount passed for payment, $2,953.24; total expenditure, $2,953.24.

Work commenced: July 21; completed, October 16, 1915.

Object of work: To improve navigation to certain wharves in Anglin's Bay inner

harbour.

Little Current, Ont. (Goat Island).—IS—Under contract No. 9589, extension, with

Soo Dredging & Construction Co. Dredge Excelsior.

Quantity removed: 22,707-2 cubic yards, place measurement, at $2.90 p^r yard. Class

A, -30 B; 20,897-2 cubic yards Class A rock; 1,810 cubic yards Class B, clay,

gravel and hardpan.

Amount passed for payment, $61,144.88; inspection, $2,995.07: total expenditure,

$64,139.95.

Work commenced: May 24; completed, September 3, 1915.

Object of work: To provide a minimum depth of 21 feet at low water along the front

of the wharves as constructed and proposed by the Algoma Eastern Railway Co.

on Goat Island, and in so doing widening the existing channel and allow vessels

ca.'y access to these vrharves.

Little Detroit, Onf.—12—Under contract No. 10531, with C. S. Boone Dredging 4:

Construction Co. Dredge Kingsford.
Quantity removed: 2,500 cubic yards, place measurement, at $3 per yard. Class A,

rocii.

Amount passed for payment, $7,500; inspection, $794.16; total expenditure, $8,294.16.

Work commenced : October 20 ; suspended for season, November 30, 1915.

Object of work : To widen channel for 100 feet in north channel of Lake Huron.

lAttte Grassy River, Ont.—34—Under agreement with Rainy River Dredging Co.
Dredge Moose.

Quality removed: 9,858 cubic yards, place measurement, at 45 cents per cubic yard.

Class B, sand and clay.

Amount passed for payment, $4,436.10; inspection, $119.50; total expenditure, $4,555.60.

Work commenced: June 30; completed, July 19, 1915.

Object of work: To dredge channel through bars obstructing entrance to river.

Lower Derby, N.B., Southwest Miramichi River.—39—^Under contract No. 10767, with

. Peter England. Dredge Peter England.
Quantity removed: 17,492-8 cubic yards, scow measurement, at 36 cents per yard.

Class B, sand.

Amount passed for payment, $6,297.41; inspection, $207.25; total expenditure,

$6,504.66.

Work commenced: July 5; completed, November 10, 1915.

Object of work: To dredge channel through shoals in Southwest Miramichi river.

Loiver St. Louis, N.B.—46—Under District Engineer Stead, by day labour.

Amount i)assed for payment, $995.08.

Object of work : Completion of channel across the St. Louis lagoon.
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Lillli- marl- River, J\'.i5.—CI—T'lidcr asreemeut with W. B. Macdonald. Dredge

Foivlie.

Quantity removed: 2,956- 1 eubio yards, place nieasurement, at 30 cents per yard.

Class B, castover, mud and slabs.

Amount passed for payment, $880.83; inspection, $49.37; total expenditure, $936.20.

Work eomraeneed: October 26; completed. November 15, 1915.

Object of work: To provide a channel 20 and 30 feet wide and a basin 50 feet square

at wharf, the whole having a depth of 2 feet at low water.

Mnquapit and French Lakes, N.B.—Under contract No. 10182, with New Brunswick

Construction Co. Dredges Tantaivanfa and New Brunswich No. 1.

Quantity removed: 55,140-6 cubic yards, place measurement at 20 cents per yard.

Class B, mud, sand and clay.

Amount passed for pajmient $9,013.58; inspection, $202.19; total expenditure, $9,215.77.

Work comeneed April 26; completed September 13.

Object of work : Dredging channel 2,640 feet by 75 feet from Grand Lake to Maquapit

lake.

Midland, Ont.—Under agreement with Canadian Dredge Company.
(Quantity removed: 2,800 cubic yards, place measurement at 25 cents per yard. Class

B, mill refuse and clay.

Amount pa.ssed for payment, $700; total expenditure, $700.

Work commenced: May 25; completed, May 31, 1915.

Oliject of work: To give 21 feet depth in front of new coal dock under construction

on Playfair property.

McLares Bay, N.B.—Under agTcemout with New Brunswick Construction Co.

Dredge Tantawanta.

Quantity removed : 5.156-4 cubic yards, scow measurement at 27i cents per yard.

Class B, sand.

Amount passed for payment, $1,418.01; inspection, $52.28; total expenditure, $1,470.29.

Work commenced, June 29; completed, July 21, 1915.

()l)ject of work: To clean up channel in Salmon river tlu'ough shoal about 1,700 feet

long to give free passage to vessels drawing 9 feet.

Xicomen, B.C., MacDonalds Bar.—Under agreement with Moore & Pethiek.

Quantity removed: 206,917 cubic yards, place measurement, at 15 cents per yard.

Class B.

Amount passed for payment, $31,037.55.

Work commenced April 30, 1915 ; suspended for season March 11, 1916.

Object of work: Improvement of Fraser river at Nicomen as per instructions of

Chief Engineer.

Owen Sound, Ont.—Under agreement with John E. Russell. Dredge No. 10.

Quantity removed : 5,435 cubic yards, scow measurement, at 30 cents per yard. Class,

sand and clay.

Amount passed for payment, $1,630.50; inspection, $44.50; total expenditure, $1,675.

Work commenced : October 5 ; completed, October 13, 1915.

Object of work : To effect desired improvements at dock of Union Cement Co. to

allow coal boats to land with a full cargo.

Picnic Lsland, Ont.—7—Under contract No. 7816, continued, with C. S. Boone Dredg-
ing & Construction Co. Dredge Kingsford.

Quantity removed: 16,092 cubic yards, scow measurement, at $1.70 per yard. Class A,
rock.

Amount passed for payment, $28,376-.40 ; inspection, $3,317.83; total expenditure,

$31,694.23.
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Work commenced: May 10; suspended for season, August 10, 1915.

Object of work : Completing improvement to channel 300 by 500 feet long tkrough five

sboals to 22 feet.

Port Hope, Ont.—15—^TJnder contract No. 10447, with Canadian Dredging Co. Dredge
RandolpJi MacDpnald No. 10.

Quantity removed : 17,982 cubic yards, place measurement, at 24 cents per yard. Class

B, sand, rock and mud.
Amount passed for payment, $4,.315.68; inspection, $245.53; total expenditure,

$4,561.21.

Work commenced : June 5 ; completed, August 5, 1915.

Object of vcork: Dredging channel between piers to 18 feet and improvement to

navigation at north end of west channel for access to coal wharf.

Port Arthur, Ont.—21—Under contract No. 9490, extension, with W. E. Phin. Dredge
Kennequhair.

Quantity removed: 611,729 cubic yards, scow measurement, at 13 cents per yard.

Class B, sand and clay.

Amount passed for payment, $79,700.27 ; inspection, $760 ; total expenditure, $80,460.27.

Work commenced: May 8; suspended for season, December 8, 1915.

Object of work: To continue dredging in harbour to 25 feet.

Port Elgin, Ont.-—40—Under agreement with Marltou Dredging Co. Dredge Mene-
setung.

Quantity removed: 6,937-5 cubic yards, scow measurement, at 38 cents per yard.

Class, sand.

Amount passed for payment, $2,636.25; inspection, $47.42; total expenditure,

$2,683.67.

Work commenced: July 3; completed, July 14, 1915.

Object of work : To provide depth of 14 feet below low water tlirough sand bar

obstructing access of vessels to Government wharf.

Penetanguishene, Ont.—5S—Under agreement with Penetang Dredging Co. Dredge
IlAclcett.

Quantity removed: 17,300 cubic yards, place measurement, at 24 cents per yard.

Class B, clay.

Amount passed for payment, $4,152; inspection, $404.60; total expenditure, $4,556.60.

Work commenced : October 13 ; completed, December 9, 1915.

Object of work: To provide turning basin 500 feet wide, 20 feet deep at the Esplanade.

River St. Maurice, Que.—Under contract No. 10668, with F. C. Burns. Dredge
Capital.

Quantity removed: 10,222 cubic yards, scow measurement, at 19J cents per yard.

Class B, sand and clay.

Amount passed for payment, $1,993.29; inspection, $204.50; total expenditure,

$2,197.79.

Work commenced: May 6; completed. May 31, 1915.

Object of work: Dredging channel and basin.

Bexton, N.B.—3—Under District Engineer Stead, by day labour.

Amount passed for payment, $634.49.

SauU Ste. Marie, Ont.—Under contract No. 9065, with Soo Dredging & Construction

Co. Dredge No. 3 and^Derrick.

Quantity removed: Class A, 655; Class B, 308 cubic yards, place measurement, rock
and boulders. Class A, at $3.47 per cubic yard. Class B, 92 cents.

Amount passeil for payment, $2,550.21; insiiection, $224.39; total expenditure,

$2,780.60.

Work conmienced : April 16 ; completed, April 20, 1915.
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SauU Ste. Marie, Ont.—(Main channel and A. C. Eailway Slip.) Under contract No.

8960 with Soo Dredging & Construction Co. Dredge No. 3 and Derrick.

Quantity removed: 1,080 Class A; 447 Class B, cubic yards place measurement at

$3.47 per yard Class A. 92 cents per cubic yard Class B, rock, silt, mud and

boulders.

Amount passed for payment: $4,933.38; inspection and surveys, $5,115.77; total expen-

diture, $10,049.15,

Work commenced: April 16; completed, November 20, 1915.

Object of work :

' Completion of -work begun under this contract in 1912.

SauU Ste. Marie, Out.—37—(Paper Company Slip.) Under agreement with Algoma
Dredging Co. Dredge Continental and Bernclc.

Quantity removed : 79 Class A cubic yards place measurement at $3.50 per cubic yard.

8,636 Class B cubic yards place measurement at 48J cents per cubic yard, sand,

boulders and rock.

Amount passed for payment: $4,464.96; ingpection, $619.75; total expenditure,

$5,084.71.

Work commenced : June 28 ; completed, October 20, 1915.

Object of work : To clean out basin at wharf of Lake Superior Paper Co.

SauU Ste. Marie, Out.—45—(Imperial Oil Co. Dock, Downey's Slip and Perry Slip.)

Under agreement with Soo Dredging & Construction Co. Hire of derrick at $75

per day.

Amount passed for payment: $1,117; and $300.

Work commenced : August 1 ; completed, October 14, 1915.

Object of work: Eemoval of boulders in front of Oil 'Co. Dock.

St. John Harbour, i\.B.—See Beacon Bar and Sand Point.

Smith's Cove, N.S.—8—Under District Engineer Bernasconi, day labour.

Amount passed for payment, $647.61.

Shanty Bay, Ont.—28—Under agreement with Conroy Bros. Dredge Little Lake.

Quantity removed: 1,645-7 cubic yards, place measurement, at 50 cents per yard.

Class B, clay, gravel and boulders.

Amount passed for payment, $822.85; inspection, $41.40; total expenditure, $864.25.

Work commenced: May 7; completed. May 25, 1915.

Object of work : Dredging basin on east and west sides of wharf to 8J feet.

Sand Point, St. John, N.B., Berths 4, 5, 7 and H.—36—Under agreement with J. A.

Gregory. Dredge J. A. Gregory.

Quantity removed: 8,780-5 cubic yards, scow measurement, at 50 cents per yard.

Class B, mud.
Amount passed for payment, $4,390.25; inspection, $427.10; total expenditure,

$4,817.35.

Work commenced: October 6; completed, December 10, 1915.

Object of work : Cleaning out upper end of Sand Point.

Trenton, Ont.—Under agreement with R. Weddell Co. Sweeping channels.

Amount passed for payment : Sweeping channel, $700; at Guthard dock, $390; Gill &
Fortmie dock, $1,440; cold storage dock, $520; total, $3,050.

The liange, N.B.—3—Under agreement with St. John Eiver Dredging & Construction

Co. Dredge Tantawanta.

Quantity removed: 1,200-4 cubic yards, place measurement, at 40 cents per cubic yard.

Class B, clay and rocks.

Amount passed for payment, $480.16; inspection, $18; total expenditure, $498.16.
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Work commenced : June 22 ; completed, June 25, 1915.

Object of work: To dredge channel and strip along shore line east of Department high

water wharf to enable scows to be loaded direct from mill, and to facilitate

handling logs in front of mill run.

Toronto. Ont. (Eastern Gap).—i2—Under contract No. 10731, with R. Weddell & Co.

Dredges IXL and Togo.

Quantity removed: 122,350 cubic yards, scow measurement, at 11 cents per yard.

Class, sand and mud.
Amount passed for payment, $13,458.50; inspection, $590.90; total expenditure,

$14,019.40.

Work commenced: July 15; suspended for season, November 9, 1915.

Object of work : To dredge entrance channel and chamiel between piers.

Upper -Jemseg, N.B.—3—^TJnder agreement with New Brunswick Construction Co.

Dredge Tantawanta.

Quantity removed: 5,761 S cubic yards, scow measurement, at 30 cents per cubic yard.

Class B, clay, mud and gravel.

Amount passed for payment, $1,728.54; inspection, $24; total expenditure, $1,752.54.

Work commenced : June 11 ; completed, June 17, 1915.

Object of work : To allow vessels to get to Government high and low water wharves by

cleaning up basin in front of and up and down stream of wharf.

^Vlndsor, N.S.—30—Under agreement with W. W. Shaw. Hand dredging.

Quantity removed: 3,838-5 cubic yards, place measurement, at 54 cents per cubic yard.

Class B, mud.
Amount- passed for payment, $2,085.29; inspection, $202.62; total expenditure,

$2,287.91.

Work commenced: ilay 26; completed, August 12, 1915.

Object of work : Dredging of mud from front of Government wharf.

Yarmouth, N.S., Gateway Fish. Co. Wharf.—Under agreement with ilaritime Dredg-

ing and Construction Co. Dredge Beacon Bar.

Quantity removed: 14,907 cubic yards, scow measurement, at 30 cents and 35 cents

per cubic yard. Class B, mud, 4,000 cubic yards at 35 cents : 10,907 cubic

yards at 30 cents, overhaul, $149.07.

Amount passed for payment, $4,821.17; inspection, $294.60; total expenditure, $5,115.77.

Work commenced : July 2 ; completed, September 1, 1915.

Object of work: Dredging of basin and approaches thereto between the wharves of the

(•ateway Fish Co. and 11. Amiro.

Yarmouth Bar, N.S.—Under agreement with Maritime Dredging & Construction Co.

Dredge Beacon Bar.

Quantity removed: 16,002-2 cubic yards, scow measurement, at 30 cents per cubic yard.

Class, mud and sand.

Amount passed for payment, $4,800.06; inspection, $123.55; total expenditure,

$1,923.21.

Work commenced: .luly 14; completed, August 17, 1915.

Sydenham River, Ont.—Under District Engineer Craig, day labour, $300.

Lower St. Louis, N.B.—Under District Engineer Stead, day labour, $995.08.

Boncshaw.—Under District Engineer Hyndman, day labour, $167.50.

St. Charles or Big Aldouane River, N.B.—Under District Engineer Stead, day labour,

$1,619.99.

Shediac Bay, N.B.—Under District Engineer Stead, day labour, $992.73.
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St. Eloi, Qut-.—Undei District Engineer Trcmblay, day labour, $1,009.42.

St. John River and Tributaries, N.B.—Under District Engineer Scammell, day labour,

Cocagne, N.B.—Under District Engineer Stead, day labour, $1,153.10.

River Bois Blanc, Que.—Under District Engineer Tourigny, day labour, $2,236.62.

Hamilton, Out.—Under agreement with D. G. Stewart. Removal of old piles and
cribs at foot of Hewson street. Amount passed for payment, $700.

Isle Verte, Que.—Under District Engineer Tremblay, day labour, $991.95.

Stone River, B.C.—Under District Engineer Worsfold, day labour, $2,286.04.

Grand Ruisscau, Que.—Under District Engineer Berti-and, day labour, $24.40.

Mossy River, Man. (Winnipegosis).—Under District Engineer Stevens, dav labour,

$613.27.
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DEY DOCKS.

The Dominion Government owns three dry docks and operates two, viz., the

Lome dry dock, at Levis, province of Quebec; the Kingston dry dock, at Kingston,

province of Ontario, and the Esquimalt dry dock, at Esquimalt, near the city of

Victoria, in British Columbia.

LEVIS DRY DOCK.

During the past fiscal year, three new boilers were installed, three boiler fronts

replaced, and the dock vv'as kept in its usual state of efScieney.

The cost of repair, maintenance and improvement amounts to $24,113.05, whereas

the revenue amounted to $30,495.63.

LAUZON DRY DOCK.

(This work is described in the annual report for 1915.)

During the year 19] 5-16. the dry dock excavation has been executed from the

entrance on a length of 500 feet, and to its complete width and depth. The caisson

chamber was excavated complete together with 75 per cent of the total excavation for

the pump-house foundations. The work on excavation started about June 10, and

stopped around December 15, 1915.

The excavation of tunnel to be used as water passage to pump-house started

January 8, 191G, and on March 31, 385 feet out of 540 feet were completed.

All the material excavated during the year which is in greater quantity than was

required as backfilling, was used in the cribs and the yard, the surplus being dumped

on the adjacent property belonging to Mr. Belleau. The ladder dredge excavated

during the year 55,759 cubic yards of earth and 700 yards of submarine rock.

During the year, four cribs were sunk, one for the guide piers and three for the

landing wharf. Another one was built for the guide pier, but it was too late to sink it.

The concrete superstructure of the landing wharf was also built on a length of 280

feet. The work started in June and ended in December. The concrete work started

in April and ended in December, 1915.

The main walls and bottom of dock were built from the entrance on a length of

125 feet, which part comprises the outer floating caisson berth, the rolling caisson berth

and the caisson chambei'. This work was completed with all the granite that enters

into it.

The erection of the rolling and floating caissons were started in November, 1915,

and on March 31, 905 tons were erected for the rolling caisson and 200 tons for the

floating caisson. This work was made under the inspection of the Canadian Inspec-

tion Companj'.

During the course of 1915-16, the power-house and chimney were built; the work
started in September, 1915, and on March 31 the power-house and chimney were built

complete, but for the painting. In the generator's room, a 15-ton overhead crane was
installed, and two generators (1,500 K.W. and 300 K.W.) were set in place. In the
boiler room, the erection of the boilers were under way, and on March 31 the frame
and headers of all the boilers were put up.

On March 31, a considerable amount of material was on the work, for which an
advance of 50 per cent is made, which amounts to $193,103.3».

The expenditure for the year 1915-16 was $993,802.27.
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ESQUIMALT GRAVING DOCK.

During the year ending March 31, 1916, 31 ships were docked for repairs, painting,

etc. The dock was occupied 232 days, and the total charges were $23,662, being about

$10,000 more than the revenue collected the previous year.

Besides the docking and undocking of ships, the dock staff were employed in

keeping the grounds in a presentable condition and in making minor repairs to build-

ings and fences.

The engine-room staff have been employed in renovating the inside of the building

and in making repairs to the machinery where necessary, besides the ordinary routine

of docking and undocking of ships.

The plant above ground is now in an efficient state of repair, but with our present

equipment for keeping the lower culvert dry, it is very difficult to make any thorough

inspection of the plant below the surface. For this reason it was necessary to obtain

outside assistance, at a cost of $99.25, in order to repair the main pump. A 6-inch

submerged vortical centrifugal pump, driven by an electric motor, should be provided

to replace the existing steam-driven pump. As the machinery generally has been in

use about thirty years, renewals of this description must be anticipated from time to

time.

The efficiency of the dock would'be greatly increased by the addition of a travelling

crane, for which a sum of $9,000 would be required, and which would greatly facilitate

matters for ships undergoing repairs.

The total expenditure for the fiscal year was $19,202.07.

LOCKS AND DAMS.

aUEBEC.

RIVIERE DU LIEVRE.

At Poupore, in Labelle county, 12 miles above Buckingham, on the Riviere du
Lievre, a lock and dam were built in 1886-92, to overcome Little rapids, for navigation

to High falls, 12 miles upstream. During the open season there is a daily boat service.

In 1903, an extensive landslide destroyed the dam, which had to be reconstructed,

lock gates, etc., repaired and improved, and considerable dredging done before naviga-

tion was restored in 1907. In 1914-1"), a cribwork training pier, extending 300 feet

below the lock entrance, was added and the original cribwork retaining wall was
replaced by a concrete structure, 309 lineal feet, to liold the backfill on river side of

masonry lock wall. There are a nimiber of anchor cribs and booms for logging opera-

tions above the dam. These works haVe to be improved from time to time and are a

source of continuous maintenance.

Work during the past year consisted of: Operating the lock, placing and repairing

booms, gate repairs, timber slide repairs, new platform, roller and ladders, W. I.

corner plates, new platform and winch frame for gap-boom, renewing a number of

stringers and pieces of sheeting on apron of dam, some new stringers were replaced

and repairs made to planking of the upstream guard crib, erecting two new sheds for

plant storage and materials, minor repairs were made to the lockmasters house, and
material procured for fencing Government property.

Expenditure during the fiscal year, $3,935.68.

•

. MONTREAL RIVER.

Dam at Latchford.

Latchford, in the district of Nipissing, is a village station on the Toronto &
Northern Ontario Railway, and is located on the Montreal river.
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In 1910 the construction of a regulation and storage dam was started; owing to

unsatisfactory progress, etc., the department had to take over this work from the

contractors in 1912, and the dam was placed under operation late in 1913. A number
of subsidiary works, including stiff booms, operating machinery, improvement of inflow

and outflow at Latchford, as well as channel improvement in Pork rapids, etc., in

connection with the general scheme, have since been completed.

Maintenance of dam during the past year included the manipulation of stop-logs,

placing and removing of stiff booms, recording gauge readings, etc. In the spring of

1915, some 4r)0,000 pieces of pulpwood and saw-logs were passed through the discharg-

ing sluiceway of the dam with very little trouble on the part of the lumbermen.
Pending certain improvements under contemplation, which would make it necessary

to provide new quarters for the caretaker, the old building which he uses as a residence

was maintained and kept in proper repair.

Expenditure on maintenance during the fiscal year, $2,227.06.

YAMASKA LOCK AXD DAM.

The lock and dam, built under contract about 1882, are situated 2 miles below the

village of St. Michel d'Yamaska, where the Quebec, Montreal & Southern Railway
crosses the Tamaska river, and where the Government built a wharf in 1909.

The Yamaska river rises in the county of Brome, and after a course of 90 miles,

falls into the St. Lawrence at the head of Lake St. Peter. By the construction of these

works and dredging through the shoals below aud above the lock, the river was rendered

navigable for vessels having a maximum draft of 4 feet to Belpoint, or Rapids de la

Grosse Roche, a distance of 20 miles from its mouth.

The dam consists of a stone-filled crib, with plank sheathing on the upper side,

502 feet long, with a stone-filled close-faced crib abutment at each end.

During the fiscal year 191.5-16, the sum of $1,.500 was spent in salaries for the

lockmaster and his assistant, and $449.25 was spent in opening the lock in spring,

closing it in fall, storing the materials of the lock for the winter, repairing some of

the machinery and buying new material.

SLIDES AND BOOMS.

The Dominion Government owns and operates slides and boom works, built to

facilitate the passage of square timber, round logs, flatted and dimension timber, etc.,

on the river Ottawa and tributaries; on the St. Maurice river; the Saguenay river;

and at Fenelon falls and Burleigh falls on the Trent river.

In the subjoined reports the superintendent engineers of the river works, Messrs.

R. F. H. Bruce, F. X. T. Berlinguet and P. E. Amiot, give particulars relative to the

construction, improvements, and repairs carried out under their supervision on govern-

ment slides, booms, piers, dams, streams, buildings, etc., during the fiscal year; the

expenditure incurred for staff, maintenance, improvements, etc.; the quantities of the

various deseriirtions of timber that pass through their works, and other information
of general interest and utility to lumbermen and the public at large.

(By R. F. H. BitucE, Superintendent Engineer.)

Ottawa, April 27, 1916.

E. D. Lafleur, Esq.,

Chie^Tingineer,

Department of Public Works,

Ottawa.

Sir,—I have the honour to submii herewith, the following report on the works
under my charge, for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1916.
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OTTAWA RIVER WORKS ORDINARY REPAIRS, OTTAWA RIVER.

North CJiaudiere Station.—Iron bars were laid ia the bottom of the upper slide,

and on the face of the glance pier below outlet of lower slide. The bottom of the

former slide was patched and at the foot of the lower slide a timber apron was placed

to prevent damage to logs and timber, when the water in the"' Ottawa was at low pitch.

TRIBUTARIES OF OTTAWA RIVER.

Gatineau Eiver.—The planking of the tops of the booms was repaired, about 3,000

feet, board measure, having been used in this work. At different places in the main
boom, twenty-four screw bolts of l|-ineh iron were set to bind the timbers together and
thus strengthen the stiff sections. Seven .^-inch chains, each 45 feet in length, were

added to the boom above the Canadian Pacific bridge. Damaged portions of fencing

along the government property were patched, the boats and scows were overhauled and
painted, and defective planks on the roadways of the two bridges across the canals

leading to Leamy's lake were replaced with new materials. The station house, store-

houses and sheds were also kept in an efficient state of repair.

Madawasl-a River.—At the mouth of the Madawaska many of the chains in the

retaining boom had worn the timber to such an extent that there was danger of the

chains pulling through the wood. Fifty-three lengths of double and twenty-two lengths

of single boom were taken out of the water, the defective ends were sawn off and new
holes were bored two feet from ends of timbers for the chains. Screw bolts of one inch

iron were placed at each end and at the centre of the double sections to hold the timbers

together. Twenty-four new chains, ^-inch by 17 feet, were placed in the boom instead

of those discarded as unserviceable. The chains in general were thoroughly examined,

and where defects were found, new materials were substituted.

At Aruprior the stop-log chains and irons were repaired, and portions of the bulk-

head and guide booms were patched.

At Springtown two piers, one on the north and the other on south shore, both in

connection with the retaining boom, were re-built. The former is Of feet high and the

latter 8| feet. The piers are 16 feet square and filled with stone.

At head of Calabogie lake, 12 chains J-inch by 11 feet, were provided for the boom
at this place, and sufficient timber to build the tops of three of the piers was procured.

At High Falls three lengths of stringers, each 129 feet in extent, and four fingers

or ties 25 feet long, were placed in the flat dam to south of slide entrance, and the face

of the dam was covered with 2-incli pine 19 feet long, for its whole width. The main
controlling dam had to' be staunched to furnish sufficient water for the slide, when the

river was low in the summer months. A supiily of timber was pvirchased to re-build the

upper portion of one of the large triangular jjiers above tl>o slide entrance.

At Chain rajiids, about 100 cubic yards of stone were deposited in the bulk-liead

piers and in the wing dam between the bulk-head and tlie north shore. Timber was
also secured to build the tops of four of the piers supporting the guide booms leading

to the slide.

Coulonge River.—At High Falls, the bottom of the slide, CO feet in length, at

entrance was re-laid. Seven new cross-sills were made to support the floor, which con-

sists of two courses of 3-inch maple plank. A siiort distance below tlie intake of slide,

where the structure is quite high, the foundation cribwork was raised two feet, and
additional .stone ballast was deposited in the crib to give increased stability. Seven
bents, 18 feet high, were erected to carry the superstructure, and other bents which had
sliifted out of place were brought back to their former position in proper alignment.
.Several new longitudinal stringers were required and otliers were taken up, propcrl.y

placed and used again. Sixty-five posts, 12 cross-sills and the sliecting in tlie sides and
bottom of slide were all laid with new material. Three stay cliains of J-inch iron were
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set to steady the superstructure. These are from 29 to 33 feet iu length, one end being

attached to an anchor bolt in the side of the mountain and the other to the timbers of

the slide. The portion of the slide thus repaired was 350 feet in length. At another

place, in the third section of slide, repairs of a similar nature were made, extending

for a length of 100 feet. The top portion of the cribwork was re-built, and 17 bents,

IS feet high, 17 cross-sills and 34 posts, together with the stringers, were all laid in

the new, two stay chains were also placed in this section, these are 16 feet long and

anchored in the same manner as those in the first section. The slide, which is 3,000

feet in length, was overhauled throughout, as posts, braces and sheeting had to be

restored at many places. Nineteen bars of iron ]-ineh by 4 inches were placed at the

curves in slide to protect the planking.

Black River.—At Higji Falls, a portion of the slide, extending from the outlet, 194

feet upward, was built over. Cross-sills, from 14 to 16 feet in length, were laid at 5

feet centres and rock-'bolted wherever possible. The foot pier on eastern side is 35

feet long, 5 feet mde and 4 feet high, the upper end of the pier tapering ofF into side

wall of slide. The other pier, on opposite side, is 170 feet long, 5 feet wide and 4 feet

high, and forms the western side of slide. The bottom of slide is of 10-inch timber,

sheeted with 3-inch maple plank and uiJon the latter are laid J-inch iron bars. The
sides of slide, other than of cribwork, are of solid timber, supported in the usual way
by posts and braces. In building this new portion the curves were very considerably

eased, with a view of reducing the wear on the sides. At the outlet of slide, reefs of

rock on the bed of the river were blasted well below the water surface to ensure a safe

discharge for logs and timber. At the upper end of the new portion of slide, the

timber sides, for a length of 1S7 feet, which were much worn, were hewn to au even
surface and maple planks were used to fill up deficiency. New chains were placed in

the guide booms at entrance to slide whei-e defects were found.

Petewawa River.—At the mouth of the Potowawa, a new pier, 16 feet square, was
built to support the retaining boom, the pier is 91 feet high, in 31 feet of water, and is

protected in front by three fenders 8 feet long.

At First chute, some of the sheeting on the flat dam to north of slide entrance,

which had become loose, was securely fastened.

At Second chute extensive repairs had to be made to the slide and dams in con-

nection therewith. The superstructure of slide, from head piers downward^ 210 feet,

was re-built. A part of the foundation cribwork, at the upper end, had to be built

with new timbers. This crib is 80 feet long, C feet wide and 5 feet high. There are 35

cross-sills, 20 to 22 feet in length, the distance from centre to centre being 6 feet. The
slide is 10 feet at head piers in width, and is drawn in to 5 feet at end of new work,
the height varying from 6 feet to 4 feet 10 inches. The planking in sides and bottom
is 4-inch pine. The bottom of slide, between the head piers, had to be re-laid as some
of the cross-sills had given out. Four stop-logs were made for the slide and some of the

top timbers of the pier on south side had to be restored. A portion of the dam to north
of slide had to be re-built; this was 150 feet in extent, and the stringers, ties and i)lauk-

ing were all laid in the new. Three stop-logs were provided for the waste gate in this

dam, and a large quantity of gravel was strewn along the foundation of the dam to
make it as water-tight as possible. To south of slide the old waste gate opposite site

of saw mill was sheeted with 4-inch pine plank.

At Bois Dur, part of the glance pier which was badly decayed had to be restored;

it is 183 feet long, 13 feet wide and 4 feet high. The pier is composed of 10-inch timber,

close work in front and open in the rear. The tops of two piers supporting the booms
had to be repaired; one of these is 20 feet .square and the other IS feet by 20 feet; three
rounds of timber were placed on each pier, making the new work 4 feet in height, and
each pier was supplied with a snubbing jjost and the usual fenders. A new pier, 13
feet square and 4 feet high, was built at the feeding gap.
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At Thompson's rapids, the expenditure was incurred in providing stop-logs for the

gates and timber used in the retaining dam.
At Poplar chute, pine timber was laid on top of the pier dam adjacent to the chute

and on the dam extending from the upper end of this pier to the shore, four rows of

iron bars, i-ineh by 4-inch, were set to protect the face from abrasion.

At McDonald's station the main dam to north of slide had to be repaired. The
old dam was 81 feet long, but the new one is 104 feet, as the work was carried across

the old slide entrance to the shore; the dam, which varies in height from 7 to 8 f5et,

is of pine timber and the ties are set at eight feet centres. In removing the old

sheeting from the dam, care was taken that it might not be damaged, so it could be
used again in the work. A course of pine plank 2 inches thick was laid over the old

sheeting, breaking the joints, to turn all the water possible into the slide. At outlet

of slide the eribwork under the floor was patched. Five pieces, 22 feet long, were laid,

extending under the foot piers, the supporting ties being laid two to a course. At the

head of the guide boom, on the north side, a pier was built to hold the boom; it is 12

feet square and 12 feet high, containing a snubbing post. Rip-rap was placed at back
and at both sides of the pier to prevent scouring of the bank in season of high water.

Three lengths of timber were furnished for the guide boom on north side, 6 chains

were renewed and an ash spindle was set at entrance to slide for boom on north side.

SLIDES Am> BOOMS GENERALLY.

The sum of $2,000 was set aside from this appropriation for use of repairs to

Ottawa river works, $1,200 for Coulonge river and $800 for Black river.

These amounts were expended in purchasing timber, plank and other materials
for repairs to the slides, booms and piers on these two rivers, as described in the fore-

going report.

Last spring the water in the Ottawa and its tributaries was very low in the early

season; it commenced rising in the fore part of April and continued doing so imtil
May 13, when it reached its maximum height for the season, which was considerably
below that of other years. On May 18 it started to fall, but was checked at several
different times during the summer, owing to hea%'y rain-falls, and altogether the season
was rather favourable for driving purposes.

In submitting the foregoing report, I have the honour to be, sir,

Your obedient servant,

R. F. H. BRFCE,
Superinteiiditig Engineer Ottawa River Works.
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St. IIaurice Eiver Works.

(By F. X. T. Berlixguet, Superintending Engineer.)

Three Eivers, October 24, 1914.

Eugene D. Lafleur, Esq.,

Chief Engineer, ^
Department of Public Works,

Ottawa.

The St. Maurice river flows from west to east, about 350 miles, waters the whole

of that vast ten-itory, and is one of the largest tributaries of the river St. Lawrence.

During the commercial season 1915, the fluctuation of the water level, when
floating logs, has been fairly good; during the season 11,602,791 logs have passed

through the difl'erent assorting gaps along the river and have reached the diflerent

saw mills.

At the low-wateff season, after the drives had passed, the foundation of the various

river structures were examined and the most urgent repairs were performed; all the

booms were put in winter quarters in good condition for the next season, and ready

for the opening of the commercial season 1916. This work has been done for sixty-one

years, by day labour, by the staff. The amount expended during the last year is as

follows :

—

Staff $16,629 70

Alligators 12,386 08

Working expenses 10,750 33

An amount of $13,917.15 was expended during the year for the following works:

—

Grandes Piles.—Inspection and maintenance of booms and piers.

Ste. Flore.—Two hundred cubic yards of stone placed in piers; 2 piers completed;

1,000 feet 5-ply booms repaired.

Grand'ifvre.—Maintenance and inspection : 4 concrete heads erected on piers.

Shawinigan Falls.—Seven hundrc^l and fifty-seven feet of 5-ply booms repaired

and 2 anchor piers built.

Trois-Rivieres.—Maintenance and inspection.

1 have the honour to be, sir,

Your obedient servant,

F. X. T. BEELINGUET,
Superintendent Engineer, St. Maurice River Works.
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Report on the Sa(;uen-ay River Works.

(By P. E. Amiot, Superintending Engineer.)

SAGUENAY BOOJIS.

Saguenay boom is situated 6 miles from Chicoutimi town.

The pier, 20 feet square by 20 feet liigh, which was prepared and ready to be sunk

last year, has been completed during the present fiscal year; it is a common round-

timber structure, ballasted with stone and sheathed with 3-inch deals. The offices on

the south side and the guardian's house on the north side of the river were painted; 20

pieces of boom, 80 feet in length by 3 feet in width, have been recovered with 3-inch

deals, and 6 new pieces, 60 feet in length, have been built.

The work was carried out by day labour at a cost of $2,900, was started April 1

and completed March .31.

TRENT .\ND NEWCASTLE.

Burleigh Falls, in the county of Peterborough, is situated at the west end of

Stoney lake, on the Trent canal, about 22 miles from Peterborough city.

The department collects tolls in connection with the dam and slideworks main-

tained at this point to facilitate the handling of logs.

These works have been in existence for a considerable number of years, during

which period only limited repairs have been made, consequently an advanced state of

decay existed, making necessary practically complete reconstruction. This was under-

taken in 1913-14, when a portion of the works were rebuilt, as follows: Rock-filled

gravity dam, 140 feet long, maximum height 6 feet; crib, 106 feet long, 8 feet wide, 8

feet high ; new crib, 48 feet long, 8 feet wide and 6 feet high. Certain general repairs

k) cribs and booms were also effected.

From Xovember 16 to December 31 the following work was accomplished:

—

North Side.—Cribs, 8 by 14 by 6 feet high, and 14 by 14 by 6 feet high, rebuilt of

10 by 10 timber and loaded, above E. L. W. L. Gravity dam, 75 feet long, maximum
height 9 feet, built of rock-bolted framed-beuts of 10 by 10 timber at 8-foot centres,

with four horizontal 10 by 10 stringers and 3-inch plank sheeting. Plank walk, 20 by

4 feet whle, over sluice, rebuilt and six 10-inch by 10-inch by 18 feet stop-logs framed
and placed.

South Side.—New end rebuilt on crib, 6 feet high, 13-5 feet long (close laid 10 by

10). Two vertical partitions rebuilt, feet high, 8 feet long, of 10 by 10 timber, drifted

to each other and rock bolted. Two-injih plank walk, 60 feet long by 4 feet wide, on
10 by 10 stringers rebuilt, and 10 by 10 .stop-logs in three sluices renewed and repaired.

In both parts of this work it was necessary to remove the old structures and exca-

vate a considerable quantity of solid rock and earth to secure good foundations for the

new structures.

Expenditure during the fiscal year is .$1,080.96.

BRID(JES AND ROADS.

It may be stated that, in the older provinces of the Dominion, the Federal Govern-

ment has confined itself, as a rule, to take under its exclusive control and make pro-

visions towards the construction and maintenance of important interprovincial road

bridges and bridges required across waterways.

In the sparsely settled districts of the Northwest Territories, the Government of

Canada has undertaken to provide for the erection and maintenance of ordinary road

bridges over large streams ; bridges that are urgently needed to afford uninterrupted

commvmication through trails and highways of national importance, which neither the
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municipalities to be more imtmediately benefited by the structures nor the territorial

authorities most directly concerned, could be expected to erect and maintain at their

sole expense.

During the last fiscal year, works have been executed on the following:

—

ONTARIO AND QUEBEC.

Bridcjes at Ottawa, and Roadway akd Bridge Approaches between- Ott.\wa and Hull.

Ordinary Repairs.

Laurier Bridge.—The steelwork of this bridge received a coat of paint, after all

rust, scale and dirt had been thoroughly removed, and portions of the handrail, which

were much corroded in places, were replaced by new sections.

Union Bridge.—The present Union (Intcrprovincial) bridge, across the Ottawa

river, at the Chaudiere, built in 1889, is a through span, 234 feet 6 inches, of pin-

connected Whipple trusses, spaced 43 feet centre to centre and resting on masonry

piers. It supports double car tracks and has a 6-foot sidewalk.

During the period May 21 to .Tune 9 certain alterations and repairs were made to

this structure, by the Dominion Bridge Co., Ltd. Members centering at sway-braced

panel joints of upper chord were pressed back to alignment and spacers inserted; con-

nections between lower struts of sway-bracing and vertical posts were considerably

stiffened; adjustable members were tightened; rods of sway and upper wind bracings

were secured together at intersections ; many rivets and bolts were replaced in fences

;

pier members were cleaned, oiled and painted. These repairs and improvements

climinatod rattling and the worst vertical vibrations.

Traffic signs were erected, limiting the speed of travel, etc., over this structure,'

and parties responsible for heavy trucking were notified as to the limitations of the

bridge.

A heavy accumulation. of ice was removed, February 25 to March 1, as well as

considerable snow, which had encumbered the bridge during this period.

Expenditure during the fiscal year, $487.78.

The roadway of the Union bridge was kept clean and the planking was patched

where required. A supply of red pine plank was provided to renew the roadway when
this becomes necessary.

Chaudiere Slide Bridge.—The roadway of this bridge was cleaned frequently

during the summer, as were also the gratings and waterways. A section of the grano-

lithic sidewalk, on eastern side at southern end, was laid in the new, as it had become
badly cracked owing to expansion and contraction of the iron work which supports it.

Roadway and Bridge Approaches between Ottawa and Hull.—-This thoroughfare

was cleaned often. The steel bracket and floor beams of sidewalk and the girders and
buckle plates sui)porting the roadway adjacent to the Ottawa Electric Railway viaduct

were all painted. Several beams had given out through corrosion and new ones were
substituted. At both ends of the northern arch the masonry wall on eastern side had
bulged so much that it threatened to collapse so concrete walls were built to retain the

masonry. The wall at the northern end is C2 feet long, 5 feet wide at base and lA feet

at top, the height varying from 14 to 19 feet. The southern wall is 82 feet long, 3 feet

wide at base and drawn in to 1 foot at top, the average height being 12 feet; both walls

are well reinforced with iron bars. The iron standards of the guardrail on western

side; of roadway were straightened, the iron piping was adjusted and the railing was
I)ainted. The sandstone pavement was repaired at different places, and the iron grat-

ings and weei^er holes were kept clean.
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During the winter surplus ice and snow were removed from the roadways and

sidewalks of all the bridges and causeway leading from Ottawa to Hull, and when
there was any danger of persons slipping on the icy sidewalks, sand was spread over

the walks to prevent such an oecun-ence. In springtime, in accordance with usual

custom, gutters were cut and the gratings were opened up to carry off the surface

water on the roadways.
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RAPIDES-DES-.TOACHIMS.

The wooden roadways of both spans across the slide channel, also one of the short

spans across the main channel, were altogether renewed; the floor beams are 3 inches

by 12 inches by 14 feet pine, and the bottom floor is 3-ineh pine. A course of 2-inch

pine was placed on all the spans, giving a width of 12 feet for vehicles. The wheel

guards are of 6-ineh square pine, and are placed at both sides of the bridges.

The bridge across the main channel consists of three spans, a total length of

flooring of 438J feet, while the bridge over the slide channel has two spans, with a

total length of 309 feet of flooring.

The roadway approaches to both bridges were repaired, about 200 cubic yards of

filling having bene placed, principally adjacent to the planking on the bridges, where

the gravel had been washed away.

BRYSON BRIDGE.

The span at the eastern end of the Bryson bridge, which is supported by timber-

work piers, had crushed through the bearing timbers, broken the ties underneath and

threatened to fall into the river. Trafiic was suspended and the necessary repairs were

immediately undertaken. Timber bents, resting on the stone filling in the piers, were

erected, the span was jacked back to place and new corbels were set for the bearing

plates. The bents built in the piers are over 30 feet in height and are of 10-iuch pine

timber. Two courses of new timber were placed on the centre peir, and new supports

were provided to carry the girder span on the eastern approach. Three hundred lineal

feet of 6-inch square cedar wheel guards and 3,000 feet, board measure, of 3-inch

plank were laid on the roadway. Owing to the height of the bridge piers, nearly 40

feet above low water, and the restricted space in which to carry on the work, great care

had to be taken in making the repairs to guard against mishaps.

PORTAGE-DU-FORT BRIDGES.

The approaches to the two bridges at Portage-du-Fort, where the roadway had

been washed away, were repaired. At the southern end of the bridge across the main
channel, 140 cubic yards of stone were laid for a foundation, with a top dressing of

fine stone amounting to 40 cubic yards. At the northern end of the same bridge, like

quantities of similar materials were laid. At the southern end of the smaller bridge,

30 cubic yards of stone and 10 cubic yards of dressing were placed. The guard fence

at southern end of main bridge was renewed for a distance of 60 feet, four new posts

being required, while at the northern end two panels, each 16 feet in length, had to be

restored.

POND CREEK BRIDGE.

The top course of planking on the roadway of this bridge was badly worn and had

to be patched in order to save the lower course ; the material used for this purpose was

red pine, 3 inches in thickness.

CHAPEAU BRIDGE.

Chapeau, a small village in Pontiac county, is located on Allumette island, across

the Ottawa river from Pembroke, Out.

In the early TO's, a wooden traffic bridge was built, by provincial grant, across the

Culbute channel of the Ottawa river at Chapeau. The old structure was replaced by

a modern bridge, 40 feet upstream, in 1910-12.

During the month of June, six steel cover plates jvere added to the bridge, to over-

come the trouble which had been met with at expansion joints ; later, 56 loads of gravel

were placed on the approach roadways.

.Expenditure during the fiscal year, $128.43

19—33
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HAWKESBLRY BRIDGE.

Hawkesbury, a town in Prescott county, is located on the Ottawa river midway
between Ottawa and Montreal.

During the past few years, considerable preliminary work has been done in con-

nection with the selection, examination and testing of site and right of way for the

proposed Interprovincial bridge across the Ottawa from Hawkesbury, Ont., to Gren-

ville. Que.

During the past year, further detail drawings were prepared in connection with

the superstructure of this bridge, for which all plans and specifications are now ready,

except details of lighting system, which has not been fully developed.

The project is for a high-level deck bridge and trestles of steelwork, with rein-

forced concrete roadway, 20 feet wide, and two 4-foot 3-inch sidewalks across the

Ottawa river and Grenville canal, 2,288 lineal feet; stone and earth-fill approches, 838

feet ; two roadway bridges, 42-feet 6-inches span, and 1,170 lineal feet of improved
roadway in John street, Hawkesbury, heretofore maintained by the Hawkesbury
Lumber Co.

NORTH TIMISKAMIXG BRmGE.

North Timiskaming, a village in Pontiac county, is located at the mouth of the

Quinze river, two miles below the head of navigation on Lake Timiskaming and one

mile east from the boundary of the province of Ontario. This is the outlet of a pros-

perous farming district, which, owing to the dangerous condition of the river in the

spring and fall, as well as the growing traffic, will be greatly benefited by the traflac

bridge under construction.

The contract for bridge substructure and approach roadways was entered into

with Messrs. Lynch, Peckham & Gorman, May 9, 1914. Since March 31, 1915, the

approaches and main pier above the footing were built, and bridge seats, etc., finished.

It was found necessary, during the course of construction, to supplement the wash
borings, and the foundations for piers and abutments were, of necessity, subjected to

slight alterations. Riprap was placed around piers and approaches to offset scouring.

This entailed deeper foundations and additional quantities.

Contract plans and specifications have been prepared for superstructure and
tenders called for.

Expenditure during the fiscal year, $14,115.84.

GRAND RIVER BRIDGE.

Grand River bridge is a highway bridge connecting the east and west banks of

the Grand river at the village of York, in the County of Haldimand. It is about

midway between the villages of Caledonia and Cayuga, the nearest railway station.

This bridge consists of four steel trestle spans, 105 feet long each, supported by 3

stone-filled cribs and concrete piers and two masonry abutments, a timber trestle, 166
feet long, at west end of steel span, and an earth and gravel approach to the west of

trestle, 656 feet long.

The bridge was constructed by the Dominion Government in 1891.

The work of repair was commneced August 2 and was completed September 25,

and consisted in repairing and renewing decking where required over the steel span
section; repairing and renewing decking as required over timber approach, renewing
railing on both sides, with exception of the posts on extreme, west end of timber
approach; cap timber was renewed and dump boards were replaced; the hand-railing

of the highway approach, with the exception of the posts along both sides of the high-

way at west end was renewed and 24 new posts were placed; approach to bridge was
repaired by surfacing with gravel, and the fences were painted.

The expenditure amounted to $023.29.
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GRAND LAKE NARROWS.

C. N. 0. Eij. Bridge.

Application was made and plans stibmitted by tho Canadian Northern Ontario

railway, under the Navigable Waters Protection Act, for proposed bridge to be built

across Grand Lake Narrows, township of Barron, district of Nipissing, Ont., 127

miles west of Ottawa. The site was examined and application approved by Order in

Council of September 11, 1914. This consists of rock-fill embankments, aggregating

580 feet, with 70-foot through plate girder span on framed bent trestle abutments.

The permanent structure was completed in 1915.

MUSKRAT RIVER (lIEATH STATION').

C. P. Ry. Bridge.

The Canadian Pacific Railwa.y Company proceeded with the construction of their

new bridge across the Muskrat river in order to do away with the existing 600-foot

trestle, built skew to the stream over twenty years ago, and which intersects the high-

way bridge (O. C. June 15, 1912).

Piles were driven to a great depth for the footing of concrete abutments; during

the course of placing the ballast fills to said abutments, the work settled down and
virtually disappeared, while, at the same time, the river bottom on either side was
raised several feet. As the new line for this diversion is built through marshy soil,

the company found it necessary to purchase additional land and cut a new channel for

the river, to which the steel span, plate girder, 87 feet 2 inches long, will be removed.

This new channel is located some 900 feet from the originally proposed location of

bridge, and is to be maintained by the company.
Very little progress has been made on this project since the revised location was

authorized (O. C. May 4, 1915).

MATAPEDIA MILITARY ROAD.

Matapedia military road is situated partly in Rimouski and Bonaventure counties,

in the valley of Matapedia.

The road starts from Ste. Flavie, on the St. Lawrence river and extends to Cross

Point on the Restigouche river, 110 miles from the starting point. The construction

of this road began in 1857, and was completed in 18G7, at a cost of $187,870.85. This

road was repaired and kept in good order by the Government, as a military road.

After the construction of the Intercolonial the greatest part of this road was aban-

doned to the different municipalities along the road. There remains a portion of it,

from Beaurivage to Millstreara, a distance of 19 miles, where there is no municipality.

From Confederation to the year 1913, a sum of $34,048.43 was expended for

reconstruction, and the expenditure for maintenance and repairs was $13,650.09.

The work done in 1915-16 consisted in the repairing of the road from Millstream

to Ruisseau Clark, inclusively ; several bridges and culverts have been built, especially

at Ruisseau Clark, where a bridge, 88 feet long by IS feet wide, was entirely recon-

structed.

The road was cleared of trees, brush and stumijs and a new roadbed was made.

Expenditure for the fiscal year is $2,492.55.

MANITOBA.
HEADINGLY HIGHWAY BRIDGE.

The rural municipalities of Assiniboia and Charleswood, Macdonald county,

united in building a pile highway bridge across the Assiniboine river, a few hundred
feet below the Canadian Pacific Railway bridge.

Neither a swing span or opening pontoon was provided for navigation. An effort

will be made to have the municipalities provide this next season.

19—33A
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ALBERTA.

BOW RRER BRIDGE.

The steel bridge crossing the Bow river, in the town of Banff, Rocky Mountain
park, was inadequate to carry the heavy tourist and other summer traffic, and it has

been found necessary to arrange and design another bridge to occupy this position.

This steel bridge was removed to a temporary position, some 60 feet down stream

from the line occupied, so that the supporting piers would be clear of all excavation

and obstruction to the work of building the new reinforced bridge.

It was considered necessary, owing to the high water -anticipated this coming
spring, to sheet around the exposed portions of piers and abutments as a precaution

against floating debris.

This work was carried out, by day labour, at an expenditure of $120.45.

EDMONTOX BRIDGE.

The Edmonton bridge crosses the North Saskatchewan river, between Edmonton
and Strathcona (which now forms a i)art of the city of Edmonton). It is 700 feet

long between abutments, and consists of four 175-foot spans. The roadway is 17 feet

wide, and there are two sidewalks each having a width of 7 feet. The bridge is con-

structed with steel superstructure in the form of Pratt Trusses, of seven 2o-foot

panels each. The approximate weight of bridge, per lineal foot, is 2,420 pounds. The
piers and abutments are of concrete, approximately 43 feet high from the river bed.

These are erected on concrete footings deposited in caissons in which bearing piles

were driven before the concrete was deposited.

At the end of June, 1915, a disastrous flood occurred in the North Saskatchewan

river, the water rising on Juno 29 to a height never before known in Edmonton. At
this bridge the water partially covered the lower cord, giving a maximum rise, from

low-water level, of 45 feet. The structure was not damaged in any respect by the

flood, as was found by a close examination following the subsidence of the water. It

was found, however, that considerable of the banks were washed away on each side of

the river in the vicinity of the abutments and it was considered advisable to protect

these abutments by putting in protection work around the north and south abutments.

A largo anijount of loose rock was piled around the toe of the sheeting to prevent

the water from causing erosion. This protection work is constructed at a height

sufiiciently great to allow the ice, when rvuiiiing out in the spring, to run by without

touching same.

Th^ expenditure for the fiscal year is $2,-398.35.

CEMENT LABORATORY.

Ottaw.v, August 5, 1910.

E. D. Lafleur, Esq.,

Chief Engineer.

Sir,—I have the honour to submit herewith the annual report of the laboratory

for testing materials for the fi.scal year ending March 31, 1916.

Owing to the great demand for economy during the present European struggle

there has been no new addition to the staff. Mr. J. Evans was transferred from the

physical testing to the clerkship, and Mr. E. Viens was nominated director of the

laboratory.
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The following tables give the number of samples received. All of those samples
were physically and chemically tested according to specifications.

CEMENTS.
Submitted by

—

Engineer's of the Public Works 3,198
Deputy Minister of Public Works 10
Chief Architect of Public Works 2
Railways and Canals 1
Marine and Fisheries 16
Outside contractors 30

SAND AND GRAVELS.
Submitted by

—

Engineer's of the Public W^orks 18
' Marine and Fisheries 1
Unmarked 5

inSCELLANEOUS SPECIMENS.
Submitted by—

•

"
•

Maritime Construction Company, granite 2
Chief Architect. Public Works, sa.sh chains 2
Railways and Canals, stone 1
J. B. McRea, welded steel 17
Mr. CraifT, bricks 3
Mr. Wright, crushed stone 1
Unmarked, concrete 4

" rock 3

Number of samples that failed

—

Cement.. 24
Concrete 4

Sand and gravel 2

I regret to announce that after over thirty-two years of good and faithful service

in the department, Mr. George E. Perley, director of the laboratory, died on March
16, 191C.

I have the honour to be, sir,

Your obedient servant,

E. VIENS,
Director.
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APPENDIX "A."

OTTAWA EIVEE STOEAGE.

Ottawa, ilay 22. 1016.

E. D. Laflelr, Esq.,

Chief Engineer,

Department of Public Works,
Ottawa.

Sir,—I liave the honour to present my amiual report on the progress of work,

Ottawa Eiver Storage, from April 1, 1915, to March 31, 1916.

At Timiskaming dam, the rock rip-rap work ceased with the high water of spring-

time, but the quarry face was squared up and some holes drilled ready for blasting.

The tracks from the quarry across the island were pUt in order and ballasted, and by

June all the working force was discharged. For safety, a railing of iron piping was

placed along the downstream side of the deck of the Ontario and Quebec sluices.

To satsify the Lumbermen's Association, trial borings were made by Mr. H. M.

Davy, about the site of the dam and across the lake at the head of the islands; some

further borings were taken for a distance of three miles downstream, but in no case

was bed rock found, although depths of 100 feet were reached; this was expected, as

indicated by borings made before the dam was commenced.

The spring freshet was not excessive and was passed by taking out the stop-logs

evenly across both the Ontario and "Quebec sluices; it was only necessary to lower the

crest from 6 to 8 feet. All sluices were closed in July and have remained so until the

end of the year, the log-pass and 4.">-foot opening serving to pass all the flow. About

3,000,000 logs passed through the dam during the season without accident. The
reservoir was to full working level iram middle of May until end of July, then storage

was given continuously till end of September. The autumn rains were heavy and the

reservoir rose again to nearly full level in Xovember, where it stood to end of

December.
About the beginning of September the work of placing rip-rap was begun again

and 7,000 cubic yards have been placed downstream of the Ontario sluices to refill the

scouring. There "is now a bank of rock extending 120 feet downstream from these

piers and the whole way across, 400 feet. The top of this bank is level with the sluice

sills and its depth is from 10 to 30 feet.

On the Quebec side a platform of logs was made across the log-pass, upon which a

steam derrick was placed, and from this, rock from the quarry has been deposited

downstream from the .sluiceways in the strong current. This work was under way by

December 1 to the end of the month, and 1,500 cubic yards of rock had been deposited.

Quarry waste has been placed on the face of the rock fill that closed the wash-out next

to the island to staunch the interstices and is showing good effect.

Further protection was placed along the downstream side of the Quebec sluices

from January to April. The current is too swift to allow of making soundings, but

two large rocks with floats attached were dropped in and showed the filling to be up
to sill level. Stone was swung out 30 feet below the dam, then dropped into the

current, which carried it another 20 feet, so that the riprap ma>" be said to extend 50

feet downstream.

A moveable timber gravity dam was constructed during December to check the

current in the log-pass while placing riprap below, also to try out a method of closing
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the wide opening, owing to the constant demand of power owners. It consisted of a

crib, 40 feet long by 16 feet wide and 6 feet high, which was wedge-shaped. This was
floated to place and the idea was to tip the crib and let the weight of water sink it

down to the sluice sill platform. Unfortunately the cables, g-inch steel, snapped with

the stress and the crib was lost.

The second crib was built about half the size, being 20 feet long, IG feet wide and
7 feet high. It was successfully paid down by wire cable to its place and smothered

under the swift water as expected, but the cables cut through the timbers in a few
hours.

The third crib was of the same size and still remains in place, so it is not certain

that the wide opening can be controlled, if desired. The flow was reduced by this

means about 2,000 cubic feet per second, while the lake stood at elevation 582.

For closing this log-pass, a number of designs have been suggested, the most
complete being a cylindrical steel girder, 45 feet by 4 feet diameter, designed by Mr.
Fortin, of this department. The stress of this 45-foot dam, however, would be too

great for the two side piers and enlarging them would be expensive and risky. A
gravity type dam, therefore, bringing all the stress upon the sill platform, is essential.

The expenditure of water required from Timiskaming reservoir was very moderate
this year, only 1G,200 second feet in January, 14,300 second feet in February, and
14,700 second feet in March. No shortage was experienced at Chaudiere owing to the

ample precipitation during the summer, but the effect of storage is noticeable January
to March.

A table showing the average monthly surfaces of each reservoir is submitted.

There is also a table showing average monthly flow at Chaudiere falls from 1906 to

1911, before storage was inaugurated, and during 1915-16, when storage was in opera-

tion. Compare January to March, 1907 and 1911 with 1916.

AVERAGE SURFACE HEIGHTS OF RESERVOIRS FOR PAST YEAR.

Date. Quinze. Kipawa. Tiiniskaniing.

1915.

April
May
June
July
August
September
October
November
December

1916.

.January
February
March

Elevation
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Kipawa reservoir was opened January 22, 1916, and lowered from elevation SSl-0

to 878-5 by March 30. It began to rise April 1 and is now, April 30, elevation 881-5.

Many of the streams entering Kipawa and the other reservoirs will run in without
control, as lumber dams have been left open owing to the curtailment of logging

operations.

At Gordon Creek dam, Kipawa reservoir, about $100 worth of cribwork was placed

along the .side of the canal, below the sluiceway, to prevent fragments of rock falling

in from the side.

Quinze dam has not been used for storage yet, pending settlements for the area

that will be inundated. By decision of the department, however, the reservoir has

been held all summer at 15 feet below working level, or average high water under
natural conditions.

About 250,000 logs passed through the dam early in the season. These were towed

down the lake in booms, which were opened at the islands about a mile above the dam
and the logs were allowed to float loose down into our lead boom. A strong wind,

together with the cross current, caused the logs to press abnormally on the booms,

which finally parted. About 25,000 logs piled in a jam above the south part of the

sluiceway and had to be removed at the department's expense. This autumn heavier

piers have been built and double booms strung.

The five miles of road leading into the dam have been reparied again, in a rough
way, during the summer. The corduroy over the swamp sections is becoming bad after

five years, and proper drainage means rock cutting at large expense. Material suitable

to build up this road would have to be hauled a couple of miles at least.

During the winter, two large piers for booms and several sunken piers have been
built and placed. For this work, a new scow has been built, as the ice in the current

was not strong enough to support loaded piers.

In connection with metering the Ottawa river and its tributaries, over seventy

gauges are read dail.y between Quinze and Montreal. Each week a post card is sent

to this office by each gauge reader, and the daily readings are then posted up in a

specially ruled book. The more imiJortant ones are plotted on cross-section paper, so

that a graph of surface elevations is available for inspection.

No meterings 'have been necessary in the Quinze rapids, as the flow did not exceed

30,000 c.f.s., and the discharge curve is complete up to this point from last year's work.

Below Timiskaming dam constant meterings have been made at the cable station,

and the same party at Gordon Creek and the Georgian Bay sununit, which includes

Talon chute, Menard's bridge, Kai-bus-Kong river and Mattawa river. The DuMoine
river is ailso metered by this party and all the upper river gauges are supervised by them.

The Quio metering party make measurements of the main river, at that place,

and of the Black river, the Coulonge, the main river at La Passe, the Mississippi and
the Quyon river.

At the Ottawa rating station, Dow's lake, metering instruments are constantly

being checked for wear of points and the retardation due to the contact spring against

electrical connection. This party also measure the flow of the main river at Kettle

island, and at Besserer's Grove, and the Rideau and Gatincau rivers.

At Carillon, the party meter the main river at that pla'ce and the Rouge, the

North and the Rigaud river. In summer, this party is located at Bout de I'lle and
does the St. Lawrence there, as well as the Ottawa channels and the tributaries.

During the winter, there is too much frazil ice in the St. Lawrence to permit of

metering.

For some time measurements of the St. Lawrence flow were made at Cedars, Que.,

but the conditions were unsatisfactory and since the power-house there has been in

operation it has been necessary to find a new s^tion. After investigation and trial

Mr. Johnson selected one at Iroquois, about fifteen miles below Prescott, Ont. This

would be seventy miles above Cedars, or, say, seventy-five miles above the junction of
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the Ottawa, and it is found that only two per cent has to be added to the Iroquois

flow. As the Iroquois section has been under measurement since last May and has

been found very convenient, this arrangement is considered very satisfactory. The
current is strong, and in the beginning accidents occurred, resulting in the total loss

of one meter, but since then the work has gone very smoothly under Mr. LeClair's

management.
Mr. Johnson makes the following statement of the work carried on during the

months of January, February and March last.

At all stations gauge readings and precipitation and temperature observations

have been carried on as usual. Meterings were taken at various intervals on the

following rivers and at stations on the Ottawa river :

—

No. of Meterings,
C. W. Thonison and Party

—

Jan. 1 to Mar. 31.

Timiskaming (Ottawa river) 22
Gordon Creek 13
Kai-bus-kong Creek 1

Talon lake 2

Amable du Fond : . . 2

Maltawa river 2

Duraoine river
Petawawa river • . . . .~V. 4

46

Oeo. Gallinger and Party

—

Black river 1

Coulonge river 1

La Passe (Ottawa river) 1

Bonnechere river 3

Madawaska river 3

Mississippi river 4

Quyon (Ottawa river) 36

49

Vicinity of Ottawa by Messrs. J. Beauchemin and VT. F. Coutlee

—

Rideau river 4

<5atineau river. T 1

Besserer's Grove (Ottawa river) 2

W. J. Leclair and Party

—

Lievre river
Rouge river S

Carillon (Ottawa river) 35

North river 18

59

Our records show that Quinze lake dropped from elevation 855-3, on January 1,

to 883-3 at the end of March last, being about 2-5 feet above the winter average since

1908-9.

The minimum monthly flow out of Quinze lake during the winter came to 49,000

c.f.s., which is double that of the previous winter, and nearly 1,000 c.f.s. greater than

the average for the past six years.

Precipitation observations give a fall of 14-75 inches at the Quinze during the

past four months. This is 6 inches greater than the average for 16 years of records,

at Hailcybury, up to 1911, and the four last years at the Quinze.

Timi.skaniing lake dropped from an elevation of 586-3, on January 1, to elevation

581-2 on March 31. This is over 7 feet above the average winter level of the lake

during tlie last nine years. An average flow of over 14,000 c.f.s. was maintained out of

tlie lake during these months, being 3,000 c.f.s. al)ove the average during the nine

years in which records bave been kept.
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Our precipitation records at Timiskamiiig show a fall of rain and snow amounting

to 12 inches, which, like the foregoing figures, is considerably greater than any past

records for the winter months, being 4 inches above the average.

Tlie Mattawa river is now being metered at least once a month at Talon lake and

at the mouth. Meterings have been started again on the Amable du Fond river, at

Booth's farm, about nine miles from the Eau Claire.

The flow from all the tributaries of the Ottawa has been greater than the average

for the years of which we have kept any record.

As soon as the flow reaches about 20,000 c.f.s. at the Quinze it is proposed to send

Mr. Trudel up to start a system of meterings. Mr. Trudel should remain there until

the high water is i)ast and the flow is down again to the former amount; while in that

vicinity he will also meter the Montreal river.

Mr. Kirkpatrick can carry on the Timiskamiug metering until !Mr. Trudel

returns, and at the same time do the tributaries to the east and south.

It may be necessary, during the high water period, to have a party from this

oflice assist in the outdoor work, as the Quyon party will be kept busy between La
Passe and the Quyon.

During the winter months a catamaran has been constructed at the Quyon by
building two row boats suitable for the work and fastening them together; the men
did this work in their spare time. It has 'been found impossible to rent suitable boats

for any length of time at a fair figure at most of our stations; therefore, whenever it

is possible the boats are either purchased or new ones built.

The Britannia bay records show the lake to have risen from elevation 190-6, on
January 1, to 191-1 on March .31, while the flow past the Chaudiere falls averaged

25,000 c.f.s. for the winter months, this being 5,000 c.f.s. greater than the average for

thirteen years.

At the Eideau locks the elevation on .lanuary 1 was 131 1 and at the end of

March it was 1.34-4. The average monthly flow during the winter came to 31,700

c.f.s. This is 2,200 c.f.s. greater than the average for forty-eight years. It has been
found necessary to estimate the winter flow below Ottawa by adding the flow from
the Gatineau and Rideau rivers to that at Britannia bay. Reliable results cannot be

obtained from readings on the Rideau locks gauge, owing to the length of the reach

and the friction due to the ice cover.

Surveys were continued, during the summer, of the Madawaska river and of

Timi.skaming lake, besides which a survey was begun in May of the Coulonge river.

It has been the aim in these surve.vs to fix the shore line and the water surfaces and
to extend contours along each bank for 25 feet above the surface. All levels were
connected with Canadian bench-marks, and as far as possible soundings were made
across the streams so as to have a permanent topographical plan of the minor valley,

both above and below water level. This work is plotted by latitudes and departures,

at a scale of 400 feet to the inch.

The Madawaska survey has been completed from its junction with the Ottawa at

Arnprior up to 150 miles to Rock lake, and Mr. Trudel deserves mention for the

conduct of this work.

The survey of the shores of Timiskaming reservoir was made in continuation of

the survey from Mattawa up to Timiskaming dam. The sides are steep and rocky, at

many places sheer cliffs, rendering the work diflicult, but Mr. Menard managed to

carry the surveys of both shores up to Quinn Point, about 46 miles above Timiskaming
dam.

The Coulonge survey was begun in May, and extended 35 miles up the main river,

whence about four miles was done up the east branch. Mr. Anderson managed this

survey well and it is to be regretted that it could not have been continued up to the

head waters. Little Victoria lake, thence down the DuMoine river.
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Owing to the war conditions all these surveys were closed down at the end of

October and only the men in charge retained to plot the work.

Longitude and latitude points were established this year on the DuMoine and on

the Coulonge rivers, as well as in the Ivipawa watershed. The party then established

three points down the French river, completing the series of points in the western

area ; besides these some points were fixed on the Upper Gatineau and the DuLievre,

so that with last year's work the general positions of the whole watershed has been

fairly well fixed for plotting on the mile to the inch plan.

Ofiice work has consisted largely of the preparation of a general report covering

the last three years, which is now in the hands of the printer. A large amount of

plan work has also been under way connected with precise levelling, tidal suiweys,

land damages and other matters which have been referred to this office. The general

curtailment of work has resulted in a large reduction of the staff, and, besides this,

several members have volunteered for overseas service.

Plans of the Madawaska survey have been completed by Mr. Trudel at a scale of

400 feet to an inch. A general scheme of dams and reaches has been designed for this

river and indicated on the plan in pencil for future reference. The arrangement

would be suitable for both navigation and power.

The surveys made in Kipawa basin and from Mattawa up the river to Timis-

kaming dam and north to Ville Marie by Mr. Menard have also been plotted at 400

feet to an inch; upon these plans dams and reaches have been indicated as on the

Madawaska survey.

The survey of the Coulonge river was recalled, but !Mr. Anderson, now serving in

the Royal naval air ser\dce, finished the plan at 400 feet to an inch.

I have the honour to be, sir.

Your obedient servant,

C. E. COUTLEE,
Engineer-in-charge.

CONCLUSION.

Owing to the terrible war now raging, in which the Dominion has assumed its

share, it was wisely decided that only works placed under contract or nearing com-

pletion and works of a very pressing nature should receive the attention of this branch

of the service, as was done last year. Works were maintained, repairs made and
everything done in preparation for the resumption of the era of prosi^erity which is

checked by the war and its consequences. In closing this report, I wish to extend to all

the officers under my control, including those at headquarters, my most sincere thanks

for the ability exercised and the assistance rendered in executing the different works

placed under the control of this branch of the Department.

EUGENE D. LAFLEUR,
Chief Engineer,
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Department of Public Works,

Office of the General Superintendent,

Ottawa, Ont., November 17, 1916.

R. C Desrochers, Esq.,

Secretary, Department of Public Works.

Sir,—I beg to submit herewith my report on the Government Telegraph Service

for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1916.

This report, as usual, is prefaced by a list to the present date of the land lines

and cables in operation; with data of lengths, year of construction, number of offices

at present established, and an estimate of the traffic handled in each instance.

The usual tabular statement giving list of offices, operating staff, etc., in the

several districts are appended to the report; likewise the tariff sheets showing the

rates charged for messages on the several lines.

I have the honour to be, sir.

Your obedient servant,

D. H. KEELET,
General Superintendent.
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THE GOVERNMENT TELEGRAPH SERVICE^
DOMmiON OF CANADA

HEAD OFFICE: DEPAKTMENT OF PUBLIC WOKKS, OTTAWA.

(March 31, 1916.)

EXECUTIVE.

The Hon. R. Rogers, Minister of Public Works.
J. B. Hunter, Esq., Deputy Minister of Public Works.

STAFF AT HEADQUARTERS.

D. H. Keeley, General Superintendent.

M. W. Crean, Technical Assistant to General Superintendent.

J. E. Gobeil, Technical Assistant to General Superintendent.

Miss E. D. McClosky, Secretary to General Superintendent.

Miss A. Ranger, Assistant Secretary to General Superintendent.

Miss F. G. Watterson, Second Assistant Secretary to General Superintendent.

P. G. Burgess, Accountant Telegraph Branch.
J. E. Bray, Assistant Accountant Telegraph Branch.

GENERAL INSPECTORS.

A. B. McDonald, North Sydney, Cape Breton, lines in Nova Scotia and New
Brunswick.

J. S. Macdonald, Edmonton, Alta., lines in Northwest and British Columbia south.

SUPERINTENDENCIES.

Edwin Pope, Quebec, supt.. North Shore and G.N.W. traffic.

P. E. Vignault, Seven Islands, dist. supt.. North Shore, East Bersimis.

J. P. Pouliot, dist. supt.. Quarantine line, etc., to Grosse Isle.

A. Malouin, dist. supt. West Point, Anticosti Island.

A. Le Bourdais, Grindstone, dist. supt., Magdalen Islands.

J. Dumulon, Ville Marie, P.Q., local supt., Timiskaming District.

C. W. McKee, St. John, N.B., supt. of Maintenance and Operation, Cape Breton
system.

C. P. Livingstone, Glace Bay, C.B., N.S., supt. of Construction, Cape Breton

system.

J. B. Parker, GraniManan, N.B., dist. supt.. Bay of Fundy system.

J. McR. Selkirk, Leamington, Ont., dist. supt., Pelee Island system.

Eobt. C. Macdonald, Edmonton, Alta., dist. supt.. Alberta District.

Wm. Dee, Victoria, dist. supt., Vancouver Island lines.

W. H. Stevens, Kamloops, B.C., supt., Kamloops-Okanagan.
J. T. Phelan, Vancouver, B.C., supt., Yukon system.

G. S. Fleming, Whitehorse, Y.T., acting dist. supt., Atlin-Boundary.

. F. W. Dowling, Prince Rupert, B.C., dist supt., Atlin-Prince Rupert.

C. E. Gooding, Ashcroft, B.C., dist. supt., Asheroft-Hazleton.

J. D. Noel, Battleford, Sask., dist. supt., Saskatchewan District.

19—34 529
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GOVERNMENT TELEGEAPH SERVICE.

Location
of

Lines.

Newfoundland

.

Nova Scotia . .

.

Points connected. Year.

Port au Basque —Cape Ray 1S83

North Sydney—Meat Cove (with loops).. 1 1880-02

Across Bras d'Or Channel ' 1880

„ St. Anns Harbour (Englishtown).; 1887

M Ingoiiish Harbour 1887

M French River
Big Bras d'Or—Kempt Head
Meat Cove—St. Pauls Island
On St. Pauls Island

Bay St. Lawrence to Money Point .

.

Mabou— Meat Cove
Barrington—Cape Sable
Across Bear Point Channel

i. Lt. House Channel
Mabou— Port Hawkesbury
Port Hawkesbury—St. Peters

St. Peters— Main-a-Dieu
Main-a Dieu—Scatari

On Scatari I.sland

Gabarus—North Sydney
Little Bras d'Or— Ivempt Head
North Sy ney—Eskasoni
Eskasoni—(irand Narrows
Grand Narrows-.Shenacadie-Beaver Cove
Leitc-hes Creek—Steeles Crossing (loop).

Baddeck- Little Narrows
North Sydney—Little Bras d'Or (second

wire) ,

Grand River - Enon
Knon—Gabarus
Strathlcirne—Wycoconiagh
S. W. Margaree—Whycocoraagh—Ijittle

Narrows
Locli Ban—Scottsville

VVliycocomagh—Orangedale
North Sydney—Sydney Mines—Florence
Little Narrows—Washabuck
Loop, Eskasoni—McAdams Lake
Baddeck, Nyanza— Big Intervale

Brook Village—Glendale

Naw Brunswick

1904
1890
1890
1907

1887-00
1883
188o
1883
1908
1903
1904

1902-09
1904
1904
1905
1905
1908
1910
lido
1910

1906
1907
1909
1909

1912
1912
1912
1912
1912
1912
1913
1914

Length op Lines.

•o.S

Miles
Wire.

14
168j

Port Hood, Island Braneh :

(Length of construction in loop.

On mainland at Port Hood .

Port Hood—Smiths Island

On Smiths or Inner Isl.and . .
..-.

Smiths Island to Henry Lsland .

.

On Henry or Outer Island

Chatham—Escuminac —Point Sapin.

Carried forward

1907
1907
1907
1907
1907

1885

20

•
3
8

llfij

16

^

Kt's.

41!
32

&%
1

n
38i
3U
31"

22

15i
28
19J

6

29

3H

38i
7

8

7

12

5
39*
32"

4

"4

52i

997J

20

n

o

J3
s
s

14

1-170

I

J

20

}
23

8

116J

I
171

} 73S

3J

3U

133i

34i
31"

22

15J
28m
6

19J
29

334

38J
7

8

7
12
5

39i
32

25

3

1

4
12

Leas-
ed.

Message
Sent.

13J

52i

1,029J

19

158

1- 18,944

0,704

25,048
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GOVERNMENT TELEGRAPH SERVICE—Conhnwei.

Location
of

Lines.
roints connected. Year.

Brought forward

Bap of Fundv StjstcJii :

Quebec.

'J

^

New Brunswick. Eastpoi t—Camix)bello
On mainland Eastport. .

On CanipoVjeilo Island
Camijobello—Grand Manan .

.

On Grand Manan Islaud
Grand Harbour—Cheneys Island . .

On Cheneys Island
Cheneys Island—Whitehead Island.
Partridge Islaud—Fort Dufferin. . .

.

Campobello—Grand Manan

Gannet Ruck Branch :

Seal Cove— Big Wood Island
On Big Wood Island
Big Wood Island— Little Wood Island .

On Little Wood Island
Little Wood Island—Gannet Rock . .

.

Magdalen Island Sysicia :

Meat Cove, C.B.—Magdalen Islands
On Magdalen Island
Grosse Ish—Brion Island
On Brion Island to Dingwalls
On Brion, Dingwalls to Lt. House
House Harbour— I'ointe Basse (loop wire'
Pointe Basse—South Beach (loop wire).

.

(Grindstone— Bara'chois (loop wire)
Amherst Island—Entry Island

Anticosti Si/steiit

:

Gaspe—L'Anse h. Fougere
L'Anse i Fougere.— Anticosti.. .

.

On Anticosti Islanfl

Anticosti—Long Point Mingan.

1880
1880
1880
1880
1880
1890
18U0
1890
1900
1910
1916

1910
1910
1910
1910
1910

1880
1881-02

1902
1902
1909
1902
1905
1909
1910

1881
1881

1881-90

lt90

f^hicoutimi Dint.:

Bay St. Paul—Chicoutimi 1881-04
St. Alexis -St. Catherities Bay : 1904
Murray Bay—Bay St. Paul • 19(14

Bay St. Paul -Petite River 1904
Chicoutimi— St. Charles 190."?

St. Anne-Lac Claire
| 190.S

1903
1905
1904
1905

St. Anne—St. Fulgence
St. Fvdgence—Sacre-Cceur
Murray Bay—St. Catherines Bay (2 wire).
St. Alexis—Chicoutimi (2nd wire)

Catried forward

Length of Lines.

a.S

Q

Miles
Wire.

997?

4

^51

1
^i

it

28

'223i

98
78
37
13

314

7.34

53

14i

1,8134

Kt's.

3U

14

n

l,029i

1- 61S

1- llj

55 ^

4 I

11

63

1-1841

iii;}:44i;}^316J

21

i

O

98
78

I

37

')"
\ 46J

73i
53"

14i

203i 2,017

158

12

18

10

4

Sent.

25,648

1,46ft

3,018

2,336

228 32,468

• Included in Bay of Fundy System.

19—34J
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GOVERNilENT TELEGRAPH SEBXIGE—Continued.
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GOVERNMENT TELEGRAPH SEB.YICE—Continued.

Location
of

Lines.

Saskatchewan .

Alberta

.

British Columbia

Points connected.

Brought forward.

North urst Lines—

Qu'Appelle—Onion Lake
Mno!-'ejaw—Wood Mountain
Wood Mountain—Willow Bunch
Gravelbourg Loop .^

Leeville Loop
Sa&katoon Loop
Duck Lake—Batoche
Duck Lake—Indian Agency
Lloydrainster Loop
Li pton Loop
Fort tJu'Appelle—File Hills Agency
Kamsack—Indian Agency
Kamsack—Indian Agency—Pelly
Battleford—Isle-a-LaCrosse
Meota Loop
Sintaluta—Assinilx)ia Reserve
Onion Lake—Edmonton
St. Paul—Dnrlingville
Edmonton—Athabaska
Athabaska—Mirror Landing
Mirror Landing—Peace River
Peace River—Dunvegan
Dunvegan—Lake .Saskatoon
Grand Prairie City Loop
Lake Sa.skatoon—Fort St. John
Fort St. John—Hudson Hope
Peace River—Shaftsbury
Athabasca—Fort McMurray
Athabasca—Lac la Biche (Plamondon)
Plamondon—Roman CatholiclMission. .

.

Edmonton—Indian Agency—Stony Plain
Edmonton—St. Albert
St. Albert—Qui Barre—Alexandre
Andrew Loop
Lamoat Loop
Saddle Lake—Industrial School
Urouard- High Prairie
High Prairie—Prairie River

liritiah Columbia Lines—

Kamloops-Vernon via Nocole
Kamloop.s-Mount Olie
Kamloops—Savona
Karaloops— Barnhart Vale
Shushwap—Notch Hill—Revelstoke

,

Fairview—Midway
Whitemans Creek—Kelowna
Nelson—Trail
Proctor—Sirdar
Nakusp—Edgewood
Golden—Windermere

Carried forward 7, OOSJ

Year.

1883
1885
1904
1910
1912
1892

1902-10
1902

1904-09
1906
1907
1907
1910
1912
1912
1913
1883
1912
1904
1909
1910
1911
1912
1912

1914-16
1915
1911

1914-15
1914
1915
1904
1887
1902
1904
1910
1900
1912

1913-14

1899-11
1908-10

1913
1911

1914-15
1914
1914
1914
1914
1912
19C1

Length of Lines.

Miles
Wire.

3,308

402
107
39
38
28
28
9

58
2

28
fiim

275
20
8

205
48
98
70

199

74
76
16

145
62
15

245
58

12
32
9

25
10

6J
25"

12

512^
82
27
14

1924
.57

SO
61

58i
59
88

Kt's

247i

U

^

3,5,554

402
107
39
38
28
28
9

58
2

28

fii

17i
275'

20
,><

205
48
98
70
199
74
76
16

145
62
15

245
.58

12
32
9

25
10

7

6*
25'

12

514
82
27
14
194
.57

30
61
61
60
88

25.5i 7.2624

O

XI

B
s

381

63
16
6
5

26

7
8

11

10
14
16

Sent.

82,698

6, .522

6,479

50, 512

61.698

3,052

666 210,861
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GOVEEiSrilENT TELEGRAPH SEUYICE—Concluded.

Location
of

Lines.

Vancouver
Island .

.

Yukon..
/

Points connected.

. Brought forward

British Cotvmbia isne.?—Concl ided.

Victoria—Banfield . . .

.

Albemi—Banfield
Albemi—Clayoquot. .

.

Claycxjuot—Xootka .

Clayoquot Branch
Toquart—Sechart
Tohno— Mosquito Harbour, Bear River. \
Clayoquot Sound—Leonard Is. Light. . /

Nanaimo—Comox—Campbell River
Parksville—Alberni Branch
Couiox—Cape Lazo Brancli
Union Bay—Dennian & Hornby Inlands.
Nanaimo— Gabriola Island
Camplx-U River—Powell River
Powell River—Vancouver
Campbell River—Hardy Bay
Vancouver—Squamish
Salt Spring Island Line
Sidney—Ganges Line
Chemainus— Kui>er—Thetis Islands
Siianichtim.:—.James Island
Sydney and Sydney Island
Bamberton Works, Keatings Branch. . .

.

.\shcroft—Dawson and Boundary. .

Ashcroft — Quesnelle 'local wire)
Ashcroft—Lillooet Branch . . .

.

Lillooet —Pioneer Branch
Lillooet—Lytton Branch .>

.\shcroft—Savonas Branch
1.50 Mile House—Quesnelle b'orks

150 Mile House —Bella Coola Branch . .

.

Quesnelle— Barkerville Branch
Hazelton-Prince Rupert Branch. ...
Terrace— Stewart Bran- h. .

Queen Charlotte Island Line
Hootalinqua—Livingstone Creek, Y. T.
Branch

Total

.

Year.

1891
1899
1902
1913
1913
1907

1911-14

1893-08
1895
1910
1907
1909
1910
1913
1914
1914

1902-14
lOl*^

1912
1912
1910
1914

1899-12
1878-87

189(>

1912
1913
1914
1902
1912
1887

1901-07

1910-n
1913-14

1907

Lesgth of Lines.

DC
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' REPORT ON THE GOVERNMENT TELEGRAPH SERVICE, 1915-16.

EXPLANATORY NOTES.

The tabular statement prefacing this report shows the total mileage, etc., of the

telegraph lines operated by the Government. Lines that have been subsidized or con-

structed and transferred by the Government for operation by private companies are

not included in this list.

The matter in the following pages comprises a statement of specific actions taken

in the course of the year; and in pursuance of the plan followed last year the par-

ticulars are given in separate reports, hereto subjoined, from the district superin-

tendents, and will be found indicated under the several divisional headings. In any

case where no particular reference is made to a line found in the above-mentioned

list, the understanding intended to be conveyed is that the line has been satisfactorily

operated throughout the year, without any change of conditions since last made men-

tion of in the annual report.

NEWFOUNDLAND.

The line from Port au Basque to Cape Ray continued to be operated as heretofore

under an arrangement with the Anglo-American Telegraph Company.

MARITIME PROVINCES.

CAPE BRETON.

No lines were constructed during the year; general repairs under the supervision

of the regular line repairers were carried on and the various lines placed in a state of

efficiency.

Four new telegraph offices and five new telephone stations were opened.

ifr. D. C. Dawson, who for twenty-four years faithfully performed the duties of

superintendent, resigned the position and on August 1 was succeeded by Mr. C. W.
McKee, of St. John, N.B., whose report (No. 1) is hereto appended.

BAY OF FUXDY.

There were no serious interruptions on this system dui'ing the year. The Tyiian

laid new cables between Whitehead and Grand Harbour, and between Flagg's Cove and

Eastport, to parallel the existing cables.

A report (No. 2) from the district superintendent, Mr. J. R. Parker, is hereto

appended.
QUEBEC.

MAGDALEN ISLANDS.—CABLE REPAIRS.

On December 19, an attempt made by the Tyrian to repair the Meat Cove-Old

Harry cable was abandoned owing to continuous heavy gales, accompanied with snow.

This cable was subsequently repaired on the opening of navigation.

MAINTENANCE AND OPERATION. ^

A report (No. 3) from the district superintendent, Mr. A. Le Bourdais, is hereto

appended.

ANTICOSTI ISLAND. CABLE REPAIRS.

The Tyrian arrived at Long Point of Mingan on November 24, and commenced
work on the Long Point-Anticosti cable, broken since the previous year. Continuous

heavy gales and snow prevented the completion of the repairs which had to be aban-

doned on December 7.
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MAINTENANCE AND OPERATION.

A report (No. 4) from the district superintendent, Mr. A. Malouin, is hereto

appended.

NORTH SHORE OF THE ST. LAWRENCE, CHICOUTIMI AND QUEBEC COUNTY LINES.

Extensive repairs were carried on during the year under the foremanship of the

general repairers, and the lines placed in a state of eiBcieney.

Exports (No. 5) from Mr. E. Pope, superintendent at Quebec, and (No. 6) from

Mr, P. E. Vignault, district superintendent, at Seven Islands are hereto appended.

QUARANTINE TELEGRAPH ANT) ORLEANS ISLANDS TELEPHONE SYSTEM. CABLE REPAIRS.

The Crane island-Montmagny cable, of which two knots were carried away by ice

in November, 1914, was repaired in May, 1915.

The Grosse Isle-Crane island cable, broken by ice in November, 1914, was repaired

iu May, 1915.

One of the St. Francois-Ile aux Keairs cables, broken by ice in March, 1915, was

repaired on May 24, 150 feet of new cable being added.

The Orleans-Bellechasse cable was broken by ice in November, 1914, and repaired

iu April, 1915,, 600 feet of new cable being added.

General repairs on all the lines were performed under the supervision of Mr. J.

P. Pouliot, district superintendent, whose report (No. 7) is hereto appended.

ONTARIO.

PELEE ISLAND TELEPHONE SYSTEM.

The cable between Pelee island and the mainland broken on December 6, 1914,

was repaired in May, 1915. It again became inoperative in February, 1916, and will

be repaired when weather conditions are favourable.

Report (No. 8) from Mr. J. McR. Selkirk is hereto appended.

NORTH WEST.

The construction of the lines from Atliabaska to Lac La Biche and from Lake
Saskatoon to Hudsons Hope were completed in August.

Extensive repairs were carried on throughout the system.

Reports (No. 9) from the district superintendent, Mr. R. C. Macdonald, and

(No. 10) from general inspector, Mr. .T. S. Macdonald, are hereto appended.

SASKATCHEWAN.

Construction of the Battleford-Tsle-a-la-Crossc line was carried to a point 40

miles north of Green Lake, and will be completed next season.

Report (No. 11) from Mr. J. D. Noel, who was appointed district superintendent

of Saskatchewan lines on September 1, is hereto appended.

BRITISH COLUMBIA (MAINLAND).

CONSTRUCTION.

The line from Kamloops to Revelstoke, of which 24 miles remained unfinished,

was completed in January.

Extensive repairs and reconstruction was carried on throughout this system and

a satisfactory report of operations (No. 12) from the superintendent, Mr. W. H.
Stevens, is hereto appended.
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VANCOUVER ISLAND AND THE YUKON.

CONSTRUCTION.

With the exception of 4 miles, from San Josef Bay to Sea Otter Cove, no con-

struction was carried on during the year.

Extensive repairs were performed on all the lines as shown in the detailed report

of maintenance and operation (No. 13) from the superintendent, Mr. J. T. Phelan,

hereto appened.

TELEGEAPH SERVICE GENERALLY.

CABLE SHrP " TYRIAN ".

The Tyrian was docked in November, 1914, for extensive repairs and the installa-

tion of new boilers, and was not in commission until November, 1915. The following

cables were repaired: Big Bras d'Or channel, Main-a-Dieu, Scatarie, Seal Island,

Deer Island and Gannet Rock.

NEW CABLES LAID.

Lubec Channel 0-25 knots.

Whale Cove-Meadow Brook 9 TO knots.

A statement of the vessels operations during the year is given in the accompanying
report from Mr. A. B. McDonald, general inspector of the Maritime Provinces lines

and Electrician of the Tyrian.
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TELEGRAPH SYSTEMS OF THE DOillinON.

As a matter of general interest, pursuant to the statement submitted last yeao:,

the latest figures to hand showing the extent of telegraph lines in operation in the

Dominion are as given hereunder.

Canada.
Lent.th of Lines in Miles.

Aerial. ^"1"

1915-16.

Great North Western Tele-
grajih Co

Canadian Pacific Telegraph
Government Telegraph

service

Grand Trunk Pacific Tele-
graph

Snb-
groiind . mai ine.

10,064
14,(133

11,46U

5,190i

20
13
95

330i

1

Total.

Length of Conductors in Miles.

Aerial

.

10,084 31,357
14,748 106,660

Under-
ground, marine.

ll,T92i

5,192'

11,4614,,

19,797

192
592

25

Sub-

78
228

330i

Total.

No. of

Oflices

31,627
107,480 1,564

11,461J

19,823|

1,001

233
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KEVENUE AND EXPENDITURE.

The revenue and expenditure for each of the Government lines in the several

districts hereinbefore mentioned, are given in the following table :

—

1915-16.

Lower St. Lawrence and Maritime Provinces^
Auticosti lines

Bay of Fuady
Cape Breton

^ Cape Ray (subsidy)
Escuniinao
Father Point Agency
He aux Coudres (subsidy)

Maffdalen Islands
North Shore, east of Bersirais
North yhore, west of Bersimis
Orlean.s telephone
Quarantine system
Quebec County Lines
Prince Edward Island and Mainland

Cable ship Ttirinii—
Maintenance

Generally

—

Gulf and Maritime Provinces.
Timiskaming District

—

Telephiine line

Ontario—
Pelee Island telephone

North We.st Territories Lines
British Columbia

—

Golden—Windermere . .^

Vancouver Island
Nakusp —Edgewood ^
Kamloops—Okanagan
British Columbia generally

Yukon

—

\shcroft—Dawson .

.

Telegraphic service generally

Ex-
penditure.

Total

8,930
2,927

35,538
2.50

1,692
500
200

5,068
27,442
18,639
1,769

6,174

4,230

70.167 78

776 61

2,864 70

1,892
117,417

7,938
84,236
1,631

49,775
1,428

218,625
10,244

Revenue.

680,361 19

1,8.58 92
970 61

3,828 07

968 20

1,486 31
5,182 20
1,409 67
218 86
308 74
694 48

2.59 90

165 75
27,642 06

2,283 76
23,284 81

20,786 72

89,872 98

181,227 04
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DEPARTMENTAL TELEPHONE SERVICE.

Up to date of this report (April 1, 1916) the telephone connections with the

central office of the Bell Telephone Company at Ottawa, listed as chargeahle to the

special appropriation, numbered 988, the annual charge for which amounts to $40,488.80.

The connections are distributed amongst the several departments, as hereunder.

Department.



GOVERNMENT TELEGRAPH LINES 541

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

APPENDED TABLES.

The usual tabular statements of the lines and offices, staff, etc., of the telegraph

service, following hereupon, will be found to contain whatever additions or changes

have been made up to March 31, 1916.

D. H. KEELEY,

General Superintendent.

GOVEENMENT TELEGRAPH SERVICE.

NEWFOUNDLAND TELEGRAPH SERVICE.

No.
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GOVERNMENT TELEGRAPH
NORTH Sydney-

No,

18

19

20

21

22

23

Offices.

Meat Cove*.

Capsticks. .

.

To loop

Bay St. Lawrence (loopwire)

.

Aspy Bay

Cape North Island

.

To loop

Dingwell (loopwire)

To loop

Neils Harbour (loopwire)

Ingonish

South Ingonish

Ingonish Ferry (J mile cable in

eluded)

Wreck Cove .

.

French River.

Breton Cove

.

Indian Brook

.

To loop. .

Murray (on loop)

North River Bridge (on loop).

To main line

Englishtown (J mile cable in

eluded)

Eel Cove

South Gut (on loop)

Baddeck (on loop)

To Englishtown

Kellys Cove (New Canipbellton)

Big Bras d'Or (J mile cable in

eluded)

Little Bras d'Or (350 ft. cable

included)

^Tntbrmbdiate Distances.

Miles.

i

^
5

1

5i
10"

2J

9

lOJ

2

9

5

2

7
2

2
10

3.!

2

:?

1.3

IS

12

2

8

Embracing
Wire. Pole Line. Cables.

Miles.

6
1

10

9

IW

2

9

.5

2

10

3i

2

3

18

12

Miles.

Mrs. H. L. McEachern.

M. .J. Capsticks

J. R. McNeil.. ..

N. McDonald.
R. C. Zwicker

G. W. Macpherson

.

Agents and Operators.

N. A. McDonald.

Arch. McLean

J. E. McLeod

Mrs. M. C. Williams...

Mrs. W. A. McKinnon..

Miss Mary Morrison.. .

.

.John McDonald

D. B. McLeod

C. A. Mclunes

D. J. Morrisojj.

.

J. D. McAskill..

.

M. Smith

Rachel Morrison.

D. Dunlop

Miss A. Morrison.

D. Livingston

M. Richards

•Meat Cove station connects with the Magdalen Islands system by cable to Old Harry Head, 55 knots,
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SER VICE— Continued.

MEAT COVE SECTION.

Salaries per annum.

S cts.

50 00 or commission*.

50 00

720 00
420 00
50 00

50 00 or commission.

50 00

50 00
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DOMINION TELEGRAPH
NORTH SYDNEY—

No.

24
Meat Cove line— Con.
North Sydney

Instructor

General Inspector

District Stiperintendent for all

lines in Cape Breton

Offices.

Total.

Repairers' Sections.

General—
Meat Cove—Big Bras d'Or . .

.

Big Bras d'Or—North Sydney
Local

—

Me;\t Cove—Money Point and
Aspy Bay

Aspy Bay—Neils Harbour.

.

Neils Harbour — Ingonish
Ferry

Ingonish Ferry—EngUshtown.

Baddeck Loop Line

Murray Loop Line
Englishtown—Big Bras d'Or.

.

Big Bras d'Or—North Sydney

Money Point Branch.

Bay St. Lawrence

Bay St. Lawrence Beach . .

.

Cape North Light (Money
Point)

Cape North Fog Alarm (Money
Point)

Intebmedi.\te Dist.\nces.

Wire.
Embracing

Pole line. Cables.

Miles.

4i^

168J

1623
15

20
24

21|
29

30

20
14*
124

14

54

1

Miles.

4A

137J

1253
14A

19i
16'

2U
28|

18

10
14
124

St. Paul's Branch.

Bay St. Lawrence
St. Paul's Island (Inc. 20 Kts.

cable) 23

14

54

1

Miles.

li

20

Brought forward.

W. U. Tel. Co

Miss B. Bingham, English-
town

A. B. McDonald, North Syd-
ney .'

C. W. McKee, St. John, N.B.

Graham Dunlop, Baddeck.
Jos. Ix)gue, North Sydney.

Agents and Operators.

Pat. Capstick .

.

M. McCaskell

.

Rupert Curtis .

.

N. M. McLeod.

D. McAuley ...

N. McRitchie.

.

Norman McLeod

(Included in the mi

J. Campbell
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HERVICE—Continued.

MEAT COVE HECTlOi^-Continued.

Salaries per annum.

$ cts.

2,310 00

Commission only.

600 00

1,500 00

720 00

5,130 00

540 00 per annum

.

(See Eska.soni line, etc.).

80 00 per annum.
90 00

flO 00
100 00

100 00

(iO 00
no 00
(iO 00

1,180 00

Accommodation.

of the Meat Cove, North
Sydney section.

)

60.

Date of

appointment.

Nov. 1, 1902.

May 9, 1905.

Jan. 24, 1892.

Dec. 31, 1912.

Dec. 31, 1912.

Prior to June
1910.

Jan. 1, 1912

Prior to June
1910.

June 1, 1910.

Dec. 10, 1907

June 1, 1909.

Oct. 1, 1890.

Memo.

The commission is 50 p.c. on local business and 25 p.c, on
through messages ; and covers supervision of line and
office .accommodation at North .Sydney.

Salary increased to SfiOO, Aug. 1st., 1911.

Increase to SI, -500 from April 1st, 1909.

Allowance of .?300 per year in addition for office rent, etc.

Mr. McDonald accompanies the ss. Ti/rian as electrician

in connection with the cable-laying and repairing.

Latest adjustment of alhiwancc dates from July 1, 1907.

The C B. lines are operated in conjunction with the
Western Union Telegraph.

Increased from .$480, March 1st, 1911.

Horse hire allowed in addition since Dec. 1, 1909.

Note.— The rates of allowance are as adjusted in June, 1910.

In reckoning the repair sections, loops (2 wire lines) are

taken as equivalent to 50 p.c. additional pole line. Thus
the Murray loop, 20 miles of w'lre and 10 miles of ixjles,

is equivalent to 15 miles of pole lines.

This line was established and is being operated by tele-

phone in the interest of the Signal Service.

19—35J
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LOCAL TELEPHONE EXCHANGES.

Aslicroft, B.C 35 Subscribers.

HariJers Camp, B.C : 1 Subscriber.

Lillooet, B.C 7 Subscribers.

Lytton, B.C.. 6

Massett, B.e 5

150 Mile House, B.C 5

Soda Creek, B.C 3

Walhachin, B.C 2

64

YUKON TARIFFS.

The rates given for points north of Quesnel are one-third less than those

primarily adopted, which were calculated on the general basis of 50 cents for 100

miles and 25 cents for each additional 100 miles, counting the distance from Ashcroft.

Fvceptional Rates.—Hazeltou to Ashcroft 100 and 7, June 1, 1910; Prince

-Kiipert to Ashcroft, 100 and 7, Xovember 1, 1909.

The local rates between offices north of Quesnel are calculated on the basis of 50

cents for 100 miles and 25 cents for each additional 100 miles, and the local rates

between otKces north of Atlin are ii.xed at 50 cents for each 100 miles.

CaMe Messages.—On transatlantic business, the word rate is twice as much as

the additional word rate given in the list for all points north of Ashcroft-Barkerville,

:;lx2=(i, Uawbon 20s2=40c per word.

On transpacific business the word rate is the additional word rate plus 4c.; Bar-

kerville, 3+4=7c. ; Dawson," 20-i-4=24c. per word to or from Ashcroft.

Press Despatches.—For the Yukon line the rate is 1 cent per word, minimum
charge $1; this applies to the whole line. Exception, Barkerville-Ashcroft section

(local), minimum charge 50 cents.

Yukon system connects at boundary with U.S. Sig. Service Telegraph System.
" ' Ashcroft with Canadian Pacific Railway Telegraph.
" " Blackwater with Fort George and Alberta Telephone

Company.
•' '• Carcross with W. P. and Y. Ry. Telcgi'aph.

Quesnel Forks with Quesnel Hydraulic Co.'s line to

Hydraulic.

(iOVERX.MEXT TKLKCUJAPII T.TXRS: T.VRIFFS.

.Sl'KCl.M, TAltlKF.

Cal'le Messayes.—-Rates for cable messages passing over the Yukon lino will be

lound in connection with the Yukon tariff on this page.

Elsewhere, tlie rate for transatlantic messages passing over tlie Government lines

is the same as for ordinary througli messages, excepting where the ordinary tariff is

more than 25 cents: in such cases the Government line rate is 4 cents per word, witii

p minimum charge of 25 cents. For example:

—

For a message of six words or less, the charge is 25 cents for Government lines.

For a message of seven words the charge is (7 x 4) 28 cents for Government linos;

For a niessagi' nf twi'Ivc words t]\f i-bnrirc is (^^ \ 4') 4S cents for Guvcvuini'iit

lines.
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111 every case the counting of words includes the address and signature in the

same way as for transatlantic cable tolls.

Press Uespatckes.—The rate for press despatches on the Government lines

(excepting- the Yukon line), is 20 cents per 100 words; no single message less than
20 cents.

REGULAR TARIFF.

XOVA SCOTU.

Liix-es in Cape Breton.

Lccal rate between offices 25-1*

Through rate, on business exchanged with the G.N.W. Tel. Co. to and from
North Sydney transfer office 15-1

Night messages are. exchanged with the Western Union Telegraph Company for

pftices on these lines. Rate, 1 cent per word with minimum of 15 cents. The local

night rate is 1 cent per word with minimum of 25 cents.

Line from Barrington to Cape Sable—Local rate, 12-1.

Cape Sable Lighthouse Through rate 12-2 from Barrington. W.U. office.

Newellton " " "

This line is now operated by the local telephone company. Terms of lease

provide for former telegraph rate as above not being exceeded.

NEW BRUNSWICK.

Line from Chatham to Point Escuminac.

Local rate between offices 25-1

'I'hrougli rate, on business exchanged with the G.N.W. Tel. Co., to and from
Chathnm transfer office 15-1

Bay of Fundy.

Line from Eastporl, Me., to Campohello, Grand Manan, and Whitehead Islands:—

-

Local rates between offices on Grand Manan and Whitehead island, 15-1 ; Grand
Manan and CampobeUo island, 25-2; The Island and Eastport, Me., 25-2,

w.u.o.

Through rate same as local rate on business exchanged with W. U. Tel. at

Eastport 25-2

QUEBEC.

Anticosti Island.

i ocal rate between offices 25-1

Between offices on Anticosti island and Gaspe 50-2

Between offices on Anticosti island and Gaspe on the North Shore St.

Lawrence and Chicoutimi lines 50-2

Tlirough rate, same as local rate on business exchanged with G.N.W. Tel. at

Gaspe 50-2

• Where the tariff rate is entered as 25"1 or 25"2, etc., the meaning is that the rate is 25
cents for ten words and 1 cent or 2 cents for each additional word.
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Magdalen Islands.

Local rate between offices 25-1

Between offices on Magdalen islands and offices on Government lines on

Cape Breton 50-2

Through rate, on business exchanged with Western Union Tel. at North
Sydney same as local rate 50-2

Special winter rate for letters exchanged with mail at Bay St. Lawrence, J cent

per word. (See note in report 1906-7, p. 8.)

St. Pauls Island.

Between St. Pauls Island and offices on Government lines in Cape Breton . . 50-2

Through rate to and from North Sydney on business exchanged with the W.U.
Tel., same as local rate 50-2

North Shore St. Lawrence and C'Jiicoutimi.

Local rate between offices less than 100 miles apart 15-1

Between offices more than 100 miles apart 25-1

Between offices on these lines and Anticosti via Long Point 50-2

Conjoint rate between offices on Government lines west of Bersimis and offices

On the G.M.W. line as far as and including Quebec.

Etjually divided between Company and Government lines 25-2

Conjoint rate between offices on Government line east of and including Ber-

simis and G.JS'.W. to Quebec (Government line, 25-1; Company's line

15) ^ ,
40-2

Through rate for Government line offices west of Bersimis, to be added to

G.A'.VV. tolls from Quebec 15-1

Through rate for Government line offices east of and including Bersimis, to be

added to G.N.W. tolls from Quebec 25-1

NoTK.—The above lines connect with the G.X.W. Telegraph system at Chicoutimi

and at Bay St. Paul and Murray Bay, but the cheeking of all through business

exchanged with the company is done at Quebec.

Quarantine System.

Line from Quebec via Orleans Island and Ide au.r Uoanx.

Local rates between offices:

—

Quebec and Grosse Isle 25-1

Quebec and Orleans Island and Isle Keaux 15-1

Orleans Island and Grosse Isle 25-1

Isle Keaux and (irosse Isle 15-1

On Orleans Island 15-1

Through rate same as local business exchanged with G.N.AV. Tel. at Quebec.

Orleans I.'<lanJ Telephone Syslem.

Local rates between offices :

—

Conver- Mess,iEes.
Siitlona, 20 words

3 minutes, aiul 5 words.

St. Petronille and St. Fran(;ois and intermediate 5c. 5-2

Quebec exchange, St. Fran(,-ois and intermediate 15c. 15-5

Throug]i rate 5c. for Government line plus regular tolls of the Bell Telephone Co. lor

points beyond Quebec.
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Beauport-Laval Line (Telephone).

Local rate between offices :

—

Conver- Messages,
sations, 20 words

3 minutes, and 5 words.

Beauport and Laval and intermediate 10c. 10-3

Quebec exchange and Laval and intermediate 15c. 15-5

Throuyh rate to be added to the Bell Telephone Company's

rate beyond Quebec lOe. 10-5

NoTi:.—Of these, exchange and through rates, i goes to the company in each

instance.

The rate of charge for telephones, aside from the commiision offices, has been

lixed as hereunder.

l''or connection within J mile of regular station, $9 per annum.

l!'or each additional A mile of line, $4 per annum. The regular tolls being

cJiarged in addition on all main line connections.

(Jharleshourg and Martineau Mills.

Line con-nccts with Bell Telephone System at Charleshourg.

Conver- Messages,
sations, 20 words

3 minutes, and 5 words.

Local between points on the Government line 10c 10-3

Local between points on the (jovernnient line and the

(Juebec Exchange 20c. 20-5

(Of this 50 per cent belongs to the company.)

Tlirouyh between points on the Uovernment line and points

on the system of the Bell Telephone Company, to which

the Company's established rates from Quebec are to be

added 10c 10-3

Timi-'ikamiiit/ District (Telephone Line.)

Conver- Messages,
sations. 20 words

3 minutes, and 5 words.

Kippewa Dam—Xorth Timiskaming and intermediate. . 25-5 25-5

Same rate for both local and through business, that is business exchanged with

the connecting line at North Timiskaining.

OXT.'VIilO.

Felee Inland L,inc (Telephone).

L(.c(d rate between offices:

—

i)n the mainland Leamington-Point Pelee 15-1

On the island 15-1

On the island and Leamington 25-1

Through rate on business exchanged with the G.N.W. T(>1. at Leamington . . 15-1

This line is operated by telephone in conjunction with the Bell Telephone Co.

(-'harges for conversations being ba.5ed on local tolls plus the regular tolls of the com-
pany beyond Leamington. (Local rates. 15c. or 25c. for three minutes conversation
and proportionate charge for any period in pxeess of three minutes.)
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NORTHWEST TERRITORIES—SASKATCHEWAX AXD ALBEETA.

Qu'Appelle—Edmonion Line.

Local rates between offices less than 12 miles apart 15-1

Between otKces already reached by 'company's lines, excepting when the

company's rate is higher 25-2

Between otiices solely on Government line 35-2

Through rates, for business exchanged with the tonnecting companies, same as

the above local rates.

Edmonton-Athahaslca-Landing and Peace Eiver Line.

Local rates between oiEces 15-1 to 100-T

^Maximum charge between oflicea in the two divisions above and below

Edmonton 100-7

A tariS sheet was issued 1st February, 1013.

Moosejaw—Wood Mountain Line.

Local rate between offices 25-2

Tkrougli rate the same.

BRITISH COLIJIBIA.

Vancouver Island Lines.

Local rates between offices > 25-2

Conjoint rate between offices on Government lines and C. P. Tel. line on

Vancouver Island 25-2

Through rate, business exchanged with Can. Pae. Tel. at Xanaimo and Vic-

toria, same as local rate 25-2

Golden-Windermere Line (Telephone).
• Messages.

Local and through rate 25-2

Subscribers for telephones at $3G per year are exempt from above tolls for

messages.

Salt Spring Island, Pender Island, etc. (Telephone).

Local rate—Conversations, two minutes 25c.

Each additional minute 15c.

Through rate—The above line connects with the B. C. Telephone Co. at Duncan
Station. The company's tolls are added to the above rates on through

business.

Conjoint rate—Between offices on the above islands and offices on the C. P. line,

on Government line reached by the C. P. Tel. on Vancouver Island . . . . 25-2

Kamloops-Olcanagan Valley System (Telephone).

Local and through rates, 25c.~-to fiOc, according to distance between offices 100 miles

apart and over, in stretches of 50 miles:

—

Where message rate is 25c. for 10 word.s, 2c. for extra words; convers'n 10c. p. min.

35c.
"

3c.
•' "

15c. "

40c.
"

3c.
" "

20e. "

50c.
"

4c.
' "

25c. '•

60c.
"

4c.
" "

30c. "

Minimum cliarge for me.ssafres, 25c; for conversation, 15c.

(A tariff sheet was issued for circulation 1st January, 1912.)
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APPENDICES

GOVERNMENT TELEGRAPH SERVICES

ANNUAL EEPORT FOR 1915-16.

Soetional Reference (1) Cape Breton lines.

(2) Bay of Fundy lines.

(3) Magdalen Islands.

(4) Antifosti Island lines.

(j) North Shore St. Lawrence and Chicoutimi and Quebec
County lines.

(»i) North Shore East of Bersimis.

(7) Quarantine Telegraph system.

(8) Pelee Island system.

(9) Northwest—AlBerta District.

(10)
" (Inspector).

(11)
' Saskatchewan District.

(12) Kamloops-Okanagan-Kootenay Districts anl GolJen-

Windermere.

(13) British Columbia lines:

Vancouver Island.

Yukon system.

(14) Cable S,!iip Tyi'iun.
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REPORT No. 1.—CAPE BRETON.

St. John, N.B., August 15, 1916.

D. H. Keeley, Esq.,

General Superintendent,

Ottawa, Ont.

De.^r Sir,—I beg to submit herewith annual report covering operations, etc., of

the Cape Breton lines for the year ending March 31, 1916.

From April, 1915, to July 31, the care of the lines and offices were under Mr. D.

C. Dawson, who, for a period of twenty-four years, faithfully performed the duties of

superintendent, but, by a change in administration, whereby the physical part of

supervision was deemed advisable, Mr. Dawson retired from active service with the

department and, up to the close of the fiscal yfear, the duties coming under maintenance

riid operation were under the direct supervision of Mr. C. W. McKee, of St. John,

N.B., with title of " Acting Superintendent."

CONDITIONS GENERALLY.

The revenue for the year, due chiefly to conditions attributable to the war, fell

oS quite sharply during the first five months, this applying chiefly at offices along the

Bras d'Or lakes, where in past summers many tourists from points in Upper Canada
and the United States have invariably spent the summer months. Towards the fall

and up to the end of March, business was a little above the average, due principally

to a general revival of business and a more free exchange of commodities, particularly

ir the fish line, in which industry Cape Breton predominates.

The lines, for the most part, were singularly free from protracted interruption,

escaping sleet storms in November, December and February, which prostrated the

telegraph lines along the railway route between the Sydneys and the Straits of Canso.

During the year, the interior of the Government cable station at Bay St. Law-
lence was thoroughly renovated, in continuation of outside work and painting, which

obtained in 1914.

To bring the office at Inverness, which is located in the Dominion building,

more up to date, a new operating table and chairs were provided. At this point, two

students were also admitted, who will eventually qualify for service elsewhere.

NEW TELEGR.\PH OFFICES.

Big Glen, N.S.. on the Enon—Salmon River section, opened June 21, Mr. A. D.

McVicar, agent and operator; remuneration, 25 per cent of Government line tolls,

guaranteed $50 per annum.

Cleveland, N.S., on the Hawkesbury—St. Peter's section, opened November 17,

Mrs. W. E. Morrison, agent and operator; remuneration, 25 per cent of Government
line tolls, guaranteed $50 per annum.

Grand Anse, N.S., on the Hawkesbury—St. Peter'e section, opened August 23,

Miss Catherine McPherson. agent and operator ; remuneration, 25 per cent of Govern-
ment line tolls, guaranteed $50 per anniun.

Steel's Crossing, N.S., situated between Eskasoni and North Side, East Bay, was
opened July 24, Miss Katie Campbell, agent and operator; remuneration, 25 per cent

of Government line tolls, guaranteed $50 per annum.

621
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TELEGRAPH OFFICES RE-OPENED.

Grand Xarrows. X.S., from April 1, Mary L. MeXeil, agent and operator, vice

.Tolm C. McNeil resigned, January 31 ; no change in remuneration, which remains at

2^1 per cent of Government line tolls, guaranteed $50 per annimi.

NEW TELEPHONE ST.\TI0NS.

Ainslie Point, X.S.—Xorth lake, opened September 30. Xeil McDonald, agent

and operator.

Eastern Harhour. X.S.—Scattarie island, opened October 22, J. H. Xash, agent

and operator.

Frizzleton, X.S., on the Northeast Margaree.—Big Intervale line, opened October

10, Ralph ifcPherson, agent and operator.

Indian Beservation, Middle River, N.S.—Under supervision of J. E. Campbell,

Indian agent, opened January 5.

Washahiick, Government ivharf, X.S.—Opened June 24, John McNeil, agent and
operator.

BROOKS VILL.-^GE-—GLEND.^LE LINE.

January 4, Glendale, A. II. Boyd, agent and operator.

January 8, River Dennis, J. A. Cameron, agent and operator.

Januarv 10, Upper Glencoe, Hugh McEachern, agent and operator.

January 11. Glencoe Mills, Dan H. McDonald, agent and operator.

January 12. Brooks Village, Leo Jamieson, agent and operator.

January l.j. ifnll River, Dan. S. McDonald, agent and operator.

At all the above telephone stations, remuneration is at the rate of 2.5 per cent

of Government line tolls without guarantee.

CHANGE IN AGENTS.

Dingwall, X.S.—Joseph O'Brien, agent, superseded b,v David McDonald and

oiBco moved to new location on October 14. It transpired that Mr. McDonald did

not desire to retain the office and it was again moved on Januar.v 24 to the residence

of Gordon W. McPherson, who received the appointment as agent.

E.ska.soni, N.S.—Mrs. V. McMillan, agent, resigned Januar.y 31, office moved to

residence of John A. McAdam, on February 14, but in view of Miss Bingham, Govern-

ment instructor, being absent on leave, the office remained closed up to the end of

the fiscal year.

Fourchie, X.S.— In the latter part of March, Jliss Lena Mac Donald, agent, was

accidentally drowned while skating, and the office was temporarily closed until April

C, when Miss Mary MacDonald received the appointment.

Frenchvale, X.S.—John J. McLean, agent, superseded by David ^NfcKay. Office

moved to new location and reopened November 29.

L'Archeveque, X.S.—Miss Mary Kemp, agent, resigned September 28, and Mrs.

Wni. Kemp appointed. In this case it was not necessary to move the office. .

CHANCES IN REPAIRERS.

Bifi Bras D'Or, North Sydney section.—Mr. Duncan McRae superseded Septem-

ber fi. and Mr. I.. G, Patterson appointed. No change in salary, which remains at

.$fiO per annum.

'Big Bra.t D'Or. Gillis Lake Section.—Mr. Angus McLean superseded by Mr.

Angus A. Gillis, of Beechmont. No change in salary, which remains at IfiO per

annum.
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APPOIXTMENT OF REPAIRERS.

To cover satisfactorily the maintenance and repairs of the several telephone lines,

which are operated in conjunction with the telegraph lines, appointments for the

several sections were authorized, viz. :

—

Grand Narrows, Sehencadie Section.—Mr. A. D. H. McKinnoii, of Christmas

island, dating from June 1, at salary of $60 per annum.

Whycocomagh, Middle Kiver Bridge Section.—Mr. Daniel MacKay, of North

Side, Whycoeomagh, dating from January 1, at salary of $88 per annum.

Brool-s Village, Whycoeomagh section.—Mr. John A. P. McDonald, of Stewart-

dale, dating from March 16, at salary of $50 per annum.

INCREASES.

North J'Jast Margaree, N .S.—Mrs. D. J. Ross; agent and operator. Remuneration

increased from 25 per cent of Government line tolls, guaranteed %>() per annum, to a

straight salary of $100 per annum, dating from January 1, such increase being made
on account of additional duties in connection with operation of telephone line to Big

Intervale, Middle River and Baddeck.

Rockdale, N.S.—Mrs. J. D. Morrison. Salary increased from 2.5 per cent of

Government line tolls, without guarantee, to an amount of $50 per annum, dating

from September 1.

GENERAL REPAIRS.

Inverness—Meat Cove section. In charge of P. A. Doyle, general repairer, Inver-

ness. Starting on the 1st of June, the main line was carefully gone over, resetting,

straightening all poles thrown out by the frost, cutting bushes and replacing defective

insulation, after which the telephone lines on the section received similar attention.

Some one hundred and twenty-five new poles were set between Dunvegan and Inver-

ness, as well as rebuilding the section between Eastern Harbour and Cape Rouge,

distance nine miles.

The lino over the mountain between Pleasant Bay and Meat Cove was also

tlioroughly braced, this being a very exposed section and one where travelling facilities

are limited to a horse path. All work completed October 31, lines being in good shape

to withstand tlie winter's storms.

Big liras d'Ur—Meat Cove section. In charge of Graham Dunlop, general

lepairor, Baddeck, N.S. Outside of rebuilding line between Ingonish and Ingonish

Ferry, no special work outside of general patrol was done on this section ; this was
due to the fact that the line between Dingwall and Neils Harbour was rebuilt the

previous season, and all other sections being in first-class shape.

f^ydney—Louisbury and (rabarus section. In charge of D. S. Hooper, general

repairer, Louisburg, N.S. Tiiis section was gone over carefully, and in view of its

general condition, it was necessary to set some four hundred and seven new poles,

r(])lacing those that had become defective or unsatisfactory through age.

Considerable attention was given to bushing, resetting and banking the lines, as

well as cutting out slack wire and reiJacing broken insulators.

During the latter i)art of May. temporary repairs were made to the submarine
cable connecting the mainland with Scatterie island, damage being caused by drift

ice, permanent repairs afterwards being made by general inspector McDonald.

Very few interruptions are recorded on this section during the year.
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Boularderie and Hskasoni sections.—In charge of Joseph Logue, general repairer,

North Sydney. These sections, due to age, required a great deal of attention, some

one thousand one hundred and twenty-five poles being reset, and one thousand seven

hundred and forty straightened, as well as one hundred and twenty five anchors being

placed, and three hundred and sixty braces set and refitted.

Other general work such as bushing, insulating, etc., receiving the proper atten-

tion.

This section also takes in the loop to Steels Crossing as well as the telephone

line between Grand Xarrows and Shencadie, both of which were carefully repaired and

put in good shape.

llawheshury—Iisvemess section. In charge of J. F. Mcilillan, general repairer.

Port Hastings, N.S. No new pole-work was done on this section and, outside of re-

setting, straightening and banking the line, bracing and gviying where necessary,

there was nothing of special importance to note.

Port Hawkesbury—Gaharu-s section. In charge of Murdoch !McKae, general

repairer, St. Peters, N.S. The work on this section was done principally on the

southern end, between St. Peters and Cleveland, some four hundred and seventy new
poles being placed and very heavy bushing encountered. Resets, where necessai-y, along

the whole were made, and line securely guyed and braced.

The work was completed early in November, the line being in first-class siape.

I have the honour to be, sir.

Your obedient servant,

C. W. McKEE,
Superintendent.

REPORT No. 2.—BAY OF FUNDY.

Flaggs Cove. OiiANn Manax, N.B.. October 5, 1916.

D. H. Keelev, Esq.,

General Superintendent,

Government Telegraph Service,

Ottawa.

Dear Sir,—I beg to submit the following rcpnrt on the Bay of Fundy lines for
the year ending March 31, 1916.

The telegraph line from Flaggs Cove to Seal Cove has had no interruptions
during the year, but the line needed a general overhauling, and at tlic present writing
this work has been completed.

The White Head cable has been interrupted twice during the year. On November
16 a heavy gale washed the cable out at about, lialf tide on the White Head shore and
caused a bad leak. I repaired this and it worked good until a few days later when
we found another leak in it, at low water, on Cheneys island ; since then it has been
working well, both ends have been deeply trenched and it ought to stand for some
time.

The Seal Cove-Gannet Rock cable, with its branches to Three Islands, and the

land line to South Head have all been giving very good satisfaction; these lines have

had their share of the general repair work tliis summer, and are in good working

order.
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The Eastport-Flaggs Cove cable has given satisfaction throughout the year; one
cr two interruptions caused by woodchoppers felling trees at Campobello being the

extent of the trouble, but repairs were made quickly and no serious delay caused.

On March 30 and 31, the ss. Tyrian completed the new cable lines from White
Head to Grand Harbour, and Flaggs Cove to Eastport; and preparations were made
to commence the work of building the land lines to connect with these cables. All

lines are in working order to date.

I remain, sir.

Yours faithfully,

J. R. PARKER,
District Superintendent.

REPORT No. 3.—MAGDALEN ISLANDS.

Grindstone, Magdalen Island.s, Que., April 1, 1916.

D. H. KeeleYj Esq.,

General Superintendent,

Ottawa, Ont.

Dear Sir,—In continuance of my annual report, Inarch 31, 1915, to March 31,

1916, I beg to report as follows: During the summer, permission was granted Rev.
Is. Theriault, Dr. Gallant and Wm. Renaud, the lineman, to attach a line on ovur tele-

phone posts. All of these connections are on Amherst Island and do not interfere

with the service.

June 12, Brycn island cable was interrupted and remained so until October 18,

at which date Mr. Asade Arseneau, the new line repairer, while on a general visit on
the line section of our islands with Mr. J. J. LeBourdais, gave this matter his par-

ticular attention. He found some grounded connections and bad circuits and after

a general overhaul on these islands got Bryon island under communication. Again
since January 25, there is no communication with Bryon island. Mr. Arseneau has

visited the line to the cable hut at Grosse Isle and has ascertained that the trouble

is undoubtedly in the cable this time, in which case the Tyrian will be needed for this

job, which is not under our control.

While visiting, Mr. Arseneau i restored connection with Entry island September

21 ; this cable had been interrupted since September 16. Loose connections were

found at Amherst harbour office.

On December 18, Mr. Arseneau started building a line to join Wolfe island to

the rest of the line; he planted nineteen poles to reach the main line. The office was
under operation at Damase Herbert's December 28.

Meat Cove cable is interrupted since December 24, 1914, luckily enough we have

a Marconi station here which gives us communication with the mainland although

useless to say that a cable in a central position at a business quarter would be a greater

convenience. As the Meat Cove cable gives way quite often, it is evident a new cable

is required and a greater advantage would be given if laid on Prince Edward Island;

in the manner already advocated in last year's report. The new office operated at

Wolfe island is on commission only, as are also all the new offices opened since 1914.

The office at Grande Entry village has been closed since last fall on account of

Mrs. Aitkens, the operator, whose health is bad. She has been absent from the islands

19—40
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altogether these two last winters. This office does not do much traific, but Grand
Entry point, operated by Mr. Larade, handles a good deal of traffic as this place is

one of the best business quarters of the islands.

Between Grand Entry and Old Harry, distance about 7 or 8 miles, there is a
settlement and a church; the people of this section are anxious to get a telephone

connection. A telephone box would be the only expense incurred to give them com-
munication.

At Etang des Caps and Sur les Caps, a telephone connection has been proposed,

two telephone apparatus are required for this purjjose, ix)les can be furnished when
needed. With the addition of the above telephone boxes the islands could count a

pretty good equipment of local communications.

On July 1.3, Mr. John Binet died. Mr. Binet, who was employed since 1900, was
an esteemed member of the staff; he had been ill from the beginning of the year.

Mr. Azade Arseneau was appointed Mr. Binet's successor as general repairer of the

line September 1, and am glad to say Mr. Arseneau has performed his task very well

so far even showing capacities in circuit managements and general ability for this

position.

In order to keep the present state of things in operation, it has been necessary

to do some work in different localities where the line is gtting to be more and more

exposed, the sea ravaging the sand beaches on which the line passes. I have bought

some poles to replace the bad ones damaged and carried away by high tide. In some

places where the sea sprays over the line together with the sand, the line has been

found pretty rusty. We have replaced some of these bad pieces and the remainder will

be attended to during the summer or at the earliest possible date. On the north

beach where high tide most generally carries away a big piece of the line, a cable

should be laid to insure permanency.

As the present telephone circuit is becoming more crowded the need of a central

will become a necessity.

Yours faithfully,

A. LEBOUEDAIS,
District Superintendent.

KEPOET No. 4.—ANTICOSTI ISLAND.

West Pihxt. Anticosti, April 1, 1910.

D. IT. Keelev, Esq.,

General Superintendent Govt. Tel. Service,

Ottawa.

Deai! Sir,—I beg to submit my annual report for the year ending March ;51, 1916.

We have no additional mileage since my last report. Fox Bay station still closed

during winter months, but in connection by phono with Heath Point office during the

fishing season; from thence business transmitted on telegraph line.

Last spring, as agreed with your department our two general repairers were auth-
orized to engage the necessary men to go over the whole length of the line, to cliango
and place a great number of poles, and cut clean the bridle-path which was almost
impassable with the growth of shrubs and trees. They began tlieir work at the north
.shore cable's landing and proceeded around West Point and down towards South West
Point. The weather being very rainy and strong winds prevailing, the repairers con-
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sequently went on with tiieir work very slowly, however, they reached St. Mary's Cliff.

There being no amelioration in the weather I ordered them to proceed on with only

the absolutely necessary repairs for fjood working: of the line and leave the bridle-

path, etc., for the coming season, which they did. To make the line O.K. there will be

a good deal of work to do this season. Last November, during a heavy storm, the tide

came very high and played havoc again with our poles ; many were washed clean out

to sea and more fell on the beach. As before mentioned in many reports, the travelling

along the whole length of the line is extremely dangerous. Last year, the general

repairers and men had a narrow escape. Their boat was pooped, clothes, provisions,

tools, etc., were washed out and the boat damaged. I had to hire a motor-boat to send

to their relief as they were left completely helpless on the beach. Considering the

loss sustained by the repairers, I recommended in a letter dated November 10, 191.5,

that a sum of ninety dollars ($90) should bo granted and divided between them, viz.,

six in number. Therefore I hope your department will see fit to allow them the above
sum as a small compensation for their lo,gs.

I am pleased to say our land line has been in good working order the whole year
round, with the exception of few short interruptions at different times. I wish and
beg to call your attention re interruptions of line. We are not on the continent and
have no railway to carry our repairers, consequently when I say short interruptions it

means three, four or five days, just the time it takes for the repairer to walk the dis-

tance with provisions and tools on his back.

The number of telegraph stations is the same as reported in my last report, viz.,

eight in number, Fox Bay oiEce in comffnunication with Heath Point as above stated.

All the members of the staff and salaries are the same. The Gaspe South West Point
cable I am glad to say is w6rking very well, ever since repaired by the staff and cable

ship Tyrian in May, 1913. The north shore cable has been interrupted since November
17, 1914. The cable ship Tyrian was on the cable last fall, but, I think, coidd do noth-
ing owing to rough weather.

I regret to say that our revenues will be less this year, owing to the war. The
owner of the island, Mr. Menier, being of French nationality, has considered it advis-
able to carry on business only on a very small scale during the war, consequently the
business transmitted by our line is much less than it has been for several years past,

especially this winter.

The whole humbly submitted, I have the honour to be, sir,

Your obedient servant,

ALF. MALOriN.

EEPORT NO. 5.

Quebec, June 8, 1916.

D. TL Keeley, Esq.,

General Superintendent, Government Telegraph Service,

Ottawa.

Dear Sir,—I beg to submit my annual rejwrt for the year endixig March 31.

GENERAL CONDITIONS.

Owing to the decrease in shipping trade on the coast, due to war conditions, and

a reduction in tlie number of visiting sportsmen and tourists, the business of the whole

north shore system for the year was not quite equal to that of previous years.
' The lines worked regularly and continuously, the interruptions being few and of

local character.

19—40i
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CHANGES.

April—Chicoutimi, J. Dube, resigned.

May—St. Hilarien, Merede Coulombe replaced N. Coulombe.

October—Shipshaw Nord, Jos. Blackburn replaced Jos. Noel.

June—Cap a I'Aigle, Philip Ducbesnes, agent, re-opened June 25, 1915.

August—St. Henri Taillon, Marie Tjarouche replaced P. Boivin.

August—Guay St. Agnes, closed August 31, 1915.

September—St. Antoine, St. Agnes, Trefle Perron, agent, opened September 1,

1915.

November—St. Felix Otis, Jos. Gagnon replaced A. Goudreault.

November—Lac Charles, closed November 1, 1915.

QUEBEC COUNTY TELEPHONE.

The line between Beauport and Laval was re-poled with cedar in place of the

spruce poles, which had given out.

Four new subscribers' stations were opened:

—

Dr. J. Stevenson, Lake Beauport, June 9, 1915.

Alf. Dombrowski, Lake Beauport, June 26, 1915.

St. Vincent Club, Stoneham, August 19, 1915.

Rev. A. Labrecque, Stoneham, December 22, 1915.

ESCUMINAO TELEPHONE LINE.

This line, worked in connection with the New Brunswick Telephone Company,

has operated satisfactorily during the year.

Four new stations were opened:

—

Bay du Viu Wharf, B. Williston, agent, July, 1915.

Eel Eiver, H. Schofield, agent, July, 1915.

Eel Eiver Bridge, C. Asoyuf, agent, July, 1915.

Lower Escuminac, Louis Jimme, agent, July, 1915.

I remain your obedient servant,

EDWIN POPE,
Superintendent.

REPORT No. 6.—NORTH SHORE ST. LAWRENCE EAST OF BERSmiS.

NORTH SHORE TELEGRAPH (EAST BERSIMIS). -^

District Supt. Office, Seven Islands, March 31, 1916.

D. H. Keeley, Esq.,

General Superintendent,

Ottawa. Ont.

Dear Sir,—I beg to submit annual report on North Shore line (East Bersimis
district) from April, 1915, to the 31st of March, 1916.

(1) For the most part of the year, working condition on the line has been satis-

factory, only few minor interruptions have occurred, but of short duration, and
owing to prompt attention from the local repairers for each of their respective section,

no serious delay resulted.



apVERNMENT TELEGRAPH LINES 629

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

2. General repairs for maitdenance.—General repairs were numerously needed,

all through this district, on account of the frequent heavy storms and extraordinary

high tides that had occurred during October and November, in 1914, when the line

had occasionally been damaged by the sea washing off the sand banks from place to

jjlace along the coast, where a number of poles were thrown down and carried away
at various points; especially during the month of May, by melting snow, the operation

of the line was affected from the said damages, and all local line repairers were com-
pelled to display great activity to maintain their section of line in a constant working
condition, more particularly until the first part of June, when different general line-

men could start with general repairs for the season of 1915, and my report to you
dated last December 20. contains most complete details of the work performed by
each different general repairer during the last season.

3. New office and change.—Bradore Bay office, which was closed for several

previous years, was reopened on May 11, under the agency of Mr. Alphonse Blais.

An office was opened at Dock, six miles east of Thunder river, on May 15, Mrs. R.
Grenier, operator, commission 25 per cent.

An office was opened at lie Michon, three miles east of Aguanus river, on August
26, operator, Mrs. Henri Boudreault, commission 25 per cent.

An office wag, opened at Point Lebel, west side of Manicouagon river, November
17, operator being Mrs. Henri Granier, commission 25 per cent.

The total number of offices from Bersimis to Chateau Bay being brought up to

58, including office at Manitou Elver, 3 miles west of Eiviere aux Graines, as the
latter has been closed on August 28, only for a short undetermined period on account
of a suspension in the pulpwood operations there.

On the l7th of October, the agent at Whale Head office, Mr. Amedee Vignault,
died, and that office remained closed until both Mrs. Philias Blais had been appointed
agent and her husband as local repairer for the section attached to said office. The
new agent and repairer took charge on the 25th October, on same terms and salary

paid to late agent, Amedee Vignault. No other change of importance has occurred
in the course of the year.

4. Actual Condition of the Line.—Before closing, I might do well to note that

from last November to date, the wire remained in good working condition without
needing any repair. I consider that the good result is due to great attention taken
by most of the general repairers in making proper repairs.

I am much pleased to state that all employees in the district have shown them-
selves most devoted to duty during the year, and I am quite satisfied with them
regarding the service.

I have the honour to be, sir.

Your obedient servant,

P. E. VIGNAULT,
District Superintendent.

REPORT No. 7.—QUARANTINE STATION.

St. Jean, O.I., April 1, 1916.

D. H. Keeley, Esq.,

General Superintendent,

Ottawa.

Dear Sir,—I beg to submit herewith my annual report for year ending March 31,

1916.
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The Crane Island-Montmagny submarine cable, which we could not raise in

November, 1914, for reasons mentioned in my annual report dated April 1, 1916,

was broken by ice ou November 20, 1914, and two miles of it was carried away which

we were unable to recover.

In May, 1915, we repaired this cable with 2.50 knots received from Halifax.

The Grosse Isle-Crane Island cable was broken by ice on the 22nd November,

1914, and half a knot of it carried away, which was impossible to recover; we repaired

this break with half a knot of new cable in May, 1915.

One of the St. Fraucois-Ile aux Reaux cables was interrupted on March 20, 1915,

by the ice near Reaux island and was open in two places. It was repaired on May
24, about 150 feet of new cable being added, this cable having been forced from its

trench for its entire length on the beach, was replaced solidly on September 15, 1915.

The Orleans-Belleehasse cable being broken at each landing in November, 1914,

was repaired in April, 1915, 600 feet of new A-inch cable being added, which was

received from the Bell Telephone Company. This cable was again broken near Orleans

island on June 18, 1915, by the anchor of an unlvnown vessel and was repaired by

the Bell Telephone Company, at the request of the military authorities of Quebec.

This cable was raised with the Crane Island-Montmagn.y cable on November 19,

1915.

The three Ange Gardien-St. Pierre cables, the Reaux Islaud-Grosse Isle cable,

and the Grosse Isle-Crane Island cable were lifted by the ice the whole length of the

beaches during the winter of 1914-15. We trenched and cemented tticni ^lolidly in

September, 1915.

It is desirable that the Grosse Isle-Crane Island cable be laid in two sections;

from Grosse Isle to St. ilargarot island west, with a land line of IJ miles on the

latter island, thence a second stretch of cable to the west end of Crane island, both

sections of cable would be sheltered more from ice and strong currents than at present

and more accessible for repairs.

In June, 1915, I commenced the reconstruction of the line in the parish of St.

Pierre, with new cedar poles purchased the previous year. The work was performed

with all possible care, from tlie cable landing at St. Pierre to the parish of Ste, Pet-

ronille, about 8 miles.

In September, 1915, I proceeded with the reconstruction of the line on Grosse

isle, with about 50 new cedar poles which I had on hand at Ste. Petronille; -all the

telegraph and telephone wires on Grosse isle were placed on these poles, also the office

entrance wires.

On Feliruary 1, 1916, serious damage was caused to the telephone lines by a sleet

storm, especially to the St. Jcan-Ste. Famille copper line, which was broken in forty

places, the telegraph line was not damaged. Repairs were completed on February 7.

There have been no changes in organization during the year.

The large number of stations on Crane island and Goose i.sland (12 in all) makes

it necessary to have a central exchange at Mr. H. Lavoie's, who is the present agent,

to make it possible for him to control the business of the line and to have returns sent

him regularly each month with tolls collected.

I have the honour to bo,

Your obedient servant,

J. P. POITLIOT,

Disfrirf f^upcrinlendi'itf.
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REPORT No. 8—PELEE ISLAND SYSTE:Nr.

Leamington, Ont., April 7, 1916.

D. H. IvEELEV. Esq.,

General Superintendent,

Government Telegraph Service,

Ottawa, Dnt.

Dear Sir,—In the matter of the Pelee Island telephone system from March 31,

1915, to April 1, 1910, I beg to report as follows:

—

1. Regarding cable, in May, 191"), having previously received instructions from
the department we went out and repaired the cable, having found the damage about

ten or eleven miles south of the mainland, where a vessel anchor had strained it con-

siderably near some splices, but had not parted it. The gale had apparently been from
the northeast, as indicated by the position of the cable when we underrun it where

the damage was done. Since then, it worked all right until the early part of February,

1916, when it ceased after a heavy northwest and westerly wind which piled the ice in

packs and drove it down the lake. From tests made, by having instruments on the

cable terminals at both ends at the same time, we can ring through and hear each
other but cannot talk, showing that the cable is not completely parted but is badly in-

jured somewhere. Having already reported the matter to the Department, and having

received instructions therefrom to proceed with repairs as soon as practicable, I expect

to be able soon to report progress, having in the meantime acquainted Dr. Park with
the situation.

2. The land line to Point Pelee is in good condition with the exception of a few
ordinary repairs that are always necessary after the winter storms. During last sum-
mer, we had several heavy storms, especially one about the middle of July which did

considerable to the line, blowing down trees and breaking down wires and poles in

several places. In April last, we had to change our wires that crossed the W. E. & L.

S. R. Railway from overhead and passed them in an iron pipe under the track in con-

formity with the regulations in such matters.

I herewith submit a list of offices and operators or agents, with summary of mes-
sages, from March 31, 1915, to April 1, 1916.

Tours most respectfully.

JOHN McR. SELKIRK,
District Superintendent.

REPORT No. 9—NORTHWEST, ALBERTA DISTRICT.

Edmonton, Alberta, April 15, 1916.

D. H. Keeley, Esq.,

General Superintendent,

Ottawa.

Dear Sir,—I beg to submit herewith my annual report for the Northwest lines,

covering conditions, repairs, construction and changes in staff up to March .31, 1916.

CONDITIONS GENERALLY.

During the year severe storms, floods, prairie and bush fires did considerable

damage to our lines, but owing to the watchful care of circuit managers and linemen
the interruptions were of short duration and no serious delays to business occurred.
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Lesser Slave lake overflowed its banks, causing damage to our line, which cost $1,130.74

to repair. Bush fires between Athabaska and Mirror Landing necessitated the expendi-

ture of $505.48, and fires between Onion lake and Frog lake caused an expenditure of

$1,125.97, and at Mooswa $31.02 to repair. These amounts were all charged to main-
tenance.

During the year construction was continued on the Athabasca-Lac La Biche line.

Lake Saskatoon-Hudson Hope line, Athabasca-Fort McMurray line, Battleford-Isle La
Crosse line. Between Qu'Appelle and Edmonton some miles of line were changed
from fields to roadway. Some poles and material have been purchased and are now
on the ground for continuing this work. A further appropriation has been also asked

for to carry on this work, as there is considerable of our line still in the fields, which
impedes farm work. Details of work done follows:

—

A new building was erected at Lake Saskatoon; but owing to severe weather coming

on it was found impossible to complete the building within the fiscal year. A re-vote

of $400 has been asked for in order to finish it. Appropriations were made for build-

ings at-Dunvegan and Grande Prairie, but as sites have not been secured revotes of

the amounts have been asked for. -

Our Lake Saskatoon-Hudson Hope line and Athabasca-Fort McMurray lines run

largely through an unbroken and untravelled country, and it will be necessary to erect

some shelter huts for the linemen while making repairs. These huts can be erected

and supplied with small stoves for approximately one hundred dollars each. The

revenue for the past year was $23,896.12.

Beginning September 1, 1915, the northwest lines were di^^ided into two districts,

'Sir. J. D. Noel being appointed superintendent of the lines in the province of Sas-

katchewan; therefore, this report, in dealing with that district, covers only the expen-

ditures from April 1 to August 31, 1915.

CONSTRUCTION.

A thahasca-Fort McMurray line.—Last year's report showed this line extended to

Fort McMurray. Considerable of the line having been erected in the winter and

through a muskeg country, the poles could not be set tight. This required a small

gang of men going over that portion last summer to tamp and brace the poles, etc.

There was a re-vote of $15,000 made available for the completion of the line and the

erection of necessary office buildings between Athabasca and Fort McMurray. The

total expenditure from this appropriation was $5,080.08.

Athabasca-Lac La' Biche line.—An appropriation of $1,000 was made available

to complete this line. The distance (from Plamondon to E. C. Mission) being twelve

miles. Poles and material were placed on the ground the previous year, and the work

was carried on under foreman Cass. The line reached the E. C. Mission and office

opened on August 17. The total expenditure on this line was $994.98.

Lahe Saskatoon-Hudson Hope line.—An appropriation of $12,000 was made
available for the completion of this line. Last year's report shows this line completed

1o Fort St. John. Work on construction was resumed from Fort St. John as soon as

the frost permitted. May 31 last, this was continued without interruption until

Hudson Hope was reached and an office installed at that point on August 4, 1915. In

January, 191C, an office was installed at Halfway Eiver between Hudson's Hope and

Fort St. John, chiefly for line repairing purposes. The distance from Fort St. John

to Halfway Eiver is 32 miles, from Halfway Eiver to Hudson's Hope is 30 miles. The

expenditure was $10,670.73.

Battleford-Isle La Crosse line.—An appropriation of $7,000 was made available

for the completion of this line. The approximate distance to be constructed, to reach

Tele La Crosse, was 70 miles. Work was resumed in July, 1915, under foreman Parry,



GOVERNMENT TELEGRAPH LINES 633

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

wlio constructed 37 miles up to the 31st August, at an expenditure of $4,660.06. On
September 1, the district was divided and this work was carried on under the super-

vision of district superintendent J. D. Noel, of Battleford.

Shifting lines generally.—An appropriation of $5,000 was made available for this

work. Fifty poles were purchased at Saddle Lake, 38.5 were purchased and distri-

buted near Mooswa for cha,nffe of line, which will be made as soon as mtoney is avail-

uble; eight miles of line were shifted from fields to roadway east of Battleford; the

total expenditure made by this office, from this appropriation, was $1,688.72.

BUILDINGS.

Lake Saskatoon.—An office-dwelling and stable were erected, but owing to severe

weather the building could not be completed during the fiscal year. The appropria-

tion for this building was $3,500. The contract price was $2,250, and the amount
advanced to the contractor was $1,850. A re-vote of $400 has been asked for to com-

plete the building.

An office-dwelling and stable were erected at Fort McMurray at a cost of $2,080.

An office-dwelling purchased and stable built at Calling Eiver, at a cost of $1,100; an
office-dwelling at House River, costing $500. These expenditures were taken from an
appropriation of $15,000, made available for the completion of the Athabasca-Fort
McMurray line and the erection of necessary buildings -on that line.

I have the honour to be, sir, \

Your obedient servant,

E. C. MACDONALD,
Superintendent.

NEW OFFICES.

Hudson Hope, B.C.—R. M. Osborne, agent-operator, on Lake Saskatoon-Hudson
Hope line. J. D. Cadenhead, lineman.

Lac La Biche, Roman Catholic Mission.—Father Le Goff, agent, on Athabasca-
Lac La Biche line.

Beaver Lodge.—S. L. Burnett, agent, on Lake Saskatoon-Hudson Hope line.

CHANGES AND ADDITIONS IN STAFF.

Edmonton.—E. J. Kane, clerk, resigned. H. Packebusch, messenger, new
appointment. A. H. Slight, assistant, transferred to Athabasca as agent. P. F.

CannifF, assistant, replacing A. H. Slight. C. P. Samwell, assistant, transferred

from Athabasca. G. Wilder, relieving agent, retired from service.

Athalasca.—S. Grube, messenger, replacing E. Swanson, resigned.

Mirror Landing.—A. Parry, lineman, replacing S. Green.

Grouard.—-C. A. Burpee, agent, vice J. A. Powers, resigned. J. A. Bell, chief

lineman, retired from service. M. L. Burpee, messenger, vice H. Knibbs, resigned.

Peace River.—A. F. Todd, agent, vice E. W. Arnold, resigned. M. L. Burnett,

assistant, vice A. F. Todd, appointed agent. T. Aaron, messenger, vice J. A. Con-
nery, resigned.

Grand-Prairie.—H. Henderson, messenger, new appointment.

Fort McMurray.—R. McRae, lineman, new appointment.

House River.—F. Taylor, lineman, new appointment.
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SnilMAKT OF EXPENDITURE.

Pay-lists $54,666 IS

Postage 212 SS

Travelling expenses 1.391 79

Sundries • 5,934 05

Horse feed 4.276 31

Light 217 43

Fuel 1,34S 59

Smithing 417 40

Rents 4,072 13

Repairing line 1S5 62

Horse hire 191 25

Total $72,913 63

EEPORT Xo. 10—XOKTHWEST U^ES.— (Inspector.)

Office of the General Inspector.

Edmonton, Alberta, April 25, 1916.

D. H. Keelet, Esq.,

General Superintendent,

Ottawa, Out.

Dear Sir,—I beg to submit herewith a report covering the conditions of the lines

in my inspectorate for the fiscal year ending ifarcli 31, 191G.

qu'appelle-edmontox section.

Except for some trouble on the Saskatoon loop, due to carelessness of telephone

line builders following the same route, there have been practically no interruptions on

this section during the year. Prairie fires occurred between South Humboldt and

Kutawa, and some poles were burned, but owing to the vigilance of the linemen at

these points no delays occurred to the service. The policy of removing the lines from

farms to the highways was continued, and will be necessary until the line is on the

roadway throughout its entire length. The iron poles erected between Pitt and

Battleford, approximately 100 miles, are still in use, and although lower than the

standard pole, promise- to be of service for years to come.

In the month of April last the Bresaylor ofiice was removed from its original

location to the village of Bresaylor, on the railway line, a distance of three miles. In

February an ofiice was opened at Delmas, 13 miles west of Battleford. Agents have

forwarded monthly reports promptly, and the conduct of employees generally has

been all that could be desired.

On .September 1 a new superintendency was created for the province of Saskat-

chewan, Mr. J. D. Noel, for many years agent at Battleford, being appointed superin-

tendent of the new division, Superintendent R. C. Macdouald retaining Alberta and

that portion of northern British Columbia connecting with northwest lines.

MOOSE JAW-WOOD MOUNTAIN LINES.

As noted in my report of last year, the first 12 miles of this line, immediately

south of Moosejaw, should be rebuilt this season, as also that portion of the line

between Wood mountain and Willow Bunch. The poles on these sections are old,

and, having already been reset a couple of times, cannot again be utilized in this way.

I found the balance of the line in excellent condition. Business was going ahead in a

satisfactory manner, and I found no friction anywhere.
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DUCK LAKE-BATOCHE LINE.

There is little business done on this line, which is 7 miles long, but it is of value

to the people of Batoehe, especially at certain seasons, when the South Saskatchewan
rivef cannot be crossed.

edmonton-hudson's hope line.

The extension of tliis line from Lake Saskatoon reached Fort St. John at the end
of the last fiscal year. Work was resumed in May, and the line completed to Hudson's
Hope, B.C., on August 4, 1915. Hudson's Hope is at the head of navigation, on the

Peace river, and the establishing of telegraphic facilities will assist greatly in the

work of settling up the country. A number of rivers and streams are crossed iu the

vieinit.y of Fort St. John, and as no bridges have yet been constructed, the problem of

maintaining the wire in good "condition is greater than elsewhere; for this reason I

would recommend that a lineman be appointed, to be stationed at Fort St. John; it

would also be advisable to construct three shelter huts at points between Hudson's
Hope and Pouee Coupe; these could be built for approximately $100 each.

The original portion of the line between Edmonton and Athabasca Landing is

now in bad condition and should be rebuilt this season. ' Settlers are pouring into the

i.orth country, and the indications are that this condition will prevail for years to

come, as there is practically an unlimited area to be filled uj). An extension of our

lines from Peace River crossing to Vermilion, some 2.5U miles down the Peace river,

would be of great value as settlement is moving in that direction. Despite adverse

conditions created by the war, the volume of business promises to be greater this year

than at any time in the past. During the year, an office has been opened at Beaver
Lodge, and also at Halfway I^iver, between Hudson's Hope and Fort St. Jolm, the

latter chiefly for repairing purposes. An office-dwelling was erected at Lake Saskatoon.

ATHABASCA FORT MCMURRAY LINE.

A large and increasing business is done by Fort McMurray. Settlement being

sparse as yet at intervening points, the other offices do little business and are useful

chiefl,y as repairing stations.

During the year, an office-dwelling and stablei was erected at Fort McMurray,
and similar buildings purchased at Calling Eiver. Despite the rugged nature of the

country and the consequent difficulties in travelling the line has been well maintained.

BATTLEFORD—ISLE LA CROShE LINE.

This line was built as far as Green lake in 1913. Construction from Green lake

was resumed during the year, and the line eomijleted to Isle La Crosse in October

last. There is comparatively little business done on this line, but it is invaluable to

the settlers, it being for some months of each year the only connection with the outside

world. An office has been established at Cochin between Meota and Cilaslyn.

VANCOUVER ISLAND LINES.

On my trip of inspection of Southern British Columbia lines last September, I

iound all lines under the jurisdiction of Superintendent Phelan in excellent working

order, both on Vancouver island and in the islands of the gulf. There was at the

time no demand for new extensions.

KAMLOOP.S OKANAGAN LINES.

At the time of my visit, thei-e was much construction work going on, with

requests for extensions and new lines from many quarters. In company with Super-

intendent Stevens I visited some of the construction camps in the vicinity of Kam-
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loops, and investigated closely tlie requests for new lines to be built during the present

year. Tbe lines recommended in my letter of December 16, 1915, were Enderby to

Vernon, 26 miles, Edgewood to Shuswap falls, 53 miles, Hoifley creek to Louis
creek, 68 miles, and rural service south of Kamloops. Many others were asked for,

but to me the above appeared to be the most important.

In the Okanagan valley, I found that business had fallen off considerably, due in

part to the extension of the Canadian Pacific Railway telegraphs to Kelowna from the

north, and to Penticton from the east, and in part to the conditions created by the war.

Some portions of the older lines will have to be renewed at an early date, the

present poles having been reset until too low to be used again, but in general the

pole line was in excellent condition.

I have the honour to be, sir.

Your obedient servant,

J. S. MACDONALD,
General Inspector.

REPOET No. 11—NORTHWEST SASKATCHEWAN DISTRICT.

Battleford, Sask., April 7, 1916.

D. H. Keelev, Esq.,

General Superintendent,

Government Telegraph Service,

Ottawa, Canada.

Dear Sir,—I beg to submit my annual report of the Saskatchewan Northwest

Telegraph lines, covering conditions and changes in the stafi from September 1, 1915,

to March U, 1916.

CONDITIONS GENERALLY.

The line was kept in fairly good working order, except on the Saskatoon loop,

where a few interruptions were experienced, owing to the fact that our wires are strung

on the Government telephone poles and there is not sufficient space for these numerous

wires to give satisfactory service, whenever there is a storm. There have also been

several minor interruptions at various points which occurred, practically all, wherever

the line runs through fields, where the i>oles are much lower than the standard ones (on

account of being reset a couple of times), thus interfering with the traffic.

Immediately after the war broke out, a decrease in business was very noticeable,

during the month of March business has increased some, and a steady gain from now

on is expected.

CONSTRUCTION BATTLEFORD-ISLE-A-LA-OROSSE.

This line was built to Green lake during the year 1913-14. Construction was car-

ried on for a further distance of 40 miles during 1915 This year the work proceeded,

under foreman Parry, to within 3 miles from the village of Isle-a-la-Crosse, a distance

The total expenditure for this year was $2,233.95.

The approximate amount to complete the work to Isle-a-la-Crosse is $1,200,

although there are only 3 miles more to construct, this amount is amply required, on

account of a large river to cross, which will necessitate several high masts, etc.

A loop will also be constructed into Lac-la-Plongc, 7 or 8 miles from the main

line, and 35 miles this side of Isle-a-la-Crosse.
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Both Isle-a-la-Crosse and Lac-la-Ploiige are important centres, fur trade is being
carried on to a great extent when business is normal. There is also a large saw-mill
and electric plant at Lac-la-Plonge, and farming land very good and being cultivated

by a large number of settlers. Both Isle-a-la-Crosse and Lac-la-Plonge have large
Roman Catholic Missions, with each a large boarding school, etc. A telegraph line to
these points will prove of great importance to the settlers as well as to the officers of
the law, etc.

New offices established, Battleford-Isle-a-la-Crosse line: Isle-a-la-Crosse, 298
miles from Battleford. Cochin, 24 miles from Battleford. Wood Mountain 'line:
Twelve Mile lake, 15 miles south of Limerick. On commission. Qu'Appelle-Edmonton
line: Dehnas, 22 miles west of Battleford. Shifting lines generally: Several miles
of line shifting was done, to the amount of $1,02.3.71. There is still a large amount
of this_work to be done whenever the required money is available.

I have the honour to be, sir.

Tour obedient servant,

J. D. NOEL,
District Superintendent.

SASKATCHEWAN NORTHWEST LINES.

CHANGES AND ADDITIONS IN THE STAFF.

Assiniboia.—Miss M. Crosson, agent, replacing R. Hodgson, while on military
leave.

Battleford.—J. D. Noel, chief operator, made district superintendent; new
appointment.

Battleford.—T. F. Finnegan, clerk Superintendent's Office; new appointment.
Battleford.—J. T. Callahan, assistant agent, replacing J. D. Noel, promoted to

district superintendent.

Battleford.—E. W. West, messenger, replacing E. Taylor, while acting relieving
agent.

Battleford.—T. West, messenger, replacing E. West, promoted to agent at Lloyd-
minster.

Battleford.—J. Redington, messenger, replacing P. West, resigned.
Cochin.—D. Colmer, agent, new office.

Delmas.—D. E. Buck, agent, new appointment.
Greeti Lake.—J. D. Davidson, agent, replacing R. P. White, transferred to Isle-

a-la-Crosse.

Duch Lake.—J R. Bryce, agent, replacing C. A. Backer, resigned.
Isle-d-la-Orosse.—R. P. White, agent, replacing V. Gauthier, resigned.
Lloydminster.—E. W. West, agent, replacing H. A. Elliott, resigned. —
Limerick.—E. Taylor, agent, replacing Miss M. Crosson, transferred to Assiniboia.

EXPENDITURES FROM SEPTEMBER 1, 1915, TO MARCH 31, 1916.

Pay-list $17,173 45
Work on line 449 59
Horse hire 92 75
Smithing 79 05
Postage .- '. ;; 85 50
Oil and electric light I59 23
Rents 1.208 00
Fuel 2.116 60
Horse teed

, 943 27
Sundries 1,458 s8

Total $23,764 23
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SOUTHERN BRITISH COLUMBIA.

REPORT Xo. 12—KAMLOOPS, OKAXAGAN, KOOTENAT DISTRICT, AXD
GOLDEN-WINDERMERE.

KAMLOOPS, OKAXACAX AXD KOOTENAY DISTRICTS. •-

Kamloops, B.C., April 2<3, 1916.

D. H. Keeley, Esq.,

General Superintendent,

Government Telegraphs,

Ottawa, Ontario.

Dear Sir,—I herewith beg to submit the annual report of the following districts,

under my supervision, Kamloops-Okanagan and the Kootenay districts for the year
ending March 31, 1916. Since my last report, considerable improvements have been
made throughout the system, particulars of which will be given in the following

reports on the several sections referred to : $15,000 has been spent in improvements
and general repairs. The lines are now all in good shape, and general satisfaction

has been expressed, from time to time, on the efficiency of the system and the services

rendered by the employees at the various points on the lines. The public have approved

of the continuous service on the main lines, throughout the Kamloops-Okanagan
districts. The issuing of a daily war bulletin, which is sent out every evening, except

Sundays, from Kamloops to outlying points on the lines", has been greatly appreciated

by the people, especially as there have been so many men enlisted from this district,

their friends and relatives are glad to get the daily war news, otherwise they would
not get it but once a week, and there are sections which do not get mail but every

two weeks. In the Golden-Windcrmere section, the daily service was extended from
10 hours to 15 hours a day, which is a great advantage to the public.

These improvements in the service have been carried out at a very small increase

in maintenance account and have more than paid for the outlay. At Kamloops, a

warehouse and workshop have been established under the charge of line-foreman A.

J. Woodburn, where a full supply of repairs are kept ; many sets that previously were

discarded are now repaired and put in shape again to be used. Thus a big saving is

effected. All the outfit of tools and equipment used on the construction and repair

gangs are sent in to Kamloops, and if at all worth while the.v arc iiut in good shape

again and made ready to use another year.

KAMLOOPS-VERNOX SECTION (514 JIILES).

During the year, many improvements and repairs have been carried (/ut on this

line, under the supervision of line-foreman A. J. Woodburu. All the old instruments

have been replaced, with 2,500 Ohm sets and condensers cut in, which has greatly

improved the transmission. At Nicola, the local exchange was overhauled and the

switchboard and all instruments put in first-class shaix>. At ^lerritt. many needed

improvements were carried out, new cable boxes ]iut in and rewired, the aerial leads,

for one block leading to the office, were taken down and replaced with 50 pair cable;

the lines all over town pulled up, corners guyed and every instrument on the exchange

in.spected, and put in good order. We have 81 local subscribers on the Jlerritt

exchange.

At Princeton, a new Northern Electric switchboard was installed to look after

the increasing number of subscribers on the local exchange, and two miles of new

pole line built in the town. The old switchr)oard which was taken out at Princeton
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was re-installed at Keremeos, where a new exchange was opened. The lines all over

the exchange were pulled up and put in shape, and all instruments inspected and put in

order where required. We have 48 local subscribers at this point.

At Hedley, wliere we have a small local exchange of 1-1 subscribers, the exchange

was also overhauled and necessary imisrovements miade. At Keremeos, the next place

on the line, 2.5 miles from Hedley, we installed a local exchange of 15 subscribers to

start with, but this coming summer will see at least 12 more subscribers installed, as

soon as three miles more of pole line is built.

The line was reconstructed between Fairview and Penticton, a distance of 28J

miles. New cedar poles, 30 feet long 7 inches top, were set, and the old single wire

transferred and made metallic at a total cost of $5,122. The extra wire was strung

to make it possible to equip a composite system for both telephone and telegraph. The
telegraph at present terminates at Penticton, but next month will be carried right

through to the boundary line.

From Penticton to Vernon, the pole line was overhauled a distance of 90 miles.

?00 poles were re-set and 540 guy wires placed on corners and where needed. This

bPction will stand up now for two years yet, when it will have to be all rebuilt.

Work is to be commenced at once stringing the extra wire between Vernon and
TTolmwood, 51 miles, which will complete our telegi-aph service, as well as our tele-

phone, right through from Ashcroft (terminal of the Yukon telegraph line), via

Kamloops-Okanagan district, to Oroville on the boundary line. My detailed report

to the general superintendent on December 18, 1915, covers all i>articulars of the above

f mentioned repairs and improvements.

XORTII THOMPSON SECTION (82 MILES).

Repairs and extensions were carried out on this line to the extent of $4,500. The
line from the Barriere to Chu Chua, 12 miles, was overhauled, 3 miles of new pole lead

put in around the Barriere, to look after local business, and 11 miles of new pole line

built on the west side of the Thompson river, from the Barriere Centre. Four new
offices were opened and the Barriere office made the central switching office for the three
branch lines above that ijoint.

KAMLOOPS TO SAVOXAS SECTIO.V (27 MlLES).

This line was overhauled during the year and an extra wire strung between Kam-
loops and Savonas to metallic the line, so as to overcome the heavy induction of the
])ower line which parallels it for a considerable distance up to the mines; it will also

be used as a composite system for the telegraph and telephone.

KAMLOOPS-ROSE HILL SECTION (14 MILEs)

Very satisfactory business was secured from this section during the year, one
new office being opened. Very little trouble was experienced on the line last year,

but it will have to be reset not later than next year, as some of the poles are rotting off.

KAMLOOPS TO REVELSTONE LINE, VIA NOTCH HILL AND SICAMOUS SECTION (194 MILES).

One hundred and seventy miles of this line was built a year ago as far east as Taft,

B.C., as shown by my last year's reiwrt ; since then, the line was completed to Revel-

stoke, 24 miles, and through service inaugurated last January. The section between
Taft and Revelstoke was a very heavy piece of work; there was no road or trail and
the line had to be built just outside the Canadian Pacific Railway right of way,

through the mountain passes. One single No. 6 iron wire was strung, but to get good
service it must bo made metallic, to overcome the induction of the Canadian Pacific

itailway telegrajih wires, as we had to parallel their wires for 16 miles. This will

have immediate attention and the line will then be in splendid working condition.
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For 10 miles along ilira lake, we experienced another heavy job; there is no road
and the line follows the rocky lake shore, but as soon as a road is built over this

section the line wijl have to be rebuilt to follow the road.

\'i;rnon'-lumbt section (26 miles).

The Lumby line runs out east of Vernon. Ten miles of it was constructed in

1914, therefore that part is in good shape. The section between Vernon and Lumby
will be overhauled this coining spring and necessary repairs made. Last year a new
right of way was secured for the Lumby line into Vernon and our pole line built to

the office; previous to that it came in on private companies poles.

- KELOWNA TO WHITEMASS CREEK SECTION (30 MILES).

As this section was only built in 1914, very little trouble was experienced last

year on the working of the line. A very satisfactory business was secured from the

many shipping points on the west side of Okanagan lake, which this line serves.

FAIRVIEW TO MIDWAY SECTION (57 MILES).

During the past year a section (7j miles) of this line, in and around Rock creek,

was leased to the British Columbia Telephone Company, who have put in a local and
rural service in that section. The Government retain the top cross-arm on the poles

for their own service. Considerable trouble was experienced last year by the very

heavy storms and severe lightning throughout this section, especially over the moun-
tain near Bridesville, but in spite of the difficulty to get over this section very few

interruptions were experienced and those only of a short duration.

PRINCETON TO COPPER MOUNTAIN SECTION (14 illLES.).

This-line was built out from Princeton last year and has proved one of the best

revenue producers we have. The revival in the copper industry has opened up con-

siderable work in the mines in that district. On account of the British Columbia
Copper Company building a power line up to the mines it will necessitate us metal-

lieing our telephone line to overcome the induction we will get but as the distance is

short the expense will not be very heavy.

NELSON TO TRAIL SECTION (61 MILES).

This line is in the Kootenay District. It runs south from Nelson as far as the

boundary line. As it was only built last year very little trouble was experienced, most
of the interruptions being caused by wind falls; it runs most of the way through a

timbered country. Very satisfactory business was revived during the year and the

service greatly appreciated by the public.

PROCTOR TO CKESTON SECTION (61 MILES).

A year ago this line was opened as far as Sidar, at the east end of Kootenay lake.

During the year, it was extended 13 miles farther to Creston, B.C. As there was only
a small appropriation available, it was built for seven miles on trees, but the pole line

will be completed this summer. By building this extension it brought the several ship-

ping points on Kootenay lake in touch with Creston, which is the shipping centre for
that district.

NAKUSP-EDGEWOOD SECTION (60 MiLES).

Several improvements were made last year in the service on this section. At
Edgewood, the line was extended 10 miles to the internment camp, which was located
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there.' New oflSces were opened at Searwood, Riverdale, Internment camp, Army Ser-

vice camp and Provincial Road Superintendent's office.

The line was overhauled during the year and has been kept running with but very

few interruptions. The telephone was greatly appreciated in this section tliis past

winter, as the Arrow lakes were frozen up two months and for several weeks at a time

they had not even mail service. The business last year exceeded any previous year.

GOLDEN-WINDERMEEE SECTION (88 MlLES).

The service on the Golden-Windermere line has been very satisfactory during the

past year. As the line was rebuilt only a year ago it is in firs't-class shape and the

maintenance has been, light. Several additional phones have been installed on the

Athalmer and Golden Exchanges; an improved 15 hours service inaugurated last April,

with the additional help of one operator each at Athalmer and Golden exchanges.

All crossings of our telephone lines over the railway tracks have been standardized

throughout the districts and made to conform with the rules of the Railway Board

Commissioners.

Advice of any changes in th« staff and the subscribers on the local exchanges

have been sent in each month during the year on the monthly service sheet.

Linemen's weekly reports are regularly received at this office and filed, also a

monthly material report received.

Although there has been very^ unsettled conditions, brought about by the war and

a financial depression throughout this part of the coimtry during the past year, I am
glad to report an excess in business and a fair increase in revenue, and the number of

messages handled this past year over the previous year, as shown by the comparative

statement attached.

All of which I have the hono^ir to submit. '

Tours faithfully,

W. H. STEVENS,
Superintendent.

REPORT No. 13—VANCOUVER ISLAND AND YUKON LINES.

Vancouver, B.C., June 1, 1916.

D. H. Keeley, Esq.,

General Superintendent, Government Telegraph Service,

Ottawa, Ont.

Dear Sir,—I beg to submit herewith my annual report, covering the operation of

Yukon telegraph system, and the Vancouver island lines for the fiscal year 1915-16.

YUKON telegraphs.—JIAIN LINE, ASIICROFT TO INTERNATIONAL BOUNDARY BELOW DAWSON.

Working conditions on the main line, dui'ing the past year, have been excellent,

few interruptions occurring, and these were of such short duration that no delay of

any consequence was caused to the traffic. The interruptions mentioned were in most
instances caused by bush fires, during the early summer months, in the districts

between Qucsnel and Hazelton and along the Yulcon river.

There has been a continued diminution in business, owing to war conditions and
local readjustments at new centres after the discontinuance of railway construction,

but indications point to a revival in the near future, and a steadier growth.

General repair gangs were employed on the various sections of the main line

between Hazelton and Dawson. The repair gang working out of Hazelton recon-

19—41
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structed and repoled ninety miles of line. This gang also erected new refuge cabins

at the following points: New home cabin at First Cabin; half-way between First and
Second Cabins; quarter-way north of Second Cabin; quarter-way south of Second
Cabin; quarter-way south of Third Cabin; quarter-way north of Third Cabin; half-way

between Third and Fourth Cabin.

The line was also moved from the old trail to the new Government highway,
between Kispios and First Cabin.

The new work is of first-class construction, twenty-one hundred and thirty-one

(2,131) cedar poles of standard measurement being put in the line.

A further improvement in the line, in the neighbourhood of Hazelton, was made
by the repoling of the line from Hazelton to Two Mile, and the loop between Two
Mile and Xew Hazelton. One hundred and forty-eight (148) new cedar poles were
used in this' work.

North and south of Telegraph Creek, three men were employed in assisting the
regular linemen resetting poles and brushing out right of way, as well as making
repairs to the pack trail. Next season it will be necessary to repole the line between
Telegraph Creek and Nahlin, and as far south from Atlin as the appropriation and
the season will permit. Between Atlin and boundary two gangs were emi)loyed and
the repairs made during the season consisted of the following work:

—

New poles put in, 1,133; old poles reset, 491.

The cutting of such timber as endangered the ,work of the line, repairing such

wire suspension bridges as were in bad order, and relocating the line in a number
of places, where landslides and forest fires made it necessary for future safety.

The past season was the dryest in the southern part of the Tukon territory, and
the northern part of British Columbia in many years, and as a consequence the cost

of repairing damage caused by fires was $1,528.85.

HAZELTON-PRINCE RUPERT-STEWART.

This line has worked very satisfactorily during the past year, and a through

circuit between Vancouver and Prince Eupert has been maintained, giving excellent

service to our customers. Considerable local work was done on the various sections

by the resident linemen, with the assistance of an extra man for a few weeks during

the months of July and August. One hundred and eleven (111) new cedar poles

were put in on the Cannery section, between Prince Eupert and Haysport, and sixty-

seven (67) between Telegrapli Creek and Hole-in-the-Wall. On the Holc-in-the-Wall

section twenty-four (24) new poles were placed and fifteen miles of line undcrbrushed,

the latter is very heavy along the Skeena river and grows rapidly, requiring con-

stant work to keep it down.

Substantial and necessaiy repairs were carried out on the Kitwangar-Hazelton

section. Six and one-half (Gi) miles of new line was built, four hundred and thirty-

five (435) new poles were used, and the line placed along the new highway. A new

refuge cabin was built on the old site, at the big cut off, near Andimaul. On the

branch from Terrace to Stewart, repairs were made by the local linemen and opera-

tors. On the Aiyansh section, eighty-six (86) new poles were used, and the line

moved from the bluffs on Lava lake to a safer and more accessible location, for a

distance of two miles.

ASIICKOFT-LILLOOET BR^VNCII.

Some repoling and resetting of poles was ^done in the past season by a small

crew, which sufficed to keep the line in working order, and next season a thorough

overhauling will be undertaken, as an appropriation for that purpose has been

obtained. Business has been fair and the resumption of railway construction should

increase the volume of business at points along the line.
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150 JIILE HOUSE BELLA COOLA.

Tlie usual general summer clean up and repairs, by the local linemen, was all

that was necessary to keep this line in good working order. Some trouble was

experienced during the summer months, between Canoe Crossing and Hagensburg,

by road gangs constructing the new highway. Our line in this section will require

to be moved to the highway next summerj and an appropriation for this purpose is

being asked for.

HORSE FLY BRANCH.

General repairs of a temporary nature were made to this line by a small gang
from Quesnel Forks and 150 Mile House, respectively, and next season it is intended

to repole the greater portion of the line, as the present poles are beyond resetting.

BARKERVILLE BRANCH.

During the past year, the poles along this line between Cottonwood and Barker-

ville have shown signs of rapid decay and resetting and partial repoling will be

required next season.

QUEEN CHARLOTTE ISLANDS.

Tlie lines on the islands have worked very satisfactorily, during the past season,

and. are in good condition. Business is normal, and an improvement is anticipated

with the opening of the canning season, as several new canneries are expected to

commence operations. Mining, which at one time was expected to be the main indus-

try, has not been very active of late, but with the present high price of minerals, a

new impetus is being given, and the resumption of development work is beginning.

LILLOOET—LVTTON LINE.

This line has been maintained in good working order with very little expense.

Several new telephone offices have been opened, and a small local exchange, of seven

subscribers each, has been installed at Lytton and Lillooet at the standard monthly

rental.

LILLOOET—PIONEER MINES.

Several new ofBces were opened on this line during the past year and the line was
operated very satisfactorily to all concerned. It is intended next season to metallic

the section between Lillooet and Mission mountain (12 miles), as the induction from
the P. G. & E. wires causes interference. Some repairs to the section between ilission

and Pioneer Mines will also be necessary as the heavy sleet and wind storms, which
prevail during the winter months in tliat high altitude, have seriously damaged the

line in a great many places.

VANCOUVER ISLAND LINES.

The operation of these lines, during the past season, was very satisfactory, and
t.n increase in business was experienced at a great many points. Interruptions were

infrequent, and of short duration, with the exception of a period of several days in

February, when, owing to the unprecedented heavy snowfall, considerable damage was
done to the line at various points, and for the first time since these lines have been in

liperation it was found necessary to supply the lineman with snowshoes, as the high-

ways were so blocked with snow that horses could not be used.

Apart from the usual annual overhauling on each section, that portion of the

line between Gibsons Landing and Seehclt, a distance of 14 miles, was entirely repoled,

19—41i
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and the line placed along the main road, resulting in improved operation and an
entire absence of interruptions since the work was completed, where formerly they

were of frequent occurrence, owing to the location of the line through heavy timber.

A short piece of line, four (4) miles in length, was constructed from San Josef

Bay to Sea Otter Cove, giving connection to the latter place, which is an important

harbour on the west coast.

Considerable trouble was experienced with our cable between Quathiaski Cove

and Campbell River, owing to the rocky formation and the strong tides that surge

through Seymour narrows at this jsoint ; the shield wires and core were found to be

worn through. The services of the Pacific Coast Cable Company's repair outfit was

necessary to make repairs, and in relaying, another landing was selected to endeavour

to avoid the reefs upon which it formerly rested.

The line between Campbell River and Cape Scott suffered severely during the

fall months from the gales, that are of such frequent occurrence along the Johnston

straits, but the men at Rock Bay and Beaver Cove did such good service in making

repairs that very little delay was occasioned to trafiic.

The automatic repeaters installed at Campbell River last year were removed to

Powell River, and another set installed at ParksviUe as well. This has further

improved the telegraph circuit between Vancouver and Victoria.

Several recommendations for new extensions have been made, and if appropria-

tions are secured next season, a cable connection wiU be made with Sointula on Mal-

colm island, where there is a large colony of Finlanders; also telephone connection

between Fishermen's Cove and Shushartie Bay, a distance of twenty-five (25) miles,

will be constructed.

' CLAYOQUOT BUILDING.

A new building, similar to the one erected at Tofiuo last year, was constructed

«t this point during the summer, at a cost of twenty-four hundred and fifty-five

dollars ($2,455), giving accommodation to the telegraphs and post office, as well as

living quarters for the operator and his family.

Yours truly,

J. T. PHELAN,
Superintenden t.
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REPORT NO. 14—C.G.S. TYRIAN.

Grand Manan, March 31, 1916.

D. H. Keeley, Esq.,

General Superintendent Government Telegraphs,

Ottawa, Ont.

Dear Sir,—Herewith please find summary of the work done, and lengths of cable

handled by the ss. Tyrian during the past year.

I have the honour to be, sir,

Yours faithfully,

A. B. MoDONALD,
Electrician, ss. Tyrian.

-(Undergoing repairs). Shipped cable to St. John, N.B.
" " Wireless telegraph installed.

-Trial trip in Bedford Basin.

1915.
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REPORT OF THE COLLECTOR OF REVENUE.

Ottawa, August 16, 1916.

The Secretary,

Department of Public Works,
Ottawa.

Sir,—I have the honour of submitting my report for the twelve months ended
March 31, 1916.

During the year just closed the revenue accrued from public works shows an
increase of $24,222.37, being $272,863.68, while in the preceding year it was $248,641.31.

The collections also show an increase of $32,641.92, being $262,573.04, while in 1914-15

they amounted to $229,931.12.

The revenue accrued from slides and booms was $108,227.41, or $27,618.12 more
than for the year ending March 31, 1915. The collections were $108,227.41, or

$27,629.29 more than for the previous year. The outstanding uncollected revenue from
glides and booms remains at the same figure as in 1914-15.

The graving docks yielded $64,216.24, or $18,911.68 more than in 1914-15.

Sales and rents collected amounted to $90,129.39, being $23,899.05 less than the
preceding year.

Having dealt with the revenue in a general way, I now submit the particulars in

detail, relative to the several services under their respective heads.

SLIDES AND BOOMS.

OTTAWA DISTRICT.

The tolls charged up amounted to $31,267.61, or $4,077.20 less than in 1914-15. The
number of saw logs that passed through the works was 3,911,904, or 242,951 pieces less

than the previous year. Of square timber there was none.

All the revenue accrued during the year was collected. Of the dues accrued since

July 1, 1889, when this department took over the collection, there remains uncollected

$9,161.61, full particulars of which will be found in statement No. 2 herewith. Of the

dues accrued before July 1, 1889, there still remains $56,805.65, all of which should be

written off. (See statements Nos. 1 and 3 for particulars.)

The accounts for the Ottawa District stand thus :

—

Dues accrued during the year to March 31. 1916 ?31,267 61
Outstanding, March 31, 1916 9,161 61

$40,429 22
Collected 31,267 61

Balance outstanding March 31, 1916 $9,161 61

649
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Being composed of:

—

Dues of 1SS9-90 $6,903 05
1S90-91 2S 42
1892-93 379 80
1S96-97 196 71
1903-04 637 37
1911-12 723 63
1912-13 251 15
1913-14 25 31
1914-15 16 17

$9,161 61

Balance of dues outstanding prior to July 1, 1889, when this

department took over the collection $56,805 65

Herewith are statements in detail.

'No. 1.—Statement of amounts outstanding prior to July 1, 1SS9, uncollected

March 31, 1916.

No. 2.—Statement of dues accrued at Ottawa since July 1, 1889, uncollected

March 31, 1916.

Xo. 3.—Statement of dues accrued at Quebec prior to July 1, 1889, uncollected

March 31, 1916.

No. 4.—Statement of the number of pieces of square timber, sawlogs, etc., which

passed through the Ottawa works during the year ended March 31, 1916.

Xo. 5.—Statement of dues accrued from each of the slides and works of the Ottawa
district during the year ended March 31, 1916.

Apart from two accounts amounting to $1,044.68, all the revenue from the

Ottawa slides and booms, since I took charge in 1889, has been collected, excepting

such as should have been written off long ago, or a few items in dispute which 1

expect will have to be forgiven.

The number of sawlogs which passed through the works during the past year was
£'42,951 less than during the previous season, and there were 20,904 cords of pulp-

wood less than in 1914-15.

The works wherefrom. the revenue was less than in 1914-15 were:

—

Cheneaux boom $ 99560
Petewawa 1,245 93

Dumoine 138 13

Black river 4,358 66

$6,738 32

Those from which a greater revenue was derived were :

—

Main Ottawa $ 602 11

Madawaska 645 85

Coulonge 750 37

Gatineau 662 79

$2,661 12

Deducting this amount leaves a total decrease as above stated,. $4,077.20.

I expected a considerably greater revenue than wo bad in 1914-15, but the absence

of rains during the driving period so seriously affected the supply of water in the

smaller streams that, in some of them, large quantities of logs were held up for want

of water. In fact, the dues on timber so held up belonging to one concern alone would

amount to more than the whole shortage of last season.

So far this year, there has been a great supply of water, too much in fact in some

places at the beginning of the season.
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Just above Ottawa, the hiffh water and the river beins: at full flood, a boom
above the Chaudiere falls broke, and some 150,000 logs passed through the falls. There
would be somewhat of a loss to the owners, but they were recovered and sawed at

some of the mills below Ottawa.

The cut during the past winter was probably below the average, due partly to

scarcity of labour, but principally to lack of transportation for the manufactured

lumber, which conditions are not likely to be changed for the better as long as the

war lasts.

ST. MAURICE DISTRICT.

The revenue accrued from this district was $74,723.35, being $31,439.57 more
than in 1914-15. The collections amounted to $74,723.35, or $.31,434.57 more than

in 1914-15. \\ ith the exception of an item of $3,709.62 dues of 1909-10, disputed, all

the dues accrued in this district since I took it in 1892 have been collected.

The amount outstanding prior to July 1, 1892, remains unchanged, viz., $14,481.49,

and should be written oif for reasons assigned in statement No. 6 herewith.

The number of pieces of all kinds of timber that passed through the works was
equivalent to 9,506,300 pulp and sawlogs, or 3,761,009 pieces more than the previous

year.

Remarks.—During the winter of 1914-15 while, on the whole, the snowfall was
considerable at times, it was barely sufficient for hauling logs, especially in the rougher

sections, but this proved a blessing in disguise, because the scarcity of snow was due

to rains and thaws following the snowfalls, and the resultant almost immediately

became ice, so that there were in some parts large areas covered with ice to a depth of

from 15 to 18 inches. The gradual melting of this ice in the spring of 1915 produced

a supply of water in the lakes and reservoirs, which, notwithstanding the absence of

rain to any extent, kept the main river at a good driving pitch for the whole season.

Nevertheless, fearing shortage of water, there was great anxiety lest the unusually

large nvunber of logs to be handled at La Tuque, Grand'Mere, Shawenigan Falls and
Three Rivers should fail to reach the latter before the close of the sawing season.

Hence, there were numerous complaints to the department that the firms at the three

first named points were not sorting the daily quantities required in order to pass the

logs in the proper time. Consequently, the district engineer was busily occupied in

the endeavour to keep the concerns complained of up to the mark. However, when the

season closed, all the logs which had been driven from La Tuque down reached their

destination in good time to be cut up.

The following table shows the number of logs handled at the different points

during the summer of 1915. These figures are the result of an average, not continuous

counting at any of the points. Hence, the total does not agree with the actual register

of logs cut up at the different mills.

Logs sorted on the river St. Maurice, season 1915 and 1914.

^ 1915. 1914.

La Tuque 10,307,122 4,911,139
Grand'MSre 10,314.226 5.890,390
Shawenigan Falls 6,406,823 2,901,248
Three Rivers 3,441,864 1,667,940

As the figures for Grand'Mere were only daily averages, a close scrutiny of the

returns from the mills showed that the quantity was excessive, for instead of 10,314,226

in 1915, the actual sorting was 8,567,528 pieces, making a total received at the mills at

Grand'Mere, Shawenigan Falls and Three Rivers, 9,457,528, but the number actually

paid for was 9,506,300. The difference, 48,772, being logs which escaped under the

sorting booms at Three Rivers, and consequently were not included in the number
counted out.

This year, the river was unusually high, but owing to a change in handling the
logs, no delay was attributable to the sorting. Hitherto, it has been the practice to
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hold all the upper St. Maurice logs at La Tuque, where those of the Brown Corpora-

tion, about two million pieces, were separated from those intended for Grand'Mere

and points below. This year, however, the Brown Corporation held back their logs,

and allowed the down-river timber to pass down. At Grandes Piles and Little Piles,

the river was so changed by the water backed up by the new dam at Grand-Mere, the

current carried the bulk of the logs outside the boom set as usual instead of inside.

Consequently, over four millions pieces passed down to the booms at Shawenigan Falls

and the islands above, of which about two millions were held at the Pointe a Bernard

boom, wliich was strained almost to the breaking point, and serious disaster was only

averted by reinforcing the boom with wire cables secured to anchorage on the shore.

On the 4th May, the pressure became so great, the Brown Corporation were asked

to close their boom and hold back the logs from above La Tuque, and but for their

complying with this request, it was difficult to conjecture just what might have

occurred.

It would seem, however, that notwithstanding the time gained by the policy at

La Tuque, the passage of the logs at Grand'Mere would be much delayed in consequence

of the current being so weakened by the back water from the dam now nearing comple-

tion, which is being built by the Laurentide Co. • With a slight headwind, the logs are

almost motionless after leaving the sorting gap. The only remedy, to my mind, is to

tow the logs to the dam with tugs, of which there are two available.

In consequence of the building of this dam, a change will have to be made in the

holding booms at Grandes Piles, involving the construction of two or three piers and

considerable boom. In order to meet the ever increasing business on the St. Maurice,

this work should be constructed during the coming winter. I might say here that as we
•had a surplus of $20,000 on the business of lOli-lo, and I anticipate a similar profit of

from $5,000 to $10,000 this year the cost of constructing such new works as are absolu-

tely required would not be a drain upon any other government fund.

As so many logs passed La Tuque and Grand'Mere without being sorted it is very

difficult to estimate, with any accuracy, the actual quantity in the river at this date, but

it is certain that unless open weather prevails until late in the year, a considerable

number of logs will winter in the river, for only a few days ago all the booms from

Grandes Piles to Shawenigan Falls were filled almost to capacity, and considering the

unfavourabble conditions created by the dams at Grand'Mere and Shawenigan Falls, the

scarcity of labour, and other factors, it will require a tremendous effort to get all the

logs intended for Three Rivers to their destination in time. There is every probability

that in the near future the methods of handling the logs on the St. Maurice will have

to be completely changed. The difficulties met with this year will be increased by the

development of power at the Gres falls and the Forges rapids, both of which are below

Shawenigan Falls and above Three Rivers. That at the Forges is intended to supply

power for a large pulp and paper plant which is to be constructed at Three Rivers or

some near-by locality, but the raw material, namely pulpwood, is to be prepared at

Three Rivers. The new conditions are giving those concerns considerable anxiety, and
the solution of the problem will not be easily arrived at, if present ideas prevail, namely,

that exchange of logs between the up-river firms and those of Three Rivers would not be

satisfactory, although the great bulk of the logs made to-day by nearly all the firms is

gotten out for making pulp and paper.

NEWCASTLE DISTRICT.

The dues accrued from this district amounted to $034.54, being $211,94 less than

the previous year, all of which has been collected at this date.

The totals outstanding on March 31, 1910, amounting to $3,550.89, of which
$3,521.19 should be written off in accordance with a judgment in the Exchequer Court.

$35.70 will also have to be forgiven the debtor being hopelessly insolvent at the time of

his decease. Full particulars of the amount outstanding will be found in statement
No. 7 herewith.
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SACUENAY DISTHICT.

The dues accrued during tlie year ended March 31, last, amounted to $1,601.91, all

paid, being $467.69 more than in 1914-15. That the dues this year were greater than
last was because Messrs. Tremblay and Gagnon took out and sold to the Chicoutimi
Pulp Company, a considerable quantity of logs which were delivered to that company
below the government boom. During the current year, there were no logs for the Pulp
Company, hence, I do not expect that the revenue will be more than $1,000.

GEAVING DOCKS.

LEVIS GRA^TNO DOCK.

The revenue from this service was $22,264.08, being $8,268.18 more than the pre-

vious year (see statement No. 8). Of the 215 days the dock was occupied during the
year, it was used for 157 days by H. M. and C. G. vessels.

The total number of vessels docked was 31, of 71,287 tons.

The revenue was $9,186.97 more than for the year 1914-15, being $30,495.63 (see

statement No. 9). During the season of navigation, the dock was occupied for 211
days by 23 vessels of 48,969 tons.

During the winter of 1915-16, it was occupied by dredges Fruhling and Ottawa,
8S. Cascapedia, Gaspesian and Lady Evelyn.

KINGSTON GRAVING DOCK.

On May 1, 1910, the Kingston Shipbuilding Company took possession of this dock
under lease, the rental of which, $10,000 per annum, was payable at the end of each year.
One of the conditions of the lease was that they should erect and keep in rimuing order
a repair plant, but this business, they claim, did not come up to expectations. On the
contrary, it resulted in serious losses, and they have been urging the Department to
reduce the rental for this reason.

In the meantime, we have obtained $10,000, being one year's rent to 1st May, 1914,
leaving actually owing at the end of the year 1915-16, $10,000.

SELKIRK REPAIR SLIP.

On the 17th April, 1915, by Order in Council, rules and regulations for the man-
agement and working of the slip at Selkirk, Manitoba, were authorized, and the first

vessel to be taken up on the slip was the steamer J. M. Smith, the date being 31st May,
1915. As the boats on the waters served by this slip are of small tonnage, the dues in

the individual cases are not large. Nevertheless, during the last fiscal year the revenue
on this account was $1,456.53, for details of which please see statement No. 10. The
total number of vessels drawn up on the slip during the season of navigation was
twenty-five. The total tonnage was 4,545. Of these, eight vessels measuring 1,750 tons

were o\vned by the Dominion Government, the dues on which were $477.23. The
remaining seventeen vessels of 2,795 tons belonging to private concerns paid $979.30.

RENTS.

Separate accounts have been kept of the rentals under leases granted by this

department, but which were formerly collected by the Inland Eevenue Department,
which accounts were taken over on the 31st March, 1909. Statements Nos. 11 and 12
show in detail the condition of these accounts from 31st March, 1916. Statement No.
13 shows the condition of the land sales and interest account which was also taken over
from the Inland Eevenue Department. Several of the unsettled accounts are of many
years standing, and I doubt if very much will be realized from them. Exclusive of the
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above mentioned rentals tlie revenue accrued from government properties has

been in 1915-16, including sales and interest, $96,902.03, or $22,301.43 less tlian in

1914-15.

This account stands thus:

—

Balance from former years $ 21,614 05
Accrued year ended March 31, 1916 96,902 03

$118,516 OS

Collected $86,644 39
Written o££ 9,816 68
Balance due March 31, 1916 •. 22,055 11

$118,516 OS

The amount written off, namely $9,816.68, is composed of commission on collec-

tions, cost of maintenance, allowed in lieu of repairs or cancelled on account of

poverty, etc. Of the amount uncollected, $23,055.11, I hope to see this reduced sub-

stantially this year, although a very considerable portion will have to be forgiven,

some of the parties having disappeared, and others being too poor to pay.

The rentals from the Wellington street property are considerably less than in

1914-15, because the greater part of the Wellington street front and many of the

other better class buildings having been taken and are now being used for govern-

ment offices, etc. The same condition applies to the large property expropriated for

post office in Toronto, Ont.

In the administration of these properties, there are serious obstacles to obtaining

as favourable results, rentals, etc., as compared with the same property in the hands
of private individuals. The latter can make terms, periods of leases, etc., as Jhey
see fit, but we cannot give any assurancce in most cases for more than a thirty day term,

as we do not know when some of these properties may be required for government
purposes. Hence, we cannot expect to obtain as good rentals as parties who can give

a lease for one or more years, and I may say here that this condition makes it diffi-

cult for our agents even to retain the tenants we may have. The four agents who
look after the Wellington street property have done their work well, and I do not

anticipate much loss of rent, except perhaps from unavoidable misfortune to some
of our tenants.

The following is a summary of rents collected from public properties during

the year ended March 31, 1916, viz. :

—

Hydraulic and other rents $ 3,485 00
Ottawa, Sussex- street 2,141 no

Egan block 4,649 96
Wellington street north 49,411 22

Toronto post office site 17,119 61
Province of Manitoba 441 00
Victoria and Vancouver, B.C 3,426 50

Public building sites 6,184 67
Sundry places 1,405 43
Sales and interest 1,865 00

$90,129 39

Annexed hereto is a comparative table of the Public Works revenue accrued and
collected for the year ending March 31, 1916, compared with that of the fiscal year

ending March 31, 1915.

Before closing, I wish to thank the officers of the dopnrtmeent with whom I

have been brought in contact during the past year for their uniform courtesy shown
me at all times.

EDW. T. SMITH,
Collector Public Works Revenue.

Dkpartment of Public Works,
Ottawa, August 16, 1916.
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Comparative Table of Public Works Revenue accrued during the year ended March
31, 1916, compared with that of the Fiscal Tear ended March 31, 1915, and
amount of collections on account of same.
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No. 2.

—

Statement of Slide and Boom Dues accrued from the Ottawa Hiver Works,
since July 1, 1880, outstanding March 31, 1916.

Name.
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To the best of my knowledge, this decision was never communicated to the Col-

lector of Slide Dues; consequently, these amounts remained in abeyance.
Since then, both parties died, and I believe both were insolvent at the time of

their death.

EDW. T. SMITH,
Collector of Slide and Boom Dues.

Department of Public Works,
Ottawa, August 16, 1916.

Statement of the number of pieces of Square Timber, Saw-logs, etc., that passed

through the Government Slides and Works on the Ottawa River and its tribut-

aries during the Fiscal Tear ended March 31, 1916.
Pieces.

Square timber None.
Saw-logs •. 3,911,904
Boom and dimension timber 31.308
Railroad ties 105,406
Pence posts 27,327
Telephone poles 1,509

4.077,452

Also 51,580J cords pulpwood.

The revenue accrued on the above was $31,267.61.

EWD. T. SMITH,
Collector of Public Works Revenue.

Department of Public Works,
Ottaw.\, August 16, 1916.

No. 5.

—

Statement showing the Dues accrued on the undermentioned works on the

Ottawa River and its tributaries during the Fiscal Year ended March 31, 1916.

River or other Improvements

—

Main Ottawa
Cheneaux boom
River Petawawa
River Madawaska
CoulonBe
Dumoine
Black River
Gatineau

EWD. T. SMITH,
Collector of Public Works Revenue.

Department of Public Works,
Ottawa, August 16, 1916.

Amount.



REPORT OF THE COLLECTOR OF REVENUE 659

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

No. 6.

—

Statement of Slide and Boom Dues from the St. Maurice slides and works
outstanding on March 31, 1916.

Name.

(jeorge Baptist, Son& Co,

Rosa, Ritchie & Co.

Alex. Baptist
Wm. Ritchie & Co.

Ritchie Bros.

G. B. Hall
T. E. Normand.
Treffle Biron. . .

.

Laurbntide Paper Co

.

Year
to which

Jues
belong.

1878
1879
1880
1881
1882
1884
1888

1878
1883
1884
188fi

1887

187!)

1888
1889

188U
1887

1890
1890
1891

1909

Amount.

S cts,

409 95
3,110 02
1,696 18

293 69
165 80
118 50

4 28

3,072 84
2,173 68

38 96
1 62
4 38

7:9 24
332 11

413 43

634 71

3,709 62

Total.

$ cts.

4,859 02

5,281 48

2,116 96

1,111 35

1,048 14

49 34

42 2."

92

14,481 49
3,709 62

18,191 11

Remarks.

Have counter claims for damages to logs
caused by the booms not being stretched
early enough in the spring of 1878 to pre-
vent the logs going over the chute.

The clain;s were submitted to Special Com-
missioner, Mr. McDougall, afterwards
Judge, who, after hearing the evidence
on both sides, recommended that the
clain;s of the parties should be allowed.

Of this amount $7.^4.20 is claimed to be an
overcharge. Insolvent.

This amount is comjrased of overcharges ini

1886 and 1887 of .$442.76 and overpayment in.

1884 of .?205.38.

Insolvent.
Claims that this balance is an overcharge.
Would cost more to collect than it is worth.

*To make this balance agree with the Public Accounts, thcie should be deducted S7.93 over credited
Alex, Baptist, a,nd «21T.17 added thereto, being .$190.40 paid .July 23, 1884, and S2li.77 overcharged in
error to Wni. Little, nnt in any of the collector's returns, which will give balance due September 30, 1894,
of .$14,690.73.

EDW. T. SMITH,
Collector of Puhlic WorJcs Revenue.

Department of Public "Works,

Ottawa, August 16, 1916.

19—42,i
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No. 7.

—

Statement of Slide and Boom Dues accrued from the New Castle and Trent

River works, remaining imcollected March 31, 1916.

Name.

Irwin & Boyd .

.

Thomson & McArthur.
Jabez Thurston
McDougall & Ludgate
Bigelow & Trounce . .

.

R. G. Strickland
Est. late Geo. Hillard

T. G. Hazlett
J. M. Irwin
D. Ullyot
Green & Ellis

A. W. Parkin
The Dickson Estate .

Alfred McDonald
John Parkin
John Dovey

Year to which dues
belong.

1881
1880
1882
1879
1882 to 1885
1882, '83, '85, '86, and '87,

1877 to 1883 and 1889....

1881, '82, '84, and 1889..

1882, '83, '85 and '88

1881 to 1887
1881, '83, '85, '88 and '89.

1884, '86, '88, '90 and '91.

1883
1888
1889
1894, '95, '96

Amounts
disputed.

S cts.

59 79
52
12 50
65 07
216 21
215 08
354 15

885 25
698 45
547 68
157 01
65 92

137 50
40 80
13 00

3,521 19

Ordinary
dues.

•S cts.

35 70

Total.

59 79
52 78
12 50
65 07

216 21

215 08
3.54 15

885
698 45
547 C8

157 01
65 92
137 50
40 80
13 00
35 70

35 70 3,556

Remarks.

^ Insolvent.

Dead and estate dis-

tributed.

1

According to judg-
ment in Exchequer
Court, re Boyd is.

Smith, these can-
not be collected.

Dead, insolvent.

Dep.ujtment of Public Works,
Ott.\wa, August 16, 1916.

EWD. T. SMITH,
Collector of Slide and Boom Dues.
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No. 8.

—

The Dry Dock .\t Esquimalt, B.C.—Statement of Dues and other charges

collected during the year ending March 31, 1916.

Name of Vessel Docked

.

D. G. S. Lilloet and Naden.
Subniariije C.C.I
SS. Princess (Tharlotle

SS. Prince George
H.M.C.S. Rainbow
Glory of the Seas
Submarine C. C. 2
SS. Durley Chine
SS. Trcvince
Cruiser Malaspina
H.M.C.S. Rainbow
H.M.C.S. Shearwater
SS . Llandudno
SS . Oranfje River
SS. Lena
Cruiser Galiano
SS. El Lobo
SS. Otto Treckman
S-S. Northwestern
M.M.C.S. Newcastle
SH. Princesse Charlotte

SS. Karma
SS. Gisella

Submarine C.C.I

Cruiser Malaspina
Submarine C. C. 2
D.G.S. Lilloet

SS. Gwladys
Cruiser Gaitano
H.M.C.S. Shearwater..
Bknt. Hawaii

Ton-
nage.

705

3,844'

3,372
1,911
2,102

i'M?,'
3, 874

392
1,911

980
4,187
4,708
4,8.i0

393
4,800
3,736
3,497
4,800
3,844
."), G08
2,502

392

574'

3,929
393
980

1,085

Period of Dockage.

From

1915.

Mar.
April

May

June

Tnly
Aug.

Sept.
Oct.

Nov.

Dec.

25.

7.

21.

27.

29.

15

27.

14.

18.

22.

26.

24.

10
23.

27.

9.

1.

16.

28.

2.

13.

16.

18.

22

1916.

.Ian.

¥eh.

Mar.

To

1915.

Mar.
Apr.

May

.June

.Tuly

Aug.

Sept.
Oct.

Nov.
Dec.

.Jan,

29.

23.

26.

28.

8

18.

9.

15.

19.

25.

22
9.

12.

24.

28.
13.

2.

18.

30
12.

14
17.

20.

11.

1916.

Jan. 15.

Feb. 12.

26.

Mar. 7.

8.

10.

27.

Dockage
Charges.

•S cts.

350 00
1,225 00
392 20
368 60

1,037 92
483 00
875 00
295 90
393 70
350 00

2, 155 79
692 47
410 00
437 50
442 50
350 00
440 00
387 50
020 00
617 20

3,442 00
480 40
327 50

1,050 00

350 00
1,400 00
700 00
397 50
400 00
250 (JO

255 0<1

Other
Charges.

21,376 68

S cts.

7 20
25 20
20 40

47 40
2 40

21 60

23 40
10 20

112 80

7 20
1 80
9 00

39 00
61 20
6 00

'22620
21 00
13 80

106 80

64 20
24 60
7 20
12 60
10 80
5 40

887 40

Total.

.¥ cts.

357 20
1,250 20

412 60
.368 60

1,085 32
4S5 40
896 60
295 90
417 10
360 20

2, 268 59
692 47
410 00
444 70
444 30
359 00
479 00
448 70
626 00
617 20

3,668 20
501 10

311 30
1,156 80

3.50 00
1,464 20

724 60
404 70
412 60
260 80
260 40

22,264 08

Department of Public Works,
Ottawa, August 16, 1916.

EDW. T. SMITH,
Collector of Public Works Revenue.
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No. 9.

—

The Dry Dock at LE\as, Que.—Statement of Dues and other charges collected

during the year ending March 31, 1916.

Name of Vessel Docked.

Dredge Fruhling
Tug Laval
Tug Marijaret
S.S. Dnn-iee
S.S- Scottish Hero
Sub. Boat H.S
S.S. Turret Crown
S.S. Matoa
S.S. B'lmos
S.S. R)jmnez
D.G.S. Ladvarey
S.S. Ladi; Alice

S.S. Dundee
S.S. Winona
S.S, Ta'iona
S.S. Scottish Hero
New Lauzon Dry Dock .

.

Dredge tralreston

Dredge Protjress

Tug Storm Kiny.
Dredge Ottawa
S.S. (Jcoriic D. BrowneU.
S.S. Uwc'jo

S.S. Bintfhfxvipton

S.S. Montcalm
Davie Shipbuilding Co. ..

S.S. Roumcz. . . - .

S.S. Oweqo
S.S. Chemung
S.S, Bemior Bend
S.S. HcndonBall
S.S. Benqor Head
S.S. HetidonHnU
S.S. Binpkampton
Dredge Fruhling
S.S. Hnulun Hill
C.G.S. UelUehasse
S.S. Hend(m Hall
S.S. Harmatris
S.S. Cnmnrnsa
S.S. Winona
S.S. Lady of Gaspi
S.S. Oaspenian
H.M.C.S. Canada
S.S. Turret Crown
S.S. Lady of (lagpt

S.S. Cascaredia
S.S.G.R. Crmce

192

2,202
350

845

733

2,278
2,085
2.004

Apr.

May
June

.June

May

.\pr.

May

1,432

4,.n0l

2,G12

2,615

2.490
3,994

2,143

416
3,994
G,382

4,016

2,085

1,189

411

l,i89

Period of Dockage.

From. To.

1915.

Winte
16..
20

Entry
28.".

20..

Entry

22.

Entry
6.

Winte
26, ,

G..

23..

Entry
Mater
Winte

ring.

Apr,

fee.

.June

fee.

.Tune

fee.

May
ring
May

fee.

ial.s.

ring

May

Entry

22.

.June 27 .

.

Aug. 5 .

Aug. 16..

Entry

Aug. 10..

Sept. 2.

4.

Entry

•July

Sept.
Nov.

5
10

12
19
22

Entry
Wintering

Aug. 2.

Entry
Nov. 30
Winter 1915

Entry

1915.

fee

June

Aug.

Aug.
fee.

Sept.

19.

24.

8.

22.

26

21.

6

21.

26.

19

1.

14.

19.

1.

4.

10.

fee.

.July G.

Nov. 3
19.

22.

30.

fee.

1915-16.

.Vug. 5

.

fee.

Dec. 10.

-16 Entry fee.

fee.

Dockage
Charges.

S cts.

200 00
100 00
1.50 00
2C0 00
9o2 S'J

100 00
200 00
200 00
200 00
200 00
750 00
400 00

1.060 04
1,408 70
680 16
200 00
19 75

800 00
400 00
400 00

200 00
200 00
200 00

1,509 92

4,120 .50

1,017 92
.506 90
200 00
200 00

l.m'* 00
199 40
,'".71 44
200 00
200 00
.*0f) 00

,5,914 72
1,288 20
530 ,32

950 20
200 00
200 00
200 00
200 00
.578 04

200 00

/ 200 00

29,80G 59

Other
Charges.

$ cts.

.50 00
50 00
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No. 10.

—

The Eepair Slip at Selkirk, Man.—Statement of Dues and other charges

collected during the year ending March 31, 1916.

Name of Vessel Docked.

Str. J. M. Smith
Barge Liinx
Tug Aviisk
Str. Lockport
Str. Oarry
Str. Rocket
Str. Ciignet

Lady oj the Lake
Str. Woirerine
Str. Tempest
Str. Chieftain
Str. J. R. Spiers
Assiiiiboine dredge
Red River dredge
Two mud si^ows

Two mud scows
Two nuid scows
Str. Wolverine
Str. C. a. S. Bradbury
t liillis Williams
Barge No. 3
Str. Rocket
Str. Grand Rapids
Dredge Winniper/
Str. Wolverine

Tonnage.

179
120
32

150
120
56
18

201
278
75
61
31
132
132
220
160
160
278
500
164
458
56

438
24.J

278

Period of Dockage.

From

1915.

May 31

June 12

19
July 2

August 10

August 21

15

27
21

November 1

M 4

To

1915.

June

July

August 11

August 23
18
31

27
November 3

6

Dcjckage
Charges.

•S cts.

35 80
40 00
60 00
30 00
30 00
25 00
25 00
82 40
55 60
100 00
25 00
25 00
63 36
54 12
74 80
54 40
32 00
55 60
50 00
32 80
123 66
.50 00

210 24
66 15
55 60

1,456 53

Total.

$ cts.

35 80
40 00
60 00
30 00
30 00
25 00
25 00
82 40
55 60
100 00
25 00
25 00
63 36
54 12
74 80
54 40
32 00
55 60
50 00
32 80

123 66
50 (X)

210 24
66 15
55 60

1,456 53

Department of Public Works,
Ottawa, August 16, 1916.

EDW. T. SMITH,
Collector of Puhlic Works Revenue.
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No. 13

—

Hydraulic and other Rents, etc.,

Description of Property.

Hamilton and Port Dover and Caledonia Bridge
Lot No. 1, Wolfe street

9,

49,

73, and 74, Tower .street

64, Wolfe street, anJ 211 and 252 Ware street

.

67 and 68, Monument street

22 and 23, Wolfe street

32, Wolfe .street

65 and 66, Wolfe street

31, Wolfe street

135, Church street

Lot No. 1, Wolfe street.

49,

73 and 74 Towser street

64, Wolfe street, and 211 and 252 Ware street . . .

.

67 and 68, Monument street

22 and 23, Wolfe street

32, Wolfe street

65 and 66, Wolfe street

31, Wolfe street

135, Church street

Monument Hotel

^

1

2
3
4

5
6

7
8
9
10
11

12

10
11
12
13

c 9. .^ o
cs OS :

Tune 30, 1874..

May

Nov.

1, 1889.

1, 1859.

1, 1889.

1, 1889.

1, 1889.

1, 1889.

1, 1889.

1, 18G3.

1, 1863.

1, 1863.

1, 1863.

1, 1863.

^ jr tr
(M

OD 3 rt O

i ^^^

S cts.

12,092 83
433 34
333 34
300 OC
147 80
248 40
154 80
600 00
333 33
533 33
333 33
63 00

15,573 50

6,298 25
5.58 00
120 00
306 00
l.i5 22
275 82
208 95
828 00
190 00
29s 68
35 91

100 00
100 00

9,474 83

Totals.

S cts.

12,092 83
433 34
333 34
300 00
147 80
248 40
154 80
600 00
.333 33
533 33
333 33
63 00

15, 573 50

6,298 25
558 00
120 00
306 00
155 22
275 82
208 95
828 00
190 00
298 68
35 91

100 00
100 00

9,474 83

I

Department of Public Works,
Ottawa, Aug, 16, 1916. i
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Lessees' Accounts, 1915-16.

Balances

due

on

April,

1908.
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No. 12.

—

Hydraulic and other Rents, etc.,

Balance
due

April 1,

1015.
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Lessees' Accounts for the year ending March 31, 1916.

667

Description of Proprety.

Lot B & C Chaudiere street, service ground

^°' ,?• J- '^' ?•''*'' "!'''. North Head street
l^ot K, J> anning miU, South Head street
L."t 1j, service ground

Lots^Al'^X^b'T'"'
^°"°''' North Middle street;

Lots E,' F,
'g, 'South HeadVtreet .'..'".

Lot S, service ground *

Lots U, V, W X Y, Z, service' ground :
.' .' .'

.

.'

'.

[

[

'

i. wo strips of laud
°

Part of Government reserve', head of slide
iSridge over slide
Strip of Land, Amelia island
Reserve head of Chaudiere island
Small island in Deschenes rapids
Portion of lot XI. Concession A. Ne'pean
J^xcavated channel, slide and two dams.
Water lot opposite lot 30, Con. A, Nepean.'
3 small island>, Ottawa river
Covering over portion of Ottawa slide "

Jlast portion Hawley island
Piece of land, Victoria island
Land south side. Middle street, Victoria island' "
Land Longue I'ointe Rouge, Templeton CoSou th west of lot No. 1, Amelia island
Lot fa, South Head street
Lot nevr Custom House, Quebec
Roadway from Coteau Landing, piei-
Old prov. Gov. building and grounds
Privilege to erect biidge on St. Charles river]Log building, former Custom House, Shrewsbury'

'

'

s"?'"! lot's
'^'*''' ('^'^'^^e (^"ncelled Oct. 30, VJiS).'

Land lie St. Chri8tophe,'nver >-t. 'Mauri'ce '.'. ""
Land He St. Chnstophe, river St. Maurice
Portion of Assay OfKce, New Westminster
Portion of Assay Office, New Westminster
Permit for bulkhead in Victoria Harbour
i^ermit for bulkhead in Victoria Harb:ur
Privilege to build wharf on lots A and C
Permit to build wharf lot " A " Blo->k 2
Permit for landing at Little Rapids
l.eav-e to dr.ain to mam .service, public building
Iract of land and water lot, McNairn's Cove
r-and west side of Sydenham river
Lot on Ouilette street .

.

" "•,

Water lot, (lease cancelled) '

W.ater lot, (lease cancelled).
.

.

Water lot, (lease expires March 31, '1912
Kight of w,ay over strip of land.
Ground rent

Date to
which account
is made up.

Paid
during
the year.

Balance
due on

March 31,
1916.

Deo. 31, 1915
" 31, 1915
" 31, 1915.
" 31, 1915

1915.

1915.

1915
1915.
1915.

31, 1915.
31, 191G.

Sept. 20, 1916.
June .30, 1916
Dec. 31

1,

1,

31.

1,

31,

31,

3],

31,

81,

Jan.
Jan.
Jan.
Mar.

, 1911

1917.
1912
1884

1917

Nov. 10, 1916
June 20, 1891
Mar. 11, 1917
Aug. 31, 1916
Oct. 4, 1916
Oct. 9, 1815
Jan. 10, 1917,
Aug. 31, 1916.
July 1, 1909.
June 25, 1916
Feb. 6, 1917
Sept. 11, 1915.
Jan. 1. 1916
Dec. 8, 1916
Dec. 1, 1916
July 1, 1916

June 1, 1916
June 1, 1916
June 1, 1916.
June 13, 1916.

Dec. 31, 1916.
Dec. 31, 1916

Dec.
June

8, 1916
9, 1916,

pr. 26, 1916.
Apr. 4, 1916.

Total

8 cts. -S cts. .3 cts.

200 00
100 00
300 00
100 00
100 00
300 00
400 00
300 00
100 00
600 00
200 00
208 00
10 00

IdO 00
96 00

25 00

1 00

10 00
50 00

100 00
10 00
1 00

2 66

1
66'

1 00

1 66
100 00

12 50
12 50

I

16 00

1 00
1 00

3,459 00

136 00
570 84

200 00
9*00

380 00

2'6o

275 00

2'6o

12 00
1 00

165 00
90 00

25 00
5 00

70 00
1 00

3'66'

240 00
20 00
3 00
5 00

2,301 S4

200 00
loO 00
300 00
100 00
100 00
300 00
4 JO 00
300 00
100 00
600 00
200 00
208 00
10 00

100 00
96 00

136 00
570 84
25 00

200 00
90 00
1 00

3S0 00
10 00
50 00
2 00

100 00
10 00
1 00

275 00
2 00
2 00
1 00
1 00

12 00
2 00

100 00
165 00
90 00
12 50
12 50
25 00
5 Oo

70 00
1 (JO

16 00
3 00

240 00
20 00
3 00
5 00
1 00
1 00

5,760 84

EDW. T. SMITH,
Collector of Public Works Revenue.
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Ottawa, November 18, 1916.

I?. C. Desrochers, Esq.,

Secretary, Department of Public Works,

Ottawa.

Sir,—I beg to submit the report upon the expenditures made by this Department

during the fiscal year ended Slst March, 1916.

It will be noticed that the body of the report differs considerably in form from

those of preceding years. The information formerly shown in Statements " A " and
" B " has this year been amalgamated so as to show in one statement, opposite to the

name of each work, the whole outlay by the department upon that work, whether for

constructfon, repairs, rent, salary, etc., for caretaker, heating, lighting, water, or power

for machinery.

As regards former Statement " C," showing sums loaned to Harbour Commissions,

as there have not been any transactions of this nature under the authority of this

department for several years past, and no probabiliy of resumption in the near future,

it has been thought best to discontinue the statement.

The total expenditure during the fiscal year was $19,539,298.04, a decrease of

$9,744,018.78 from the expenditure of the preceding year.

The volume of work passed through the Accountant's branch during 1915-16 may
be briefly indicated as follows:

—



1
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STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURE DURING FISCAL YEAR

ENDED MARCH 31, 1916

19—43



674 DEPARTMENT OF PVBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

(N i-t Tf r-< ir; [>- iri « o x <m t>. r; c: ri ci c. co :o x t- t-t -^ ".c tc m t-i b-

CO CN (N .-H Oi f ^ ^ w^m

X I^CO .-Io ir; T^ -H

be

o

an

m c^ X tN
»o X ^co

* CO (M COO O w^
»c ir: !N

CO t-- t- Ci N
-f en r-i -f .-(

CO -N CO CO to

iC5 1-t -rr o
CO O h---«N CO CI I^

to to X
c^ f n
CO Tf M

-f X X t-O CO X X
(N NCOiH

t-CS C^ X —
c; CO ^ (M X

o



REPORT OF TEE ACCOUNTANT 675

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

ci :o i3 T o (M t- o o Ti -^ cc ^o in :k ci o r-. o c: c— -r
I- ^ c: :s t>. cc :c Ti -y »::: -T ».- b- CO n •— 1—' c; I- x^ >-< ^
C-J ^ C^-i _.^C]^^,-t fO^Wr-(

—. tO 00 o« CO cc

I^ CI t-- t--O rH -J" -t«

O X c cf O T-< cc
iOCO cc**

(N'TOC; 1-" -t* iM -ti
CC -^ O -^ - i-l CI C, t—
i-H O CC C-1 lO CQ

iC C-J -^ iM

CO rr CO

• in CD o o^ I-CO o
t, -r in -"

COtD O
CO t-O
lOrH X

•CC :s -^
CO -—C^i

ir: --c o --r c^i f X -r -J N
r-i -r .-( o in o c-i CO 1^

X i-H *) o in
c; -r -r -r cs
-.3 CO ^ r-i T-H

in X X X CO^xo; -r X

»n CO t^
<M X .-(

cc ^ m

xco
rH CO

(MO

fll
t- J, . CJ CO

=e "7 — -x: 3
= 02=0

N t-o o
(N CO r-l

O o
^ a.

£.3 " a-c

J^E

o in

O X

^1-* b-o CO
t^ O t- 05 w
»N wco coin

.-I ^ rt- -r o

-r X CO
C. « M
•n ineo

o
I

X ?) t-

ccin ci

o -^oX — ^
-r in CO

,- c
«S

—'CD O
C^ X o

5-

E^ o

52
SSh SS S 'J

.5 a^

.= £

^ •« r-

•S li c . *

- X— -^ O :

^

§

^ f^

^55 cuS
19—43i

a; SP »
>, a.-^ CO 5 S °

£ H

t:: - t :; i> <l..

:&^

=^ I

o .'Em o =



676 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

e

o

I

13

g

bo

,g
'u
3
13

a
73
a
a
a

M

I
03
P.
<U

-8
a

o



REPORT OF THE ACCOUNTANT 677

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

OCOOi-(M'*'OXi»000-r — OCOi—'^OC^OOr-iOClCCi-tO'—i'»(MOiOOO»-'t^tCCli-HC^10

Ci o t-- -r X ^ I- »:: "t* o i* CO in .-< :d t^ o 'J ;o o'j — -t- T'l t^ cc t-- cc o: '-C 30 o c<i c: cc -r c: »o X cc t-'t Ci



678 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

'a

o

0)

.a

tD

3

d

SI
3

aa
o

a
-a

o.
y.
it

ti

O

<



REPORT OF TEE ACCOUNTANT 679

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

o iO t-- iO .— a; Ti CO t- 3D (N '.o
.-i-Ha:ocorH:r>aDcCT-i -t-c-iX O 1-1^00 00 GO N rH rj> C? '^ "^^

o: «n o C'l ~ t- cc -f o lO »: o T' lO CO CO tO o -p
CO *n in O 00 iC CC C-l -r fM CD X O Cl --' CO c<i co cc

c ci lO X Ci ^^ I—" r- oi ci o
lO [•* c; iM tr; c-j CO ti I ~ X—

f

•j; CO .-H .-j_in rH X -» CO -r c-i

rH.-H CO'CO Mi-H

CO o in (M
5D CC r-l CO
CO .-4

C-l Oi X Oi Ol -t" •»
I- -r -f t— O CO X
CO I-- --I M T-H rH r-.

u^ CO ^
(N O -(

rH 'NO
T-» -in

CO f Ci -rH 00
coco CO .n I—

'

•^f COi-(

» ^ O N (^ CO O
CO to W CO CO CO o
Tt" ?^ i-t f-. CO C^ CM

t- O CM -H CI
lO -T M to M



680 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

13

S

s
o
;3

T-l
05

si

•a

bo

3

a
13

O

o

2h

o

>1

•O
s

H
S5

O



REPORT OF THE ACCOUNTANT 681

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

OCl -



682 DEPARTMENT OP PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

o:c:



REPORT OF THE ACCODNTANT 683

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

CC 1^ m V



684 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

cc o »-< o_*^_»c o t^cvn o j-1 -^ CO X' roi-4^c^_^ ct o_ ^ -^ yr tt c^»^:o ro c^ t--- od

e
T3
c

0)
,i3

bo

3

13

1— M r-< i-H t>.r-» N
ccco *
tM W CO

CJ X Ol 05
t-O ro r-t

CO t-t 1-1 31
CC X Oi CO r-
5^ i-tC-S 71

,-tc<icc::;xx:oo
c^ tr -c .-H 00 1-. t>. o ^ X

lO 00

CS O MO CO X
<N CO W

W CD X COo r: c". CO
00 cs X -^ ca r-« ;o^ t--x coco • CSW C4 WCO Cfl

**-.



REPORT OF THE ACCOUNTANT 85

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

M 1-- oi o rr; trs :d io o lO 35 i-H CO o -h c. -t •-- i-'; «n t>.o o J"- cs •" oo n r: c: co lo .—
• i- r-< n r- x oc -t- cc cc -r x) t- u- :^ co

ann ^ X in x_—_«--_tN o —_-^ r- :c x x^tj --'_i-h ,-<:*; x_x oo c?sx x«inco—'0?ix»-*c •»• x
N^t-.-H O X f' rH .-t

Sj

^ X Oi X^M rH t-H
!>. -r M O OS ^X X -^ (N :c e^ e*5 OW ^ CC -< r-l

C>J CC CN iO
5£>C0iMC-l

3^ OS M 3i t-- X OS CS
CO t-H
CO lO

O CS ffO
CO OS X l- CO * iC iC t-

ta -f o T -^
iO M CO CO O

s

0> OS CD t^W O X X
C0(0 -^ -St"

X CO -^M .-Im -r O (N CO
CO r- 10«0 lO

X M CI rf O
CO "^ - ""

:2 O
iOX
T-^ CO

«3'OS r-t

-J OS o« O -1-

CO :o X OS
coco OS X
CO *o w t-

O (N (O
<C CO «o

CO -J* --< N
T-iOtOO
CO CO W OS

-^ OS

O OS

cs F— in T-i CD OS
:o o o ea X t*

t-t-Hl- I—

.

X «-H X
?? CO r—

4* .

m o '

0) ©

*j 5 o £'£ o
11

^
§1

§5Sa&
a • bc.a >

: ? 2"= 3

"3 S> O _- TO

en »i 9O O C

^ t? w t; r- ^
C 03 « ^-^ -;:;i:; c3 X 3 *

& =

O 4) t- 3
_ ® bD t

I O <» ^- i^60^; . ^

® is ©

i^iari

" c£ c iT
1 S o " "

(L S2 « O ay S O C- ^

o§ is

a|
. a
- a
O

!m

Lo.2 g'

'3 « ^-= ~
t- '"' aj a, .-

B I = >.n
O O I. £ 3

.S5.r|1

O O m o >.

; o d

i; c c t. s

,
2. C O ^

' a '^^ -i
.~ a-= c
> ^'U o

= c 2 w t»

Ig.s.s

Sun
c o o

•s>!
£ £ o
.6?^ g

i
Soi

• UTS

.1:5
• o s
X X

. I = ®^5 a
1

id

t* M (-

5f2



686 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

o

o i-^ 1— ir: ci M X ifM.*^ ci
oc o ^^» o I- 3c -r X
r-x" i— O t-^ I-- Ifi"

o.--c::^i-o-t*.-iTiniOo»::xir2XNCi'Mf-fXC^

O O 1-7 o""iC i-J" i-TM O M .N CO

(MM
I-- w -co

CSX -x-^
c; o -coco

.-•-?" X i-t CO
-a* CO
cow

^xx ^
CO h-O o

X ^ O I-

X tS X CO (TJCO O O O« X CO o -r
t-x N :i I-*



REPORT OF TEE ACCOUNTANT 687

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

ci o — ^ -J ~ ^ c^ -re
;3 -r o 7^1 — i^ iT-i :: t^

:c —« r: ffi -^ c-j o N r: iC — -r '^ I- CO e =-.

c". ',2 c:> -? --< r-i -r •— o ~i s: ^^ cc rt If; <n -f
t* -^ -f c. t- o i:^ — o
-r d -^ = •-< i^ -^ O^ ""1 *^ "^l

o_ Tl -n- 1: M
^"^ ~rm" r-i' I—" tri" w~t .—" i-T re cf t-T .-T -^" .-T—' ad" --'

t>.t--:c r-

t— <-• t-- ^ Th O 30GCt--l'-CS
i-H CO -r •*' o c:i CM

t^ c O :c "K :C! o c: iri t- o in c-i
C5 n O — m T CO cc oO W I- :0 =0

T- L- ^ ?] ,-( -f (Tl .-I '-' CO ^

COCO O*^
CD r-> T^T CO in

oco
CI CI

o cr; M ri
•-1 CO W N

C-1 O CO n O -r '-T M CO CO O CQ —
•^ ,-. --, c; CI — ca c-1 o T-< Tf m ?o
cicoci •vr^QOL-eocci>-"*ci

i-ci
cqc<i -co
:oci -*

•O CO* —• t^

c: ..o -f :£



688 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917



REPORT OF THE ACCOUNTANT 689

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

lO (M CC I- (M ^ .-' C-l O T-" CO -f (M O C; IM
CO CO r- X O O f-< O f-< ,-t -f CC «-<-<»• lO

OON«iMOC0T-HOi-<a: occ-^ooeoor-if-4 ootnoo

CQC»5l-..-<rH^!M -^C^^ O .-•.-<,-.

CCOOXi-'-^OCiOOC-lCi'-OOC^tSOCO'-'I-^t- ClCl^OO
t--rCT:.-'"-f xcoi-H!:c:sto-jD OrHOC-ixco ^rx-^t-Ci^ I- :;: 1-H CI »-• o •-roc iTs — r-4 cor-l M so *T in

V f— i:; 1-1

^ O CI 1-H
o:c^ X— l>iO

tOOs -t<
Ci [-- rl x-y:) o

1-H C5 •^ 1-1

O « t--
i-( TT in

CO C4

t-O—'XfO^WCi
00 CT: CO CO —' -O .-.

lO W C^l lO *C C3 CI

X in
r-eo
IM CO

n -^ -rf o »o
•^ cc >—

(

X cq

C^ -^ •*

tC CO -I'

OXi

CO o o -f r* I*
Ci CO r-* O f-H !X!
r- rH to tO O CO

CO to r-«X iCi lO
rr :o o CO X

CO I—

rH -J iOX c; I-- OS O!OiO

00 CO
CO oo

T-- CI O N CO
-^ X .-' CO --I

?- Ci CI C-1

1^^

v

; V ~ oT- o

O fl

£ !t « o a

& Oj o —
o3 '"

o o ® ,:

be
a

:2 S

o c =

^ ^ o

c a) 2 0-

5 • ^-

1

.2 9^ '

2 «
5 £"*-J: d

= £3
Sg o o !§ E

11

'5 c
> o

r- (O 00

*3 „ ^ « ^ 1

ifi-

O r zK-S

a a.

b-.s

-^ 2 ^ -

.
- 1 C -i

J g +J ^ «

" 3

im

= (££

n?)
19—44

oS « « 3— ^00a catr,

P.S 3 =«

= -S (i, - o ^ c

C>-3 r? S rt ?^

-^ S S

J GO - OD

««



690 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

S

s
o

to

C2

-a

a

a

a)

bo
a

d
oi

o
5:

J3

d

O

CO :£ o -T* ;£ .-« 5^ t-i' o^ in ^
x_« T-i « ic N X « jC n c^

t- 3D

K

m



REPORT OF TEE ACCOUNTANT 691

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

r-oi£:o^oiooo^iOicCi-'Oi-<in'^t-i^c:t--o<oc^wooo o OJO.-tooaooc^^3r-o^osoNcc«corc-rooooo-rTC'iTi-o»04-rTir-«e«oi>.cct-.C!.-i"^-,£0 t- •-<c-i*Ci— -f»'c;«ccot--.Oi-'»o^
'-S X r: c: ITS ^ :ri X t^ a; ci o i-< o o o lo i-- 00 -^ c n ir: 31 o s; --3 cc cc <:£ i—i ^ o c-i o ^o --i tp m i--. t^ o »c « C5

-* X tr;
OiCOOO <r .-4C:t£*cb-oco

.— MO *J. r-1 t-- .-I

1 —. -^ o CI c: o ?^ n •— ir:
- -^ -_-. 00 T -^ ;o t- x t- o
1 TJ rO ?1 Tf i^ -^ I- t— ^ -T

CM 20 O 00 C-1 oc O CC CO

CD O -M «

o b-

f-l t-~ MOO

11 "(J'

8
O OO O

O -^-30
"~ iC CI

I— 05

cc O c:
M* b-eo
i-HCOCO

^ o ro CO CO -rO CO MCI

eo CO o
MCOCO

o»o
NO

CO i-H

o to COt-

^ *- ^ ^
2 * B X-

'

o

CQ

*J Oj _ :- X!

Sf o S - ;^ £ -
3 r I s£ = s

. 3i =
= ^-2 &| £>!

•££•

S.S

£ = S

= c g

« £_
s.Sf -
""5 3 -

m

— • C .M3

S

*2 Sds.|.2_-

. ^ :-=-cx-=

i g~g2

:-<

2.- ~
:

bcx
a
'5

>co

C >
J5<

«?= a » 3

Battleford

imi

>i

)

OS

Big

River

fore

l.iggar

iminig

Kstuvan

post

i

Gravelbourg

i



692 DEPARTJfENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

^^
e
o

I

o
rH

O

C3

J

1

03

g
B

.«

o

-t1



REPORT OF THE ACOOlUfTAVT 693

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

in GO o mo o c: i-
Ti ao ^1 as

OD C t- Cl 'JD

:?:; -r — <c o
\z .— [-. t--r

50 .-I ^Q CI t- o f- 1-- CO c; t- r- ^ icic t- oc c-5 c cc ei c^i « c-i i- M n c". :_ tr t-o
«rtr:^iCa:ocoDS'ic-i(C-r coo-rw — cic. inc. xc. cC'-<o *-cCi-t
i-« M CJ -^ CO -J CO N to cc r-* 00 c-i -r CO Ci CO C". »r: c: ci T iO«)

»O0COf
OCO

O C:MCI
-f M C CO f
cc CO Tp !;c »

O CO

CO OS oi -r 00 lo
iO -^ CO O CO ,-«

-r QO O t-M
-*• lO o c—c:O f CO -* CO

CO O (X)

CI O



694 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917



REPORT OF THE ACCOUNTANT 695

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19

O CI C] CI CI O -r CI en -J — CO o >SZ ^ C-. C 'X}
C^ r^ O O O
C4 « .-I -f

CJ -J2 3DO CT. O ^ r^ t-- lO o -t* 00 o o o t'- 3:
nTf<n-^00C»CJiOXtCC3C^
-r tO -i) N r-l C. ZD'^it^'^

orcOOt-^OJ:r-oocoyrdt^x~rc-fxcoo ^ i^ CO o r- t- -J o --

Oi 00O CO

•^ IX)

COM
eoec

coo wCO^ 1-1

CO -t . -H .-H

-f W O !0
OS rHTOM
rH CI

cq « '^ o
ci ci cq

Gc -r X CJ
ooto « o
to « i-H -f

CD 00

i-H to 00
CO C! O
CO * —

• oo
•00 CO

V -

(Si;-3 0_0

ali^

b*

o og©
S o

s 6 c £ r

e- * e
"

.0 R

-a.

3

t/j 5 a;

c n: »
S oS to

V a;

u—

«

5 s-E =3

o-r
a-r V

.
0)

S.5

4)'l
0)

.3

J 2j 3 :> C c ^

'S ., P "

5^
S - .

.S-3EE„

'S.SP o

y. a 0-"
x.= a

S

O C3 tic t- r: -ti
4J -»^ C d 3 =

E S"3

PE4

C tie

0*0

- XI
6d -~

2I

S-^i

>_<-<: 33qq

tuO 0) Oi C -

"S ^
- OJ o

=a
^"13 , oj cj

rt P O O t-

c,5 o "3 "

S-S J s I

^



696 DEPARTMEyr OF PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917



REPORT OF THE ACCOUNTANT 697

SESSIONAL PAPER No. 19



698 DEPARTMENT OP PUBLIC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. -1917

Amounts expended by the Department of Public Works of Canada during the fiscal

year ended March 31, 1916.

—

Vontinued.

Nilme of Work.
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Amounts expended by the Department of fublic Works of Canada during the fiscal

year ended March 31, 1916.

—

Continued.

Name of Work.
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Amounts expended by the Department of I'ublic Works of Canada during the fiscal

year ended March 31, 1916.

—

Continued.

Name of Work.
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Amounts expeuded by the JJepartmeut of I'ublic Works of Canada during the fiscal

year ended March 31, 1916.

—

Vontinu6d.

Name of Work.

Hakboues and Rivkks.

iVora Scolhi— Con.

West Berlin, beach protection

West Chezzetcook breakwater
West Head (Cape Sable Island), briak-

water extension
West Pubnico wharf
Windsor, harbour improvements
Wine Harbour (Guysboro) channel
Wolfville, wharf and harbour improve-
ments -

Wycocomagh wharf
Wreck Cove dam
Yarmonth harbour impis
Generally

Totals, Not'a Scotin

.

Prince Edxmrd Island.

Alberton
Belfast (Halliday's) wharf . ....

Belle River, breakwater and freight shed
Bonshaw (see West River)
Bridgetown ( Kings county)
Brudenell, wharf reconstruction
Cape Traverse wharf
Cardigan, River South, wharf
Chapel Point pier

Cliarlottetown harbour '
. . .

.

n ferry wharf
M railway wharf

Creo.soted timber for general repSits. . .

.

Darnley
Franklyn Point (North river)

Georgetown
Grand River
Hlggins Shjre pier. ; . .

Kier's Shore pier .^^
Little Sands wharf
McPherson's Gove wharf
Malpeque
Miminegasii, north bk. water
Montague (Lambert's) pier
Murray Harbour, south pier
North Cardigan (Newport) pier

North Lake boat harbour
North River Bridge, wharf
North River (see Franklyn Point)
Panmure Island wharf
Pinette wharf, shed
Point Prim. (Orwell Bay) wharf
Port Selkirk, wharf
Pownal :

Red Point wharf
Robinson's Island breakwater
Rocky Point wharf
Rustiuo breakwater
St. Mary's Bay wharf
Souris Harljour breakwater extension. .

.

Sumnierside breakwater
Tignish, breakwater and beach protection
Vernon Ri\er, piers

Dredging.

.? cts

.

Construc-
tion and Im-
provements.

g cts.

2,2S7 91

10,052 73
3,735 73

1G6,423 96

4,88S 72

14,378 60
1,769 36
1,883 68

6,228 03
2,225 38
2,760 13
11,651 83

5,832 64

1,876 07

1,450 25

4,797 34

'9.644 9i

1,723 29

2 50

149 23
30 00

17 20

4,091 83

189,190 88

222 22

3,096 43

213 85

270 99

17,319 84

5,697 49

2,484 79

Repairs.

S cts.

245 77

397 64

749 02
1,953 29

51,887 44

2,972 38
74 51

2,649 41

1,335 65
99 37

207 65

4,944 70

174 75
1,359 47

1,057 23

149 87
894 01
25 97

101 63
39 31

50 00

20 00
60 37

2,505 56
2,070 28
1,269 75

112 54
1,500 08

43 14

745 69'

Staff
and Main-
tenance

•S cts

,

7,623 41

7,623 41

Total.

S cts.

245 77
1,723 29

2 50
397 64

2,437 14
o6 00

17 20
39 55

749 02
16,097 85
11,359 14

415,125 69

2,972 38
74 51

2,871 63

4,888 72
3,096 43
1,335 65

99 37
207 65

14,378 60
1,769 36
1,883 68
4,944 70
6,228 03
2,225 38
2,760 13

11,651 83
174 75

1,359 47
21;< s5

1,057 23
5,832 64

149 87
894 01
25 97

101 63
39 31

1,876 07

1,506'25

270 99
20 00
60 37

7,302 90
2.070 28
1,269 75

26,964 75
112 54

1,.500 08
5.697 49

43 14

2,484 79
745 69
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Amounts expended by the Uepartment of Public Works of Canada during the fiscal

year ended March 31, 1916.

—

Vontmued.

Name of Work.

Harbours and Rivers.

Prince tdward Island—Con.

West Point wharf
West River, pier at Bonshaw
West River, whart at McEachem's
Generally

Totals—Pr/nce Edward Island—
Ifew Brumicick.

.AJbert, berth for vessels

-Anderson's UoUow, wh.'irf approach . .

.

Bathurst, harbour improvements. ..

Baie du V'in wharf
Beaver Harbour wharf
Black's Harbour. (Charlotte Co.) wharf
Black River wharf
Buctouche Beach, extension of breast-

works and breakwaters
Buctouche wharf
Burnt Church wharf
Burton Court House wharf
Campbellton, below range lights

II deep water wharf
II market wharf
II wharf

Cape Bald breakwater pier

Oaraquet wharf
Chamberlain Landing, («ee Stonehaven)

.

Chipman
Chockfish breakwater
Chocolate Cove wharf approach
Cocagne

II wharf .at church
11 new wharf
II old wharf

Creosoted timber for general repairs

Dalhousie deep water wharf
Dipper Harbour breaKwater wharf. . .

Dorchester wliarf ,

Douglas Harliour (Queens Co.) .

Douglastown (Northumberland Co ). . .

.

Durham wharf (Restigouche Co)
) >ykeuian'.< shoal
Evandale wharf
Fairhaven (Deer Island) wharf
French Lake, removal of snags
Fredericton wharf
GoosHl)erry Cove wharf
iirand .4nse breakwater
Grand Lake (Queens Co)
Grandigue
Gre;it Sahnon river breakwater
Grimross canal (Queens Co.).
Leonard ville wharf (floating slip)

Little U'ack river

Little Dipper harbour, wliarf approach..
Ix>rd's Cove wharf
Lciwer Cara<jviet wharf
Lower Derby
McClures Bay
Maquapit lake. .

Dredging.

(instruction
and

Improve-
ments.

1«7 50
875 56

1,867 98

72,297 98

25,658 74

5,915 72
23,601 37

6,369 11
4,329 00
2,28S 90
1,063 28

2,773 79

ia53 io

2,015 19

3,091 35

8,067 34

7,305 23
992 73

1,427 87

2,030 99

6,618 34

1,427 01

9,867 32

S cts.

29,305 61

83 30

142,740 63

2,535 57

1,648 36

91 45
7 «7

81 01

11,987 53

2,028 99

115 01

54 55
82 00

111 72
531 08

Repairs.

5 cts.

998 33

25,461 65

19 80

41 41

1,009 47
88 95

520 77

124 72
4,770 38
149 00

451 92

3,589 89
1,190 72

601 25

314 01

1,809 44
403 95

25 00
10 40

2,050 00

97 94

"7 48

1,390 68

Staff and
Mainte-
nance.

.? cts

2,296 21

2,296 21

Total.

cts.

998 3.'*

167 50
875 56

4,164 19

129,361 45

83 30
19 80

168,399 37
41 44

1,009 47
88 95
520 77

8,451 29
23,726 09
4,770 38
149 00

6,369 11

4,329 00
2,740 82
1,063 28
3,589 89
1,190 72

2,773 79
691 25

1,648 36
1,153 10

91 45
7 67

81 01
314 01

1,809 44
403 95

11,987 53
2,045 19
3,091 35
2,1)28 99
8,667 34

25 00
10 40

115 01

54 55
82 00

2.0.")0 00
7,305 23

!»92 73
!I7 94

1,427 87

7 48

2,030 99
111 72
631 08

1,390 68
6,618 5J

1,427 01

9,867 32
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AMOUNTS expended by the Department of l^ublic Works of Canada during the fiscal
year ended March 31, 1916.—Uontinued.

Name of Work.

Uarbocbs and Rivebs.

JVew Brunswick—Con.

Martin's Head breastworks
Miscou wharf

'

Moncton wharf
Neguac wharf
Oak Point, traverse
Oak Point, wharf

. .

.

Oromocto, wharf
Petit Rocher, breakwater, etc. .

.

Portage River, breakwater, etc. !

Quaco, ea.stern breakwater,reconstruction
Red Store (Charlotte Co.), wharf..
Rexton
Riuhibiicto Beach, extention of break
waters

Richibueto Cape, breakwater
River St. Croix ".'.'.'.'

River .St. .John, removal of snags.. .]
Riv-er St. .John, Upper .Jemseg, removal
of snags

River St. Ji.hn and tributaries :—
Edujunston, wharf 1 500 71
Everett, (Mink Cove) ... '299 06
(Jralj-all, Tobique River,
breakwater

(rrand river
Green river
Iroquois river
Little Tobique river.

.

Quisibus river
Red Rapids
St. Francis river
Siegas river ...

Tobique Narrows
Trout ri ver
Turner's breakwater..
Woolhampton
Generally

Dredging.
Construc-

tion and Im-
provements.

Repair

500 21
399 88
570 90
396 Sfi

047 21
194 30
247 96
100 00
199 .50

200 00
372 87
150 09
49 50

1,536 34

River St. John, wharfs in tidal water—
Appleby wharf 37 39
Earle's wharf 4^ 008 2-->

Gagetown wharf
[

'

64 81
Hatfield wharf 237 43
Lon^ Point wharf 5,514 22
Millidgcville wharf 4,244 81
Renforth wharf 4,0)5 97
Summeriille wharf 4^ 1.30 71
Weir wharf .33 88
White's Bluff wharf... . .

.

5,604 90

River .St. Louis (Lower), approach to
wharf

St. Andrews, wharf
St. Charles (Kent Co.), wharf ... .."
St. .John harbour :

—

Beacon Bar
Channel
Courtenay Bay /
Foul grijund

Negro Point, breakwater extension..
Partridge L4and, quarantine station
deep water wharf

14,770 14

9,095 50

3,223 61
8 00

Cts

634 49

250 30

893 27
128 54

30,014 86
2,009 21

1,883 00

1,752 54

7,665 59

27,930 .37

995 08

"i,626'ii

54,935 02
55,418 12
754,725 89

3, 780 43

Staff
and Main-
tenance.

cts.

198 75
46 81

'8i'6i'
149 13
199 22

4,486 89
318 86

130 00

'556
'77

167,762 63'

734 60

248 99

362 42
20 12

Total.

3,223 61
8 00

198 75
46 81

14,770 14

81 61
9.244 63

199 22
893 27

4,615 43
318 86
634 49

30,014 86
2,009 21
250 SO

1,883 00

1,752 54

7,665 59

27,930 37



704 DEPARTMENT OF PUBTJC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

Amounts expended by the Department of i'ublic Works of Canada during the fiscal

year ended March 31, 1916.

—

Continued.

f
Name of Work.

Hakbochs and Rivebs.

New Brunsioick—Cod.

Partridge T.sland, water pipe line

St. .John West, winter port, berths. .

St. John West, deep water wharfs, etc

St. .John West, filling

St. John West, marine dock
St. John West, piers

St. John West, galleries ,

St. John West- -permanent sheds
M teraporarv sheds
M Union pier, water pipe

extension
fi berths Nos. 4 and 5. .

.

11 berth No. 7

., berths No.<. 14 and 15.

.

Seal Cove, eastern breakwater pier

Shediac Island wiiarf

Shippegan Gully breakwater
Stonehaven breakwater
Stonehaven (Chamberlain's) wharf). . .

.

Tabiicintac wharf .

.

The Range (Queens Co)
Thomas Creek, protection work
Tracadie, breakwater, etc

Upper Car.^quet, wharf reconstruction. .

,

Upper Maugerville wharf
Upper Salmon River, breakwater ex

tension
Welshpool (Camix)bello), wharf ware-
house

Weldford (Kent Co.) wharf
West Branch (Weldford, Kent Co.)
landing wharf

Wilson's Beach (CamiJobello) wharf. .

.

Woodward's Cove breakwater
Generally

Totals, New BruiiKirick

Quebec.

Amherst wharf, Magdalen islands ...

Angers wharf
Anse h Beaufils breakwater
Anse k F<iugere, removal of boulderx.
Anse A Gillea wharf
Anse A la Cave, removal of Iwulders .

Anse h la Louise, renioval of ooulders
Anse A I'lslot wharf
Anse aux Griffonds, piers

Anse St. .lean, wharf extension
Ayhner ( Lake Deschenes) wharf
Baie St. Paul (Cap aux Corbeaux) wharf
Barachois de Malbaie harbour improve-
ments

Batiscan wharf
Beau|K)rt wharf
Beloeil (Nee River Richelieu)
Bersimis wharf
Berthier (en has) wharf
Berthierville wharf
Bic, wharf at Pointe A Cflt6

Dredging.

S cts.

Construc-
tion and Im-
provements.

2,300 00
2,071 5.5

498 16

3,734 73

1,050,284 49

2,059 76
9,380 63

$ cts.

27, 190 95

1,637 44

1,374 34
47,-504 93

1,146 57

8,462 85

122 70
3,472 30

2 78
1,456 77
1,853 46

5,152 00

166 24
96 50

251 56

774 99

567,012 25

1,912 10

111 48
20 00

200 05
43 25

115 65
4,479 iJ3

47 89
14,023 32

1,908 29
1,486 39

28 00

Repairs.
Sta£f

and Main-
tenance.

92,631 05
-29,709 97

21,521 92
4,337 07

75 00

2,477 58
397 43
3 60

11 37

45 78

27,967 01

28 40
260 35

2,799 00

597 33
685 09

1.50 00
01 20

42 78

329 23

7,052 40

7,052 46

93 75

Total.

S cts.

329 23
27,190 95
92,6.31 05
29,709 97
1,637 44

21,521 92
4,337 07
1,374 34

47,504 93

1,140 57
2,300 00
2,071 55
8,462 85

75 00
122 70

3,47:i 30
2.477 58
397 43

3 60
498 16

2 78
1,456 77
1,8.13 46

11 37

5,152 00

166 24
96 50

251 56
45 78

774 99
10,787 19

1,052,316 21

1,912 10
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Amoi NTS expended by the Department of i'ublic Works of Canada during the fiscal

year ended March 31, 1916.

—

Vontinued.

Name of Work.

Harbours and Rivers.

Quebec- Con.

BoucherviUe, wharf reconstruction. . .

.

Boucherville retaining wall
BrAche a Manon, rcuioval of boulders.
Bryant's Landing wharf
Cacouna wharf
Cap a I'Aigle wharf (shed)

Cap Chat, extension of training pier .

Cape Cove, removal of boulders
Cap de la Madeleine, wharf enlargement
Cap d'Espoir, removal of boulders
Cap Hosiers, removal of bouldeia
Cap St. Ignace, wharf
Carleton, protection works
Cedars, repairs to river wharf
Caughnawaga, wharf
Champlain, wharf
Chicoutimi, rang St. Ignace, protection
work

Chicoutimi, wharf
Como
Coteau du Lac, repairs to river wharf. .

.

C(He Ste. Cath srine, wharf
D'.\utray ..-.-

Descente des Fenimes, wharf
De.sjardins, wharf
D'Israeli, wharf
I)oucet'3 Landing
East Templeton, wharf
Echafaad Basque, removal of boulders..
Escoumains, wharf
Fabre, wharf
Fassett ice-breaker (Ottawa river). . ,

.

Father Point, wharf improvements
Fort William (Pontiac Co.) wharf
Fraserville {sec Riv. du Loup, en has). .

.

Gaspe Basin, wharf improvements
Georgevillc, wharf .

.

Graham, wharf
Grandes et Petites Bergeronnes, removal

of boulders
Grande Entree, breakwater (Magdalen

islands)
,

Grand Marsh (see Ste. Clotilde)
Grand Mechins, wharf exten.sion
Grande Riviere de Gaspe, wharf. ........

Grenville
Grindstone (Magdelen islands) br'kwater
Grondines, wharf.
Grosse Isle (Magdelen islands) break-
water

(Jrosse Isle quarantine Sta., Eastern
wharf

Harrington Harb<iur, wharf extension. .

.

Havre aux Maisons (Magdelen islands),

repairs to pier
High Falls, Riv. du Lieve, wharf.
Havre des Tri>!s Ruisseaux, removal of
boulders

Hospital Bay (Magdalen island) break-
water

Hudson, wharf
Hull, wharf

Dredging

S cts.

3,578 56

3,218 91

'5,'688 81

3,601 77

220 54

17,546 45

1,962 79

1,102 68

Construc-
tion .and Im-
provements.

§ cts.

4,795 74
1,966 89

20 00

390 .59

21 00
17.608 01

20 00
20 25

688 31

195 62
7,888 72

27 76

250 00

1,384 53

,946 86

507 77

254 02

3,624 07

"449 89

3,049 76

2,'353'8,5'

20 00

1,608 05

Repairs.

$ cts.

45 00
2,461 93
146 46

1,112 10

1,725 08
298 07

1,221 31

1,123 34

1,499 91
698 63

2,174 41

69 59

1,071 79
100 00
12 50

201 00

87 35
2 95

4,478 42

31 00

1,200 00

946 09
122 12

.582 28
18 00

Staff

and Main-
tenance.

$ cts.

16 80

29 14

4,761 82

285 27

Total.

4,795 74
l,9ti6 89
M 00
45 00

2,401 93
103 26
^90 59
21 00

17,608 01

20 00
20 25

1,112 10
688 31

1,725 08
3,876 63
1,221 31

195 62
7,917 86
3,21« 91

1,123 34
27 76

5,088 81
1,499 91
698 63

2,174 41

3,661 77
69 59

250 00
1,071 79

100 00
12 50

1,605 07
201 00

7,946 86
87 35
2 95

507 77

17 800 47

3,024 07
4.478 42
1.962 79

449 89
31 00

3,049 76

7,061 50
2,353 85

946 09
122 12

20 00

2,008 05
.582 28
303 27

19—45
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Amoints expended by the Department of Jfublie Works of Cannda during the fiscal

year ended March 31, 1916.

—

Vontinued.

Name of Work.
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A-MorxTs expended by the Department of Public Works of Canada during the fiscal

year ended March 31, 1916

—

Continued.

Name oi Work.

11aki)ch;u.s A.vi) Rivers.

Quebec— Con.

Points Jaune, removal of boulders. . .

.

Pointe Piche wharf (Temiskiming). .

.

Pointe St. Pierre, biRakwaUr
Pointe Valois {see Pointe CavagnoUO

.

Port au Sauoion
Quebec Harbour, improvements to
navigation

Qiiyon, wharf
Red Head, removal of boulders
Repentigny, wharf
Rigaud wharf (shed )

Rimouski, harbour improvements
Rimouski, wharf
Riviere aux Renards, wharf
Rivifere Batiscan (channei;
Rivifere Bois Blanc
Riviere Blanche, wharf (St. Ulric)
Riviere Chateauguay (dams)
Riviere du Lievre, lock
Riviere du Lievre
Rivifere du Loup (Fraserville), wharl im
provements

Riviere du Loup (Louiseville), wharf...

,

Riviere (iatineau, bank protection ....

Riviere Girard, wharf (T6miscouata)., .

,

Rivifere Je.sus (St. Eustache, Ste Rose)..
Riviere la Pipe, wharf (.ihed)

Riviere Nicolet
Riviere Quelle, wharf
Riviere Richelieu, at Belceil
Rivi&re St. Louis
Riviere St. Maurice, rapids
Riviere St. Maurice, middle channel at
mouth

Rivifere Tikouabfe, spur dyke
Riviere Verte, dyke
Roberval (Lake St. John), wharf recon-
struction

Ste Adelaide de Pabos, breakwater
St. Andrfe de Kamouraska, wharf
St. Andrews, wharf
St. Al])honse, addition to wharf
Ste. Anne de Beaupre wharf
Ste. Anne de Bellevue, wharf
Ste. Anne du Saguenay, wharf
Ste. Anne de& Monts, Landing pier, etc.

.

St. Antoine de Richelieu, protection
wall

St. Barthelemi (Berthier Co.), dyke
St. Charles de Richelieu, wharf
Ste. Clothilde de Chateauguay (Grand

marsh), improvements
Ste. Croix, wharf
St. Damien (Berthier Co.), ice-breakers.
St. Denis, wharf (Riviere Richelieu)....
Ste. Eloi de I'lle Verte, removal of bould-

ers

Ste. Emelie (Leclcrcville), wharf
Ste.Famille, lied 'Orleans wharf...
St. Felicien (Riviere Ashouapmou-

chouan), dykes
Ste. F^licite. wharf

19-^5J

Dredging.

cts.

20,316 98

3,801 26

31,398 65
1,730 81

13,328 22

•1,130 03

64S 49

110 13

10,729 76
3,857 10

2, 153 92
7,250 84

17,760 23
510 05

610 84

Construc-
tion and Im-
provements.

20 00

396,675 03
873 70
47 50

358 34
50,025 76

2,225 87

2,066 8(j

585 20

iso'so

4,531 01

3r.O 05

8,552 29

540 99
i8,930 13

10,.315 02
36,389 50

300 00
999 75

35 95

'800 08

999 42
307 60

SCO 00

Repairs.

162 45
600 72

3,200 55
3, 622 63

125 42

49 60

999 89

"ei '46'

500 00

1,481 37
!I78 10
35 00

39 92

183 03

10 00

258'53'

23 80

1997.5'

Staff
and Main-
tenance.

tts.

22 00

1,162 71

4,077 69

108 59

Total.

20 00
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AiiouxTS expended by the Department of Public Works of Canada during the fiscal

year ended March 31, 1916

—

Continued.

Name of Work.
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Amiunt.s expended b.v the Department of Public Work? of Canada during the fiscal

year ended March 31, 1916

—

Oontinued.

Nr.me of Work.



710 DEPARTUEXT OF rrHLlC WORKS

7 GEORGE V, A. 1917

Amounts expended by the Department of Public Works of Canada during the fiscal

year ended March .'51. 1916

—

Cnniinucd.

Name of Work. Dredging.
Construc-

tion and Im-
provements.

Harbodks and Rivers.

OnJorio^Continued.

L'Orignal, wharf
Lorrain, wharf
Madawaska River, deepening channel .

.

Magnetawan, wharf
Meaford. revetment wall, etc

Michipicuten Harbour, (Mainland)
Michipicoten Island (Quebec Harbour).

.

Midland, wharf
Minaki, wharf
Montreal River (Latchford dam)
Newcastle
New Liskeard wharf ."

North Bay, wharf .

Oakville, wharf
Ottawa River, Victoria island, channel..

Owen Sound, harbour impt-s

Parry Sound, wharf
Pelee Islands

:

North Dock
South Dock

Penetahguishene, turning basin

Petertwro, George .«t., wharf
Peteruoro
Petewawa, wharf
Picnic Islands, impts ,

(Georgian Bay) .

Plea.sant Point, wharf
Point Edward
Port Arthur, harbour impts

Port Arthur, dry dock
Port Bruce, piers

Port Burwell, piers

Port Credit, harbour impts
Port Elgin, Uriakwater
Port Hope, harbour impts
Portland, wharf
Port Mai tland ,

Port Perry, wharf
Port Rowan, pier

Port Stanley, harbour improvements
Providence Bay, wharf
Pumpkin's Point, wharf
Rainy River, maintenance of gauges
Rainy River, mouth
Richards Landing, wharf warehouse, etc

River Thames breaking ice jams.. . ..

River 'I'hames, removal of obstructions .

.

River Tliames, protection work at Chat
ham

Itobin's Landing, wharf
Roche's Point wharf
Rondeau Harbour, piers, eti.-

St. John Creek, stop-log dam
Sand Point wharf
Sarnia, wharf and shelter basin

Sault 8te. Marie, harbour improvements
Sault Ste. Mario wharf
Severn River at Washago, dam
Shanty Bay wharf
Silver Centre wharf
South.^mpton wharf
Soutli Baymouth (Manitoulin Islands),

wharf and warehouse

§ cts

1,270 85
2,302 24

1,1S7 52

10,270 19

700 00

1,172 68

547 24
1,675 00

4,315 60

"798'56

28,7i0 6i

121 40
80,338 39

3,798 49

2,683 67
4, 458 49

294 48

14.300 15

S cts.

16 70

3,949 90
6,636 44

20 60

265,984 72

254 UO

38,619 95

2,418 71

4,877 20

2,531 55

3,995 44

8,088 17

48,645 97

864 25

11,511 21

10,386 92
44 73

Repairs,

5,593 33

3,016 45

1,000 63

377 95
162 31

302 17

1,631 08
793 00

107 61

§ cts

990 78
50 00

139 75

16 89

570 00
318 53

1,.500 03

767 33

703 05
748 94

100 50

1,384 42

984 83
9,297 20

48 57

500 00
490 31

2,713 39

Staff

and Main-
tenance.

882 03
2,499 29

5,098 94

32 93
l.'in 00
21 25

S cts

1,952 78

16 20

35,641 50

17,019 47

2. 191 70

25 00

Total.

S cts

090 78
1,320 85
2,302 24

139 75
16 70

1,187 52
10,?70 19

716 89
3,949 90
8,589 22
1,172 68

.570 00
318 53

1 , 500 03
547 24

1,095 20
767 33

703 05
748 94

4,315 60
16 20

798 50
, ]00 50
28,710 01
1,384 42

121 40
346,323 11
3"). 641 50

984 83
13,095 69

254 00
2,7.3-2 24

43,078 44

2,418 71
294 48

4,877 20
500 00

21i,:»,s 17

13. UX) 31

44 73
17.019 47
2.531 55
.>,59» 33
2,191 70
3.016 45

1,000 63
25 00
882 03

0,494 73
377 93

102 31

8,390 34
48,545 97
5,098 94
1,031' 08
1,090 18
\M 00
21 25

lor 01
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A.MOiNTS expended by the Department of Public Works of Canada during the fiscal

year ended March 31, 1916

—

Continued.

Name of Work.
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Amounts exjieuded by the Department of Public Works of Canada during the fiscal

year ended March 31, 1916

—

Continued.

Name of Work.
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Amol NTS expended by the Department of Public Works of Canada during the fiscal

year ended 'Alareh 31, 1910

—

Continued.

Name of Work.
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Amol'xts expended by the Department of Public Works of Canada during' tlie fiscal

year ended March 31, 1916

—

Continued.

Name of Work.
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Amoc.nts expended by the Department of Public Works of Canada during the fiscal

year ended March 31, 1910

—

Continued.

Dredging Plant.

Note.—Under the present system of cost.-a<;countinK the bulk of the outlay for repairs to departmental
dredees h.is lieen included with cost of operating and distributed to the several localities at which dredging
has been performed. There have, however, been some minor expenditures (for dismantling condemned
plant, upkeep and repairs to plant temporarily out of use, etc.), which could not properly be so distributed
to lt)calities and are, therefore, shown in the following statement under the column "repairs ".

Name of Work.

Jlaritime Provinces
Ontario and Quebec
Haileybury shipyard •..

Ottawa, Victoria island shipyard
Manitoba, Saskatchewan and Alberta. . .

.

British Columbia

Totals, Dredging Plant.

.

Slides and Booms.

River Saguenay
River St. Maurice
Ottawa District

—

Black river

Couloni;e river

Gatineati river
Madawaska river
Ottawa river '.

.

.

Petawawa river

Trent and Newcastle district

Collection o! slide and boom dues.

Totals, Slides and Booin»

Roads and Bkidges.

Maritime Provinces.

International bridge between Clair, N.B., and Fort
Kent, Me

Matapedia road, imrovements and repairs

Qncljcf and Ontario.
Bryson bridge
Chapeau bridge
Des Joachims bridge
Gatineau bridge
North Timibkaming bridge
Pond Creek bridge (Wright)
Portage du Fort bridge

Ottawa City Bridges and Streets maintuined b/i

Uovernment.

Chaudiere bridge and approaches...
Connaught Place and Wellington st.

Lighting all above
York bridge (Grand river)

Saskatchev:an and Alberta.

Banff bridge (new)
Edmonton bridge (McDougal ave.)

Totals, Bonds and Bridges.

Construc-
tion and Im
provements,

8 cts

30,540 01
21, 168 71

37 36
37,037 Ofi

88,783 14

4,420 58
13,915 59

1,078 80
1,199 98

20,614 95

860 00
2,550 55

14,166 80

«3 15

17,990 56

Repairs.

§ cts

3,151 93
501 50

3,653 43

1,543 78
2 .573 13

.503 26
2, 737 38

225 70
6,251 36

13,834 61

493 26

975 46

128 43
2, 194 72

38 63

60 71
169 25

4,061 17

623 29

2.398 35

11,443 27

Staff

and Main-
tenance.

S cts

20,737 26

20,737 26

l(yj28 57

40T995 86

600 00

-27, 130 18

"517 24
l,49t> 96

80,968 81

13,00:< 22
2,240 10

15,308 32

Total.

S cts.

30, 540 01
24,320 64

501 50
20,737 26

37 36

37,037 00

113,173 83

14,649 15
54,911 45

2,622 .58

3.773 11
1,103 26
2,737 38

27,3.55 88
6,251 36

517 24
1.496 96

115.418 37

860 OO
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Amounts expended by the Department of Public Works of Canada during the fiscal

year ended ilarch 31, 191C—Continued.

Name of Work.
Construc-

tion and Im-
provemeut-s,

Telege.\ph Lines.

Newfoundland.

Cape Ray (Subsidy)

Maritime Province*.

Bay of Fiindy
Ca^>e Breton
Escuminac
Partridge Island, cable

Seal Island, cable

Quebec (Mainland).

Father Point (Subsidy) ....

North Shore, west of Bersimis

.

North Shore, east of Bersimis .

Quebec county
Teniiskaniing j.

Quebec (Islands).

Anticosti
(ira'ise lie—lie aux Coudre^ and Island of Orleans

system
.Magdalen islands

Cable ship Tynan
Maritime Provinces and Gulf generally .'

Ontario.

Pelee Island

Saskalchevmn and Alberta.

Saskatchewan and Alberta lines

British Columbia and Yukon.

.Vslu-roft-Daw.'Jon

Kdgfwood-Xakusp
(iulden-Windeniiere

'

Okanagan Valley system
Vancouver island, including Archipelago
British Columbia lines generally
Telegraph service generally

247 48

5,000 00
676 54

30,523 74

Repairs.

cts.

300 00
58 00

27.491 87

Staff

and Main-
tenance.

19,400 08
6,483 01

Totals, Telegraph lines 62,330 85 27,849 87

250 00

2,569 11
35,538 22
1,692 83

500 00
18,639 53
27,442 35
4,230 22
2,864 70

3,930 08

8.143 51
5.068 15
42.675 91

776 61

1,892 53

117,417 99

218.625 35
1,631 97
7,93-< 48

49,775 02
84,236 01

1 , 428 46
10,244 29

Total.

652,511 32

250 00

2.569 ir
35.785 70
1.692 83
30O 00
58 00

500 00
18,639 .53

27.442 35
9,230 22
3,541 24

8,930 08

8,143 51

6,068 15
711,167 78

776 (il

1,,'<92 53

147,941 73

218.625 35-

1,(131 97
7,9-<8 48

69,175 10
90,719 02
1,428 46

10,244 29

742,692 04
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Amoints expended by the Department of Public Works of Canada during the fiscal

year ended March 31, 1916

—

Continued.

Xaii,.- of Wmk.

Miscellaneous.

Surm/s.

Maritime Provinces
Quebec
Ontario
Manitoba
Saskatchewan and Alberta.
British Columbia
Generally

Upper Ottawa Sloraye Dams.

Coulonge river .survey.

Gordon creek dam ....

Investigation
Kippewa Dam
Madawaska survey. . .

.

Mattawa survey
Ottawa river survey .

.

Quinze dam
Tiniiskaniing dam . .

.

Generally

Accounts Braiick.

.Salaries and travelling e.\]ienses of agents, clerks, etc.,

of outside service

Deep Waterways Commission
Georgian Bay ship canal, Koyal Commission
International Commission, River St. John, N. B
Investigation under Inquiries Act

,

Lake Winnipeg, inspection tug
Legal services re cases before International Joint
Commission

Operation and maintenance of inspection boats ....
River gaugings
River St. Lawrence, metering
Monument to His Majesty the late King Edward VII
Gratuities to widows or other representatives of 29

deceased employees under Civil Service Amendment
Act, Sec .41

Superannuation Fund No. 1

War ajjpropriation. Salaries in connection with milit-
ary service. . .

.

Totals, Miscellaneous

Construc-
tion and Im-
provements.

S cts.

5,374 07
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Amounts expended by the Department of Public Works of Canada during the fiscal

year ended March 31, 1916.

—

Concluded.

Name of Work.

RECiPITUr.ATIOX.

Totals Public Buildings-
Nova Scotia
Priuce Edward Island
New Brunswick
Quebec
Ottawa buildings .

.

Ontario (excluding Ottawa) .

.

Manitoba
Saskatchewan
Alberta
British Columbia
Yukon Territory
Public buildings generally ....

Totals Harbours and Rivers

—

Nova Scotia
Prince Edward Island
New Bnmswick
Quebec
Ontario
Manitoba
Saskatchewan and Alberta . .

.

British Columbia
Yukon Territory
Harbours and rivers generally-

Totals, dredging plant
.1 slides and booms
II roads and bridges

II telegraph lines

II miscellaneous

Dredging.

Grand totals of expenditure . . . 3,762,539 48

166,423 96
72,297 98

1,050(284 49
250,038 49

1,061,504 62

57,881 49
14,1.51 65

1,089,350 80

Construction
and Im-

provements.

? cts.

51,707 32
8,005 52

127,184 90
967,200 41

1,006,592 14

818,726 07

283,646 74

88,581 44
238,489 81

461,766 27

10,394 89

189,190 88
29,305 61

567,012 25

1,411,167 40

1,.578,3.50 24

63,644 .59

36,479 35

2,521,781 34

4,876 91

17,0.30 94
88,783 14

20,614 95

17,990 56
62,330 85

144,315 17

10,815,169 69

Repairs,

$ cts.

14,717 0!

1,151 13
8,613 98

39,805 20

417,208 14

43,193 46

12,361 42
13,660 21

9,688 70
16,158 16

51,887 44

25,461 65
27,967 01

84,619 65
50,133 31

45,637 54

3,653 43

13,834 61

11,443 27

27,849 87

919,045 32

Staff

and Main-
tenance.

69,629 58

12,218 55
62,595 49

3,54,704 90

868,675 16
269,160 49

117,928 58
84,551 16

106,984 8"

1.37,540 56
62,o36 69
71,826 37

7,623 41

2,296 21

7,052 46
76,225 29

104,411 17

28,771 50

1,684 91

50.952 17

418,332 61

20,737 26
80,968 81

15,31)8 32
652,511 .32

357,315
"

4,042,543 55

Total.

S cts.

136,053 99
21,375 20

198,394 37

1,361,710 51

2,292,475 44
1,131,080 02
413,936 74
186,792 81

355.163 38
615,464 99
62,536 69
82,221 26

41M25 69
129,.S61 45

1,652,316 21

1..822,650 83
2,794,399 39
150,297 58
52,315 91

707,727 83
4,876 91

435,363 55
113,173 83
115,418 37

41,742 15

742,692 04
501,630 88

3,

19,539,298 04
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MISCELLANEOUS
CONTKAOTS LET BY THIS DEPARTMENT.

PEOPERTY PURCHASED OR SOLD.

PROPERTY LEASED TO OR BY THE DEPARTMENT.

DIRECTOR'S REPORT, NATIONAL ART GALLERY.

NAMES OF CHIEF OFFICERS OF THE DEPARTMENT.

FOR THE

FISCAL YEAR KNUED MARCH 31, 1916
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Law Clerk's Office,

Ottawa, August 1, 191C.

Sir,—I have the houour to transmit the following statements concerning the

transactions of the department during the laet fiscal year, with respect to contracts

and property, and which are required for insertion in the annual report, 1915-1916,

viz:—

-

No. 1.—Statement of contracts let by this department during the fiscal year ended

March 31, 1916.

No. 2.—Statement of property purchased and sold by the department during the

same period.

No. 3.—Statement of property leased to and by the said department during the

same period.

No. 4.—A list of some of the Public Acts of the Parliament of Canada, passed at

the last session, and Orders in Council having force of law and referring to the

department. \

I have the honour to be, sir.

Tour obedient servant,

J. A. CHASSE,
Law Olerh.

K. C. Desrochers, Esq.,

Secretary, Public Works Department,

Ottawa.

19—46 721
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STATEMENT
SHOWTNG

1st.—CONTRACTS LET BY THE DEPAETMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS OF
CANADA, FROM APRIL 1, 1915, TO MARCH 31, 1916.

2nd.—PROPERTY PURCHASED OR SOLD BY THE DEPARTMENT OF
PUBLIC WORKS DURING THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MARCH
31, 1916.

3rd.—PROPERTY LEASED TO AND BY THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC
WORKS DURING THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 1916.

19--46i
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LIST

OF SOME OF THE

A(JTS OF PARLIAMENT

PASSED AT THE SESSION OF 1916

HAVING REFERENCE TO THE

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS, OR WORKS UNDER ITS CHARGE.
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List of some of the Public Acts of the Parliament of the Dominion of Canada, passed

at the Sixth Session of the Twelfth Parliament, begun and holden at Ottawa, on
the Twelfth day of January, 1916, and closed by Prorogation on the Eighteenth

day of May, 1916, and having reference to the Public Works Department or works
under its charge (6-7 George V) and Orders of the Governor General in Council,

having force of law.

SnViject.

Sums granted to His Majesty for

the tinancial years ending respec
tively tlie 31st. day of March.
ItlKl, and tlie 3Ist day of Marcli,

1917, and the purpose for whicl
they are granted.

Full Title of the Stsfttute.

.\n Act for granting to His Majesty certain
sums of money for^the public service of
the tinancial years ending respectively the
31st March, 191G, and the 31st March,
1917.

Chapters

1 & 29

Page in

Statute Book.

3-5-17-157-163

Schedules
A. B.C.

( A ppropriatioD
Act.)

N.B.—By iiroclamation dated the 14th day of May, 1915, section 16a of the rules and regulations for the

management and working of the Dry Dock at Levis, Quebec, was amended. Vide Canada Gazette,

vol. xlix, p. 291.

By prixilamation dated the 2nd of March, 1916, under the provisions of chapter 40R.S.C., 1906, and
chapter 102, 51 Vict., the tariff of tolls which the Upper Ottawa Improvement Company, Limited,

of Ottawa, proposed to levy for the use of their works during'the season of 1916, was approved.

Vide Canridn (razctte, vol. xlix, p. 3035.

By proclamation of the 3rd of March, 1916, the tariff of tolls which the Rouge Boom Company propose to

levy for the use of their works during the season of 1916, was appro\ed. Vide Canada Oazet/e, vol.

xlix, ]>. 3031.

Department of Public Works,

Ottawa, August 1, 191G.

J. A. CHASSE,
Law Clerh.
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THE NATIONAL GALLERY

REPORT

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 1916

THE NATIONAL GALLERY OF CANADA.
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THE NATIONAL GALLERY OF CANADA—ANNUAL REPORT OF THE
TRUSTEES, 1915-16.

The fiscal year of 1915-16 has been an eventful one to the National gallery.

Faced with an annual grant curtailed, owing to the war, from $100,000 to $25,000, out

of which the cost of administration must be paid as well as the price of any works of

art purchased, the trustees felt that their main efforts must be directed towards

upholding the cause of art in Canada, from which the effects of the war had with-

drawn much of the support it was slowly beginning to receive. In pursuance of this

policy, the trustees continued their purchases of Canadian works of art as in former

years, and allowed the effects of the financial stringency to fall upon the purchase of

the works of foreign artists. In spite of adverse conditions, and the absence of some
of the younger artists at the front, the exhibitions of Canadian art, during the year,

showed a marked improvement in quality, and the trustees have much pleasure in

recording the purchase of a niunber of Canadian works of art of as high a quality as

almost any ever before produced.

The National Gallery Annual Travelling Scholarsljip of $1,000 was judged for

the second year by the committee of the Royal Canadian Academy and was awarded
with the trustees' concurrence to Miss Dorothy Stevens, 2 Spadina Gardens, Toronto.

Loan exhibitions of pictures from the National gallery were sent to the art

gallery of Hamilton, the Winnipeg Museum of Fine Arts and the Library and Art

Union, Sherbrooke, Que. This comprised the second successive exhibitions held by
Hamilton and Winnipeg and the first by Sherbrooke. Each exhibition has been an

unqualified success. The loan exhibitions continue to be an important feature of the

work of the trustees and the number of applications for them prove that public

interest is being awakened and that an increasing desire to see and study good pictures

is forthcoming.

On February 3, 1916, the Parliament buildings were burnt down and the imme-
diate occupation of the Victoria museum by the Canadian Government took away
from the National gallery the whole of its available exhibition galleries, and left only

the directors' ofiices and certain indispensible storerooms and workshops.

The attendance at the National gallery up to the time of the fire was satisfactory,

totalling for the nine recorded months 24,859, of which 5,858 visited the galleries on

Sunday afternoons.

During the year, the following appointments and resignations from the National

gallery staff occurred: Miss Lula Park was appointed stenographer by the trustees, in

place of Miss Lampman, stenographer, who resigned. Herbert Walker was appointed

carpenter by the trustees' by-law, approved by the Hon. Minister of Public Works.

The trustees feel it their duty to include in this report a statement regarding the

necessity of providing adequate premises for the fast growing and already extremely

valuable collection of works of art belonging to the National gallery of Canada. At
the end of 1915, it was obvious that the possessions of the National gallery had entirely

outgrown the premises allotted to them in the Victoria museum. Valuable and
irreplaceable pictures of all periods and schools were forced to be hung without proper

classification or division, so that both their educative and artistic value were in a

measure lost. The continual acquisition of valuable works of art had so encroached

upon the small but well mounted collection of casts, that they were fast losing their

value as models for students coming to copy them.

19-^9 i 771
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The collections of prints and drawings, one of the most valuable factors in the

education and training of an artist and one which the trustees have made a special

feature of their work, were increasing out of all proportion to the possibility of

exhibiting them. Want of the necessary wall space absolutely precluded any tem-

porary or travelling exhibitions of art from being held at the National gallery. Such
exliibitions are frequently available and are of the greatest interest and value to the

public, giving them a more intimate knowledge of the work of one or more artists who
have become specially famous and influential.

At the end of 1915, therefore, the trustees were faced with a condition which, in

order to justify their continued efforts on behalf of the cause of art in Canada,

demanded some action towards securing adequate premises for the National gallery

of Canada, where its possessions might be set forth to the best advantage, and greater

encouragement given to fostering public appreciation and understanding of the fine

arts. To relieve the excessive overcrowding of the National gallery and at the same
time to spread as far as possible throughout the Dominion a better knowledge of art,

the trustees, with the consent of the Government, instituted a system of loan exhibi-

tions of pictures whereby any reputable art society or body in Canada, having proper

facilities for their exhibition, might api:)ly for and receive a loan of pictures for one

.year. That this policy has been appreciated is seen from the fact that applications

arc increasing and that the loans are almost invariably repeated.

This whole situation and a suggested plan of action was under the trustees' con-

sideration when the fire at the Parliament buildings created a situation for the

National gallery whereby all its premises, however inadequate, were immediately

required for the use of the -Houses of Parliament, and valuable and irreplaceable

works of art, only to be handled with the utmost care, had to be placed in storage

within 36 hours. That this was accomplished without damage or accident is a tribute

to the efiiciency of the National gallery staff, who worked early and late to dismantle

the galleries, which had taken such labour and patience to establish.

The situation at the close of the fiscal year is not an encouraging one, and it is

one for which the trustees believe a remedy could, without great difficulty, be found.

The valuable possessions of the National gallery are stored away under conditions

which are extremely bad for works of art. For the visiting public there is now no

National gallery or exhibition of art of any kind in the capital of Canada, while the

student is dejjrived of the means of continuing his art education. The combination

of the war and the destruction of the Parliament buildings has temporarily set back

the work of the National gallery, but it has had this good effect, that the situation

regarding adequate premises has now become so acute that it seems necessary that

new premises of some kind be provided if this most valuable and progressive branch

of the Government service is to continue.

The administrative work of the National gallery continues as actively as before

the closing of the galleries, for the care of works of art when in such unsatisfactory

storage is more exacting than when they are on exhibition, while the increased

number of outside loans means increased ofiice work. It is the most earnest hope of

the trustees that the position of the National gallery and its duty to the public will

be carefully considered.

The trustees of the National gallery met formally on four occasions, and

informally on other occasions, and the following works of art were accjuired by gift

or purchase :

—

<;irTS—
Alfred Rcthcl Three woodcuts presented by Dr. Shepherd.

a. Wallwyn Shepherd I'encll drawing "Near Avignon." Presented by
J. Miles.

Wlllem Hondlus Engraving presented by Dr. .Shepherd.

I..ucas Vorsterman Engraving presented by Dr. Shepherd.

Andrea Andreani Woodcut Presented by Dr. Sliepherd.
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Diploma Pictures—
R. F. Gagen, R.C.A Pulpit Rock.
W. S. Maxwell, R.C.A Design for Departmental Buildings, Ottawa.

Purchases—
Oil Paintings^

John Bell-Smith Portrait. .

John Lavery, A.R.A Portrait of H.R.H.^ Princess Patricia of Con-
naught.

Harriet Ford The Market Square, Segovia.
T. W. Mitchell In the Blue Mountains.
J. E. H. Macdonald, A.R.C.A. Snowbound.
ToraThonison Northern River.
Mary E. Wrinch The Little Bridge.
R. S. Hewton A Spring Day.
John Johnstone Quai des Augustins, Bruges.
Albert H. Robinson, A.R.C.A . . . . Winter Sunrise.
G. Home Russell, A.R.C.A Early Spring.
William Brymner, P.R.C.A Fog on the Coast.
A. Y. Jackson, A.R.C.A. Winter Afternoon.
Percy Woodcock, R.C.A Near Chateauguay.
F. Luis Mora, N.A In Costume.
Alex Marcette ' Rainy Weather.
O. Leduc Pomm'es Vertes.
A. Dismer The Guide's Home.
W. E. Atkinson January Thaw.
Ernest Lawson. A.N.A Misty Day.
J. W. Beatty, R.C.A Morning. Algonquin Park.
W. Brymner, P.R.C.A Nude Figure.
F. S. Challener. R.C.A A Selkirk Pioneer.
W. H. Clapp, A.R.C.A Rio Nuevas, Cuba.
Miss Alberta Cleland On the Beach Notre. Dame de Portage,
Charles de Belle Children's Joy.
Miss Alice Des Clayes. . .. .. ..Drawing Water.
E. Wyly Grier, R.C.A Noon.
Andr^ Lapine . . The Team.
Alfred Mickle Dyke-lands of Grand Prg.
Valentine Molina Morning.
H. Ivan Neilson An October Pastoral, Cap Rouge, Que.
Arthur D. Rosaire, A.R.C.A . . . . Mulct River, Laurentian Mountains.
G. A. Reid, R.C.A Vacant Lots.
Chas. W. Simpson, A.R.C.A .. ..Winter in the Harbour.
Tudor Hart Sheep, Brittany.

Etchings, Drawinys, Prints— v

Mies A. E. Hope Seller of Wine.
Frank Brangwyn, A.R.A Unloading Barges.
G. Spencer Pryse The Workroom.

Point to Point Races.
Daniel A. Vere-Sraith The New Slave.
Ethel Gabain La Toilette.

"
Stripes and Black.

John Copley Counsel and Vender of Stamps.
Footlights.

Anthony Barker. . . . The Wind.
F. Ernest Jackson Chiswick Mall, London.
C. Shepperson The Rainbow.

. Pastoral.
Harry Becker Young Girls Gathering Potatoes.
B. Beham Portrait of Emperor Ferdinand I.
H. S. Beham Justice of Emperor Trajan.
Faithorne Margaret Smith.
Claude Dance Under the Trees.
Mantegna Battle of Sea Gods.
Pe^cz.. The Conversion of Saul.

„ "
, Horatius Codes Defending the Bridge at Rome.

Rembrandt The Synagogue.
Landscape with Mill Sail.

Robetta Adoration of the Magi.
Rosex Pallas.
V*"„Ley<ie" Christ Appearing to the Megdal'en.

Return of the Prodigal Son.
Durer The Mass of St. Gregory.

" BirUi of the Virgin.
Christ in Limbo.
The Mocking ot Christ.
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Purchases—Concluded.

Etchings, Drawings, Prints—Concluded.

Rembrandt.. Abraham's Sacrifice.

Altdorfer Judith with Head of Holofernes.
" Pyramus and Thysbe.
" Virgin and Child.

H. S. Beham Lichas bringing Hercules the Garment of
Nessus.

" Labours of Hercules.
Pencz Scaevola defying Porcena.
Zatzinger The Great Tournament.
Robetta An Allegory of Abundance.
John W. Cotton Beeches, Epping Forest.

" Winter's Mantle.
The Lime Kiln.

" L'Entres de I'Kglise au Beguinage, Bruges.
Walter Duff Miss Florence 'Wyle.

T. G. Greene Four etchings.

S. H. Maw Lowestoft Harbour, England.
" Ely Cathedral, England (Interior).
" Ely Cathedral, England (Interior).

Dorothy Stevens Carmen.
C. W. Simpson, A.R.C.A Sous le fort, Quebec.

" " Notre Dame, Montreal.
Herbert Raine I-K>uviers, France.
C. Barraud The Road in the Valley.

*' The Keewatin Channel.
John W. Cotton Fish Market, Bruges.
W. R. Duff ' Near Dundas.
T. G. Greene The Beach, Lake Shore.

" Willows, Moonlight.
E. Liaur Moonlight on the Credit.
Herbert Raine Siena, Italy.

F. W. Jopling Studies of my Dog.
Mary Cassatt Le potager.

" La Lettre.
" Femme assise.
" Fillettes regardant des images.
" Femme se coiffant.

Baertsoen Moulin sur le Rampart Bruges.
" Kroomboomsloot I.

Opsoraer L'Eglise der Beguinage.
" La Nethe k Lierre.

Herbert Raine Evening, The Canal, Montreal.
Joseph St. Charles Tete d'etude.

Salvatore Rosa Emblematic Subject.

S. F. Ravenet The Lord of the Vinyard.

J T. Wood Rest during the Flight to Egypt.
Martinus Peirt I^e Negociant d'Amsterdam.
School of Mantegna Christ descending into Hell.

" " The Entombment.
Jean Duvet Christ on a 'White Horse.
W. J. Thomson Lime Burner's Camp.

Pastels—
Maurice CuUen, R.C.A The North River.

Water Colours—
Robert F. Gagen, R.C.A The Edge of the Rocks.

T. G. Greene In the Woods.
C. J. CoUinge The Passing of Winter.

Cecil Buller Breton House.

Bronzes—
A. Suzor-Cote, R.C.A The old Pioneer.

Miss Florence Wyle Dancing Boy.

J. M. Swan, R.A The Boy with Mongoose.
J. M. Swan. RA Walking Leopard.
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NATIONAL GALLERY—APPKOPEIATION ACCOUNT.

Date.

! 1*^1
April 30.
May, 12.

" 12
" 21.

June 9.

9.

9.

9.

" 11.

11.

" 11.

" 11.
" U.

" 11.
• 11.
•• 11.

., 11.

" 11.

14.

" 23

June 30
July 12.

July 10.

Aug. 16.
" 16.
" 19.

•• 19.

Oct.

Nov.

Dec.

19
13.

18.

19.

21.

12.

22.

25.

3
7.

• 20.
" 23.

Jan. 13.

„ 13
.. 13.
.. 29.

No. of Cheque.

No. 40.

41.

B. of Ex.
42

No. 43
44

45.

46

48.
49.

.50.

51
53.

.53

54.

B. of Ks.

56.

57.

58.

59.

60
61.

62.

No. 63.

B.of Ex. . .

.

No. 64.

65.

66

67.

B.ofE.x. ...

No. 68.

69

70.

71

72
B.of Ex
No. 73.

74.

75.

76.

To V\ hom Paid.

Amount granted by appropriation

.

National Gallery Trust Account
Bank of Commerce, loan, prints bought from
Keppel & Co

OntarioSociety of artists, prints, etching, etc..

McMillan, James, insurance, '*Adam and
Eve"

Bromhead, H. W., books.
Carroll Gallery, London, Colling's water
colour

Art Museum of Toronto, etchings
Manzi .Joyant & Co., New York, etchings,

.Senefelder Club ,

Raine, Herbert, etching, Louviers, France...
.Johnstone .John, oil pamting, " Quai des Au-

gustins. "
Brynmer, William, P.8.C.A., oil painting,
"Fog on the Coast". ..

Simpson, Chas. W., R.C.A., 2 etchings) .

Rus.bell, G. Home, A.R.C.A., oil painting^
"Early .Spring"

Hewton, R. S., oil painting, "A Spsing Day".
Bell-Smith, F. M. oil painting, "Portrait". .

.

Durand-Ruel, Mary Cassatt etchings
.Jackson, A. Y., oil painting, "Winter After-
noon"

Keppel, Frederick & Co., difference on en-
change Durer print

Scott, W. & Sons, P. F. Woodcock, painting,
"Near Chateaugay"

Robinson, Albert H., oil painting "Winter
Sunrise"

Na' ional Gallery Trust Account
Arti'.t's Supply Company, four Medici prints.

Cancelled.
Mortimer Company, Limited, catalogue 1915.

National Gallery Trust Account . ......
Cleghorn & Beattie, grey linen for cases
Swan, Mrs , bronue statuettes. Boy with
Mongoose, etc

Grosvernor Gallery, London, Lavery portrait.
Princess Patricia

Edwards, Francis, lx)oks

National Cillery Trust Account
Senefelder Club, subscriptions, 1915-17
National Gallerj' Trust .\ccount
Canadian National Exliibition Association,

paintings, etchings, lithographs
Canadian Art Club, Toronto, January Thaw
and Misty Day

Royal Canadian Academy, 21 pictures pur-
chased

Edwards, Francis, books
National (iaileiy Trust Account
Royal Can.arlian .Academy of Arts, travelling

scholarship. Miss Dorothy Stevens
Cancelled.
.Artist's Supply Company, Medici prints N,
P.U., 12, 20, 93, SS, 89

National Gallery Trust Account
(iraves, .Algernon, books
Art Association, Montreal, "Sheep Britanv",
Tudor Hart '

.

Artist's Supply Co., Medici print No. 92. .

.

Natior.al Gallery Trust Account

Dr. to Appro.

-525,000 00

Expenditure

$ cts.

500 00

2,3C0 00
1,657 00

27 38
24 70

300 00
135 00

255 00
20 00

100 00

250 00
10 00
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NATIONAL GALLERY—APPEOPEIATION ACCOUl^^T—Concluded.

Date.
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NAMES OF THE CHIEF OFFICERS

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

DATES OF APPOINTMENT, Etc., FROM 1841 TO 1016.
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The Names and Dates of the appointments, etc., of the principal Officials of the

Department of Public Works, from 1841 to 1916:—

Names. Capacity or Office.

Under Statute 4~5 Vic, Chap. 38.

CoRPOKATiON BoaED OF Works.

KiUaly, Hon. H. H
Daly, Hon. D
Harrison, S.B . . .

.

Sulliv.an, R. B
Davidson, .J., Esq
Begly, Thomas A
Keefer. Samuel
Rubidge, F.B

New BoAEi) of Works.

Killaly, Hon. H. H
Daly, Hon. D
Draper, Hon. W. H
Morris, Hon. W
Papineau. Hon. D. B

Under Statute 9th Vic., Cap. 37, etc.

Robinson, Hon. W. B
Tache, Hon. E. P '....

Chabot, Hon. J
Merritt, Hon. W.H
Bourret, Hon. .J

Young, Hon. .fohn
Cbabot, Hon. ,1 ^

Lemieux, Hon. F
Alleyn, Hon. C
Holton, Hon. L. H
SiCotte, Hon. L. V
Rose, Hon. .John
Cauc'hon, Hon. Joseph
Tessier, Hon. U. J
Drummond, Hon. L. T ,

Lafraniboise, Hon. M ,

Chapnis, .J. C
Casgrain, Hon. Charle.^ Ens
Cameron, Hon. M
Wettenhall, .Tames, E-sq

Bourret, Hon. Joseph
Killaly, Hon. H. H ;

Keefer, Samuel
Trtideau, Toussaint
Begley, Thomas A
Trudeau, Toussaint
Braim, Frederick
Page, John

Chainnan.

Members

.

Date of Appointment.

Service.

Dec. 29, 1841 Oct. 3, 1844

Secretary
Chief Engineer
Architect and Asst. Chief En-
gineer

Chairman.

Members .

.

Aug. 17, 1841
17, 1841

Dec. 15, 1841

Oct. 4, 1844

Chief Commissioner June
Mar.
Dec.
April
Feb.
Oct.
Sept.
Jan.
Nov.
Aug.

Jan.
June
May

Commissioner.

July
May

Second Commissioner. .. . .July

Assistant Commissioner. .

.

". . Mar.
.Feb.

,1 'April
.... Feb.

Deputy Commissioner |May
Mar.

Secretary .. [Feb.
Dec.
Mar.
Oct.Chief Engineer ,

Y79

12, 1846
11, 1S48
13, 1849

8, 1850
12, 1851
28, 1851

23, 1852

27, 1855
26, 1857
2, 1858

7, 1858
U, 1859
13, 1861

24. 1862
28, 1863
24, 1863
30, 1864

9, 1846
11, 1848
2, 1850

17, 1850
12, 1851

6, 1859
8, 1864

10, 1841

13, 1859
8, 1864

31,1873|

June 8, 1846

Mar. 10,

Nov. 26,

Mar. 31,

Feb. 11,

Oct. 27,

Sept. 22,

Jan. 26,

Nov. 25,

Aug. 1,

6,

Jan. 10,

June 12,

May 23,

May 27,
July 23,

Mar. 29,

June 30,

Feb. 29,

1,

April 16,

Feb. 11,

May 6,

Mar. 7,

May 29,

iOct. 31,

iMar. 7,

July 1,

;Oct. 1,

1848
1849
1850
1851
1851
1852
1855
1857
1858
1858
1859
1861
1862
1803
1863
1S64
1867
1818
1850
1850
1851
1859
1864
1868
1857
1864
1867
1879
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The Names and Dates of the appointments, etc., of the principal Officials of the

Department of Public Works, from 1841 to 1916—Concluded.

Names. Capacity or Office.

D.\TE OF Appointment.

Served.

To.

Under Statute 31 Vic, Cap. 12.

McDougall, Hon. Wm
Langevin, Hon. Hector L., C.B
Mackenzie, Hon. Alexander
Tupper, Sir Charles, C.B., K.C.M.G
Lange-v-in, Sir Hector L., C.B., K.C.M.G.
Smith, Hon. Frank
Ouimet, Hon. Joseph Alderic
Desjardins, Hon. Alphonse '.

.

Tarte, Hon. J. Israel

Sutherland, Hon. James
Hyman, Hon. Charles S
Pugsley, Hon. Wm
Monk, Hon. F. D
Rogers, Hon. Robert
Trudeau, Toussaint
Baillarge, G. F
Gobeil, A., I.S.O
Hunter, James B
St. Laurent, Arthur
Braun, Frederick
Chapleau, S
Ennis, F. H
Gobeil. A
Roy, E. F. E
Gelinas, Fred
Tessier, Napoleon
Desrochers, Rodolphe Charles
McPherson, D. A
Desrochers, Rodolphe Charles
Dillon, R.W
Colman, L. H :

Page, John
Perley, H. F :

Coste, Louis
Lafleur, E. D
Dufresnc, A. R
Scott, Thos. S
Fuller, Thomas
Ewart, David, I.S.O
Horwood, E. L

Minister.

Acting Minister.
Minister

Deputy Minister.

Assistant Deputy Minister.
Secretary

Assistant Secretary.

Chief Engineer.

Assistant Chief Engineer.
Chief Architect

July
Dec.
Nov.
lOct.

[May
Aug.
Jan.
May
July
Nov.
May
Aug.
Oct.
Oct.
May
Oct.
Jan.
July

Oct.
Nov.
Jan.

It

June
Aug.
July
Jan.

ti

Dec.
May
July
Nov.
;july

Jan.
May

Oct.
Nov.
Oct.

1, 1867 Dec.
8, 1869 Nov.
7, 1873 Oct.

17, 1878 May
20, 1879 Aug.
14, 1891 Jan.
11, 1892 April
1, 1896 July

13, 1896, Oct.
11, 1902iMay
22, 1905 Aug.
30, 1907 Oct
12, 1911, Oct.
29, 19121

29, 1868 Oct.
4, 1879 Dec.

1891 June
1908
1908
1867
1879

' Sept.
I Nov.

5, 1880 Jan.
1885 Dec.
1891

1

"

1901 July
1908 June
1910,

1891 1 April
1896 June
1910|Mar.
1911

1868 Oct.
1880 July
1892 1 Mar.
1905
1910l

26 1871 Oct.
31, 1881 June
2, 1897,Sept.
1, 1914

7, 1869

6, 1873

16, 1878
19, 1879
11, 1891

10, 1892

30, 1896
12, 1896
21, 1902

3, 1905
29, 1907
12, 1911

22, 1912

1, 1879
31, 1890

2, 1908

30, 1879
4 1880

13. 1885
31, 1890
31, 1900
2, 1908

2, 1910

11, 1893
30, 1910
23, 1911

1, 1879
10, 1891

18, 1899

.30, 1881

30, 1897

30, 1914
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